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DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION 
URBAN MASS TRANSPORTATION ADMINISTRATION 

WASHINGTON, O.C. 20590 

Mr. Roger M. DeBaise 
Chairman Transit District 
Town of Wallingford 
Municipal Building 
Wallingford, Connecticut 06492 

Dear Mr. DeBaise: 

11 J~N 1976 

This is in response to your letter and affidavits of 
May 26, 1976 regarding the charter and school bus operations 
of the Wallingford Transit District (WTD). 

We are informed by your letter and affidavit, and also 
the affidavit of Mr. John J. Wall of Wall's.Transportation 
Service, that the buses purchased by the Wallingford 
Transit District under Project No. CT-03-0012 will be 
used extlusively in "mass transportation service" as 
defined under the Urban Mass Transportation Act of 1964, 
as aJDended (the UMT Act), and also under Urban Mass Trans
portation Administration (UMTA) regulations. For this 
reason, and also because your operation is so small, 
you have requested under section 604.14 of UMTA regulations 
on charter bus operations that WTD be granted a waiver of 
Sections 604.12, 604.13 and 604.15, and ·of any financial 
reporting requirements for charter bus operations. 

Based on the information in your letter and affidavits 
UMTA hereby accepts your request for a waiver of the above 
Sections of the.UMTA regulations under section 604.14 of 
the charter bus regulations. This approval shall 
constitute an agreement between WTD and UMTA under Section 
3(f} of the UMT Act and shall be incorporated in to the 
grant contract for Project No. CT-03-0012. 

Since under the terms of this agreement buses for Project 
No. CT-03-0012 will be used exclusively for mass transporta
tion services, the Wall's Transportation service may 
continue to engage in school bus operations but with the 
understanding that Project buses will not be used in those 
operations. 
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If I can be of further assistance to you -ln ttds ~tter 
please feel free to call on me. 

cc: Chron /--
Reading ,.,; 
UCC-15 File 
UCC-30 File 
Project File 
COOI\:Cl-1:6/9/76 

2 

Sincerely, 

/s/ Theodore Ao Munter 

Theodore A. Munter 
Acting Chief Counsel 



MEMORANDUM IN RE 

THE COMPLAINT OF WALTER K. Z.INSMEISTER AGAINST THE 
CENTRAL NEW YORK REGIONAL TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY 

FINDINGS AND CONCLUSIONS 

The Urban Mass Transportation Administration received 

a complaint dated October 24, 1975, from Mr. Walter K. 

Zinmeister, President of the Syracuse and Oswego Motor 

Lines, Inc., Syracuse, N.Y., alleging that the Central 

New York Regional Transportation Authority (CNYRTA) was 

engaging in charter bus operations outside of its urban 

area; engaging in destructive pricing; and engaging in 

non-incidental charter bus operations with UMTA-assisted 

equipment in violation of the Urban Mass Transportation 

Act of 1964, as amended (the Act). CNYRTA was notified 

of Mr. Zinmeister's complaint by letter dated December 9, 

1975, and afforded 30 days to reply to those allegations. 

CNYRTA responded both in writing and orally at an informal 

proceeding held on January 20, 1976, at the Department of 

Transportation in Washington, D.C. We have reviewed the 

information supplied to us by Mr. Zinsmeister and his 

attorney, Mr. L. Lawrence Tully, and also the information 

supplied by CNYRTA and its attorney, Mr. Barry Shulman. 

On the basis of that information we make the following 

findings: 
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1. The CNYRTA engaged in unauthorized charter bus 

operations outside of its. urban area from June 4, 1975 

to October 22, 1975, because of its failure to obtain 

an agreement under section 3{£) of the Act during that 

time period; 

2. 

2. That CNYRTA is prohibited from using UMTA-assisted 

buses in charter bus operations outside of its urban area 

under its authorizing legislation, (Public Authorities 

Law 132S et ~.); 

3. That allegations of destructive pricing were 

not substantiated; and 

4. That the allegations of non-incidental use of 

buses were also not substantiated. 

In respect to our first finding, UMTA grantees are 

prohibited by section 3(f) of the Act from engaging in 

charter bus operations outside of the urban.area within 

which they provide mass transportation service unless 

they enter into an agreement which, in the opinion of 

the Secretary of Transportation, contains a "fair and 

equitable arrangement" to prevent the foreclosing of 

charter operations by local private intercity carriers 

who are willing and able to provide such service. On 

June 4, 1975, in connection with Project No. NY-03-0058, 

CNYRTA signed a certification providing that it would 

not engage in charter bus operations outside of its 

4 



3. 

urban area. On June 13, 1975, UMTA issued a notice in the 

Federal·Register which provided that UMTA grantees could 

engage in charter bus operations outside of their urban 

area if they entered into an "interim" agreement pursuant 

to which they would be required to certify that revenues 

generated by charter service are equal to or greater than 

the cost of providing the service. (See Notice 1, 

40 Fed.Reg. 25315 (June 13, 1975)). CNYRTA did not 

receive approval of an interim agreement until October 22, 

1975. 

CNYRTA engaged in charter bus operations from.the 

time of its June 4, 1975, certification until the approval 

of its interim agreement; such operations during that time 

period were in violation of the Act. CNYRTA contends that 

it believed itself to be in compliance with the regulations 

because of a letter sent to UMTA on April 9, 1975, to which 

it received no response. The letter in question asked for 

guidance in how to proceed in obtaining a section 3(f) 

agreement. The answer to this question was provided to 

CNYRTA and all other affected transit operators through 

publication in the Federal Register. Therefore CNYRTA 

cannot rely on its failure to receive actual notice to 

relieve it 9f the requirements of that Notice orof 

section 3(f} of the Act. 

In respect to the second finding, CNYRTA is a public 

benefit corporation formed under Public Authorities Law, 

Section 1332, et seq. to operate in three counties: 

5 



Onondaga, Oswego and Cayuga. Nowhere in this enabling 

legislation has CNYRTA been' granted authority to conduct 

either charter or mass transportation activities outside 

4. 

of this three-county area. In August of 1974 the New York 

Attorney General issued an opinion with respect to CNYRTA's 

authority to engage in charter bus operations outside of 

their three-county area. The Attorney General's opinion 

reads in part as follows: 

"In conclusion, therefore, it ismy opinion 
that the Authority may, or in its administrative 
discretion forego, bidding on intra-district 
charter runs; however, it should abstain from 
bidding on such private charters which operate 
beyond the limits of the Authority ... 

Under Section 604.15(b) (1) of UMTA's final regulations on 

charter bus operations, 41 Fed.Reg. 1142 (April 1, 1976), 

grantees are required to provide a description of the area 

within which they are authorized by appropriate State law 

to conduct charter bus operations. Given the opinion of 

the Attorney General quoted above and other information 

in the file on this matter, it is clear that CNYRTA is 

unable to demonstrate its compliance with section 

604.15(b) (1) of the charter bus regulations. CNYRTA 

should therefore refrain from using UMTA-assisted buses 

in charter bus operations outside of the three-county 

area described above. 

In respect to our third finding, the allegation that 

CNYRTA's prices were designed to eliminate competition 

was not substantiated. Under the UMTA notice of June 13, 

6 



5. 

19 7 5, and under the final regula·tions on charter bus 

operations, a grantee is required to certify and establish 

to the satisfaction of UMTA that revenues generated from 

charter operations are equal to or greater than the cost 

of providing the service. Where the grantee makes such 

a showing it may engage in charter bus operations outside 

of its urban area in competition with private carriers 

(where the grantee is otherwise allowed by local or 

State law to engage in such operations). UMTA does not 

consider private carriers to be foreclosed from charter 

bus operations when grantees satisfy the UMTA requirements 

for certification. CNYRTA's certification submitted under 

the June 13, 1975 Notice was reviewed and approved by UMTA 

on October 22, 1975. 

In respect to our last finding, the allegation that 

CNYRTA is in violation of the requirement that UMTA

assisted buses be used only in incidental charter bus 

operations was also not substantiated by the complaint 

or subsequent proceedings. UMTA does not provide 

assistance for charter bus operations. Buses purchased 

with assistance under the Act are to be used in "mass 

transportation" service which has been defined, under 

section 12(c) (5) of the Act, to exclude charter bus 

operations. However, pursuant to an opinion of the 

Comptroller General of the United States, B-~60204, 

Dated December 7, 1976, UMTA may allow buses funded 

7 



under the Act to be used in incidental charter bus 

operations. Incidental means operations which do not 

interfere with a grantee's regular route service. 

CNYRTA has alleged, and it has not been established 

otherwise, that their charter bus operations have not 

interferred with regular route service. In section 

604.11 of UMTA's final charter bus regulations a more 

clearly defined standard is applied for what is or is 

not incidental charter bus operations. Section 604.11 

was not in effect, however, at the time of this alleged 

6. 

violation and may not be used as a standard to determine 

compliance in this matter. 

CONCLUSION 

With regard to sanctions for violations section 3 (f) 

of the Act reads, in part, as follows: 

" •.• In addition to any other remedies specified 
in the agreement, the Secretary shall have 
authority to bar a grantee or operator from 
the ·receipt of further financial assistance for 
mass transportation facilities and equipment 
where he determines that there has been a con
tinuing pattern of violations of the terms of 
agreement. Upon receiving a complaint regarding 
an alleged violation, the Secretary shall 
investigate and shall determine whether a 
violation has occurred •. upon determination 
that a violation has occurred, he shall take 
appropriate action to correct the violation 
under the terms and conditions of the agreement." 

While UMTA's investigation in this matter has determined 

that CNYRTA engaged in unauthorized charter bus operations 

from June 4, 1975 to October 22, 1975, we have concluded 
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that this violation is not sufficient to establish a 

continuing pattern of viola·tions under the Act. UMTA 

therefore will not consider barring CNYRTA from further 

Federal financial assistance at this time. However, 

CNYRTA may not engage in any charter bus operations 

outside of its regular service area· (the three-county 

7. 

area described above) until it has established to UMTA 1 s 

satisfaction that it is allowed to do so under appropriate 

law and that any such service would be in compliance with 

our regulations. The interim agreement submitted by 

CNYRTA and approved by UMTA on October 22, 1975, is 

hereby cancelled. 

Charter bus operations by CNYRTA which are · 

inconsistent with this memorandum will be a violation 

of section 3(£) of the Act, and shall result in the 

barring of further financial assistance to that 

Authority. 

Theodore A. Munter 
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DE?·ARTiviENI OF TRANSPORTATION 
qq ttJ se J{ c)~-v» r 1}) 

I ,, 
.URBAN MASS TRP.NSPORT,~.TION f.',DMINiSTRATION 

WASHINGTON. D.C. :/0!·90 

N.r. William J. Leidinger 
President 
Greater Richmond Transit Company . 
900 East Broad Street 
Richmond,· Virginia 23219 

Dear Mr. Leidinger: 

3 0 JUN 197.6 

This is in response to your lette~ of June 7, 1976 concerning 
the Urban Mass T::::-anspbrtation Administration's. (UMTA) recently 
issued rules on charter bus operations, 41 Fed.Reg. 14122 
{April 1, 1976). 

You object to thefact that UMTA did not incorporate your 
August 5, 1975 ClJmments on the proposed charter. regulations 
\·lith .respec·t to :-:-equiring the "notice" procedures in sec'cion 
6·04 .15 "only for the first applicatiGn submitt.ed after the 
effective date of the charter re·gulations. 11 ~'ie appreciate 
your comments on the proposed regUlc:ttions. Many of your 
corn.111t:nts were incorporated into the final regulations, and 
I can assure you that the remaining comments rece1ved our 
careful consideration. Hov·lever we did.notfeel that you:r 

·comme.n·ts on t.he noted procedure were appropriate for 
incorporation into the final regulations. 

You are also concerned that UMTA has in.your opinion 
attempted to broaden the scope of section 3(£) of the 
Urban .Hass Transportation Act of 1964, as amended {49 
u.~.c. 1602) (the Act) to apply to charter bus oper
atious inside a grantee's service area. This is not 
the case.--section 604.12 of the charter bus regu
lations provide as follows: 

"Every grantee shall as a condition of 
assistance, enter into. a written agree
~ent,. that neither it nor any operator 
of mass.transportation equipment on its 
·behalf, will engage in apy charter bus 
operations where points of origin or 
destination will be outside of its urban 
area except as permitted under that a9ree
ment. The agreement shall become a part 
of the grant contract between the Govern
ment and the grantee. 

10 



2. 

The cause of your concern is apparently secti~n 604.1$(a) pf 
the regulations:which provides as f~llows: 

"Each applicant io~ho· eng-ages or wishes to 
engage in charter bus operations shall 
include. the follo\-Ting in its applic.ation. II 

We agree that this section is ambiguous. We therefore 
propose to modify it as follows: 

"Each applicant who engages or.wishes to 
engage in charter bus operations outside 
of its urban area shall include the following 
1n its appl1cation •... " 

Thank you for bringing this matter to our attention. We 
will take appropriate corrective actions. 

If I can be of further assi~tance to you please do not fail 
to contact me. 

/tn./1~· 
Robert E. Patricelli· 

11 



. 3[l) 
DEPARTMENT OF' TRANSPORTATION 

URBAN MASS TRANSPORTATION ADMINISTRATION 
WASHINGTON, O.C. 20590 

.Mr. Wayne J. Smith · 
United Bus Owners of America 
500 12th Street S.W. 
Washi!lgton, D.C~ 200~4 

Dear Mr. Smith: 

9 JUL 1976 

This is in response ·to yo·ur letter of June 13, 1976, 
requesting clarification of the procedures involved 
in reporting apparent charter violations by UMTA 
grantees, and inquiring about the availability of 
information with respect to grantees' charter rates. 

We appreciate your concern in this matter and we will 
respond in length.to your inquiry. 

Under section 604.40 of the.Urban Mass Transportation 
Administration's regulations on charter bus operations, 
41 F.R. 14122 (April 1, 1976), an interested party may 
file a complaint. alleging a violation of. an ·''agreement '1 

by an UMTA grantee entered into under section 3(f) ~f the 
Urban Mass Transportation Act of 1964, as amended (49 
u.s.c. 1601 et seq.) (the Act). Such complaint" •.. must 
be in writinqand.must specify in detail the action claimed 
·.to violate the agreement, and must be accompanied by 
evidence sufficient to enahle the Administrator to make 
a preliminary determination as to wh·ether probable cause 
exists to believe that a violation of the agreement has 
taken place ... (Emphasis supplied)~ Under sections 604.15 
and 604.20 of those regulations private carriers within a 
grantee's 11 urbari area" will have the information available 
to them which constitutes an agreement with UMTA. This 
information will ·be supplied either through a public.hear
ing or through, notices of modification of a prior agreement 
under section 604.20. 

Since the publication of the charter regulations several 
grantees have .requested and have been granted an extension 
of.time for compliance. Grantees are using this time to 
give notices of public hearings, where appropriate, or to 

·notify private carriers of their proposed or existing 
charter C·Der.at:ions and re·::E::i'-le ·comrr.~~rits t.ne!."eon. A£t·3r 
~..; ... ~ 1 -.,~~-~~~ --~~-· ~ ...... ,., __ :;: --~---,4 __ ; ..... ; ..... :.·.~~-··.· __ •• ..;.~;....·'·_~ .. e~ ; . .-,,; .. ,.;· ·-~ ~ ·· 
.!... ....;., .:..l.a.J.. :::.,; ....._ ....... a~..L. ~ .::J ...J...l.i.,~,.,~, V..... L.J..L.;.. .:;.l ..._J.,~..J .. :J: .. -4;oo •• ..;l,~·4.-.VJ.;l.• ·i-,--· UJ.·.t-.P..:. 1 We 1t"i l .. L.l. ;)..:2: 

better prepared to de'termine what is. or is not a violation 

. 
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of an agreement since no agreements have been finalized. 

Once agreements have been finalized, private carriers who 
compli:iin under Sec'tion 604.40 will make a better case -of 

2. 

their allegations if they are familiar with the. final agree
ment of the grantee in question. It would therefore not be 
sufficient to allege merely that an UMTA-assisted bus is 
being used on charter operations during the rush hours o.r 
that it was used more than fifty mile.s outside of a grantee 
service area. Although the above uses of UMTA-assisted buses 
are presumed to be non-incidental, these presumptions.wil1 
not apply where a grantee has established to our satisfaction, 
prior to finalizing its agreement, that such use of buses will 
not interfere with its mass transportation se~vices to the 
public. We expect that this information will be supplied to 
both UMTA and private operators under Section 604.15(b) (1) arid 
(2) of the regulations. which ·requires the following information 
with respect to charters: 

" ••• (1) A description of the area within which 
the applicant is authorized by local, State and 
Fede~al law to conduct charter bus operations. 
C0pies of the document granting such authority 
should be attached. Where there· are disputes · 
over jurisdiction pending that would affect 
charter bus operations this information·should 
be included in that notice. 

(2) An estimation of the number of each type 
of bus which will be employed on the proposed 
charter bus operations, and the number of week
days or weekends tho.se buses operate. The appli
cant shall also include a statement that the 
proposed use of these buses will not interfere 
with regularly scheduled mass transportation 

' " servJ.ces ..•. 

With this information available, private carriers will know 
what is or is not a violation· of the regulations, not only 
with respect to the incidental use of equipment, but also 
with respect to allegatio~ of rate violat~ohs. 

Finally, regarding the extent to which grantees are required 
to provide charter rate information to private operators, the 
charter regulations do not require that this information be 

13 



. . . 
available. The regulations require certification of charter 
costs for a grantee • s entire system and not .for CL"ly particular 
route. Private operators who are interested in a particular 
charter ~ate charged by a·grantee should.inquire to the 
appropriate state agency. 

Thank you for your concern in this matter. ... 

ainc~rely, 

il2095 
PCook::vs:?-9-76 
cc: UCC-1 Reading 
UCC-1 Chron 
ucc..:.lo File 
UCC-lS·Cook 
UOA-10 . {2) 

14 

A.o "M:unter 
Js/ "Theodore 

'J!heodore A. Munter 
~cting Chief Counsel 
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DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION J 
URBAN MASS TRANSPORTATION ADMINISTRATION 

WAS~INGTON, D.C. 20590 

Mr. J. F. Hutchinson 
Director of Transportation 
City of Santa Monica 
1620 Sixth Street 
Santa Monica, California 90401 

Dear. Mr. Hutchinson; 

21 JuL 1976 

This is in response to your letter of July 6, 1976 
concerning charter operations for the City of Santa 
Monica. 

We are informed by your letter that the City is 
authorized under State law" ••• to operate service any 
place in the State, except where another municipality 
runs similar service and has not agreed to allow Santa 
Monica to operate . ." •• " (Article 11, Section 9 of the 
California Constitution.) You have requested an opinion 
describing the urban area within·which the City provides 
regular mass transportation s~rvices for the purposes of 
section 3(f) of the Urban Mass Transportation Act of 1964, 
as amended (the Act) .. 

Section 3(f) of the Act provides in part as follows: 

"No Federal financial assisi:.ance under this 
Act may be provided for the purchase or operation 
of buses unless the applicant or any public body 
receiving such assistance for the purchase or 
operation of buses, or any publicly owned operator 
receiving such assistance, shall as a condition of 
such assistance enter into an agreement with the 
Secretary that such public body, or any operator 
o.f mass transportation for such public body, will 
not engage in charter bus operations outside the 
urban area within which it provides regularly 
scheduled mass transportation service, except as 
provided in the agreement authorized by this 
subsection •.. " (Emphasis added). 

Under Section 604.3 of UMTA regulations implementing 
Section 3(f): "Urban area" means the entire area in 
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which a loc.al public body ifi .autho.r.l~ed by :a:pprop~iate 
~ocal, State and Federal lilw tp rpr~v~~e regularly-
scheduled mass transportation aervloe: ·. • . • ., ' 

; ~ :-. ,•>\: .. ·~~~-~¥· •. ,~ ... · ·· ... ~ ..•. 

Based on the above, it is our. oplrilan ,t~t., the ·ci)y ~Y 
engage in charter operations *1~ the areas descr~bed 
in Article 11, Section 9 of the State_ Const;.~tution with
out an agreement under Section 3(f) ~f the Act • 

. . 
·,. ; .. ·~.¢ ..• 

If I can be of further assistance to you ·pl~se feel 
free to call on me. 

cc: 
File 
Chron 
Reading 
UCC-10 Chron 
UCC-15 Chron 

PCook:pam 7/21/76 

Retype CM: 7/26/76 
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Sincerely, 

Jel Theodore_A. :M.un~~ 
·~ 

Theodore ~-. Munt~r 
Acting Ch~ef Counsel 
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DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION 
URBAN MASS TRANSPORTATION ADMINISTRATION 

WASHINGTON, D.C. 20590 

uCC- I . 
~~~-

.Mr. James F. Bender 
American Transit Corpor-ation 
120 South Central Avenue 
St. Louis, Missouri 63105 

Dear Mr. Bender: 

1 7 NOV 1~76 

This is in response to your letter of September 20, 1976 to 
Mr. Joseph Blundon, formerly of this offic"e, concerning the 
Urban Mass Transportation Administration's (UMTA) charter 
bus regulations. In your letter you made some assertions 
·regarding those regulations and requested our confirmation 
of your interpretations. 

You are correct in your int,erpretation th.at a grantee who 
limits its charter operations to the area within which it 
provides regularly scheduled mass t.ransportation services 
is not required to prepare or submit a cost allocation plan 
or notice to private charter operators. Such grantees are 
also not required to conduct public hearings on their 
charter operations 1 although they are still subject to the 
incidental restrictions set forth in section 604.11 of 
those regulations. 

Finally, buses which are not purchased with UMTA assistance 
are not subject to the incidental restJ;ictions, but are 
subject to the cos~ requirements of the regulations. 

I.am enclosing a copy of the charter regulation for your 
convenience. 

Enclosure 

UMTA 
PCOOK:psm:ll/16/76 
cc: 
UCC-1 
UCC-1 
UCC-15 
UCC-10 

Reading 
Chron 
Cook 
File 

17 

Sincerely, 

/s/ James 
James M. Christian 
Chief Counsel 



DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION 
URBAN MAS~ TRANSPORTATION ADMINISTRATION 

WASHINGTON, D.C. 20590 

Mr. Yoshio Kosai 
Acting Director of Tran~portation 
City of Tacoma 
Tacoma Transit System 
1235 South Sprague Avenue 
Tacoma, Washington 98405 

Dear Mr. Kosai: 

1 r, IiG 
.. I 1'1 0V 1976 

This is in response to your letter of November 5, 1976. 
concerning the proposed leasing of buses. by Tacoma.Transit 
System (TTS) to a private operator for weekend charter 
operations. Specifically you have asked wh~ther TTS can. 
lease from 10 to 24 of its buses to a private·carrier for 
weekend charters outside of TTS's regular service area for 
a period of approximately io to 12 weeks ~ithout obtaining. 
a charter agreement under UMTA charter regulations. 

Under section 3 (f) of the Urban Mass Transportation Act o.f 
1964, as amended, and UMTA regulations issued thereunder, 
41 F.R. 14122. (April 1, 1976) 1 UMTA is requi.' ed to ensure 
that equipment purchased with .UMTA assistant>: is not used 
unfairly in competition with private operato1:·s who are 
willing and able to provide charter service. 

The leasing arrangement which you propose is in cooperation 
rather than in competition with private carriers. For this 
reason we find no objections to your leasing UMTA-assisted 
buses in the manner you have described if.such use of those 
buses will noi interfere with TTS's regularly scheduled 
service. 

Finally, our approval of the proposed leasing arrangement is 
based on the assumption that it is a one time arrangement. 
If TTS is desirous of continuing similar arrangements with 
the current private operat-or, or other private operators, 
compliance with UMTA regulations wiil be necessary. 

If I can be of further assistance to you please ·feel free 
to call'on me. 

UMTA 
PCOOK:psm:ll/17/76 
cc: 
UCC-1 
UCC-1 

Reading 
Chron 

·James M. Christian 
Chief Counsel 

UCC-15 Cook 
UCC-10. File 
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DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION® 
44 i'51!JQ~f)\ · 

URBAN MASS TRANSPORTATION ADMINISTRATION \.f)cQ ~~ 
WASHINGTON, D.C. Z0590 'l'J- --- .J 

-Mr. Ellis H. Watkins 
Dallas Transit System 
101 North Peak Street 
Dallas, Texas 75226 

NOV 2 21976 

Dear Mr. Watkins: 

This is in response to your letter of October 5, 1976, 
requesting approval of a charter agreement· under the Urban 
Mass Transportation Administration's (UMTA) charter 
.regulations. 

In your letter you made the following declaration: " ••. the 
Dallas Transit System will not engage in charter service, 
using equipment purchased with. federal funds, outside of .. 
the urban area within which it provides r-egular scheduled 
mass transportation service, except in 'incidental' charter 
operations as determined by the Comptroller General. , .P ... long 
with your letter you supmitted a "cost allocation 
certification ... 

.. 
We have reviewed your submissions and have. determined that 
they do not form an acceptable.basis for a charter agreement 
under section 3 (f)· ·of the Urban Mass Transportation Act of 
1964, as amended. 

Section 604.20 of the charter regulations provides a procedure 
for amending prior charter agreements. It provides that any 
grantee wishing to modify its charter agreement to allow for 
charter service outside of a grantee's regular service ~rea. 
must do the ~allowing: 

l. Develop a certified statement of costs 
and expenses, a cost allocation plan and· a 
proposed or existing charter operations; 

$hewing revenues 
statement of 

I 

2. Send the items listed in paragraph (1) to all private 
carriers who originates service in the grantee's urban 
area; 

3. Allow 30 days for private carriers to submit their 
comments; and 

4. Submit comments along with documents referred to in 
parag_raphs (1) and (2) to UMTA for. approval. 
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2 .. 

The information you submitted·did not contain a properly 
'certified statement of costs showing revenues ·and expenses, 
~ cost allocation plan, a statement of proposed or existing 
charter service, or a notice to private carriers. We must 
have these items before we approve your charter agreement. 

Finally, if Dallas Transit decides to limit all of its 
charter service to within its regular service area, none 
of ~he documents called for above will be necessary. In 
that case you need only certify tpat no charter service 
will be conducted otttside of your regular service area. 

I am enclosing a copy of an approved agreement which might 
serve as a model in the ~reparation of your agreement. 

Enclosure 

UMTA 
PCOOK:psm:ll/16/76 
cc: 
UCC-1 
ucc·-1 
UCC-15 
UCC-10· 

Reading 
Chron 
Cook 
File 
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Sincerely, 

James M~ Christian 
Chief Counsel 



Mr. Benjamin B. Baker 
Administrator 
Southeastern Reqional Transit 

Authority (SRTA) 
1213 Purchase Street 
New Bedford, Mas$achusetts· 02740 

Dear Mr. Baker: 

.Fa lllll 

This is in response to your letter of January 7, 1977 
requesting approval of a charter agreement under the Urban 
Mass Transportation Administration's (UMTA) charter 
regulations. 

In your proposed agreement you made the following declaration 
. " ••. The !1rantee agrees that neither it, nor any operator of 
project equipment, will engage in charter bus·operations 
outside the urban area within which it provides regularly 
scheduled mass transportation services except as provided 
within Section 604.11 cited in the Federal Register 
Vol~~ 41 No. 64 dated Thursda , A ril 1, 1976 on Pa e 14124. 
(Emphasis supplied • · · · 

We have reviewed your submissions and have determined that 
they do not form an acceptable basis for a charter agreement 
under section 3(f) of the Urban Mass Transportation Act of 
1964, as amended since SRTA proposes to provide charter servi 
outside of its regular service .area. 

Section 604.20 of the charter regulations provides a procedur 
for amending prior charter agreements. It provides that any 
grantee wishing to modify its charter agreement to allow for 
charter service outside of a grantee's regular service area 
must do the following: 

1. Develop a certified statement of costs showing revenues 
and ~~, a cost allocation plan and a statement of 
proposed or existing charter operations; 

2. Send the items listed in paragraph (l).to all private 
carriers who originates service in the grantee's urban 
area; 

Form DOT F 1320.65 (-4·67) OFFICIAL FILE COPY 
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2. 

3. Allow 30 days for private carriers to submit ±heir co~nta, 
and 

4. Submit comments along with documents referred to in 
paragraphs (1) and (2) to UMTA for approval. 

'l'he information you submitted did not contain a properly 
certified statement of costs showing revenues and expenses, 
a cost allocation plan, a statement of proposed or existing 
charter service, or a notice to private carriers. We must 
have these items before we approve your charter agreement. 

Finally, if Southeastern Regional Transit Authority decides 
to limit all of its charter service to within its reqular 
service area, none of the documents called for above will be 
necessary. In that case you need only certify that no charter 
service will be conducted outside of your regular service area. 

I am enclosing a copy of an approved agreement which might 
serve as a model in the preparation of your agreement • 

Enclosure 

. Sincerely, 

I• I 3'aes -a •. Chr1st'fan · 

James M. Christian 
Chief Counsel 
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l•!r. . B. L. Peyton 
Regional Vice President 
Greyhound Lines, Inc. 
Clark and Randolph Streets 
Chicago, Illinois 60601 

Dear Hr. Peyton: 

./"''j•~>r"'?cJ''''"'j}' , _..Q,; 

~ .............. ···~--- ~_/r" 

,&~:E'.:.·~i(<:''~.,t 

'rhank you for your letter of July 27, 1977, concerning 
the charter bus operations of the Greater Cleveland 
Regional Transit J..uthority (GCRTA). You have expressed 
your displeasure with GCRTA charter operations which 
you consider to be in violation of section 604.11 of the 
Urban Mass Transportation's regulations on charter bus 
operation. 

Section 604.11 establishes the presumption that UJ:>~TA
assisted buses tvhich are used iri charter service during 
rush hours 1 more than six (6) hours a day, or more than 
fifty {50) miles outside of a grantee's urbal'l area, are 
being used primarily in charter as opposed to mass trans
portation service, in violation of the UZ.•1TA grant con
tract and the Urban Mass Transportation Act of 1964, as 
amended (the U1·1T Act). This presumption may be rebutted 
by a grant.ee' s shm.ring that its use of UMTA-assisted 
buses is "incidental" as defined by the Comptroll·er 
General in B-160204, Dece1nber 7, 1966. (Page 14125 of 
the enclosed regulations). Such a showing may be made 
in an agreement between UMTA and a grantee pursuant to 
section 3(£) of the UMT Act. 

GCRTA has obtained such an agreement from UMTA. This 
agreement expressly provides that GCRTA may engage in 
incidental charter service which does not interfere 
with regularly scheduled mass transit service. The 
agreement anticipates that GCRTA 't'lill make occasional 
use of apprmd..\uately six (6) buses for charter use during 
rush hours and outside of its urban area. 

23 
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Sec·tion 6.04. 40 of the UMTA' charter regulations requires 
tl~at n ••• a complaint must be in writing and must apecify 
in detail the action claimed to violate the agreement, 
and must be accompanied by evidence sufficient to enable 
the Administrator to make a preliminary determination as 
to whether probable cause exists to believe that a violation 
of the agreement has taken place." We do not ·believe that 
facts you have brought to our attention to date establish. 
probable cause that GCRTA has violated its agreement. We 
therefore will not direct an investigation of this matter; 
However, in the event you believe that GCRTA is in violation 
of other provisions of the 'UMTA charter regulations, please 
bring those matters to our attention. · 

If I can be of furb~er assistance to you, please feel free 
to call on me. 

Enclosure 

UMTA:PCOOK:dlc:9/6/77 
cc: UCC-1 Reading 

UCC-1 Chron 
UCC-1 File 
UCC-15 Cook 
UOA-10 (2) 
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Sincerely, 

(~~~: . .(~~:~l..-:.1 f:tigr.~0d by 

ii~ii:d'" s~i.::.r;~we 



Benjamin L. Bendit, Esquire 
Bendit, Weinstock & Sharbaugh 
A Professional Corporation 
Counsellors at Law 
744 Broad Street 
Newark, New Jersey 07102 

Dear Mr. B.endi t: 

,.~·· .. 
~;, ;t 

Thank you for your letter of August 2, 1977, to Mr. James 
Christian, former Chief Counsel, concerning the use of 
Urban Mass Transportation Administration (UMTA}-assisted 
buses in charter service in the State of New Jersey. 
Please accept my apology for this delay in responding 
to you. 

vle are informed by your letter that you represent a num-
ber of private bus operators who have received UMTA-assisted 
buses under tl1e allocation plan developed by the State for 
ti1e distribution of those buses. These private operators, 
we are informed, are prepared to comply with U~1TA 1 s charter 
bus regulations, but they have been waiting for either 
UHTA or the New Jers~y Department of Transportation (NJDOT} 
to call for the appropriate submissions. You also state· 
that ~'i-J.ere has been no indication that UMTA or NJDOT will 
ever require appropriate filings from New Jersey operators. 
In vievl of the foregoing 1 you have inquired as to what 
fashion and by whom will the UMTA charter bus regulations 
be enforced. 

By publication of its charter r~gulations in the Federal 
Register on April 1, 1976, ~iTA made .public its require
ments with respect to charter operations by UHTA-assisted 
operators. Your statement that you- have not heard from 
Washington· whether certifications are required is there
fore incorrect since the u'1-1TA charter regulations expressly 
state that requirement. 

Under the charter regulations, grantees or operators on tl1e 
grantees' behalf v1ho derive more than $15,000 annually from 
charter service and who operate charter service outside of 
the grantee's urban area, are required to file a charter 
agreement. It appears from your letter that NJDOT has not 
developed a..l'J. adequate procedure for obtaining these agree
ments from p;r-ivate operators th;r:.ough.out the State. The 
requirements of UMTA's charter regulations nevertheless remain 
and .any grantee or OEerato~ -~h-~t ___ !;§_~.§._,_gMT~~---9--~§!_~.t.~..:.g_____f?_use~~in __ 
yiolat~o-;· '9£-:-t_he--:91l~rt~-rJ~g_~_latiop~ __ §:;t:"E?. ... ~ubject a .f.9~~~.-!:t:~:r:e. 
of that equipment. 
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In view of the foregoing, we suggest that you ha_ve your 
clients comply with the charter regulations immediately 
by forwarding the required documents to NJDO'l'. You'·:may 
also send a copy to UMTA. 

It is NJDO'l''s responsibility to collect the required 
documentation and forward it to UMTA. We will conduct 
a x-eview of NJOOT to determine if the charter bus require
ments are being met. 

Thank you for your concern in this matter. If I can be of 
further assistance to you in this matterf feel free to call 
on me. 

UMTA:PCOOK:dlc:9/14/77 
cc: . UCC-1 Reading 

UCC-1 Chron . 

Sincerely, 

UCC-1 File -- Buses, Charter 
UCC-15 PCook 
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Honorable Robin Beard 
House of Representatives 
\'1ashington, D.C. 2051.5 

Dear Mr. Beard: . 

DEC?.31r.f77 

Thank you for your letter of November 16, 1977, on behalf 
of ltr. Fran Bass, Jr. , concerning the use of t.uses owned 
by transit authorities in sightseeing operations. 

Since 19G4, the Urban J.lass Transportation Administration 
(UM'l'A) has ·been charged with approving capital grants for 
the purchase of transit buses and related mass transpor
tation equipmffilt. The term "mass transportation" is 
defined in section l2(c) (5) of the Urban Mass Transpor
tation Kc t 0 f 19 6 4 I as amended (the Act) to J!}ean 1'1 ;,. • •• 

transportation by bus; or rail or other conveyance; either 
publicly or privately O\'tnetl, which· provides to the public 
general or special service (but not including school buses 
or charter or siqhtseeinq service) on a regular and con
tinuing. basis. ·,.,..-"-(Emphasis suppll.ed). Under this. defini
tion of rn.ass transportation, and under section 3(f) of 
the Act, U.MTA is prohibited from ass is tin~-; in the purchase 
of equipment which t·mulcl be used primarily in charter bus 
or sightseeing operations. such use of UM'I'A.-assisted buses 
would have the effect of diverting these buses fro~ the 
purpose for which grant funds were given, i.e., to ioprove 
mass transportation service in designated urban areas. 

miile UMTA-asslsted buses may not be used primarily to pro
vide sightseeing or charter bus service, these buses may be 
useu to pr.:>vide "incidental .. services, including sightseeing 
or charter service, if such service does not interfere \lith 
regularly scheduled service to the public. (See the Opinion 
of thc;l Comptroller General, B-160204, 41 F.R. 14123, Appendix 
A, April 1, 1976, copy enclosed). 
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I appreciate your interest in this matter. If I can be 
of further service to you, _please feel free to call on 
me~ 

Sincerely, 

Richard s. Page 

Enclosure 
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Mr. B. L. Peyton 
Regional Vice President 
Greyhound Lines, Inc. 
Clark & Randolph Streets 
Chicago, Illinois 60601 

Dear Mr. Peyton: 

/.:::.i.,. .. . 
( ... ( ~ .... . 

The Administrator has asked me to respond to your letter 
of January 24, 1978, responding to his earlier letter to 
you concerning the charter bus operations of the Greater 
Cleveland Regional Transit ~uthority (GCRTA}. 

You have raised several concerns in your current letter 
about the nature and extent of the existing charter bus 
agreement between this agency. and GCRTA under the Urban 
Mass Transportation Administration's (UMTA) charter bus 
regulations, 41 F.R. 14122 (April 1, 1976). Such con
cerns include whether the comments made by private carriers 
at public hearings are given consideration by UMTA; and, 
the origin of the UMTA-GCRTA charter agreement. I believe 
the following review of the development of our charter 
requirements will be helpful in addressing your concerns. 

The first restriction on the use of UMTA-assisted buses 
in charter service appeared in section 164(a} of the 
Federal Aid··· Highway Act of 1973 which reads as follows: 

"No Federal financial assistance shall be pro- , 
vi<led under (1) subsection (a) or (c) of section 
142, title 23, United States Code, (2) paragraph 
(4) of subsection (e) of section 103, title 23, 
United States Code, or (3) the Urban Mass Trans
portation Act of 1964, for the purchase of buses 
to any applicant for such assistanc.e unless such 
applicant and the Secretary of Transportation 
shall have first entered into an agreement that 
such applicant will not engage in charter bus 
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operations in competition with private bus 
operators outside of the area within which 
such applicant provides regularly scheduled 
mass transportation service. A violation 
of such agreement shall bar such applicant 
from receiving.any other Federal financial 
assistance under those provisions of law 
referred to in clauses (1), (2), and (3) 
of this subsection." 

Under section 164(a), all charter service by UMTA grantees 
outside of the g~antee's urban area was prohibited: · 

Section 164 .(a) was amended by section 813 (b) of the Housing 
and Community Development Act of 1974, August 22, 1974 (P. 
L. 93-383, 88 Stat. 633). That amendment is currently 
reflected in section 3(f) of the Urban Mass Transportation 
Act of 1964, as amended (49 u.s.c. 1602) (the UMT Act), 
and reads as follows: 

"No Federal financial assistance under this 
Act may be provided for the purchase or 
operation of buses unless the applicant or 
any public body receiving such assistance 
for the purchase or operation of buses, or 
any publicly owned operator receiving 
assistance, shall as a condition of such 
assistance enter into an agreement with 
the Secretary that such public body, or 
any operator of mass transportation for 
such public body, will not engage in charter 
bus operations outside the urban area within 
which it provides regularly scheduled mass 
transportation service, except as provided 
in the agreement authorized by this subsection. 
Such agreement shall.provide for fair and 
equitable arrangements, appropriate in the 
judgment of the Secretary, to assure that the 
financial assistance qranted under this Act 
will not enable public bodies and publicly 
and privately owned operators for public 
bodies to foreclose private operators from 
the intercity charter bus industry where 
such private operators are willing and able· 
to provide such service •••• " (emphasis 
supplied). 
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Section 3(f) of the UMT Ac~ differs from section 164(a) of 
the Highway Act in that .section 3(f) expressly allows UMTA 
grantees to engage in charter bus operations outside the 
grantee's u~ban area in competition with private carriers 
so long as such charter operations are carried out under 
conditions which the Secretary of Transportation finds to 
be fair and equitable. 

The April 1, 1976 UMTA charter bus regulations implement 
section 3(f) of the UMT Act by setting forth the terms 
which are fair and equitable in .the opinion of the Secretary 
to protect the economic interests of private charter operators. 
At the same time, the regulations are designed to establish 
minimum conditions under which all public operators may 
engage in charter bus operations in competition with private 
carriers and yet not foreclose the latter fro~ the charter 
bus industry. 

The basic thrust of the regulations is twofold: (1) they 
require grantees who engage in charter bus operations out
side of their regular service area to certify that revenues 
generated from those operations are equal to, or greater than 
the cost of providing that service; and (2) they codify the 
"incidental" charter restrictions on the use of Fedeially
assisted equipment which the Comptroller General set forth 
in his Opinion of 1966. (Comptroller General of the United 
States, B-160204 (December 7, 1966)). (See Appendix A, 
charter regulations, copy enclosed). 

With respect to the economic thrust of the charter regulations, 
grantees are required to certify that they have taken into 
account those expenses outlined in Appendix B of the charter 
regulations in developing their charter rates. In addition 
to the expenses outlined in Appendix B, grantees are also 
required to add depreciation on all federally-assisted buses 
as an expense. 

The certifications made by grantees are made available to 
private carriers under section 604.18 of the charter regu
lations prior to UMTA approval of a charter agreement. Pri
vate carriers have the opportunity to comment on these certi
fications either at a public hearing or throug~ written comments 
which are forwarded to UMTA by the grantee. In addition to 
commenting on the grantee's certifications, private carriers 
are atso allowed to state their objections to a grantee's 
charter operations. If such objections state a legally 
sufficient basis for UMTA limitinq or prohibiting a grantee's 
charter operations, we will take appropriate action. . 
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In.the particular case of GCRTA, we have reviewed the 
information submitted by that authority as required by 
the enclosed charter regulations. We have also reviewed 
the comments submitted by private carriers who have 
objected to GCRTA's charter operations, including those 
comments submitted by Greyhound, and we find no legally 
sufficient basis to limit or prohibit GCRTA charter 
operations either under the UMTA charter regulations or 
under section 3(f} of the UMT Act. You wili note that 
under the regulations legally sufficient reasons to 
limit or deny a proposed charter agreement include, 
but, are not limited to the following determinations: 
1) that a grantee is not allowed to carry out proposed 
charters under State law under section 604.15(4) (b) (1}; 
2) that a grantee has failed to follow the procedures 
prescribed by the.regulations with respect to certifi
cation of costs, .the preparation of a cost allocation 
plan or notice to private carriers; or, 3) that a pro
posed agreement violates the incidental requirement of 
section 604.11 of the.regulations. 

I am enclosing for your information the comments made by 
Don Bianchi, General ·Manager for Greyhound in Cleveland, 
Ohio. The comments were forwarded to UMTA under the 
charter regulations in conjunction with.GCRTA's application 
for operating assistance. A~ you can see, the general tone 
of Mr. Bianchi's comments is to complain about competition 
from GCRTA "\>lhich results in a loss of business for Grey
hound. His comments allege no violation of UMTA require
ment-s. 

With respect to the use of Ul>1TA-assisted buses in incidental 
charter service the Comptroller General's decision to allow 
incidental use of UMTA-assisted buses in charter operations 
was based on the theory that the buses would not be needed 
for mass transportation purposes at the time of their use 
in charter service. The following is taken from that 
decision (page 14131 of the April 1, 1976 regulations): 

" ••. HUD further advises that: 

'One of the basic facts of urban transportation 
operations is that the need for rolling stock 
is far greater during the morning and eveninq 
rush hours on weekdays than at any other time. 
For that reason, any system which has sufficient 
rolling stock to meet the weekday rush-hour needs 
of its customers must have a substantial amount 
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of equipment standing idle at other times, as 
well as drivers and other personnel being paid 
\vhen there is little ··for them to do. To relieve 
this inefficient and uneconomical situation, quite 
a number of cities have offered incidental charter 
service using this idle equipment and personnel 
during the rush hours "V-Then the same are not needed 
for regularly scheduled runs. Among the cities 
so doing are Cleveland, Pittsburgh, Alameda, Tacoma, 
Detroit and Dallas. '" 

Based on the Comptroller General's decision, section 604.11 
states what is presumed not to be incidental charter service. 
These_presurnptions can be rebutted by an appropriate showing 
by a grantee that use of UMTA-assisted buses in charter ser
vice does not interfere with regular mass transit service. 
UMTA will agree to a grantee's incidental use of UHTA-assisted 
buses in charter bus operations where sufficient justification 
is shown. If, for example, a grantee keeps a small number of 
its buses as reserves to its regular mass transportation fleet, 
and proposes to use a portion of this reserve fleet in charter 
bus operations, m-1TA would approve such use·of UMTA-assisted 
buses since it would not interfere with the grantee's regular 
route service. 

I hope this review of UMTA's statutory and regulatory require
ments is helpful to your understanding of our policy with 
respect to charter bus operations by our grantees. It is not 
our policy to prohibit charter operations which are within the 
scope of our charter .bus requirements. 

Thank you for your interest in this matter. 

Enclosure 

UMTA:PCOOK:dlc:2/28/78 
cc: UCC-1 Reading 

UCC-1 Chron 
UCC-File--
UCC-15 PCook 
UOA-10(2) 
Control No. 114 L 
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/s/ Margaret M. Ayres 
Chief Counsel 

Margaret M. Ayres 
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DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION ;/ 
URBAN MASS TRANSPORTATION ADMINISTRATION 

WASHINGTON, D.C. 20590 

Honorable .Robin Beard, M.C. 
House of Representatives 
Washington, D.C. 20515 

Dear Mr. Beard: 

J\1. 3 \913 

Thank you for your letter of May 11, 1978, concerning the si-ghtseeing 
services regulated by the Metropolitan Transit Authority (MTA). · 
Forwarded with your letter was a letter dated May 11, 1978, from 
Mr. Fran M. Bass, Chief Executive Officer of Music.City Services, Inc. 
Mr. Bass is concerned about attempts by MTA to regulate the sightseeing 
services offered by Music City Services, Inc. 

In our previous correspondence to you of December 23, 1977, on this 
matter (copy enclosed), we indicated that \JMTA-assisted buses may be 
used in sightseeing service if such service does not 'interfere with 
regularly scheduled service to the public. 

However, from the documents we have received it would appear that no 
UMTA-assisted buses are involved in this matter, as it is concerned 
solely with whether Music City Services,- Inc. should come under MTA 
jurisdiction because of alleged charter activity. This issue is 
properly pending before the courts in Tennessee, and does not involve 
any UMTA regulations or requirements •. 

I trust that this letter is responsive to your request and Jook 
forward to being of assistance to you in the future. 

Enclosure 

UMTA/PC00K:6/28/78:cp 
cc: UCC-1 Chron 

UCC-1 Reading 
UCC-30/File 
UCC-31/Cook 
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Sincerely, 

Margaret· M. Ayres 
Chief Counsel 
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DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION 
URBAN MASS TRANSPORTATION ADMINISTRATION 

WASHINGTON, D.C. 20510 

Mr. Len Engel 
General Manager 
Boise Urban Stages 
P.O. Box 9016 
Boise, Idaho 83707 

Dear Mr. Engel: 

SEP 2 0 1978 

This is in response to your letter of September 13, 1978, 
requesting our opinion as to whether Boise Urban Stages 
(BUS) may engage in charter bus operations w~thin its 
service area without a charter bus agreement. 

BUS may engage in charter bus operations within its urban 
area without a charter bus agreement. Charter bus agree
ments are required only when a grantee has derived more 
than $15,000 in its most recently completed fiscal year, 
and engages in charter bus operations outside of the urban 
area wherein such grantee conducts regularly scheduled 
mass.transportation services. 

If I can be of further assistance to you, please feel free 
to call on me. 

UMTA:PCOOK:dlc:9/20/78 
CC•: . UCC-1 Reading 

UCC-1 Chron 
UCC-File--BUSES (Charte.r) 
UCC-31 PCook. 
UCC-30 '!'Munter 
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Sincerely, 

Theodore A. Munter 
Assistant Chief Counsel, 

Programs 
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DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION 
URBAN MASS TRANSPORTATION ADMINISTRATION 

WASHINGT!)N, D.C. 205t0 

·Mr. Stephen J. Bochenek 
Giffin, Winning, Lindner, Newkirk, 

Cbhen & Bodewes 
525 west Jefferson Street 
Buildin cne g . 
P.o. Box 2117 
Springfield, Illinois .62705 

Daar Mt-. Bochenek: 

R€~t~t/J&-

'lhi.s is in .resp:m.se to your letter of Septenber 12, 1978, to the 
Uiban Mass 'l'ransp::>rtation Adnrlnistratian (tMl'A) Administrator 
· cxm.cerni.ng the charter bus operations of the Springfield Mass 
Transit District ("sm'D"). 

We. are inforned by your letter that SMID will a:xte wi;thin the 
scope of UMrA' s charter bus regulations, 41 F .R. 14122 (April 1, 
.1976) (oopy enclosed), because .its charter xevenues will exceed 
$15,000.during its 1978 fiscal year. You have therefore inquired 
as to the procedure to .be fol.lcMed in obtaining a .charter .agree
nent under t:IM'm charter regUlations. 

We su:Jgest that SMID ,proceed as follows under section 604.20 of 
the t:IM'm charter r:egulations in its quest :f6r a charter agreement: 

1. SM1'D should .develop a notice setting forth· the 
type of charter service it proposes; the .areas 
such service will .cover; and, the t:i.nes such 
sexvices will be available; 

2. develop a certified sta:tem:mt of oosts taking 
into account t00se ·expense items listed in 
Appendix B of the charter bus regula~, 
page 14126; and, a CX>St allocation plan; 

3. send the infomation cx:mtained in paragraphs 
1 and 2 above to private carriers 'Who originate 
charter service on SMl'D 1 s urban ·area am ~ 
than 30 days fc::>r written cument; and 
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·<l. · after 30 days send ·the l'X)tjce, ~e::l state- · 
JEnt of CX)Sts 1 cost aJJooaticn plan and CX:JIIBit:s". 
of .the private carriers to this office '£or . · · ........__,..,., 
·.~ .... ,~. 

.. . 
;If you have any further .questions em this .mat;te:, :please feel fz:1!e to 
-.c:all em me. 

_,~:l?CXXI<:dl.c: 9/21/78 
·.ex:: rcc-1 :Reading 

tx:X::-1 .Ch:ron 
U:X:-File-BUSE:S ·(Charter) 
U:C-31 PCook . 
~-30 mmter 
'OOA-10(2) • 
Control No.·. ·001208 L 
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Sincerely, 

/s/ Xheodore A. Munter 

~eA. Munter 
Assistant QUef Comsel., 

PJ:ogx:ams 



MEMORANDUM REGARDING THE COMPLAINT OF 

HUDSON BUS TRANSPORTATION CO., INC., et al. 

AGAINST 

THE STATE OF. NEW JERSEY AND THE 

URBAN MASS TRANSPORTATION ADMINISTRATION 
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I. Background 

On June 26, 1978, a complaint was filed with the Administrator of 
the United States Urban Mass Transportation Administration ("UMTA") on 
behalf of five private bus companies which operate in the State of New 
Jersey, principally serving routes between points within northern New Jer
sey and New York City. 1/ The complaint alleges, in brief, that the mass 
transportation program being carried out by the State of New Jersey with 
UMTA financial assistance does not encourage participation of private enter
prise to the maximum extent feasible, as required by Sections 4(a) and 3(e) 
of the Urban Mass Transportation Act of 1964, as amended, ("the Act"). 2/ 
The Complainants request that UMTA not grant any financial assistance, -
capital or operating, to the State of New Jersey until the alleged statutory 
violations are corrected. 

Procedurally, the complaint has been handled in accordance with pro
cedures used previously by UMTA in similar matters. The complaint was 
forwarded to the State of New Jersey for reply (The complaint letter, dated 
June 26, 1978, is appended hereto as Attachment 1). Pursuant to a request 
by the Complainants, it was agreed that, in order to complete the record, 
a conference would be held following the submission to UMTA of written 
material. On August 30, ·1978, Complainants submitted a document in ·support 
of the complaint. (The complaint document is appended hereto as Attachment 2). 
On October 5, 1978, the State submitted its response. (Appended hereto as 
Attachment 3). Both sides submitted supporting material. On November 17, 
1978, a conference was held in Federal offices in New York City. In addition 
to the attorneys representing the two sides, six ~ndividuals--either owners 
or officers of each of the~Complainants--were in attendance. All were given 
an opportunity to speak. The UMTA Assistant Chief Counsel and Regional 
Counsel presided at the conference. A court reporter transcribed the pro
ceeding, and copies of ·the transcript were made· available to each of the 
parties. (A copy of the transcript is appended hereto as Attachment 4). 

!/ The Complainants are Hudson Bus Transportation Co., Inc., Hudson Transit 
.Lines, Inc., Lakeland Bus Lines, Inc., Manhattan Transit Co., Rockland 
C~aches, Inc., and Suburban Transit Corp. · · 

The relevant provisions of the UMT Act are Sections 3(e)(2) and 
former Section 4(a). That portion of Section 4(a) refied upon by 
the Complainants has been repealed by the Federal Public Transportation 
Act of 1978. However, the substance of the repealed portion of Section 
4(a) now appears in Section 8(e) of the Act, as amended. 

5 
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While in no sense a formal evidentiary hearing, the November 17, 1978 
conference provided the parties with an opportunity to supplement the writ
ten submissions, and to provide a complete record upon which the Adminis
trator could base his determination whether all statutory requirements have 
been met. !/ Complainants have requested that a formal hearing be held in 
order for their counsel to examine witnesses under oath and, presumably, to 
provide additional evidence for the record. We find, however, that the 
existing record is sufficient upon which to base a determination. 

II. The Statutory Requirement 

The purpose of the UMT Act is to provide federal financial assistance 
to States and loc·al public bodies to develop and operate efficient and co
ordinated mass transportation systems. The goal of the Act is to secure the 
welfare and vitality of urban areas, the satisfactory movement of people and 
goods within such areas, and the effectiveness of housing, urban renewal, 
highway and other federally aided programs, which are jeopardized by the de
terioration or inadequate provision of urban transportation facilities and 
services, the intensification of traffic congestion, and the lack of co
ordinated transportation and other development planning on a comprehensive 
and continuing basis. 49 U.S.C. 160l(a)(2). Therefore, under the Act, Con
gress has made available matching funds for the purposes of capital acqui
sition and construction, operating assistance, and planning activities in 
connection with mass transportation projects. 

In so doing, Congress has expressed its concern that such federal assis
tance not be used without regard for the interests of existing private mass 
transportation companies. At the same time, however, Congress has made clear 
that decisions regarding mass transportation services to be provided with 
federal assistance must be made locally, as required by local needs. Hence, 
Section 2(b) of the Act states that one of the purposes of the Act is--

"(3) to provide assistance to State and local governments 
and their instrumentalities in financing (mass transportation) 

The authority to exercise the functions vested in the Secretary of 
Transportation by the Act has been delegated to the UMTA Administrator, 
49 CFR 1.51. The Administrator has delegated the authority to accomplish 
project approvals and to make such findings and determinations as 
appropriate to the Regional Directors of UMTA. UMTA Order 1100.18 (July 
7, 1978). The State of New Jersey, for purposes of this complaint, falls 
within the jurisdiction of UMTA Region 11. 

I· 
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systems, to be operated by public or private mass 
transportation companies as determined by local need." ':!I 

Reliance on local decision making is central to the entire program of 
federal financial assistance for mass transportation systems. Section 1 of 
the Urban Mass Transportation Assistance Act of 1970, for example, provides 
that the purpose of the Act is--

" to create a partnership which permits the local 
community, through federai financial assistance, to 
exercise the initiative necessary to satisfy its urban 
mass transportation requirements .• " 49 U.S.C. 160la. 

The emphasis on local decision making in determining how best to serve 
the transportation needs of the local area was recognized in Pullman, Inc. v. 
Volpe, where the court stated: 

"The statutory scheme of UMTA emphasizes the large role to 
be played ~y the local bodies responsible fo~ urban mass 
transit •••• This reliance on the local or state group 
is consistent with the statute's encouragement of local 
responsibility in urban mass transportation. The statute 
does not promote a centralized procedure which leaves all 
decisions with the Secretary (of Transportation), but rather, 
emphasizes local solutions to problems." 337 F. Supp·. 432, 438-
439 (E.D. Pa. 1970). 

Within this framework, Congress has consistently expresJed its desire 
that private enterprise. be afforded the opportunity to participate "to the 
maximum extent feasible" in the locally determined, federally funded program 
of mass transportation services. The 1964 Act contained two provisions, 
Section 3(e) and the first two sentences of Section 4(a), which expressed 

':!I . 49 u.s.c. 160l(b)(3). Similarly, Sections 2(b)(l) and 2(b)(2) each 
state a purpose of the Act that calls for the cooperation of mass 
transportation companies, "both public and private." 
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this intent. Section 4(a) provided as follows: 

"No federal financial assistance shall be provided pursuant 
to subsection (a) of Section 3 unless the Secretary determines 
that the facilities and equipment for which the assistance is 
sought are needed for carrying out a program, meeting criteria 
established by him, for a unified or officially coordinated 
urban transportation system as a part of the comprehensively 
planned development of the urban area, and are necessary for 
the sound, economic and desirable development of such area •. 
Such ro ram shall encoura e to the maximum extent feasible· 
the participation of private enterprise." Emphasis added). 

The Federal Public Transportation Act of 1978 deleted that provision, but 
added a new section; Section 8, that contains this requirement. In part, 
the new section provides as follows: 

''(a) It is declared to be in the national interest to en
courage and promote the development of transportation systems 
embracing various modes of transportation in a manner which 
will serve the States and local communities efficiently and 
effectively. To accomplish this objective, the Secreta~y 
shall cooperate with the State and local officials in the 
development of transportation plans and programs which are 
formulated on the basis ·of transportation needs with due 
consideration to comprehensive long-range land use plans, 
development objectives, and overall social, economic, environ
mental, system performance, and energy conservation goals 
and objectives, and with due consideration to their probable 
effecq on the future development of urban areas of more than 
50,000 population. 

* * * 

Section 3(eh as revised by the 1978 Act, provides as follows: 

"No financial assistance shall be provided under this Act 
to any St~te or local public body or agency thereof for the 
purpose, directly or indirectly, of acquiring any interest 
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in, or purchasing any facilities or other property of a 
private mass transportation company, or for the purpose of 
constructing, improving, or reconstructing any facilities 
or other property acquired ••• from any such company, 
or for the purpose of providing by contract or otherwise 
for the operation of mass transportation facilities or 
equipment in competition with or supplementary to, the 
service rovided b an existin mass trans ortation 
company, unless 1) the Secretary finds that such assis-
tance is essential to the program of projects required by 
section 8 of this Act, (2) the Secretary finds that such 
program, to the maximum extent feasible, provides for the 
participation of private mass transportation companies, (3) 
just and adequate compensation will be paid to such companies 
for acquisition of their franchises or property to the extent 
required by applicable State or local laws, and (4) the Secre
tary of Labor certifies that such assistance complies with 
the requirements of section 13(c) of this Act."· 49 U.S.C. 
1602(e) (Emphasis added). 11 · 

III. Congressional Intent 

The United States Court of Appeals for the Seventh Circuit, in South 
Suburban Safeway Lines, Inc. v. City of Chicago, was the first appellate 
court to review UMTA 1s compliance with Section 3(e). The .Court observed 
the following with respect to the intent of Congre.ss in enacting this 
provision: 

"In section 1602, Congress seems to have been primarily 
concerned over the possibility of public acquisition of 
private facili~ies (a subject not involved in this action) 
although competition with and supplementation of existing 
facilities were also dealt with." 416 F .2d 535, 539 (7th 
Cir., 1969). 

The legislative history of Section 3(e) bears this out. In brief, 
Section 3(e) originated in Senate Bill S.6, (88th Cong., 1st Sess.), one 
of the bills which resulted in the Urban Mass Transportation Act of 1964. 

5/ Thus, the Act specifically permits grants to be mad~ for competitive 
and supplementary services, as long as the requisite findings are made. 
This is consistent with the principle that there is no Constitutional 
right to be free from govertunental competition. See: Tennessee Electric 
Power Co. v. T.V.A., 306 U.S. 118, 138-139 {1939); Westport Taxi Service, 
Inc. v. Adams, Civil No. B-76-369 (D.Conn., April 13, 1977), slip opinion 
at 12; aff'd in part, rev'd in part, 571 F.2d 697 (2d Cir., 1978). 

9 
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The principal sponsor of the bill, Senator Harrison Williams of New Jersey, 
indicated that this provision intended to further a neutral Federal posture 
on the question of whether public or private companies should qperate fed
erally assisted mass transportation services. In discussing the provisions 
of the bill, Senator Williams said: 

" ••• the public body would not have to operate the 
transit facilities and equipment itself. It could pro
vide for their operation by lease or other arrangement. 
Thus, every locality would remain free to choose public 
or rivate o eration of its trans ortation s stem or an 
combination of the two." · 109 Cong. Rec. 198 Daily ed., 
January 14, 1963) (Emphasis added). 

Senator Williams' version of Section 3(·e) differed in .one respect from 
the provision which was ultimately enacted. As originally introduced, the 
bill permitted.the applicant for assistance to certify to the Administrator 
that, among other things, the program, to the maximum extent feasible, pro
vides for the participation of private mass transportation companies. As 
amended, the Administrator was required to find that the federally assisted 
program includes, to the maximum extent feasible, the participatio~ of such 
companies. 

In the House of Representatives, an amendment to H.R. 3881 (88th Cone., 
1st Sess.) contained language substantially similar to that which the Senate 
had passed. Subsequently, the Senate adopted the House language, and the pro
V1S10n was signed into law. The debate in the House revealed that the intent 
of Section 3(e) was to provide fair and equitable treatment of private 
operators, and to require the Administrator to use)his judgment in making the 
required findings. ~/ 

Clearly, the statutory requirement of private participation "to the 
maximum extent feasible," was not intended by Congress to prohibit the use of 
federal assistance to fund services which might compete with or supplement 

!/ In the South Suburban Safeway Lines, Inc. decision, the Seventh Circuit 
said the following: 

' The elements of the findings to be made are discretionary, 
essentially more quasi legislative than quasi judicial. Surely 
Congress intended no trial de novo. The procedure which was 
followed shows that the administrative agency did address itself 
to the questions posed by section 1602(c), in a rational manner, 
and· resolve them by findings which met the statutes.' 416 F.2d 
at p. 540. 

10 
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existing services. In fact, the statute expressly permits competitive or 
supplementary services as long as the findings can be made. It is also note
worthy that the statute's history provides no guidance on the question of how 
the required findings are to be made in cases involving competition among two 
or more private mass transportation companies. Nor is the statute intended 
to foster private operations over publicly owned operations. The overriding 
concern of the sponsors of the provisions in the 1964 Act was to guard against 
unnecessary or coerced public takeovers of existing private operators. 7/ 
As the District Court in Westport Taxi Service, Inc. v. Adams said: -

"If there is a federal statutory right to protection from 
governmental competition, • • • , it derives from the 
Congressional intent expressed in 49 U.S.C. sections 1602(e) 
and 1603 to provide for and encourage 1 to the maximum extent 
feasible' the participation of private enterprise and to com
pensate private mass transportation companies 'for acquisition 
of their franchises or property to the extent required by 
applicable State or local laws.' ••• All the statute requires 
is encouragement of private participation to the maximum extent 
feasible.' It does not allow private transit operators to write 
their own ticket. ~/ 

The statutory scheme viewed as a whole thus juxtaposes two potentially 
conflicting interests: private participation and local determination. By 
authorizing the Administrator to use his discretion in making the required 
.findings, Congress has placed the responsibility for resolving such ·conflict, 
where it exists, in the hands of the Federal agency. Moreover, by using 
language as general as·"to the maximum extent feasible," without any additional 
guidance as to the standard to be used, Congress has given the agency ex
tremely broad discretifn in carrying out this responsibility. 

]_/ 

§.I 

See statement of Congressman Rains, 110 Cong. Rec. 14464 (Daily ed., 
June 25, 1964): 

" ••• this amendment would prevent any force on the part 
of the municipal body to just taking over the authority 
wh_ether-Gir not private enterprise wanted it done." 

Civil No. B-76-369 (D. Conn., April 13, 1977), slip opinion at 12; 
aff'd in part, rev'd in part, 571 F.2d 697 (2d Cir. 1978). The require
ment of Section 3(e)(3) that "just and adequate compensation will be. paid 
to such companies for acquisition of their franchises or property" is 
further evidence ·that the congressional concern was over unnecessary 
public takeovers of private companies. 

11 
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IV. New Jersey's Mass Transportation Program 

The State of New Jersey, and especially the northeastern portion of the 
State which makes up part of the New York metropolitan area, constitutes 
one of the most densely populated areas of the nation. Consequently, mass 
transportation plays an inordinately important role in maintaining the vi
tality of the area. 

Since the early 1800's, railroads have played a major part in providing 
transportation service to the State. 9/ Today's commuter railroad network 
has its roots in the mid-nineteenth century. (The system's history is des
cribed in detail in the Application of the New Jersey Department of Transpor
tation, which is appended hereto as Attachment 5). Presently, all commuter 
rail service in the area is provided by Conrail, which includes the services 
formerly provided by the Erie Lackawanna, Penn Central, Central Railroad of 
New Jersey and the New York & Long Branch Railroads. In 1978, the combined 
ridership of these lines was approximately 34.7 million. · 

New Jersey's bus system is also one of the most extensive in the nation. 
While consolidation and abandonment of bus operations has reduced the number 
of companies providing bus service in New-Jersey over the years, the State 
is presently served by approximately 245 operators, carrying an estimated 
annual ridership of over 210 million passengers. By far the largest bus 
company in the State, Transport of New Jersey (TNJ) carries ·almost 90 million 
pas~engers annually in its fleet of almost 1200 buses. 

What is significant is that with two minor exceptions, all bus and 
commuter rail operations in the State are privately owned. 10/ · 

The Tri-State Regional Planning Commission, the Metropolitan Planning 
Organization (MPO) designated by the Governor, is responsible for the trans
portation planning process, which includes the development of planning pro~ 
grams, a transportation plan and transportation improvement programs (TIP) 

j/ The description of mass transportation services which follows in the text 
is taken from the Application of the New Jersey Department of Transportation 
for an Operating Assistance Grant for the 1978 fiscal year, (NJ-05-0015). 

10/ The two public carriers are Mercer Metro and the Salem County Improve
ment Authority. TNJ is a wholly owned subsidiary of Public Service 
Electric and Gas Company, a privately owned utility company. Maplewood 
Equipment Company is a subsidiary of TNJ. Conrail, pursuant to its 
authorizing legislation, (45 USC 701 et ~.), was specifically pre
cluded from being established as an agency or instrumentality of the 
Government, and was specifically authorized to be established as a 
"for profit corporation." It is therefore clear that TNJ, Maplewood, 
and Conrail are private mass transportation companies. 
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for the northeastern New Jersey area. 11/ The Regional Transportation Plan 
developed by Tri-State includes among its stated public transit objectives 
the following: Preserve and stabilize all vital existing operations; Attain 
fastest feasible travel time to central business districts; Provide rail, 
bus, and paratransit services to all areas of sufficient density; Coordinate, 
integrate and promote all public transportation ·operations. ("Maintaining 
Mobility," submitted as Exhibit C to State's Response to Complaint, p. 10). 
These, as well as other objectives, have guided the continuing and compre-
hensive planning process for the northeastern New Jersey area, and have re
sulted in a series of UMTA-funded projects, including both capital and 
operating assistance, to meet these locally determined goals. 

Under the program of operating assistance authorized by Section 5 of 
the UMT Act, the State of New Jersey, through the Commuter Operating Agency 
(COA) of the New Jersey DOT, has received.grants for eligible operating 
assistance for each fiscal year since 1975. Under the program of capital 
assistance authorized by Section 3:of the UMT Act, UMTA has made a number 
of grants to NJDOT, benefitting both rail and bus services. Under the pro
visions of Section 17 of the UMT Act, emergency operating assistance for 
Conrail has also been made available. 

Independent of the federal program of assistance is New Jers.ey' s own 
statutory program of operating assistance to motor bus carriers within the 
State. Ther~ are two such programs authorized by State law, whereby con
tracts are entered into between the COA and motor bus carriers. N.J.S.A. 
27:1A-19 provides the following: 

"The agency may enter into contracts with any motor bus carrier or 
carrier.s to operate passenger service which the agency shall deter
mine .(a)-.to be necessary to provide or encourage adequate commuter 
or intercity bus service and (b) would not otherwise be provided or 
made available without State assistance. Payment by the agency for 
such passenger service shall be based on the actual cost of such 
service to the motor bus carrier plus a 6% .return on investment." 

N.J.S.A. 27:1A-28.7 further provides as follows: 

g/ 

"The Department of Transportation is hereby authorized to contract with 
any motor bus carrier operating,bus or rail.tr~nsit service in the state 
which is-in imminent danger of terminating all;bus services or all rail 
transit services provided by said motor bus companies to insure the 
continuance of that portion of the bus and_ rail transit services which 
is essential ... _ Payment by the Department under such a contract shall not 
exceed the actual cost to the motor bus carrier for providing such services 
and shall not includ~ any return on investment." 

The requirements for the·transportation planning process are contained in 
the regulations jointly issued by UMTA and the Federal Highway Adminis
tration, 40 Fed. Reg. 42976 ~~(September 7, 1975); 23 CFR Part 450 
and 49 CFR Part 613. 

13 
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Since the State operating assistance program was initiated in.l970, 34 
private bus companies have received more than $126 million in State subsidies. 
In Fiscal Year 1977 alone, over $42 million was distributed to 24 private 
companies. 12/ It must be emphasized, however, that such funds are authorized 
to be made available only under certain conditions. Payments under N.J.S.A. 
27:1A-28.7 are restricted to bus companies which are in "imminent danger of 
terminating all bus services," and for services which are "essential." These 
are limitations imposed by the New Jersey State Legislature, and express the 
loc~lly determined needs of the State. 

The apportionment of State funds to private operators meeting 'the statu
tory criteria is affected by the availability of Federal financial assistance 
under Section 5 of the UMT Act. The application submitted to UMTA for Section 
5 operating assistance (Attachment 5 hereto) specifies that the purpose of 
such assistance is to provide funds to Conrail and TNJ for operating expenses 
in Fiscal Year 1978. Counsel for the State explained in the November 17, 1978 
conference that the reason that these two carriers alone are specified in the 
application is that the total amount of UMTA assistance available under the 
Section 5 formula is far less than the amount needed to provide assistance to 
all eligible carriers in the State. The difference is made up with State funds. 
(Attachment 4, p. 123). Therefore, the State's operating assistance program 
must be considered to inc!ude both State funds under the aforedescribed stat
ute and UMTA funds made available under Section 5·of'the UMT Act. 

"In addition to the program of operating assistance to bus·companies, the 
State has purchased a large number of buses, with UMTA assistance. All such 
buses have been leased to private bus companies. 1!/ Finally, the State pro
vides opera·ting assistance and, through UMTA grants, capital assistance, to 
the commutef railroads serving the State. (See attachment 5, p. 37). 

12/ 

13/ 

See Attachment 5, pp. 39-40. It is of interest to note that assistance 
payments were made to two of the Complainants, Hudson Bus Transportation 
Co. and Manhattan Transit Co. at various times during the 1970-77 period. 
While it is undeniable.that one company, TNJ, has received the largest 
amount of such payments, e;g., over 70 percent of the total in FY 1977, 
assistance is available to any operator meeting the statutory criteria. 

See Attachment 5, p. 35. Again, it is noteworthy that each of the 
Complainants operates some number of State owned buses. Attachment 
3' p. 12. 
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It is this program which the Complainants allege is violative of the 
"private enterprise" provisions of the UMT Act. Specifically, the Complain
ants claim th~t "the various programs are not designed or intended to en
courage participation of private enterprise 'to the maximum extent feasible' 
but rather are designed and intended to cause the demise of private enter
prise." (Attaclunent 1, p. 3). This is the essence of the complaint; and the 
discussion which follows will address those portions of Complainants' argu
ment which we believe are relevant to. a claim under the statutes at issue. 

V. Discussion 

The complaint is based upon a theory that the "private enterprise" pro
visions of the UMT Act prohibit competition between services which receive 
Federal assistance and those which operate without the benefit of such assis
tance. The Complainants claim that competition exists in their service areas, 
and has resulted in a situation whereby their-federally assisted competitors 
can maintain fares at artificially depressed levels, thus gaining a competi
tive advantage. They claim that they cannot participate in the State's sub
sidy program, and thus maintain fares at comparable levels, because of the 
State's utilization of the subsidy program authorized by N.J.S.A. 27:1A-28.7, 
which does not permit recipients to earn a return on investments. They, there
fore, conclude that the State's program discriminates against them, does not 
meet the requirements-of the UMT Act, and should not receive ·any further UMTA 
assistance until the alleged statutory violations are corrected. (See Attach
ment 2 , p • 5 ) • 

As will be further discussed below, we do not agree that the State's 
program violates either the letter or the spirit of the "private enterprise" 
provisions of the UMT Act. While we are aware of the need for NJDOT to re
examine many of its present policies and practices in order to further improve 
mass transportation services for the public and to execute a more efficient 
use of Federal mass transportation assistance funds, we reject Complainants' 
request that the State be precluded from receiving· any further UMTA 
~ssistance. 

A. The State Subsidy Program Is Not Inconsistent With the UMT Act. 

Central to the complaint is the question whether the State subsidy pro
gram authorized by N.J.S.A. 27:1A-28.7 is consistent with Federal requirements. 
The purpose of the State program, as revealed by the very words of the statute, 
is to provide public funds to bus operators which are in "imminent danger of 
terminating all bus services. • • to insure the continuance of essential ser
vices." Such purpose is clearly consistent with the underlying purpose of the· 
U!MT Act, which is to alleviate the societal problems caused by "the deterior
ation or inadequate provision of urban transportation services." 49 U.S.C. 
160l(a) (2). 

1.5 
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Moreover, a basic fact which cannot be overemphasized is that virtually 
all of the recipients of such assistance are private mass transportation 
companies. In fact, the State subsidy program exists for the purpose of 
assisting such companies to continue their operations. 14/ 

The debate in Congress regarding the "private enterprise" prov1s1.ons re
veals that an overriding concern was the potential use of rederal funds to con
vert, unnecessarily, private operations to public ownership. The State of New 
Jerse has not used UMTA funds to convert rivate bus com anies to ublic 
ownership. 15 Rather, the State has decided to distribute available Federal 
funds and independently authorized State funds solely to private mass transpor
tation companies. This, by itself, is persuasive in determining whether the 
State's program meets the requirements of the relevant statutes. 

Complainants, however, raise the question of whether the implementation of 
a program which restricts itself to private companies in jeopardy of going out 
of business, and which provides payments not to,exceed the actual cost of pro
viding essential services without any return on investment~ satisfies the require
ment that the program "encourage to the maximum extent feasible the participation 
of private enterprise." There is no basis in the UMT Act for a finding that the 
preclusion of a return on investment as a condition to the receipt of operating 
assistance is inconsistent with the "private enterprise" provisions or that 
Congress intended UMTA to declare State statutory assistance programs, such as 
New Jersey's, improper. Rather, Congress made clear that local mass transpor
tation programs are to be developed and operated according to local needs. As 
one court has noted, the UMT Act "emphasizes local .solutions to problems." 
Pullman, Inc. v. Volpe, supra, 337 F.Supp. 439. 

. The legislature of the State of New Jerser, through the enactment of the 
State subsidy program statutes, has provided a· local solution to the problem 
of private bus companies in jeopardy of going out of business. The Governor, 
through the State Department of Transportation, has further provided a local. 
solution to the problem of carrying out the intent of the legislature in the 
absence of unlimited financial resources. That is, the State has chosen to 
operate under the program which does not permit a return on investment, al
though a 6 percent retur~ would be permitted under the other State subsidy 
program statute. Such local determinations are well within the discretion of 
the local decision making bodies. · 

J!!.l 

15/ 

Certainly, New Jersey is not unique 1.n this respect. As complainants' 
counsel correctly indicated, several areas within UMTA Region II are 
presently served by private bus operators. See Attachment 4, p. 156. 

Yet, such use of UMTA funds is by no means prohibited. Section 2b of the 
Act specifically permits operation by "public or private mass transpor
tation companies as determined by local needs." 49 U.S.C. 160l(b)(3). 
Section 3(e) permits, so long as "adequate compensation" is paid to such 
private companies, the acquisition of private companies by UMTA grantees. 
49 u.s.c. 1602(e)(3). 

i .-. 
• 1. i) 
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B. The Provision of Assistance to Conrail Does Not Violate The UMT Act. 

Complainants claim that New Jersey's program of mass transportation 
assistance discriminates against them in that a disproportionate amount of 
Federal assistance is made available to commuter rail operations. It is un
disputed that while more passengers are carried by bus than ~y rail in New 
Jersey, more Federal assistance has been made available to the railroads than 
to the bus operators. Nevertheless, there is no basis for a finding that such 
funding is inconsistent with the "private enterprise" provisions, or any other 
provisions of the UMT Act. · 

Section 8 of the UMT Act declares that it is in the national interest 
"to encourage and promote the development of transportation systems embracing 
various modes of transportation in a manner that will serve the States and 
local communities efficiently and effectively." With respect to the rail 
transit mode, UMTA has issued a policy statement on Rail Transit which sets 
forth at length the rationale for Federal support of rail transit projects. 16/ 

More importantly, the local transportation planning process has identi
fied the continuation and upgrading of rail services as a priority need for 

. northern New Jersey. · (See Transportation Improvement Program. Attachment 3, 
Exhibit D). This is consistent with the fcllowing statement from the area's 

• Transportation Plan, "Maintaining Mobility": 

"The backbone of the public transport system is the rail network-
subways and conunuter railroads--capable of carrying large amounts 
of people at high speeds along fixed routes. Express ·buses provide 
high-quality service to areas lacking rail service. Local buses 
offer still wider coverage at slow speeds. Taxi and paratransit 
services meet special needs." (Attachment 3, Exhibit c, p. 3). 

What is clear from the foregoing is that it has been recognized by both 
Federal and local decision makers that the various transportation modes serve 
different transportation requirements, and each mode should be considered on 

•its own merits in deciding an area's particular mix of modes. Such consider
ation is properly the responsibility of local decisionmakers. We do not 
believe that it was the intention of the drafters of the "private enterprise" 
provisions to interfere with this process. Hence, we cannot agree with the 
c:;omplainants that "disproportionate" levels of assistance to the area's rail 
carriers violates the provisions of the UMT Act, so long as the program demon
strates that private mass transportation companies participate "to the maxi
mum extent feasible." 

16/ - 43 Fed. Reg. 9428-30 (March 7, 1978). While UMTA's Policy Statement is 
intended to guide decisions on the design and construction of new rail 
transit facilities, it is nevertheless instructive for purposes of 
describing the national commitment to financing rail transit systems. 
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C. The "'Private Enterprise" Provisions Do Not Prohibit 
Competition Between Federally Assisted Carriers and 
Carriers Which Do Not Receive Assistance. 

The complainants emphasize that they are at a disadvantage because they 
must compete for passengers with TNJ and Conrail, both of which are recipients 
of assistance from the State and UMTA. The disadvantage results from fare 
differentials made possible, it is claimed, by their competitors receiving 
assistance. Complainants claim that this situation violates the "private 
enterprise" provisions to the extent that the State does not provide for a 
formula-based assistance program by which all operators would receive assis
tance based on passengers and passenger miles. 17/ 

T o state that the "private enterprise" provisions prohibit competition 
between assisted and unassisted private mass transportation companies is to 
misconstrue the requirements of those provisions. Section 3(e) of the Act 
states that in order to provide financial assistance for the purpose of oper
ating mass transportation services in competition with services provided by 
an existing private mass transportation company., the UMTA Administrator must 
make certain findings, including that the assisted program, "to the maximum 
extent feasible, provides for the participation of private mass transportation 
companies." Therefore, when the Administrator makes such findings', competi
tion.may exist, as is expressly recognized by the statute. 

It is nevertheless disturbing to recognize that the existing route 
structure in northern New Jersey may result in duplication of services and 
inefficiencies which may deleteriously affect not only the profitability of 
bus operations, but also the level of services being provided to the public, 
and the fares being charged for such services. The issue of the efficiency 
of New Jersey's bus program, in fact, has been addressed by UMTA, and there 
is a continuing effort underway to alleviate many of the problems identified 
by the Complainants. 18/ This is not to say, however, that a basis does not 
exist upon which the Administrator may make the findings required by the Act. 

With respect to Complainants'·contention that the relevant statutes 
require "parity" for all passengers in the area, (i.e.' an assistance formula 
based on passengers and passenger miles), there is simply no basis whatever . 
for such a requirement •. To impose such a formula on the State would be allo~
ing these operators "to write their own ticket." Westport Taxi Service, Inc. 
v. Adams, supra, p. 12. 

17/ 

18/ 

See, e.g., Attachment 2, pp. 13, 18, 24, 38; Attachment 4, pp. 5, 8, 17, 
20, 28, 31, 60, 66, 69, 86, 93, 102, 156. 

Letter of November 16, 1978 from Hiram J. Walker to Robert A. Keith, 
Attachment 6. UMTA's concern regarding the State's bus program is dis
cussed further, below. 
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D. There Is Ample Basis For A Finding That New Jersey's Program, 
To The Maximum Extent Feasible, Provides For The Participation 
Of Private Mass Transportation Companies. 

Congress. provided little guidance as to the meaning of the "private 
enterprise" provisions. By the use of general language, however, the statute 
gives the Administrator broad discretion in implementing the requirement. This 
discretion has been exercized on a case-by-case basis in determining whether 
the required findings can be made. 

In the case of New Jersey's program, the record discloses ample evidence 
that private mass transportation companies participate to the maximum extent 
feasible. The program is premised upon an existing system of bus and rail 
services, all of which are operated by private companies. Through a combi
rtation of State and Federal programs, assist~nce is made available to continue 
essential services and to upgrade capital facilities and purchase new equip
ment. Any private operator may apply to the State for assistance, and any 
operator meeting the State's criteria may receive such assistance. While 
competition may exist between assisted and unassisted carriers, such competi
tion is expressly authorized by the UMT Act as long as the required 'findings 
can be made. 

However, the Complainants emphasize the effect which competition has on . 
the fares which unsubsidized carriers can charge. Complainants state that 
they would apply for fare increases, but must maintain fares at depressed 
levels in order to remain competitive with subsidized carriers operating on 
the same or similar routes. The rail services offered by Conrail differ in 
kind from the services offered by the Complainants, and we therefore do not 
consider such services competitive. Competition among bus operators, while 
expressly authorized by the UMT Act) may indeed have an effect on the services 
pr~vided to the public. This is an area which the State should examine to 
determine whether the mass transportation system is serving the public ef
fiqiently and effectively. 19/ 

·In order to increase the efficiency and effectiveness of service, the 
9ta.te should examine existing routes, schedules, and fares to determine 
whe1ther changes should be made to avoid unnecessary duplication of service. 
A S'tate Reorganization plan, effective January l, 1979, provides the State 
with this opportunity, and should help maximize efficiency in the provision 

19/ UMTA is prohibited from regulating in any manner the.mode of operation 
of any mass transportation system receiving assistance under the Act. 
49 U.S.C. 1608(d). This prohibition specifically includes the regulation 
of fares. Yet, the Act declares that mass transportation systems should 
serve the public "efficiently arid effectively." 49 U.S.C. 1607(a). 

·. \ 19 
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of mass transportation services. 20/ The State is pr.esently developing a 
program of capital projects fot,:wtth:h UMTA assistance will be sought. As 
many as 1,000 buses are anticipated to be purchased, and bus related facil
ities may be constructed. This program provides the State with an additional 
opportunity to examine the needs of New Jersey's bus operators as well as the 
needs of the public. It is anticipated that the program may also include 
the construction of bus maintenance facilities and garages, park and ride 
lots and other supportive facilities, and that the buses purchased will be 
allocated among the State's many private bus operators in a rational and 
efficient manner. 

The issues raised by the Complainants do not preclude the Administrator 
from making the required findings. It is not the purpose of this memorandum 
to provide a general statement on the issue of private participation in UMTA
assisted programs. Rather, we have been asked to examine the situation in 

·New Jersey. That examination has revealed that certain problems exist, but 
that steps are being taken to resolve them. Our review of the State's pro
gram has not, however, revealed any substantive reason for withholding funds 
from New Jersey. 

VI. Conclusion 

The complaint of Hudson Bu.s Transportation Co. and the other private bus 
companies has b~en thoroughly considered. Complainants have had the oppor
tunity to present their case to the Administrator through written submissions 
and at a conference with UMTA attorneys. The State has responded to the alleg
ations contained in the Complaint. 

The record developed in this proceeding is voluminous. As described herein, 
the record provides a basis for a finding that New Jersey's program, while re
quiring a thorough examination to correct certain problems, satisfies the require
ments of the "private enterprise" provisions. Private mass transportation 
companies are provided, to the maximum extent feasible, opportunity to partici
pate in New Jersey's program. 

, Complai~nts' request that UMTA not approve financial assistance to New 
Jersey should be denied~ 

20/ In the past, a number of agencies have had jurisdiction over the operations 
of New Jersey's bus operators. The Commuter Operating Agency of the 
Department of Transportation has had contractual control over the fares, 
routes and schedules of all subsidized mass transportation operators. The 
Board of Public Utiiities has had jurisdiction over routes, fares and 
schedules of the nonsubsidized carriers. The Interstate Commerce Commission 
has had jurisdiction over the operations of interstate, trans-Hudson, 
operators. As stated by Governor Byrne, the former split in jurisdiction 
was "confusing, inefficient and duplicative and has hindered the develop
ment of a rational public transportation system in the State." On January 
1, 1979, pursuant to a State Reorganization plan, the.function~ of th~ 
Board of Public Utilities as they apply to bus and ra1l op~rat1ons, w1ll 
be transferred to the Department of Transportation. (Governor's Message 
and Reorganization Plan appended hereto as Attachment 7). 

iO 
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DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION ~de-.;. -;,",, 
URBAN MASS TRANSPORTATION. ADMINISTRATION__ f' 

Mr. Dean A. Hetrick 
General Manager 
Greater Portland Transit 

District (GP,ID) 
P.O. Box 1097 
P~ortland, Maine 04104 

D,ea r Mr. Hetrick: 

WASHINGTON, D.C. 10510 

APR . 5 1979· 

The Urban Mass Transportation Administration (UMTA) has completed a 
review of the Greater Portland Transit District's (GPTD) charter 
operations. It is our determination that GPTD has engaged in charter 
operations outside of the urban area in which it provides regularly 
s¢heduled mass transportation services, without an agreement under 
section 3(f) of the Urban Mass Transportation Act of 1964, as amended, 
(49 U.S.C. § 1601, et seq.) (the UMT Act) and UMTA charter regulations, 
a$ amended, 41 F.R. 14122 (Aprill, 1976). GPTD isthereforeordered 
to ·cease and desist from any charter operations outside of the urban 
area in which it provides regularly scheduled mass transportation. 
services, as defined by the laws of the State of Maine. For the 
p~rposes of this order GPTD's urban area is defined to include the 
Cities of Portland, South Portland, and Westbrook. This order shall 
r~main in effect for a period of three (3) years from the date of 
its issuance. During that time, and until such time as GPTD is 
eligible and applies for a charter agreement under·section 3-(f) 
of the UMT'Act, GPTD shall submit annually to this office effective 

. 30 days from the date of this order: 

1. A complete description of all proposed charter 
operations within its urban area during the 
impending year; 

2. An estimate of the number and type of buses 
which will be employed in the proposed service 
and a_.statement of their availability; 

3. A certification of costs for the proposed charter 
operations. Such certification shall include all 
relevant expenses specified in Appendix B of UMTA 
charter regulations,l41 F.R. 14122 (April 1, 1976); 
and 

4. A cost allocation plan. 
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GPTD is required to submit charter cost data to ~1TA for ·a period of 
three (3) years from the date of this: order although its charter 
activity during that period wi 11 be limited to the urban area i.n 
which it provides regularly scheduled mass transportation service. 
UMTA's decision~o require this submittal was prompted by GPTD's 
charter activity outside of its urban area since the issuance of 
UMTA charter regulations·on April 1, 1976. Because GPTD has not 
complied with UMTA's cost reporting requirements contained in the 
April 1, 1976 regulations, UMTA has been denied the opportunity to 
review the adequacy of GPTD's current charter rates. UMTA will 
therefore conduct such a review over the next three (3) years to 
insure that GPTD's charter rates are not designed to foreclose 
private carriers from the charter industry. 

UMTA received a complaint from Brunswick Transportation Co., Inc. 
(Brunswick) dated May 19, 1978, and a subsequent complaint from 
Hudson Lines, Inc., (Hudson) both private carriers in Maine, 
alleging certain violations by GPTD of the UMT Act and UMTA charter 
regulations. On June 26, 1978, UMTA i~sued a Notice of Probable 
Violation (Notice) to GPTD citing possible violations of its 
charter bus regulations and the UMT Act. GPTD responded to the 
UMTA Notice by letter and supporting documents dated on July 28, 
1978, setting forth why it believed it had not violated UMTA 
requirements. Brunswick submitted a rebuttal to the GPTD response 
on October 13, 1978. Hudson's response was submitted on October 12, 
1978. 

With re$pect to charter service outside of its urban area, GPTD has 
admitted in its response that it regularly contracts such charter 
without an appropriate agreement, in violation of UMTA regulations. 
GPTD alleges, however, that the amount of charter work done outside 
its urban area is not significant since such charters amounted to 
only 5 percent of its total charter work during the first six (6) 
months of 1978. GPTD further explains its lack of a charter agree
ment with UMTA as follows: 

"On March 25, 1975, a request for an Agreement with 
the Secretary of Transportation on charter rights was 
submitted to UMTA (copy enclosed). Subsequently the 
District was notified, verbally, to hold the request 
until final regulations were published in April, 1976, 
the Distri~t has filed one additional Section 5 grant 
application under the old application procedures. The 
old procedures were used for the calendar year {our 
fiscal year) 1977 because the application was nearly 
complete when UMTA Circular C 9050.1 was issued June 10, 
1977 and received by us in July, 1977. Page two, para
graph two of C 9050.1 indicated that the old procedures 
were acceptable until January 1, 1978. The District is 
preparing the calendar year 1978, Section 5 application 
under the new procedures including Exhibit E: Charter 
and School Bus Operations. 
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Section 604.20, Modifications of ~greements and. 
Amendments of Application; and Section 604.21.--' 
Amendment of Application for Assistance, require 
the Di strict.--to develop a certification . .c'f costs 
for its ch~rter bus ope~ations and send it.with 
its proposed or existing charter bus operations 
and cost allocation plan to private charter bus 
operators wh.ose service originates in the grant's 
urban are) . .(' The District had neglected to do this, 
but a certification of costs and a description of 
charter bus operations have been sent to Brunswick 
Transportation Co., Inc., the carrier whose service 
ori-ginates in South Portland, a city in our urbanized 
area. A copy of that certification is enclosed .... 
(Attachment No. 1)* 

Th~ record indicates that GPTD did not send the certification mentioned 
abdve to Brunswick until July 27, 1978, one day before GPTD responded to 
th~ U~TA Notice. There is no indication in our records that GPTO ev~r 
sought final approval of Attac.hment No. 1 as a formal charter agreement. 

We !disagree with GPTD's position that the amount of charter work done 
outside of its urban area was not significant. Section 3(f) of the UMT 
Act provides in part as follows: . 

"No Federal financial assistance under this Act may 
be provided for the purchase of buses unless the 
applicant or any public body receiving such assistance 
for the purchase or operation of buses, or any publicly 
owned operator receiving such assistance, shall as a 
condition of such assistance enter into an agreement 
with the Secretary that such public body, or any 
operator of mass transportation for such public body, 
will not enQage in charter bus operations outside the 
urban area within which it provides regularly scheduled 
mass transportation service, except as provided in the 
agreement authorized by this subsection " 
(emphasis added) 

Und~r section 3(f) and UMTA regulations implementing it, any charter 
operations by a grantee outside its urban area subject that grantee 
to the charter··regulations if that grantee grosses more than $15,000 
ann~ally (section 604.2) from its total charter operations. 

In ~onclusion we find that GPTP operated charter servic~ outside of 
its: urban area without an agreement in violation of section 3(f) of 
the' UMT Act and UMTA regulations issued thereunder. GPTD therefore 
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should not engage 1n any charter service outside of tts i:irban· area 
as defined herein. Such charters may not be originated or terminated 
outside of the urban area. Any violati.on of this order IMY be con
sidered grounds :to establish a pattern of continuing violations ,nd 
.ay result tn GP'TO being barred from further a.ss1stance under the 
U!·~T Act. . . 

Enclosures 

Sincerely. es 
Js/ Margaret M. Ayr 

cnief counsel 

Margaret M. Ayres 
Chief Counsel 

* To the extent that Attachment No. 1 complies with this order. tt may 
be used as GPTD's initial filing under this order. 

UMTA:PCOOK:dlc:2/9/79 
cc: UCC-1 Reading 

UCC-1 Chron 
UCC-File--CHARTER COMPLAINT AGAINST GPTO 
UCC-31 PCook 
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~~-/ 
DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION \.. ,, 

URBAN MASS TRANSPORTATION ADMINISTRATION ;2>:·~c .. ·. 
WASHINGTON, D.C. 20590 

Mr. James c. Riffe 
President 
Cbe$apeake & Northern Transportation 

Corporation 
5604 Capelle Road 
Portsmouth, Virginia 23703 

Dear Mr. Riffe: 

Thank you for your letter of June 20, 1979, concerning the use of 
tra~sit buses owned by the Tidewater Transportation District 
Com¢ission (TTDC) in employee hauling (charter service). We are 
informed by your letter that TTDC has leased transit buses to the 
Bet$y Corporation, and that the latter is using those buses in 
competition with your company in providing charter services. You 
have requested that we review that matter to determine if such 
act1ons violate section 3(f) of the Urban Mass Transportation Act, 
as. amended (49 U.S.C. l602(f)) (the UMT Act). · 

The Urban Mass Transportation Administration {UMTA} does not permit 
its grantees to use or allow the use of UMTA-assisted buses in any 
chatter service which interferes with regularly scheduled mass trans
portation service. In this respect, any charter service offered by 
UMT~ grantees or operators for such grantees must be incidental to 
the provision of mass transit service. No UMTA-assisted buses can 
be ~ssigned primarily to charter service. Any such assignment would 
violate section 604.11 of UMTA 1s charter bus regulations, 41 F.R. 
14122 (April 1, 1976) (copy enclosed), which were promulgated under 
section 3(f} of the UMT Act. 

We have requested the UMTA Regional Office in Philadelphia to review 
this matter and determine whether TTDC is in compliance with our 
chatter regulations, specifically with respect to its leasing of 
equipment to the Betsy Corporation. 

We ~ppreciate your bringing this matter to our attention. We Will 
inf~rm you of our findings and of any action we may take. 

You may direct any further inquiry on this matter to our Regional 
Office Counsel, Ms. Nancy Greene, at 215/597-8098. 

Enclosure 
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Sincere.l~et M Ayres Js/ Marga • 
Chief' ~ounsel 

Margaret M. Ayres 
Chief Counsel 
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Hr. Irwin J. ~orof 
At toroey At Lav 
125.!velfth Street 
Suite 105 
oakland, california '4607 

Dear !-ir. :Borof : 

i-\i.)~ 31 1979 

1 have received your letter, &1ated August '21, 1979, Te:arding 
A.C. Tr!UlSit.'& c.hartu operations. '!ou have Tequest.ed t.bat .A.C. be 
required to prescribe the specific boundaries of its service; your 
suggestion is that, since A.C. ~ansit's S~ Francisco service ~ 
limited to ~reasure Island and the bus t.ermiual, it should not be 
pe~tted to operate charter service throughout the ei~. 

Tbe lJMTA regulatioos gove'I"%d11g chaTter t1per.ttit.n:m {-49 C .. :F .lt. 'Part ~04) 
require that a grant Tecipient engagint in charter operations outside 
the urban area rlthiD whichiit provides Tegularly scheduled J:Da.SS 

transporLation service and from which it derives more than $15,000 in 
revenue, must enter into a charter agreement with UHTA to ensure that 
miT A assistance is not used in support of charter operations. 'tnrban 
area" i.s defined as ''the entire area in which a local public body is 
authori:ted by appropriate local, State, and 'Federal law to provide 
regularly scheduled mass transportation service"~ which inc:.lud~ all 
areas within the urbanized area served by the operator. 

A.C. Transit provides regularly scheduled service within the 
Snn Franc:.iec:.o-Oakland urbani.zed area and is. therefore, not required 
to enter into a charter agreement, as long as its charter service 
remains vithi'D that area. Any other icte:rpretatioD of the regulation 
would result in the limitation of charter operations ·to only these areas 
which are served by A.C. routes. · 

cc: Mr. Nisbet, A.C. Transit 

MORGAN/ddb 08307.9 
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Sincerely, 

Melanie J. MorgaD 
Regional Counsel 



DEPARTMENT OF·TRANSPORTATION 
URBAN MASS TRANSPORTATION ADMINISTRATION 

WASHINGTON, D.C. 205t0 

Donald J. Ellis, Esquire 
~routman, Sanders, Lockerman 
· and Ashmore 
Attorneys at Law 
Candler Building 
Atlanta, Georgia 30303 

]Dear Mr. Ellis: 

DEC 21 S19 

The Urban Mass Transportation Administration (UMTA) has completed 
a review of the charter bus operations of the Metropolitan Atlanta 
:Rapid Transit Authority (MARTA) as a result of an April 7, 1978, 
complaint filed by Tamiami Tours, Inc., and Continental Tennessee 
Lines, Inc., both doing business as Trailways (Trailways). It is 
10ur determination that MARTA has not engaged in charter bus operations 
in violation of either section 3(f) of the Urban Mass Transportation 
'Act of 1964, as amended (the UMT Act), UMTA Charter Bus .Regulations,-·-· 
.49 CFR Part 604, or MARTA's charter bus agreement with UMTA submitted 
under the preceding requirements. 

UMTA received a complaint from Trailways dated April 7, 1978, 
alleging certain violations by MARTA of the UMT Act and UMTA 
charter regulations. Specifically, Trailways made_the following 
allegations which will be addressed individually herein. 

1. MARTA's charter operations violate Federal laws 
and regulations; 

2. MARTA has violated its agreement with UMTA 
concerning the operations of charter bus service; 

3. MARTA's federally subsidized low charter rates 
are foreclosing private enterprise; 

4. MARTA's charter bus rates are not producing 
income equal to or greater than the costs of 
providing such service, thus converting 
Federal assistance to a subsidy for charter 
operations; 
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5. MARTA's charter bus operations have interfered 
with MARTA's primary urban mass transit functions; 

(a) MARTA has provided charter bus service 
during weekday morning and evening rush 
hours; . 

(b) MARTA has provided weekday charter bus service 
requiring the use of a particular bus for 
longer than six hours in any one day; 

{c) MARTA has provided charter bus service beyond 
its urban area as if it is a private interstate 
charter bus operation; 

6. MARTA has engaged in certain practices in an effort to 
avoid the limitations on the use of federally financed 
equipment and facilities in charter bus operations; and 

7. MARTA 1 s -illegal acts and practices compel remedial 
action by UMTA. 

2. 

On April 21, 1978, UMTA issued a Notice of Probable Violation {Notice) 
to MARTA citing possible violation of its charter bus regulations and 
the UMT Act. MARTA responded to the UMTA Notice by letter and 
supporting documents dated June 1, 1978, setting forth why it believed 
it had not violated UMTA 1s requirements. 

On June 15, 1978, a hearing was held on the Trailways complaint at 
the UMTA Region IV office in Atlanta, Georgia. Both Trailways and 
MARTA were represented by counsel at this hearing. Both presented 
witnesses and documentary ~vidence, which along with the official 
transcript of this matter, and all documents received in evidence 
up to and including those filed by MARTA dated August .9, 1978, 
constitute the official record. 

At the June 15 hearing, counsel for Trailways moved to strike MARTA•s 
reply to the Trailways complaint. In that reply, MARTA alleges that 
charter bus operations are permitted by both state and Federal law. 
Trailways alleges that charter service is not permitted under MARTA•s 
enabling legislation or under any Federal statute. MARTA opposed the 
Trailways motion to strike on the grounds that Trailways was raising 
a new issue at the hearing which was not previously raised in its 
complaint, i.e., whether MARTA was authorized to engage in charter 
operations by its enabling legislation. The hearing officer agreed 
that the issue raised by Trailways was a new one which had not been 
previously raised by the Trailways complaint. However, since the 
issue was relevant, the hearing officer agreed to allow Trailways 
to submit evidence in support of fts position that MARTA•s enabling 
legislation does not allow MARTA to engage in charter service. Such 
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3. 

<eividence was to be submitted along with Trailways• response to 
MARTA's reply of June 1, 1978, which was due approximately thirty 
(!30) days subsequent to the filing of the reply by MARTA. MARTA 
~as. allowed twenty (20) .days after the filing of the Trailways • 
~esponse to rebut the new issue raised by Trailways. The hearing 
officer stated that upon the filing of the rebuttal by MARTA, the 
tecord in this matter would be closed to further submittals. (See 
Transcript pages 127-135). The disposition on all preliminary 
~otions was to be addressed in the decision by UMTA on the Trailways 
~omplaint. 

the Trailways motion to strike portions of MARTA's reply of June 1, 

t
978, concerning its authority to engage in charter service is denied. 

, he Attorney General of Georgia in Opinion 73-60, May 4, 1973, has 
~xpressly ruled on MARTA's authority to provide charter service 
~nside of its urban area by the following statement: 

11 MARTA is a public body corporate created as a 
joint instrumentality of the participating govern-. 
rnents existing for the purpose of establishing and 
administering • ... a rapid transit system within 
the metropolitan area •.• • Ga. Laws 1965, pp. 
2243, 2252, Sections 3, 7. The responsibility of 
MARTA with respect to a •rapid transit system• 
includes the • right to pro vi de group and party 
service•. Id. Sections 2(g}, and 2(i) •.. it is 
clear, therefore, that MARTA does have the authority 
to pro vi de charter service ..•. 11 

The Attorney General also answered in the affirmative the question 
of whether MARTA could, under State law, provide charter service 

1 outside the metropolitan Atlanta area by the following statement: 

..... it follows that MARTA may provide charter 
service for trips originating within the metro-
politan area, but extending beyond those borders 
where it concludes that such charters are reasonably 
necessary to serve its statutorily mandated objective 
within the metropolitan area ... 

The above portions of the opinion of the Georgia Attorney General 
• provides a sufficient basis for UMTA to find that MARTA is authorized 
· under State law both to engage in charter service and to engage in 

charter service outside of its urban area. In this respect, UMTA is 
not persuaded by Trailways arguments that the decision of the Attorney 
General of Georgia should not control this issue because such opinion 

, is not binding as law. As authority for its position that the Attorney 
General's decision should not be followed, Trailways cites Gable Indus
tries, Inc. v. Blackman, 233 Ga. :542 (1975). That opinion, however, merely 
states that the Attorney General•s opinion is not binding on the courts. 
In this matter, where no court opinion is available to aid UMTA in 
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4. 

deciding the issue presented here, our view is that the opinion of the 
Attorney General should be given great weight, particularly since the 
issue to be decided involves an interpretation of a local statute. 
Therefore, it is our opinion that MARTA is pennitted by its enabling 
legislation to engage in charter bus operations both inside and outside 
of its urbanized area. 

Counsel for Trailways also moved to strike Exhibits 1 and 4 of MARTA's 
reply of June 1, 1978. Trailways contends that the letters in Exhibit 
1 complimenting MARTA for the quality of its charter service cannot be 
used as a basis to establish the lawfulness of that service. We agree 
that public support for charter service does not affect the legality of 
that service under UMTA requirements. The Trailways motion is granted 
on the grounds that Exhibit 1 is not relevant to the purpose of this 
review which is to detennine the legality of MARTA's charter service. 
However, Trailways• motion to strike Exhibit 4 which describes the 
scope of MARTA's charter service is denied on the grounds that Exhibit 
4 is relevant in establishing the magnitude of MARTA's charter operations. 

Counsel for Trailways also moved to strike paragraph 1 of page (6) of 
MARTA's June 1, 1978, response which provides as follows: 

11 ln summary, the Authority's charter service has 
historically been an incidental but essential service 
that addresses a specific transportation need, recognized 
by Congress in the Urban Mass Transportation Act of 1964, 
as amended (49 U.S.C. § 1602(f)) (hereinafter referred to 
as the 11 UMT Act11

). 

Trailways' grounds for objection is that MARTA" .•• is basically saying 
that the provision of charter service addresses a specific transportation 
need recognized by Congress in the Urban Mass Transportation Act of 1964, 
as amended. This is clearly not so and should be deleted and not 
considered for the purpose offered." The Trailways motion is denied 
on the grounds that the statement by MARTA is supported by the 
existence of section 3(f) of the UMT Act and the December 7, 1966 
decision of the Comptroller General of the United States (supra) which 
indicate that Congress recognized that transit operators would carry 
out charter service and that such services do in fact address a specific 
transportation need. · 

Finally, Trailways moved to strike the questions posed by William C. Nix, 
Director of Transportation, Engineering and Evaluation for MARTA, to 
John Spellings of Trailways on cross examination concerning the 
convenience of arranging service among private carriers. The grounds 
for objection is that MARTA cannot justify its charter service on the 
basis of the need for that service. Trailways further states that 
Mr. Nix's questions· imply that because no one carrier can provide 
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5. 

s ufri ci ent buses to pro vi de charter service to the. metropo 1 i tan a rea, 
so"'e people will go without service. [Page 98-99, Hearing Transcript, 
June 15; 1978]. The Trailways motion is denied. We agree ·that need 
alone does not justify MARTA providing charter service. However, as 
welhave detennined earlier, we find that such service is permitted 
under section 3 of the UMT Act. 

We: now address specifically the allegations of the Trail ways complaint 
o~ April 7, 1978. Trailways first alleges that MARTA's charter bus . 
operations violate Federal laws and regulations. The UMT Act authorizes 
F~deral funds to finance the acquisition, construction, reconstruction, 
and improvement of facilities and equipment for use in mass 
t1l"ansportation. The term "mass transportation" is defined in section 
l/2(c}(6) of the UMT Act to mean " ••• transportation by bus, or rail, or 
Qther conveyance, either publicly or privately owned, which provides 
to the public general or special service (but not including school buses 
(Jr charter or sightseeing service) on a regular and continuing basis." 
!(emphasis added). ut1TA is prohibited from assisting in the purchase or 
1operation of equipment which would be used primarily 1/ in charter bus 
operations under this definition and under section 3(f) of the UMT Act 
which in its entirety provides as follo~s: 

No Federal financial assistance under this Act may be 
provided for the purchase or operation of buses unless 
the applicant or any public body receiving such 
assistance for the purchase or operation of buses, or 
any publicly owned operator receiving such assistance, 
shall as a condition of such assistance enter into an 
agreement with the Secretary that such public body, or 
any operator of mass transportation for such public 
body, will not engage in charter bus operations outside 
the.urban area within which it provides regularly 
scheduled mass transportation service, except as provided 
in the agreement authorized by this subsection. Such 
agreement shall provide for fair and equitable arrangements, 
appropriate in the judgment of ~he Secretary, to assure that 
financial assistance granted under this chapter wi 11 not 
enable public bodies and publicly and privately owned 
operators for public bodies to foreclose private operators 
from the intercity charter bus industry where such 
private operators are willing and able to provide such 
service. (emphasis added). 

1/ While section 12(c).(6) of the Utifl' Act prohibits the agency from 
making a bus grant expressly for the purpose of providing charter service, 
the Comptroller General of the United States in opinion B-160204, 
December 7, 1966, has ruled that buses purchased with UMTA funds may be 
used in incidental charter service. In that opinion, the Comptroller 
General stated " ••. we are of the opinion that any lawful use of project 
equipment which does not detract from or interfere with the urban mass 
transportation service for which the equipment is needed would be deemed 
an incidental use of project equipment, and that such use of project 
equipment is entirely permis~~le under our legislation." 



6. 

Section 3(f} of the UMT Act reflects amendments to that section by section 
813(b} of the Housing and Community Development Act of 1974, August 22, 
1974 (P.L. 93-383, 88 Stat. 633}. Before those amendments all charter 
service by UMTA grantees outside of the grantee's service area was 
prohibited by section 164(a) of the Federal Aid Highway Act of 1973 
which, prior to its repeal read as follows: 

"No Federal fi nanci a 1 assistance sha 11 be provided 
under (1) subsection (a) or (c) of section 142, title 
23, United States Code, (2) paragraph (4) of subsection 
(e) of section 103, title 23, United States Code, or 
(3) the Urban Mass Transportation Act of 1964, for the 
purchase of buses to any applicant for such assistance 
unless such applicant and the Secretary of Transportation 
shall have first entered into an agreement that such 
applicant will not engage in charter bus operations 
in competition with private bus operators outside of the 
area within which such applicant provides regularly 
scheduled mass transportation service. A violation 
of such agreement sha 11 bar such applicant from receiving 
any other Federal financial assistance under those 
provisions of law referred to in clauses (1), {2), and 
(3) of this subsection." 

Section 3(f) of the UMT Act differs from section 164(a) of the Highway 
Act in that section 3(f) expressly allows UMTA grantees to engage in 
charter bus operations outside the grantee's urban area in competition 
with private carriers so long as such charter operations are carried out 
pursuant to an agreement which the Secretary of Transportation finds to 
contain fair and equitable arrangements for protection of the economic 
interest of competing private carriers. 

The April 1, 1976 UMTA charter bus regulations implement section 3(f) 
of the UMT Act,by setting forth the terms which are "fair and equitable" 
in the opinion of the Secretary to protect the economic interests of 
private charter operators. At the same time, the regulations are designed 
to establish minimum conditions under which all public operators may 
engage in charter bus operations in competition with private carriers and 
yet not foreclose the latter from the intercity charter bus ·industry. 

The basic thrust of the regulations is twofold: (1) they require grantees 
who engage in charter bus operations outside of their urban area to assure 
that Federal assistance is not used to subsidize charter operations by 
certifying that revenues generated from those operations are equal to, 
or greater than the cost of providing that service; and (2) they codify 
the "incidental" charter restrictions on the use of Federally-assisted 
equipment which the Comptroller General set forth in his opinion of 1966. 
(Comptroller General of the United States, B-160204 (December 7, 1966)). 
(See Appendix B, UMTA Charter Bus Regulations, 41 F.R. 14122, April 1, 1976). 
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7. 

With respect to the economic thrust of the charter regulations, grantees 
are required to certify that they have taken into account those expenses 
outlined in Appendix B of the charter regulations in developing their 
charter rates. In addition to the expenses outlined in Appendix B, 
grantees are also required to add depreciation on all Federally-assisted 
buses and taxes as expenses. 

The certifications made by grantees are made available to private carriers 
under section 604.18 of the charter regulations prior to UMTA approval of 
a charter agreement. Private carriers have the opportunity to comment on 
these certifications either at a public hearing or through written comments 
which are forwarded to UMTA by the grantee. In addition to commenting on 
the grantee's certification, private carriers are also allowed to state 
their objections to a grantee's charter operations. 

If such objections state a legally sufficient basis for UMTA to limit or 
prohibit a grantee's charter operations under the UMTA charter regulations, 
appropriate action will be taken by UMTA. 

MARTA's first request for a charter agreement under UMTA charter bus 
regulations was made in September 1976. Upon approval of documentation 
submitted by MARTA on September 10, 1976, UMTA approved an interim ._. 
charter agreement which allowed MARTA to conduct charter service outside 
of its urban area for a period of sixty (60) days pending approval of a 
final charter bus agreement. [See MARTA Exhibit 3 in its April 7, 1978 
reply to the Trailways Complaint]. 

On November 2, 1976, UMTA gave unconditional approval of MARTA's request 
for a charter agreement. An approved charter agreement remains in effect 
for twelve months unless an UMTA grantee makes major changes in its charter 
operations within that time period. Upon the expiration of its November 2, 
1976, charter agreement, MARTA requested a new agreement by letter and 
supporting documents dated October 7, 1977. 2/ In response to MARTA's 
Octqber 7 request, UMTA approved its charter-agreement on December 5, 1977. 
The December 5 charter agreement was in effect at the time the Trailways 
complaint was filed. Therefore, to the extent that section 3(f) of the UMT 
Act and UMTA charter regulations require a charter agreement as a condition 
of operating charter service outside of a grantee's service area, it is our 
finding that MARTA has met those requirements as evidenced by the referenced 
approved charter agreements with UMTA. We therefore find that MARTA's 
operations are not in violation of Federal laws and regulations. The 
extent to which MARTA has fulfilled the cotmlitments made in its agreements 
will be discussed further herein. 

2/ The Transcript of the public hearing conducted by MARTA on its proposed 
charter operations indicate tha:t Trailways representatives appeared at the 
hearing. That testimony opposing MARTA's charter services is a part of that 
record. However, the objections put forth by Trailways at the hearing did 
not establish a legal basis for denying approval of MARTA's charter agreement 
under the UMTA charter regulations. 
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The following allegations by Trailways will be discussed together 
because of their general relationship: MARTA has violated its agree-
ment concerning the operation of charter services; MARTA's Federally 
subsidized low charter rates are foreclosing private enterprise; and 
MARTA's charter bus rates are not producing income equal to or greater 
than the costs of providing such service, thus converting Federal 
assistance into a subsidy for charter operations. The extent to which 
MARTA has complied with its charter agreement with UMTA can be clarified. 
by a discussion of the regulations which require that agreement. 
Section 604.15 of UMTA charter regulations as amended, 41 F.R. 56651 
(December 29, 1976) provides that "each applicant who engages or wishes 
to engage in charter bus operations outside of its urban area shall 
include the following in its application ... a certification of costs and 
... a cost allocation plan .... " Under section 604.3 of the charter 
regulations, "Certification of costs .. and 11 cost allocation plan" are 
defined, respectively, as follows: 

"Certification of costs" means a statement prepared 
using generally accepted accounting principles, 
consistent with a grantee's regular accounting methods, 
and certified to be true and accurate by a grantee's 
chief financial officer. This statement indicates the 
elements of cost that are attributable to a grantee's 
charter bus operations. A grantee's statement must 
include depreciation expense on federally-assisted 
buses, facilities and equipment as an element of cost, 
and State and Federal taxes, whether or not the grantee 
is required to pay such taxes. This statement shall 
also give assurance that the revenues generated by 
charter bus operations are, and shall remain, equal 
to or greater than the cost of providing the service. 

" 

"Cost allocation plan" means the documentation identifying, 
accumulating, and distributing costs attributable to charter 
bus operations together with the allocation methods used ... 

[See 604.3, 41 F.R. 14123, April 1, 1976]. 

8. 

MARTA's charter agreement for fiscal year 1977, approved December 5, 1977, 
complies with the above requirements. MARTA's certified cost statement 
indicates that MARTA charter revenues exceeded its charter expense by 
$35,738 during that period after appropriate treatment of: (a) relevant 
expenses listed in Appendix B of the regulations, (b) $70,407 for 
depreciation of Federa11y-assisted equipment, and (c) $12,323 for State 
and Federal taxes. (The latter items, depreciation and taxes, are not 
actual expense items, but are required by the charter regulations in order 
to ensure that grantee charter rates are not so artificially low in comparison 
to those of private carriers by virtue of Federal subsidy or tax exempt 
status as to foreclose private carriers from the charter industry). 
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9. 

MARTA's cost allocation plan indicates that charter costs were determined 
by the ratio of total charter miles to total miles traveled by MARTA. 
The rate derived by that comparison provides a basis for determining 
charter costs as a percentage of total cost which are uniformally applied 
on a system-wide basis. UMTA's review of MARTA's certification of cost 
and cost allocation plan indicated that it was prepared using generally 
accepted principles of accounting and was consistent with MARTA's regular 
accounting methods. It also indicated that costs were less than revenues. 

Trailways has not challenged specifically any element of expense in 
MARTA's certified cost statement, nor has Trailways challenged MARTA's 
method of cost allocation. The following dialogue from the June 15, 
1978 hearing illustrates this point: 

MR. COOK: {Hearing Officer) Do you challenge any specific 
element of expense which they have listed? 

MR. ELLIS: (Trailways) We challenge the document; and our 
accountants have analyzed this document. And due to the 
lack of information system-wide for the MARTA System, 
they have told us that they're unable to make a judgment 
on that that they would rely on without knowing all the 
System's figures. However, they did state to us that 
there were several .factors in the cost allocation plan 
which they questioned, and we have reserved that issue 
for our supplemental brief or our response. And at that 
time, we will make such response as we deem appropriate. 

[Pages 193-194, transcript, June 15 hearing]. 

Trailways• supplemental brief of July ll, 1978, did not specifically 
challenge MARTA's certification of cost or cost allocation plan, or any 
element thereof. That brief did, however, discuss the issue of whether 
MARTA's charter rate is foreclosing Trailways from the charter industry 
because its charter rate is lower. [Pages 26-37, Trailways response of 
July 11, 1978]. UMTA's regulation does not provide for the setting of 
rates by comparison to those of private carriers. The adequacy of a 
grantee's charter rate should be determined by the expenses incurred by 
the grantee as reflected in Appendix B of the charter regulations, plus 
taxes and depreciation on Federally-assisted equipment and must be 
reasonable by comparison to such documented costs. Private carriers 
determine their charter rates based on their expenses plus a desired 
rate of profit. Both expenses and profit margins vary significantly 
among carriers. UMTA charter regulations attempt to establish a basis 
for a reasonable charter rate for grantees notwithstanding these 
variables in determining rates among competing carriers. As a result 
of the expenses which grantees are required to take into account in 
determining their charter rates:, grantees are placed on an equal footing 
with private carriers with respect to expenses relating to charter service. 
o·ther factors such as the type of equipment offered, the level of service 
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provided and the availability of such service provide additional 
subjective criteria which go into the setting of a charter rate, 
and also provide additional reasons why UMTA grantees should be 
allowed to establish charter rates within the general parameters 
of the regulations. 

On the issue of foreclosure, Trailways states that ..... if the 
intent is to foreclose competition from private carriers by gaining 

10. 

an unfair competitive advantage through a lower price, then the · 
charter rate is illegal." [Page 28, Trailways July 11, 1978 response]. 
It .is within this context that Trailways has specifically challenged 
MARTA's 11Charitable11 rate under which certain non-profit organizations 
are provided charter service at a reduced rate. Section 604.13 of the 
charter regulations incorporates by reference the following provisions 
in each approved charter agreement: 

The grantee, or any operator of project equipment, 
agrees that it will not establish any charter rate 
which is designed to foreclose competition by 
p~i vate charter bus operators. 

The grantee agrees that it will not engage in any 
practice which constitutes a means of avoiding the 
requirements of this agreement or part 604 of the 
Urban Mass Transportation regulations. 

MARTA offers the following justification for the existence of its 
charitable rate: 

Prior to July 1, 1974, the MARTA charter tariff made no 
distinction in its rate structure with respect to the 
status of the chartering party. All groups were quoted 
the same rate and all groups were subject to a three-
hour minimum charge. Under urging by the private sector, 
however, the Board considered and approved a five-hour 
minimum cha.rge, along with various other increases in 
rates for charter service. Currently, the regular rate 
represents a five-hour minimum·time charge, and the special 
rate represents a three-hour minimum time charge. The 
Authority's current charter tariff is attached as Exhibit 
18, and the Authority's proposed tariff charter.is attached 
as Exhibit 19. 

The special rate was established to assist non-prof·;~ 
institutions with limited funds, which have need for 
charter serv.ices of short duration, and who should not, 
in the opinion of MARTA's Board of Directors, pay 
excessive charges for time:not needed or used. Thus, 
elimination of the requirement to pay for time not 
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needed or used is the thrust of the non-profit rates, 
as opposed to any discount or bargain rate. For the 
first three hours, the charge per hour for charter · 
services is the same under the regular rate as it is 
under the special rate. Although the current charge 
for.each additional hour under the special rate is · 
somewhat less than the charge for each additional hour 
under the .regular rate ($15.00 as opposed to $16.00), 
the purpose of the special rate has always been to make 
charter services available to groups and organizations 
with limited funds, an·d for short durations--institutions 
which might otherwise be foreclosed from the use of 
charter service·altogether. 

[Page 20, MARTA response of April 7, 1978]. 

11. 

lt is our find.ing that the above offers an adequate explanation for 
the existence of MARTA's special rate and that because MARTA's overall 
~:harter revenues exceeded costs as required by the regulation, the 
special rate does not foreclose competition by private carriers. Not
~ithstanding this finding, however, UMTA will require that all future 
special rates be submitted with MARTA's request for a charter agreement 
bnd that such rates be specifically approved by UMTA. 
I 

!Finally, Trailways raises the following related issues regarding 
'MARTA's charter operations: MARTA 1 s charter bus operations have 
finterfered with W\RTA 1 s primary urban mass transit functions; MARTA 
lhas provided charter bus service during weekday morning and evening 
!rush hours; MARTA has provided weekday charter. bus service requiring 
!the use of a particular bus longer than six hours in one day; and, 
!MARTA has provided charter bus service beyond its urban. area as if it 
is a private interstate charter bus operation. Section 604.11 of UMTA 
charter bus regulations regulates the use of equipment purchased under 
an UMTA grant as follows: 

(a) No grantee or operator of mass transportation equipment 
shall engage in charter bus operations using buses, 
facilities, or equipment funded under the Act except 
on an incidental basis in strict compliance with the 
Opinion of the Comptroller General of the United States, 
B-160204, December 7, 1966, in Appendix A of this part. 

(bl Any of the following uses of mass transportation buses 
in charter bus operations will be presumed not to be 
incidental: 
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(1) Weekday charters which occur during peak 
morning and eveni_ng rush hours; · 

(2) Weekday charters which require buses to 
travel more than fifty miles beyond the 
grantee's urban area; or 

( 3) Weekday charters which require the use of 
a particular bus for more than a total of 
six hours in any one day. 

To rebut these presumptions a grantee must establish in its agreement 
to UMTA • s sa tis facti on that its proposed use of a bus in charter 
service during weekday rush hours, during weekdays more than fifty 
miles outside of its service area or during weekdays for more than 
six hours in a single day, will not interfere with its obligation to 
provide regular transit service. MARTA's approved charter agreement 

12. 

of December 5, 1977 indicates the peak AM and PM requirement~ for MARTA 
buses. These requirements are further established by MARTA Exhibit 11 
in its April 7, 1978 reply. By those documents, MARTA has shown the times 
during which buses are in service and the times during which tho~e buses 
are idle. By its submittal, MARTA has established that, because of the 
variations of routes serviced by its buses and the differing times during 
which those routes are served, MARTA has as many as 18 buses available 
for charter service during the AM peak period and 32 during the PM peak 
period during weekdays. The evidence presented in this matter does not 
establish that MARTA has booked any charters in excess of those available 
buses or that those buses are not available for transit needs or that 
MARTA has too many transit buses. to meet its peak hour need. In this 
regard, MARTA has established that the peak period must be defined in 
terms of the use of the particular bus in question and has the-refore 
overcome the presumption established in section 604.11 of the charter 
regulationsthat charter service performed during the peak period is a 
violation of the regulations. MARTA has shown that not all buses are 
used throughout the peak rush hour period for the City of Atlanta. Some 
buses operate on as few as one route duri_ng the day and therefore are 
idle during the greater part of the ~ay. This is a natural consequence 
of UMTA's policy of funding a grantee's peak_period requirements. The 
Comptroller General made the following observation of that practice by 
this agency: 

11 0ne of the basic facts of urban mass transportation 
operations is that the need for rolling stock is far 
greater during the morning and evening rush hours on 
weekdays than at any other time. For that reason, 
any system which has sufficient rolling stock to meet 
the weekday rush-hour needs of i·ts customers must have 
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a substantial amount. of equipment standing idle at other 
times, as well as drivers and other personnel being paid 
when there is little for them to do. To resolve this 
inefficient and uneconomical situation., quite a number 
of cities have offered incidental charter service using 
this idle equipment and personnel during the hours when 
the same are not needed for regularly scheduled runs. 
Among the cities so doing are Cleveland, Pittsburgh, 
Alameda, Tacoma, Detroit and Dallas . 

.. Such service contributes to the success of urban mass 
transportation operations by bringing in additional 
revenues and providing full employment to drivers and 
other employees. It may in some cases even reduce 
the need for Federal capital grant assistance. 

[Appendix A, 41 F.R. 14126, April 1, 1976]. 

13. 

If !a bus has served its primary function, the provision of mass transit 
set1vi ce, UMTA has no objections to that bus engaging in the charter 
ope/rations mentioned in section 604.ll(b)l-3. It is therefore our 
finlding that MARTA's charter service does not interfere with its 
prqvision of mass transit service and that such charter service does 
notl violate UMTA charter regulations. 

Tr~ilways also alleges that MARTA's recordkeeping process does not 
di~close the number of miles away from the urban area which a bus 
tr~vels nor do the records show the total number of hours that buses 
ar~ actually used on weekdays. According to Tra.ilways, the records 
ei~her show an estimated duration of the charter trip or no estimation 
at1all. [Page 17, Trailways' complaint, April 7, 1978]. This practice 
by/MARTA is alleged to violate section 604.13 of the charter regulations 
whnch incorporated by reference the requirement that: 

The grantee agrees that it will not engage in any · 
practice which constitutes a means of avoiding the 
requirements of this agreement or part 604 of the 
Urban Mass Transportation regulations. · 

~RTA offers the following response to the Trai lways allega:tion: 

MARTA is not in violation of its Agreement with UMTA, 
s i nee it keeps and has kept cornp 1 ete records of its 
charter service activities. The two items of 
information which both Mr. Spellings and Mr. Bach 
allege were not recorded, were readily available on 
both occasions when those two representatives visited 
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the MARTA Operating Facility at 125 Pine Street, N.E., 
in Atlanta. Those gentlemen examined only the file 
·copies of charter order forms for the period in 
question. However, if these gentlemen had made known 
the ·information which they were seeking, they would 
have been directed to the operating copy of the same 
charter form. On that final copy, actual duration 
and actual distance outside the urban area are recorded,. 
but only after the trip is completed, a practice which 
is only to be expected. Moreover, as the affidavit of 
Mr. H. R. Kilgo, Chief of Charter Services for MARTA, 
shows, (Exhibit 25}, the Trailways representatives 

. asked for operator pay tickets and additional specific 
information which was not kept at the location of 
Mr. Kilgo • s office. They were advised as to Where the 
information was located, but apparently were unwilling . 
to travel to the location where that information was 
kept. 

[Page 26-27, MARTA reply, June 1, 1977]. 

14. 

Based on the above response by MARTA it is our view that MARTA has not 
engaged in a practice which constitutes a means of avoiding requirements 
with respect to its charter recordkeeping process. 

Therefore, for the reasons stated herein, it is our finding that MARTA 
is not in violation of section 3(f) of the UMT Act, UMTA charter 
regulations or MARTA•s charter bus agreement with UMTA. 

Sincerely, 

?~~~~· 
Prentis Cook, Jr. 
Attorney-Advisor 
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I. I S u1m1a ry 

~·'t-~4 
~--

DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION 
URBAN MASS TRANSPORTATION ADMINISTRATION 

WASHINGTON, D.C. 20590 

DECISION 
Charter and Sightseeing Operations 

San Antonio Sightseeing, Inc. 
Complainant 

v. 
San Antonio Metropolitan Transit Authority 

Respondent 

Thi$ decision is the result of an investigation into the sightseeing and charter 
bus~operations of the San Antonio Metropolitan Transit Authority (SAMTA). The 

· inv stigation disclosed that SAMTA has substantially complied with restrictions 
imp sed on charter and sightseeing activities of UMTA grantees by the Urban Mass 
Tramsportation Act of 1964, as amended (49 U.S.C. §1601 et seq.), and the Act's 
imp1ementing regulations •. (49 CFR Part-664) Some -isolated violations. were fou~d
a~dlar~ ordered corrected by this decision; however, no _pattern or practice of 
v1 o1at1ons was disclosed by the investigation into the respondent • s operations. 

II. Background 

UMT received a complaint filed against SAMTA on August 2, 1979, by San Antonio 
Sig tseeing, Inc., (D/B/A B&T Fuller Double-Decker Bus Co.) through its President, 
Tho as M. Fuller. The complainant alleged that SAMTA is engaging in charter and 
sig tseeing operations in violation of 49 U.S.C. l602(f)(Section 3(f) of the Urban 
Mas Transportation Act of 1964, as amended (the 11 UMT Act")), and UMTA's implementing 
reg lations set out in 49 C.F.R. 604 et seq. Specifically, the complainant alleged 
tha SAMTA 11 has pursued and is continuing to pursue acts which are in contravention 
of the express policy of the Administration, in that.said acts are designed to fore-
clo$e willing and able private operators."lf · 

! 

The$e acts are alleged to include: the payment of charter and sightseeing tour dis~ 
cou~ts, conmissions, and tips; the use of Federally funded equipment in SAMTA's sight
see1ng operations; the use of excess buses in charter operations; and the use of 
UMT~ assisted buses for sightseeing and charter operations during peak mass transit 
hours. 

11. I Complaint, page 2 
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2. 

These practices are alleged to be in violation of 49 C.F.R. 604.13(5). The 
Complainant requests that UMTA order the Respondent, SAMTA, to cease and desist 
from engaging in the practices complained of, and require SAMTA to dispose of 
58 transit buses alleged to to be in excess of its needs. ~· 

Supporting the complaint are various· exhibits. 3/ 

III. Responses to the Complaint 

The Respondent, SAMTA, has asserted as its defense that: 

A. 49 C.F.R. Sections 604.13-604.18 do not apply to its charter and sightseeing 
operations since SAMTA conducts no charter or sightseeing operations outside 
the urban area ·within which it provides regularly scheduled mass transportation 
services. 

v B. None of the buses used for sightseeing service are Federally funded• Thus, 
the pre~umptjo~s concerning prohibited uses in Section 604.11 do not apply; 
and the remainder of Part 604 does not apply to sightseeing services since the 
activities are conducted within the recipient's urban area. 

C. SAMTA maximizes the use of non-Federally funded buses in its. charter bus 
operations, with Federally funded buses and equipment used only 11 incidentally. 11 

Such use is in substanial compliance with the Opinion of the Comptroller General 
of the United States., B-160204, December 7, 1966. 

D. All expenses incurred in providing charter and sightseeing services are fully 
allocated and covered by revenue from such operations, in accordance with an 
UMTA approved cost allocation plan, and are assumed entirely by SAMTA with no 
Federal financial participation. 

E. Sightseeing services provided with non-Federally funded buses are specifically 
exc 1 uded from the defi ni ti on of •• charter bus opera ti ens." 

2/ Complaint, pages 4 and 5. 

3/ Those exhibits include Exhibit 1, an Ordiance, which grants a franchise to San 
Antonio Sightseeing, Inc., to operate sightseeing services in the City of San 
Antonio; Exhibit 2, a "special notice" promoting the 50% discount coupons by 
SAMTA; Exhibit 3, a VIA Metropolitan Transit Budget Performance Report dated 
June 1979; Exhibit 4, an advertisement promoting sightseeing 11 Via Gray Line"; 
and Exhibit 5, which includes a newspaper article published in the San Antonio 
Express/News, Sunday, March 18, 1979, a "roster of equipment." 

76 



·a. 

~upporting the response are various exhibits. 4/ 
I 

~upplementary correspondence was submitted by the parties in further support 
pf the positions taken by each party on the issues in this case. 
I 

~V. Findings and Detenninations 

~- Sightseeing Operations 

~o determine whether the complainant's all.ega.tions are stb.stantiated, the 
~nitial point of review must begin with a determination of: (1) whether sight
~eeing operations are eligible for UMTA assistance and (2} whether UMTA 
assistance is be.ing used to. support the sightseeing operations. This question 
linitially leads us first to examine Section 12(c)(6) of th·e UMT Act (49 U.S.C. 
:sl:608(c){6) which defines "mass transportation .. for purposes of detennining · 
lthe el igibi 1 i ty of projects for Federal financial assistance. That section 
1
states: 

The term "mass trans porta ti on" means trans porta ti on by bus, or ra i 1 , or 
other conveyance, either publicly or privately owned which provides to 
the public general or special service (but not includi~g ~chool ~uses 
or charter or sightseeing service) on regular and cont1nu1ng bas1s. 

Section 12{c)(6) thus plainly distinguishes three separate categories of 
bus service from "mass transportation" that are not eligible for UMTA 
assistance: school bus and charter and sightseeing service. However, the UMT 
Act does not define the three ineligible bus services. UMTA has administratively 
defined charter and school bus services in its implementing regulations. See 
49 C.F.R. 604.3 and 605.3. Sightseeing service has not been defined in either 
set of regulations. Also UMTA has not issued any regulations specifically 
on sightseeing services. As a consequence sightseeing service remains undefined. 

4/ Those exhibits are: Exhibit A, a map of the San Antoo.io urbanized area; 
Exhibit 8, a roster of SAMTA equipment; Exhibit C, a map of metropolitan San 
Antonio; Exhibit D, a schedule of service dated September 4, 1979; Exhibit E, 
San Antonio MTA cost allocation plan and audit findings; Exhibit F, a schedule 
of sightseeing services offered by SAMTA: Exhibit G, a advertisement promoting 
San Antonio sightseeing service; Exhibit H, an expense and revenue statement 
for SAMTA charter and sightseeing services; Exhibit I,. tariffs for San Antonio's 
sightseeing services from 1961 through 1979; Exhibit J, portions of an UMTA 
grant application for the amendment of UMTA grant TX-03-0005 proposing the 
retention. of 100 GMC vehicles; Exhibit K, a letter signed by Glen Ford, Regional 
Director, tJMTA, approving the amendment; Exhibit L, a "recap" or revenue miles 
and hours operated; Exhibit M, a final audit report for operating assistance 
grant TX-05-4032; Exhibit N, a response from C. L. Williamson, Comptroller and 
Treasurer, VI~ Metropolitan Transit, to the final audit report and closeout 
to operating assistance grant TX-05-4032; and Exhibit P, a statement by SAMTA 
regarding the use of federally funded buses in school and charter bus operations. 
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4. 

Although the complainant claims that the charter bus regulations apply to 
sightseeing operations, it is our interpretation of the pertinent statutes 
and regulations that sightseeing service is a distinguishable albiet 
ineligible, activity from charter bus operations. Consequently, we conclude 
that the complainant's assertion that UMTA's charter bus regulations, 49 
C.F.R. 604 et ~-· regulate SAMTA's provision of sightseeing service is 
incorrect. This conclusion is supported by comparison of the UMTA definition 
of charter bus operations (see 49 C.F.R. 604.3) with the sigh~seeing operations 
actually conducted by the respondent. · 

Section 604.3 states: 

The respondent's sightseeing operations have fixed itineraries, which users 
must accept or decline as is (see Respondent's response, Exhibit F); the 
respondent's sightseeing activities are not operated under a single contract, 
but under a fare per-person structure (see Respondent's response, Exhibit G); 
and the respondent's sightseeing operations do not restrict service or a bus 
to one group of persons, but accepts customers for the tours by any combination 
of unrelated individuals or groups (see Respondent's response, Exhibit G). 
Thus, SAMTA's sightseeing activities do not meet UMTA's definition of charter 
bus operations. 

For the forgoing reasons we hold that UMTA's charter bus regulations, 49 
C. F. R. 604 et ~-, do not regulate or restrict in any manner SAMTA sight
seeing operations and that for the same reasons section 3(f) of the UMT Act 
does not apply. 

However, as previously shown UMTA cannot provide assistance for sightseeing 
operations (see above regarding §12(c)(6} of the UMT .Act that shows sights~ein~ 
service ineligible for UMTA assistance}. For this reason it is our determ1nat1on 
that UMTA recipients must not use UMTA assisted equipment for sightseeing operatic 

1 
c:. when needed for. mass transportation purposes. But a. question that re~ains is .what 

, 1 uses may the equipment be put to when not needed for mass transportat1on serv1ce. 
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5. 

Wei find that when SAMTA's sightseeing activities are considered in light of 
th1s question that SAMTA's sightseeing activities using UMTA assisted buses 
fa ilities or equipment are governed by analogy by the same principles that' 
go ern recipient's charter bus operations. That is, the buses, facilities or 
eq ipment may be used for any other lawful purpose so long as the other use 
is not in derogation of mass transportation services provided by the recipient 
or against any UMTA regulation or statutory requirement. Thus, we hold that 
re ipients may use the UMTA·assisted buses, facilities and equipment for 
si htseeing service so long as the use is in strict compliance with the 
De ember, 1966 decision of the Comptroller-General of the United States. 5/ 

Th~ underlying principle by which UMTA defines 11 incidental use 11 was set out 
in) the Comptroller's-General Decision cited earlier. That principle is: 

I 

II • • .any 1 awful use. Of project egui pment whiCh does not 
detract from or interfere with the urban mass transportation 
service for which the equipment is needed would be deemed 
an incidental use of such equipment, and that such use of 
project equipment is entirely permissible under [the] 
legislation. What uses are in fact incidental, under this 
test, can be determined only on a case-by-case basis ... §_I 

Thlerefore, whether UMTA-assisted buses, facilities or equipment have been 
us 1~d for sightseeing service is not the crucial question. What is crucial 
is

1 

whether such use has detracted from the purpose for which UMTA provided 
the assistance, i.e., provision of mass transportation. If the sightseeing 
activities have not been in derogation of that purpose the use is then 
incidental, and thus permissible. 

THe record shows that most of the Respondent's sightseeing operations do not 
i~1volve UMTA assistance. 7/ However, the Respondent did admit that it uses 
UTA-assisted patrol cars-in sightseeing operations. The complainant has also 
claimed that UMTA-assisted facilities support sightseeing operations. . 

~~ Op. Com. Gen. No. B-16020~, December 7, 1966. See 49 C.F.R. Part 604, 
A pendix A {1976). Also it does not follow that the UMTA charter bus regulation 
( 9 C.F.R. Part 604) would apply to the Respondent's sightseeing ~perati~n, . 
especially since (i) Congress distin~uished between charter and s1ghtseemg serv1ce 
ii section 12{c)(6) of the UMT Act; (ii) section 3{f) of the Act refers only to 
.. harter bus operations 11 and the "intercity charter bus industry," without any 
r ference to sightseeing servi~e; and (iii) t~~ regulations in their entirety refer 
o .ly to "charter bus operations." 

I 
·I·. 

I 

6f See Appendix A of 49 C. F. R •. Part 604. 
I 

7~' See Respondent's response, Exhibit E, that contains a cost allocation plan for 
S MrA operations including charter and sightseeing service, plus a letter from 
U TA's regional office approving the plan _ 
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6. 

The Respondent states that UMTA assisted patrol cars were used for sightseeing 
oper~tions ~nly when the cars would otherwise be idle; i.e., not needed in 
supp rt of mass transportation service (Respondent's response, p. 15). We 
find nothing in the record that contradicts the respondent's assertion. As 
a co sequence, we c~nclude that the complainant's alle9ation of the wrongful 
use . f patrol cars 1s not substantiated. 

i 
i 

With! regard to the use of other equipment or of facilities involving UMTA 
assi~tance, no evidence has shown a use for sightseeing operations that 
detricted from mass transportation service. Thus, we conclude that these 
alle ations of mi:suse .. of UMTA-assisted support facilities are also not 
subs anti a ted • 

B. rromotional Devices 

The ~omplainant also alleges that the respondent uses promotional devices such 
as t~pping, discounts, and commissions to encourage patronage of sightseeing 
and charter operations and that such devices violate UMTA's requirements. · 
The record shows that the costs for such devices are fully and properly allocated 
to n~n-Federal sources, and separated from mass transportation operations of 
the espondent. This is apparent from UMTA's review of the Respondent's 
app\cations for assiStance which shows that UMTA has granted a ·level of funding 
apprepriate only for the Respondent's needs to fulfill its mass transportation 
oblipation. 

i 

In a~dition, the Respondent in an effort to ensure that it would not use UMTA 
assi~tance to support non-eligible activities, formulated and submitted to UMTA 
a co~t allocation plan showing that both its sightseeing and charter bus 
oper~tions are not supported by UMTA assistance. That plan was reviewed and 
apprpved by UMTA auditors. (Respondent's response, Exhibit E). 

l 
Sine~ the promotional devices have been shown not to involve programs or 
acti~ities that are supported with UMTA assistance, those devices clearly do 
not !violate any UMTA sightseeing or charter operation statute or regulation. 

i 

C. ~harter Bus Operations 

The !complainant alleges that respondent's charter bus operations violate UMTA's 
cha~ter bus regulation including sectio.ns 604.13 through 604.18. 

The !Respondent disagrees; respondent states that section 604.13 through 604.18 
do ~o. t apply to its operation since the respondent conducts all its operations 
wit~in its urban area, and that in addition, section 604.11 allows the charter 
bus 1uses conducted with UMTA-assisted buses, facilities and equipment on an 
inc~dental basis. We agree with the respondent that since it conducts all its 
act~vities (c~arter, sightseeing, and urban mass transportation) within its urban 
are~, the principle by which its charter operations are regulated is found in 
49 q.F.R. 604.11 relating to 11 inc1dental use ... 
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7. 

However, SAMTA has admitted that it has either inadvertently or due to 
exceptional circumstances used UMTA-assisted buses for charter bus service 
within its urban area during peak hours in "isolated instances." These uses 
trigger the presumption in 49 C.F.R. 604.11(b)(l). ~ 

Subparagraph (a) of that provision demands "strict compliance11 with the 
Comptroller's-General decision, cited earlier (not approximate compliance 
or substantial compliance). 9/ However, nothing in the record counters the 
respondent• s characterization that the uses were other than "isolated." As 
a consequence, we conclude that the uses were violations, but violations 
that were not part of a continuing pattern that indicated disregard of the 
restrictions imposed on the Respondent's charter operations. 10/ On the 
contrary, the respondent's overall efforts with regard to its-administratinn 
~nd management of non-mass transportation operations show that the respondent 
seeks to assure that those operations stand on their own, apart from urban 
mass transportation operations, without use of UMTA assistance. llJ 
Under these circumstances the Respondent must institute such additional 
measures that will prevent future violations. 

Conclusion 

The Respondent's sightseeing and charter bus operations are conducted 
substantially in compliance with UMTA's restrictions and limitations. However, 
the Respondent has admitted isolated uses of UMTA-assisted mass transportation 
vehicles during peak hours in non-mass transportation related operations. 
Since the uses were not explained so to overcome the presumption of 49 C.F.R. 
604.ll(b)(l), we find that the uses violated the charter bus regulations, 
49 C.F.R. 604.ll(a). 

8/ 49 C.F.R. 604.ll(b)(l) states: "Any of the following uses of mass 
transportation buses in charter bus operations will be presumed not to be 
incidental: (1) Weekday charters which occur during peak morning and evening 
rush hours; ••• " 

~ 49 C.F.R. 604.ll(a) 

10/ 49 C.F.R. 604.43{c) requires: "If the Administrator should determine that 
a-violation has occurred, he will include a statement as to whether there has 
been a continuing pattern of violations." 

ll! See footnote 7. 
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8. 

The Respondent is hereby ordered to submit a plan to UMTA for approval that 
will provide additional safeguards so that isolated or inadvertent violations 
do not re-occur •. Such plan shall be submitted within 30 days of receipt of 
this decision. 

Finally, we conclude that all other alleged violations are not substantiated. 

Approved by: ~M#-.r.ef- ~-~ 
Margaret' M. Ayres 
Chief Counsel 
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DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION 
URBAN MASS TRANSPORTATION ADMINISTRATION 

300 SOUTl-1 WAO<ER ORIVE-SUrrE 1740 
., --=~ .... ~ 

REGION V 

Mr. Adam J. Milewski 
President 
Valley Transit Corp. 
9001 West 79th Place 
Justice, Illinois 60458 

Dear Mr. Milewski: 

CHICAGO, IUJNOIS 60606 

JUt 11 1980 

Your 1 etter of May 2, 1980 addressed to _our Chief Counse1 , 
Margaret M. Ayres, regarding charter business of the Chicago Transit 
Authority has been forwarded to this office for disposition. Your 
allegations will be investigated shortly and the results of our 
examination will be communicated to you as soon as possible. 

I have completed an investigation of the complaint communicated 
to me in a telephone conversation with you held on May 28, 1980. You 
informed me at that time that the C.T.A. had successfully bid on a 
contract to·furnish bus service to a Rotary convention that was held 
in Chicago early in June~ Due to the number of buses required to pro
vide the needed service you were concerned that the C.T.A. would have 
to divert a large number of buses from scheduled service, an action 
that would be contrary to regulations issued by the Urban Mass Trans
portation Administration. 

Ronald F. Bartkowicz, C.T.A. First Deputy General Attorney, informed 
me that the C.T.A. subcontracted a portion of the subject charter service 
to the Wi"llett Bus Company. Even with the subcontracted service it was 
necessary for the C. T .A. to use as many as fif.:teen buses at any one time 
during the contract period (May 31- June 5, 1980). ·The C.T.A. infonned 
us that none of the buses dedicated to the charter operation were removed 

·from scheduled service and that all• charter. vehicles were available from 
a pool of extra buses that are usually available during peak hours. In 
such circumstances it is permissible for UMTA grantees to engage in charter 
work provided such operations otherwise comport with the terms of our 
regulations. 
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Mr. Bartkowicz also informed me that Valley Transit was accorded 
an opportunity to bid on the Rotary subcontract but chose not to do so. 

If you have additional information or any ev·idence that would be 
contrary to the representations made by C.T.A~ I would appreciate your 
forwarding such information to me. 

V ry truly yours. 

~/fl'"WC/ ~ L < J. I 
Sa ·ord Ef!ai~· 
Jrgional Counsel 
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DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION 
URBAN MASS TRANSPORTATION ADMINISTRATION 

'VASHINGTON, D.C. 20590 

Mr. Wayne Smith, President 
United Bus Owners of America 
Suite 201 
600 Water Street, S.W. 
Washington, D.C. 20024 

Dear Mr. Smith: 

JUllliE 

Thank you for the explanation and comments on the United Bus Owner•s 
proposals to modify the UMTA charter bus regulation, 49 CFR Part 604, 
that you and Paul Nagle provided us at our recent meeting on June 30, 
1980. I wish to confirm the points of discussion we arrived at in the 
meeting about the UBOA proposals and on other matters that have come up 
about the operation and enforcement of the present UMTA charter regulation. 

As we noted in the meeting modification of sections 604.11 and 604.15 as 
UBOA suggested in its April 16, 1980 position paper to the Administrat9r, 
is not authorized by the Urban Mass Transportation Act of 1964, as · 
amended, 49 USC 1601 et· seq. (the UMT Act). The proposed standards for 
protection of private charter bus operators of 11 adverse effect 11 prop'osed 
for inclusion in sections 604.11 and 604.15 and of 11 affirmative action" 
proposed for inclusion in section 604.15 of the regulation appear to be 
a departure from sections 3(e), 3(f), 12(c)(6), or any other provisions 
of the UMT Act. 

As we also discussed, our current regulation does not require that 
private operators alleging violations of UMTA charter bus provisions be 
represented by legal counsel when filing and pursuing administrative 
complaints with UMTA. We feel the process is an informal one which does 
not require formal procedures like those of the Federal district courts.·· 
Also, UMTA cannot comment on the other UBOA proposals since federal 
rulemaking procedures require that UMTA obtain the comments and 'proposals 
of all interested parties to the regulation before UMTA takes any position 
on possible revision of the regulation. However, we will include a 
summary of the UBOA proposals i.n our notice proposing revision to the 
charter bus regulation that UMTA plans to publish in ·the Federal Register 
at the end of August, 1980 and request the public•s comments on the 
proposals. 

UMTA may hold a hearing in connection with any revision of the regulation. 
If we do, UBOA along with other interested parties would be invited to 
testify. 
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With regard to your request that UBOA staff members be allowed to 
assist UMTA staff in rewriting the regulation, I am unable to accept 
your offer of assistance. The federal rulemaking process requires us to 
follow prescribed procedures that do not permit actions that might give 
the appearance that UMTA is giving an advantage to any one interested 
party. To accept UBOA's assistance might give that app.earance. 

I wish to thank you for the invitation for members of UMTA's legal staff 
to attend the UBOA regional conferences in September ·to explain the 
operation of the proposed revision. Mr. Ernesto Fuentes will attend the 
Washington, D.C. conference. We have tenatively scheduled Mr. Sanford Balick, 
the UMTA Region V Counsel for the Chicago conference and Ms. Melanie 
Morgan, the UMTA Region IX Counsel for the San Francisco conference. Mr: Balick 
and Ms. Morgan's schedules must be confirmed. Mr. Fuentes will call you 
within the next two weeks to confirm the.schedules or give you the names 
of the persons who will be attending in their places. 

Finally, as you may know, Mr. Munter and Mr. Fuentes have been working 
with Paul Nagle to keep UBOA informed about the status of several complaints 
that have been pending with UMTA for some time. Please feel free to 
continue to work with them on these matters. 

I thank you for pointing out areas where the UMTA charter bus regulation 
may merit revision. The UBOA position paper and comments you made 
during our April and ·June meetings with UMTA's Administrator will be 
fully considered when we draft the proposed revisions to the charter-· 
regulation. I also will look forward to UBOA's additional comnents 
during the rulemaking process that will follow. 
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Sincerely, 

J/-c~rt«t1."'Jn-£.. ~/4 
Margaret M. Ayres 
Chief Counsel 



Mr. Irwin J. Borof 
Attorney at law 
125 '!Welfth Street 
Suite 105 

DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION 
URBAN MASS TRANSPORTATION ADMINISTRATION 

WASHINGTON, D.C. 20590 

.. {" 
·~;.... 

"\J 

Oak.l.arrl, California 94607 

Subject: Definition of "Urban Area" 
- t.:MrA Olarter Bus Regulations 

Dear Mr. Borof: 

'lhis is in resp::>nse to your letter, dated Septarber 13, 1979 to 
Ms. Melanie M:>rgan UMrA 's Region IX Counsel, arrl your letter of 
~ch 24, 1980 to UMrA's Region 'IX Office ooncem:ing the charter bus 
operations of Alam:;dq-contra Costa County Transit District (AC Transit). 

Your September 13, 1979 letter objects to the interpretation of "l.ll:ban 
.area" for AC Transit advanced in an Au.:JUst 31, 1979 letter to you fran 
Ms. Melanie M:>rgan. The regional counsel described tl'Y? urban area, for 
purp::>ses of the t.JMrA cl:la.p:er bus regulation, within which AC Transit 
provides regularly sched.uled ma.ss transp::>rtation service as the San 
Francisoo-Oaklarrl urbanized area. 

As you oorrectly pointed out in your letter, the Urban Mass Transportation 
Act of 1964, as arrerrled, 49 usc 1602 (f) , requires inposition of certain 
arrangercents on UMI'A. recipients throl.l:,3h a special agreercent with tM:m to 
prevent foreclosure of privately owned operators by a grantees who engage 
in intercity charter bus operations. The standard that triggers inposition 
of such arrangements is foum in Section 3 (f) of the UMl' Act, 49 usc §1602 (f) 1 
it states: 

••. the applicant or any public bcx:1y receiving ••• assistance for the 
purchase or operation of buses ••• shall as a condition of such 
assistance enter into an agreenent with the Secretal:y that such public 
body ••• will oot engage in charter bus operations outside the urban 
area within which it provides regularly scheduled mass transportation . 
service, except as provided in the agreenent auth:>rized by this subsection. 

87 



2. 

'!be t:.JM:rn. regulation pra:nulgated to irrplatent that provision, defines urban 
area in section 49 CFR §604.3, as follows: 

"urban area 11 nea.ns the entire area in which a local public lx:xly 
is authorized by appropriate local, State an::1 Federal law to. provide 
r arl scheduled mass trans rtation service. 'Ibis :incluies all 
areas which are either: (a within an 11urbanized area" as defined 
arrl fixed in acex>rdance with 23 CFR Part 470, subpart B; or (b) 
within an "w:ban area" or other build-up place as determ:ined by the 
SecretaJ:y urrler section 12 (c) (4) of the Urban Mass Transportation Act 
of 1964, as amended (49 U.S.C. 1608(c) (4)). 

The statute arrl the regulation together then provide a two-part starx:iard 
that triggers inp:>sition of the additional "fair and equitable ~ts 
over grantees who engage in intercity charter bus operations. That is, 
the recipient must engage in charter bus operations outside the area in 
which it is both (a) providin3 mass transportation service, aixl (b) authorized 
to provide the IIE.ss transp::>rtation service. Since the urbanized area in 
which AC Transit's district is located is the oakland-San Franciscx:> urbanized 
area as defined by the u.s. Bureau of the Census (See 49 tJ$C 12 (c) (11), the 
t:JMm. charter regulation allows AC Transit to conduct charter bus operatiOns 
in San FranciSCX> without the additional arrangerents required of grantees 
who corrluct intercity charter bus operations so lon;r as the other p::>rtions of 
AC Transit's charter operations do not go outside its w:ban area. 

Further, we have reviewed the enablin;r statute of AC Transit (foun::l in 
California Public Utilities Ccx:le (CPU) §24501 et ~·) to determine the area 
in which AC Transit is authorized to operate IIE.ss transit service. Section 
24561, which you cited to support your position, only refers to the geographic 
area that IIE.Y be part of· the AC Transit district; we do not find in that section 
any ir.dication of the area where AC Transit IIE.Y provide mass transportation 
service. However, Section 25801 does address that question. It states: 

A district IIE.Y acquire, oonstruct, own, operate, control or use 
rights of way, rail lines, bus lines, stations, platfonns, switches, 
yards, tenn.i.nals, an::1 aey an::1 all other facilities necessary or 
convenient for transit service within or partlY witlout the district ••• 

Although, §25801 does. not deliniate the extent of the pennissible operations 
it may corrluct outside its district, it is clear that service ~or its district 
can entail operations "partly without the district." . 

While this interpretation that may sean, on the surface, incongroous, the 
interpretation is consistent with other California transit districts enablin:1 
statutes. For instance, the San Francisco Bay Area Transit District (BARr) 
is ~ed to operate "in the eighty-four {84) in::lividual units of county~ 
city-and-col.IDty, and city governnents located in the area ... althou.;Jh its . 
service must be coordinated with that of other transit facilities in areas 
to be served. 11 CPU §28501. This area includes anong others the AC Transit 
District. CPU Code §28504. 
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In oonnection with this you have cited a prior UMrA decision involving 
tl'e Chicago Transit Auth:>rity (erA) in support of your position that 'AC 
Transit's urban area should be defined as the AC Transit district. In 
that February 11, 1977 decision, t:JMrA fourxi, as you oorrectly pointed 
out, that CTA was limited to conducting charter operations without the 
additional arrangem:mts inp:>sed by 49 CFR §604.13, to the area where it 
was providing aui:l'x)rized mass transportation services. HcMever, on 
pages':2 and 3 of the decision, we foum against erA because it did not 
have state or local authority to provide transportation service in the 
area where the disputed erA charter operations were occm.:ring. erA was 
required by state statute to obtain local agrearents to oonduct the 
transportation services into these areas. erA did not show it obtained· 
the agreements. AC Transit;. on the other hand, is auth::>rized to conduct 
mass transportation service into San Francisoo without agreatents like · 
those in CTA. As a consequence, we find that the erA decision does not 
support your position. -

Yoli have also raised the question of whether Ms. M:>rgan' s interpretation 
of the charter rS3Ulation would allc::M AC Transit to run freely within 
the five-county San Francisoo bay area. Construction of the state 
statute is ultimately the prerogative of the california state gove.:rrmen.t 
and state courts; h::Mever, our review i.niicates that the state statute 
places no specific limits on AC Transit's operations outside its district. 
In fact, CPU §25801, cited earlier, appears to allow AC Transit's nass 
transit operations to exteni to any place in the state of. california so 
long as the transit operations are "necessary and oonvenient" for the AC 
Transit district and only "partly without the district;" Thus, in 
oonsidering whether AC Transit's charter operations :in a particular case 
are corrlucted within its urban area, we would primarily oonsider whether 
AC Transit was actually providing mass transportation services to an 
area where it is auth:>rized to provide service. If an affinnative 
answer is obtained to this question, AC Transit is within its urban area 
for charter bus purp::>ses, and nay operate charter bus services without 
the additional arrangem:mts inp:>sed on intercity charter operators by 
section 3 (f) of the tm Act. 

A closely related question you have raised is whether only two mass 
transportation lines nm fran AC Transit's district to. two p::>ints in San 
Francisco are sufficient to allow AC Transit to consider the entire city 
of San Francisoo part of its urban area. Since San Francisoo is part of 
AC Transit's urbanized area the anount of service provided is not relevant. 
Hcwever, the question is relevant to situations in which 'AC Transit 
might provide charter service to an area not part of the oakland-San 
Francisco urbanized but where AC Transit provides authorized nass transportation 
services. Of particular relevance to this question is the fact that 
neither section 3 (f) of the UMl' Act nor the definition of u:t:ban area in 
tm tMrA charter bus re:JU].ation, 49 CFR 604.3, place a quantative.mini.mum 
of mass transportation service that must be provided to an area before 
it satisfies the "providing nass transportation service" standard of the 
statute or regulation. 
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For the foregoing. reasons, -we find that San Franciscx:> is for charter bus 
purp:>ses part of N:. Transit's urban area. Further -we find that to the 
extent that AC Transit exten:1s its regularly scheduled mass transix>rtati.on 
service to other cities, N:. Transit's urban area, for charter bus purp:>ses 
will ~ to incltrle tb:>se additional areas. Finally, -we find that 
the oakland/San Francisco urbanized area oonstitutes 'AC. Transit's urban 
·area for charter purp:>ses. 

In your March 24, 1980 letter you opp:>se the award of t.MrA assistance to 
'AC Transit. You raise as the bases for that opp:>sition similar questions 
raised in your Septanber 13, 1979 letter about AC Transit's charter 1:us 
operations. 

'!he March letter ·Claims that AC Transit has falsely stated that it 
conducts all its charter operations with its urban area. In support of 
that allegation you claim AC Transit pe:i:'fonns oontracts with BARr and 
others that take AC Transit out of its service area arrl that the oontracts 
are in the nature of charter bus services. You also claim that you have 
a right to a hearing' on these matters before UMrA. Finally, you state . 
that you have been tmable to get AC Transit to define its service area 
for you for charter bus purposes .. 

we are aware that· AC Transit is corrlucting sate feeder line service for 
BARr. HcMever, the nature of tb:>se feeder lines serve the irass tran.sp:>rtation 
needs of BARr's patrons who disanbark at BAR!' stations in .Alarre:ia and~ 
Contra Costa Counties am continue to p:>ints within and without the AC 
Transit district. Your challenge to these BARr contracts raises the 
question of whether such service is "mass tran.sp:>rtation service," as 
defmed in the UMI' ·Act, 49 USC 1608 (c) (6) or "charter bus operations," 
as defined in the UMrA charter bus regulation, 49 CFR 604.3. '!he distinction 
is obviously crucial, si.n::e if the oontracts are mass tra.I15J:X>rtation 

. services the charter regulation does oot apply. 

On the other hand, if you believe the services are charter operations 
oonducted in violation of UMrA' s restrictions, you may file a ccmplaint 
with us under the proceCiures of 49 CFR 604.42 and -we will investigate 
the matter. Before -we can do so, we need the ihfonnation specified by 
49 CFR 604.40; that is, we need a detailed description of the services 
AC Transit oonducts for BARr that are objectionable to you, the sane 
type of infonnation about the "other" contract 'WOrk you referred to. 
The descriptions must be sufficient to enable the .Administrator to nake 

90 



a preliminary detenn:i..pation as to whether probable cauSe exists to 
believe that a violation has taken place. See 49 CFR §604.40. 

5. 

Closely related to this is your request for a hearing to detenni.ne the 
urban area of AC Transit cited in both your septe:nber and March letters. 
'1he t.1MrA charter bus regulation provides tw::> different ~ssible opporb.mi ties 
to you for participation in a hear:ing. · 

Section 604.17 of the charter ~tion provides an ~ty for 
private operators to cc:rrm:mt in a hearing on a grant applicant's charter 
operations at the tine a grant application is made to UM:I2\. However, 
those ccmrents must be sul:mi tted to the applicant, not to UMrA. 49 CFR 
604 .17. Also, the charter regulation provides that the Administrator of 
UMrA may l:old, if he deems it necessary, an evidentiary hearing pursuant 
to a charter bus canplaint investigation. Su::h a hearing is rot a right 

. to the parties but is discretionary for the Administrator, to enable lrlm 
to gather the necessary evidence to make a decision on a CXlTiplaint. 49 
CFR 604. 42. Since there is no canplaiDt involved at this t:ine a hearing 
is not appropriate tmder this provision.. Further, even if a c:::crtplaint · 
were involved, a hearing may oot be held if it were deemed by UMrA as 
unnecessary, 49 CFR 604.42. 

Thank you for your patience in this matter. If you have any questiOns 
you may continue to direct them to t:.MrA's Region IX office. If you wish 
to file a cx:xrplaint you may send it to me and after docketing in this. 
office we will transmit it to the Region IX office for mvestigation. 
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Sincerely, 

d.t~J<RO. ~/~ 
Margaret M. Ayres 
Chief COunsel 



Paul Nagle, Esq. 
Unit~d Bus Owner of Anerica 
Suite 201 
500 Water Street 
Washington, DC 20024 

Dear Mr. Nagle:· 

·uta EBl 

'This is in response to UBOA'e question asking whether it is 
~roper·for the Des Moines Metropolitan Transit Authority 
(MTA) to use UMTA assistance for express commuter service 
between Altoona, Iowa, a town that is outside of MTA's urban 

.area, and downtown Des ~foines. 

The fact that the service goes outside the MTA urban area is 
significant if the Altoona express may be characterized as a 
•charter bus operation,• as defined in UMTA's charter bus 
regulations, 49 C.F.R. Part 604. This is· crucial since 
charter bus operations that go outside of a grantee's urban 
area trigger the provisions of Section 3(£) of the Urban 
Mass Transportation Act of· 1964 (UMT Act), as amend•d• 49 
USC '1601 et ~· and the UMTA charter regulations, 49 
c. F.R. Part 6-<rq,- These statutory and regulatory provisions 
impose certain restrictions on UMTA grantee intercity 
charter operations. Charter operations are defined as: 

••• {T)ransportation by bus of a group of p~rson who, 
pursuant lC· a cor::.1,vn purpose, ~rd m~~cr a si-::~!E' 
contract, at a fixed charge for the vehicles or 
service, in accordance with the carrier's tariff have 
acquired the exclusive use of a bus to travel together 
under an itinerary, either agreed on in advance, or 
modified after having left the place of origin. 
(This includes the incidental use of buses for the 
exclusive transportation of achool students, personnel 
and equipment.) 

49 C.F.R. 604.3(b}. 

Information obtairted from the MTA indicates that the Altoona 
express does not meet that definition. It is a fixed route 
service that runs at prescribed times during the weekdays, 
charging passengers on a fare per person basis. The service 
is open to all nembers of the general public, with no 
restriction based any gioup menbership. 

92 



Since the Altoona express does not ~eet that defin~tion, the 
statutory and regulatory provisions relating to charter bus 
operations do not apply. 

Also, conparision of the service to the definition of "mass 
transportation" found in the UMT Act leads us to believe 
that the service is mass transportation and thus the proper 
subject of UMTA assistance. Section 12(c)(6) of the UMT Act 
provides: 

The tern cass transportation means transportation by 
by bus ••• either publicly or privately owned, which 
provides to the public either general or special 
service (but not including echool buses or charter or· 
sightseeing service) on a regular and continuing basis. 

Since, as shown above, the Altoona expres~ provides service 
to the general public on a regular and continuing basis and 
does not oeet the definition of charter bus operations, it 
appears that it is not improper to support the service with 
UMTA financial assistance. 

It m~y be, however, that the service is in conflict w~th 
Section 3{e) of the UMT Act, 49 USC 1602(e). That section 
provides: 

No Financial assistance shall be provided under this 
Act to any state or local p~blic body or agency thereof 
for the purpose, directly or indirectly, ••• of provid
inF by contract or otherwise for the operation of mass 
transportation facilities or equipment in competition 
'-'itl:, or supplencntary to, the service provided by an 
existing oass transportation company, unless the 
Secretary finds that such prograt:l to the maximua extent 
feasible, provides for the participation of private 
~ass transportation companies 

The infornation provided to us by the MTA indicates that 
establishnent of the service was made ~fter p_p_blic notice 
~as given of MTA's intention to initiat~ the Al~oona 
express. No objection t9 or request for participation in 
provision of the service was filed ~y a private. transpor
tation conpany. As a consequence it does not appear that 
any private operator has been harmed by this MTA operation,: 
and thus the service does not appear to conflict with 
Section 3(e). However, if UBOA has additional information 
relating to compliance with this provision, it should be 
submitted to this office so that we can thoroughly consider 
the natter. 
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I hope this answers UBOA's question. If any other questions 
come to mind please feel free to call me. 

Sincereiy. 

Ernesto v. Fuentes 



US. Department 
of Transportation 

Urban Mass 
Transportation 
Administration 

Anthony R. Ameruso, P.E. 
Commissioner 
New York City Department of 

Transportation 
40 Worth Street 
New York, New York 10013 

Dear Commissioner Ameruso: 

Region 2 
Connecticut, 
New York, New Jersey, 
Puerto Rico, Virgin Islands 

JAN 1 6 1981 

26 Federal Plaza 
Suite 14-110 
New York, New York 10278 

-··) 

: { •• ·.' c 
• .. . '. '-..\ 

\ 

This is in response to your letter of Nov~ll_lb.~r .. 3, ... 1980, .w:hich--r_~quested 
guidance on several issues relating to the charter bus provisi_pns of the 
Urban Mass Transportation Act of 1964, as amen e --(11tnelfi.ff·A~t"), 49 U.S. C. 
1602(£) and 1608(c)(6), and the UMTA charter bus regulation, 49 CFR Part 604. 
I am providing specific answers to your enumerated questions, below, However, 
it is important to first explain the basis for UMTA's requirements and summarize 
what- the requirements actually are. 

UMTA's charter bus regulation is designed to implement two prov1s1ons of the 
UMT Act. The first provision, section 12(c)(6), states that "mass transportation" 
service, which is eligible for UMTA funding, does not include II • • • charter 
or sightseeing service". 49 U.S.C. 1608(c)(6). The Comptroller General 
of the United States has interpreted this provision to disallow bhe use of 
financial assistance provided under the UMT Act for the purchase of buses 
intended for use in charter service, but to allow, ev.en encourage, the 
"incidental" use of such buses for charter service so long as such service 
"does not detract from or interfere with urban mass transportation service 
for which the equipment is needed." Opinion of the Comp. Gen., B-160204 
(December 7, 1966). This "incidental use" restriction applies to all UMTA 
grantees, and is set forth in the charter regulation at 49 CFR 604.11. 

The second provision of the UMT Act on. which the regulation. is based is 
section 3(f), which is a special provision enacted to protect private operators 
in the intercity charter bus industry from being foreclosed from intercity 
charter bus business by competition from federally assisted public bodies 
and those private carriers who operate urb,f-n' mass transportation services 
on their behalf, 49 u.s.c~ 1602(£). Under this provision, all grantees who 
receive funds under the UMT Act or the Federal-Aid Highway Act for "the 
purchase or operation of buses," must enter into a charter bus agreement with 
the Secret.ary of Transportation to protect private intercity charter bus 
operators. The terms of this "agreement" are set forth in 49 CFR 604.13, 
and become operative if a recipient of capital or operating assistance, or 
an operator on its behalf, engages in charter bus operations outside its 
urban area, and derives $15,000 or more annually from such operations. 
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In the event that a grantee or an opera;or on its behalf engages in 
incidental charter bus operations outside its urban area, and derives 
$15,000 or more annually from such operations, the regulation requir-es 
that the grantee submit to UMTA the following: (1) a statement with 
respect to notice to private charter bus operators regarding the 
proposed or existing incidental charter operations (49 CFR 604.15); 
(2) a certification of costs (49 CFR 604.3, 604,15(a)(3)); and (3) a 
cost allocation plan (49 CFR 604,3, 604.15(p} (4}). · 

The answers to your enumerated questions are as follows: 

1. What is the definition- of "mass transportation service?" 

The term "mass transportation" is defined in section 12(c)(6) of the 
UMT Act as follows: 

" transportation by bus, or rail, or other conveyance, 
either publicly or privately owned, which provides to the 
public general or special service (put not including school 
buses or charter or. sightseeing service) on a regular and 
continuing basis." 49 U.S.C. 1608(c)(6). 

While the statutory definition of "mass transportation" is silent on the 
matter, it is important to note that UMTA is authorized to assist mass 
transportation services only within urban areas, and not between cities. 
Thi.~ is evident from the congressional statement of Findings and Purposes 
contained in section 2 of the UMT Act (49 U.S.C. 1601) and from the 
incl~sion in the Act of a separate program of assistance for intercity 
bus service in section 22 (49 U.S.C. 1618). 

2. What is the definition of "incidental charter use?" 

The UMTA charter bus regulation defines "incidental" as charter bus 
operations which do not interfere.with regularly scheduled service 
(49 CFR 604.3), and lists three charter uses that are presumed not 
to be incidental: 

(1) Weekday charters which occur during peak morning~and evening 
rush hours; 

(2) Weekday charterswhich require buses to travel more than 
fifty miles beyond the grantee's urban area; and 

(3) Weekday charterswhich require the use'of a particular bus 
for more than a total of six hours in any one day. 49 CFR 604.ll(b). 

Any other charter use would be considered an "incidental use," and is 
allowed, so long as the other requirements of the regulation are met. 
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3. What geographical entity comprises the. "urban area" for purposes of 
operators assisted by the New York City Department of Transportation-? 

The definition of ''urban· .area" for purposes of the UMT Act is left to 
UMTA's discretion, 49 U.S.C. 1608(c)(~O) •. The charter bus regulation 
defines "urban·arca" as follows: 

" • • • the entire area in which a local public body is 
authorized by appropriate local,. State and Federal law 
to provide regularly scheduled mass transportation service. 
This includes all areas which are either (a) within an 
'urbanized area' as defined and fixed in accordance with 
23 CFR Part 470, subpart B; or (~) within an ~urban area' 
or other built-up place as determined by the Secretary under 
(section 12 ·of the UMT Act)." 49 CFR 604.3. 

Section 12 (c) (10) of the UMT Ac·t defines "urban area" as follows: 

II • any .area ••• which is appropx:iate, in the judgment 
of.the Secretary, for a public transportation system to serve 
commuters or others in the locality taking into consideration 
t.he local patterns and trends of urban growth." 49 U.S.C. 
1608(c)(l0)! · 

In considering the applicability of these definitions to the New York 
City area, we have determined that for purposes of the charter regulation 
and the "incidental use" presumption, the urban area for New York City 
Department of Transportation should coincide with the Tri-State New York
Northeast New Jersey-Connecticut urbanized area. This is conditioned, 
however, on the operators' authority to provide service within the 

ent~r: ar~a. However, our definition of "urban area" also inciudes those 
areas where an operator·actually provides mass transportation services 
even thoug~ it hs no explicit authority to do so, so long as it is not' 
prohibited from doing so. ·· 

. I 

4. What are the UMTA regulations on the scheduled use of UMTA-funded buses 
as opposed to charter use? While there are no regulations that.bear on 
this specific question, the definition of "mass transportation" service 
provides guidance on the allowed uses of UMTA-funded buses. That is, 
UMTA-funded buses can only be used for scheduled services that fall 
within our definition of. "mass transportation." By analogy with the 
"incidental use" res·trictions, however, such buses may be· used for 
other purposes when not needed for mass transportation. That is, an 
operator who is authorized to provide regularly scheduled intercity 
service on weekends, for example, could do so·with Ul1TA~ssisted buses. 
However, it would have to be demonstrated that no UMTA operating 
assistance is attributed to the provision of such non-mass transportation 
service. In addition; where such service competes with or supplements 

97 



-4-

the services provided by other private,. non-subsidized mass transportation 
companies, the requirements of section 3(e} of the UMT Act apply. (42__ 
U.S.C. 1602(e)). UMTA will shortly issue a Notice of Proposed Rule- · 
making implementing section 3(_e}, and we anticipate that the proposed 
regulation will provide guidance in this area, 

5. What restrictions apply under the following circumstances: · 

(a) ·Private company receives operating assistance but does not have 
UMTA-funded buses: The charter bus restrictions apply to any bus company 
that receives either capital ~ operating assist~nce, Likewise, operating 
assistance is available only for eligible ''mas~ transportation" services. 

GDl Private company has UMTA-funded buses and non-UMTA funded buses, and 
(1) does not receive operating assistance: The charter bus restrictions 
and mass transportation use require~ents apply only to UMTA-funded operations. 
Thus, a private company which owns its own buses and receives no operating 
assistance i~ free to operate those buses without restriction. The company's 
UMTA-funded buses, however, are subject to all applicable UMTA requirements. 

(b) (2) Same as (b) (1), but company does receive .operating assistance: Operating 
assistance is available only for eligible "mass transportation" service. 
Therefore, in order for the company to use its own buses without restriction, 
all operating assistance must be attributable to the mass transportation 
portion of its operations. That is, the company may use its own buses. in 
non::-.incidental charter service only if its cost allocation plan demonstrates 
that charter revenues from these buses exceed charter expenses. The 
company's UMTA-funded buses are restricted to incidental charter use only • 

. (c) and (d) Private company has an equity interest in UMTA-funded buses: 
UMTA agreed to allow the private bus companies in New York City to receive 
an undivided proportional share of the ownership of buses for which they put 
up the local share on the condition that the buses would be subject to all 
the terms and conditions of the grant agreement between UMTA and NYCDOT. 
Thus, the fact that a company has an equity interest in UMTA-funded buses 
does not limit any otherwise applicable UMTA requirements or restrictions. 

(e) If a· company does charter or scheduled work 'within and/or outflide the . 
urban area, must it use separate buses for this service with separate financial 
accounts or may it use the same buses with separate financial nccounts: This · 
question is too broad for a specific response. As noted above, the charter 
restrictions apply to companies receiving operating or capital assistance. 
UMTA-funded buses, whether they receive operating assistance or not, can 
be used for charter service only on an incidental basis. By analogy, UMTA
funded buses may be used for other non-mass transportation uses (i.e., regularly 
scheduled intercity service) only on an inci~ental basis. Under no circumstances 
may operating assistance-be used to offset non-mass transportation operating 
expenses. Inasmuch as operating expenses will involve such activities as 
maintenance and storage, which apply to an entire fleet, the company will 
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have to be able to separately allocate its mass transportation expeQ_~es 
and non-mass transportation expense$. Thus, if a company has its own buses, 
and ~ishes to·use them in non~incidental charter or other non~mass trans
portation operations, it -may either physically segregate these buses from 
its UMTA-assisted buses, or demonstrate, in its cost allocatio.n plan, that 
UMTA operating assistance 'is not used to subsidize the non-mass transportation 
services. 

(f) Do UMTA regulations apply only during the pexioc of an operating 
assistance grant: Assuming that a company has. no buses that were purchased 
with UMTA funds, the chart.er and mass transportation use restrictions would 
apply only for.the period of an operating assistm1ce grant. uMTA requirements 
apply t9·UMTA-funded buses for as lo~g as they are used in mass transportation. 
In the event a bus is withdrawn from mass transportation servic~, section 4 
of the grant agreement and OMB Circular A-102, Attachment N, govern the 
disposition of the equipment. 

I have attempted to provide you with workable interpretations of the 
applicable rules, in response to your questions. Enclosed are·copies of 
pertinent documents. In preparing project applications and budgets, you 
should work closely with the UMTA regional Transit Assistance office to 
ensure that UMTA assistance is being used for: eligible expenses. I hope 
that this letter has clarified UMTA's requirements. If you have any further 
questions, please feel free to contact me again. 

Sincerely, 

Enclosures 
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us. Department 
of Transportation 

Urban Mass 
Transportation 
Administration 

TALMAGE TOURS, · INC. ) 
) 

vs. ) 
) 

NEW JERSEY TRANSIT CORPORATION) 

I. Summary of Decision 

Region 2 
Connecticut. 
New York, New Jersey, 
Puerto Rico, Virgin Islands 

26 Federal Plaza 
Suite 14-110 
New York, New York 10278 

MEMORANDUM OF DECISION 

This decision is the result of an investigation into~the charter bus operations 
of the New Jersey Transit Corporation ("NJTC"). On the basis of this investiga
tion, we have determined that NJTC's temporary operation of charter bus tours 
pending the implementation of a plan to restructure its mass transportation 
routes and service levels dqes not constitute a violation of the applicgble 
statutory and regulatory requirements pertaining to charter bus operations and 
therefore does not require any remedial action beyond NJTC' s own present plans 
to discontinue its charter bus operations by November 25, 1981. 

II. The Complaint and NJTC's Response 

The complaint, dated July 15, 1981, alleges that NJTC is "selling motorcoach 
tours under the auspices of the State of New Jersey, Brendan Byrne, Gov." 
(Letter from George C. Guenther to Honorable Andrew L. Lewis, Secretary, July 
15, 1981). Enclosed with the complaint is a copy of an advertisement which 
appeared in the Philadelphia Inquirer on June 14, 1981, promoting NJTC bus 
tours to various locations beyond NJTC's service area which range from three to 
fourteen days in duration. 

We forwarded the complaint to NJTC on August 12, 1981, and afforded the respon
dant an opportunity to demonstrate that it is not in violation of Section 3(f) 
of the Urban Mass Transportation Act of 1964, as amended, ("the UMT Act"), 49 
u.s.c. 1602(f), and why the Urban Mass Transportation .Administration ("UMTA") 
should not issue an appropriate order under that section or take other appro
priate action. (Letter from Glenn F. Wasserman to Jerome C. Premo, August 12, 
1981). NJTC responded by letter dated September 16, 1981. 
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The NJTC's response, (letter from Kenneth S. Levy to Glenn F. Wasserman, 
September 16, 1981), which includes several exhibits, does not dispute the 
allegation that NJTG is operating charter bus tours but contends that those 
operations do not constitute a violation of applicable UMTA rules. The NJTC 
response states that NJTC .had acquired the private bus company Transport of New 
Jersey ( "TNJ") with UMTA grant assistance, and that UMTA had concurred in the 
interin continuation of TNJ charter operations until NJTC develops and imple
ments a plan for restructuring routes and service levels subsequent to the 
acquisition of TNJ, and that NJTC has developed a plan to totally segregate its 
mass transportation and non-incidental charter operations by November 25, 1981. 
NJTC further asserts that the interim continuation of TNJ charter operations 
does not constitute a.violation of law in that (1) its charter operations are 
based on fair and equitable arrangements to assure that UMTA financial assis
tance does not allow NJTC to foreclose private operators from the intercity 
charter market, and (2) the use of UMTA-funded buses by NJTC in charter service 
is "incidental" to and will not interfere with NJTC's ability to provide 
regular mass transportation service. By letter dated October 15, 1981, the law 
firm Fry, Hibschman, Golden, Welz & Yatron, on behalf of the complainant, 
replied to NJTC's response. (Letter·from Howard M. Fry to Glenn F. Wasserman, 
October 15, 1981). The reply contends that while UMTA instructed NJTC to adopt 
a plan to restructure routes and service levels on November 25, 1981, NJTC has 
only recently begin to do so. Moreover, the reply questions NJTC's statement 
that its charter operations are incidental to its mass transportation service 
and that such operations are being run on a fair and equitable basis with 
respect to other private charter operators. The reply further contends that 
some of the financial data supplied by NJTC in its response are "suspect" and 
that TNJ's continued charter operations preclude effective competition by 
non-subsidized carriers. 

III. Findings of Fact 

The following facts are undisputed: 

1. On November 25, 1980, Ul'1TA approved a capital grant in the amount 
of $32,111,000 to assist NJTC in the purchase of stock representing the 
tangible assets of TNJ and its wholly-owned subsidiary, the Maplewood Equipment 
Company. 

2. The UMTA grant was made with the express understanding that· TNJ was 
operating extensive charter bus services and on the condition that if buses 
which were then being used by TNJ primarily or exclusively for charter service 
were not assimilated mass transportation service, NJTC would sell those buses 
and offset the UMTA grant with the proceeds of such sale. UMTA instructed NJTC 
that "(T)he retention or disposition of the acquired equipment will depend on 
the adoption by NJTC of a final plan for the restructuring of routes and 
service levels." (Letter from Hiram J. Walker to Louis J. Gambaccini, November 
25, 1980). 
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3. On July 17, 1981, NJTC informed UMTA that the NJTC Board of Directors 
on July 14, 1981 approved a plan to restruc

1
ture TNJ' s charter operations, 

including assimilating into mass transportation service all vehicles previously 
purchased with federal funds. NJTC anticipated that "all buses acquired under 
the UMTA grant will be placed in regular service no later than November 25, 
1981 (the first anniversary of the grant approval)." (Letter from Jerome c. 
Premo to Hiram~. Walker, July 17, 1981). 

4. At the time the complaint was filed and at the present time, N~TC 
offers to operate or operates charter bus tours with UMTA-funded buses, subs
tantially as described in the June 14, 1981 newspaper advertisement submitted 
with the complaint. 

IV. The Legal Framework 

At issue is whether or not the continued charter operations by NJTC violate 
UMTA's regulation on Charter Bus Operations, .49 C.F.R. Part 604. 

UMTA's charter .bus regulation is designed to implement two provisions of the 
UMT Act. The first provision, section 12(c)(6), states that "mass transporta
tion" service, which is eligible for UMTA funding, does not include " ••• 
charter or sightseeing service". 49 u.s.c. 1608(c)(6). The Comptroller 
General of the United States has interpreted this provision to disallow the use 
of financial assistance provided under the UMT Act for the purchase of buses 
intended for use in charter service, but to allow, evEm encourage, the 
"incidental" use of such buses for charter service so long as such service 
"does not detract from or interfere with urban mass transportation service for 
which. the equipment is needed." Opinion of the Camp. Gen., B-160204 (December 
7, 1966). This "incidental use" restriction applies to all UMTA grantees, and 
is set forth in the charter regulation at 49 CFR 604.11. The regulation lists 
three charter uses that are presumed not to be incidental: 

(1) Weekday charters which occur during peak morning and evening rush 
hours; 

(2) Weekday charters Which require buses to t~avel more than fifty miles 
beyond the grantee's urban area; and 

(3) Weekday charters which require the use of a particular bus for more 
than a total of six hours in any one day •. 49 CFR 604.1l(b). 

The second provision of the UMT Act on which the regulation is based is section 
3(f), which is a special provision enacted to protect private operators in the 
intercity charter bus industry from being foreclosed from intercity charter bus 
business by competition· from federally assisted public bodies and those private 
carriers Who operate urban mass transportation services on their behalf, 49 
u.s.c. 1602(f). Under this provision, all grantees who receive funds under the 
UMT Act or the Federal-Aid Highway Act for "the purchase or operation of 
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buses," must enter into a charter bus agreement with the Secretary of Transpor
tation to protect private intercity charter bus operators. The terms of this 
"agreement" are set forth in 49 CFR 604.13, and become operative if a recipient 
of capital or operating assistance, or an operator on its behalf, engages in 
charter bus operations outside its urban area, and derives $15,000 or more 
annually from such, operations. 

In the event that a grantee or an operator on its behalf engages in incidental 
charter bus operations outside its urban area, and derives $15,000 or more 
annually from such operations, the regulation requires that the grantee submit 
to ill1TA the following: (1) a statement with respect to notice to private 
charter bus operators regarding the proposed or existing incidental charter 
operations (49 CFR 604.15); (2) a certification of costs (49 CFR 604.3, 
604.15(a)(3)); and (3) a cost allocation plan (49 CFR 604.3, 604.15(a)(4)). 

V. Analysis 

The first issue which must be resolved is whether the interim continuation of 
TNJ's charter operations, following that company's acquisition by NJTC with 

UMTA assistance, may be considered to be incidental to NJTC's regular mass 
transportation operations. This is because the procedures set forth in UMTA's 
regulation presuppose that a grantee's charter operations will only be 
incidental to and not interfere with the grantee's regular mass transportation 
services. 

The UMTA regulation codifies the incidental charter restriction which the 
Comptroller Generai set forth in his 1966 opinion. See Appendix A, 49 C.F.R. 
Part 604, and 49 C.F.R. 604.ll(b). To rebut the three presumptions stated in 
the Comptroller General's opinion, a grantee must establish to UMTA's satisfac
tion that a proposed use of a bus in charter service during weekday peak hours, 
or during weekdays more than fifty miles outside of the grantee's service area, 
or during weekdays for more than six hours in a single day, will not interfere 
with its ability to provide regular mass transportation service. It is undis
puted that NJTC operates charter service requiring the use of federally 
assisted buses during weekdays in one or more of the above circumstances. In 
its response, NJTC states that it uses 80 of its 1,510 buses for charter 
operations. At the present time, peak hour demand requires that TNJ have 1,219 
buses in regular mass transportation service. See !etter from Kenneth s. Levy 
to Glenn F. Wasserman, October 27, 1981. Thus, the use of 80 buses in charter 
service would not interfere with NJTC's ability to provide regular mass trans
portation service. That the TNJ fleet contains a number of buses far in excess 
of its peak hour needs is a matter of some concern to UMTA. Consequently, the 
grant to NJTC for the acquisition of TNJ was conditioned upon NJTC's developing 
a plan to restructure TNJ's route and service levels and to dispose of buses 
not needed for regular mass transportation service. As previously noted, NJTC 
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intends to implement such a plan by November 25, 1981. During the interim, the 
use of excess buses in charter service is consistent with the Comptroller 
General's opinion: 

"Such service contributes to the success· of urban mass transportation 
operations by bringing in additional revenues and providing full 
employment to drivers and other employees. It may in.some cases even 
reduce the need for Federal capital assistance." (Appendix A, 49 C.F.R. 
Part 604). 

We have therefore concluded that the interim use of 80 buses by NJTC for 
charter service pending the implementation of a plan for TNJ's routes and 
service levels is an incidental use that does not violate the Comptroller 
General's opinion or the UMTA regulation. 

The next issue is whether NJTC has complie~ with the procedures set forth in 
the UMTA regulation. The three requirements that apply to a grantee who 
engages in incidental charter bus operations outside its urban area and derives 
$15,000 or more annually from such operations are as follows: (1) the grantee 
must submit documentation regarding notice to private charter operators; (2) 
the grantee must provide a certification of costs; and (3) the grantee must 
prepare and submit a cost allocation plan. 49 C.F.R. 604.3, 604.15. 

For purposes of investigating the complaint, we reviewed NJTC's most recently 
approved operating assistance grant. On December 15, 1980, NJTC submitted the 
required information in support of its application for an operating assistance 
grant for the year ending June 30, 1981 (UMTA project No. NJ-05-4032). A 
notice of public hearing was advertised in 11 newspapers throughout the State 
and was also sent to 157 bus carriers in New Jersey and all charter .bus 
carriers in the Bronx and Manhattan, New York (33 carriers). The notice 
clearly states that TNJ "engages in and intends to continue .to engage in" 
charter operations in accordance with its tariffs filed with the State DOT and 
the Interstate Commerce Commission, and that "the required documentation 
relating to the charter bus operations of the (subsidized) carriers will be 
available for inspection" prior to and at the time of the scheduled public 
hearing. Our review. of the verbatim transcript of the September 25, 1980 
hearing shows that not one charter operator, including the complainant, 
appeared at the hearing to oppose the application or otherwise comment on it. 

In addition to the information concerning the public hearing and notice to 
charter operators, NJTC submitted comprehensive financial information from TNJ 
including a statement of revenues and expenses showing that charter revenues 
are equal to or greater than charter-related expenses, a certification by 
NJTC's Comptroller concerning the financial statement, and copies of all 
applicable tariffs. Following a review of this material, the UMTA Regional 
Administrator accepted the certification of costs and otherwise approved NJTC's 
charter operations by approving the grant. See 49 C.F.R. 604.18(b). 
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This approval was bised on UMTA's determination that the figures set forth in 
the certified statement of revenues and expenses appeared reasonable, and that 
no private charter bus operator had testified at the hearing or otherwise 
challenged those figures. 

Now, however, the complainant challenges the estimated revenues and costs 
certified by TNJ's Comptroller for the year which will end June 30, 1982, which 
is attached to NJTC's response. In its reply to the NJTC response; counsel for 
the complainant suggest an inconsistency between this certification and a staff 
review of TNJ's estimated charter and tour business, Which is also attached to 
the response. The certification apparently does not take into account any 
charges for equipment leases, while the staff review does. This apparent in
consistency does not indicate a violation of the applicable rules. Indeed, the· 
staff review of TNJ's charter operations is premised upon a total separation of 
charter operations· from TNJ 's mass transportation service, which would resolve 
any question of compliance with the UMT Act and charter regulations. Moreover, 
the certification of actual revenues and costs for the year ending June 30, 
1980, which was the subject of the September 25, 1980 public hearing, has not 
been challenged by the complainant or any other private charter bus operator. 

The complainant further questions the reasonableness of TNJ's charter rates, 
based on the assumption that TNJ's recent 30 percent rate increase in a period 
of less than seven months shows that the rate prior to the rate increase was 
"extremely low and that it can be assumed that such a low rat~ would preclude 
effective competition from non-subsidized carriers." We cannot, on the basis 
of complainant's speculation, determine that TNJ's charter rates are "designed 
to foreclose competition by private charter bus operators," as prohibited by 
the regulation. 49 C.F.R. 604.13(3). Furthermore, complainant and all other 
private charter bus operators have had the opportunity to comment on previous 
charter rates at the public hearings held by NJTC for its operating assistance 
grant applications. As noted above, no private charter bus operator testified 
at the September 25, 1980 hearing. We will not, therefore, review TNJ's past 
charter rates, especially in light of the recent increases in those rates which 
are not being challenged by the complainant as violative of the applicable 
rules. 

VI. Conclusion 

Based on the foregoing, we do not find that NJTC has violated the applicable 
statutory and regulatory requirements by continuing to operate TNJ's charter 
and tour services pending the implementation of a reorganization plan. This 
decision is founded upon the reasonableness of UMTA's condition in the November 
25, 1980 grant approval that NJTC will either assimilate its charter buses into 
mass transportation service or sell its charter buses and offset the grant with 
the proceeds of such sale, depending upon "the adoption by NJTC of a final plan 
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for the restructuring of routes and service levels." NJTC has stated that it 
will implement such a plan by November 25, 1981, and we have determinated that 
implementation by that date will be reasonable. We therefore conclude that the 
charter operations complained of do not constitute a violation of the UMT Act 
or UMTA's charter bus regulations, 49 C.F.R. Part 604. 

~~~ 

NOV 2 4 1981 
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DECISION 

Greyhound lines, Inc. and Hopkins limousine Service, Inc. 

Complainants 

v •. 

Greater Cleveland Regional Transit Authority 

Respondent 

I. Summary 

This d~cision is the result of an investi~ation into the charter 
bus operations of the Greater Cleveland Regional Transit Authority 
(GCRTA). The investigation disclosed that while GCRTA, in good faith, 
believed that it has substantially complied with restrictions imposed 
on charter activities of UMTA grantees by the Urban Mass Transportation 
Act of 1964, as amended (49 U.S.C. 1601 et seq.), and the Act's implementing 
requlations (49 CFR Part 604), that, infact, certain remedial actions 
are required to bring GCRTA into full compliance with the regulations. 

·No pattern or practice of violations was disclosed by the investigation 
into the Respondent's operations. 

II. Background 

UMTA received a complaint from Hopkins Limousine Service Inc. 
(Hopkins) 'on April 12, 1981, through Senator Glenn's office, tharging 
that GCRTA was conducting illegal charter activities. A similar but 
more detailed complaint was received from Greyhound lines, Inc. on April 
13, 1981. Given the similarity of the complaints, they have been combined 
for purposes of this decision. R~ference is primarily to Greyhound's 
complaint since that was more detailed. 

Specifically, the Complainants alleged that: GCRTA operated charter 
service during prohibited times and in prohibited areas at costs which 
foreclosed private operators from the intercity charter bus industry; 
that GCRTA's charter agreement with UMTA is in violation of the statute 
and implementin~ re~ulations; and that if such charter service is incidental 
it is only because GCRTA maintains an excessive spare ratio which allows 
them to viol ate the intent of the regulations with impunity. 

The Complainants request that UMTA order the Respondent to cease 
and desist from enqaqinq in the practices complained of and to withhold 
all future funding until it does cease such practices. 
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Supporting the co~plaint are various exhibits, including a typical 
Greyhound statement at public hearings, typical notice of application by 
GCRTA, Greyhound internal memo from a meeting with·GCRTA on February 20, 
1981, GCRTA's letter· on peak requirements ·and charter fleet, and UMTA 1 s 
1979 response to Greyhound concering GCRTA's charter activities. 
Greyhound filed additional information on June 17 and August 6, 1981, 
including a- sj.Qtenent of "Agreed Facts".· 

It should be noted that _five to seve:-~ private operators have complained 
about GCRTA 's charter op.:rations at every public hearing held over the 
last several years and that Greyhound filed a similar complaint with 
UHTA, which was decided in favor of GCRTA in May of 1979. Nonetheless 
Greyhound continues to assert that UMTA's charter regulations are being 
violated. UMTA docketed the complaint for review having determined that 
Complainants had provided sufficient evidence to justify a preliminary 
determination of probable cause with regard to the alleged violations.· 

III. Response to the Complaint 

GCRTA responded to the complaints on ~ay 1, May 20, June 3, and 
September 4, 1981, and _denied any wrongdoin~. In support of its -defense, 
GCRTA provided the following information: a copy of its charter agreement 
with UMTA; a cert i fi cation of costs for the year ending December 31, 
1979; a listing of its fleet requi·rements; a listing of its charter 
operations from April 1, 1980 through March 31,·1981; a copy of its 
advertisement in the Yellow Pages; a copy of a state court decision, 
Schwenk v. Miami Valley Reoional Transit Authority,4 003d 145 (1975), 
to support its position that the RTA can operate charters outside its 
urban; area; and Daily Vehicle Reports and Vehicle Control Charts for the 
days on which charters \"lere operated more than 50 miles outside their 
urban area to substantiate that they were able to meet their peak hour 
requirements, scheduled maintenance and road calls. · 

Respondent asserts that all charter operations are incidental to 
reqularly scheduled mass transportation, that they are operating all 
charter service in compliance with their agreement with UMTA, that their 
revenues exceed their costs and that the alleged excess spare ratio is 
unfounded and irrelevent to the issue at hand. 

IV. Findinqs and Determinations 

The complaint raises several distinct issues which, although 
interrelated, are addressed separately: 

1. Does GCRTA have a valid charter agreement with UMTA and has it 
been adhering to the terms of that agreement? 

2. Do GCRTA's charter operations qualify as incidental service? 

3. Has GCRTA foreclosed private operators from intercity charter 
bus activity where such private operators are willing and able to provide 
such service? 
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1. Does GCRiA have a valid charter agreement with UMTA? 

Every 9rantee who conducts charter service outside its urban area 
must first :n!er into a written agreement with UMTA (49 CFR 604.12). 
GCRTA has provided a copy of an undated charter agreement signed by Mr. 
leonard Ron is, then Genera·l Manager of GCRTA, which it purports ; s its -
charter agreement with UMTA. This agreement contains terms and conditions 
other than the standard tenms and conditions in 49 CFR 604.13 and therefore· 
constitutes a-"'Special agreement Under 49 tFR 604.14. Specifically, it ~. 
pro vi des that t;CRTA may conduct charter service during peak morning and 
evening rush·hours., weekday charters which require the use of a coach 
for more than a total of six hours in any one day, and charter service 
outside of its urban area provided that its equipment requirements 
permit it to operate such charters without interfering with regularly 
scheduled service. 

GCRTA did not provide, and our records did not contain., any indisputable 
evidence that UMTA concurred in this specific charter agreement. Our 
files do contain, however, a letter dated September 19, 1977 from Richard 
S. Paqe, then UMTA Administrator, to Mr. B. l. Peyton, Regional Vice 
President of Greyhound Lines, Inc., stating that the presumptions of 
incidental service in 49 CFR 604.11 can be overcome in an agreement 
between UMTA and a grantee. The letter further states that GCRTA has 
obtained such an agreement from UtHA and that this agreement expressly 
provides that GCRTA may en~age in incidental charter service which does 
not interfere with re~ularly scheduled mass transit service. Thus. we 
conclude that the charter agreement provided by GCRTA was approved 
by Ul·HA. 

Ho\~ever, whether this constitutes a valid agreement iS another 
question. A letter dated April 7, 1978, from the previous Chief Counsel. 
Margaret M. Ayres, to Mr. Peyton, identified the criteria to be used by 
UMTA in determining if there is a legally sufficient basis to limit or 
deny a proposed charter agreement. These 11 include, but are not limited 
to the following determinations: (1) that a grantee is not allowed to 
carry out proposed charters under State law under section 604.15{4)(b)(l); 
(2) that a grantee has failed to follow the procedures prescribed by 
the requlations with respect to certification of costs, the preparation 
of a cost allocation plan or notice to private-carriers; or. (3) that a 
proposed agreement violates the incidental requirement of section 604.11 
of the regulations.• Using these same criteria, there is an adequate 
basis for reconsiderin~ our acceptance of the agreement. Furthermore, 
given the lapse of time since our concurrence in the agreement, and the 
issues raised in the complaint, there is ample legal basis for requiring 
UMTA and GCRTA to either enter into a standard agreement as provided in 
49 CFR 604.13 or another special agreement under 49 CFR 604.14. if 
justified per l.C. of this decision. · 

A. Authority to Operate Charters Under State law 

There is incomplete documentation to support a conclusion that 
GCRTA has authority to conduct charters on a statewide basis. The 
documentation supplied by GCRTA provides two contradictory arguments as 
to why it has authority to conduct charters on a statewide basis. 
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The first is that GCRTA has authority to o~rate transit service 
anywhere in the state. It bases this conclusion on both 'Statutory and 
case law. Section 306.35(g) of Ohio Re~is~d Code-states that an RTA may 
" ••• acquire, construct, improve, extend, repair, lease, operate 
mantain or manaqe transit facilities within or without its territo~fal -
boundaries deemed necessary to accanplish the purpose of its organization • 
• • •• In Schv1ec.ie v. MVKTA, supra, the Ohio Court held that an RTA is not 
subject to the ,iurisdiction of the Public Utility Commission and may . 
extend its transit·services to non-contiguous areas outside the territorial 
boundaries of the RTA. 

While these sources may provide conclusive evidence that GCRTA has 
the authority to provide trartsit service on a statewide·basis, neither 
source specifically provides that charter service is transit service. 
In fact, section 306.30(A} of Ohio Revised Code defines atransit facili.ty 
as one •• ••• having as its primary purpose the regularly scheduled mass 
movement of passengers between locations within the territorial boundaries 
of a reqiona1 transit authority ••• • 

If GCRTA believed that this were a proper legal basis for GCRTA to 
provide transit service, including charter service, on a statewide 
basis, no charter agreement would have been necessary, as section 3(f) 
of the Act only requires an agreement for charter bus operations outside 
the urban area within which the operator provides regularly scheduled 
mass transportation service. Under 49 CFR 604.3(b), the urban area is 
defined as the entire area in which a local public body is authorized by 
law to provide reqularly scheduled mass transportation service. This is 
further defined to include all areas which are either within an "urbanized 
area" ~s fixed in accordance with 23 CFR Part 470, or within an "urban 
area" as determined by the Secretary under 49 USC 1608(c) (4)}. 

GCRTA also argues that it has authority to conduct statewide charters 
because its predecessor, the Cleveland Transit System, provided charter 
service throughout Ohio for over thirty years under Article XVIII, 
Section 6 of the Ohio Constitution which allows a municipality to sell 
and deliver to others any transportation service in an amount not exceeding 
fifty percent of the total service. However, GCRTA has not established 
that it is a municipality which would be covered by this section of the 
constitution. Conversely, it has not established that it is entitled 
to this constitutional protection as a successor of Cleveland Transit 
System. 

While Ohio law may provide a basis for finding that GCRTA has the 
authority to conduct charters on a statewide basis, neither source 
relied upon by GCRTA to date is sufficient to justify that conclusion. 
Therefore, prior to UMTA approving a new charter agreement with GCRTA it 
must provide sufficient documentation to establish that it has authority 
to conduct charters under State law. 
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As part of this process, GCRTA must specifically document the urban 

are2 within which it is authorized to operate mass transit service. In 
de vel opi n9 this doc.umentati on, GCRTA is hereby noti f1ed that UMTA wi 11 · 
not r.ecoani ze a 9rantee' s authority to provide mass transportation 
serv~ce which extends be~ond an ~rea ~ithin ~hich the grantee can reasonably 
prov1de mass transportaho~. serv1ce, 1n morn1ng an4 evening peak per:iods, 
to and from a central city. The fact that state law may authorize -
a ~rantee to provide service on a statewide basis, does not preclude 
UMTA from 1 im.i-ting its definition of the urban area for Federal purposes 
to the area in which it is reasonable for the grantee to provide. regularly 
schedu1ed ma~s transportation service. In determining reasonableness, 
the fact that a grantee actually provides service to such an area will 
be considered conclusive. Thus~ until GCRTA establishes a broader urban 
area, consistent with the above guidelines, UMTA will only recognize. 
as GCRTA • s urban area the territorial limits of the four counties to 
which GCRTA presently provides service. This includes Cuyahoga County 
which is a member of the RTA, and Lake, lorain, and Medina Counties, 
since GCRTA has four routes which serve surburban commuters in these 
counties. · 

B. Compliance with the Procedures in 49 CFR Part 604 

The regulation establishes certain procedures which must be followed 
by ~rantees. Certain of these procedures deal with 11certification of 
costs'' (49 CFR 604.15, 30 and 51}. GCRTA has failed to follow these 
procedures prescribed by the regulations with respect to certification 
of costs in that the most recent certification of cost provided by the 
GCRTA during this investigation was for the year ending December 31. 
1979. Jt should be noted that on February 17, 1982 we received a certification· 
of cost for the year ending December 30, 1980 as part of GCRTA's 1982 
operating grant application {OH-05-4131}. However, 49 CFR 604.3(b) 
provides that the period covered by the grantee's certification of costs 
shall not be 1 ess than two or greater than four of it's most recently 
cor.~pleted fiscal quarters. Also, 49 CFR 604.15 requires that a certification 
of costs be included in each application. All future applications must 
include a current certification of costs. This will allow private 
operators a chance to comment in a timely manner, at the public hearing, 
on this data .. 

c. Compliance with the Incidental Requirements of 49 CFR 604.11 

Three examples of activities which will be presumed not to be 
incidental are provided in 49 CFR 604.11. While UMTA has previously 
voiced the opinion that the presumptions of incidental service can be 
overcome in an agreement, it is now time to restate that position. 

It is UMTA's.intention that the presumptions of non-incidental service 
apply in all instances. However, these are not conclusive presumptions 
and can be rebutted after the fact, on a case by case basis, if the 
grantee presents evidence or documentation, which in UMTA's determination 
sufficiently shows that the questioned charter service indeed did not 
interfere with regularly scheduled service, including regularly scheduled 
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maintenance an~ f:ad calls, or t~e ~~Y end time in questio~. In other 
words, the ~rantee must have SOlfficient dail.v records tc show that all 
service requirements were met. In exceptional cases, UMTA will also 
consider allowin~ the grantee to overcome the regulato~ presumptions 
in the negotiation of an ag:--ee:::ent, but such a rebuttal must be fully 
documented, must rely on unique situations, such as topography, unusual_ 
peak hours or special events, and must clearly show that regularly . 
scheduled mass transportation service will not be interfered with under 
any circumsta~es. The grantee, of course, would still be subject to 
challenge if it used the UMTA eouiprnent in non-incidental service which 
had not been ·approved by U~1TA as part of a special agreement. 

In su~mary, while GCRTA did have a charter agreement and .may have 
been performing in conformance with that agreement, the issues raised 
by this conplaint sugqest that the agreement must be renegotiated along 
the ~uidelines listed above. Until a new agreement is entered into, in 
conformance with the procedures in 49 CFR Part 604, GCRTA will not be 
permitted to perfonm charter service outside the urban area in which it 
provides regularly scheduled mass transportation service. Furthermore, 
GCRTA must comply with the incidental restrictions (not during peak hour 
or more than 6 hours in one day) contained in 49 CFR 604.11. 

2. Do GCRTA's charter operations qualify as incidental service? 

As discussed above, the regulation contains three examples of bus 
uses which are considered non-incidental yet the GCRTA agreement· allows 
them to use the buses in these ways as long as their equipwent requirements 
so permit. With respect to. one of these examples, GCRTA provided evidence 
that b~~ween April 1, 1980 and March 31, 1981, it conducted 65 charters 
rnore than 50 miles outside its urban area. It also provided evidence in 
the form of Daily Vehicle Reports and Vehicle Control Charts that, on 
the days in question, it was able to meet all peak hour requirements, 
scheduled maintenance and road calls. However, a key element of Greyhound's 
complaint is that ·GCRTA hfts been able to conduct these types of charters 
without interfering with regulatly scheduled mass transportation service 
because it has an inordinately high spare ratio. The documentation 
supplied by GCRTA, taking into account both the number of buses scheduled 
for routine maintenance (94) and the number of buses inactive and held 
as spares (80), shows that as of April 1981 thi-s ratio was around 21~. 
This is higher than UMTA's general rule of thumb of 10~-15% but is 
justified on the basis that 41~ of GCRTA's fleet is over 12 years old 
and the high breakdown rate of its newer buses. However. there is 
documentation, in terms of recent press clippings, that GCRTA has had to 
lease 50 buses from t-'ARTA in order to meet its· regularly scheduled 
service because of the poor condition of its buses. (These extra 50 
buses are not included in GCRTA's figures and would increase the spare 
ratio.) Furthermore, GCRTA admitted in a October 21, 1981 letter requesting 
our concurrence in a grant to rehabilitate 100 buses (OH-05-0058) that 
they have been experiencing severe equipment shortages and "it has not 
been possible to make schedule since January 1981.• In light of these 
facts, GCRTA will not be allowed to use its high spare ratio to conduct, 
or to justify conducting, charter operations in excess of those allowed 
in the regulation. This means that the number of buses used for charter 
and peak hour service, including scheduled maintenance·and road calls, 
shall not exceed 110~ of GCRTA's peak hour requirements. 
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In this re~ard, continued use of the excess spare ratio to justify 
charter pperations may constitute engaging :in a practice which is a 
means of avoidinq the requirements of the charter agreement. If so 
such action will clearly be pro_hibi ted by the tenris of any· agreement 
ur.d~r 49 CFR 604.13. ·· ··--·.-- ·-· · · 

As a cor4'11ary matter, Hopkins has objected to the size and content 
of the GCRTA ad in the "Yellow Pages" under •charter and Rental Buses•. 
This ad states "pick the bus that meets your need from the largest 
charter bus fleet in Ohio.• GCRTA has countered that this ad only 
refers to their two "Charter Chiefs .. which were bought without UMTA 
assistance. However, it seems unlikely that two buses give GCRTA the 
largest charter bus fleet in Ohio. While such an advertisement itself 
would not result in a violation of the incidental provision, since GCRTA 
would presumably turn down any charter requests that interfered with 
re9ularly scheduled service, the tone does imply that GCRTA is ready and 
able to provide charters at any time. Therefore, in the future, GCRTA 
may not advertise service which is impermissable under the charter 
requlation. 

In summary, while GCRTA may have been able to conduct non-incidental 
charters without in fact interfering with regularly scheduled service, 
such operations were partially possible only as a result of its .high 
spare ratio. In the future, GCRTA may not conduct non-incidental .charters, 
without findinq itself subject to a complaint and having to justify such 
charters after the fact, and may not use its spares as a means of justifying 
its charter operations. 

3. Has GCRTA foreclosed private operators from intercity charter bus 
activity where such private operators are willing and able to provide 
such service? 

GCRTA's existing agreement, like the standard agreement, provides 
that a grantee will generate enough revenue from its charter operations 
to equal or exceed the costs of providing such service consistent with a 
cost allocation plan required by the regulation which includes dummy 
charges for taxes and depreciation. · While GCRTA has not provided a 
recent certification of costs, its certification for the year ending 
1980 shows that it was able to meet this criteria. Without evidence to 
the contrary, we wi 11 assume that GCRTA is charging overall a high 
enough rate to cover all of its costs. 

However, the aqreement also provides that a grantee will not establish 
a charter rate which is designed to foreclose competition by private · 
bus operators •. Greyhound has provided an analysis, using GCRTA's own 
fi qures which shows that on certain trips GCRTA's bus revenue for that 
trip wo~ld be less than the fully allocated cost for that charter trip. 
GCRTA has stated that its cost of charter operations is $4.12 per mile, 
yet for an overnight trip from Clev·eland to Kings Island Amusemen~ Park, 
480 round trip miles, it would only charge $965.00 or $2.01 per m1le. 
Furthermore, this charge is $155.00 less than Greyhound would charge 
for a similar trip. 
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The issue r~ised by this analysis is whether a grantee can undercharge 
on certain routes as long as its overall revenue exceeds its cost~. The 
requlation itself is silent on tMs issue and only requires that revenues 
~enerated by operations are equal to or greater than the cost of prov.iding 
such charter operations. · 

However, in the interest of fairness, UMTA will establish the 
following gui.cl:lines for determining whether rates exceed costs and 
whether a private operator is beinq foreclosed: (i) the general cost 
test is whet~er overall charter revenues eoual or exceed overall costs; 
(ii) even if a grantee meets this test, the grantee can still be found 
to be in violation of the regulation if it engages in predatory pricing 
on·a sinqle route, that is pricing which is designed to foreclose 
competition. 

In summary, while GCRTA has shown that at least through 1980, it 
was.able to cover its costs on an overall basis, it m~st continue to 
provide this certification of cost information with each application 
and cannot establish predatory pricing on individual routes. 

V. Conclusion 

Based on the foregoing, we find that GCRTA has violated the applicable 
statutory and requlatory requirements by operating certain non-incidental 
charters and by not filing a current certification of costs. However, 
these findinqs are based, in part, upon an int~rpretation of the regulatirin 
which has not previously been communicated to GCRTA. As a consequence, 
we conclude that although a violation occurred, it was not part of a 
continuing pattern that indicated disregard of the restrictions imposed 
on grantees under 49 CFR Part 604. Thus. we are recOllmendi ng that the 
following corrective actions be taken: 

1. Within sixty (60) days of receipt of this order, GCRTA will cease 
and desist all charter operations outside its urban area until all of 
the requirements of this order have been complied with. For purposes of 
this order, urban area will be defined as the territorial limits of 
those counties actually served by GCRTA. Charter service conducted in 
the urban area must be inti dental. For any charter contracts in existence 
on the date of this order, for service to occur after the 60-day period,
GCRTA will immediately contact UMTA Region V for instructions on how to 
handle these contracts. 

2. GCRTA will provide evidence that it has authority under state law to 
conduct charters and will document the urban· area within which it is 
authorized to operate mass transportation service. 

3. If GCRTA is able to establish that it has authority to provide 
. charters outside its urban area, GCRTA and UMTA will enter into a·new 

agreement using the standard provisions contained in 49 CFR 604.13. 
GCRTA will follow al 1 of the applicable steps for obtaining a modified 
charter agreement contain.ed in 49 CFR 604.20(b)-(d). · 

4. If GCRTA and UMTA enter into an agreement allowing GCRTA to conduct 
charters outside its urban area, GCRTA will keep its certificat1on of 
costs current as required by the regulation in all of its future grant 
applications. 
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5. GCRi~ wi11 not use its high spare ratio to justify providing non-· 
incidental charter service. ·-
6. Rates cha;~:1ed for individual charter operations must not be predatory. 

· Failure of GCRTA to comply with the terms of this order may. result 
in a findinQ of a continuing pattern of violations and the discontinuance 
of Federal funds for mass transit until compliance is assured. 

~rigi~ "Hyn"~Cherfn, J€giorial Counsel, UMTA Region V 

CONCUR: 

.G. Kent Woodman, 'Chief Coun Date 
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U.S. Department 
of Transportation 

Urban Mass 
Transportation 
Administration 

Michael L. Ritz, Esquire 
Assistant Chief Counsel 
The Greater Cleveland Regional 
Trans:r;:ortation Autoority (GCRI.'A} 
615 Su~rior Avenue, N.W. 
Cleveland, Ohio 44113 

Dear Mr. Ritz: 

Headquarters 400 7th Street S.W. 
Washington, D.C. 20590 

. JAN I 4 19B3 

By letter dated November 4, 1982, you requested that G:RI'A be permitted to 
extend charter operations bo include service to the Cleveland Coliseum located 
approxinately 1 1/2 miles accross the Cuyahoga County border in Richfield, · 
Ohio, and that the two "Charter Chiefs" OWned by GCRJ.'A be permitted to operate 
exempt from UMTA regulations (49 CFR Part 604}. 

As noted in your letter, these requests were pronpted by restrictions having 
been placed on RTA charter operations by UMTA in its decision of August 26, 
1982, (hereafter refered to as the "Decision"} resulting from an UMI'A 
investigation of complaints by Greyhound Lines, Inc., and Hopkins Limousine 
Service Inc. i into the charter operations of the G:RTA. Because your requests 
stem directly from our Decision, we have chosen to treat your letter as a 
formal request for reconsideration of that Decision as it effects the issues 
raised in your letter. 

Service to the Colisewn 

The evidentiary material accumulated during the UMI'A investigation (in 
accordance with §604.42} did not sup:r;:ort G:RTA's clalin of legal authority to 
provide regularly scheduled mass transportation service on a statewide basis. 
Therefore, in the Decision UMTA exercised its authority to redefine 
RTA's "urban area" according to §12(c) (10) of the UMl' Act arrl §604.3(b} of the 
regulation as that area actually served by G:RTA •s mass transit operations, 
namely the territorial boundaries of the four county area containing Cuyahoga, 
Lake, Lorain and Medina counties. §l2(c)(l0) states: 

[T]he term 'urban area' neans acy area that includes a municipality 
or other built-up place which is appropriate, in the judgment of the 
Secretaty, for a public trans:r;:ortation system to serve ccmruters or 
others in the locality taking into consideration the local patterns 
and trends of urban growth: 
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The infonnaticn yoo provide in support of this request that RI'A be penni tted 
to operate Charter service to the Cleveland Coliseum does evidence local · 
patterns am trends of urban grcwt:h as WOlld penni t tMTA to include. the 
Coliseum within the defined GCRI'A urban area. Specifically we are infolmea. ~ 
your staff that: 

1. Prior to 1975, the Cleveland Transit Systan (crs) provided both regular 
transit and Charter service to the Cleveland Arena located in do.mto.m . 
Cleveland. 

2. In 1975, GCRTA tocik over the crs cperations in Cleveland. 

3. In 1978, the Cleveland Coliseum was ruilt in its current locatioo as a 
replacenent for the Clevelan:J Arena. 

4. 'Ihe Coliseum is the hane of the Clevelan:J cavaliers l:::e.sketba.ll team and 
RI'A is requested to provide Charter service for l::a.sketb'9.11 games and special 
perfonnances. 

5. 'Ihere is insufficient traffic to warrent establishment of regular 
transit service to the Coliseum am therefore only charter service is 
provided. 

6. Fbr approximately nine m::mths of the year (MarCh thra.lgh November) there 
is insufficient private capacity willing and able to meet identified needs. 

7. That the provision of Charter service would primarily aid persons in 
the urban area as defined in the Decision. 

Taking into oonsideration the facts as we understand than, it \tJOUld appear 
that the relocatioo of the Cleveland cavaliers fran the Arena to a new 
Coliseum sports cx:mplex is a natural develcpnent of u:rl::a.n gro.rth in the 
Clevelam rnetropoli tan area. FUrther, we find that charter· service to the 
Coliseum by GCRI'A fran the areas presently served by the GCRI'A (namely the 
counties of CUyahoga, Medina, Lake and lorain) is apprc:priate for a public 
transportation systan to serve camuters and others within the locality. 
Lastly, we take specific note of GCRI'A • s recent efforts to enter into a new 
Charter Agreanent with tMTA as rEquired by the Decision, 'l.bich we anticipate 
will be cx:mpleted within the next 120 days. 

Therefore, in confonnance .with §12(c) (10) of the tMT Act, the "urban area" of 
the GCRI'A is hereby defined as including the territorial l:n.mdaries of 
the foor above named ca.mties, and that area of approximately 1 and 1/2 nd.les 
fran the CUyahoga o:onty oorder to the Cleveland Coliseum in .Richfield, Ohio. 

The Cleveland Coliseum is located in Sl..lltiTii.t Co.mty. We take specific note of 
the fact that the city of Akron, Ohio cperates its ONn mass transit system 
within that c:nmty. Nothing in this decision is to be regarded as evidencing 
the existence of any right of GCRTA to cperate within the l:x:undaries of Sumni t 
County ....niCh did rot previoosly exist under Ohio law. 
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Qperation of GCRTA's Charter Chiefs 

In considering OCRI'A 's request that the tiD "Olarter Oliefs" be permitted to 
operate exempt fran the UMI'A regulations, consideration has been given to 
balancing the need for vigorous enforcement of the charter regulations for the 
protection of ~ivate enterprise on the one hand, and the degree of harm which 
G:RI'A may be expected to suffer if the requested relief -were not granted from 
the recision. en that basis, UMI'A firrls no justification for exemption of the 
G:RI'A Olarter Chiefs fran operation subject to the regulations. First, 
expansion of the GCRI'A urban area as to include the Coliseum would pennit 
OCRI'A to provide charter service to that location even without a charter 
agreement in force between GCRI'A and UMI'A, subject only to the incidental use 
provisions and cost certification provisions of the UMI'A regulations as they 
relate to vehicles, equipment and facilities funded under Urban Mass 
TransFQrtation Act of 1964, as amended. As the "Olarter Chiefs" -were 
purchased with::>ut UMI'A participation, those vehicles are already exempt fran 
the incidental use ~ovisions and thus can be used within the defined GCRI'A 
urban area for charter service subject only to the cost certification 
provisions. Second, a review of the list of G:Rl'A charter contracts requiring 
operation beyond the defined "urban area" which were in existence prior to the 
recision, which list was included along with your request, reflects only three 
contracts which are affected. On talance, it \tlOuld appear that ary damage to 
GCRTA which might be occasioned ~ a potential breach of contract can be 
avoided through a waiver of the regulation with respect to q>eration ootside 
the urban area for those contracts without a blanket exenption. 'lherefore, 
your request that the "Charter Chiefs" be pemitted to cperate exempt fran the 
UMI'A regulations is hereby denied. A waiver is hereby granted, however, 
permittia; GCRI'A to prOV'ide contract charter service beyond its urban area for 
the three outstandia; contracts existing as of the August 26, 1982, recision 
on the dates specified in your submission. 

Finally, ·contrary to the statement in your letter, the Decision did not cancel 
the charter agreeiiEnt under which RI'A has been operating. Rather, the UMI'A 
Administrator is permitted by §604.14 of the charter regulations to auth::>rize 
the.use of provisions other than the standard ones contained in §604.13 where 
the Administrator detennines that the requiranents of §3 (f) of the UMI' Act and 
§l64b of the Highway Act can be met by such provisior19. As discussed on pages 
three throogh five of the decision (copy enclosed), Rl'A did not prOV'ide, and 
UMI'A records did not contain any indisputable evidence that UMI'A had 
originally or thereafter concurred in the specific charter agreement under 
which Rl'A has been operating. ·While it was found that Rl'A may have a charter 
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agreenent arrl may have been performing in conformance with that agreenent, the 
issues raised cy the canplaint suggest that the cgreerent nust be 
renegotiated. 'lhus, under autl:x:>rity of §604.14, the Agreenent under which 
GCRrA hcrl been cperating, as limited by the JRcision am this JRcision on 
Request for !Econsideration is herecy approved and shall continue in effect 
until a new agreanent is consurrunated. This agreerent continues to be 
approved subject to examination or audit of charter bus nanifests, and other 
accounts by UMTA representatives in the event of a complaint by an interested 
party alleging that the charter rates charged by GCRTA are not in compliance 
with the terms of this agreenent. 

Enclcsure 

Urban Mass TransJ;X>rtation Adrn:i.ni~tration 
UCC-3l:DURKEE:dd::x61936 
Retyped:DURKEE:kly:l2-l-82:61936 
cc: UCC-chronjUCC-31/UCC-30/UCC-1/UR0-5 
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us. Department 
of Tronspor10fion 

Mr. Charles A. Webb 
Attorney at Law 
606 Lond·on House 
1001 Wilson Boulevard 
Arlington, Virginia 22209 

Dear Mr. Webb: 

Headquarters 400 7th Street S.W. 
Washington. D.C. 20590 

JAt.4 2 7 llJ4 

This responds to your recent letter informing the Urban Mass 
Transportation Administration (UMTA) of the American Bus Association•s 
(ABA) continuing interest in a charter bus complaint filed against the 
Greater Cleveland Regional Transit Authority ( GCRTA). You specifically 
request information concerning any proposed agreements between UMTA and 
the GCRTA which would allow the GCRTA to conduct charter service outside 
its urban area. · 

~·$.you know, UMTA issued a decision on August 26, 1982, that found the 
GCRTA in violation of UMTA's regulation on Charter Bus Operations (49 CFR 
Part 604). As a result, UMTA ordered the GCRTA to cease and desist all 
charter operations outside its urban area. The order permitted the GCRTA 
to enter into a new charter bus agreement with UMTA to provide service 
outside its urban area if it could establish that it had the legal 
authority under State law to do so. Under the terms of the decision, 
11 Urban area 11 is defined as 11the territorial 1 imits of those counties 
served by GCRTA. 11 

By letter dated November 4, 1982, the GCRTA requested that it be 
permitted tQ extend charter opera~ions to include service to the 
Cleveland Coliseum located approximately one and one-half miles across 
the boundary of its "urban area .. as defined by the decision. UMTA 
concurred in this request on January 14, 1983. 

On October 3, 1983, UMTA entered into a charter agreement with the GCRTA. 
A copy is enclosed. Under the terms of this agreement, the GCRTA is not 
permitted to·· engage in charter operations with .UMTA funded equipment and 
facilities outside its urban area. The agreement defines "urban area .. as 
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"the area within the territorial boundaries of counties in wh1ch .. GCRTA 
provides regularly scheduled mass transportation service.M The agreement 
does permit the GCRTA to use 1ts Charter Chiefs to provide charter 
service anywhere 1n the State of Ohio since these vehicles were not 
federally funded. The GCRTA, however, may not use any Federal operating 
assistance to subsidize the charter services provided with these buses. 

I hope that this information has been helpful. If you have any 
additional questions, please do not hesitate to contact 

cc: Rick Bacigalupo, URO V 

Enclosure 

URBAN MASS TRANSPORTATION ADMINISTRATION 
IJcc732: DGOCD~-Gm·(Ext~36: 1-19-84 . 
Cop1es to:~ UCC-Chron/ UCC-30/Munter/ UCC-1/Woodman 
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AGREEMENT 
BETWEEN 

GREATER CLEVEL.A~D REGIONAL TRANSIT AUTHORITY 
AND· 

THE DEP .AR TMENT OF TRANSPORT .A TION 

THIS AGREEMENT, entered into this~ day of _Oct.cb!r ______ ....____,. 

1983, between the Greater Cleveland Regional Transit Authority, hereinafter 

referred to as "GCRT.A" and the Secretary of Transportation of the Department 

of Transportation, of the United States of Ame.r.ica. 

WHEREAS, the GCRT A desires to operate charter eervice outside its 

urban area; and 

WHEREAS, 49 CFR, Part 604, provides that a charter bus agreement 

must be entered into with the Secretary of Transportation before charter services 

c.an be operated outside GCRT A's urban area. 

NOW, THEREFORE, GCRT A agrees as follows: 

(1) That neither it, nor any operator of mass transportation equipment 

and facilities on GCRTA's behalf, wlll engage in charter bus operations out-

•ide the GCRT.A urban area, which is defined as the area within the territorial 

boundaries o! counties in which GCRT.A provides regularly scheduled mass 

transportation service, except as provided for herein~ 

(2) That revenues generated by its charter bus operations are equal 

to or greater than the costs of providing charter bus operations consistent 

with its cost allocation plan a_nd that OCR T A shalCkeep its certification of 

said costs cfurrent as required by regulation; 

(3) That it will not establish any charler rate which is design~d to 

foreclose con1petition by private bus operators; 
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(4) That any use of project facilities and equipment in charter aervlce 

will be incidental, as described in the Opinion of the Comptroller <i'eneral of 

the United~tates, B-100Z04, December 7, 1966, and ahall not interfere with 

the use of such facilities and equipment in regularly acheduled mass trans

portation services to the public; 

(5) That the two (2) buses known a.s the "Charter Chiefs," which were 

purchased by the Cleveland Transit System (predecessor of the GCRTA) with 

non-federal funds and which ar~ not used in providing regularly scheduled 

mass transportation services, shall only be used to provide charter bus 

services within the State of Ohio to the extent permitted under this Agreement; 

(6) That it has notified the private operators licensed by the State of 

Ohio to render service in its urban area of the terms an~ conditions of the 

herein Agreement. 

The Secretary of Transportation of the Departinent of Transportation 

of the United States of America agrees to permit CiCRTA to op~rate charter 

service pursuant to the conditions set forth in 49 CFR Part 604, which ls 

hereby incorporated into this Agreement, including the requirement that it 

provide the Urban Mass Transportation Administration (hereinafter referred 

to as 11UMT A") with its cost allocation plan; 

Further, the Secretary of Tran·sportation finds that these provisions 

constituteffair and equitable arrangements within the meaning of the Urban 

Mass Transportation Act of 1964, as amended, to assure that the financial 
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assistance granted by the United States Govermnent under any mass tran•-

portation grant project will not enable GCRTA or any contracted eperator 
. , . . \ . 

of project equipment and facilities to foreclose private operator•, from. the .. 
intercity charter bus industry, where such private operators are willing and 

able to provide such service. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF the parties hereunto have set their hands and 

seals the day and year !irst· written. 

Witnesses: 

The legal form and correctness o! 
the within instrument are hereby 
approved . 

.. 
t 
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Tower Bus, Inc., 
Complainant 

v. 

Southeastern Michigan 
Transportation Administration, 

Respondent 

I. Sunmary 

This decision of the Urban Mass Transportation Administration (UMTA) is in 
response to a complaint filed by Tower Bus~ Inc·. (Tower) alleging that the 
Southeastern Michigan Transportation Administration (SEMTA) violated Federal 
and State statutes, Federal regulations, and an UMTA Order. UMTA's review is 
limited to the alleged violations of the UMTA statute, regulations and Order. 
UMTA has concluded that: (1) SEMTA's charter operations are in compliance 
with UMTA's requirements; and {2) SEMTA has not engaged in illegal 
anticompetitive conduct. 

II. Background 

Tower filed a complaint with UMTA dated September 30, 1981, alleging, inter 
alia, that SEMTA is engaging in illegal charter operations and anticompetitive 
conduct. 

Specifically, Tower alleges that SEMTA violated the. following: 

49 u.s.c. § 1602 
5 u.s .c. § 552 
49 U.S.C. Chapter 8 
49 C.F.R. Part 604 
49 C.F.R. Part 605 · 
49 C.F.R. Chapter 3, Subpart B 
49 C.F.R. Chapter 10 
UMTA Order dated July 13, 1CH8 
State of Michigan Statutes, Act 254, P.A. 1935 
State of Michigan Statutes, Act 204, P.A. 1976, as amended 
State of Michigan Statutes, Act 442, P.A. 197~, as amended 

Tower seeks: (1) an order prohibiting SEMTA from continuing its violations; 
(2) all funding of SEMTA by UMTA to be stopped; (3) monetary damages; and 
(4) an on-site investigation of SEMTA's operations. 
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By letter to UMTA, dated December 18~ 1981, SEMTA responded to Tower's 
allegations. SEMTA admitted that it had violated UMTA's July 13, 1978 Order, 
but indicated that the violations had ceased. SEMTA denied Tower's other 
allegations. Tower filed a rebuttal to SEMTA's response on 
January 29, 1982, and SEMTA filed a surrebuttal on February 19, 1982. 

2 

The parties met with UMTA on May 10, 1982, and discussed the possi bi 1 i ty of 
reaching a settlement in regard to the complaint·. Negotiations took place 
between June.and September 1982. but no settlement was agreed upon. On 
September 2, 1982, Tower advised UMTA that it was renewing its complaint, and 
alleged that SEMTA had-continued to violate UMTA's charter bus regulations 
after Tower's September 1981 complaint was filed. Tower submitted information 
to suport its claim on September 30, 1982. By letters dated October 15 and 
November 15, 1982, SEMTA denied Tower's allegation and submitted information 
to support its position. 

III. Jurisdiction 

UMTA's jurisdiction is limited to the claims made with respect to 49 U.S.C. 
§ 1602, 49 C.F.R. Parts 604 and 605, and UMTA's Order. IJMTA will not, 
therefore, make any determinations concerning Tower's claim that SEMTA 
violated the Freedom of Information Act (FOIA), 5 u.s.c. § 552, Tower's 
allegations of harrassment, or Tower's assertion that SEMTA violated ICC 
regulations, 49 C.F.R. Chapters 3 and 10, and 49 U.S.C. Chapter 8. UMTA also 
has no authority to award monetary damages as requested. 

IV. Findings and Determinations 

UMTA's findings are directed to each of the following allegations by Tower: 
that SEMTA (1) operates intercity charters in violation of 49 U.S.C.-
§ 1602(f), 49 C.F .R. § 604 and UMTA 's July 13, 1978 Order; (2) operates peak 
and extended hour charters in violation of 49 C.F.R. § 604; (3) operates 
school bus service in violation of 49 U.S.C. § 1602(g) and 49 C.F.R. & 605; 
(4) charges anticompetitive charter rates in violation of 49 U.S.C. § 1602(e) 
and (f) and 49 C.F.R. § 604; and (5) operates routes, schedules, and services 
in an anticompetitive manner in violation of 49 U.S.C. § 1602(e). 

A. Charter Bus Operations 

( 1) Intercity Charters 

By UMTA Order dated July 13, 1978, SEMTA was ordered to cease and desist for a 
period of three years from any charter operations outside that urban area in 
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which it provides regularly scheduled mass transportation services, as defined 
by State of Michigan Statute, Act 204, P.A. 1976, as amended. ·The Order was 
issued following a determination by UMTA that SEMTA had engaged in charter 
operations outside of ~.ts urban area without an agreement as required under 49 
U.s.c. § 1602(f) and 49 C.F.R. § 604.12. Upon termination of the UMTA Order 
on July 13, 1981, SEMTA was permitted to engage in intercity charter 
operations according to the provisions of 49 C.F.R. § 604.13, absent a special 
agreement under 49 C.F.R. § 604.14. Although SEMTA has not entered into a 
written agreement under 49 C.F .R. § 604.12, SEMTA is bound to comply with the 
provisions of 49 CFR § 604.13 by the terms of Part II of the UMTA grant 
agreement. . 

Tower alleges that SEMTA conducted 317 charters outside its urban area in. 
violation of 49 U.S.C. § 1602(f), 49 C.F.R. § 604.13 and the July 13, 1978 
Order. SEMTA admits that it engaged in some charter operations outside its 
urban area as Tower alleges~ but SEMTA also states that the number of alleged 
violations was exaggerated and that under current SEMTA practice, no 
extraterritorial charters are accepted. In addition, SEMTA states that those 
individuals who were primarly responsible for the violations are no longer 
employed by S EMT A. 

In view of the unrefuted evidence that after the July 13, 1978 Order expired, 
SEMTA voluntarily ceased operation of all charters outside of its urban area, 
UMTA does not find it necessary to· take any remedial action to prohibit SEMTA 
from engaging in such operations. Irrespective of whether there were 317 
violations or fewer violations between July 13, 1978 and July 13, 1981-·(when 
the Order was in effect), and between July 13, 1981 and December 18, 1981 
(after the Order expired), we find no violations since December 18, 1981 (when 
SEMTA responded to Tower's complaint}. SEMTA states that its voluntary 
extention of its three year probationary penalty will remain in effe~t until 
UMTA is·satisfied that SEMTA has fully complied with all appropriate 
procedures. Future violations do not, therefore, appear likely. If 
violations do recur, UMTA will take appropriate measures at that time. 

{2} Peak and Extended Hour Charters 

Tower alleges that SEMTA violated 49 C.F .R. § 604.11 by operating 
non-incidental charters. Under Section 604.1l{b), the.following uses of mass 
transportation buses in charter bus operations are presumed not to be 
incidental.: 

(1} Weekday charters which occur during peak morning and evening rush 
hours; 

(2) Weekday charters which require buses to travel more than fifty miles 
beyond the grantee's urban area; or 

{3) Weekday charters which require the use of a·particular bus for more 
than a total of six hours in any one day. 
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Tower charges that SEMTA operated weekday charters during peak morning and · 
evening rush hours, and operated weekday charters Which require the use of a 
bus for roore than six hours in one day. Tower submitted data in support of 
its position with its initial complaint on September 30, 1981, and submitted 
supplemental data, indicating continued violations, on September 30, 1982. 
The data is presented in a computerized analysis by Tower of SEMTA's records 
of its charter bus operations. 

4 

SEMTA responded to Tower's allegations both by pointing out the inaccuracies 
in Tower's data and analysis, and by showing that those peak and extended hour 
charters which did occur were incidental. SEMTA submitted its own analysis of 
the same charter runs that _were anal5'zed in Tower's computer printout. 

Tower defines SEMTA's peak hours as 6:00- 9:00a.m. and 3:00 - 6:00 p.m. 
SEMTA submits that its operational definition of peak hours is 7:10 - 8:10 
a.m. and 4:40 - 5:40 p.m. Under this definition, far fewer peak hour charters 
occurred. In addition, SEMTA asserts that some trips labeled by Tower as peak 
hour violations were cancelled and, therefore, never took place. SEMTA also 
states that other charters labelled by Tower as peak hour volations did not 
actually operate during peak hours, but were merely billed at the minimum 
two-hour charge. 

SEMTA asserts that some of the charters designated by Tower as requiring the 
use of a particular bus for more than six hours actually involved the use of 
more than one bus for less than six hours per bus. The total time billed·--,for 
each charter exceeded six hours, but each individual bus was used for less 
than six hours. 

SEMTA also disputes Tower's designation of some runs as charter runs at all. 
These runs involve small buses operated under SEMTA's municipal credit program 
{discussed in Section 8(1) below). Some of the runs were actually new regular 
transit routes that were billed as charters during a trial period to 
fascilitate billing and review of the cost of running the routes. 

In addition to presenting evidence refuting· Tower's designation of runs as 
peak and extended hour chl).rters, SEMTA rebutted the presumption that any peak 
or extended hour charters which took place were non-incidental. SEMTA 
submitted terminal dispatch logs, and dispatch office daily assignment sheets 
indicating that there was no disruption of or interference with regularly 
scheduled mass transportation service. Regardless of whether peak or extended 
hour charter operations took place. SEMTA had idle buses to operate those 
charters. Given that the charters did not interfere with regularly scheduled 
service the charters were incidental and not in violatio-n of 49 C.F.R. ' . 
~ 604.11. 
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(3) School Services 

Tower alleges that SEMTA operated school runs in violation of 49 u.s.c. 
§ 1602(g) and 49 C.F.R. Part 605, by assigning charter numbers to those runs 
as a subterfuge. According to Tower, the runs are actually regular school· 
runs operated to the exclusion of anyone but school children. In support of 
its allegations, Tower designated certain charter runs, on the computer print 
out of SEMTA's charter operations, as school runs. 

5 

SEMTA responds that its school services include the operation of tripper 
service and charter service, but denies the allegation that these operations 
are in violation of the regulation. SEMTA contends that its tripper service 
is permitted under 49 C.F.R. § 605.13 and that this service has never been 
disguised as charter service. Furthermore, SEMTA argues that the charter 
service it provides for school children is n9t a device to avoid any of the . 
requirements of 49 C.F.R. Part 605, and that the service is incidental charter 
service under 49 C.F.R. § 605.12. 

After reviewing the evidence and the arguments of both parties, UMTA finds 
that Tower has not presented sufficient evidence to establish that SEMTA 
violated the requirements of 49 u.s.c. 9 1602{g) or C.F.R. Part 605. 

B. Competttion with. Tower's. Services 

(1) Charter Rates 

Tower alleges that SEMTA's charter rates are anticompetitive in violation of 
49 U.S.C. § 1602{e) and (f) and 49 C.F.R. § 604.13. Tower's major concern 
appears to be t~at under Michigan's municipal credit program, SEMTA 
essentially provides "free" charter trips. 

It is not necessary for UMTA to decide whether, as a general matter, the 
municipal credit program results in anticompetitive charter service. UMTA's 
review is li.mited to considering whether SEMTA offers its charter service, 
including charters provided under the municipal credit program, in violation 
of the statutory and regulatory requirements with respect to charter rates. 
It is UMTA's position that no violation has occurred. 

Under 49 u.s.c. § 1602(e), UMTA may not provide financial assistance for the 
purposes of providing for mass transportation, unless the recipient's program, 
to the maximum extent feasible, provides for the participation of private mass 
transportation companies. This provision does not apply to SEMTA's charter 
ser\,ices, because charter services are specifically exc 1 uded from the 
definition of "mass transportation" under 49 u.s.c. § 1608(c) (6). SEMTA's 
charter rates cannot, therefore, be in violation of 49 u.s.c. § 1602(e). 
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According to 49 C.F.R. § 604.13, grantees are prohibited from charging 
anticompetitive rates for any charter operations if the grantee provides 
intercity charter service. As discussed in Section A(l) above, the facts in 
the record establish that SEMTA no longer operates any charters outside its 
urban area. Therefore, SEMTA • s charter rates are not subject to the · 
requirements of these sections, and no violations have occurred. 

{2) Routes, Schedules, and Services 

6 

Tower presented evidence, not refuted by SEMTA, indicating that SEMTA operates 
some routes .and schedules that overlap with Tower's services. Tower also 
asserts that SEMTA does not, to the maximum extent feasible, provide for the 
participation of private mass transportation companies as required under 
49 u.s.c. § 1602(e). 

In response, SEMTA contends that nearly all SEMTA and Tower routes differ by 
times, organization .and destination, type and frequency of service. SEMTA 
recognizes that there are minor overlaps, but argues that. the overlaps are an 
unavoidable result of fulfilling the public's needs for convenient and 
economical transportation that cannot be reasonably met by private companies 
alone. Moreover, SEMTA argues that the mere overlapping of routes, schedules 
or services does not significantly affect Tower's operations or reduce Tower's 
business. SEMTA also argues that~ taking into account both financial and 
practical co·nsiderations, it has used the services of private mass 
transportation companies to the maximum extent feasible. 

The UMT Act does not completely prohibit recipients from providing mass 
transportation services in competition with private companies. Section 
1602{e) states that UMTA's financial assistance is not to be provided: 

' 
"for the purpose of providing ••• for the operation of mass 
transportation facilities or equipment in competition with, or 
supplementary to, the service provided by an existing mass transportation 
company, unless (.1) the Secretary finds that such assistance is essential 
to the program or projects required by section 8 of [the] Act, [and] 
{2) the Secretary finds that such program, to the maximum extent 
feasible, provides for the participation of private mass transportation 
companies ••• " 

UMTA set forth the rules by which it determines whether a grantee has met its 
responsibilities to private mass transportation companies under this Section 
in a memorandum concerning Hudson Bus Lines, Inc.: 
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a. A grantee must be able to establish that it adhered to a process that 
assures: 

(1) Private mass transportation companies have been or will be 
afforded an opportunity to be heard. 

(2) Private mass transportation companies have been or will be given 
meaningful considertion as potential participants in the provision 
of mass transportation service. / 

b. A grantee may then determine whether and to what extent it is 
feasible to involve private mass transportation companies in the 
federally assisted transportation program in the area· but the grantee 
must be able to justify its rationale for that determination. 

c. Upon receiving a complaint, UMTA will review the grantee's decision 
and rationale therefore to assure that the grantee's decision is neither 
arbitrary nor capricious, nor an unwarranted abuse of discretion. 

UMTA also stresses the importance of documentation by the grantee to 
demonstrate what opportunities to participate were actually afforded to the 
complainant. 

SEMTA contends that it has never operated any buses, schedules or services for 
the purpose of competing with Tower or other private tompanies. Furthermore, 
SEMTA states that overlaps are the unavoidable result of fulfilling the 
public's mass transportation needs in the southeastern Michigan area. In 
determining the feasibility of entering into contracts with private carriers, 
SEMTA asserts that it takes into account both economical and practical 
considerations. SEMTA has submitted evidence demonstrating its willingness to 
accomodate and/or compensate private companies. The evidence includes 
documentation of agreements and proposals between SEMTA and Tower. 

UMTA therefore finds that SEMTA's determination that it provides for 
participation by private mass transportation companies to the maximum extent 
feasible is neither arbitrary and capricious nor an abuse of discretion. 
Accordingly. UMTA does not find that SEMTA violated 49 U.S.C. § 1602(e) as 
alleged. 
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V. Conclusions and Order 

In view of the foregoing, UMTA concludes that SEMTA's charter operations 
comport with UMTA's statute, regulations, and July 13, 1978 Order. UMTA also 
finds that SEMTA's charter rates, routes, schedules and services are also in 
compliance with UMTA's requirements. Therefore, no action will be taken by 
UMTA. 
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Raleigh Transportation Services 

Canplainant 

v. 

City of Raleigh, North Carolina 

and 

Capital Axea Transit System 

Respondents 

I. Sumna:ry 

DECISION 

This decision is the conclusion of an investigation begun in response to ·a 
canplaint received by the Urban Mass Transportation Administration (UMrA) 
Regional Office in Atlanta, Georgia, from Raleigh Transportation Services 
(RTS). In its canplaint, RTS alleges that the City of Raleigh (the City) and 
the Capital Axea Transit System (CATS) are in violation of the charter bus or 
school bus provisions in Sections 3(f) and 3(g) of the Urban Mass 
TransportationActof1964, as anended, (49 U.S.C. 1602(f) and (g)) (lMI'Act) 
and the implementing regulations (49 CFR Parts 604 and 605). UMI'A concludes 
that the City and CATS are not in violation of either Section 3(f) or 3(g) of 
the TJMI' Act or the implementing regulations. 

I I. Background 

A. The Complaint. 

RTS filed a canplaint with the Regional Administrator on ~tober 11 , 1982. In 
this canplaint RTS alleges that the City and CATS, the operator of the local 
public transit system which receives t.MTA funds fran the City, are violating 
the school bus provisions in Section 3(g) of the UMT Act since CATS is 
providing exclusive transportation for sttrlents and school personnel in 
competition with private operators. RTS also alleges that it had contacted 
the City w:lich considers the service in question to be charter bus service,. 
not school bus service. If true, RTS alleges that the City and CATS are 

133 



violating the charter bus prov1s1ons in Section 3(f) of the UMT Act and the 
implenenting regulations at 49 CFR 604.11 since the service in question is 
provided during peak hours and the trips use a vehicle for more than 6 hours 

. per day. 

2 

Specifically, RTS alleges that CATS is providing transportation service for 
students to and fran North Carolina State University in Raleigh. 'Ihe origin 
of the service is the Wakefield Apartments ·in Raleigh. 'Ihe service is alleged 
to be provided by one bus in continuous circulation from 7:00 a.m. to 6:00 
p.m. M::mday through Friday on 30 minute headways. During peak hours, fran 
7:00a.m. to 10:30 a.m. and from 2:30p.m. to 5:00p.m., an additional bus is 
alleged to proVide service. The service is alleged to be paid for by the real 
estate managenent finn at the apartment complex and is .for the exclusive use 
of the stu::lents living at th~ apartment canplex. RTS alleges that the service 
operates closed door between the apartment complex and North Carolina State 
University. This service is alleged to be provided with the same equip:nent 
that CATS uses for its regular route service. 

On October 1R, 1982, l.MI'A responded toRTS and acknowledged the receipt of the 
canplaint. In addition, UMl'A requested that RTS provide additional 
infonnation regarding the alleged charter bus violations if su:h infonnation 
were available. t-b infonnation 'WaS received and on 't>bvanber 11, 1982, UMTA 
sent a copy of the canplaint to the City, UMI'A' s recipient; ·for ihvestigation 
and reply. · 

B. Response to the Complaint. 

On Novenber 15, 1982, the City acknowledged its receipt of UMI'A' s 
October 1 R, 19B2, letter and ·stated that it 'WaS preparing a response. In its 
response, dated Decenber 3, 19B2 ·, the City states it understands Section 3 (g). 
of the l.Ml' Act and the implenenting regulations to apply only to primary and 
secondary school bus transportation and not to the transportation of 
university students. Second, the City claims that it is not providing "school 
bus operations" as defined in 49 CFR 605.3 since it does not provide the 
service in question with either a Type I or TYPe II school vehicle as defined 
in the Highway Safety Progran Standard No. 17 (23 CFR 1204.4). 'lhird, the 
City states that the party contracting for the service is not a school or a 
school systen, but is a businessman mo operates the apartment canplex. From 
these three premises the City concludes that the service in question is 
charter service.. · 

The City further states that the intent of the Section 3(f) of the UMI' Act is 
to protect private intercity charter bus operators. 'lhe City states that the 
service in question is intracity since it begins and ends within the city 
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limits of Raleigh. Second, the City states that it has'done nothing to 
forclose private operators since it changes full charter rates "*lich cover 
operating expenses and which include a factor.for profit. 

The City states that it considers the service incidental charter service. 
Although the City admits that it does operate the service during peak hours 
and uses a bus for longer than 6 hours in any one day, it states that the · 
service is incidental since it does not detract from or interfere with the· 
regular service it provides • 

.C. Rebuttal 

3 

en January 6, 19R3, UMI'A sent a copy of the City's response to the RTS. '!he 
RTS rebutted the City's assertions on January 26, 1983. First, the RTS argues 
that the City's belief that the school bus provisions in Section 3(g) of the 
UMI' Act apply only to primary and secondary stu:ients is difficult to 
understand. The RTS refers to a meeting in Septanber 1982 attended by then 
UMrA Regional Administrator Carl Richardson, Ms. Collen Weule, an U1I'A 
Attorney, and representatives of the RTS and the City. At that meeting, the 
RTS alleges that Mr. Richardson and Ms. Weule explained that the. tenn 
"stu:ient" in Section 3(g) applies to any stu:ient inclu:iing those attending 
colleges and universities. -

Second, the RTS asserts that the City's argunents that the type of bus that 
CATS uses to provide the service is not a Type I or TYPe II schoolbus and the 
fact that a businessman, and not a school or school systan, pays for the 
service are irrelevant. 1hird, the RTS alleges that the service is not 
incidental since it operates 11 hours each day,. with 30 minute headways for 
1 50 days each year. 

D. UMTA Request for Additional Information.· 

On O:tober 23, 1984, '£MI'A requested that the City provide it with additional 
information concerning its charter bus operations. Specifically, lMI'A 
requested that the City provide evidence to shqw that the service in question 
does not detract fran the provision of regularly· scheduled mass transp:>rtation 
service. Although the City asserted in its Decanber 3, 19R2, response that 
the service is incidental even though it operates doing peak hours and uses a 
bus for more than 6 hours a day, it provided no factual data in that letter to 
supp:>rt its conclusion. 

In addition, UMrA requested that the City provide financial data to support 
its claim that the costs for providing the service in question are covered by 
re\Tenues. OOA stated that the regulation's requiranent that annual charter 
costs be covered by annual charter revenues only applies if a recipient 
provides intercity charter service. If a recipient provides only intracity 
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charter service, the regulations do not impose any requiranents on the rates 
for this service. Since the City had never stated that it provides intercity 
service, ~ advised it that it needs only provide the requested information 
if it provides intercity service. 

E. Response. 

'Ihe City resJX>nded by letter dated Decanber 17, 19R4. The City states that it 
has an active fleet of 46 buses, and a peak requiranent of 41 buses (this is 
for the A.M. peak, the P.M. peak requires only 40 buses) mich includes the 
buses used for the service in question. 1he City's off peak requiranent is 
only 20 buses. In addition, the City provides an analysis of road calls 
during its fiscal year ending June 30, 1984. According to this analysis, the 
City experienced , on the average, less than one road call per day. Fran this, 
the City concludes that the service in question does not interfere with its 
mass transportation service. 

In addition, the City also provides a schedule of its charter rates. 
According to this material, the City's charter costs per hour are S2R.62 and 
the rate it charges for charter service is $29.63. The City states that this 
information shows that its charter revenues do cover its charter costs. 

'!he letter, howeve~, does not state specifically that the City provides 
intercity charter sel::vice. By telephone conversation on Decanber 21, 1984, 
'Mr. &art &rham, the City's Transportation Services Engineer, confirmed that 
it does provide such service. · 

III. Findings and Determinations 

In order to determine mether the service in question is impermissible, it is 
necessary to compare the current operations with both school bus service and 
charter bus service as these types of service are defined in the T.Mr Act and 
the implanenting regulations 

A. School Bus Service 

Section 3(g) of the UMT Act provides that: 

No Federal financial assistance shall be provided under this Act for the 
construction or operation of faciities and equipnent for use in providing 
pUblic mass transportation se~ice to any applicant for such assistance 
unless such applicant and the Secretary shall have first entered into an 
agreanent that such applicant will not engage in schoolbus operations, 
exclusively for the transportation of stu:ients and school personnel, in 
competition with private schoolbus operators. 
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'lhe regulations irnplanenting this. provision define "school bus operations" as 
"transportation by bus exclusively for school stooents, personnel and 
eqripment in Type I and Type II school vehicles as defined in Highway Safety 
Progran Standards No. 17" 49 'cFR ·605.3. Th.us, it is necessp.ry to revieW the 
service provided by CATS to determine if it: 1) is by bus; 2) transports 
students, personnel or equipnent; 3) is exclusive transportation; and'4) is 
provided in a Type I or Type II school vehicle. 

5 

There is no dispute that the service in question is provided by bus. In 
addition, the City does not deny that the service is provided exclusively for 
the resirtents of the t.J'akefield Apartanents who attened North Carolina State 
University. 

The City, however, does dispute that the patrons of the service are students. 
The City argues in its Decanber 3, 1982, letter, that "students" only includes 
people attending primary and secondary schools. The RTS rebuts this argument 
by stating that tMI'A staff have said that the term "students" does include 
people attending colleges and universities. 

UMrA has not previously formally adressed the question of 'Nhether. a college 
student is a "student" in terms of Section 3(g) of the UMl' Act· and the school 
bus regulations. After a thorough review of this question, lJMI'A concludes 
that the teil!l "student:" in Section 3(g) and the school bus regulation do~s not 
include college students. Neither the TJMT Act nor the school bus r~lations 
define "student". Similarily, neither the legislative history nor the 
regulatory history discuss mo is considered to be within the class of 
"students". In such cases, it is a well-settled canon of statutory 
construction that "~rds used in a statute are to be given their ordinary· 
meaning in the ahsence of persuasive reasons to the contrarv." Bums v. 
Aleala, 420 U.S. 575, 580-81 (1975). 

While the ordinary meaning of "students" may be broad enough to include a 
person of any age who studies, the meaning of this term in Section 3(g) 
cannot be read without looldng at this prO\Tision as a mole.· In addition to 
setting out the general prohihition against UMIA recipients providing 
exclusive.service to students, Section 3(g) provides specific exceptions to 
this prohibition. 'Ihe last of the three exceptions states: 

this subsection shall not apply ~th respect to any State or local public 
body or agency thereof, if it (or a direct predecessor in interest from 
mich it acquired the function of so transporting school-children and 
personnel along with facilities to be used therefore was so engaged in 
schoolbus operations any time during the twelve-month period immediately 
prior to the date of the enactment of this subsection. (Emphasis added.) 
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'Ihe ~rd "school-children" in this exception appears to function as a synonym 
for "stu:ients" in the first sentence of Section 3 (g) • The ordinary meaning. of 
"school-children" is, in lMI'A' s opinion, limited to primary, pre-primary, and 
secondary school stu:ients. Consequently, it is T.JMI'A' s opinion that "stu:i.ents" · 
in Section 3(g), ·since it is a synonym for "school-children", does not incltrle 
college students. 

'Ihis conclusion is supiXJrted by the legislative history for Section 3(g) and a 
related bill passed during the same Congressional session Which added 
Section 3(g) to the T.MI' Act. Congress first enacted a school bus provision in 
the Federal-Aid Tiighway Act of 1973 (Pub. L. No. 93-A7). Section 164(b) of 
this Act requires any applicant for financial assistance to purchase buses 
under Sections 103(e) and 142 of 23 U.S.C. or under the UMT Act to enter into 
an agreement that it ~uld not engage in exclusive school bus operations for 
sttrlents and school persormel in competition with private operators. Congress 
added the school bus provision to the tMI' Act in the National Mass 
Transportation Assistance Act of 1974 (Pub. L. 93-503). The language added as 
Section 3(g) is identical to that in Section -164(b) of the 1973 Act except 
that it expends the agreement requirement to incltrle applications for grants 
for construction or operation of any facilities and equipment. 

Both of these provisions had their origins in House-passed bills. 'Ihe Senate 
passed bills did not contain any school bus provisions and, thus, the language 
was included by the Conference Ccmnittees. 1n both House-passed bills, 
Section 142(h) of S. 502 and Section 9 of H.R. 6452, the ~rd "schoolchildren" 
is used exclusively. The ~rd "sttrlent" was added in conference for both 
bills. This evidences a clear intent on the part of Congress that the two 
terms are synonyms and that the persons UMrA recipients are prohibited fran 
transporting are persons attending primary, pre-primary, and secondary schools 
and not those attending colleges or Universities. 

In addition, the same Congress mich added Section 3(g) to the UMI' Act also 
enacted the M:>tor Vehicle and School Bus Safety Amendment of 1974 (Puh. L. 
No. 93-492). This Act amends the National Traffic and M:>tor Vehicle Safety 
Act of 1966 (Pub L. No. 89-563). In addition to authorizing appropriations 
for another of the Depart:Jnent of Transp:>rtation' s operating administrations, 
the National Highway and Traffic Safety Administration (NRI'SA) for FY 1975 and 
197 6, these amendments require NliTSA to issue M:>tor Vehicle Safety Standards 
for schoolbuses and defines "schoolbus" to mean, 
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a passenger motor vehicle which is designed to carry more than 10 
passengers in addition to the driver, and Which the Secretary determines 
is likely to be significantly used for the purpose of transpOrting 
primary, pre-primary, or secondary school students to or fran such 
schools or events related to such schools. (15 U.S. C. §1 391 ·(14)) 

Thus, for the purposes of NHTSA' s safety program, O:mgress excluded college 
students fran the riders of schoolbuses. 

Canons of statutory construction state that statutes relating to the same 
subject and passed at the same legislative session are to be construed 
harmoniously. 82 C.J.S. § 367. Since Congress added the schoolbus provision 
to the UMI' Act and to the MJtor Vehicles Safety Act of 1966 in the same 
sessions, catagories of person transported by a schoolbus should he 
interpreted consistently. Consequently, tMrA finds it necessary to exclude 
college students fran the Section 3(g) definition of "students" since they are 
e>ecluded in the l-btor Vehicle and Schoolbus Safety Amendments of 1974. · 

Therefore, since tMrA has detennine that college students are not students 
within the terms of Section 3(~) of the tlMI' Act and the implanenting 
regulations, we conclude that the City is not in violation of the 
prohibitions on providing exclusive school bus service with U1I'A-funded 
vehicles and equiiJilent. 

B. Charter bus Service. 

'lhe limitations on the charter bus service which U1rA recipients may provide 
with UMI'A-funded vehicles and equipnent are contained in two provisions in the 
tm Act. Section 12(c)(6) defines "mass transportation11 to specifically 
exclude charter service. Based on a Canptroller General' s Opinion, ho\.1ever, 
UITA recipients are pennitted to provide charter bus service as long as it is 
incidental to the provision of ~ss transportation service. Section 3(f) 
prohihits the Secretary of Transportation from providing financial assistance 
under the UMI Act unless the applicant enters into an agreanent that as a 
condition of such assistance the public body will not engage in charter bus 
operations outside the urban area within which it provides rP.gUlarly scheduled 
mass transportation service so as to foreclose private operators. from 
intercity charter service. 

~~'s regulation on Charter Bus Operations (49 CFR Part 604) define charter 
bus operations as: 

transportation by bus of a group of persons who, pursuant to a carmen 
purpose, and under a si~le contract, at a fixed charge for th~ vehicles 
or service, in accordance with the carrier's tariff, have acqw.red the 
exclusive use of a bus to travel together under an itinerary, either 
agreed on in advance, or modified after having left the place of origin. 
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A comparison of the service in question with this definition indicates that it 
is charter service. The service is by bus and transports.a group of people, 
for a single purpose, under a contract, at a fixed charge, under an 
itinerary. Although charter service is generally thought of as a· one time 
trip, e.g., a field trip, the UMTA definition is broad enough to include the 
recurring type of service provided here by the City through CATS. 

The regulation implements the statutory provisions referred to above in 
distinct·ways. Section 604.11 states that charter service is presuned to be 
not incidental if it is during the v.eekday and it occurs during peak hours, 
requires a bus to travel more than 50 miles outside a recipient's urban area, 
or requires the use of a particular bus for more than a total of 6 hours in 
any one day. 'These restrictions apply to any charter service, whether 
intracity or intercity, which a recipient provides. 

Section 604.12 implements the protections for private intercity charter bus 
operators by requiring a recipient that does any intercity charter service to 
cover total charter costs (both intercity and intracity) with total charter 
revenues and by prohibiting a recipient fran charging a predatory rate. 

The RTS alleges that the service is not incidental since it is provided during 
peak hours and requires the use of a particular vehicle for more than 6 hours 
in a day. The City responds that the service is incident;al, intracity service 
Which does not foreclose private operators since the rate charged covers all 
operating expenses and incl~es a profit factor. 

After a review of the evidence submitted, lMI'A conclu::les that the charter 
services is incidental. The City has an active fleet of 46 buses and has an 
A.M. peak requirement of 41 buses and a P.M. peak requirement of 40 bus 
including the buses needed for the service in question. Its off-peak 
requirement is 20 buses. In addition, the City's data on roadcalls, i.e. 
service disruptions indicating the breakdown of a bus during scheduled . 
service, during its fiscal year 1984 show on the average less than: 1 roadcall 
per day. Since the City has 5 , n, and 26 spare buses available during its 
A.M. peak period, P.M. peak period, and off peak period, respectively, it can 
meet roadcall needs with the available spare ~uses. tMrA concludes, 
therefore, that the City has rebutted the incidental use prestiDptions and that 
the charter service is pennissible. 

In addition, the City sul.lnitted a cost allocation plan showing its per hour 
charter costs for the twelve month period ending June 30, 1984. According to 
this data vhich accounts for the costs listed in Appendix B to the charter bus 
regulation, the City's per hour charter cos·ts are $28.62. '!he City' s per hour 
charter revenues are $29.65. 'nle regulation only requires that the City's 
charter revenues equal or exceed its charter costs if it provides intercity 
charter service. If su:h service is provided , 'however, the recipient must 
e1sure that its total charter revenues equal or exceed its total charter 
costs. Since the City does operate ·~ntercity charter service, the above 
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descrihed cost and revenue requirernents'applv. The data provide by the City, 
h01o1ever, shows that it is meeting these requirements. Therefore, Tlt-ft'A finds 
the City incompliance with this provision of the charter bus regulations. 

rr. r.()nclus ion 

'Ihe R.TS allege::; that the service provined hy the Citv through CATS frc:m the 
i-Jakefielci Ap~rtments to the North r.arolina !=:tate Tlniversitv violates 
Sections 3(f) or·J(g) of the UMI' .Act and the corresponding implementing 
re2ulations. As ciiscusseri above, TJMrA finds the Citv and C..AT~ are not in 
violation of these provisions or the regulations. The service in question is 
not prohihiten school hus service since college sturlents are not "stunents" 
within the tenns of Section 3(g) or its implementing regulations. 
Furthermore, althotlQh the service is charter ser"ice, the e\Ticience provicien hv 
the Citv :::;hows that it is incidental to the pro,~sion of mass transportation 
and that, as a provider of intercity charter service, the Citv's annual 
charter revenue; equal or exceed its annual charter costs. 

Sub!>titted by, ';l__,)_i,, ,J.l, _ , '\:1 ~ Date' .24 3""-•Yf'J \'{(( 
n::mg as G. r..ot~ 

tornev isor 
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US. 0epo II ilt!l'lf 
a 1trlspor1alion 

Urban Mass 
Tl Cll dpOi lalton 
Mnil•hallon 

Headquaners 

FEB 8 1985 

Mr. John F. Fryer 
Counsel for Transportation Regulation 
u. S. lbuse of Representative 
Camni ttee on Public \brks and 

Transportation 
2165 Rayburn liJuse Office lmlding 
'Washington, D.C. 20515 

Dear Mr. Fryer: 

400 71h Street S.W. 
Washington, D.C. 20590 

Fnclosed is the infonnation t:hat you requested fran the Urban Mass 
Transportation Administration (lJ1I'A) during a meeting on January 29, 1985, 
which you had With ]))uglas Gold, of my staff, and Daniel Harrant, Cffice of 
Bl.xiget and Policy. I hope that the infomation will assist in your review 
of various charter bus issues. 

'!he first enclosure is a copy of tMrA's regUlations on Charter Bus 
~erations (49 CFR Part 604). 'lbe second enclosure is a list of those tMrA 
!-"ecipients, according to the fiscal year 1983 subnissions for the_ Section 15 
Report, that provide charter bus service. 1he list indicates the charter 
rev'enues, b::rurs, and miles prO\Tided. · 

In addition, you requested OOA' s camnents on a docunent prepared by the 
American D.Js Association .(ABA) entitled, "'Ihe Fight Against Subsidized 
Olarter Bus Operations -- '!be Role of the JIDerican Bus Association." 'lhe 
docunent discusses, aoong other things, t.Ml'A's charter bus regulation, the 
ABA' s suggested rev'i sions , both regulatory and statutory, and recent 
Interstate COmmerce Cbmmission actions granting expanded charter authority 
Ul.'¥ier the Bus Regulatory Refotm Act af 1982. Since UMrA is in the process 
of rulemaking to revise the existing charter bus regulation, it would, in 
our opinion, not be appropriate to ccmnent an the ABA' s dOC\IDent. 

Finally, Mr. Clyde \obodle asked what armua1 costs a private charter bus 
operator incurs to cover the acquisition and operations of a charter bus. A 
quick check with Mr. Harold M:>rgan, the ABA's Director of Statist~cal . 
Research, estimates that based an a purchase price o~ $180,000, f1nanced at 
a 15 percent intere.st rate, a private operator spends at mst $25,000 per 
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year over the 1 0 year life af the bus in capital costs. Mr. !brgan also 
estimates an operati~ cost af $1 .80 per mile. Since buses travel on the 
average of 75,000 miles per year, the annual operati~ cost is $135,000. If 
Mr. W:>odle wuld like these figures fleshed out, we wuld be happy to try to 
do so. 

If there is 8IrJ additional information that tMI'A can provide, pleaSe do not 
hesitate to conact me. 

Enclosures 
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US. Deportment 
of Transportation 

Urban Mass 
Transportation 
Admlnlsh a lion 

Mr. 'Jhomas W. F1. sher 
President 
Tc:Mer Bus , Inc. 
363 North Gratiot 
1-bl.Dlt Clemens, Michigan 48043 

Dear Mr. F1. sher: 

Headquarters 

FEB I I 1985 

400 7th Street S.W. 
Washington, D.C. 20590 

'!his responds to your letter concerning the decision rendered by the Urban 
Mass Transportation Administration (tmA) on the cauplaint filed by you on 
behalf of Tower Bus, Inc. , against the Southeastern Michigan Transportation 
Administration (SliMr.A). In the caoplaint, you alleged that S:e-trA., a 
recipient of Federal financial assistance fran l.Ml'A, violated the 
restrictions imposed on charter bus service and school bus service by the 
Urban Mass Transportation Act of 1964, as anended (UMI' Act), and l.lMrA' s 
implement~ng regulations, and the terms of a July 13, 1978, 1MrA Order 
further restricting SEMIA's charter bus operations. UM!A's decision fq~d 
that SEMrA was not in violation of either the statutory or regulatory 

·provisions and that, although SEMrA had violated the Order, m remedial 
actions were necessary since the violations had ceased. 

Your letter addresses several points. let me respond to them in order. 
First, you state that UMrA has never conducted an on-site investigation of 
S:EMI'A. In lktober 1984, tmA's regional staff in Orl.cago conducted an 
on-site visit of SEMI'A. 'Jhis was done as part of the Triennial Review which 
is required by Section 9(g) (2) of the UMr Act. 'Jhe purpose of the Triennial 
Review is to ensure that UMl'A' s grantees are cauplying with statutory and 
administrative requirements. '!he regional staff examined SEMrA' s charter · 
records and noted several potential violations of the charter bus 
regulation's incidental use presumptions. These problems will be presented 
to SF.MrA in the Triennial Review Report and S:fMI'A will be given the 
opportl.Dlity to respond. If SEMrA is l.Dlable to prove that the service in 
question did rot violate the regulations, we will take appropriate actions. 

In your second point, you state that UMrA's decision accepts SFMIA's 
admission that it violated the July 13, 1978, l.Ml'A Order, but does not find 
SEMrA guilty since SEMrA has ceased providing the prohibited service. 'lhi.s 

-is not a correct reading of the decision. \bile the decision does state 
that UMrA accepts SEMrA's admission of violation, it does not state that 
S'OOA is not guilty. Rather, the decision states that lMI'A is not imposing 
any remedial actions for the violations. The absence of any penalty is rot 
equivalent to a finding of not guilty. 
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In this case, the decision clearly states why OOA felt oo remedial actions 
were necessary. First, there was oo evidence of any violations after 
December 18, 1981. Second, SEMI'A states that its voluntary extension of the 
prohibition on intercity charter servic~ will rsnain in effect until it has 
satifactorily canplied with UMI'A's regulation. Based on these points, t.MrA 
did rot feel further violations were likly to ocurr and that remedial action 
was unnecessary. 

Your third point criticizes tMrA for permitting SEMrA to provide ~er bus 
service without entering into a charter bus agreement as required by 
Section 3(f) of the UMr Act. 'Ibis is not correct. SEMl'A has entered into a 
charter bus agreement with UMrA. The decision states, "Although SEMrA has 
qot entered into a written agreement under 49 C.F.R. §604.12, SEMI'A is bol.md 
to canply with the provisions of 49 CFR §604.13 by the tenns of Part II of 
the UMI'A grant agreement." The provisions of 49 CFR §604. 13 contain the 
tenus of the standard charter bus agreement. As a result, l.MrA considers 
that SFl1rA is bound by the terms of the standard agreement 8B:i has, in 
effect, entered into the statutor-ily required agreement. 

I beliare that this infonnation responds to the points your raised in your 
letter. If you would like to discuss the decision or this response, I would 
be happy to meet with or your representatives personally. 

· Sincerely, 

Edward J. Gill, Jr. 
Acting Chief Counsel 
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U.S. Department 
ot Transportation 

Urban Moss 
Transportation 
Administration 

Mr. John Shoup 
President, -Tri-State Coach 

Lines, Inc. 
2101 West 37th Avenue 
Gary, Indiana 46408 

Dear Mr. Shoup: 

The Administrator 

JUN 2 4 1985 

400 Seventh St., S.W. 
Washington, D.C. 20590 

This responds to your recent letter regarding the Northwest Indiana Regional 
Planning Commission•s (NIRPC) transportation improvement plan. You are 
concerned that the grant funds that the NIRPC might receive from the Urban 
Mass Transportation Administration (UMTA) and pass through to private 
transportation providers would give those private operators an unfair 
competitive advantage in the charter bus market over operators such as 
Tri-State Coach Lines, Inc., which receive no UMTA subsidies. Let me assure 
you that your comments have been transmitted.to UMTA 1s Regional Office. in 
Chicago and will be taken into considerati-on .. when determiningwhether 
NIRPc•s applications will be granted. 

Since your concerns revolve mainly around the potential advantage which the 
subsidized private operators may enjoy in the charter market, I feel it is 
important to give you some background on the restrictions on charter bus 
service which UMTA imposes on its grant recipients. UMTA 1 s regulations on 
Charter Bus Operations (49 CFR Part 604, copy enclosed) implement two 
provisions in the Urban Mass Transportation Act of 1~64, as amended. 
Section 12(c)(6) of the Act defines "mass transportation" to exclude 
charter bus operations. A 1966 Comptroller General's Opinion, set forth in 
Appendix A to the regulation, however, states that UMTA has _the discretion 
to permit recipients to ·use UMTA-funded equipment. on an incidental· basis to 
provide charter bus service so long as it does not detract from the 
provision of mass transportation service. The regulation, in Section 
604.11, implements these restrictions by prohibiting a recipient from 
providing cer:tai n charter bus service on weekdays such as during peak 
periods. The regulation presumes that such service is~ incidental. If a 
complaint were filed, a recipient could rebut these presumptions with 
factual evidence to show that the service in question does not detract from 
the provisi,:on of mass transportation. 

The other provision in the UMT Act that concerns charter bus service is 
Section 3(f). This provision was added by Congress in 1974 to protect 
private providers of intercity charter bus service from unfair competition 
by UMTA recipients. According to this provision, all applicants for UMTA 
assistance must enter into an agreement with UMTA. The regulation, in 
Section 604.13, sets forth the standard terms of this agreement. The two 
key provisions of this agreement require a recipient that provides any 
intercity charter service to cover its total annual charter costs (both 
intercity and intracity) with its charter revenues and prohibit a recipient 
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from charging a predatory rate on any charter route. The list of costs that 
must be included in this calculation is set forth in Appendix B to the 
regulation. The theory behind this 9-pproach is that, by requiring a 
recipient to fully allocate its charter costs and to cover its charter costs 
with revenues, the benefit of any UMTA assistance is neutralized and the 
recipient and any private intercity charter bus operators will be on an 
equal economic plane. 

From your perspective, it is important to note that Section S04~12 clearly 
states that the regulation applies not just to UMTA recipients, but also to· 
any operators for a recipient. In the situation you describe, the private 
operators to which the NIRPC would pass UMTA assistance would be bound to 
comply·with the regulation. Therefore, by fully allocating costs according 
to the required cost allocation plan and ensuring that annual charter 
revenues equal or exceed charter costs, any advantage provided by UMT~ 
subsidies should be neutralized. 

I must stress, however, that these economic restrictions only apply if the 
recipient, or operator for the recipient, operates intercity charter bus 
service. The regulation defines "intercity charter bus service" generally 
as charter service outside the recipient's urbanized area. If a·recipient, 
or operator for the recipient, operates charter service solely within the 
urbanized area, the orily restrictions which the regulation imposes are those 
to ~nsure that the charter service is incidental to the provision of mass 
transportation. The regulation does not speak to the costs which must be 
charged for such service. 

Since UMTA issued this regulation in 1976, both recipients and private 
intercity operators have complained. UMTA's recipients complain that the 
regulation is too burdensome and unduly restricts their ability to provide 
charter service which generates revenues to offset operating deficits. 
Private intercity charter operators argue that the regulations do not offer 
~nough protections and that the cost data is too complex to be.able to 
·~ffectively review to determine if costs are being covered by revenues. 
Consequently, UMTA is in the process of revising the regulation. We 
published an advance notice of proposed rulemaking in October 1982 and are 
presently drafting a notice of proposed rulemaking. Although I admit that 
this represents a considerable time delay, let me assure you that this does 
not evidence any lack of desire on UMTA's part to issue an effective rule. 
instead, rulemaking.is, by its very nature, a complex process and when the 
issues involved, as they are here, are so multifaceted, the complexity 
escalates. We are diligently working on this revision and hope to publish 
it soon. 

147 



I hope that this has provided some useful information for you. If you have 
any additional questions, please do not hesitate to contact me. 

Sincerely, 

~~M 
Ralph L. Stanley 

Enclosure 

Urban Mass Transj)ortat ion Admi ni st~at ion 
UCC-32:0GOLU:KLY:6/4/85:426-1936 
Control No. UU3647:Uue Uate: 85-6-11 
cc: UOA-1/UiJA-l/UuA-3/UES-l/UES-1U(2)/Ul3P/UGM/UGH-30 

UKU-5/Nancy Greene/UfW-5/Ki ck Bac i ga 1 upo/ 
UCC-Chron/UCC-32/Gold/UCC-30/Munter 
UCC-1/LaSala 

File: IN: NIRPC §3(f) Inquiry 
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DECISION ON REQUEST FOR RECONSIDERATION 

Raleigh Transportation Services 

Comp l.a i nant 

v. 

City of Raleigh, North Carolina 

and 

Capital Area Transit System 

Respondents 

I •. SUMMARY 

The Urban Mass Transportation Administration {UMTA) has reconisdered its 
decision in Raleigh Transportation Services v. City of Raleigh, North 
Carolina and Capital Area Transit System .(January 28, 1985). On 
reconsideration, we still find no violation of the Urban Mass Transportation 
Act of 1964, as amended, or the implementing regulations, but base our finding 
instead on the conclusion that the service at issue is not charter service, 
but a form of mass transportation service. 

II. Background 

On January 28, 1985, UMTA issued its decision in response to the complaint 
filed by Raleigh Transportation Services {RTS) against the City of Raleigh, 
North Carolina (the City) and the Capital Area Transit System (CATS). In its 
complaint, the RTS alleged that the City and CATS violated the charter bus or 
school bus provisions in Section 3{f) and 3(g) of the Urban Mass 
Transportation Act of 1964, as amended (49 u.s.c. 1602{f) and {g)) {UMT Act) 
pnd the implementing regulations (49 CFR Parts 604 and 605). UMTA concluded 

'that the City and CATS were not in violation of either Section 3(f) or 3(g) of 
the UMT Act or the implementing regulations. 

The service complained of is provided by the RTS through CATS to students to 
and from North Carolina State University in Raleigh. The origin of the 
service is the Wakefield Apartments in Raleigh. The service is alleged to be 
provided by one bus in continuous circulation from 7:00a.m. to 6:00 p.m. 
Monday through Friday on 30 minute headways. During peak hours, from 
7:00a.m. to 10:30 a.m. and from 2:30 p.m. to 5:00p.m., an additional bus is 
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alleged to provide service. The service is alleged to be paid for by the real 
estate management firm at the apartment complex and is for the exclusive use 
of the students 1 hi ng at the apartment complex. RTS alleges that the service 
operates closed door between the apartment complex and North Carolina State 
University. 

UMTA held in its January 28, 1985, decision that the service does not vi-olate 
the school bus restrictions in Section 3{g) of the UMT Act or its implementing 
regulations in 49 CFR Part 605 since college students are not 11students 11 

within the terms of these provisions. Furthermore, although UMTA concluded 
that the service is charter service, the evidence provided by the City showed 
that it is incidental to the provision of mass transportation and that, as a 
provider of intercity charter service, the City's annual charter revenues 
equal or exceed its annual charter costs. 

III. Reconsideration 

UMTA has decided to reconsider this decision since it is arguable that the 
service in question is a form of permissible mass transportation called 
subscription bus service and, therefore, UMTA did not have to reach the 
conclusion whether the service is school bus service or charter bus service. 

IV. Discussion 

UMTA's regulation on Charter Bus Operations (49 CFR Part 604) defines charter 
bus operations as: 

transportatio~ by bus of a group of persons who, pursuant to a common 
purpose, and under a single contract, at a fixed charge for the vehicles 
or service, in accordance with the carrier's tariff, have acquired the 
exclusive use of a bus to travel together under an itinerary, either 
agreed on in advance, or modified after having left the place of origin. 

The initial decision compared this definition with the service in question and 
concluded that it 1s charter service. The decision states, 

The service is by bus and transports a group of people, for a single 
purpose, under a contract, at a fixed charge, under an itinerary. 
Although charter service is generally thought of as a one time trip, 
e.g., a field trip, the UMTA definition is broad enough to include the 
recurring type of service provided here by the City through CATS. 
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This was an erroneous conclusion. When Congress enacted the Urban Mass 
Transporation Act of 1964, it defined "mass transporation" as .. transportation 
by bus, or rail, or othe·r conveyance, either publicly or privately owned, 
serving the general public (but not including school buses or charter or 
sightseeing service)·and moving over prescribed routes. 11 (Section 9(c}(5)). 
Congress amended this definitation in 1968 to insert "which provides to the 
public general or special service" in lieu of "serving the g~neral public 11 and 
inserting "on a regular and continuing basis" in lieu of "and moving over 
prescribed routes." This was accomplished by Section 702 of the Housing and· 
Urban Development Act of 1968 {Pub. L. No. 90-448). 

The legislative history explains why the revision was made. The language 
\'thich was eventually enacted was proposed in Section 602 of H. R. 17989. The 
House Report prepared by the Banking and Currency Committee accompanying this 
bill states that the purpose of the proposed revision was to broaden the 
definition of mass transportation "to allow greater flexibility in developing 
and applying new concepts and systems in urban mass transportation programs ... 
(H. R. Rep. No. 1785, 90th Cong., 2d Sess., reprinted in 1968 U.S. Code 
Cong. Ad. & News, 2941.) Under other provisions in the UMT Act, the 
Committee found that grants were funding research which was developing new 
concepts and innovations that had a great potential for the eventual 
improvement of urban mass transportation. These concepts and innovations, 
however, were not able to be funded for implementation since they did not 
fall within the definition of mass transportation •. One example ·cited in the 
report is.demand-responsive door-to-door service. Under the 1964 definiti.on, 
demand-responsive door-to-door service would not qualify as mass 
transportation because it does not operate over a prescribed route. 

The report also cites another instance of service that the Committee believed 
would benefit from Federal assistance.but was not included in the term mass 
transportation. This service would serve "only a specific portion of the 
public rather than the 'general' public" such as ~service from ghettos to 
specific places of employment, limited to those riders who work there.u 
(Id. at 2941). Absent the 1968 revision, this would not be mass 
transportation since the service would not be offered to the public generally, 
~t only to a specially defined segment of the public. 

A review of the service in question in this complaint indicates that it is 
mass transportation service. The service is provided by publicly owned buses, 
offered to a special segment of the public, and operated on a regular and 
continuing basis. Our initial decision concluded that the definition of 
charter bus service, while generally thought of as a one-time trip, was broad 
enough to include the regularly and continually run service in question. 
While some frequently provided service may qualify as charter service, the 
service in question does not. It is provided five days per week, 11 hours per 
day, at 30 minute headways. This is clearly mass transportation operated to 
the public as special service. 
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v. Conclusion 

On reconsideration, UMTA finds that it miscllaracterized the service provided 
by the City througn·cATS in its January 28, 1985, decision. The service is 
not charter service, but mass transportation •. Therefore, the January 28, 
1985, decision is hereby revised to reflect this reasoning. Si nee UMTA finds 
the service to be permissible, we still do not find the City or CATS in 
violation of an provision of the UMT Act or the implementinQ__r~gulations. 

. · JUN 2A ~ 
Submitted by:~, .l ~ • · • ~ Date: ________ _ 

Oougla G. Gold 

JUN 2 6 1985 
Approved Date: ------------------• LaSala, 
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u.s. Deportment 
of Transportation 

Urban Mass 
Tran~portation 
Administration 

Mr. Robert A·: Swanson 
Roamin' Coaches 
1204 Turner Mctall Boulevard 
Rome, Georgia 30161 

Dear Mr. Swanson: 

The Administrator 

JUL 3 1 \~4>~ 

400 Seventh St., S.W. 
Washington, D.C. 2Q590 

Secretary Dole has asked me to respond to your letter to her concerning 
Federal grants to the Rome Transit Department (RTD). You state that these 
grant monies enable the RTD to compete at lower prices with the charter 
service that Roamin' Coaches and other private operators provide. You 
request, therefore, application information for Federal grants to enable you 
to compete on a fair.and equal basis. 

Let me state at the outset that this Administration strongly supports the 
role of the private transportation company in the provision of 
transportation services to this Nation. The Urban Mass Transportation 
Administration (UMTA) bel.ieves that recipients of our grant funds, such as 
the RTD, should not be able to compete unfairly with private providers of 
mass transportation services. Our views of this subject are more fully 
expressed in the enclosed policy "Private Enterprise Participation in the 
Utban Mass Transportation Program." 

In addition to prohibiting unfair competition in the provision of mass 
transportation services, UMTA restricts the charter bus services which our 
recipients provide. UMTA's regulations on Charter Bus Operations (49 CFR 
Part 604,~copy enclosed} implement two provisions in the Urban Mass 
Transportation Act of 1964, as amended. Section 12(c)(6) of the Act defines 
"mass transportation" to exclude charter bus operations. A 1966 Comptroller 
General's Opinion, set forth in Appendix A to the regulation, however, 
states that UMTA has the discretion to permit recipients to use UMTA funded 

. equipment on an inc i denta 1 basis to pro vi de charter bus service so 1 ong as 
it does not detract from the provision of mass transportation service. The 
regulation, in Section 604.11, implements these restrictions by prohibiting 
a recipient from providing certain charter bus service· on weekdays such as 
during peak periods. The regulation presumes that such service is not 
incidental. If a complaint we·re filed, a recipient could rebut these 
presumptions with factual evidence to show that ~he service in question does
not detract from the provision of ma.ss transportation. 

The other provision in the UMT Act that concerns charter bus service is 
Section 3(f). This provision was added by Congress in 1974 to protect 
private providers of intercity ~harter bus service from unfair competition 
by UMTA recipients. According to this provision, a11 applicants for UMTA 
assistance must enter into an agreement with UMTA. The regulation, in 
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Section 604.13, sets forth the standard terms of this agreement. The two 
key provisions of this· agreement ·require: a recipient that provides any 
intercity charter service to cover its total annual charter costs (both 
intercity and intracity) with its charter revenues and prohibit a rectpi ent 
from charging a predatory rate on any charter route. The list of costs that 
must be inclu·ded in this calculation is set forth in Appendix B to the 
regulation. The theory behind thiS approach is that, .bY requiring a 
recipient to fully allocate its charter costs and to cover its charter costs 
with revenues, the benefit of any UMTA assistance is neutralized and the 
recipient and any private intercity charter bus operators will be on an 
equal economic plane. · 

I must stress, however, that .these economic restricti.ons only apply if the 
recipient, or operator for the recipient, operates intercity charter bus 
service. The regulation defines "intercity charter bus service" generally 
as charter service outside the recipient's urbanized area. If a recipient, 
or operator for the recipient, operates charter service solely within the 
urbanized area, the only restrictions which the regulation imposes are those 
to ensure that the charter service is incidental to the provision of mass 
transportation. The regulation does not speak. to the costs which must be 
charged for such service. 

Since UMTA issued this regulation in 1976, both recipients and private 
intercity operators have complained. UMTA's recipients complain that.the 
·regulation is too burdensome and unduly restricts ·their ability to pro vi de 
charter service which generates revenues to offset operating defici_t~. 
Private intercity charter operators argue that the regulations do not offer 
enough protections and that the cost data is too complex to be able to 
effectively review to determine if costs are being covered by revenues. 
Consequently, UMTA is in the process of revising the regulation. We 
pub 1i shed an advance notice of proposed rul emaki ng in October 1982 and ar.e 
presently drafting a notice of proposed rulemaking. Although I admit that 
this represents a considerable time delay, let me assure you that this does 
not evidence any lack of desire on UMTA's part to issue an effective rule. 
Instead, rul emaki ng is, by its very nature, a complex process and when the 
issues involved, as they are here, are so·multifaceted, the complexity 
escalates. We are diligently working on this revi$ion and hope to publish 
it soon. 

I waul d point out, however, that the §604.40 of the existing c.harter bus 
regulation provides that an interested party may file a written complaint 
alleging a violation of the terms on a charter bus agreement. If you 
believe evidence of a violation exists, you may wish to file a formal 
complaint consistent with the regulations. 
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You request application information so that Roamin, Coaches can receive 
UMTA assistance like the RTD. Unfortunately, the UMT Act does no~ enable 
UMTA to make capital or operating grants directly to private providers of 
mass transportation service. The UMT Act does permit a recipient to pass 
the grant fuRds through to a private company. This mechanism, however, 
comes into play if the private operator provides mass transportation 
services for the recipient. If so, the private operator can then use the 
equipment for charter services, but·the private op,rator steps into the 
shoes of the recipient and the above-described regl!!lation would apply to 
restrict that service. If the private provider would only provide charter 
service, no UMTA funds co~ld be passed through by the recipient. 

3 

I want to assure you that your comments will be considered when reviewing 
any future bus applications submitted by the RTD. Although our records do 
not indicate any currently under review, we will keep your comments on file. 
In addition, if after reviewing the enclosed regulation you believe the 
RTD 1s charter bus service is not in compliance, you may file a formal 
complaint with UMTA. 

Ralph L. Stanley 

2 Enclosures 

Urban ~~ss Transporation Administration 
UCC-32:DGOLD:KLY:6/25/85:426-1936 
Control No 8506100061: Due Date: 'd5/7 /02 
cc. p /C/UOA-1 /UOA-2/UOA-3 /UES/UES-1 0 ( 2) /UGM/UGl~-30/UBP /UR0-4 I 
UC~-Chron/UCC-32/Gold/UCC-30/Munter/UCC-1/LaSala 
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·~~ 
U.S. Depanment 
of Tronsporrotion 

Urban Mass 
Transportation 
Administration 

Mr. John Shoup 
President 
Cardinal Charter and Tours 
P. o. Box 271 
Middlebury, Indiana 46540 

Dear Mr. Shoup: 

The Administrator 

AUG I 5 1985 

400 Seventh St., S.W. 
Washtngton, D.C. 20590 

Thank you for commenting on my letter of Jun_.e 24, .1985, in which I advised you 
of the Urban Mass Transportation Administration (UMTA) rules applicable to 
charter operations and addressed your concerns regarding the lease of 
subsidized equipment by a private operator. As I L!nderstand your current 
question, you are concerned that a private operator providing mass 
transportation by leasing equipment from a public body for a fee is in a 
favored position with respect to competition with other charter operators if 
it also provides charter service, in that the competition does not have 
equipment available for charter operations at this subsidized rate. This is 
true; however, under the UMTA chart~r regulations the lessee must account for 
such equipment as if it had purchas.ed it, rather than at the actual lease rate 
in computing its cost, if it is engaged in interGity charter bus operations.-
If the lessee is only engaged in intracity operations, this requirement would 
not be applicable under the charter regulation. However, the transit operator 
in leasing UMTA financed equipment to private companiez for mass transit . 
oper-a-tions should compete that transaction so as to obtain the best and most 
economical contract possible. This would mean that the lease rate should take. 
into considQration revenues or income (including charter revenues) that the 
ope·rator would realize in operating the equipment. · 

As with your initial inquiry, I have forwarded your June 28, 1985, letter and 
my reply to the Regional Office for consideration in processing grants for the 
Northwest Indiana Regional Planning Commission. I am also providing you with 
a copy of our policy ~n HPrivate Enterprise ParticipatiOD in the Urban Mass 
Transportation Program.•• This policy provides that the local planning and 
programming process establish procedures for the most feasible participation 
of private mass transportation providers in the UMTA programs. 

I hope I have satisfactorily answered your question. If you have any 
additional questions, do not hesitate to contact me. 

Sincerely, 

~~~ 
Ralph L. Stanley 

Enclosure 
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us. Department 
of Transportation 

·urban Mass 
Transportation 
Administration 

The Honorable Virginia Smith 
House of Representatives 
Washington, D.C. 20515 

Dear Virginia: 

The Administrator 

SEP I 8 1985 

400 Seventh St.. S.W. 
Washington, D.C. 20590 

Secretary Do 1 e has asked me to respond to your 1 etter forwarding the 
concerns of such constituents as Ms. Florence Engelhaupt of 
Spencer, Nebraska. Ms. _Engelhaupt complains that the restrictions imposed 
by the Urban Mass Transportation Administration (UMTA) on the charter 
service that the UMTA recipient in Boyd County, Nebraska, provides are too 
burdensome. · 

Uf{fA's regulations concerning the charter bus service which our recipients 
can provide with UMTA assistance are based on the provisions in 
Sections 3(f) and 12(c)(6) of the Urban Mass Transportation Act of 1964, as 
amended. Section 12(c)(6), the first enacted·provision, ~efines "mass 
transportation" to specifically exclude charter bus service. A 1966 
Comp·troller Gener.al' s .Opinion holds, however, that UMTA funded equipment can 
be:·used to provide charter bus. service on an.incidental basis, i.e., so it 
does not interfere with or detract from the provision of mass transportation· 
service. Section 3(f), which Congress added to the UMT Act in 1974, 
prohibits UMTA recipients from competing unfairly with those private 
intercity charter bus operators that are willing and able to provide such 
service. · 

UMTA issued the charter bus regulation in 1976·. It is found at 49 CFR Part 
604. The regulation implements Section 12(c)(6) by presuming that any 
charter service provided with UMTA assistance on weekdays during peak 
periods, extending 50 miles beyond the urban area, or requiring the use of a 
bus for more than 6 hours in one day is not incidental. A recipient is 
permitted, however, to rebut these presumptions to show that the char~er 
service in question did not interfere with the provision of mass 
transportation. There are no restrictions on weekend charter service. 

The regulation implements the protections iri Section 3(f) by requiring a 
recipient that provides intercity charter service to cover its total annual 
charter costs with charter revenues. In addition, the regulation prohibits 
such recipients from charging a predatory rate for any charter service. 
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The regulation applies to recipients of funds under Section 18 of. the UMT 
Act such as the provider of the handi-bus service Ms. Engelhaupt describes. 
For these recipients, which are generally small operators in rural areas, it 
is important to note that the regulation's provisions implementing 
Section·3(f) do not apply unless the recipient earned more than $15,000 in 
charter revenues during its most recently completed fiscal year. Since few· 
Section 18 recipients earn such charter revenues, the cost and revenue 
provisions in the regulation are usually i·napp11cable. · 

Based on discussions with the Nebraska Department of Roads, it is UMTA's 
understanding that the Section 18 recipient Ms. Engelhaupt refers to earned 
$15,000 or less from charter services during its mo~t recently completed 
fiscal year. ·Therefore, the recipient can do any and all charter service 
with UMTA assistance so long as the service fs incidental as desc·ribed 
above. In that regard, charter service could go beyond the 50-mile. limit as 
Ms. Engelhaupt desires, but if it does so on weekdays, the recipient would 
have to be able to prove, if requested, that the charter service did not 
interfere with the provision of mass transportation. For Section 18 
recipients, UMTA measures th~·so-mile limit from ·the perimeter of the 
recipient's service area since the service is not provided in an urban area. 

l hope that this infonnation has been helpfuL If you need any additional 
assistance, please contact UMTA's Regional Administrator, Mr. Lee 0. 
Waddleton, 6301 Rockhill Road, Suite 100, Kansas City, Missouri, 64131, 
(816} 926-5053. 

Sincerely, 

~~u~ 
URBAN MASS TRANSPORTATimJ ADMINISTRATIOtJ 
UCC-32:UGOLD:KLY:9/9/85:426-1936 
Control No. 850830-033:Due Date: 9/9/85 . 
cc: 1/C-1/P-1/B-1/S-1/S-10/J-1/UOA-l/UOA-2/UOA-3/UES~l/UES-10(2) 

UGM/UG14-30/UBP /UR0-7 /UCC-Chron/UCC-32/Go 1 d/UCC-30/t-1unter/UCC-l /La Sa 1 a 
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~~ 
us. 0ep0r11'Tlent 
of 1fa bp011Clti0n 

Urban Mass· 
'l'rcJnSPOI'ICI· 
AdrniniS1fatian: 

Mr·. Sherman P. Flogstad 
General· Manager 

The Administrator 

Roque·Val~ey Transportation District 
3200 crater Lake· Avenue. 
Medford, oregon 97501 

Dear Mr.. Fl ogstad: 

·-400 Seventh St., S.W. 
Washington, D.C. 20590 

This responds to your letter requesting that the Orban Mass. 
Transportation Acbninistration (UMTA) reconsider its decision to 
not enter into a charter bus agreement with the Roque Valley 
Transportation District (RVTD). Your letter also provides 
information in response· to allegations; of two violations of UM'I'A's 
cease, and desist order of January 28, ·1986 •. 

l''. [ .. ( ~\' ., 

You argue that Section 604.18 of the charter bus regulation, upon 
which UMTA relied. to· deny· siqninq an agreement, is. not 
appropriate. You state' that the language: in this; provision 
authorizes UMTA. to consider various materials· submitted by the 
recipient when deciding whether to enter into an agreement, but 
not the existence of private operators will'ing and able to provide 
the proposed service. · · 

UMTA disagrees. Section 604.18 states, 

The Administrator will consider the 
comments filed by private charter bus 
operators prior t~ making any findings 
regarding either the application's 
certification of costs, cost allocation 
plan, or other aspects of its proposed 
charter bus operations. (Emphasis 
added.) 

The regulatory language "other aspects of its proposed charter bus 
operations" is _broad enough to include any facet of the proposed 
charter service and the context in which it would be provided. 
The.context certainly includes the existence of private operators 
and comments that they are willing and able to meet current 
demands and provide that service which the recipient proposes. 
Your letter includes no new information that would call int·o 
question the conclusions that we drew from the previous material 
which you submitted. Therefore, we continue to decline to enter 
into a charter bus. agreement with the R\7TD •. 
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Your letter provides several .other objections to our decision. 
These objections are presented in the form of citations to the 
regulation with an explanation of the provisions- cited and, in 
solD.e cases, an· explanation of how. the provision is- not applicable 
to the RV'l'D •. 

The sections- you cite·· t-el ate· to qeneral provisions- in the
regulation such as. purpose and scope,. or to the incidental. use: 
presUlllptions •. A- charter bus· .. agreement is. required by UM'l'A when 
the· recipient desires. to provide· charter bus service· outside~ of 
its- urban area. The· regulation· provides. procedural steps. that 
must be·· followed· and the· documentation that must. be· submitted· 
before, the: aqreement can be• entered into. Since· these procedures· 
and documents, concern. notice,, costs- and private sector comments, 
statements concerninq purpose, scope and incidental use, 
presUlllptions. are: not relevant or qermane· to grantinq· a· charter bus 
agreement. 

It is important to understand the type and extent. o.f charter };)us 
service· that the·· RVTD may provide. consistent with. UMTA' s. 
regulation and the· liJnitations illlposed by the cease: and desist 
order of· January 2 8, 19 8 6. Since· UMTA' s, regulation only applies. 
to charter. service:· that. in some. way uses UM'l'A assistance, a 
recipient. may provide·· any- and all charter bus· service:, reqarclless 
of time· or· destination, that uses;, only loca·l funds. 

In addition, under UM'l'A's requ.lations, a recipient may provide. any 
and all charter bus service usinq· UMTA funded equipment and 
facilities. within its urban area so long as the service is 
incidental to the provision of mass transportation service. 
UMTA's cease and-desist order does not in any way affect the 
RVTD' s ab.ili ty to provide incidental intracity service using UMTA 
funded. equipment and facilities. 

UM'l'A has sent a copy of your response concerning the alleged 
violations of the cease and desist order to the complainant, York 
Tours, Inc. (York)·, and provided it wi:th 30 days to rebut the 
response. A copy of this letter is enclosed. UMTA will endeavor 
to issue a wri~ten determination of compliance with the order 
within 30 days of receipt of York's rebuttal. 

If you have any additional questions concerning these matters, 
please contact Mr. Douglas G. Gold, the attorney assiqned to this 
complaint, .at (202) 426-1936. 

incerely 

Enclosure 
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u.s. Deportment 
of Transportation 

Urban Mass 
Transportation 
AdministratiOn 

Mr. Dean P. Bell 
Executive Director 
Chief General Manager 
Regional Transit Authority 
suite 1600 
Ten-o-one Howard Building 
New Orleans, Louisiana 70113 

Dear Mr. Bell: 

Headquarters 400 Seventh St., S.W. 
Washington, D.C. 20590 

This responds to your letter in which you seek the Urban Mass 
Transportation Administration's (UMTA) approval of the augmented 
fixed route service which the Regional Transit Authority (RTA) 
provides for conventions and special events. You state that this 
se·rvice is not charter service. 

You describe the service as existing fixed route service that·- uses 
two shuttles in the French Quarter. The RTA augments this service 
with additional vehicles and service hours to meet the special 
needs of conventions or .special events. You state that this 
service had not, at the time you wrote been fully implemented and 
that it is designed to incorporate a private/public sector 
partnership. 

Let me state clearly that it is not possible to give you a 
definitive response to your question. It appears from the facts 
that you have provided that the service would probably be mass 
transportation and not charter service. This assumes that the. 
service is open to the public, that the RTA makes all of the 
service decisions including setting fares and schedules pursuant 
to the same process it follows to make all other mass 
transportation service decisions, and that the service is designed 
for the general public and not a special group such as a private 
clUb. Since the answers to some of these questions are not 
contained in your letter, UMTA can only state that the service 
appears to be permissible. 

I. am ve+.Y glad to learn that you are developing this service in 
concert with the private sector. The involvement ofprivate·mass 
transportaticm entities is very important for UMTA and your 
initiatives in this area for the convention· service reflects your 
understanding our goals. Please note that to the extent·. that the 
service is restructured to ·meet the needs of each convention, you 
should consider .putting this extra service to bid to maximize the 
involvement of the private sector. 
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If you have any further questions regarding this service, please 
do not hesitate to contact me. 
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Joseph A. LaSala, Jr. 
Chief counsel 



Durango Transportation, Inc. ) 
complainant ) 

v. 

City of Durango, Colorr-.do 
r;spondent 

INTRODUcriON 

) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 

Exhibit A 

Re: C0-09/85-01 

on September 26, 1985, Durango Transportation, Inc. (DTI), by its 
attorney Nancy P. Bigbee, Esq4, filed a complelint with the Urban 
Mass Transportation Administration (UMTA) alleging tha·t · the City 
of Durango, Colorado (Duranqo), a recipient of financial 
assistance from ln'frA, violat.ad Section 3 (e) of the Urban Mass 
Transportation Act of 1954, as amended (UMT Act), and does not 
have the legal capacity under Sr-·~+-.ion 3 (a) (2) (A) (i) of the UMT Act 
to carry out t~e finr,ced projects. After a thorough review of 
the materials submitted by the parties and UMTA's own records, 
UMTA finds that Durango complied with Sections 3(e)· of the UMT 
Act. Further, we find that given tp3 evidence submitted we must 
accept Durango's assertion of legal capacity under Colorado law 
unless or until a Colorado administrative body or court of 
competent jurisdiction decides to the contrary. 

COMPLAINT 

On September 26, 1985, D'I'I filed its complaint with UMTA. In its 
complaint, DTI alleges that OU~ango violated Section 3(e) of the 
UMT Act since it did not consider private transportation providers 
to the ~aximum extent feasible in the prc:f"ision of transportation 
services funded by UMTA. The service in ~uestion includes the 
Opportunity Bus service provided to elderly ~nd handicapped 
persons funded under Section 18 of the UMT Act, which provides 
formula grants to non-urbanized areas, and the general mass 
transit service to and from the La Plata county Airport and the 
Purgatory Ski Area funded under Section 3 of the UMT Act, ~hich 
provides discretionary capital grants. 

second, the complaint alleges that Durango has not compensated DTI_ 
for the competing service which it provides from the airport to 
the ski area. The complaint alleges that such compensation is 
required by Section 3(c)(4) of the UMT Act. 
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Third, the complaint alleges that Durango does not have the legal 
capacity. to operate the mass transportation service for which it 
has received UMTA assistance. This legal capacity is required by 
section 3(a)(2)(A)(i). of the UMT Act. The.complaint states that 
Durango selected as the provider o~ the Opportunity Bus service 
the Club Esfuerzo which did not have operating authority from the 
Colorado Public Utilities Commission (PUC). 

The complaint provides a lenqthy discussion of the negotiations 
between DTI and Durango for the purchase by Durango of some or all 
of DTI's PUC operating authority which DTI claims was needed to 
enable Durango to provide the airport to ski area service •. The 
complaint states that the sale was never consummated and as a 
result, Durango entered into an intergovernmental agreement with 
La Plata County as an alternative means to enable it to provide 
this service. The complaint alleges that this agreement attempts 
to substitute the intergovernmental ~greement for the necessary 
PUC authority and, thus, renders the service illegal. DTI states 
that it has challenged the validity of this agreement before the 
PUC and that a PUC Interim Order of September 20, 1985, supports 
its position. 

The complaint asks that UMTA deny Durango additional funding and 
.that Durango refund UMTA for past funding of illegal services. 

RESPONSE 

UMTA sent a copy of DTI's complaint to Durango on December 4, 
1985, and provided it with 30 days, from the date of receipt, to 
respond to DTI's allegations. Durango received this material on 
December 16, 1985, and by letter dated January 3, 1986, it 
requested an extension of 30 days to respond. UMTA responded by 
letter dated January 13, 1986, granting the request in part by 
extending the deadline for 15 days until January 29, 1986. UMTA 
received DUrango's response on January 29, 1986. 

Durango's response describes the activities it has done to involve 
the private sector in the provision of mass transportation 
services since 1976. The response describes the specific actions 
Durango took in 1983, 1984, and 1985 in relation to its 
applications for operating and administrative assistance under 
section 18. Specifically, the materials include copies of the. 
public notices and individual notices to OTI of various hearings 
on the applications, copies of requests for proposals to provide 
the service for which UMTA assistance was received, evaluations of 
tHe various bids received, and explanations of why a particular 
bid was accepted. 
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The materials also describe what Durango did in 1983 to involve 
the private sector in the provision of the service to and from the 
airport and the ski area. T~is service is assisted by the only 
UMTA_section 3 capital assistance which Durango has received. In 
connection with this grant application, Durango describes the 
negotiations between'it and DTI for the purchase and sale of some 
or all of-DTI's PUC authority. 

Durango also includes evidence of its legal authority to provide 
the services for which it· has received UMTA assistance. Durango 
believes that the intergovernmental agreement between it and La 
Plata County is legal and is sufficient to enable it to provide 
the airport and ski area serv~ce. Durango asserts that the 
Interim Order issued by the PUC on September 20, 1985, does not 
address the merits of the validity of the intergovernmental 
agreement and that the matter is pending before the PUC. Durango 
recognizes UMTA's concern over the validity of this agreement, yet 
asserts that UMTA has no jurisdiction over the issue. 

Finally, Durango states that DTI is not a private provider of mass 
transportation service and, therefore, not entitled to the 
protections afforded by Section 3(e) of the UMT Act. Durango's 
argument is based on a letter sent by UMTA's Regional Office in 
Denver to OTI on March 6, 1984. This letter states that, based on 
the information to date, it does not appear that DTI provides mass 
transportation as defined in the UMT Act since most, if not all, 
of the service DTI provides is closed-door and seasonal. 
Furthermore, the letter states tha~ even if DTI does provide mass 
transportation the service which Durango operates does not compete 
with or supplement that service and, therefore, the protections in 
Section 3(e) would not apply to DTI. 

REBUTTAL 

UMTA sent a copy of Durango's response to DTI on February 24, 
1986, and provided it with 15 days from receipt to rebut the 
response. On March 12, 1986, DTI requested a two week extension 
due, amonq other reasons, to the volume of Durango's response. 
UMTA agreed to the extension and set the deadline at March 28, 
1986. UMTA received the rebuttal on March 28, 1986. 

OTI states in.its rebuttal that Durango's response supports its 
position that the planning and programming process it followed was 
intended to and did operate to prevent the meaningful · 
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participation of DTI in the proposed transportation system. DTI 
states ~at Mr. Olson, the current owner, had purchased DTI in 
1982 when the services at issue were first beinq planned. Since 
DTI had been at that time an unsuccessful company, the complainant 
asserts that it was not considered seriously as a potential 
provider. 

DTI states that the surveys that Durango relied on to support· the 
provision of a mass transportation ~ystem are flawed since a small 
sample was used and because they do not actually show the-wide
spread support that ouranqo alleqes. 

DTI states that Durango did not properly understand the bid it 
submitted in response to the 1983 RFP. DTI submitted a bid for 
the mass transportation shuttle service and not the demand
responsive service. DTI did, however, offer to cooperate with the 
provider that Durango selected for the demand-responsive service. 
DTI states that Duranqo ignored its offer to cooperate. Moreover, 
DTI states that its bid for the shuttle service was lower than the 
bidder that Durango selected and that a consideration of the fully 
allocated costs was not made. 

Finally, OTI states that Durango totally ignored the issue of 
whether the other bidder had the allegedly requisite PUC . 
authority. 

DTI states that the biddinq for the 1984 Section 18 service was 
made difficult because. at the time, DT.I was under contract to sell 
its PUC authority to Durango. Also, DTI states that Duranqo 
requested more detailed information in 1984 and less time was 
provided to furnish it. Since DTI had had little success in 1983 
and 1984, there was nothinq to indicate that it should attempt to 
participate in 1985. _ 

The rebuttal also provides a detailed response to the points 
Duranqo had made concerning the unsuccessful transfer of DTI's PUC 
authority. 

DISCUSS. ION 

Before this decision examines Duranqo's actual compliance with the 
private sector provisions, it is important to address several 
basic issues raised by the parties.~ 

1 UMTA notes that on May 2, 1986, complainant contacted UMTA 
to inform UMTA that it was attempting to settle the complaint. 
UMTA verbally aqreed to suspend further action until word was 
received that settlement attempts were unsuccessful. UMTA sent a 
letter to the parties dated June 25, 1986, settinq forth this 
position. Complainant informed UMTA by letter dated July 17, 
1986, that the settlement neqotiations proved fruitless and 
requested that UMTA resume its deliberations on the complaint. 
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Is DTI Entitled to the UMT Act's Protections? 

In its response, Durango asserts t~at OTI is not a private 
provider of mass transportation and, therefore, not entitled to 
the protections afforded by Section 3(e) of the UMT Act. 
Durango supports this position with a letter sent by UMTA's 
Regional Counsel in Denver, Colorado, which states that it appears 
that DTI is not an existing provider of mass transportation. The 
letter reaches this conclusion because the facts show that the 
service that DTI provides w~thin the City of Durango can be 
exclusive if the patron so desires and is seasonal. This is not 
consistent, the letter states, with the definition of "mass 
transportation" in Section 12(c)(6) of the UMT Act which requires 
such service to be open to the public and to be operated on a 
regular and continuing basis. 

We do not disagree with this conclusion. The letter,. however, is 
written in terms only of the service.which DTI provides within the 
City of Durango. The letter clearly states that the service that 
UMTA has not found to be mass transportation is the service which , 
.DTI provides "in-town", not all of the service which DTI provides. 

A significant portion of the service which UMTA funds in this 
complaint is in La Plata County, outside of the City of Durango. 
The determination made by UMTA's Regional counsel does not address 
this service. Since the allegation may be construed to include 
this service too, and is unrebutted by the complainant, the record 
before UMTA is inconclusive on this issue. Therefore, for the 
purposes of this complaint, UMTA will assume that DTI is a private 
provider of mass transportation and is protected by Section 3(e) 
of the UMT Act for at least the service that Durango provided with 
UMTA funds outside of the City of Durango. 

Compensation Under Section 3(e)(3) of the UMT Act 

OTI claims that Durango has violated Section 3(e)(3) of the UMT 
Act since it has not compensated OTI for the competitive and 
supplemental service which Durango is providing between the 
airport and ski area. Section 3(e)(3) requires that a recipient 
pay a private operator "just and adequate compensation ••• for 
acquisition of ••• franchises or property to the extent required by 
applicable state or local law." (Emphasis added.) 
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In this ~ase, there has been no determination by a competent body 
at the State or local level that compensation is due by Duranqo to 
DTI. Until such time, there is no requirement under the UMT Act 
that Durango pay DTI. If a determination is made by a competent 
body at ~e state or local level, UMTA will review any request by 
Durango for fundinq the payment and make a determination whether 
payment is permitted under the UMT Act. 

Legal Authority 

A continuing thread that runs throuqh this complaint is that 
Durango has not had and still does not have the required legal 
authority to operate the service which UMTA has or is funding. 
DTI argues that the Club Esfuerzo, Durango's contractor, did not 
have the proper PUC authority to operate the "Opportunity Bus" and 
that Durango failed to take proper notice of this when it reviewed 
the bids for this service and awarded the service. Similarly, DTI 
argues that the current intergovernmental agreement between . 
Durango and La Plata County does not give Durango the authority to 
operate the airport to ski area service. UMTA notes that this 
latter issue is currently before that body. 

At this time, UMTA is convinced, based on the evidence presented, 
that Durango does have the required legal capacity to carry out 
the projects which UMTA has funded consistent with Section 
3(a)(2)(Al(i) of the UM'I' Act. Under Section 3(a) (2)(A) (i) of the 
UMT Act, the Secretary may not make a grant unless the Secretary 
determines that the applicant has or will have the legal capacity 
to carry out the proposed project.2 This determination is based 
on assurances submitted by the applicant, usually in the form of 
an opinion of counsel which stating that the applicant has the 
legal authority under the applicable State or local law. In this 
case, UMTA has in its files the necessary State assurances and the 
opinions of counsel which enabled UMTA to make the findings of 
legal capacity.3 

UMTA is aware that the PUC did provide its opinion in a December 
30, 1983, letter to DTI that the Club Esfuerzo did not have the 
necessary PUC authority to operate the in-town UMTA funded 
service. The PUC stated that Durango could only operate bus 
service within ~he city without PUC authority if the employees are 
City of Durango employees. As noted in the complaint, Durango 

2 This authority has been delegated to the Administrator of 
UMTA in 49 CFR Sections 1.45 and 1.51. 

3 TWo district courts have upheld this procedure as not 
arbitrary, capricious, or an abuse of discretion. Parker ~ 
Adams, civil No. 78-652 (W.O.N.Y. memorandum opinion filed Nov. 
15, 1987); Philadelphia Council of Neighborhood Organizations v. 
Coleman, 437 F. Supp. 1341 (E.D. Pa. 1977). aff'd without 
opinion 578 F. 2d. 1375 (3rd Cir. 1978). 
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remedied this problem immediately and on January 1, 1984, began 
operatin9' this service using city employees. 

To date, there has been no other determination to put UMTA's 
findings into question. Therefore,, unless an actvers .. ,findinq is 
made, UMTA must rely upon Durango's assurance that it has the 
required legal capacity under Colorado to carry out the UMTA 
funded projects. 

Having dispensed with these basic issues, we will now turn to ari 
examination of Durango's actions to involve the private sector in 
the planning and programs for which it has received UMTA funds. 

The standard which guides UMTA in reviewing any private sector 
complaint is the policy statement that UMTA issued on october 22~ 
1984, 49 Fed. Reg. 41310. In this notice, UMTA stated that we 
will only entertain complaints from private enterprise 
organizations on procedural grounds. The policy lists three 
such procedural grounds. First, that the local recipient had not 
established procedures for the maximum feasible participation of 
private transportation providers consistent with Section 8(e) of 
the UMT Act and the spirit of the policy. Second, that the local 
procedures were not followed. Third, that the local process 
does not provide for the fair resolution of disputes. By limiting 
our scope of review, UMTA states in the policy that we will not 
review disputes when the compliant is with the substance of local 
decisions concerning the service provided or the service provider. 
49 Fed. Reg. 41312. 'l'hus, UMTA will not substitute its own 
judgment for that of the recipient. 

on January 10, 1983, the state of Colorado Department of Highways 
(COOH), the UMTA recipient for the Section 18 program, issued a 
notice to inform applicants of its n~w application procedures.4 
The notice state that the following three elements are added to 
the application procedure: 

1. Applicants must hold a planning 
meeting inviting all the service 
providers in their area along with 
Colorado Department of Highway staff 
members. 

2. Applicants must prepare, and publish 
public notices of, specific requests. 
They must also notify non-applicant 

4 Section 18 of.the UMT Act authorizes the Secretary of 
Transportation to apportion funds to the Governor of each Stte for 
public transportation projects in non-urbanized areas. The funds, 
apportioned annually, are made available on a population-based 
formula and may be used for capital, operating, and administrative 
projects. UMTA makes the grant of these funds directly to the 
state which in turn distributes them to eligible subrecipients. 
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providers individually. In this way, 
commercial service operators will have a 
maximum opportunity to participate in the 
programs. 

3. An appeals process must be in place 
-for service providers whose proposals 
were requested by the applicant. 

Durango states that it adopted this process and followed it in its 
application process for the grants in question. 

UMTA finds that this process is the type that the October 22, 1984 
calls for. While this process was adopted and put into practice 
before UMTA published that policy, it covers the elements that 
UMTA indicated are important for the meaningful participation of 
and consideration of the private sector in the provision of 
transportation services. 

A review of the factual record shows that Durango followed this 
process during the application process for each of the grants in 
question. First, Durango applied for Section 18 assistance in 
1983. The record shows that Durango held a planning meeting on 
March 3, 1983, to discuss the City's transportation needs in light 
of the city's interest in applying for UMTA Section 18 funds. The' 
minutes state that DTI attended the meeting. Durango provided 
notice that this meeting would be held by publishing a notice in 
the local newspaper on 27, 1983, and by sending an announcement 
personally to DTI on February 18, 1983. 

Pursuant to the private sector participation process, Durango 
also published a notice inviting bids from interested parties to 
provide the service that would be funded by the UMTA grant on 
April 8, 1983. The record shows that a copy was sent by certified 
mail to DTI. DTI responded and submitted a bid for the service. 
It appears that only one other operator submitted a bid. 

After an examination of the bids, Durango informed DTI on June 3, 
1983, that it had decided to award the contract to the other 
bidder. In its rebuttal, OTI takes issue with several aspects of 
the bid evaluation process. In particular, OTI focuses on the 
issue whether the successful bidder had the appropriate·leqal 
authority to provide the service and whether Durango reviewed the 
bids based on the fully allocated costs of the ·two bidders. 

In the october 22, 1984 private enterprise policy, UMTA states· 
that we will not review the substance of local decisions. We note 
here, however, that the record does explain Durango's decision not ~ 
to award to OTI. It appears that Durango accepted the successful 
bidder's statement that it had the proper operating authority. 
OTI's mere challenge of that, without a definitive statement by a 
local body with jurisdiction to decide that question, provides no 
reason to doubt the veracity of the bidder's assertion. 
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It appears that DTI claims that Durango did not review the bids 
based on_ fully allocated costs becaus.e its bid was $500. 00 lower 
that the successful bidder's bid and because Durango did not 
deduct from DTI's bid price the expected revenues, as estimated by 
the successful bidder, as DTI had indicated in ita bid. 

At the outset, it is critical to understand that ~A has never 
stated that our quid~nce in the private sector policy to evaluate 
bids based on fully allocated costa requires the service contract 
to be awarded to the lowest bidder. There are always other 
factors that may be more important than cost that weigh in favor 
of one bidder. 

In this case, it is true that DTI'a bid was lower that the 
successful bidder's costs by $500.00. If Durango had deducted the 
estimated revenues frolll the bid, the difference would have been 
greater. The successful bidder, however, deducted this same 
amount in its expense/revenue statement and thus it appears that 
the difference in the two bids would have remained $500.00. UMTA 
concludes that the arguments that DTI has made do not show that 
Durango did not evaluate the bids on a fully allocated cost 
basis. 

The private sector participation process required by the CDOH and 
adopted by Durango includes an appeals process. The letter 
informing DTI that it had not been selected as the provider also 
informed DTI of the procedure that was available to it to appeal 
Durango's decision. 

DTI took advantage of this appeals process and filed an appeal 
with the City Council on June 14, 1983. The City Council 
considered the appeal on June 21, 1983 and upheld Durango's 
decision. DTI appealed this decision to the COOH which upheld 
Durango's decision on September 8, 1983. 

UMTA notes that DTI also could have filed a protest with UMTA 
under our bid protest procedures as set forth in UMTA Circular 
4220.1A. Under these procedures, however, a protest now would not 
be timely. 

The process that Durango followed in 1984 for the next Section 18 
application is nearly identical to that which it followed in 1983. 
Durango published a notice and sent a copy of the notice directly 
to DTI on February 17, 1984, announcing a February 24, 1984, 
planning meeting to discuss "possible coordination and mutual 
assistance between transit service providers and sponsoring 
organizations." D'I'I attended the meeting. On February 27, 1984, 
Durango sent a notice inviting the submission of bids to provide 

···the assisted service. DTI did not actually submit a bid to 
provide the service, but •tated in a letter to Durango dated April 
3, 1984, one day after bids were due, that it disputed the 
specifications. 
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The request for bids, however, did contain a provision to explain 
how a potential bidder could protest the specifications to seek 
clarification~ on April 25, 1984, the Durango City Attorney 
informed DTI that since it had failed to follow these procedures 
and that since no bid was received, Durango considered that DTI 
did not respond to the bid solicitation. 

In 1985, Durango followed this same process. on January 21, ·1985, 
Durango sent a notice to DTI informing it of the meeting that 
would be held to discuss transportation service. The record shows 
that DTI did attend. Durango, pursuant to its process, published 
a notice on January 28, 1985, inviting bids to provide the 
assisted service. DTI did not respond and participated no further 
in the process for 1985. 

Based on these facts, therefore, UMTA finds for the 1983, 1984 and 
1985 Section 18 applications that Durango did follow a process for 
the consideration of private enterprise and that the process did 
provide for the ~air resolution of disputes. The fact that OTI 
choose to participate in some, but not all of these application 
processes is not relevant. Since Durango followed a process that 
is consistent with UMTA's policy, we find no violations with the 
UMT Act. 

·In 1983, Durango also applied to UMTA for Section 3 funding to 
purchase vehicles and related equipment to provide mass 
transportation including service from the airport to the ski area. 
The planning process for this service began in early 1983 and 
included several meetings with private operators, including DTI on 
February 25, March 11, and March 25, 1983. Durango published 
notice of a public meeting to discuss the Section 3 grant 
application and sent a copy to DTI on March 24, 1983. 

on this same date, Durango informed OTI that it was considering 
several alternatives involving DTI to provide the service using 
UMTA funded equipment. These alternatives included leasing the 
equipment to DTI to perform the service, and the purchase by 
Durango of some or all of DTI's operating authority. 

The course that Durango opted for was to purchase some or all of 
DTI's authority since it appears that OTI was not interested in a 
leasing arrangement~ These two parties then entered into 
protracted negotiations for the sale of this authority, a process 
which UMTA notes is not finished and is the subject of pending 
litigation. While this process has been going on for several 
years, this is not in any way an indication of Durango's lack of 
compliance with Section 3(e) or UMTA's policy on the involvement 
of the private sector. Rather, the facts show that for the 
section 3 grant, Durango followed the same process of notice and 
involvement that it followed for the Section 18 grant applications 
and that due to difficulties between the parties, communications 
broke down. While this is· a regrettable situation, it is not a 
violation of either the UMT Act or the implementing policies. 
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COHCWSIOH 

After a thorough. review of the evidence presented, UMTA finds that 
Durango did comply with section 3(e) of the UMT Act and the 
implementinq policies in ita qrant applications tor Section 18 
grants -in-1983, 1984 and 1985, and for a Section 3 qrant in 1983. 
Duranqo adopted a process for the consideration and involvement of 
the private sector ~s specified by the CDOH and· followed that 
process in the grant applications at issue. UMTA finds that this 
satisfies UMTA's requirements and that Duranqo ia in compliance 
with those requirements. 

FEB 2 A 19Sl 

Date 

FEB 2 A I9B7 

Jr. Date 
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US. Department 
of Transportation 

Urban Mass 
Transportation 
Administration 

Dear Colleague: 

The Administrator 

MAY _ 1 1981 

400 Seventh St, S.W. 
Washngton, D.C. 20590 

Enclosed you will find a page change for the Urban Mass 
Transportation Administration (UMTA) Section 9 Circular developed 
to reflect an important change in UMTA's treatment of income 
received pursuant to a contract for the nonexclusive 
transportation of school children in mass transportation service. 

In response to an audit by the Department of Transportation's 
Inspector General (IG), UMTA reevaluated current policy on the 
treatment of contract revenue received for such service. UMTA 
concurred with the IG's finding that contract revenue earned by 
providing such service is revenue from the operation of mass 
transportation service and, as such,·should be treated as farebox 
revenue. 

Therefore, contract revenue received from the nonexclusive 
transportation of school children must be deducted from operating 
expenses before calculating net project cost for operating 
assistance projects under all UMTA programs. Correspondingly, 
these revenues may no longer be counted toward the local match 
under any UMTA program, except.as otherwise provided for in the 
statute. 

I am confident that you will agree that the new treatment of these 
contract revenues is more reflective of the nature of the service 
from which such revenu~s are derived. This revised treatment of· 
contract revenue from the nonexclusive transportation of school 
children is effective for all applications filed after the date of 
this letter. 

\)(~.V1~ 
Ralp~ L. Sta~~ () 

Enclosure 
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U.S. Department 
of Transportation 

Urban Mass 
Transportation 
Administration 

Dear Colleague: 

The Deputy Administrator 

JUN 2 2 1987 

400 Seventh St .. S.W. 
Washington. D.C. 20590 

This is to remind you that UMTA's new charter service regulations, 
49 C.F.R. Part 604, have been in effect since May 13, 1987. 

For those recipients that have been providing charter service with 
UMTA-assisted facilities and equipment and would like to continue 
to do so, the public notification process set forth at 49 C.F.R. 
§ 604.11 must be completed by August 11, 1987. Because of the 
time requirements outlined in the regulation, to meet this 
August 11, 1987, deadline, the recipient's notice must be 
published no later than July 11, 1987. Promptly after publication 
of notice by those grantees planning to provide charter service, 
it is requested that the recipient send a copy of its public 
notice to the appropriate Regional Office. 

After August 11, 1987, the recipient may provide charter service 
only if the recipient has determined that there are no private 
operators that are willing and able to provide the service in 
question. If the recipient does not complete its public 
participation process and decisionmaking by August ll, 1987, UMTA 
will assume that the recipient has elected to withdraw from the 
operation of charter service except for those instances where 
service is provided under one of the exceptions outlined in the 
rule. 

For those recipients that have not been providing charter service 
with UMTA-assisted facilities and equipment and for those 
recipients that have withdrawn from charter service but would like 
to resume offering charter service, the recipient must first 
fulfill the public notification and decision process of 49 C.F.R. 
§§ 604.11 and 604.13. 

If a recipient operates charter service after August ll, 1987, 
without engaging in an adequate public participation process 
designed to notify willing and able private operators of its 
desire to operate charter service, the recipient will be in 
violation of the regulation and may be operating in violation of 
its grant agreement. In order that your Federal assistance not be 
jeopardized, recipients are also reminded that the procedures for 
exceptions must be followed when service is proposed under one of 
the exceptions contained in 49 c.F.R. § 604.9. 
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In addition, grant applications submitted after May 13, 1987, must 
oe accompanied by a charter agreement as set forth in 49 C.F.R. § 
604.7(b). If a recipient does not intend to submit a grant 
application to UMTA during fiscal year 1987, the recipient must 
still submit a copy of its charter agreement to the appropriate 
Regional Office, as set forth at 49 C.F.R. § 604.7(b), by July 12, 
1987. 

Sincerely, 

a i .) 7 I (/ .. · . Uft..f_d. U IJ_t,.Lv ~·~C. 
/'Alfred A. Del1iBov1 
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-· !)eportment 
Headquarters 400 Seventh St , S.W. 

Washtngton. D.C. 20590 

Jnsportotion 

Urban Mass 
Transportation 
Administration 

JUL 7 1987 

Ms. Carol L. Bertran 
Privatization Coordinator 
Serv·ice Development Department 
Beaver and Island Avenues 
Pictsburgh, Pennsylvania 15233 

Dear Ms. Bertran: 

This is in response to your request of Hay 14, 1987, for a 
decermination of the category of the commuter club 
service operated by the Port Authority of J>.llegheny Councy. 

In your lecter, you described chis service as follows: 

1. The service is b~{ bus. 

2. Buses serve commuters working from 8:00 a.m. to 5:00 p.m. 
in Do~~town Pittsburgh. 

3. The charge for the bus is predetermined by the Port 
Authority at a set rate per day. 

4. No contract exiscs between the Port Authority and the 
riders. 

5. The service is part of the Port Authorit~''S scheduled pick 
service and operates on a regular and continuing basis. 

6. The routing, including origin, destination, and stops, is 
predetermineq and part of the Port Authority's picked 
scheduled work. The routing may only be changed by the 
driver notifying Port Authority's Traffic Control if 
deviation of routing is requested due to congestion; 
road con~itions, etc. This is a standard operating 
procedure. 

7. The service is designed to benefit the public at 
large and is not limited to employees of certain 
companies. Anyon~ \·lishing to ride on the service is 
invited to do so b~l contacting the club bus officer. 

8. Riders are guaranteed a seat and receive a monthly 
Port Authority pass which entitles them to rice the 
conunuter bus and also off.ers them transportation on 
certain other regularly-scheduled routes. 
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The new charter regulation, which went into effect on 
May 13, 1987, defines 11 charter service" and distinguishes· 
it from "mass transportation". 

Under 49 CFR 604.5, "charter service" means transportation 
using buses vans, of a group of persons, who, pursuant 
to a common purpose, under a single contract and at a 
fixed charge, have acquired the exclusive use of the 
vehicle to travel together under an itinerary either 
specified in advance or modified after having left the 
place of origin. The preamble to the regulation moreover 
explains that "charter service 11 is usually thought of 
as the one-time provision of service, and that the user, 
not the recipient, has control of the service. 

On the other hand, "mass transportation" is defined in 
section 12(c) (6) of the UHT Act as service co the public, 
either general service or special/service, on a regular 
and continuing basis. In the preamble to the new 
regulation, UMTA offers additional guidance on the nature 

····Of mass transportation, by providing three characteristics 
which distinguish it from "charter service". 

First, the preamble explains, mass transportation is 
under the control of the recipient. This means that 
the recipien~ is responsible for setting the route, race, 
ana schedule. Second, the service is designed to benefit 
the public at large, and not some special organization. 
Third, mass transportation is open to the public. 
Anyone wishing to ride on the service must be allowed 
to do so. 

Applying these definitions and guidelines to the commuter 
club service described in your letter, the service .is 
clearly "mass transportation 11 and not "charter service". 
First, you state that Port Authority sets the rate, 
schedule, and subject to slight deviations for traffic 
anc road conditions, the destination for· the service. 
Second, the service is apparently designed to benefit 
the public, in this case commuters working in downtown 
Pittsburgh. Third, you describe the service as open to 
the public, and that anyone.wishing to ride it is entitled 
to do so. Fourth, there is no contract between Port 
Authority and the riders: the latter receive a monthly 
pass which entitles them to ride the commuter bus. Finally, 
the service as you describe it is regular and continuous, 
and is not the type of one-time provision of service 
envisaged in the charter regulation. 
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Accordingly, UMTA considers the Port Authority of Allegheny 
County to be mass transportation r.ather than charter 
service, in keeping with the definition of 49 CFR Port 
604 and its interpretative guidelines. 
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~ 4-- [q u._6 . 
Joseph A. LaSala, Jr. 

·Chief·Counsel 



U.S. Department 
of Transportation 

Urban Mass 
Transportation 
Administration 

Mr. Jack R. Gilstrap 
Executive Vice President 

The Deputy Administrator 

American Public Transit Association 
1225 Connecticut Avenue, N.W. 
washington, D.C. 20036 

Dear Jack: 

400 Seventh St.. S.W. 
Washington, D.C. 20590 

AUG 12 1987 

In light of a number of questions both the American Public Transit 
Association (APTA) and the Urban Mass ·Transportation 
Administration (UMTA) have received about the effective date of 
UMTA's charter bus regulation, we are pleased to take you. up on 
your offer to print a concise statement on this matter in 
Passenger Transport. 

If an UMTA g_rantee was providing charter bus service on May 13, 
1987, and desires to continue to provide such service, 
section 604.ll(a) (2) of the regulation (52 Federal Register 11935) 
provides· that the grantee must complete a publ:.ic participation 
process not more than 90 d~ys after May 13, 1987. In other words, 
a recipient of UMTA fund-s may not provide charter bus service 
using UMTA facilities or equipment after August 11, 1987, unless 
it has completed its public participation process, and no private 
charter operator is willing and able to provide the service. Of 
course, a grantee may provide charter service on an incidental 
basis if it has been granted one of the exceptions by UMTA which 
are outlined in the rule. If a recipient was not providing 
charter service on May 13, 1987, but desires to do so, it must 
first complete a public participation process at least 60 days 
before initiating charter service. 

The regulation provides that if UMTA determines that a violation 
has occurred, the Chief Counsel may order such remedies he 
determines are appropriate given the facts and circumstances of 
each case. The regulation further provides that the Chief Counsel 
may bar the recipient from the receipt of UMTA funding if he 
determines that there has beeri a continuing pattern of violation 
of the regulation. 

As you know, this regulat~on, which is a priority of this 
Administration, was developed over a period of years, including a 
lengthy notice and comment period. The regulation is now in place 
and our enforcement efforts are underway. 
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Our regional offices and headquarters staff are available to 
provide any additional information or guidance that our recipients 
or APTA may need regarding the regulation. 

Sincerely~ . 

/: n (.. ) f). \t r\ . <1~---· I\: '<- oB-- I~ · '· 
Alfred A. DelliBovi 

URBAN MASS TRANSPORTATION ADMINISTRATION 
UCC-10:DDUFF:hb:366-40ll:AUGUST 11, 1987 
KEY WORD: Charter Bus Regulations 
F+LE NAME: Gilstrap 
COPIES TO: UCC-10 

UCC-1 
UCC-30 
UCC-CHRON 

UOA-2 
UES-10 ( 2) 
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US Department 
of Transportation 

UrbonMass 
Transportation 
Administration 

August 12, 19 87 

REGION VIII 
Colorado, North Dakota, 
Montana, South Dakota, 
Utah, Wyoming 

Mr. Chester Colby, General Manager 
RTD 
1600 Blake Street 
Denver, CO 80202-1399 

Dear· Ed: 

1050 17th Street 
Prudential Plaza 
Suite 1822 
Deriver, Colorado 80265 

This is to notify you that UMTA has approved RTD • s arrangement 
for leasing charter buses to private operators as being in 
compliance with current charter regulations. 

An additional question bas also been pos¢d to Headqua,rters 
concerning the possible treatment of lessees as "recfpients" 
under the new regulations. If lessees were to be considered 
recipients for the purposes of the regulations, they would be 
subject to the same public notice requirements and charter 
service restrictions as grantees. 

We have recommended that occasional lessees of charter equipment 
not be treated like recipients, since such treatment would likely 
preclude the types of leasing arrangements specifically permitted 
by the regulations, i.e., leasing to a private operator who lacks 
either the required capacity or handicapped accesssible 
equipment. 

We will inform you if we receive any further guidance on this 
point •.. Thank ,.YOU for your cooperation. 

sincerely yours, 

Helen l4. Knoll 
Regional Counsel 

cc: James Rea, Colorado Western Stages, Inc. 
Jack Brooks, RTD 
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KRAFTOURS CORPORATION, 
Complainant, 

vs. 

HARRIS COUNTY METROPOLITAN 
TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY, 

Respondent/Grantee 

I. SUMMARY OF DECISION 

DECISION 

} 
} 
} 
} 
} 
} 
} 
) 

OK-02/86-01 

This decision is in response to .:a complaint filed on February 24, 
1986, with the Urb'a:n·Mass Transportation Administration (UMTA) by 
Kraftours Corporation (Kraf·tours). In its complaint, Kraftours · · 
claimed that Natioi1al Transit Services (NTS), a privately-owned 
bus company, was operating·charter bus service without UMTA 
authority while under contract with the Harris County Metropolitan 
Transportation Authority (MTA), the Houston, Texas grantee of 
UMTA. UMTA's·subsequent examination of the facts and materials 
submitted by the parties revealed that, with the ·exception of 
route cat·ds displayed on NTS vehicl~s, the charter service in 
question was not performed using UMTA-funded equipment or 
operating assistance. Consequently, UMTA concludes that there has 
been no .·substantial violation of the .charter restrictions in the 
UMT Act of 1964 on the part of either NTS or MTA. 

II. BACKGROUND 

A. Complaint 

Kraftours' complaint of February 24, 1986, claimed that NTS had, 
for the prevfous two months, been engaged in operating charter 
service in interstate commerce. 'It specifically alleged that NTS 
had used publicly-funded bus·es to provide charter service from 
Hous~on, Texas, to Red Rock, Oklahoma,· for the purpose of 
tran.sporting passengers to participate in bingo games on Indian 
reservations. 

By letter of April 3, 1986, UMTA informed MTA·. ~f the complaint 
filed by Kraftours. The letter stated that Kraftours' · 
allegations, if true, could constitute a violation of the charter 
bus restrictions in Section 3(f) of the Urban Mass Transportation 
Act of 1964, as amended, and the implementing regulations, 49 

183 



2 

C.F.R. 604.1 The letter also pointed out that if MTA contracts 
with NTS, the charter bus restrictions apply to NTS to the extent 
that it operates charter service using UMTA-funded equipment. 
Since the service in question appears to have been operated 
outside of the MTA service area, and if MTA had earned more than 
$15, 000 in charter revenues during the past fi.scal year, the 
letter stated, MTA would have to have entered.into a charter bus 
agreement and submitted a cost allocation plan to UMTA before MTA 
or NTS could provide charter services. UMTA noted that MTA had 
not entered into any such agreement. UMTA therefore stated that 
it was treating Kraftours• letter as a formal complaint, and 
provided MTA with 30 days from the receipt of UMTA's letter to 
respond to the complaint. 

B. Response to Complaint 

MTA responded to the complaint by letter dated April 9, 1986. In 
this letter, MTA stated that NTS operated commuter bus services 
for MTA under contract with compensation based on the number of 
revenue hours provided. MTA explained that no UMTA grant-funded 
equipment or operating assistance was utilized in this service, 
and that NTS owned its vehicles and provided all operators, fuel, 
and other supplies necessary to operate the services. MTA stated 
that NTS performed no charter services for or under contract to 
MTA,· and that consequently, it was of the opinion that NTS' 
charter operations did not fall within the purview of the Federal 
statute or regulations. 

c. Rebuttal 

UMTA sent a copy of MTA's initial response to Kraftours on 
April 26, 1986, and provided it with 30 days from the date of 
receipt to rebut MTA's response •. By letter dated May 20, 1986, 
Kraftours took exception to the notion that NTS was exempt from 
the UMTA charter bus regulations by virtue of the fact that it 
operated without direct funding from MTA. Kraftours alleged that 
the vehicles NTS used in providing charter service had been 
purchased pursuant to the contract with MTA. According to 
Kraftours, " ••• National Transit certainly would not own these 
numerous, new vehicles ••• were it not for the contract to the 
Grantee to provide regular route services ••• ". Consequently, 
Kraftours stated, NTS had been placed in a position to compete 

1The charter service regulation in effect as the time o·f this 
complaint has been replaced by a new rule which became effective 
on May 13, 1987. Under this new rule, recipients and 
subrecipients UMTA funds may not engage in charter operations if 
there is a private operator "willing and able" to perform the 
service. Therefore, had this complaint been decided under the new 
regulation, and assuming t~at Kraftours could be considered a 
"willing and able" private operator, NTS would be prohibited from 
performing the charter service cited herein. 
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unfairly with the private sector, in violation of the UMT Act of 
1964. 

Kraftours claimed that NTS not only used these vehicles purchased 
pursuant to the contract with MTA, .to unlawfully and flagrantly 
conduct charter bus operations, but it also attempted.to mislead 
the public_into believing that· it was providing charter service 
under MTA authority. Kraftours alleged that .the NTS vehicles 
involved in these activities displayed MTA advertisement, MTA 
vehicle numbers, and MTA license plates, thereby holding 
themselves out in the eyes of the public as operating under the 
auspices of MTA. 

To illustrate its claims, Kraftours cited an incident which 
occurred on April 19, 1986 involving an NTS vehicle. On that 
occasion, Kraftours alleged, an NTS bus "in Houston Metro livery" 
was seen by an employee of Kraftours in a service station at the 
intersection of the Oklahoma cimmarron Turnpike and state road 
#77. This vehicle, it was claimed, displayed MTA advertising ori 
the outside and inside, and also bore an Indian reservation bingo 
parking sticker. Claiming that a violation of t~e UMTA 
regulations had thus occurred, Kraftours requested that UMTA take 
action to prevent a recurrence of such alleged unfair trade 
practices. 

o. Supplementary Response 

UMTA forwarded a copy of Kraftours' rebuttal to MTA on July 7, 
·1986, and requested that MTA respond to it within 15 days. By 
letter of July 23, 1986, MTA filed a supplementary response, in 
which it stated that Kraftours rebuttal contained a number of 
misstatements of fact or incorrect conclusions from accurate 
facts. 

MTA first of all denied that NTS operated in MTA livery. MTA 
pointed out that its own red, white and blue graphics scheme was 
substantially different from the red stripe on white bus paint 
scheme used by most NTS buses. MTA enclosed color photos of both 
an MTA and an NTS bus, to illustrate the difference in color 
schemes. Second, as concerns Kraftours' allegation that NTS buses 
carried MTA advertisement, MTA noted that when NTS buses were 
operated in contract service, they carried a car card in the rear 
and a dash sign indicating the particular route they are serving. 
According to MTA, these signs were to be used by NTS only when 
it was providing service for MTA, and were to be· removed when the 
buses were not providing such service. Third, MTA denied that NTS 
buses carried MTA license plates, and stated that they instead 
carried commercial license plates. 

MTA stated that it did not have sufficient information about 
NTS' business affairs to respond to Kraftours' assertion that the 
vehicles in question had b~en purchased specifically by NTS for 
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the purpose of fulfilling its obligations under the contract with 
MTA. MTA pointed out that it had a service contract with NTS, 
and that it considered the fact of whether NTS used its existing 
fleet or purchased new vehicles, to be of no bearing or relevance. 
In support of its assertions concerning the nature of the 
agreement between itself and NTS, MTA attached to its 
supplement~ry response a copy of the contract. 

on August 12, 1986, UMTA sent to Kraftours a copy of MTA's 
supplementary response and the attached documents, and stated that 
it would endeavor to issue a decision as soon as its current work 
load permitted. Kraftours acknowledged receipt of MTA's · 
supplementary response by letter to UMTA dated August 25, 1986. 
However, Kraftours stated that the supplementary response had not 
addressed the issues raised in its rebuttal, and indicated that it 
maintained all of the allegations made in its letter of May,20, 
1986. 

III. DISCUSSION 

The issue in this case is whether the charter restrictions in.the 
Urban Mass Transportation Act of 1964, as amended, and the 
implementing regulations in effect at the time of the complaint, 
49 C.F.R. 60·4, applied to the interstate charter service provided 
by NTS. If they did not, neither MTA, as a direct UMTA grantee, 
nor NTS, as a contractor operating under its authority, can be 
cited for a failure to c·omply. 

One of the principal goals of the above-cited charter restrictions 
was to protect private charter operators from unfair competition 
on the part of recipients of UMTA assistance. 49 C.F.R. 604.13 
indeed provided that in order to engage in charter bus operations 
outside its urban area, the recipient must enter into a special 
agreement, aimed at assuring " ••• that the financial assistance 
granted under this mass transportation grant project will not 
enable the grantee, or any operator of project equipment for the 
grantee, to foreclose private operators form the intercity charter 
bus industry ••• ". 

These restrictions on charter bus services were applicable, under 
49 C.F.R. 604.2, only to recipients of UMTA financial assistance 
for the purchase or operation of buses. NTS was thus subject to 
requirements of 49 c.F.R. 604 only to the extent that it used 
UMTA-funded buses or operating assistance in performing its 
charter services. In order to. determine whether these provisions 
applied, then, it must first be established that NTS was indeed 
such an "operator of project equipment" for UMTA's grantee, MTA. 

Kraftours alleged this fact in its letter of May 20, 1986, in 
which it stated that the vehicles used by NTS in its charter 
operations were purchased pursuant to the contract between NTS and 
MTA. Kraftours based this assertion on "outward appearances" and 
its observation that " ••• National Transit would not own these 
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numerous, new vehicles ••• were it not for the contract with the 
Grantee ••• ". In order to make a.determination on this point, 
however, it is necessary to go beyond outward appearances and 
observations, to examine the facts presented by the parties, and 
the provisions of the contract between NTS and MTA. 

In its initial response to Kraftours' complaint, MTA. stated that 
NTS used no UMTA-funded equipment or operating assistance in its 
charter operations. MTA maintained that NTS owned its vehicles, 
and provided all operators, fuel, and other supplies necessary to 
perform such services. MTA also stated that NTS performed no 
charter services for or under contract to MTA. 

An examination of the contract between NTS and MTA bear out the 
latter's affirmations on these points. Article 3 of the. contract 
describes the services to be performed by NTS as the providing of 
commuter bus service over six MTA bus routes. There is no 
provision for charter, or any other than regularly scheduled 
route service. It is also provided that NTS shall furnish all 
personnel, passenger buses, equipment, and maintenance facilities 
necessary for the performance of these services. 

Under Article 11 of the contract, the only property to be 
furnished by MTA to NTS are transit fareboxes, farebox cards, 
signage and sign holders. It is moreover specifically provided 
that such property shall only be used in the performance of the 
contract. There is no provision for the supplying of vehicles or 
other capital equipment by MTA to NTS. 

Article 7 states that NTS shall be paid on the basis of the number 
of service hours scheduled by MTA. Under the terms of this 
provision, NTS is compensated only for.services actually 
performed, and in accordance with a variable rate based on the 
level of performance provided to MTA for each scheduled trip. 

This examination of the contract does not, then, support 
Kraftours' assertion that NTS was using publicly funded buses for 
charter operations, in violation of the UMTA charter bus 
regulations. NTS merely provides service.s for MTA, and in so 
doing, uses its own equipment, personnel·and facilities. NTS is 
neither the recipient of direct UMTA grants, nor an.operator of 
project equipment for the grantee. 

Since it has been established that the buses used by NTS in its 
charter operations were not UMTA-funded, it is not necessary to 
reach the subsidiary allegation raised in Kraftours' letter of 
May 20, 1986, namely that NTS was "holding itself out in the minds 
of the public as operating under the auspices" of MTA. Even 
admitting, arguendo, that NTS was attempting to create the 
impression that it was operating charter service under the 
authority of MTA, its activities could be prohibited under the 
charter bus regulations only if they were performed using UMTA
funded equipment or operating assistance. As a private operator, 
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using its own vehicles to perform services outside the scope of 
its contract with UMTA's grantee, MTA, NTS was not subject to the 
restrictions of the then existing charter regulations, 49 c.F.R. 
Part 604. The trade practices it used in its charter operations, 
no matter how unfair they may have seemed to Complainant, were of 
no concern to UMTA. 

Moreover, there is no clear indication that NTS was indeed trying 
to associate itself with MTA in the minds of the public::. The 
photos submitted by MTA do show certain similarities in the 
appearance of NTS and MTA buses, but there were also substantial 
differences. While MTA buses used a red, white and blue graphics 
scheme and bear the word "METRO" in large letters, the NTS buses 
had a red on white bus color scheme and no lettering. 

Kraftours letter of May 20, 1986, also alleged that NTS buses 
carried "Metro advertising" while performing charter services. 
According to MTA's response of July 23, 1986, the "advertisement" 
referred to were probably the route cards which NTS buses carried 
in the dash and rear while performing regular contract service. 
Under Article 11 of the MTA/NTS contract, these signs were to be 
used by NTS only when performing contract services. NTS' failure 
to remove them during charter operations would constitute a 
violation of the contract. Moreover, since this siqnage was 
supplied to NTS by MTA under Article 11 of the above-·mentioned 
contract, it was UMTA-funded equipment, and, in keeping with the 
provisions of 49 c.F.R. Part 604, should not have been used in the 
performance of charter services. However, since a new charter 
regulation has gone into effect since the time of this complaint 
which presumably precludes NTS from performing charter operations, 
UMTA feels that it is not necessary to issue an order enjoining 
NTS from using the signage while engaged in "private" service. 
NTS 1 use of the signage constituted a relatively minor violation 
of the then existing charter rule, so that no sanction against NTS 
or MTA would have been warranted on that basis alone. 

IV. CONCLUSION 

UMTA's examination of the evidence presented reveals that the 
charter operations performed by NTS were outside the scope of its 
contract with UMTA's grantee, MTA, and, with the exception of 
signage displayed on NTS vehicles, did not involve the use.of 
UMTA-funded equipment or operating assistance. As such, they did 
not fall within the ambit of the charter restrictions in the UMT 
Act and implementing regulations in effect as the time of the 
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complaint, 49 C.F.R. 604. UMTA therefore finds that there was no 
violation warranting sanction against MTA or NTS. 

· Rita Daguill,ard 
Attorney-Advisor 

· Chief Counsel 
Jr. 

I Date 

Date 
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U.S. Deportment 
of Transportation 

Urban Mass 
Transportation 
Administration 

Mr. David Ryan 
General Counsel 

HeadQuarters 

AUG 2 6 1987 

Topeka Metropolitan Transit Authority 
201 North Kansas 
Topeka, Kansas 66603 

Dear Mr. Ryan: 

40C Se.-enth St.. S.'vV 
Was~:ngton. 0 C 20590 

Enclosed is a copy of a letter from Mr. Craig D. Busskohl of 
Arrow Stage Lines pertaining to the decision of the Topeka 
Metropolitan Transit Authority (TMTA) that Arrow Stage Lines 
is not a willing and able private operator pursuant to the 
Urban Mass Transportation Administration's (UMTA) charter 
service regulations, 49 C.F.R. section ~04.13. 

UMTA questions your rejection of Arrow Stage Lines on the grounds 
that it has not submitted evidence of its authority to pr6vide 
charter service in the City of Topeka,· Kansas. Please submit a 
detailed legal opinion stating the specific requirements that 
must be met to provide service within the city, with all pertinent 
citations and references to the organization that regulates 
charter o~erations within the city. Absent valid State law to the 
contrary, UMTA presumes that a charter operator licensed to 
provide service in any part of a State is authorized to provide 
service within any city of that State. 

UMTA finds TMTA's notice that it intends to provide charter 
service in trolley buses to be unreasonably restrictive pursuant 
to the provisions of 49 C.F.R. section 604.ll(c) (2). Pursuant 
to the definition of categories of revenue vehicles at 
49 C.F.R. section 604.5(d), the only categories of revenue 
vehicles that may be specified are buses and vans. By offering to 
provide charter service in trolleys, TMTA's notice discourages 
private operators whose capabilities are different from informing 
TMTA that they are willing and able to provide charter service. 
Moreover, it is contrary to the provisions of OMTA's regulations 
to find a private operator not willing and able because it does 
not offer to provide charter service in trolleys. 

~ 

Therefore, if TMTA did publish such a notice and no private 
operator is found by TMTA to be willing and able to provide 
charter service, then TMTA must publish a notice which comports 
properly with the requirements of the regulations. The new 
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notice must provide at least 30 days in which a private operator 
may offer charter service. TMTA may not undertake charter service 
directly after August 11, 1987, until TMTA finds that no willing 
and able private operator has responded to a new notice that meets 
the requirements of 49 C.F.R. section 604.ll(c). 

Enclosure 
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U.S. Department 
of Transportation 

Urban Mass 
Transportation 
Administration 

Headquarters 

AUG 
,. ~ 

t. t '-._-. 

Mr. Wayne J. Smith 
Executive Director 

..... . .. "'/ '--·/.· 
· ....... '• ....... :·' .. "'' 

United Bus Owners of America 
1275 K Street, N.W. 
Washingt9n, D.C. 20005-4006 

Dear Mr. Smith: 

........ .:_;~_: ___ _ 

This is in response to your letter of August 3, 1987, on behalf of 
Crescent Tour and Charter of Topeka, Kansas (Crescent Tour). 

The Urban Mass Transportation Administration (UMTA) agrees with 
you that the Topeka Metropolitan Transit Authority's (TMTA) . 
requirements for trolleys set forth in their notice is overly 
restrictive. 

Moreover, the TMTA's requirements pertaining to Crescent Tour's 
legal authority may be too restrictive. Therefore, UMTA has 
written a letter to TMTA, informing them of our view and asking 
for further information about their legal requirements 
(copy enclosed) • 

In response to your questions about trolley buses, UMTA has not 
maintained a list of buses for which UMTA has provided assistance 
and is thus uncertain how many trolley buses have been acquired 
with UMTA assistance. UMTA affords its grantees much -discretion 
in determining what type of vehicle best meets their mass transit 
needs. It is my impression that some of the trolleys acquired 
with UMTA assistance have been used to meet downtown circulation 
needs. I would_ emphasize that UMTA assistance is granted only for 
mass transportation purposes. 

Sincer~y'-~ • 

dth A. LaS~, 
Chief counsel 

Enclosure 
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US. Deportment 
01 Transportation 

The Deputy Administrator 

Urban Mass 
Transportation 
Administration SEP -3 1987 

The Honorable Loren Callendar 
Mayor of sioux City 
City Ha:ll 
Sioux City, Iowa 51102-0447 

Dear Mayor Callendar: 

.ao Seventh St., S.W. 
Washin~ton, D.C. 20590 

This is in response to your letter to Secretary Dole pertaining to 
the effect on the Siou~ City Transit System of the Urban Mass 
Transportation Administration's (UMTA) rulemaking on "Charter 
service" and the difficulties in obtaining affordable charter 
service from private operators. 

on April 13, 1987, UMTA published its revised regulations 
regarding the charter service which UMTA recipients may provide 
using UMTA-funded equipment and facilities. A copy of th~se 
regulations is enclosed. 

UMTA's.~harter service regulations prohibit the Sioux City 
Trans~t ~ystem, an UMTA recipient, from providing directly any 
chart~r bus or van service which uses UMTA-funded equipment or 
facilities if there is at least one_willing and able private 
charter operator •. The Sioux City Transit system may supplement 
the capability of the p~ivate operatQr as set forth in the 
excepti.on at 49 C.F.R. section 604.9(b)(2). In essence, this 
exception permits the Sioux City Transit System to lease its 
vehicles on an incidental basis to a private operator to meet the 
needs·of a particular charter trip. If the Sioux City Transit 
System makes its buses, including its trolley bus, available to a 
private'·operator, such service must be incidental to its provision 
of mass ~ransportation service. · 

.UMTA took care in drafting these regulations to establish broad 
·categories of revenue vehicles to preclude recipients from 
finding that a charter operator is not willing and able. For 
that teason, UMTA recognizes only buses and vans as appropriate 
categories of vehicles. Thus UMTA classifies a trolley bus 
as a bus for purposes of compliance with the regulations. 
49 c.:F:R. section 604.5(d). Although UMTA understands that 
considerable interest has been shown in chartering trolley buses, 
UMTA bel1eves it is not essential to the public interest to 
accommodate this preference at the expense of private charter 
operators that may lack trolley buses. Therefore, UMTA believes 
an exception for trolley buses is inappropriate. 
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In drafting these regulations, UMTA determined that our statutory 
mandates to protect private charter bus operators from unfair 
competition from UMTA recipients, by virtue of their havinq 
obtained substantial Federal financial assistance, and to·ensure 
that UMTA-funded equipment is used for mass transportation require 
that the regulations be as restrictive as they are. UMTA believes 
that the private charter industry is able to serve the Nation's 
essential charter needs. I believe the exceptions in the 
regulations assure that the actual transportation needs of the 
public can be met adequately. 

SAil A OJil:'fk 
Alfred A. DelliBovi 

Enclosure 

194 



U.S Department 
of TransportatiOn 

Urban Mass 
Transportation 
Administration 

The Honorable William Lehman 

The Deputy Administrator 

SEP 8 \981 

Chairman, Subcommittee on Transportation 
Committee on Appropriations 
House of Representatives 
Washington, D.C. 20515 

Dear Mr. Chairman: 

~00 Seventh St., S.W. 
Washington, D.C. 20590 

The House Report accompanying the Fiscal Year 1988 Department of 
Transportation and Related Agencies appropriation bill contains a 
number of directives to the Urban Mass Transportation 
Administration (UMTA) regarding the charter bus reg~lation 
UMTA recently issued. Included among those directives is a 
request that we survey our grantees to determine if any of them 
have purchased charter rights without Federal funds. ·While we are 
not providing this specific information, we thirik that the 
information discussed below responds to the thrust of this 
question. 

The purchase of private charter rights by a public transit 
operator is not eligible for Federal funding. While we do not 
know how many transit operators have purchased private charter 
rights, or whether such purchases were before or after enactment 
of the UMT Act, we can assure you that no private charter rights 
were purchased with UMTA funds. As a general policy matter, UMTA 
~rovides Federal assistance only for mass transportation 
activities. Charter bus activities are not mass transportationJ 
the purchase of private charter rights by a transit operator are 
not eligible for Federal funding and have not been eligible for 
such funding at any time during the history of the UMTA program. 

UMTA's charter bus regulation does not apply to non-federally 
funded eguipment and facilities. The Committee's request for 
information appears to suggest that an exception should be created 
that would permit UMTA grantees to engage in charter bus 
activities so long as Federal funds aie not involved. In fact, 
such an exception already exists. The charter bus regulation is 
inapplicable to any charter bus activities of an UMTA grantee that 
are carried out without federally funded equipment or facilities. 
In such a case, if a grantee can establish that Federal funds are 
not in any manner being used to support its charter bus 
activities, it may provide charter bus activities without 
restriction by UMTA. 
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The reguirements of the charter bus regulation are triggered by 
the use of UJ.!TA funded facil !ties and eguipment. The question of 
whether a grantee has purchased private charter rights with 
non-Federal funds is irrelevant to the requirements of the charter 
bus regulation. As a matter of law, the charter bus requirement 
applies to • ••• any public body receiving such [Federal transit] 
assistance for the purchase or operation of buses •• •. 
(Section 3(f) of the UMT Act). Private charter rigAts purchased 
by an UMTA grantee should have been so purchased without Federal 
funds. Once any such grantee receives UMTA funding for the 

·purchase or operation of buses, however, that grantee as a matter 
of law must, in using federally funded equipment or facilities, 
comply with the statutory and regulatory charter bus 
requirements. 

I trust this is responsive to the Committee's request. If we can 
provide any further information regarding this matter, please 
contact me. 

SAifA.~& 
Alfred A. DelliBovi 
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ERIN TOURS, 
complainant, 

vs. 

COMMAND BUS COMPANY, 
Respondent 

I. SUMMARY OF DECISION 

} 
} 
} 
} 
} 
} 
} 

DECISION 

NY-02/86-01 

This decision is in response to a complaint filed with the Urban 
Mass Transportation Administration (UMTA) on February 11, 1986, by 
Erin Tours (Erin). The complainant alleged that Command Bus 
Company (Command) had operated charter service using UMTA-funded 
equipment which had been deleted from regular service. 

UMTA's investigation of the complaint leads it to conclude that 
Erin's allegations are founded. Consequently, UMTA holds·that 
Command has engaged in charter activities in violation of Sections 
3(f) and 12(c) (6) of the Urban Mass Transportation Act of 1964, as 
amended (UMT Act), and the implementing regulations in 49 C.F.R. 
Part 604.1 

II. COMPLAINT 

On February 11, 1986, Erin Tours filed a complaint with UMTA in 
which it alleged that Command Bus Company had operated charter 
service using UMTA-funded vehicles which had been deleted from 
regularly scheduled service. The complaint specifically cited two 
incidents involving Command buses. In the first incident, alleged 
to have occurred on February 7, 1986, Erin. stated that Command 
used four of its buses to run charter service to the airport 
during the morning rush hour. On a second occasion which, 
according to Erin's letter, took place on February 10, 1986, two 
Command buses were seen unloading passengers at the Pan Am 
terminal at J.F.K. Airport during the afternoon peak period. 

1The regulation in effect at the time of this complaint has been 
replaced by a new charter service rule, which became effective on 
May 13, 1987. Under the new rule, recipients and subrecipients of 
UMTA funding may not engage in charter operations if there is a 
private operator "willing and able" to perform the charter service 
the recipient seeks to provide.~ Had this complaint been decided 
under the new regulation, and assuming that Erin could be 
considered a "willing and able" private operator, Command, a 
subrecipient of funds through UMTA's grantee, NYCDOT, would be 
prohibited from providing the charter service cited therein. 
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III. RESPONSE 

By letter of March 14, 1986, UMTA informed Command of the 
complaint filed against it. The letter stated that Erin's 
allegations provided sufficient detail to enable UMTA to 
determine ~hat a violation of Section 3(f) and 12(c)(6) of the 
UMT Act had occurred. The implementing regulations, the letter 
said, permitted only charter service that was incidental to the 
provision of mass transportation. The regulations presumed that 
'weekday peak hour charters were not incidental, but permitted a 
recipient to rebut the presumption. Accordingly, UMTA gave 
Command 30 days from receipt of the letter to respond to the 
allegations. Since Command receives UMTA assistance solely 
through the New York City Department of Transportation (NYCDOT) 
and not directly from UMTA, UMTA asked Command to work with NYCDOT 
in_preparing its response. 

on March 14, 1986, UMTA sent to NYCDOT a similar letter, in which 
it stated that NYCDOT was also considered a respondent in this 
proceeding, and that it should respond within 30 days from receipt 
of the letter. UMTA received no response from NYCDOT. On May 26, 
1986, UMTA sent a second copy of the complaint to NYCDOT, along 
with a letter which stated that the first copy of the 
correspondence had been forwarded to NYCDOT through DHL World 
Express Courier, whose records showed that it had been received. 
NYCDOT was given 30 days to respond, and was asked to work closely 
with command in preparing its response. NYCDOT failed to respond 
to this second letter. In a telephone conversation of June 13, 
1986, NYCDOT indicated to UMTA that it was preparing a response, 
and would forward it shortly. Despite this assurance, however, 
UMTA has never received a response from NYCDOT. 

In a letter dated April 21, 1986, command informed UMTA that 
Erin's letter of complaint had not been included in UMTA's 
correspondence of March 14, 1986. Command thus requested, since 
it did not have knowledge of the specific allegations brought 
against it, that UMTA grant it an extension of time in which to 
respond •. 

By letter of May 6, 1986, UMTA acknowledged the administrative 
oversight, and granted Command an extension of 30 days to respond 
to Erin's complaint. 

Command responded to the complaint by letter dated May 29, 1986. 
In that letter, Command stated that the buses mentioned in the 
complaint had been part of the Mass Transportation Service 
Contract of.March 2, 1979 between New York City and Pioneer Bus 
Corp., and subsequently transferred in the October 3, 1979 
Assignment Assumption Agreement between Pioneer and Command. 
Command said that it had operated and maintained these vehicles 
since the date of the said 't;ran·sfer, and that they had been used 
principally for express bus service between Brooklyn and 
Manhattan. 
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command further stated that it used these buses for charter 
service in compliance with the provisions of the above-cited Mass 
Transportation Service Contract. It quoted Article 24 of the said 
contract, which provides that the carrier may perform charter 
operations, as long as the buses used in such charter operations 
do not exceed 8.64%.of the mileage accrued annually during the 
term of the contract. 

As concerns the first incident cited in Erin's complaint, Command 
stated that it did not involve service to the airport during rush 
hour, but was rather a charter trip between and mid-Manhattan 
hotel and the Brooklyn Academy of Music, and began with a noon 
pickup. command said that all morning trips on February 7, 1986, 
had been covered, and that spare buses were available. 

As for the second incident, command admitted that it did occur at 
the date and place indicated, but said that the buses used therein 
had not been deleted from service on its regular, franchised 
routes. All regular express and local.bus runs, Command stated, 
had been cove~ed on that date of February 11, 1986. 

IV. REBUTTAL 

UMTA forwarded to Erin a copy of Command's response on June 25, 
1986. UMTA's letter noted that although a copy of the compl8:.int 
had been sent to NYCDOT, no response had been received. UMTA 
stated that since the 30-day period for NYCDOT to respond. had 
lapsed, UMTA would not consider any material subsequently 
received from NYCDOT as part of the administrative record on which 
it would base its decision. Erin was again given 30 days from. 
receipt of the letter to rebut Command's response. UMTA stated 
that it would endeavor to issue a decision within 30 days of 
Erin's rebuttal. 

UMTA received Erin's rebuttal on July 28, 1986. Erin therein 
stated that the incidents cited in its complaints were only two 
examples of what it considered to be a continuing, blatant 
disregard for UMTA regulations. Erin said that Command had. 
openly advertised its intent to compete in the charter market, 
and had in fact recently made· several local and interstate charter 
trips. 

Erin moreover stated that given the overcrowding and insufficient 
number of Command buses, Command's claim that the charter buses 
had not been deleted from regular service,·was implausible. 
Command 1 s assertion that it "·operates its franchised routes with 
the highest performance levels of service possible" was 
contradicted, Erin said, by the level of service Command 
provides. · 

V. UMTA 1S REQUEST FOR ADDITION~L INFORMATION 

By le~ter of February 13, 1987, UMTA requested from Command 
additional information needed to clarify points made in Command's 
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response of May·29, 1986. UMTA first of all asked that Command 
provide it with information which could help establish that the 
buses in question had been purchased with UMTA funds, so that it 
could be determined whether they are subject to the UMTA charter 
bus regulations. · 

Secondly, UMTA noted that in its response, Command admitted that 
it did make a charter trip to the.airport on February 10, 1986, 
but stated that the two buses used had not been deleted from 
regular service. UMTA stated that in order to accept Command's 
assertion, it must have specific information that its franchised 
routes had not been deprived of regular service during the rush 
period on that date. Accordingly, UMTA asked Command to send any 
supporting documents which could help establish this fact. 

UMTA gave Command 30 days from receipt of its letter to provide 
the requested information, and stated that it would endeavor to 
issue a decision within 30 days of its receipt thereof. Command 
informed UMTA by telephone on March 22, 1987, that it had received 
the letter of February 26, 1987, .and planned to respond within 30 
days·of that date. Since Command failed to do so, however, UMTA 
proceeded to issue this decision. 

VI. DISCUSSION 

Under Section 12 (c) (6) of the UMT Act, "mass transportation"·, 
which is eligible for UMTA funding, does not include " ••• charter 
or sightseeing service". 49 C.F.R. 604.11(a) of the implementing· 
charter regulation then in effect stated that no grantee or 
operator of UMTA-funded buses or equipment may engage in charter 
bus operations, except on an incidental basis, in compliance with 
the Opinion of the Comptroller General of the United States, B-
160204 (December 7, 1966).2 Among the charter uses presumed by 
the regulation not to be incidental, were the following: 

(1) Weekday charters which occur during peak 
morning and evening rush hours; 

(2) Weekday charters which require buses to 
travel more than fifty miles beyond a grantee's 
urban area; . 

(3) Weekday charters which require the use of a 
particular bus for more than a total of six hours 
in any one day. 

In its complaint, Erin alleged that command, an operator of 
transportation services for UMTA's grantee, NYCDOT, had violated 
49 c.F.R. 604.11(b) (1), by operating weekday charters during peak 

2 Incidental use, as deflned ··by the Opinion of the Comptroller 
General, is that which " ••• does not detract or interfere with 
urban mass transportation service." 
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rush hours, using vehicles deleted from regular service. The 
complaint cited two alleged examples of such charter operations, 
one occurring during the February 7, 1986, morning rush hour, and 
the other during the February 10, 1986, peak period. 

' 
I~ its response, Command denied that it operated charter service 
to the airport on February 7, 1986. The charter run it made on 
that date, Command claims, was between a midtown Manhattan 
hotel and the Brooklyn Academy of Music. Command moreover stated 
that the trip did not take place during the morning rush hour, but 
rather began with a pickup at noon. 

In its rebuttal, Erin offered no evidence to contradict command's 
claim that the February 7 charter trip did not take place during 
the morning rush hours. Erin merely contented itself with making 
general assertions that Command's response is simply "perfunctory 
lip service" and "biased statements", without going to the heart 
of the very precise contention Command made with regard to ~his 
trip. 

Given this lack of evidence to the contrary, then, Command's 
assertion that the February 7 charter was not weekday, peak hour 
service, must be accepted. This being the case, the incidental 
service provision of 49 C.F.R. 604.ll(b) (1) does not· apply, since 
the charter in question is clearly not the type prohibited by the 
regulation. · 

Such is not the case, however, with the February 10, 1986, charter 
trip, which Command acknowledges to have occurred at the time and 
place alleged in the complaint. Since this charter took place on 
a weekday and during peak rush hours, the presumption of 49 C.F.R. 
604.11 that it was non incidental service which interfered with 
regularly scheduled service is triggered. 

This presumption is not conclusive, however, and the respondent 
may overcome it by offering evidence or documentation sufficient 
to establish that all regular service requirements had been met on 
the day and time in question. Greyhound Lines, Inc. and Hopkins 
Limousine Service, Inc. v. Greater Cleveland Regional Transit 
Authority (August 26, 1982); Tower Bus, Inc. v. Southeastern 
Michigan Transportation Administration (November 5, 1984). While 
Command asserted in its response that the vehicles used in the 
February 10 charter operation had not been deleted from regular 
service, it offered no documentary evidence of this fact. UMTA's 
letter of February 13, 1987, to command requested that Command 
furnish such information within 30 days of its receipt of the 
letter. Since Command did not respond to this request within the 
time allotted, UMTA holds that it has failed to rebut the 
presumption of 49 c.F.R. 604.11. Consequently, Command's charter 
operation of February 10, ·1986, is held to be a violation of the 
incidental service provisions of the charter bus regulations in 
effect at the time of the complaint. 
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It should be noted that the above-cited charter regulation applied 
only to charter operations using UMTA-funded vehicles. While 
Command performs urban mass transportation service for UMTA's 
grantee, NYCDOT, neither party has presented any specific 
evidence that the buses used by Command in performing its charter 
services, were not purchased or operated with UMTA funds. 
Command's response of May 29, 1986, states that the buses in 
question had been part of a Mass Transportation Service Contract 
between New York City and Pioneer Bus Corporation, and 
subsequently transferred to Command by an Assignment Assumption 
Agreement. It provided no details, however, on whether the 
original purchase of the buses, or their assignment, had been made 
with UMTA·funds. UMTA therefore requested, in its letter of 
February 13, 1987, that Comma.nd provide such information so that 
it could make a preliminary determination of whether the charter 
regulations were applicable. Since Command failed to.respond to 
this request within the time allotted, UMTA must therefore assume 
that the vehicles in question. were UMTA-funded, and consequently 
that the UMTA charter regulations then in effect did indeed apply 
to Command's operations. 

VII. CONCLUSION 

Based on the foregoing, UMTA holds that Command has, at least on 
one occasion, used UMTA-funded vehicles during a weekday ru~.b. hour 
in non-mass transportation related opera.tions •. Since Colnll\and has 
offered no evidence to overcome the presumption of 4.9 C.F.R. 
604.ll(b) (1), we find that this use violated the charter bus 
regulation in effect as the time of the complaint, 49 c.F.-R. 
604.ll(a) ~ 

However, the new charter regulations prohibit subrecipients of 
federal funds from providing charter service when there is a . 
willing and able private operator. Assuming that Erin is such a 
willing and able private operator, Command is presumably no longer 
able to provide the type of service cited in the complaint. 
consequently, UMTA finds that it is not necessary to impose 
sanctions upon Command for its violations of the former charter 
regulations. 

Jr. 

202 



Syracuse & Oswego Motor Lines, Inc. 
Central NY Coach Lines, Inc. and 
Onondaga Coach Corporation, 

Complainants 

v. 

) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 

Central New York Regional Transportation ) 
Authority, CNY CENTRO, Inc., CENTRO of ) 
Cayuga, Inc., and CENTRO of Oswego, Inc., ) 

Respondents 

I. SUM11ARY 

) 
) 
) 

NY-11/85-01 

On November 1, 1985, Syracuse & Oswego Motor Lines, Inc., 
Central NY Coach Lines, Inc., and Onondaga Coach Corporation 
(Complainants),_filed a complaint with the Urban Mass 
Transportation Administration (UMTA) alleging that the 
Central New York Regional Transportation Authority (CNYRTA), 
CNY Centro, Inc., Centro of .Cayuga, Inc., and Centro of 
Oswego, Inc. violated the charter bus restrictions in the 
Urban Mass Transportation Act of 1964, as amended (UMT ACT), 
and the implementing regulations, 49 CFR Part 604.1 

After a thorough review of the materials submitted, UMTA 
finds that CNYRTA did not violate the regulations with 
respect to the incidental use provision, operating beyond 
its urban area, and predatory pricing.2 However, at this 
time, UMTA finds that CNYRTA has not supported its 
contention that all expenses were properly allocated for 
charter service and charter revenues did not exceed charter 
costs for the years in question. 

Since CNYRTA has, however, ceased providing charter service 
following the implementation of the new charter regulations. 
on May 13, 1987, the issue of its nonconformity the with 
former regulations has become moot. UMTA consequently finds 
that it is not in the public interest to issue. any directive 
of guidance to CNYRTA with. respect to charter operations 
pre-dating the current regulations. 

1 The regulations that CNYRTA is alleged to have 
violated have been superseded by the revised regulations 
that UMTA published on April 13, 1987, 52 Federal Register 
11916. This decision, for ease of drafting and to eliminate 
cumbersome writing, speaks in terms of the old regulation, 
published on April 1, 1976, as if it were still in effect. 

2 CNYRTA is the parent corporation and CNY Centro, 
Inc., Centro of Cayuga, Inc., and Centro of Oswego, Inc. are 
subsidiaries of CNYRTA. Since all of the al-legations 
concern the charter operations of the CNY Centro, Inc. 
subsidiary, this decision uses CNYRTA and CNY Centro, Inc. 
synonymously. 
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II. COMPLAINT 

On November 1, 1985, complainants filed this complaint with 
UMTA pursuant to 49 CFR 604.40. The complainants allege 
that the Cen·tral Ne~ York Regional Transportation Authority, 
CNY Centro, Inc., Centro of Cayuga, Inc., and Centro of 
Oswego, Inc. breached its agreement with UMTA through a 
continuing pattern of operating charters: (1) on a non
incidental basis: (2) beyond its urban area: (3) at charter 
rates which do not equal or exceed the actual cost of 
providing the service: and (4) at charter rates designed to 
foreclose competition by the private carriers. 

The first allegation is that CNYRTA violated the non
incidental use restrictions of mass transportation buses 
contained in 49 CFR 604.11, by operating charter bus service 
during peak periods and for over six hours.3 To·support 
their claim of non-incidental operations, the complainants 
made a request under New York's Freedom of Information Law 
to examine CNYRTA's charter bus records for the preceding 
three years. Copies of charter bus trip sheets for some 
6000 charters operated by CNY Centro over these three years .... 
were obtained as a result of the request, analyzed by the 
complainants and provided to UMTA. Based on that analysis, 
the complainants, allege that they identified 1560 instances 
where charters were run during either the morning or evening 
peak rush hours or during both peaks. The complainants 
define CYNRTA's peak rush periods as 7:00 a.m. to 9:00 a.m. 
and 4:00 p.m. to 6:00 p.m. 

3 Section 604.11(b) of the regulation states that 
uses of mass transit buses in charter operations are 
presumed to be non-incidental for weekday charters occurring 
during peak morning and evening rush hours, weekday charters 
which reauire buses to travel more than 50 miles beyond the 
grantee'~ urban area, and weekday charters which require the 
use of a particular bus for more ~han a total of six hours 
in any one.day. 

4 Charter orders 9874 and 9875 were identified.as a two
bus charter alleged to have operated during both peaks on 
Wednesday, March 13, ~985. The complaint alleges that the 
trip left in the morning peak at 8:30 a.m. and ran all day, 
returning in the evening peak at 5:20. Each bus was alleged 
to have been in service for nine hours. 
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which required buses to be in charter service for more than a 'total of 
six hours in one day, in violation to 49 CFR 604.ll(b) (3). Of the 
1560 charters alleged to have operated during peak periods, 105 are 
alleged-to have also been instances where buses were used in charter 
operations for more than six hours. 

As representative of the six hour violations, the complainants 
described the four specific examples discussed in regard to the 
alleged peak period violations. Charter order 09874 and 09875 were 
alleged' to have required the use of a bus for 9 hours each, while 
charter orders 09834 and 09906 were alleged to have operated for 8 
hours and 7.8 hours, respectively. 

The second allegation is that the respondent is engaged in and 
attempting to engage in charter business outside of its trans~ortation 
district using "joint service arrangements" and "special serv1ces 
contracts," in violation of its present agreement with UMTA. The "out 
of district" charters are alleged to include runs to ski areas in 
Madison County and a released time school contract in Cortland County. 
The "special service contracts" are alleged to be operated on a daily 
basis through the morning and evening peak periods, but are reportedly 
not being treated as charters by CNYRTA. The complainants state that 
they have commenced an action in the Supreme Court of Onondaga County 
to end these charters. 

Included in the complaint are copies of joint service agreements 
purport-ed to exist between CNYRTA and Cortland and ~1adison counties. 
These agreements show that the legislatures of these two counties have 
entered into an agreement for the provision of charter and transporta
tion services to be provided by CNYRTA. Also in.cluded as an 
attachment to the complaint is a copy of an advertisement describing a 
service which Centro provides to a ski area with stops in Cazenovia. 
The complainants allege that this is located in Madison County, 
outside of the CNYRTA transportation district. 

Charter order 09834 was identified as a cha~ter which operated as what 
CNY Centro calls a "shuttle" on Thursday, February 21, 1985. The 
initial pullout was alleged to beat 7:00a.m., with the_bus being 
used at different times of hte day including 4:.45 p.m. The 
complainants allege that this charter worked 8.03 hours, and cite it 
as another example of a charter which was run during both peak 
periods. 

Charter order 09906 represents a charter which operated on W~dnesday, 
April 24, 1985. The trip is alleged to have started at 8:45 a.m. and 
returned to the garage at 12?3~ p.m. Then the trip continued and 
pulled out at 4:55p.m., according to the compla~nants, and returned 
at 8:28 p.m., for a total of 7. 8 hours of operat1on. 
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The third allegation is that CNYRTA provides intercity charter bus 
service, and that its total annual charter revenues do not equal or 
exceed its fully allocated annual charter operation costs.S Through a 
comparison of CNYRTA's certification of costs of charter service for 
CYN Centro, Inc., for the fiscal year ended March 31, 1984, and copies 
of the CNYRTA's consolidated operating statements for the years 1983 
1984, and 1985, the complainants allege that the certification of ' 
costs for charter bus miles is inaccurate. The complainants further 
allege that had CNYRTA used a proper allocation of full costs to the 
charter operations CNYRTA's cha~ter operations would have operated at 
a loss. 

The complainants allege that the cost allocation plan for the fiscal 
year ending March 31, 1984, for CNY Centro does not properly include 
all the expenses in Appendix B of 49 CFR 604. They cite a number of 
items which they believe were either excluded or not properly 
accounted for including: (1) driver's wages for backup service or 
service ori short notice; (2) wages for reserve drivers; (3) expenses 
for fringe benefits, including sick leave, holiday, and vacation pay; 
(4) cost for guaranteed pay for drivers; (5) claims costs; (6) 
attorney's fees; (7) sales tax; (8) expenses for vandalism; and (9) 
expenses for interest paid on borrowed funds. 

The complainants allege that they compared the total reported direct, 
indirect, and dummy costs reported on the certification of costs .for 
CNY Centro, for the fiscal year_ending March 31, 1984 ($8,7837627), 
with the operating expenses for CNY Centro, for this same period, as 
reported on CNYRTA's Consolidated Statement of Operations 
($14,510,734). As a result of this comparison, they assert that the 
cost allocation plan and certification of costs submitted for CNY 
Centro are inaccurate, because many operating costs were not pro·perly 
included in the charter allocation plan. 

Based on what the complainants believe to be the fully allocated 
operating costs of charter services, they report that CNY Centro 
charter operations would have operated at losses of $41,913 in fiscal 
year 1983; $75,158 in 1984; and $95,146 in 1985. They submit that the 
information provided in the complaint shows that CNYRTA is operating 
its charter services at a loss, and is using Federal assistance from 
its line operations to subsidize its charter work. 

5 The regulations sp.ecify in 49 CFR 604.13, that if a recipient 
desires to provide intercity charter service with UMTA-funded 
equipment or facilities and it .. earns more than $15,000 in annual 
charter revenues, it must agree that annual revenues generated by al~ 
of its charter bus operations (both intercity and intracity) are equb_ 
to or greater than the cost of providing charter operations consistent 
with its cost allocation plan. 
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The fourth and final allegation is that CNYRTA operated charters at 
rates designed to foreclose competition by the private carriers, and 
that on some charters CNYRTA charged predatory rates.6 

The complainants allege that based on a comparison of the CNY Centro's 
published tariff rates, the prices CNY Centro actually charged for the 
charters, and the cost under the allocation of full costs, CNY Centro 
has consistently priced charters below not only its published tariff 
rates, but also below true costs. This practice, the complainants 
allege, is clearly designed to foreclose and has foreclosed 
competition from the private carriers. 

Using what the complainants allege are CNY Centro's full operating 
costs based on maintenance and insurance allocated by miles and all 
other costs allocated by hour, costs per mile and per hour were 
computed for f~scal years 1983 through 1985. These costs per mile and 
per hour figures were applied to the associated miles and hours for 
each CNY Centro charter trip order which allegedly showed a peak time 
violation. The resulting figure represented what the complainants 
allege is the "actual cost" of each trip. 

Summary sheets were prepared which compared the complainant's "actual 
costs" to the CNY Centro pricing tariff as approved by its Board of 
Directors, and the price charged by CNYRTA for a particular charter 
trip. These summary sheets, the complainants state,_illustrate the 
consistent pattern of CNYRTA's practice of pricing well below CNYRTA's 
actual cost and below its own price listing, in a manner designed to 
foreclose competition by private charter -bus operators in violation of 
49 CFR 604.13. Three examples of these alleged improper pricing 
practices are discussed in the complaint.? 

6 According to 49 CFR 604.13, every grantee who provides intercity 
charter service and earns more· than $15,000 in charter revenues is 
obligated to enter into an agreement with UMTA which states that it 
will not establish any charter rate which is designed to foreclose 
competition by private charter bus operators. 

7 For CNY CENTRO charter order 9875, the complainants state that the 
"actual cost" per bus is $313.31,. while the tariff price calls for 
$263.00 per bus, and CNY Centro only charged $192.50. For charter 
order 09834 the complainants state that CNYRTA charged the customer 
only $160, ~bile the tariff£ price calls for $240, and the "actual 
cost" was $243.36. On charter order 09906, the complaina~ts st~te 
that the customer was charged ··only $206.60, while the tar :tff pr :tce 
calls for $422, and the "actuil cost" is $437.52. Other alleged 
pricing violations were summarized in the complaint. 

207 



-6-

III. RESPONSE 

UMTA sent a copy of the complaint to CNYRTA on January 21, 1986. 
Because-the complaint contained a voluminous set of backup material 
alleged to support the four principal allegations, CNYRTA requested, 
and UMTA granted a 60-day extension for a total of 90 days to·respond 
to the complaint. CNYRTA's response was received by UMTA on April 18, 
1986. 

In general, CNYRTA denies the complainants' allegations. Moreover 
CNYRTA states that the filing of the complaint merely represents ' 
another effort by the complainants to harass CNYRTA and reduce if not 
eliminate, the provision of charter services by CNYRTA. . ' 

Regarding the specific allegations, CNYRTA provided affidavits and 
supporting materials which it believes rebuts each allegation raised 
by the complainants. CNYRTA states that thesematerials provide proof 
of CNYRTA's assurances to UMTA that all charters were incidental and 
priced properly, that there was no predatory pricing, and that cost 
allocation plans and tariffs were complied with. · 

First, CNYRTA addresses the allegations regarding peak hour non
incidental use of mass transit buses in charter operations, and six 
hour violations. CNYRTA states that it does not use its federally 
funded buses in peak rush times except where it can be proved that 
these buses were incidental at the time, thus rebutting the ···--· 
presumption of non-incidental charters. CNYRTA's subsidiaries use tr 
following definition to describe peak hour periods: . · 

For the entire system, the peak time is that time 
at which the maximum number of buses is required 
for mass transportation. Any available bus could 
be used for charter service at other times. 

This definition, CNYRTA states, assures that a federally funded bus 
would not be used in charter service if it would be needed as a spare, 
for regular route service, or maintenance. 

CNYRTA states that its operating subsidiaries have different peak and 
maximum vehicle.requirements at different times of the year, primarily 
as a result of ridership from students at Syracuse University, high 
schools, and community colleges. As a result, CNYRTA states that CNY 
Centro's morning peak period is from 7:45 a.m. to 8:15 a.m. during the 
fall, winter, and spring schedule when the universities and parochial 
schools are in session. · 

CNY Centro's afternoon peak period is reported to be froll! 5:00 p.m. to 
5:15p.m. Moreover, because the heavy demand by students peaks at 
2:30p.m., whereas the demand for space by adult commuters is greatest 
at 5:00 to 5:15p.m., CNYRTA states that it operates 25 fewer buses 
during the afternoon peak than in the morning. 
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Therefore, CNYRTA states that during the summer or times during the 
fall, winter, and spring months when the university and/or the schools 
are closed, it will utilize federally funded buses for charter service 
during the morning peak period when there is no potential that these 
buses will be needed for regularly scheduled mass transit, or as a 
spare, or for maintenance. However, CNYRTA states that as a policy it 
Wlll not operate a charter between 7:45 and 8:15 a.m. during the fall, 
winter, or spring when the universities and/or parochial schools are 
in session. 

During the evening rush period at any time of the year, CNYRTA states 
that it will operate charter service because this period, as stated 
above, requires 25 fewer buses than the morning peak. CNYRTA states 
chartering up to 25 buses during. the evening peak period is 
"incidental" use because these buses would otherwise be idle. 

CNYRTA provides summary charts which show each of the 1560 alleged 
morning and evening peak hour violations, the day it operated, the 
seasonal schedule effective at that time, the alleged peak period, and 
comments that state why it believes that the presumption of non
incidental use is rebutted for a particular trip. The schedules must 
be analyzed in conjunction with a series of graphs, which are said to 
show the number of buses required to operate CNY Centro regular route 
service during the corresponding time period. 

CNYRTA's response addresses what it states are 793 charter trJps that 
the complainants allege occurred during the morning peak.8 Further, 
CNYRTA states that of these 793 alleged morning peak trips, only 24 
charters actually occur red -during seasons when the CNY Centro system 
o·perated at peak requirements as defined by CNYRTA. A detailed 
description of these 24 charters is provided by CNYRTA in an effort to 
rebut· allegations of non-incidental use of mass transit buses during 
peak periods. 

Of the 24 charters which CNYRTA admits CNY Centro operated during the 
7:45 to 8:15 a.m. morning peak period, it reports that 13 were not 
charters by Federal definition, because they were used solely to 
augment their regular route service to Manley Field at Syracuse 
University or used in special shuttle operations at the university and 
that one was a non-charter marketing promotion. CNYRTA admits that 
the remaining 10 trips operated during the peak were charters within 
the Federal definition. However, CNYRTA states that regular route 
passengers were never inconvenienced or deprived of service, because 
spare buses were available. 

8 It appears that CNYRTA presumes that the 777 charter trips alleged 
to have occurred during the evening peak do not violate the incidental 
use restrictions because CNY Centro has 25 idle buses available during 
the evening peak. 
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C~YRTA also provided certificates from the Director of Operations and 
Director of Maintenance which certify that all regularly scheduled 
trips were completed and that all regularly scheduled maintenance 
necessaty to operate all line operations was conducted. 

Next, CNYRTA provides a detailed discussion aimed at rebutting the 
complainants' allegation that it violated UMTA regulations by 
operating 105 weekday cha~ters requiring the use of a bus for more 
than six hours in one day. It states that a careful review of the 
actual charter sheets included in the complaint prove that only 56 
instances of six hour charters occurred. Moreover, CNYRTA states that 
all of these charters took place when it has been proven that CNY 
Centro had sufficient excess buses to operate a particular charter 
without any interference to its regular route customers. 

Specifically, of these 56 charte.rs, CNYRTA states that 33 were 
operated during the period between its morning and evening peak 
periods, or after the 5:15 p.m. peak period. Of the remaining 23 
charters, CNYRTA states that 19 operated during the evening peak, when 
it has at least 20 available buses (CNYRTA stated earlier that it 
always has 25 buses available) and 4 violated the morning peak, but at 
a time when the University and/or schools were closed. 

Second, Barry M. Shulman, Counsel to CNYRTA, addressed the allegations 
that CNYRTA operated charter service beyond its urban area. In an 
affidavit accompanying the response, Mr. Shulman states that CNYRTA 
discontinued all operations beyond its urban area. (except service 
proyided to stranded airline passengers) in approximately April of 
1985, after the complainants filed suit in the State of New York 
seeking to have such service discontinued. 

However, the use of interline and joint service agreements, under 
which the charter trips out of Centro's urban area were previously 
operated, had been specifically approved by .the Attorney General of 
the State of New York on December 31, 1981, according to Mr. Shulman. 
Mr. Shulman also states that the use of these agreements was filed 
with UMTA, and approved by UMTA Chief Counsel G. Kent Woodman, on July 
15, 1982.9 

9 In this letter, UMTA states that in light of the New York Attorney 
General's opinion dated December 31, 1981, it has no objection to 
CNYRTA's provision of intercity charters based on joint service 
agreements •. Prior to the December. 31, 1981, interpretation, UMTA had 
held, based on UMTA's understanding of the Attorney General's opinion 
of August 20, 1974, that CNYRTA could only provide intercity char~er 
service based on joint service agreements if the agreement were w1th a 
carrier. As a result of the changed interpretation by the State, 
CNYRTA could provide intercity charter if the agreement.w7re with a 
carrier, county government, or ~ny of several other ent1t1es. 
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After discontinuing the intercity charters, provided through joint 
'service agreements, Mr. Shulman states that CNYRTA applied to UMTA 
Administrator Stanley to amend its charter bus agreement to permit 
expanded intercity charter operations. However, on November 25, 1985 
UMTA Administrator Stanley denied the requested amendment. ' 

At that point, according to Mr. Shulman, all charter service out of 
CNY.Centro's urban area had been discontinued, except for the above 
referenced service to stranded airline passengers. 

Although the private carriers were said to have never raised any 
objection to the service to airline passengers,.CNYRTA's Board was 
said to have decided to discontinue all charter service out of 
Centro's urban area, by a resolution adopted February 21, 1986, which 

·is attached to the affidavit. Additionally, Mr. Shulman states that 
CNYRTA sent a written notice to the three counties with whom it had 
interline or joint service agreements, that such agreements were 
terminated. Fin~lly, Mr. Shulman states that CNYRTA's fiscal year 
commences on April 1, and that during the current fiscal year theJ:e 
have been no charters operated outside of CNYRTA's urban area. 

Third, CNYRTA addressed the allegation that it used an improper method 
of allocating the costs of its charter operations which, if properly 
allocated, would mean that the charter service has been operated at a 
loss. CNYRTA states that the complainants used an improper method of 
allocating the costs of its charter operations, which in nearly every 
instance, overstates the true cost of each charter. Also, they state 
that Mr. Russell Ferdinand, President of Syracuse & Oswego Motor 
Lines, one of the complainants, and CNYRTA's former Chief Financial 
Officer, certified and calculated CNY Centro's cost allocation plans 
for nearly all of the period mentioned in the complaint. 

CNYRTA compiled summary sheets that show that for the 1560 chart·ers 
that are the principal focus of this complaint, it experienced a loss 
of $4,234, comparing CNY Centro cost to actual price. CNYRTA 
cautions, however, that this loss must be viewed in light of several 
factors including: (1) the fact that CNY Centro made a profit from 
charter operations in each of the three years in question; (2) the 
fact that these 1560 charters were selectively chosen from more than 
6000 available to the complainants; and (3) ·the fact that these 1560 
charters represent only $71,000 out of over $1 million in charter 
revenues over the three years. 

CNYRTA's accountant provided an affidavit which states that CNYRTA's 
certification of costs are prepared using generally accepted 
accounting principles consistent with CNYRTA's regular. accounting _ 
methods. In addition, the affidavit states that the certification of 
cost and cost allocation plans are not a required part of the basic 
financial statements.· However, the affidavit states that the cost and 
plans were subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the 
examination of the basic financial statements, and were fairly stated 
in all material respects in refation to the financial statements taken 
as a whole. 
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CNYRTA also included an affidavit from its Chief Financial Officer, 
Mr. Steven M. Share. Mr. Share states that the charter revenues for 
CNYRTA's subsidiaries exceeded their charter costs for fiscal years 
1982/83, 1983/84, and 1984/85. The revenues exceed the co•ts in each 
of these years even after "dummy" costs are included. As an example, 
the charter profits for CNY Centro were $57,379, $40,014, and $20,911 
for the three fiscal years, respectively. 

Fourth, CNYRTA addressed the allegation that it operated charters at 
rates designed to foreclose competition by the private operators and 
that on some charters, CNYRTA charged predatory rates. CNYRTA states 
that it has priced its charters in accordance with the tariff approved 
by the CNYRTA Board, and its cost allocation methodology demonstrates 
conclusively that charter revenues exceed the cost of charters from 
1983 through 1985. 

In addition, CNYRTA states that although there are isolated instances 
where ClN Centro has lost money on specific charters, this was not 
done with the intent of foreclosing competition. Moreover, CNYRTA 
states that the private operators have not presented any evidence that 
they have been foreclosed from competition because of CNYRTA's pricing 
policy. 

Regarding the pricing procedures it used, CNY Centro gives three 
reasons why the private operators incorrectly priced its charter 
trips: (1) they had the incorrect tariff at the time; (2) they were 
unaware of the senior citizen discount which has histor ically···been 
part of the tariff; and (3) they incorrectly interpreted the charter 
sheet. 

CNYRTA prepared charts showing how CNY Centro calculated the price for 
each of the 1560 charters identified by the private operators. The 
methodology used to calculate the price is shown, and the final 
recalculated price is compared to the price actually-charged. In the 
explanation section, CNYRTA describes how the private operators may 
have calculated the incorrect price. 

In a few instances CNYRTA admits that it did price a charter below its 
tariff. However, it states that this was done unintentionally as a 
result of underestimating the exact number of miles or hours that a 
given charter would take where the customer was given a firm price. 

CNYRTA states that a large number of the charters which the private 
operators allege were priced below cost, in a predatory manner, are 
what CNY Centro calls "week+y shopper buses." CNYRTA states these 
weekly shopper buses are not charters according to the Federal 
definition. CNYRTA states that while the buses are paid for by the -
grocery stores, the service now. operates on published schedules open 
to the general public, and passengers ride the b~s to and from the 
primary sponsor, but they also shop at other busl.nesses aroun-d the 
sponsor's store. 

212 



-11-

CNYRTA states that it initiated the weekly shopper service early in 
the 1970s, as a response to the closing of a number of grocery stores 
throughout the inner city. A number of senior citizens were reported 
to have.requested-CNY Centro's ncall-A-Bus" service to the relocated 
grocery stores. CNYRTA states that the calls to the Call-A-Bus 
service requesting trips to grocery stores led them to institute the 
weekly shopper buses, so that CNY Centro would not have to·commit all 
of its Call-A-Bus resources to serve shopper trips. The buses are 
billed as charters, according to CNYRTA, to avoid the overtime 
provisions necessary if it operated the shopper buses as Call-A-Bus 
.service. 

If the cost allocation methodology were applied to the weekly shopper 
buses, CNYRTA admits that it did not cover all of the costs, including 
the dummy costs. However, CNYRTA states that it increased the price 
of the service in April 1985, and again in April 1986, in an effort to 
eliminate all losses shown through the cost allocation methodology. 
In support of that claim, CNYRTA provides summary charts which .show 
that the cost of the weekly shopper service exceeded revenues by $235 
in 1983, and increased to $320 in 1984, but in 1985 the figure dropped 
to $38. 

IV. REBUTTAL 

UMTA sent the complainants a copy of CNYRTA's response on May 1, 1986. 
'The complainants· sent their rebuttal to UMTA on July 7, 1986;- after 
being given additional time to respond to the allegations. 

The rebuttal addresses peak hour non-incidental use, charter service 
beyond CNYRTA's urban area, inadequacy of CNYRTA's cost allocation 
~lans, and improper pr1c1ng aimed at foreclosing competition. It also 
1ncludes a footnote that repeats the claim of extended hour charters 
and states that the respondents admitted to 56 such instances. 

In addition, the complainants state three additional allegations in 
their rebuttal that were either not mentioned at all in the initial 
complaint, or if they were, were discussed in conjunction with one of 
the above allegations. These. additional allegations include claims 
that CNYRTA: {1) maintains a fleet which is larger than necessary to 
meet the needs of its line service; <2> improperly manipulates i~s 
peak service requirements so as to expand its available charter fleet; 
and (3) inflates peak requirements by improperly operating special 
school bus services and routes. 

Allegations (1) and (2) will be discussed in conjunction with peak 
hour non-incidental use since these allegations were mentioned in the 
complaint in conjunction with the non-incidental use claim •. Ho~ever, 
since the complaint was not filed under 49 CFR Part 605, wh1ch 1s the 
applicable school bus regulation, the complainants' third claim will 
not be discussed. If complainants wish to file a separate school bus 
complaint, they may do so foll~wing the procedures set forth in 49 CFR 
Part 605. 
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First, the complainants state that CNYRTA's definition of peak· periods 
contravenes the intent of the regulations, since UMTA regulations in 
49 CFR 604 define peak periods as "rush hours." Additionally, they 
restate their claim that CNYRTA's peak periods are from 7:00 to 9:00 
a.m., in the morning, and from 4:00 to 6:00p.m. in the evening. 
These peak periods, the complainants state, are accurate, reasonable 
and meet UMTA's definition of peak periods. ' 

Also, the complainants state that CNYRTA's claim that any charter 
sevice they provided during peak periods was incidental because the 
charters were operated without interfering with regularly scheduled 
line operations, was not substantiated with any documentation. 

Moreover, the complainants allege that it is only because CNYRTA has a 
bus fleet far in excess of that which is required for regularly 
scheduled operations, cutbacks and maintenance, that they are able to 
operate charter service during peak periods without interrupting line 
servic·e. Similarly, the complainants attack CNYRTA' s use of a 20 
percent spare ratio as an effort to justify its excess fleet size. 

Second, the complainants dispute CNYRTA's counsel's claim that CNYRTA 
"immediately" discontinued extraterritorial charter service when the 
complainants filed suit in New York in January 1985. To the contrary, 
they state that CNYRTA.made no attempt to cancel the joint service 
agreements with Cortland or Madison counties or withdraw from out of 
district work until the resolution of the Board of Directors on 
February 27, 1986. This resolution, according to the complainants, 
was passed only after the private carriers had initiated its complair 
with UMTA and the Administrator had issued its decision of "probable 
cause" on January 14, 1986. 

Moreover, the complainants point to the fact that the joint service 
agreements were not cancelled until March 25, 1986, and, not 
coincidental, while CNYRTA's answer to the complaint was being 
prepared. This, the complainants allege, provides a clear indication 
that CNYRTA's limitations on its out of district work was only 
motivated by an attempt to moot the charges raised by the complaint 
and avoid a remedy. 

Third, regarding the claim of improper cost allocation, the 
complainants question the content of the affidavit of CNYRTA's 
accountant. They state that the affidavit makes no conclusion and 
states no opinion that the certification of costs is in compliance 
with UMTA regulations. The complainants state that the affidavit also 
fails to challenge their contention that not all costs have been 
allocated in compliance with the regulations. 

In addition, the complainants include an affidavit from a. certified 
public accountant in support of their claim that CNY Centro used an 
improper cost allocation. The affidavit states that the accountant 
reviewed CNY Centro's cost allocation plan and certification of costs 
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for the fiscal year ended March 1, 1985, along with the charts ·Of 
accounts, which revealed that several material expense items had not 
been allocated against charter revenues as required by UMTA 
regulations. 

Furthermore, the accountant states that his analysis revealed an 
inconsistency in CNYRTA's overall allocation of costs. With respect 
to certain categories of cost, he states that items related to CNY 
Centro's Cortran operations were accounted for in separate accounts. 
However, he states that the allocation percentage originally used on 
all costs included the Cortran miles and hours. He reasoned that if 
CNY Centro eliminated the Cortran ·costs from consideration, then the 
related Cortran miles and hours should have also been excluded in 
allocating the remaining costs between line and charter activities. 

Instead of the $21,911 pr of.it reported by Centro in fiscal year 1985, 
the complainants' accountant states that this profit would have been 
reduced to $9,692 after the "Cortran adjustment." Furthermore, the 
accountant makes a calculation that he states shows that if additional 
expenses which CNY Centro omitted were also included, then the charter 
operations would show a net loss of $36,494 for fiscal year 1985 
(compared to a loss of $95,146, estimated in the original complaint). 

Fourth, the complainants addressed CNYRTA's response to their 
allegation that CNYRTA engaged in a practice of predatory pricing, and 
used this practice to foreclose competition by the private charter 
operators. The complainants state that CNYRTA's tariff was not 
established based on cost, but instead was set below tost so as to 
undercut the private carriers and dominate the charter market. 

To support that allegation, they supplied an affidavit from Russell 
Ferdinand, President of Syracuse & Oswego Motor Lines and formerly 
Chief Financial Officer of CNYRTA. The affidavit states that CNYRTA 
established its charter tariff, not based on costs, but based on a 
comparison with the prices of local private charter operators. They 
also provided affidavits from other present and former Syracuse & 
Oswego employees, which are alleged to show a specific example of 
predatory pricing on a charter contract with a grocery chain. 

The complainants requested that UMTA pay particular attention to 
CNYRTA's analysis of cost versus the price of the twelve subgroups of 
the 1560 charters in question, since CNYRTA admits that it suffered a 
loss on these charters in excess of $4000. In addition, they state 
that CNYRTA gave no reason why these charters would not be 
representative of their charter operations. 

V. DISCUSSION 

The four principal allegations are that CNYRTA breached its agreement 
with UMTA through a continuing pattern of operating charters: (Al on 
a non-incidental basis; (B) be~ond its urban area; (C) at charter 
rates·which do not equal or exceed the actual cost of providing the 
service; and (D) at charter .rates designed to foreclose competition by 
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the private carriers. Each of these allegations is discussed below 
along with any other factual or legal issues that relate to them. ' 

T~e char~~r regul~tions that were in effect w~en the complainants 
f1led th1s compla1nt have changed. UMTA publ1shed final regulations 
revising the previous regulations on April 13, 1987. In this 
decision, UMTA is comparing CNYRTA's charter service with the old 
regulations, not the revised regulations. 

A. Non-Incidental Use of Transit Vehicles 

The complainants allege that CNYRTA violated 49 CFR 604.11 by 
operating non-incidental charters~ Under 604.ll(b), the uses of mass 
transportation buses in charter operations in the following ways are 
pr·es umed !l..Qi to be incidental: 

(l) weekday charters which occur during peak morning and evening rush 
hours; 

(2) weekday charters which require buses to travel more than fifty 
miles beyond the grantee's urban area; or 

(3) weekday charters which require the use of a particular bus for 
more than a total of six hours in any one day. 

The definition of nincidentaln is set forth in the regulation
Section 604.3 states, " 'incidental' means charter bus operations 
which do not interfere with regularly scheduled _service to the public 
(as defined in the Opinion of the Comptroller General of the United 
States, B-160204, December 7, 1966 ••• )" Therefore, non-mass transit 
service is incidental only if it does not interfere with the provision 
of mass transportation service. The complainants charge that CNYRTA 
operated weekday charters during peak morning and evening rush hours, 
and operated weekday charters which require the use of a bus for more 
than six hours in one day. 

The data presented to support that claim includes copies of CNY Centro 
charter orders, and an analysis of what is alleged to be 1560 
violations of the peak hour incidental use restrictions, 105 of which 
are alleged to also show extended hour violations. In addition, the 
complainants included copies of CNYRTA's Section 15 submissions, in an 
effort to support their view of CNYRTA's peak periods. 

CNYRTA responded to the allegations by pointing out inaccuracies in 
the complainants' analysis, and by showing that those peak and 
extended hour charters which did occur were incidental. CNYRTA 
submitted its own analysis of the· same 1560 charter runs. CNYRTA's 
analysis shows based on its more limited definition of peak hours that 
only 56 instances of peak hour incidental use violations occurred. In 
each instance,·they show that they had idle buses available to operate 
those charters. CNYRTA's analy9is also shows that very few extended 
hour violations occurred, and in each instance they provide data to 
rebut the presumption of non-incidental use .• 
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Furthermore, CNYRTA states that its evening rush period requires fewer 
buses, and therefore it always has 25 buses that can be used in 
charter operations with no adverse affect on line operations. Based 
on that.operational factor, CNYRTA states that no evening peak hour 
violations occurred. In addition, CNYRTA asserts that "many of the 
charters labelled by the complainants as peak hour violations were not 
actually charters, but were buses used to augment regular service, and 
billed as charters to facilitate billing." 

Regarding the extended hour charters, CNYRTA as·serts that some of the 
charters designated by the complainants as requiring the use of a 
particular bus for more than six hours actually involved the use of 
more than one bus for less than six hours per bus. CNYRTA shows that 
in nearly every instance, the total time billed for each charter 
exceeded six.hours, although each individual bus was used for less 
than six hours. 

In addition to presenting evidence to refute the complainants' 
designation of runs as peak and extended hour charters, CNYRTA 
provided evidence to rebut the presumption that any peak or extended 
hour charters which took place were non-incidental. CNYRTA submitted 
calendars showing its schedule by season, an analysis of turn backs 
and extra trips, a peak vehicle repair study, and computer-generated 
vehicle requirement graphs for each year from 1983 through 1985, by 
season and by peak time period. 

The graphs show the scheduled vehicles on the road during a particular 
peak, the number of operational spares used, the number of vehicles 
under repair at each time during the peaks, a 20. percent spare ratio, 
and the total number of buses owned at each point in time from 1983 to 
1985. From these graphs the reader is able to determine whether 
CNYRTA had adequate vehicles available to operate regular service, 
during those periods when they admit to operating charters during peak 
periods. 

CNYRTA also provided certificates from the Directo[ of Operations and 
Director of Maintenance, which certify that all regularly scheduled 
trips were completed, and-all regularly scheduled maintenance 
necessary to operate a~l line operations was conducted. 

After an exhaustive review of the materials·submitted by the parties, 
UMTA finds that the charter trips in question were incidental to the 
provision of mass transportation and thus, CNYRTA has rebutted the 
regulation's presumption. UMTA bases this finding principally on the 
certification submitted by CNYRTA's employees that all regularly 
scheduled trips and maintenance were performed. This is consistent 
with previous UMTA decisions and is sufficient to satisfy UMTA that 
the service was incidental. 2 Can Caravan, Inc. d/b/a/ San Antonio 
Trolley system v •. san· Antonio Metropolitan Transit Authority, d/b/a 
VIA Metropolitan Transit, 1987; Tower Bus, Inc. v. Southeastern 
Michigan Transportation Administration, November 5, 1984; Greyhound 

·Lines, Inc. and Hopkins Limousine Service, Inc. v. Greater C eve!and 
Regional Transit Authority, August 26, 1983. 
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In addition, UMTA finds that the other evidence submitted by CNYRTA 
confirms this finding. For example, and of particular note, are the 
~alendars and graphs that CNYRTA provided. These show visually that 
1t had enough buses available on the days and times in question to 
provide the charter service at issue without disrupting any regularly 
scheduled mass transportation and related maintenance. 

Another issue relating to non-incidental service is the allegation 
that the peak periods CNYRTA identified in its response were not 
consistent with the peak periods· identified in other UMTA submissions. 
In their rebuttal, the complainants allege that the peak hours which 
CNYRTA designated in its Section 15 reports are the peak periods that 
the complainants used, and are the ones which should be used in 
determining whether CNYRTA violated the charter bus regulations. 
According to this UMTA reporting program, peak periods in the morning 
and afternoon occur when the system operates headways closer than 
during the midday base. Using this definition, CNYRTA's peak periods 
would be much longer than it states they are. 

The complainants define CNYRTA's peak hours as 6:00 to 8:00 a.m. and 
4:00 to 6:00 p.m. CNYRTA submits that its operational definition of 
peak hours is 7:45- 8:15a.m. and 5:00 to 5:15p.m., during the 
spring, fall, and winter when the universities and schools are open. 
During the summer, and when the universities and schools are closed, 
CNYRTA states that its operational policy allows buses to be used for 
charter operations during the designated peak periods because they 
have idle buses available. Under CNYRTA's definition, far fewer peaY 
hour charters occurred. 

It is not necessary for UMTA to decide whether the peak periods in 
CNYRTA's Section 15 reports are the peak periods which should be used 
for the incidental use presumptions. Regardless of what time period 
is used for the peaks, it is clear that CNYRTA had a sufficient number 
of idle buses available for charter operations to rebut the 
presumption that it operated non-incidental peak hour charters. 
Therefore, UMTA finds it unnecessary to discuss this issue further. 

The final issue raised by the complainants which relates to the 
allegations of non-incidental use is the claim that CNYRTA's use of a 
20 percent spare ratio is excessive, and stimula·tes and encourages the 
sort of aggressive approach to charter operations which have been 
followed by CNYRTA. The complainants state that a 10 percent spare 
ratio was in effect throughout the period covered in the complaint and 
that such a ratio is reasonable. 

UMTA agrees with the complainants. that a recipient may be able to 
operate extensive charter service if the recipient has a large spare 
ratio. In Greyhound, UMTA restricted the recipient's use of buses for 
charter operations because of the recipient's large spare ratio •. Also 
mentioned in Greyhound was UMTA's general rule of thumb at that t1me 
that a spare ratio of 10 percent to 15 percent was acceptable. Id at 
6. 
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The current guidelines, found in OMTA Circular 9030.1, dated June 17, 
1985, state, "[t]he numbe.r of spare buses in the active fleet for 
grantees owning fifty of (sic] revenue vehicles should normally not 
exceed 20% of the _vehicles operated in maximum service.". UMTA has 
reviewed CNYRTA's spare ratio and according to the record it was 15 
percent for the time period covered by the complaint. This is less 
than the 20 percent figure that UMTA uses now and we do not find that 
CNYRTA's spare ratio is excessive or require that the authority limit 
the number of spares that may be used for incidental charter service. 

B. Charter Bus Operations Outside of the Urban Area 

The complainants allege that CNYRTA operated charters outside of its 
urban area in violation of its charter agreement with UMTA. As part 
of their evidence, they submitted copies of joint service agreements 
alleged to exist between CNYRTA and Cortland and Madisori counties, 
both of which are outside of CNYRTA's transportation district. In 
addition, the complainants provided a copy of an advertisement alleged 
to show a service CNY Centro operates to a ski area which makes stops 
in ·Cazenovia, New York, which is in Madison County. 

Section 604.12 of the charter bus regulations specifies that a 
recipient of financial assistance from OMTA must enter into a charter 
bus agreement with UMTA if it desires to provide intercity charter bus 
service, i.e., charter service using UMTA equipment outside of its 
mass transportation service area, and if it earns more than $15,000 
annually in charter revenues. 

The procedures which a recipient must follow to enter into or amend 
its charter agreements are set forth in 49 CFR 604.15. .These 
procedures include giving public notice, holding a hearing, and 
submitting specific documents to UMTA so that UMTA may decide whether 
to agree to enter into an agreement or amend. an existing agreement. 

In a November 25, 1985, letter in response to a request by CNYRTA to 
amend its charter agreement to expand its intercity charter service, 
the OMTA Administrator discussed CNYRTA's current agreement with 
UMTA: 

Currently, the charter bus agreement that 
CNYRTA operates under, and which UMTA . 
approved on February 23, 1977, permits 
CNYRTA to operate intercity charter 
service outside of its three county area 
by way of joint service agreements with 
certain aviation facilities within New 
York State. 
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Letter from UMTA Administrator Ralph Stanley to Mr. Warren H. Frank, 
Executive Director, CNYRTA (Nov. 25, 1985).10 

In its response, CNYRTA states that the interline or joint service 
agreement under which it operated service to counties adjoining its 
urban area was specifically approved by the Attorney General of the 
State of New York, filed with UMTA, and was approved by UMTA Chief 
Counsel, G. Kent woodman, on July 15, 1982. The July 15, 1982, letter 
st~ted, 

In light of the New York Attorney 
General's opinion dated December 31, 
1981, explaining the informal opinion of 
Au~ust 20, 1974, UMTA no longer has any 
ObJection to CNYRTA entering into charter 
bus arrangements that are, ".· •• joint 
service arrangements under which bus 
service is provided to a location 
outside, ••• "CNYRTA's district. 

Letter from UMTA Chief Counsel G. Kent Woodman to Edward J. Moses, 
Esq., Mackenzie, Smith, Lewis, Mitchell & Hughes (July 15, 1982). 

The evidence shows that UMTA approved of CNYRTA entering into joint 
service arrangements to provide charter service outside of CNYRTA's 
district. UMTA finds that CNYRTA did not violate the charter 
regulation with respect to charter trips outside its urban area which 
were conducted prior to the letter from UMTA Administrator Ralph 
Stanley, on November 25, 1985. 

While the November 25, 1985, letter prohibited joint services 
agreements other than those to stranded airline passengers, CNYRTA's 
response makes it clear that it has stopped providing even this 
intercity charter service. UMTA finds that there is no evidence of 
violations of this permissible intercity charter service after 
November 25, 1985. Therefore, UMTA finds that CNYRTA has not vioiated 
its charter agreement with UMTA. We caution CNYRTA, however, that in 
the future if it were to resume intercity charter service that it must 
refrain from using UMTA funded buses in charter bus operations outside 
of the three county area of Oswego, Cayuga, and Onondaga. counties, 
except for the service to aviation facilities. 

C. Charter Rates 

The complainants allege that CNYRTA's total annual charter revenues do 
not equal or exceed· the fully allocated annual charter cos.ts, in 

10 CNYRTA was seeking to expand that authority to operate by way of 
joint service arrangements throughout New York State. However, the 
Administrator denied the request, finding a clear showing that the 
private charter operators were capable of providing all the necessary 
intercity charter service in the area CNYRTA proposed to serve. 
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violation of 49 CFR 604.13. Under that section of the regulation, an 
UMTA recipient that provides intercity provides charter service with UMTA 
funded equipment or facilities and earns more than $15,000 in annual 
charter revenues, must agree that annual revenues generated by all of its 
charter bus operations (both intercity and intracity) are equal to or 
greater than the cost of providing charter bus operations consistent with 
its cost allocation plan. 

The complainants allege that because CNYRTA did not use a proper 
allocation of full costs to the charter operations, CNYRTA's charter 
operations operated at a loss. They cite a number of items which they 
believe were either excluded or not properly accounted for in CNYRTA's 
cost allocation plan according to Appendix B of 49 CFR 604. In their 
complaint, the complainants alleged that had CNYRTA used a proper 
allocation of costs, CNY Centro charter operations would have operated at 
loss~s of $41,913 in fiscal year 1983, $75,158 in 1984, and $95,146 in 
1985. These losses were based on a comparison of items on CNY Centro's 
Consolidated Statements of Operations, with the cost allocation plans for 
each year in question. 

In their rebuttal the complainants provided an analysis of CNY Centro's 
fiscal year 1985 cost allocation plan conducted by a certified public 
accountant familiar with charter operations. Instead of the original 
'Comparison of items in CNYRTA's Consolidated Statements of Operations 
with the cost allocation plans, the accountant focused on: (1) an 
alleged inconsistency in how CNYRTA accounted for the costs and mileage 
from its Cortran operations; and (2) an analysis of CNY Centro's chart of 
accounts. 

Based on the alleged inconsistency, the accountant estimated that once a 
Cortran mileage adjustment was made, CNY Centro would have realized a 
profit of only $9,692 for fiscal year 1985, instead of the $20,911 it 
reported. The accountant's analysis of CNY Centro's chart of accounts 
alleges that after the items that were not properly accounted for are 
included, CNY Centro would have operated at a loss of $36,494 in 1985. 

The complainants demonstrate through their use of different approaches to 
allocating CNYRTA's charter cost, how difficult it is to reach a 
consensus on how such costs should be properly allocated. Their estimate 
of CNY Centro's charter iosses for 1985 is $95,146 in the initial 
complaint, and in the reply brief this same loss is estimated at 
$36,494. 

Regardless of this problem, UMTA is unable to conclude that CNYRTA's 
charter costs were accounted for properly in accordance with Appendix B 
of the rule. While CNYRTA asserts that even after the inclusion of dummy 
costs that it would have made a charter profit, there is no explanation 
of what the dummy costs are. 

Complai:t;1ants have listed several:costs that Appendix B specifically 
states must be included. These include sick pay and holiday pay. 
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CNYRTA does not show that these costs have been included either in its 
usual course or in the adjustments as dummy costs. 

Therefore,- UMTA finds that CNYRTA did not comply with the regulation and 
that its costs for charter service were not fully allocated and we can 
not conclude that it earned charter revenues in excess of charter profits 
for the three years in question. 

D. Predatory Pricing 

The complainants allege that C~~RTA operated charters at rates designed 
to foreclose competition by the private carriers, and that on some 
charters CNYRTA charged predatory rates. Section 604.13 of the 
regulation requires each grantee to enter into an agreement with UMTA 
which states that it will not establish any charter rate which is 
designed to foreclose competition by private charter operators. 

The question that UMTA must answer is whether the complainants produced 
sufficient evidence to support a claim of predatory pricing. We do not 
believe they have. Whether CNYRTA charged predatory rates can only be 
determined by making a comparison of the rate CNYRTA charged for a 
particular trip with the rate charged by the private operator for that 
same trip. However, the complainants did not provide sufficient evidence 
to enable UMTA to make such a comparison. Therefore, UMTA holds that 
because the complainants did not provide sufficient evidence to support a 
finding in their favor, the allegation of predatory pricing was bot 

. substantiated. 

The complainants also made one specific allegation of predatory pricing 
regarding former business they had with the Price Chopper ,grocery chain. 
They allege that. CNYRTA took their contract through predatory 
undercutting of pricing. Again, the complainants did not provide any 
evidence of their rate compared with the one charged by CNYRTA. However, 
CNYRTA admits that it "went to one of the most popular stores to see if 
they would be interested in sponsoring the direct cost of a bus." 
Response at Exhibit L. 

While the evidence does show that the private operators once had a 
charter contract with the _grocery chain, CNYRTA has presented sufficient 
evidence to support a finding that the service is no longer· operated as a 
charter, but instead, is a service which operates on published schedules 
open to the general public. CNYRTA stated that it only characterized the 
buses as charters to avoid the overtime provisions necessary if it 
operated the service as part of its Call-A-Bus service. Therefore, UMTA 
finds that the claim of predatory pricing regarding the grocery contract 
is not substantiated because there is no evidence that CNYRTA established 
a charter rate which was des~gned to foreclose competition. 

VI. Conclusions and Order 

In view of the foregoing, UMTA finds that the alleged violations 
regarding the incidental use provisions, operating beyond th7 urban are. 
and predatory pricing are not substantiated. However, at th1s 
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time, UMTA finds that CNYRTA has not supported its contention that all 
expenses were properly allocated for charter service and we cannot 
conclude that charter revenues did exceed charter costs for the years in 
question. 

Since the date of this complaint, however, UMTA has implemented new 
charter service regulations, 49 C.F.R. 604, which provide that a 
recipient of Federal transportation assistance may not perform charter 
operations within its service area when there is a private operator 
willing and able to provide the service. UMTA has been informed that 
more than one private operator in CNYRTA's service area has been 
determined willing and able since May 13, 1987, the effective date of the 
new rule. Consequently, CNYRTA may no longer provide charter service. 
The issue of its nonconformity with the charter regulations has thus 
become moot, and does not require the issuance of any sanction or order 
on the part of UMTA. 

seph A. L ala, Jr. 
hief Counsel 
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U.S. Deportment 
of Transportation 

Urban Mass 
Transportation 
Administration 

Mr. Charles E. Colby 
General Manager 

The Oepuly Administrator 

OCT 2 6 1987 

Regional Transportation District 
1600 Blake Street · 

.Denver, Colorado 80202-1399 

Dear Mr. Colby: 

i9B7 Nov _ c: . . 
400 ~verN/ fln.S~ 
Washtngton. D':C. 20$9o 

This is in response to your recent r:equest for an exception under 
49 C.F.R. 604.9(b)(4) which would allow .the Denver Regional 
Transportation District (RTD) to provide charter service on the 
occasion of the 1988 Convention of the International Association 
of Lions Clubs, to take place from June 27 to July 2, 1988. 

The preamble to the regulations, at page 11925, explains that the 
Urban Mass Transportation Administration (UMTA) will grant an 
exception under Section 604.9(b) (4) only for events of an 
extraordinary, special and singular nature. Your letter and 
enclosures indicate that this is to be the largest convention in 
Denver's historY, with 35,000 persons expected to attend. Given 
the international importance of the convention, the fact that it 
constitutes a unique occasion for the city of Denver, and the 
large number of attendees expected, UMTA recognizes it as an event 
of a special and singular nature. Moreover, we understand from 
your letter that the combined ·resources of private charter 
operators in your area are insufficient to meet the service needs 
for this convention. Also, the American Bus Association has· 
advised us that the city and the local private operator have been 
working together to coordinate the capabilities for this event. 
For these reasons, I hereby authorize the RTD to make available as 
many as 160 buses·to accommodate the need for charter service for 
attendees at the International Association of Lions Clubs 
Convention, June 27 to July 2, 1988. This exception is valid only 
fo~' shuttle service between hotels and the convention sites. 
Should RTD require additional buses or wish to perform operations 
other than shuttle service, you must request an additional 
exception under the procedures of 49 C.F.R. 604.9(d). Moreover,. 
before undertaking charter operations using UMTA funded facilities 
and equipment, RTD should attempt to broker as much service as 
possible to private providers. 
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You are reminded ~at, in accor~a~ce with ~9 C.F.R. § 604.9{3), 
"Any charter serv~ce that a rec~p~ent prov~des under any of the 
exceptions of this part must be incidental charter service." The 
regulations define "Incidental Charter Service" as "charter 
service which does not (1) interfere with or detract from the 
provision of the mass transportation service for which the 
equipment or facilities were funded under the Acts; or 
(2) does not shorten the mass transportation life of the equipment 
or facilities." 49 C.F.R. 604.5(i). The preamble to the 
regulations provides further guidance on determining what 
constitutes charter service. 52 Fed. Reg. 11926, April 13, 1987. 

Alfred A. DelliBovi 
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Hudson Bus Lines, Inc. 
Complainant 

v. 

Massachusetts Bay Transportation 
Authority 

Respondent 

SUMMARY 

) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 

MA-03/86-01 

Hudson Bus Lines, Inc., (Hudson) filed this complaint with the 
Urban Mass Transportation Administration (UMTA) alleging that the 
Massachusetts Bay Transportation Authority (MBTA) had violated 
Section 3(e) of the Urban Mass Transportation Act of 1964, as 
amended (UMT Act) in its operation of Route 326. After a thorough 
investigation, UMTA finds that Hudson was adequately involved in 
the plan to transfer operating responsibilities along Route 326, 
and thus concludes that there was no violation of Section 3(e) 
with respect to Hudson. UMTA concludes, however, that the MBTA 
violated section 3(e) by failing to involve other private 
operators in the proposed transfer. UMTA therefore orders the 
MBTA to follow the procedures set forth in paragraph A of its 
policy dated July 23, 1986, in any future plans to involve the 
private sector when planning or implementing any new or 
restructured service. 

COMPLAINT 

On March 5, 1986, Hudson filed this complaint with UMTA's Regional 
Office in Boston, Massachusetts. The Regional Office transmitted 
it to the Chief Counsel's Office for investigation and resolution 
on March 10, 1986. 

In this complaint, Hudson alleges that the MBTA violates Section 
3(e) of the UMT Act by operating bus service on Route 326 in 
competition with Hudson. The service allegedly operates from 
Medford and Medford Square to Boston. Hudson states that it has 
provided service to.the City of Medford since 1938 and that it 
provides express service over the same route as the MBTA's Route 
326. Hudson states that it provides 14 trips daily, Monday 
through Friday, from Medford and 12 trips daily, Monday through 
Friday, from Medford Square. Hudson included a map to show that 
its service and Route 326 are identical. 

Hudson states that the MBTA has not complied with Section 3(e) of 
the UMT Act in providing this service. Indeed, the MBTA's 
noncompliance was exacerbated when it decreased the headways.on 
this service on December 28, 1985. As a result of this action, 
Hudson alleges that the number of MBTA trips has increased to the 
point where its buses operate at times only several minutes prior 
to Hudson's buses. 
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Hudson further alleges that the MBTA violated a Massachusetts 
State law which allegedly gives preference to existing private 
carriers if a public authority wishes to introduce service over 
the same route. Mass. Gen.. Laws Ann. ch. 161A, Section 5 (k) (West 
1976). 

Hudson states that it attempted to resolve its problems with the 
MBTA by negotiating with the MBTA. Pursuant to an agree•ent that 
was negotiated between the parties, Hudson would release the MBTA 
from any claims against it for competitive service and the MBTA 
would drop half of its service on Route 326 as of January 1, 1986, 
and completely discontinue its service on Route 326 as of March 
1986. 

The agreement was, however, never put into effect. Since Hudson 
has never been able to learn the reasons for this failure, it 
filed this complaint with MBTA. 

RESPONSE 

UMTA sent a copy of the complaint to the MBTA on March 24, 1986, 
and provided it with 30 days from receipt to respond to the 
allegations. The MBTA's response is dated April 24, 1986. 

The MBTA asserts that the service on Route 326 is not in 
competition with Hudson's service. The MBTA states that it began 
this service on June 26, 1973, and that it obtained the operating 
rights to provide the service by acquiring them from another 
company in 1968 and its assumption of the operations of a second 
company. 

The MBTA states that Hudson filed a claim for $3 million in 
damages against the MBTA for the operation of Route 326 in 1981. 
The claim was based on a violation of Mass. Gen. Laws Ann. ch. 
161A, Section 5(k) (West 1976). The MBTA states that it denied 
the claim since it was not filed within 6 months of the 
commencement .of the service as required by Mass. Gen. Laws Ann. 
ch. 161A, Section 14(a) (West 1976). The MBTA includes a copy of 
the relevant portions of.the statute. 

On January 27, 1981, the MBTA states that Hudson filed an 
administrative complaint with UMTA making many of the same 
allegations made in this complaint. The MBTA states that UMTA 
never formally disposed of the complaint. 

The MBTA states that Hudson did not raise the issue again until 
April 29, 1985, when it approached the MBTA to negotiate for the 
operation of the service along Route 326 under contract with the 
MBTA. In exchange, Hudson would release the MBTA from any and all 
outstanding competition claims. 
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The MBTA states that it presented this proposal to its Board of 
Directors on December 18, 1985. The Board rejected the proposed 
transfer.of the operations of Route 326 pending further analysis 
of revenue gains and losses. The MBTA claims that negotiation 
continued and that a possible transfer was contemplated. The 
tranfer did not occur, however, because the MBTA had found that: 
1) the public of the city of Medford opposed the transfer1 2) 
Hudson had no equipment accessible to handicapped persons; 3) 
Hudson had no adequate means to monitor the accuracy of the number 
of MBTA pass users that Hudson would carry; and 4) there would be 
no cost savings to the city of Medford. 

The MBTA claims that it had to increase its service along Route 
326 because of increased patronage, not to increase its 
competition with Hudson. 

Finally, the MBTA notes that consistent with UMTA's guidance on 
_the involvement of the private sector, it has a local mechanis~ 
for the resolution of complaints. This is the procedure in Mass. 
Gen. Laws Ann. ch. 161A, Section 14(a). This requires the filing 
of a complaint within 6 months of the commencement of the MBTA's 
complained of service. The MBTA states that since Hudson did not 
do so within 6 months of June 26, 1973, when it began Route 326, 
that Hudson is barred from making this complaint. 

REBUTTAL 

UMTA sent a copy of the MBTA's response to Hudson on May 7, 1986. 
Hudson states that it received the letter on May 13, 1986, and its 
rebuttal is dated June 10, 1986. · 

In its rebuttal, Hudson discusses how the MBTA did not comply with 
Mass. Gen. Laws Ann. ch. 161A, Section S(k) (West 1976) when Route 
326 was begun in 1973 and that the MBTA has not even atttempted to 
justify its compliance with this State law. Hudson also claims 
that the MBTA has not complied with the requirements of this law 
in the provision of other bus service. 

Hudson states it appeared that the agreement to transfer the 
operations on Route 326 was in place for the January l, 1986, 
transfer, but that it never happened. Hudson states that it was 
informed on March 12, 1986, that the MBTA's Board disapproved the 
action. Hudson notes that further negotiations proved 
unsuccessful. 

Hudson claims that its remedy under Mass. Gen. Laws Ann. ch. 161A, 
section l4(a) (West 1976) is not its sole remedy and that it may 
complain under Section 3{e) of the UMT Act. Hudson states that 
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the MBTA·did not comply with this requirement in the establishment 
of the service in 1973 and did not do so when it supplemented the 
service in December 1985. 

Hudson states that while the MBTA does not believe that its 
decreased headways on Route 326 compete against Hudson, the result 
is, nonetheless, increased competition. 

Hudson responds to the four reasons given by the MBTA for not 
putting the transfer into effect. Hudson states that the first 
reason given, that the public does not like Hudson's service, is 
incorrect and unfair. Hudson provides a discussion of the history 
of its operations and concludes tha.:t the quality of its service 
cannot be validly raised as a reason not to transfer the service. 

Second, Hudson states that it was going to keep the fares the same 
as the MBTA charged on Route 326. Third, Hudson says that it 
cannot afforq to purchase accessible equipment since it is not a 
subsidized carrier. Fourth, Hudson states that it could have 
activated its fare collection machinery to monitor the accuracy of 
the number of MBTA passes used on the service. 

Hudson concludes by stating that it wants UMTA to order MBTA to 
cease its operations on Route 326 so that Hudson will have the 
"opportunity to provide bus service over Route 326 free from 
competition with MBTA." 

DISCUSSION 

The first issue that Hudson raises concerns an alleged violation 
of Massachusetts State law. Mass. Gen. Laws Ann. ch. 161A sec. 
5(k) (West 1976). The statutory provision cited.by the parties 
relates to the provision of service by the MBTA in competition 
with private operators. To the extent that the issue raises 
requires UMTA to review the MBTA's compliance with this provision, 
UMTA does not have the competence to interpret Massachusetts law 
nor the jurisdiction to determine compliance with it. 

The alleged violation could also be construed as raising a section 
3(e) issue concerning the MBTA's compliance with its private 
sector dispute resolution process. UMTA does review disputes 
concerning compliance with local procedures for resolution of 
disputes. 49 Fed. Reg. 41,310, 41,312 (Oct. 22, 1984). The issue 
raised here, however, concerns the MBTA's compliance with the 
state provision in instituting the service in 1973. As the 
complaint is raised thirteen years after the alleged violation 
occurred, UMTA will not review this claim as Hudson raises the 
issue in an untimely manner. 
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Second, Hudson alleges noncompliance with section 3(e) and 
Massachusetts law when the MBTA decreased headways on Route 326 in 
December 1985. Hudson claims that it provides 14 daily trips, 
Monday through Friday, from Medford and 12 daily trips, Monday 
through Friday, from Medford Square. Hudson provides copies of 
two MBTA schedules for Route 326, both dated December 28, 1985. 
The first reflects the schedule for the service if the transfer of 
service to Hudson was completed and the second reflects the 
service without the transfer to Hudson. Neither, however, 
indicates how much additional service the MBTA began to provide by 
reducing headways in comparison to the previous level of service. 
UMTA is unable to·determine if the decrease of headways 
constituted "new or restructured service" and therefore will not 
apply UMTA requirements for private sector involvement in planning 
and implementing new or restructured service to the decrease of 
headways on Route 326. 

Hudson's third allegation concerns the proposed transfer of 
service operation to a private operator. UMTA finds that this 
plan to transfer service constitutes 11 new or restructured service" 
as contemplated by UMTA circular 7005.1, "Documentation of Private 
Enterprise Participation Required for Sections 3 and 9 Programs" 
(Dec. 5, 1986). Paragraph 4 defines "new or restructured 
services" as a significant service change. This may involve any 
of the following: 

establishment of a new mass transportation service: addition 
of a new route or routes to a grantee's mass transportation 
system; a significant increase or decrease in service on an 
existing route in a grantee's mass transportation system; a 
significant realignment of an existing route in a grantee's 
mass transportation system; or a change in the type or mode 
of service provided on a specific regularly scheduled route 
in a grantee's mass transportation system. 

Here, the transfer of operations to another entity, i.e. Hudson, 
clearly is a significant service change as it changes the type of 
service on a specific regularly scheduled route. The MBTA 
therefore must comply with the guidelines of Circular 7005.1 for 
new or restructured service. 

circular 7005.1, as well as predecessor guidance documents, do not 
set forth the steps that a grantee must take to involve and 
consider private enterprise in planning and implementing new or 
restructured service. The circular instead leaves this to the 
local process as developed in the required grantee private 
enterprise consideration policy statement. Circular 7005.1 at 
paragraph 5. 
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Consistent with this requirement, the MBTA developed a process and 
submitted it to UMTA on August 7, 1986. The copy sent to UMTA 
states that the policy "will be incorporated into the daily 
operations of the Authority." The MBTA's process sets forth three 
policies regarding the plannipg of new or restructured service: 
1. notify private carriers when new or restructured service is 
considered; 2. notify private carriers of the initiation and 
progress of all studies on transit service; and 3. notify private 
carriers of all public meetings regarding transit service. The 
policy statement also sets forth the implementation details for 
these policies. 

Since the controversy in this complaint arose before the MBTA 
submitted this policy to UMTA, the MBTA may not have followed its 
specific steps. Nonetheless, because UMTA 1 s guidance has stated 
since october 22, 1984, that such a local process for the 
involvement of the private sector is needed before instituting new 
or restructured service, UMTA examines the steps that the MBTA 
went through in its attempts to transfer the operations of Route 
326. 

UMTA finds that the MBTA did not follow an adequate process to 
consider the private sector. Although the MBTA clearly did 
consider and negotiate with one private provider, i.e. Hudson, in 
the transfer of this service, such action is not consistent with 
UMTA's policy, which stresses competition and the ability of all 
private operators to participate in the planning and provision of 
service. 

The complainant here must realize that it is not entitled to 
special treatment simply because it already provides service along 
the corridor in which it seeks to expand operations. It must 
compete fairly with other interested private operators. UMTA 
recipients are required to provide a forum for such fair 
competition and to fairly evaluate all competitors. 

In fact, UMTA 1 s Third Party Contracting Guidelines, Circular 
4220.1A provides contracting guidelines that require, in most 
instances, that recipients follow a competitive process in 
contracting out for goods or services. On January 21, 1987, then 
UMTA Administrator Ralph stanley sent a letter to UMTA recipients 
reiterating that "[a]ll transit management, planning, route or 
other contracts, whether new or extending existing contracts, must 
be awarded in accordance with" Circular 4220.1A.· Thus, unless one 
of the very limited sole source procurement exceptions applies, 
the MBTA could only contract the Route 326 service out to a 
private operators through a competitive process. 
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CONCLUSION 

UMTA concludes that the MBTA did not follow UMTA section 3(e) 
requirements for the involvement of the private sector in planning 
to transfer Route 326 to a private operator, which is a 
restructuring of service. As the MBTA apparently is no longer 
contemplating such a transfer, there is no need for it to · 
undertake such a process at this time. If at some later date the 
MBTA again contemplates the transfer of this route or any other 
route to a private operator, the MBTA must comply with UMTA 
Circular 7005.1 and the MBTA's policy statement adopted July 23, 
1986. Further, in contracting with private operators to provide 
service, the MBTA must comply with the contracting guidel.ines of 
Circular 4220.1A. 

~Qv~ 
Theodore A. Munter 
Acting Chief Counsel 
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U.S. Department 
of Transportataon 

The Decuty Acmonrstrator .:co Seventh St.. S W 
Washrngton. 0 C 20590 

Urban Mass 
Transportation 
Administration NOV I 0 i987 

The Honorable Charles E. Grassley 
United States Senate 
Washington, D. c. 20510 

Dear Senator Grass1ey: 

This is in response to your letter enclosing a letter from 
Mr. stewart Huff, Chairman of the Board of Trustees of the 
Sioux City Transit System (SCTS), regarding the effect of the 
Urban Mass Transportation Administration's (UMTA), rulemaking on 
"Charter Service." Each of the many issues raised in Mr. Huff's 
letter will be addressed. 

on April 13, 1987, UMTA published its revised regulations 
regarding the charter service which UMTA recipients may provide 
using UMTA-funded equipment and facilities. A copy of these 
regulations is enclosed. 

Issue No. 1 

"The regulation places unreasonable restrictions on our [SCTS's] 
efforts to respond to specific public service transportation 
needs, " 

UMTA's Response to Issue No. 1 

UMTA's charter service regulations only address how an UMTA 
recipient may use its UMTA-assisted equipment and facilities. 
Because UMTA is not authorized to provide Federal assistance for 
charter service and because only incidental charter service may be 
performed with UMTA-assisted equipment and facilities, UMTA must 
take the necessary steps to assure that the equipment and 
facilities UMTA finances are not misused for purposes unauthorized 
by Federal statute. Federal assistance is not available for every 
type of service an UMTA recipient may be requested to supply. 

Issue No. 2 

"The regulation •.• forces the underutilization of our public 
transit equipment and facilities in which taxpayers have 
invested, •••• " 
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UMTA's Response to Issue No. 2 

UMTA makes capital assistance available on the understanding that 
a recipient needs the equipment or facilities for mass 
transportation purposes. UMTA would note that if a recipient's 
UMTA-assisted equipment and facilities are underutilized, the 
recipient may have excess property that must be disposed of in 
accordance with the terms of OMB Circular A-102, Attachment N. 

Issue No. 3 

"The regulation ••• eliminates a source of needed revenue for our 
financially strapped transit system." .. 

UMTA's Response to Issue No. 3 

overall, UMTA believes that the provision of charter service to 
its recipients is more costly than the revenues that may be 
collected. This issue is more fully discussed in the preamble to 
the regulations at 52 Fed. Reg. 11932, April 13, 1987: 

UMTA does not doubt that some recipients earn 
profits from their charter services. Many of 
the commenters stated that these revenues equal 
1, 2, or 3 percent of their total revenues. While 
UMTA cannot deny that these amounts of revenues 
may be important to these recipients, they do not 
appear to be so enormous that their loss will 
seriously affect these recipients. 

Furthermore, it is still UMTA's position that mass 
transportation is a local concern. Thus, while a 
loss of charter revenues may have an adverse impact 
on the services that these recipients are able to 
provide, we believe that such losses are the 
responsibility of the State and local government 
to correct. 

Issue No. 4 

The regulation is, "anti-competitive." 

UMTA's Response to Issue No. 4 

In drafting the regulations, UMTA determined that its statutory 
mandates to protect private charter operators from unfair 
competition from UMTA recipients and to ensure that UMTA-funded 
equipment is used for mass transportation require that the charter 
service regulations be as restrictive as they are. UMTA does not 
have the legal authority to provide Federal assistance for charter 
service. UMTA, therefore, does not have the legal authority to 
support its recipients' efforts to increase competition in charter 
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service. UMTA believes fair competition is best assured by 
providing a level playing field for all operators. To do this 
UMTA removed the advantages enjoyed by recipients of UMTA · ' 
assistance when they compete with entities that do not receive 
Federal assistance. 

Issue No. 5 

The regulation is, "federally intrusive." 

UMTA's Response to Issue No. 5 

Because UMTA's new charter service regulations impose fewer 
administrative burdens than were imposed by UMTA's previous 
charter bus regulations, UMTA believes the new regulations are far 
less intrusive than either the former charter bus regulations or 
the proposed charter bus regulations set forth in the notice of 
proposed rulemaking. For example, the preamble to the new 
regulations states at 52 Fed. Reg. 11918, April 13, 1987, "We have 
taken special pains to minimize the administrative and paperwork 
burdens imposed by the rule to ensure that all recipients will 
be capable of complying without hardship." In addition, the 
preamble notes that "UMTA has decreased the administrative burden 
on recipients in the public participation process by eliminating 
the hearing requirement," that was included in the notice of 
proposed rulemaking. 52 Fed. Reg. 11926, April 13, 1987. 

Issue No. 6 

The regulation is, "inconsistent with UMTA's privatization 
initiative since it will force private companies to choose between 
charter service or seeking line-haul service contracts with (a] 
public transit system." · 

UMTA's Response to Issue No. 6 

Section 3(f) of the Urban Mass Transportation Act of 1964, 
as amended (UMT Act), states that its restrictions apply to 
the recipient, "or any operator of mass transportation," for 
the recipient. Therefore, substantially similar restrictions 
must be imposed on charter service by private operators who 
provide mass transportation service for recipients and on charter 
service by recipients. 52 Fed. Reg. 11918, April 13, 1987. 
Although UMTA is aware of a possible conflict between UMTA's 
private sector policies that encourage private operators to 
engage in mass transportation operations for recipients and the 
restrictions imposed by the charter service regulations on those 
private operators that provide mass transportation service for 
recipients, UMTA is bound by the terms of its legislation, which 
requires consistent treatment for both recipients and those 
private operators that provide mass transportation service for 
recipients. 52 Fed. Reg. 11919, April 13, 1987. 
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Issue No. 7 

"The regulation is not authorized by statute: it is based on a 
regulatory approach specifically rejected by Congress in 1974 and 
exceeds UMTA's authority under section 3(f) and l2(c)(6) of the 
Urban Mass Transportation Act." 

UMTA's Response to Issue No. 7 

The statutory basis for the regulations is section l2(c)(6) and 
section 3(f) of the UMT Act. The regulations implement those two 
provisions of the UMT Act. The first provision, section l2(c)(6), 
has been part of the UMT Act since its enactment, and defines 
"mass transportation" specifically to exclude charter service, 
sightseeing service, or school bus service. The second provision, 
section 3(f), was enacted by Congress in the early 1970's and is 
more specific. Section 3(f) requires all applicants for UMTA 
assistance for the purchase or operation of buses to enter into an 
agreement with UMTA to ensure that the private intercity charter 
bus industry is not foreclosed from the charter business by public 
operators using publicly funded equipment. · 

I should also point out that Congress recently has passed 
legislation in a related area. As you know, the surface 
Transportation and Uniform Relocation Assistance Act of 1987, 
enacted on April 2, 1987, reauthorized both the transit and 
highway programs for five years. Section 339 of that Act amended 
the laws governing the Interstate Commerce Commission. This 
provision precludes a public transit authority that has received 
Federal assistance from acquiring interstate charter rights beyond 
the area in which it provides regularly scheduled mass 
transportation services if any private operator is providing the 
service or is willing and able to provide the proposed service. 
This is noteworthy because UMTA has taken a parallel approach in 
its charter service regulations, which apply within a transit 
operator's service area. 

A more detailed legal analysis is set forth in the preamble to the 
regulations at 52 Fed. Rei. 11930 and 11931, April 13, 1987. UMTA 
believes the charter-ierv ce regulations are fully within UMTA's 
legal authority to administer UMTA's mass transportation program. 

Issue No. 8 

"Congress should act immediately to withdraw this regulation." 

UMTA's Response to Issue No. 8 

UMTA is aware of the congressional guidance set forth in the House 
report language accompanying the FY 1988 Department of 
Transportation and Related Agencies Appropriations Bill 
(H.R. 2890) pertai~ing to the impact of UMTA's new regulations on 
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non-profit entities that in the past have relied on charter 
service provided by UMTA recipients. That report language directs 
UMTA to undertake a rulemaking on a proposed amendment to the 
regulations that would permit certain entities to seek bids from 
public transit operators, notwithstanding the requirements of the 
regulations. That report language also directs UMTA to provide 
transit operators interim guidance that such a rule change is 
under consideration. 

UMTA is now in the process of developing an appropriate notice of 
proposed rulemaking. In so doing, UMTA will be seeking to discern 
what segments of the public are actually unable to obtain charter 
service on a reasonable basis from the private sector, and thus 
must rely on UMTA recipients for service to meet their needs. 

Issue No. 9 

"We believe an investigation is in order as to why section 
604.1l(b) (3) came to be included in a federal regulation 
administered by the Department of Transportation." 

UMTA's Response to Issue No. 9 

UMTA's charter service regulations at 49 C.F.R. § 604.1l(b) (3) 
require, as part of the public participation process, that the 
recipient send a copy of its notice of intent to provide charter 
service to the United Bus Owners of America (UBOA) and the 
American Bus Association (ABA). In proposing this requirement, 
UMTA has explained in its notice of proposed rulemaking set forth 
at 51 Fed. Reg. 7898, March 6, 1986, that: 

It is UMTA's opinion that notice to these 
organizations would be helpful. UBOA and the 
ABA are the trade associations representing 
virtually all private charter bus companies. 
consequently, notice to them would be another 
way to ensure that notice is received by the 
potential willing and able private charter 
operators in the proposed service area. This 
could be effectively done by UBOA and the 
ABA through their newsletters. 

The preamble to the new charter service regulations states simply 
at. 52 Fed. Reg. 11927, April 13, 1987, that: 

UMTA believes that actual notice to these two 
trade associations is important to en~ure that 
there is as wide a distribution as possible in 
order to get as large a response as possible. 
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Issue No. 10 

"SCTS is effectively prohibited from satisfying the special 
travel interests of our citizens," because the nearest charter 
operator is located in another State. 

UMTA's Response to Issue No. 10 

Among the approaches UMTA considered in establishing a proper 
balance between the provision of charter service by the private 
sector and UMTA recipients was a plan in which a recipient would 
be authorized to provide charter service if a customer had made a 
reasonable attempt to secure service from private operators. 
Having concluded an extensive rulemaking process in which more 
than 300 comments were received and analyzed, UMTA made a decision 
not to adopt regulations that would permit a grantee to be a 
"charter provider of last resort." One problem with the "charter 
provider of last resort" approach is that UMTA lacks the means to 
impose a penalty on a charter customer that misleads a recipient 
to believe that the customer genuinely made an adequate effort to 
secure service from private operators. In addition; by permitting 
charter service customers to continue their habitual practice of 
meeting their charter needs by securing the services of UMTA 
recipients, UMTA would be undermining the efforts of private 
operators to serve the public by making proper investments and 
other improvements. While UMTA recognizes that there might be, in 
a few instances, some minimal inconvenience to the public 
resulting from the transfer of charter relationships from UMTA 
recipients to private operators, UMTA's regulations were drafted 
to include exceptions that would preclude the imposition of actual 
hardship on the public. In drafting the regulations, UMTA 
determined that its statutory mandates to protect private 
charter operators from unfair competition from UMTA recipients and 
to ensure that UMTA-funded equipment is used for mass 
transportation require that the charter service regulations be as 
restrictive as they are. 

In summary, UMTA believes its charter service regulations are fair 
and reasonable. 

SiAieWL~ 
Alfred A. DelliBovi 

Enclosures 
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uS Department 
ot Trcnsporratron 

UrbonMass 
Transportation 
Administration 

Mr. Kevin L. Doyle 

The Deputy Acm•n•s:rator 

NOV l 2 1987 

Assistant Transportation Planner 
Johnson County Council of Governments 
410 E. Washington Street 
Iowa City, Iowa 52240 

Dear Mr. Doyle: 

~~u-

URC7 

o~c:.: S.:::en!t": Sr S 'N 
W.asr.;~g:o., DC 20590 

This is in response to your recent request for an exception under 
49 CFR 604.9(b)(4) which would allow Iowa City Transit, Coraville 
Transit, and University of Iowa CAMBUS to operate charter service 
on the occasion of the 1988 World Ag Expo, which will be held in 
the Amana Colonies, Iowa, from September 7 through 10, 1988. 

The preamble to the regulation, at page 11925, explains that the 
Urban Mass Transportation Administration (UMTA) will grant an 
exception under section 604.9(b) (4) only for events of an 
extraordinary, special and singular nature. Your letter indicates 
that this international agricultural exposition, which has been 
held in the United States only twice in the past twenty years, is 
expected to draw between 200,000 and 300,000 visitors. Given the 
international importance of the exposition and the large number of 
attendees expected, UMTA recognizes it as being the type of event 
envisaged by section 604.9(b) (4). Moreover, we understanP, from 
your letter that the resources of the one private operator in your 
area which has been determined "willing and able," are 
insufficient to meet the service needs for this exposition. Also, 
the American Bus Association has advised us that the local private 
operators have agreed that the three UMTA recipients in question 
should be allowed to provide charter service for this event. 

For these reasons, I hereby authorize Iowa City Transit, Coraville 
Transit, and University of Iowa CAMBUS to make available buses to 
assist in accommodating the need for charter service during the 
World Ag Expo, from September 7 through 10, 1988. This exception 
is valid only for shuttle service between the parking lots and the 
exposition site. Should any of the three recipients to whom this 
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exception is granted, wish to perform operations other than 
shuttle service, they must request an additional exception under 
the procedures of 49 CFR 604.9(d). 

You are reminded that in accordance with section 604.9{e} of the 
regulation, "Any charter service that a recipient provides under 
any of the exceptions of this part must be incidental charter 
service." The preamble to the regulation cites as an example of 
"incidental service" service using vehicles which do not exceed 
the recipient's spare ratio by more than 20 percent~ Your letter 
indicates that the 20 percent ratio for Iowa City Transit would be 
4 vehicles; for Coraville Transit, 1 vehicle; and for University 
of Iowa CAMBUS, 2 vehicles. Consequently, the number of vehicles 
used in charter service by these recipients during the exposition 
should not exceed these figures. Further guidance on determining 
what constitutes "incidental service" is provided .in the preamble. 
52 Fed. Reg. 11926, April 13, 1987. 

Sincerely, 

AJW.~.~-L 
Alfred A. DelliBovi 
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U.S Department. 
of Transportation 

Urban Mass 
Transportation 
Administration 

The Honorable Dave Nagle 
House of Representatives 
Washington, D.C. 20590 

Dear Mr. Nagle: 

The Deputy Admm•strator 

NOV 2 3 1987 

400 Seventh St.. S W 
Wash•ngton. 0 C 20590 

This is in response to your letter enclosing a letter from your 
constituent, Mr. John Lundell, pertaining to the effect on the 
public of the Urban Mass Transportation Administration's (UMTA) 
rulemaking on "Charter Service." 

On April, 13, 1987, UMTA published its revised regulations ... 
regarding the charter service which UMTA recipients may provide 
using UMTA-funded equipment and facilities. A copy of these 
regulations is enclosed. 

In particular, Mr. Lundell and you are concerned about the impact 
of the lack of charter service available to some communities 
alleged to be caused by the regulations' prohibition on UMTA 
recipients from providing any charter service if a private charter 
company responds to the recipient's public notice expressing 
interest in being the provider. In drafting the charter service 
regulations, UMTA determined that its statutory mandates to 
protect private charter operators from unfair competition from 
UMTA recipients and to ensure that UMTA-funded equipment is used 
fo~ mass transportation require that the charter service 
regulations be as restrictive as they are. 

In your letter, you also requested UMTA to, " ••• comment on the 
possibility of exemptions being made for UMTA recipients providing 
the service if the private company will not." 

In general, UMTA believes that the private charter industry is 
able to serve the Nation's charter needs on reasonable terms, as 
explained in the preamble to the regulations set forth at 
52 Fed. Reg. 11924, April 13, 1987. UMTA, however, has recognized 
that for a variety of reasons, a private operator may be unwilling 
or unable to perform certain charter trips. UMTA believes that a 
recipient may make the "willing and able" process more effective 
by expanding the content of its charter notice to include 
information which would be helpful to the private operator in 
deciding whether to respond. Thus, in addition to the 
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information required by 49 C.F.R. 1 604.ll(c), i.e., days, times 
of day, geographic area, and category of revenue vehicle to be 
used, a recipient may include in its notice descriptions of 
destination, trip purpose, or clientele to be served. As long as 
the notice does not discourage a response from a person who meets 
the criteria for a "willing and able" operator, a recipient has 
flexibility in using descriptions which allow private operators to 
decide whether they desir~ to perform a particular charter trip. 

In addition to this formal notice process, recipients are 
encouraged to engage private operators in a dialogue through other 
means as well, such as written communications, conferences, or 
informal meetings. A recipient may also provide in its notice a 
telephone number that a private operator may call to obtain 
further information on the proposed service. 

Furthermore, a recipient may perform a certain charter trip, even 
though it has been determined that there are "willinq and able" 
private operators in its service area, when there is an agreemel)t 
to this effect between the recipient and the private operator. 
The recipient's charter notice must, however, have provided for 
this type of agreement. If it did not, the recipient must, before 
undertaking the charter trip in question, amend its notice to 
refer specifically to such an agreement. 

such measures are in keeping with the spirit of the charter 
service regulations, which is to encouraqe cooperation between 
UMTA recipients and the private sector. Through their judicious 
use, recipients and private operators should be able to work 
together to ensure that critical consumer needs for chart.er 
service will be met. 

I hope that this will helpful. 

Sincerely, 

Al fJJ:~ 
Alfred A. DelliBovi 

Enclosure 
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US. Department 
of Transportation 

Urban Mass 
Transportation 
Administration 

Barry M. Shulman, Esq. 
Scolaro, Shulman, Cohen, 

Lawler & Burstein, P.C. 
90 Presidential Plaza 
Syracuse, New York 13202 

The Administrator 

NOV 2 3 Jf(~t 

400 Seventh St., S.W. 
Washington, D.C. 20590 

Re:· Syracuse & Oswego Motor Lines, Inc. 
v. Central New York Regional 
Transportation Authority, 
NY-05/86-:0l 

Dear Mr. Shulman: 

This responds to your request on behalf of the Central New York 
Regional Transportation Authority (CENTRO} for reconsideration of 
the decision of the Chief Counsel in the above-referenced matter. 
In his decision, the Chief Counsel found that CENTRO was 
impermissibly providing charter service between Manley Field'House 
and Crouse-Irving Memorial Hospital (Hospital). You dispute the 
Chief counsel's findings and state that the Urban Mass 
Transportation Administration (UMTA} should determine that the 
service is mass transportation as defined in UMTA's charter 
regulation, 49 CFR part 604. 

You base your request on evidence which was not available at the 
time this complaint was filed in 1986, but which you feel should 
be taken into consideration in order to properly characteriz-e the 
service in question. 

First, in support of your contention, you state that the service 
in question is open door, ·since it is published in 
CENTRO's regularly published schedules which have been in 
print for over two years. While the Crouse-Irving Memorial 
shuttle timetable is different in format from other CENTRO 
schedules (e.g., undated, small card, restricted hours, etc.), 
CENTRO's Director of Operations argues that such .differences are 
only due to the nature and extent of a particular service. UMTA 
has similarly determined that while CENTRO does publish a variety 
of different types of schedules (which have beeri submitted as 
evidence), these differences are due to the nature of a particular 
service and do not automatically categorize it as impermissible 
charter service. 
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Second, overlapping with the issue of open door, is the issue of 
exclusive use. You have submitted a form, devised by CENTRO's' 
.General Manager, which allowed staff to take a sampling, over· a 
seven ~ay period, of the bus ridership on the route in question. 
The sampling clearly illustrates that this shuttle is not for the 
exclusive use of employees of the Hospital and that members of the 
public board and disembark at points along its route. ·'' • 

Also, the General Manager of CENTRO has submitted bus driver· 
procedure forms which clearly state that "[t]his is regular route 
service, and anyone can ride." Additionally, several bus drivers 
on the Crouse-Irving Memorial shuttle route have submitted 
Incident Reports in their own words and handwriting. The bus 
drivers indicated that they are instructed to pick up all members 
of the public at all stops along the scheduled route. . 

Moreover, after reviewing information submitted by CENTRO, UMTA 
has determined that the lot can be accessed by cars with Syracuse 
University permits, certain construction workers on building 
projects at the University, University faculty members, some 
University students as well as by those in possession of visitor 
permits. Also, the bus stop can be accessed by walking into the 
parking lot, as there is no restriction placed on physically 
entering the lot.l 

Therefore, while the Chief Counsel held in the origin~! decision 
that it was highly unlikely that the Hospital's aim was to open 
the service up to the general public, we now find, 'based on all 
new information in the record, that there is an open door policy. 
The Crouse-Irving Memorial shuttle is not restricted to a 
particular group (i.e., hospital employees). 

Third, in. support of your contention, you argue that the shuttle 
service is under CENTRO's control. By your own admisS.ion, it is 
the Hospital which both solicited the service and pays for it. 
However, according to the contract between CENTRO and the 
Hospital (which you submitted as evidence), it is CENTRO that has 
exclusively determined the passenger stops for the shuttle as well 
as the deployment of vehicles for the route. 

1 It is important to note that the complainant, Syracuse & 
Oswego Motor Lines, Inc., had submitted a video cassette recorded 
by its President, Russell Ferdinand, ori October 17, 1988. This 
tape depicted the layout of the Manley Field-House parking lot as 
well as footage of alleged shuttle buses passing by riders waiting 
at designated bus stops. However, in a letter to UMTA dated 
November 1, 1988, Mr. Ferdinand has requested that this video 
cassette be withdrawn from evidence in determining CENTRO's 
appeal. UMTA granted Mr. Ferdinand's request, and has not 
considered the said video cassette as evidence in rendering this 
decision. Moreover, by letter dated November 8, 1988, counsel for 
CENTRO, which had been advised of Mr. Ferdinand's request to 
withdraw the cassette, indicated that CENTRO agreed to the 
withdrawal. 
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UMTA now finds that there is enough new information to determine 
that the shuttle service is under the control of the grantee, 
'thus, bringing it within the definition of permissible mass 
transportation. 

UMTA recognizes that there is a sometimes overlapping n~ture j:Q 
mass transportation and charter service. However,. UMTA. concludes, 
based· on the new information submitted by complainant and 
respondent in response to previous findings, that the service 
being provided by CENTRO is permissible mass transportation as per 
the definition in the preamble to the regulation.2 

Alfred A. DelliBovi 

cc: Russell Ferdinand, President, 
Syracuse & Oswego Motor Lines, Inc. 

2 The definition of mass transit is summarized in the preamble 
to the regulation, ·as· follows: {1) it is under. the control of the 
grantee; (2) it is designed to benefit the publ~c at.large; and 
(3) it is open door. 52 Federal Register 11920, Apr~l 13, 1987. 
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u.s. Deportment 
of Transportation 

Urban Mass 
Transportation 
Administration 

Mr. Rex c .. McCall 
Assistant General Counsel 
City Utilities of Springfield 
301 E. Central 
P.o. Box 551 
Springfield, Missouri 65801 

Dear Mr. McCall: 

Headquarters 

DEC 1 0 1987 

LIII·""-""'- -

UK07 

400 Seventh St .• S.W. 
Wash•ngton, D.C. 20590 

·.:;/ 
'"i . ....'l~:;/ 

' ~ I 
r'' ·• ' ····, . ·.,. 

Your recent letter to Mr. Lee Waddleton, Regional Administrator of 
the Urban Mass Transportation Administration (UMTA) has been 
referred to us for comment. We are concerned that your letter 
indicates that you have misinterpreted UMTA's charter regulation. 
We would like to clarify the issue raised in your letter in order 
to avoid any violation of the regulation by City Utilities of 
Springfield (CUS). 

Your letter states that cus is operated by the City of 
Springfield. You explain that CUS provides bus service for 
another City entity, the convention and Visitors Advisory Board 
(CVAB). You indicate that it is your belief that this service is 
not charter service, since the same legal entity is both the 
provider and the beneficiary of the service. It is your opinion 
that the service does not conform to the charter criteria of being 
to a distinct group of people and pursuant to a contract between 
two p·arties. 

UMTA does not share your view that separate divisions of a city 
government are one and the same entity. UMTA considers a 
municipal department which receives UMTA funds for mass transit 
purposes, as distinct from another department which is engaged in 
different activities and performs different functions. It would 
indeed undermine UMTA's mission of providing funding for mass 
transit purposes, if such funding could be utilized for other 
purposes on the pretext that the rec~pient is part of a larger 
entity that is free to use it as it chooses. 
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The issue of the provision of service by a transit division of a 
city government to another municipal department has been dealt 
with in UMTA's recently published Charter Questions and Answers, 
52 Federal Register 42248 (November 3, 1987). The answer to 
question 33 clearly affirms that UMTA considers such movements to 
be charters within the definition of the charter regulation. 
UMTA states that.a transit authority that wishes to provide 
service of this type must comply with the requirements of the 
regulation. A copy of these Questions and Answers is enclosed for 
your information. 

Therefore, if cus is now providing such bus service to the CVAB, 
it should discontinue doing so immediately. Any continuation of 
such practices could jeopardize cus• Federal transportation 
assistance. 

Please feel free to contact this office !.f you have any questions 
or need further guidance in the interpretation of UMTA's charter 
regulation. 

Sincerely, 

~a~ 
Theodore A. Munter 
Acting Chief Counsel 

Enclosure 

cc: Jeanmarie Homan, UR0-7 
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U.S. Department 
of Transportation 

Urban Mass 
Transportation 
Administration 

Mr. David I. L.- Sunstein 
Sun Coach Lines 
1721 Busch Street 
McKeesport, Pennsylvania 

Dear Mr. sunstein: 

r . ···~ 

·i 
J 

15132 

The Administrator 

OEC I 0 1987 

400 Seventh St., S.W. 
Washington, D.C. 20590 

This is in response to your letter pertaining to the Port 
Authority of Allegheny county's (Port Authority) annual charter 
permit charge of $1,000. 

At the outset, we would like you to know that the Urban Mass 
Transportation Administration (UMTA) does not provide Federal 
assistance to its recipients to purchase certificates to operate 
charter service. We are unaware of any records in our possession 
which would support your belief that UMTA did, in fact, provide 
Federal assistance in 1964 to the Port Authority to purchase all 
Pennsylvania Public Utility Commission Charter and Special 
Operations certificates to operate within Allegheny County. 

Although UMTA is not empowered by law to regulate Port Authority's 
administrative charges in connection with issuing charter permits, 
UMTA has expressed its concern to the Port Authority about its 
annual charter permit fees. Enclosed is a copy of the Port · 
Authority's response and an opinion of its counsel setting forth 
the basis in Pennsylvania law for the Port Authority's charter 
permit fees. In its letter, Port Authority claims its fees to 
cover the expenses of administering its charter permit program are 
reasonable. The Port Authority also states that the fees will be 
adjusted to reflect their experience. 

For these reasons, UMTA will·not take further action in this 
matter. 

Sincerely, 

Enclosure 
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EAGLE BUS, INC. 
Complainant 

v. 

NEW YORK CITY TRANSIT AUTHORITY, 
Respondent 

SUMMARY 

) 
) 
) 
) 
) NY-02/86-02 
) 
) 
) 

Eagle Bus, Inc. (Eagle) filed this complaint with the Urban Mass 
Transportation Administration (UMTA) alleging that the New York 
City Transit Authority {NYCTA) had violated the provisions of the 
Urban Mass Transportation Act of 1964, as amended (UMT Act), and 
the implementing policy in its planning and provision of mass 
transportation service from Staten Island to Manhattan. After a 
thorough review of the materials submitted by the parties, UMTA 
finds that the NYCTA violated Sections 3(e), 8(e), and 9(f) of the 
UMT Act and the implementing policy by failing to involve the 
private sector in plans to implement new or restructured service. 
However, given the modest level of the service actually 
implemented and thus the de minimis nature of the NYCTA's 
violation, UMTA will not require the NYCTA to follow a public 
participation process with respect to this service. The NYCTA 
should nonetheless follow the guidelines set by its own private 
sector policy in any future planning or provision of new or 
restructured service. 

COMPLAINT 

On February 27, 1986, Eagle filed a complaint with UMTA regarding 
NYCTA's proposed service from Staten Island to Manhattan via New 
Jersey.(l) Eagle alleged that it would be adversely affected by 
this service if it were actually provided. Eagle furnished 
several attachments with its letter, including a copy of its 
correspondence with the NYCTA concerning the service, a copy of 
the information that the NYCTA had filed with the New York City 
Board of Estimate to obtain approval for the service, and a letter 
to Eagle from the Interstate Commerce Commission (ICC) concerning 
the operating authority needed to provide this service. 

UMTA responded by letter dated March 28, 1986, acknowledging that 
the information presented indicated possible violations of the 
UMT Act and the policy guidance on the involvement of the private 
sector in the provision of mass transportation services that UMTA 
funds. PUrsuant to UMTA's procedures for the resolution of such 

(l) The serv~ce ~n question is referred to in this decision as 
"express service." It is in fact only partial express service, 
since both under the existing and the proposed plan, pick-ups 
are scheduled on Staten Island and in Brooklyn. 
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complaints, UMTA ordered Eagle to attempt to settle its dispute 
with the NYCTA at the local level for at least 30 days. If after 
that time no resolution was reached, Eagle was asked to request in 
writing that UMTA initiate a formal investigation of the 
complaint. 

On May 1, 1986, Eagle did write to UMTA to state that it had 
attempted to resolve its problems and described the conversations 
that it had had with the NYCTA. Since, however, no resolution had 
been reached, Eagle asked UMTA to treat its letters as a formal 
complaint. The focus of Eagle's complaint was that the NYCTA was 
in the process of planning service over the same routes served by 
Eagle, and that Eagle had not been given the opportunity to 
participate in the planning and provision of the service. Eagle 
noted that as of the writing of this letter, the new service was 
not yet operational. 

RESPONSE 

UMTA reviewed the materials submitted by Eagle and determined that 
they did constitute a private sector complaint. UMTA sent a copy 
of both of Eagle's letters to the NYCTA on May 13, 1986, and 
provided it with 30 days from receipt to respond to the 
complaint. The NYCTA's response is dated June 10, 1986. 

In its response, the NYCTA asserts that Eagle's complaint is 
without merit and that the portions of the UMT Act that Eagle 
cited are not applicable to the service at issue. NYCTA argues 
that the service does not involve new routes or new routing in the 
boarding and alighting areas. The NYCTA states that the same 
number of express lines will be operated to Manhattan as before 
and that the only change is that the express portion of NYCTA's 
existing service would be through New Jersey instead of through 
Brooklyn. 

The NYCTA states that the reason for this change is to make the 
service faster and to save time for the patron. If improvements 
in the quality of service result in violations of the UMT Act, 
then the NYCTA argues that other improvements such as using new 
buses or air conditioned buses would also be violations. 

The NYCTA argues that the changes will not introduce any 
additional levels of competition that have not existed since it 
began to provide service from staten Island several years ago •. In 
fact, the NYCTA states that Eagle had filed under Chapter 11 of 
the Federal bankruptcy laws and is, therefore, hardly able to 
adequately handle all of the transportation needs.of Staten 
Island. 
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The NYCTA states that it has followed the required steps in order 
to operate this service and that it has the appropriate legal 
operating authority. It argues that its re-routing of service 
through New Jersey is not subject to the jurisdiction of the ICC, 
but rather to that of the New York City Board of Estimate, from 
which it has received proper authority. The NYCTA maintains that 
the Board of Estimate's authorization process included a public 
hearing held on December 19, 1985, at which Eagle could have 
presented its opposition. 

The NYCTA provides a description of the service and indicated how 
it is different from the service provided by Eagle. First, the 
two operations have different pick-up and delivery points. 

Second, the NYCTA explains that its service, unlike Eagle's, 
operates non-stop in New Jersey, i.e., it makes no pick ups or 
drop offs there. The NYCTA also stated that it had not begun to 
provide the service on routes x12 and x13. 

Based on these facts, the NYCTA concludes by urging UMTA to reject 
Eagle's complaint. 

REBUTTAL 

UMTA sent a copy of the NYCTA's response to Eagle on July 7, 
1986, and provided it with 15 days to rebut the evidence. Eagle's 
rebuttal is dated July 21, 1986. 

Eagle's rebuttal makes three main points. First, Eagle takes 
issue with the NYCTA's argument that the service is not new and 
creates no new level of competition. Eagle describes the routing 
of the new service, emphasizing that it will operate from staten 
Island to Manhattan over a route different from that now used by 
the NYCTA. Eagle provides maps of the service, which·is to 
involve four bus lines described as x10, x12, x13 and x17. It 
also attaches copies of NYCTA's maps, showing how Eagle's service 
parallels or is identical to that which the NYCTA plans to 
provide. Eagle states that the change in route will create 
service to midtown Manhattan while the previous service was to 
downtown Manhattan. Since Eagle's service is to midtown 
Manhattan, it argues that the service is new and will increase 
competition. 

Eagle responds to the NYCTA's statement that Eagle's service is 
not non-stop through New Jersey. Eagle states that its buses 
leave staten Island, New York, and operate non-stop via New Jersey 
to New York, New York. 
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Eagle states that while it and the NYCTA may have different stops 
on Staten Island and New York, this is a difference without a 
distinction. According to Eagle, in the area served by both Eagle 
and the NYCTA in Manhattan, "different stops a few blocks apart in 
peak hours do not decrease competition and reduce the business 
available" to private operators. 

Eagle asserts that the NYCTA'S proposed route will serve a 
different destination within Manhattan, and that the altered 
service will not reduce travel time. Instead, it will serve a 
completely different patron group, i.e., interstate and midtown 
commuters, the same group served by Eagle. 

Eagle acknowledges that it did file under Federal bankruptcy laws, 
but stated that it is attempting to terminate its bankruptcy. 

Eagle maintains that even conceding, arguendo, that the service is 
not new, the NYCTA must comply with UMTA's private sector policies 
since the service is significantly restructured. Eagle states 
that the NYCTA has no procedures to involve the private sector in 
the provision of such service. 

In its second point, Eagle disputes the NYCTA's arguments that the 
NYCTA has the proper legal authority to operate the service. 
Eagle states that it did not present its case at the Board of 
Estimate's Hearing since that body was not the proper forum. 
Eagle states that since the proposed service involves interstate 
transportation, the matter is subject to the jurisdiction of the 
ICC. 

In its third point, Eagle rebuts the NYCTA's arguments that the 
service does not constitute a violation of the UMT Act. Eagle 
contends that the NYCTA failed to involve Eagle in its plans to 
implement the new service, thereby violating Sections 3(e), S(e), 
and 9(f) of the UMT Act, which require involvement of the private 
sector to the maximum extent feasible in the provision of 
service. 

Eagle concludes by stating that the service is new and creates new 
competition, that it violates the ICC requirements, and that it 
violates the UMT Act. Eagle asks that UMTA grant appropriate 
relief. 

252 



5 

REQUEST FOR ADDITIONAL INFORMATION 

By letter dated March 5, 1987, UMTA requested additional 
information from the respondent. UMTA's letter stated that the 
materials submitted provide a description of routes xlO, x12, xl3, 
and xl7 as they would be operated non-stop through New Jersey, but 
not as they were operated non-stop through Brooklyn. UMTA asked 
that this information be provided within 15 days. 

The NYCTA's response is dated April 8, 1987·. In its letter, the 
NYCTA states that only service along route xl7 is in operation, 
since plans to operate service on the other three routes had not 
been implemented. NYCTA states that there were currently only two 
morning and two evening trips along the xl7 line. NYCTA said that 
before operations through New Jersey began, the xl7 route followed 
three service patterns in Manhattan, which it describes ·as 
follows: 

A trips) 

B trips) 

c trips) 

serving lower Manhattan; 

serving midtown Manhattan to 57th Street 
at 3rd Avenue; 

operating as a combination of A and B trips, 
serving lower and midtown Manhattan to 
57th Street at 3rd Avenue. 

NYCTA explains that it has chosen two of the four morning B trips 
and two of the five evening B trips to operate from Staten Island 
through New Jersey to midtown Manhattan via the Lincoln Tunnel. 
Morning trips proceed to 57th Street at 3rd Avenue, making no 
stops between the Lincoln-Tunnel and Madison Avenue at 34th 
Street. Evening operations begin from 57th Street at 3rd Avenue. 
As in the morning, no stops are made between from 34th Street to 
the Lincoln Tunnel. These trips are identified as BJ trips. 

NYCTA says that no change had been made in the local route path on 
Staten Island for these BJ xl7 trips. The Manhattan route path 
did change, however, since entering Manhattan from the Lincoln 
Tunnel had made service below 34th Street impossible. 

NYCTA maintains that the two remaining morning and three remaining 
evening B trips still operate non-stop through Brooklyn, with no 
change in their operating schedule. Likewise, according to NYCTA, 
all other A and c trips remain unchanged, and continue to operate 
express through Brooklyn. 
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Enclosed with NYCTA's letter were operating schedules, a public 
timetable, and a passenger information handout describing the 
revised xl7 routing through New Jersey. 

COMMENTS ON ADDITIONAL INFORMATION 

On April 17, 1987, UMTA forwarded to Eagle a copy of NYCTA's 
response to UMTA's request for additional information. Eagle was 
given 15 days from receipt to provide comments. 

Eagle's response is dated May 1, 1987. Eagle's first comment 
concerns the NYCTA's statement that permission to operate the 
proposed express routes through New Jersey has been granted. 
Eagle contends that the NYCTA's service through New Jersey 
constitutes interstate transportation, and is thus subject to the 
jurisdiction of the ICC. Since the NYCTA has not obtained 
authorization from the ICC, Eagle contends, its provision of the 
service is invalid. Eagle states that it has filed a complaint 
against NYCTA with the ICC, and that a decision is expected. 

secondly, Eagle notes that Carol Coaches, Inc., a company owned 
and operated by Eagle, has begun servicing some of Eagle's routes, 
including the Staten Island to Manhattan via New Jersey route. 
Since Carol Coaches is now providing the service which is the 
subject of this complaint, Eagle asks that Carol Coaches be added 
or substituted as a complainant. 

Third, Eagle states that NYCTA's BJ xl7 buses operate along 
Richmond Avenue on Staten island. Eagle states that ten of Carol 
Coaches• schedules operate along Richmond Avenue, and that 
Richmond Avenue is a key traffic source for carol, involving fifty 
percent of its traffic. 

Eagle contends that since NYCTA began the service in question 
without consideration of the private sector, NYCTA should be 
considered in violation of the Sections 3(e), S(e), and 9(f) of 
the UMT Act and implementing policy guidelines. Eagle concludes 
that UMTA should prohibit NYCTA 1 s proposed service and grant 
relief as is appropriate under its applicable law and policy. 

DISCUSSION 

Before reaching the main issues raised by this complaint, UMTA 
believes that it is appropriate to address a subsidiary matter, 
namely Eagle's request that its affiliate, Carol Coaches, be added 
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as a complainant. Eagle states that Carol Coaches has assumed 
operation, under proper authority, of several of Eagle's routes, 
including the Staten Island to Manhattan through New Jersey 
route. Since carol Coaches is a private operator entitled to the 
same protections under the UMT Act as Eagle, and since it is now 
performing the services on which this complaint is based, UMTA 
feels that its participation in this proceeding will not change or 
affect the issues raised. UMTA therefore accedes to Eagle's 
request that Carol Coaches be added as a complainant. 

Having dispensed with this question, we will now proceed to 
examine the three main issues raised in this complaint, and which 
are as follows: 

1) Whether the NYCTA was required to obtain ICC approval prior to 
implementation of its new express service 

In its complaint, Eagle claims that since the NYCTA's planned 
Staten Island to Manhattan via New Jersey service is interstate, 
the NYCTA should have obtained prior authorization from the ICC. 
Eagle contends that since the NYCTA failed to obtain ICC 
authorization, its provision of the service is unlawful. Eagle 
states that it has filed a formal complaint with the ICC, and that 
the matter is now pending. 

The NYCTA refutes Eagle's assertion that its new express service 
is subject to the jurisdiction of the ICC. It states that the 
service in question is exempted from the jurisdiction of the ICC 
by reason of the commercial zone exemption specified at 49 usc 
Section 1052(b) -i.e., authorizations received from the New York 
City Board of Estimate's and the New Jersey Department of 
Transportation lawfully enable the Authority to engage in the 
intrastate transportation of passengers over the length of the 
interstate routes involved. 

Whatever the merits of these respective positions, UMTA feels that 
it has no authority to determine the jurisdiction of another body. 
Such a determination by UMTA is especially inappropriate in this 
case, where the matter has been formally raised before the ICC, 
which is expected to issue a decision on it. UMTA therefore 
declines to make a determination on the question. 

UMTA's failure to decide the jurisdictional issue will have no 
effect on its funding of the NYCTA's mass transit projects. Under 
·section; 3 (a) (2) (A) (i) of the UMT Act, the Secretary may not make a 
grant unless the Secretary determines that the applicant has or 
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will have the legal capacity to carry out the proposed project.(2) 
This determination is b.ased on assurances submitted by the 
applicant. In this case, the NYCTA has submitted evidence that it 
has obtained authorization from the New York City Board of 
Estimate, and has made assurances to UMTA that such authorization 
is valid. Therefore, unless an adverse finding is made by the 
ICC, UMTA must rely on the NYCTA's assurances that it has the 
requisite legal capacity to carry out the UMTA-funded projects. 
See Durango Transportation, Inc. v. City of Durango, Colorado, at 
page 7, C0-09/85-01 (February 24, 1987). 

2) Whether the NYCTA's new ernress service constitutes "new or 
restructured service," reguirng involvement of the private sector 

Eagle's complaint alleges that in proposing to operate express bus 
service from Staten Island to Manhattan via New Jersey without 
consulting private operators, the NYCTA is in violation of the 
provisions of the UMT Act and UMTA's policy requiring maximum 
participation of the private sector. 

UMTA's circular 7005.1, "Documentation of Private Enterprise 
Participation Required for Sections 3 and 9 Programs," (December 
5, 1986), provides guidance with respect to private sector 
involvement, and defines the type of "new or restructured 
service" which triggers such involvement.(3) The Circular states 
that "new or restructured service" may include any of the 
following: 

establishment of a new mass transportation service1 addition 
of a new route or routes to a grantee's mass transportation 
system; a significant increase or decrease in service on an 
existing route in a grantee's mass transportation system1 a 
significant relaignment of an existing route in a grantee's 
mass transportation system; 

(2) This authority has been delegated to the Administrator of UMTA 
in 49 CFR sections 1.45 and 1.51. 

(3) While Circular 7005.1 was not in effect at the time that the 
new service was proposed by NYCTA, involvement of the private 
sector has been a longstanding policy of UMTA, and is required by 
sections 3(e) and 8(e) of the UMT Act. Moreover, UMTA's notice of 
policy, "Private Enterprise Participation in the Urban Mass 
Transportation Programs," 49 FR 41310 (October 22, 1984)·stated 
that " ••• when new service needs are developed, or services 
significantly restructured, consideration should be given to 
whether private carriers could provide such service." The 
guidelines for determining what constitutes new or restructured 
service, and the private sector consultation process grantees must 
follow, have simply been definitized in Circular 7005.1. Since 
the Circular sets the standards currently in effect, these 
standards are the ones against which the NYCTA's compliance with 
UMTA's private sector policy should be measured. 
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The NYCTA's proposed new bus service involves, if not the 
establishment of new routes, at least a significant realignment of 
an existing route. While in its letter of November 7, 1985, to 
the New York City Board of Estimate, the NYCTA describes its 
proposed express service as "the establishment of four new omnibus 
routes," it states in its response to Eagle's complaint that the 
bus lines in question have simply been rerouted through New Jersey 
in an effort to provide faster service. 

Whatever the intent of the NYCTA in proposing the new service, it 
is clear from a comparison of the proposed routes with a general 
map of the area, that the proposed bus lines would operate along 
very different corridors from the existing ones. Even though the 
destination points of the new routes are apparently the same as 
those of the NYCTA's existing routes, and even though the express 
buses would operate non-stop through most of the revised portion 
of the routes, the fact that they enter Manhattan at different 
points necessarily means that at least some of their stops and 
pick ups would be different. The NYCTA concedes as much when, in 
describing its new BJ xl7 route, it states that these trips no 
longer stop below 34th Street, since "(e)ntering Manhattan 
directly into the Midtown area from the Lincoln Tunnel made 
service between Worth Street and 34th Street impossible." This 
type of significantly altered service clearly constitutes "new or 
restructured service" as contemplated by UMTA Circular 7005.1. 

It should be noted, however, that the NYCTA did not implement all 
of its proposed express service. Instead of full service on four 
routes, the NYCTA instituted partial service on only one route, 
the xl7. Thus, only four of the xl7 1 s nine daily trips follow the 
new express routing. Because of the modest level of the service 
change involved, UMTA will not require compliance with the private 
sector policy with respect to the service as implemented. 
However, since the express routes as proposed, both in terms of 
scope and in terms of the degree of alteration involved, 
constitute "new or restructured service," UMTA will examine 
whether the NYCTA's compliance with the private sector guidelines 
was adequate with respect to them. 

3) Whether the NYCTA provided sufficient consideration for the 
private sector in proposing its new express bus service 

Eagle contends that the NYCTA's planning and programming process 
has not provided for the maximum feasible participation of private 
transportation providers, consistent with the UMT Act and its 
implementing policy. It states that in planning the new service, 
the NYCTA failed to establish local procedures for involvement of 
the private sector or for a fair resolution of disputes. 
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The NYCTA, on the other hand, argues that an adequate forum for 
private operators was provided by the New York City Board of 
Estimate hearing on the new service. The NYCTA maintains that 
Eagle could have attended the hearing and voiced its opposition to 
the new service proposal. 

UMTA's 1984 private enterprise policy notice, 49 FR 41310, which 
was in effect at the time of the NYCTA's proposed-service plan, 
stated that: 

It is UMTA's policy that a fair appraisal of private 
sector views and capabilities be assured by affording 
private sector providers an early opportunity to par
ticipate in the development of projects that involve 
new or restructured mass transit services. Private 
providers should be given an opportunity to present 
their views concerning the development of local trans
portation plans and programs and to offer their own 
service proposals for consideration. 

Circular 7005.1 sets out the minimum elements an UMTA grantee's 
private sector consultation process must contain. These include: 

a) Notice to and early consultation with private providers 
in plans involving new or restructured service as well 
as the periodic re-examination of existing service 

b) Periodic examination, at least every three years, of 
each route to determine if it could be more efficiently 
operated by a private enterprise. 

c) Description of how new and restructured services will be 
evaluated to determine if they could be more effectively 
provided by a private sector operation pursuant to a 
competitive bid process. 

d) The use of costs as a factor in the private/public 
decision. 

e) A dispute resolution process which affords all 
interested parties an opportunity to object to the 
initial decision. 

UMTA believes that the possibility for a private operator to 
appear at a hearing convened by a body empowered to authorize a 
new service plan, does not meet the criteria set forth above. 
There is no evidence that the hearing provided any effective 
consultation with private operators, or that any of the 

258 



11 

competitive bid or cost factors required by UMTA were considered. 
Moreover, the hearing was held and organized by a third party 
pursuant to its own mandate and procedures, and not by the grantee 
specifically in keeping with UMTA's private sector guidelines. As 
such, the Board of Estimate hearing cannot be considered an 
adequate substitute for the type of local consultation process 
described in UMTA's 1984 policy statement and in Circular 7005.1. 

CONCLUSION 

After a thorough investigation, UMTA concludes that the NYCTA· 
failed to provide adequate consideration for the private sector in 
its proposal to institute four new express bus routes between 
Staten Island and Manhattan via New Jersey. UMTA finds that the 
service plan proposed by the NYCTA constitutes new or restructured 
service as contemplated by UMTA's 1984 policy notice and by UMTA 
Circular 7005.1. UMTA notes, however, that in September 1987, the 
Metropolitan Transit Authority, the NYCTA's parent organization, 
did submit to UMTA a private sector policy which essentially 
conforms to the requirements of Circular 7005.1. Since this 
policy was not in effect at the time the NYCTA established the 
service in question, the NYCTA violated UMTA's private sector 
policy by failing to adequately involve the private sector in its 
planning and provision of the service. Given, however, the modest 
scope of the service instituted and therefore the de minimis 
nature of the NYCTA's violation, UMTA will not require the NYCTA 
to follow a private sector consultation process with respect to 
this service. The NYCTA should nonetheless follow the guidelines 
of its own private sector policy in any future plans to establish 
new or restructured service. 

(Date) r I 

~.a.~u .... ~ 
Theodore A. MUller (Date) 
Acting Chief Counsel 

259 



U.S. Deportment 
of Transportation 

Urban Mass 
Transportation 
Administration 

Kenneth R. LaRue 
Manager, Transit Planning 
Department of Transportation 
200 N.E. 21st Street 
Oklahoma City, Ok 73105-3204 

Dear Mr. LaRue: 

Midwestern Area Office 6301 Rock Hill Road 
Suite 100 
Kansas City, Missouri 64131 

Re: Charter Service 

As promised during our recent meeting, here are the copies of 
sample notices and agreements used in the exception processes 
under the Charter Service Regulation. · 

Attachment 1 illustrates the notice seeking willing and able 
private operators. This notice is the key process in operating 
charter services under the first exception set forth in the 
regulations. It is also an important step in the procedures 
required to operate charter under the fourth and the seventh 
exceptions (the "hardship" and the formal agreement exceptions). 
The exception requires that a notice seeking willing and able 
operators must be publish annually and that a copy. of each notice 
must be sent to the private operators' national associations. 
Instructions and addresses are set forth in the regulation at 
Section 604.11. 

Attachment 2 is a sample lease agreement under which an UMTA 
grantee may lease equipment to a private charter operator under 
the second exception set forth in the regulations. Under the 
terms and conditions of UMTA grant agreements, UMTA.must approve 
l~ases of UMTA-funded equipment. To facilitate the approval 
process for these short term leases, each region has implemented 
its own expedited process. Accordingly, I would suggest that you 
contact Region VI for further guidance on their process. 

Attachment 3 is a copy of a formal agreement which was executed 
between an UMTA grantee and the private operators which were 
determined willing and able in response to the grantee's public 
notice. The formal agreement exception is set.forth as exception 
seven in the regulation. It is important to note that the formal 
agreement process requires the grantee to give public notice of 
its intent and desire to enter into an agreement with the private 
operators. It may do this in its annual public notice or the 
grantee can do a three step process: 1) issue a public notice to 
determine the willing and able private operators (See, Attachment 
1): 2) negotiate an agreement which includes each and every 
private operator determined to be willing and able; and, 3) 
publish notice of the proposed agreement. 
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As I indicated to you at our meeting, we do not have a copy in our 
office of documentation relating to exception four, the "hardship .. 
exception. Basically, the process is threefold: 1) publish a 
notice to determine all willing and able private operators (See, 
Attachment 1) ~ 2) give all willing and able operators written 
notice that the grantee is going to petition UMTA for a "hardship 11 

exception (The letter should explain why the grantee is seeking 
the exception and advise the private operators that they have at 
least 30 days to comment.)~ and, 3) send a written request for a 
"hardship" exception to the agency's Chief Counsel, submitting 
copies of the notice and the private operators comments along with 
the request. This is not· expected to be a trip-by-trip process. 
Rather, the regulation permits the Chief Counsel to grant 
exceptions for a time period deemed appropriate, up to 12 months. 

To operate charter services under exceptions five and six of the 
regulation requires neither a notice process nor a negotiated 
agreement. I believe we did clarify this point during our 
discussion. It does, however, require the grantee to obtain a 
signed certification for each charter trip from the agency 
contracting for the service. The language of each certification 
is set forth in the regulation, as amended in December of 1988. 
In exceptions five and six, there are a total of four different 
certifications to choose from depending upon the circumstances of 
the contracting agency and the passengers taking the trip. The 
variable features of each of the certifications can be summarized 
as follows: 5(i) targets trips for handicapped; 5(ii) targets 
trips for agencies receiving funds from the u.s. Department of 
Health and Human Services; 5(iii) is for trips for state certified 
agencies: and, 6 is for non-urbanized areas only and targets trips 
for the elderly. 

As we discussed, I fully support your emphasizing to your transit 
operators the importance of reviewing the regulation, including 
the published amendment, before proceeding with any of the 
exception processes. The preambles to the regulation and the 
amendment also provide helpful information concerning the 
exception processes. The processes are not difficult but must be 
followed carefully to assure compliance with the regulation and 
the protection of the interests of private operators. 

Please feel free to contact me at (816-926-5053) or your Region VI 
Office should you have any questions. Thank you again for the 
warm welcome I received from you, your staff and all the 
conference participants. I truly enjoyed my visit to Oklahoma. 

J:/~~~ 
Jeanmarie Homan 
Regional Counsel, Region VII 

Attachments 
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PUBLIC NOTICE 
PROVISION OF CHARTER TRANSIT SERVICES 

CITY OF CEDAR RAPIDS, IOWA 

ATTACHMENT I 

The C1ty of Cedar Rapids, Iowa proposes to provide the following charter 
services by the Cedar Rapids Bus Department, 427 8th Street N.W., Cedar 
Rapids, Iowa, 52405: 

1. Bus transportation for elderly citizens to congregate meals and social 
events, Monday - Friday year-round, late morning and early afternoon, 
in Cedar Rapids: . 

2. Bus transportation for developmentally disabled citizens of Cedar 
Rapids and Marton to special schooling, Monday - Friday during June, 
July, and August, 8:00 - 10:00 AM and 3:00 - 5:00 PM, in Cedar Rapids, 
Marion; 

3. Bus transportati n for 1 ow 1 ncome children from the Jane Boyde 
Community Center to various holiday, social, and nutr.it1onal events, 
days varied, usually late AM and early PM, 1n Cedar Rapids and Marion. 

Any private operator des1r1ng to provide th1s service must demonstrate 
w1111ngness and ability in writtng within 30 days of publication of this 
notice 1n the Cedar Rapids Gazette. Such evidence shall be forwarded to the 

following: 

City of Cedar Rapids Bus Department 
427 8th Street N.W. · 
Cedar Rapids, Iowa 52405 
Attent1on:·W111iam Hoekstra, Transit Director 
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Evidence necessary to demonstrate willingness and ability of the operator to 

provide service includes only the following: 

1. A statement that the private operator has the desire and the physical 
capability to actually provide the category of revenue vehicle 

specified above (bus), and 

2. A copy of documents showing that the private operator has the 
requisite legal authority to provide the proposed service, and that 1t 

meets all necessary safety certification, licensing, and other legal 

requirements to provide the proposed service. 

The recipient (Cedar Rapids Bus Department) will review only the evidence 

submitted prior to the deadline and w111 complete said review within 30 days 

of the deadline. Any private operators proposing service in accord with this 

notice will be notified of the results of said review within 60 days of the 

deadline. 

The City of Cedar Rapids will not provide any charter service using equipment 
or facilities funded under the Urban Mass Transportation Act of 1964, as 
amended, 49 USC 1601 et sequence, to the extent that there is at least one 
willing and able private charter operator, unless one or more exceptions 

listed in 49 CFR Section 604.9(b) applies. 

Dated this ________ ,, 1988. 

lyle Hanson 

City Clerk 

Published in the Cedar Rapids Gazette __________ ,1988. 
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STANDARD FORM AGREEMENT 
BETWEEN 

THE TRANSIT AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF C~AHA 
dba METRO AREA TRANSIT 

AND A PRIVATE CHARTER OPERATOR 
FOR THE PROVISION OF CHARTER EQUIPMENT 

THIS AGREEMENT is entered into on the day of 
198 , between the Transit Authority of the City of Omaha, d..-b-a""t"M:-e-:-tr-o--::A-r-ea--
Transit, hereinafter referred to as "MAT", and 
hereinafter referred to as "Private Charter Ope_r_a.,..to_r..,',_.----------

WHEREAS, Private Charter Operator has been requested to provide charter 
service that exceeds its capacity; and 

WHEREAS, MAT is agreeable to providing Private Charter Operator·bus 
equipment and operator(s) from the MAT fleet for use as charter equipment on 
the terms and conditions as hereinafter specified. 

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual covenants and conditions 
contained herein, the parties do agree as follows: 

1. Provision of E ui ment; Bus 0 erators. MAT agrees to provide to 
Private Charter Operator from time to time subject to availability) equipment · 
from the MAT fleet for use as charter equipment, along with qualified operator(s), 
to satisfy the needs of the charter. All requests for charter equipment shall 
be made in writing by a duly authorized representative of the private operator. 
Equipment will be provided in good operating condition and shall be cleaned prior 
to providing the same for Private Charter Operator. Said equipment is being pro
vided to Private Charter Operator for such periods as may be requested on the 
charter order form, it being understood that, regardless of the length of time of 
usage, Private Charter Operator shall be charged at a minimum of four (4) hours 
usage for each piece of equipment provided. 

2. Payment to MAT. Private \;harter Operator shall pay the rates currently 
approved by the MAT Board of Directors \see Attachment "A") for charter service 
for each bus hour operated from the time the charter leaves the garage, until the 
charter returns, with a four (4} hour mini!llum as a:toresaid. Private Charter Operator 
shall make payment· in Full within th)rly (30) days after receipt of a billing statemen 
from MAT. Payment shall be made to Metrn.Ar~a Transit, 2222 Cuming Street, Omaha, 
Nebraska 68102. In the event that the amount provided in the statement is not paid 
within thirty (30) days from the date of billing\ the unpaid balance shall bear 
interest at the rate of twelve percent (12%) per annum until the same is paid in full. 
No additional charter orders will be hcnored during such time as payments to MAT are 
not current. 

~- Restrictions. The following restrictions shall apply in the use 
of the equ1pment provided hereunder: 
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(a) No charter shall be operated to any point more than five (5) 
miles outside of the corporate limits of the City of Omaha. 

(b) At no time shall alcoholic liquors be consumed or open 
containers of alcoholic liquor be permitted on or in the equipment at any time 
that the same is being operated or is located upon any street, highway, or 
alley. 

(c) No charter will be operated which conflicts in any way with 
UMTA Regulation 49 CFR, Part 604 to which MAT is obligated. 

(d) This contract in no way shall be construed as an obligation 
on the part of MAT to operate the service requested by the Private Operator. 
MAT shall retain sole right of refusal of service requested. 

(e) No member of or delegate to the Congress of the United States 
shall be admitted to any share or part of this contract or to any benefit arising 
therefrom. 

No member, officer, or employee of the Authority or a local 
public body, during his tenure, or for one year thereafter, shall have any interest, 
direct or indirect, in this contract or the proceeds thereof. 

4. Hold Harmless. Private Charter Operator agrees to save and hold 
MAT harmless from any and all claims, demands, liabilities, or suits of any 
nature whatsoever, arising out of, because of, or due to any acts on the part 
of the Private Charter Operator, its agents or employees, .which result in bodily 
injury or property damage to riders, personnel of the Private Charter Operator, 
or any other persons. 

5. Equal Em~loyment Op~ortunitt. In connection with the chartering 
of equipment prov1dedereunder,r1vateharter Operator agrees that it shall 
not discriminate against any employee or applicant for employment because of 
race, color, religion, sex, disability, national origin, or marital status. In 
the employment of persons, Private Charter Operator shall comply with any and 
all applicable federal equal employment opportunity provisions as required by 
the Urban Mass Transportation Act and regulatons promulgated thereunder. 

6. Amendment. This Agreement may be amended only by written 
amendment signed by all parties hereto. 

7. Term and Termination. This Agreement shall remain in full force 
and effect from the date of execution by all parties hereto until terminated by 
either party giving to the other party no less than thirty {30) days written 
notice of termination. 

-2-
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have executed this Agreement on.the 
day and year first written above. 

ATTEST: 

PRIVATE PROVIDER 

WITNESS 

Title 
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THE TRANSIT AUTHORITY 
OF THE CITY OF OMAHA 

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR 

WITNESS 

Title 
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CHARTER AGREEMENT 
GREENVILLE TRANSit AUTHORITY 

ATTACHMENT III 

Greenville Transit Authority (GIA) proposes the following charter 
agreement for the period January 1, 1988 through June 30, 1988, at which time 
these items or a new proposal based on existing conditions will be published. 

1. Greenville Transit Authority will provide charter service 
with trolleys for the following: 

A. Weddings; 
B. City and County government or agencies thereof; and 
C. College athletic teams. 

2. Charter service shall be limited to Greenville County and 
shall not exceed three (3) hours of use. 

3. Charter rates shall be at a competitive rate with local 
private operators. 

4. GTA will subcontract to/with a private operator, who, by 
the conditions stipulated in the UMTA charter r'egulations 
does not have sufficient capacity to meet a charter 
request or is in need of handicapped equipped vehicles to 
meet a charter request. The rate for these subcontracts 
will be the same as in item 3 above. Such subcontracts 
shall be limited to off-peak periods of GTA service, 
within the state of South Carolina, insured by the 
private operator and subject to equipment availability. 

5. Special events wherein passengers pay a fare for 
transportation and the service is open to the.~ublic is 
not considered charter as may be operated by GTA or other 
providers. 

Date: December 11, 1987 
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TO: All Concerned 

The undersigned agrees to the provisions of the GTA Charter Agreement 
dated December 11, 1987, effective for the period .January 1, 1988 through 
.June 30, 1988. 

Pridted- or Typed Name 

~()~4~ 
Company Name · 

Datj / 
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u.s. Department 
of Transportation 

Region Ill 

fiLE 
841 Chestnut Street 
Suite 714 
Philadelphia, PA 19107 

Urban Mass 
Transportation 
Administration \tS \ 0 1988 

RE: Leasing of UMTA-funded facilities and equipment 
for charter operations by private providers 

Dear Grantee: 

As you know, Section 109 (Encumbrance of Project Property) of Part 
II (Terms and Conditions) of UMTA's standard Urban Mass 
Transportation Agreement prohibits a grantee from leasing UMTA-. 
funded facilities and equipment for any purpose without prior 
written concurrence from UMTA. 

However, as you may also be aware, UMTA's charter regulations 
specifically permit UMTA grantees to lease UMTA-funded facilities 
and equipment for charter operations in instances wh,~re a private 
operator has been asked to provide charter service that exceeds 
its capacity, or where the private operator is itself unable to 
provide equipment accessible to elderly and handicapped persons. 
Se.e, 49 C.P.R. subsection 604.9(b) (2) 

A number of grantees have asked whether pursuant to Section 109 
of the Grant Agreement they are still-required to seek UMTA'S 
written concurrence when they want to lease UMTA-funded facilities 
and equipment for charter purposes in accordance with UMTA's 
charter service regulation. They are not. Grantees should be 
mindful, however, that this and all other uses of UMTA~funded 
facilities and equipment are governed specifically by Section 108 
(Use of Project Facilities or Equipment) of Part II of the 
standard Urban Mass Transportation Agreement, the property 
management standards set forth in OMB Circular A-102, Attachment N 
and OMB Circular A-110, Attachment N, as appropriate; and UMTA 
circular 4220.1A (Third Party Contracting Guidelines). 

UMTA recommends, further, that in each and every instance where a 
grantee wishes to lease UMTA-funded facilities and equipment to a 
private charter operator for use in accordance with UMTA's charter 
service regulation, the grantee execute a written lease agreement 
with the private operator that includes the following provisions: 

269 



Page 2 

Federal interest in facilities and equipment. ·· 
This lease agreement provides for the use of mass 
transportation facilities and equipment that have 
been financed in part by the Urban Mass 
Transportation Administration (UMTA). The lessor 
(UMTA grantee) and lessee (private charter 
operator) warrant that the use of these UMTA
funded facilities and equipment will comply with 
the UMTA charter service rule at 49 c.F.R. Part 
604. The use of these UMTA-funded facilities and 
equipment is governed by the lessor's Urban Mass 
Transportation Agreement with UMTA; by UMTA. 
Circular 4220.1A; and by the Office of Management 
and Budget Circulars A-102, Attachment N, ahd/or 
A-110, Attachment N. 

Lessor's Right to Terminate. Upon notice to the 
lessee, the lessor may suspend or terminate this 
lease agreement for cause or convenience. Such 
suspension or termination is effective immediately 
upon·notice. 

Prohibition on Conflicts of Interest. The 
lessor and lessee warrant that no employee, 
officer, or agent of the lessor, nor any partner 
of such a person, .. nor any member of the immediate 
family of such a person, nor any organization 
which employs, or is about to employ, such a 
person, has a financial or other interest in the 
lessee or will otherwise benefit from the 
execution or performance of this lease agreement. 

In addition to the provisions above, UMTA suggests that the 
written lease agreement between the grantee and th.e private 
charter operator include such legal and commercial clauses as are 
desirable from the grantee's vantage and appropriate under the 
state law that governs the lease agreement. 

Should you have any questions about these suggested provisions, 
please feel free to contact my office. Please note, also, that in 
the November 3, 1987 Federal Register notice we previously 
provided you, UMTA has answered a number of recurring questions 
from grantees regarding UMTA's position on permissible leasing of 
UMTA-funded facilities and equipment for charter service. 
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Finally, you are reminded that UMTA's advance written concurrence 
is needed in all other (non-charter related) instances where 
leasing. or other encumbrance·· of federally-funded property is 
contemplated. 

Sincerely, 

Peter N. Stowell 
Regional Administrator 
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DECISION 

WASHINGTON MOTOR COACH ASSOCIA~ION, .} 
· Complainant . } . 

} 
v. } 

} 
MUNICIPALITY OF METROPOLITAN SEATTLE, } 

Respondent } 

SUMMARY 

WA-091,87-01 

The Washington Mot·or Coach Association, (WMCA) (1) ~iled a. 
complaint ·.with .the Uz:ban Mass Transportation Administration 
('tJ11TA) on September 21, 1987, alleging tliat the Municipality of 
Metropolitan Seattle (METRO) was providing charter service in 
violation of the UMTA charter regulation, 49 CFR Part 604. The 
service speqi:fically complained o.f ~as METRO's "park and ride" 
service to the University of Washington (the University) stadium 
during·the f9otball season. After a thorough investigatlcn, UMTA 
finds that the service was mass transportation, and .therefore not 
in violation of the charter service regulation. How~ver, .METRO 
initiated this service without sufficient consideration-and 
involvement of the private sector, as requ1red by Sections 3(e) 
and 8(e) of.the.Urban Mass T~ansportati~n Act of 1964, as ~mended 
(t!MT Act), and the imp;Lementing policy guidelines., These . 
guidelines are set forth in UMTA's policy statem~nt, "Private 

.Enterprise Participation in the Urban Mass Transportation . 
Program," ·49 Fed. Reg. 41310, (October ~.2, 1984), and· are further. 
de.fined in UMTA Circular 7005.1, "Documentation of Private . · 

·Enterprise Participation Required for Sectibns 3 and 9 PJ::ograins," 
(December 5, 1986). UMTA orders METRO to·follow these guidelines 
prior to recommencing such service. 

COMPLAINT. 

on September 21, 1987, WMCA filed this complaint. with uMTA. T.he! 
complaint alleges that: METRO is engaging in service, which is in 

·yiolation of UMTA's charter rules. The complaint ~pecifically 
focuses on charter service rendered by ME';I'RO for t~e university, 
and states that METRO began this service without determining if· 
there ·were willing and able private operatorS!, a.s ;'required· by · 
49 CFR 604.11.(2) WMCA'seeks relief·from tnis an~ any other 
il:legal · charter service in -which METRO might be e,ngaged. 

(1) wMCA describes l.tselt as "an assocl.ation of motor passenger 
carriers whose members operate l;[lore.than 90% of the privately 
owned- inte.rci ty charter coaches dC?miciled in the. state.". 

(2) This section requires UMTA.gr'ant7es de~iring to pro~ide dire.ct 
charter service, to underta;ke a pub1l.c notl.ce.process al.med. at 
dete:t;1t1ining if there .are willing at;d able p:r;~vate operators •. If 
there are such will·ing and able prl.vate provl.ders, grantees may 
perform charter serv:ice only under one of the exceptions to the 
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WMCA: states that the regUlation applles to charter service, as· 
defined in. Section 604.5(e). (3) WMCA points out .that UMTA has 
acknowledged-in the preambl,.e to th~ regulation-that this . 
de·fin'itio~ is not the ·most' comprehensive possil:lle,· and. ha.s .in .fact· 
s~ated that tl;lere remain "many difficulties in determining in a 
g1ven case· wh1ch category the service fits into most· . · ·.. . ·. 
appropriate!¥··" (52 Fed. Reg. 11919) :Nonetheless, WMCA notes,· 
UMTA 1;as .rell:ed ~m years of,Interst~te.comme::ce Commission (ICC) 
decis1ons.in -arr1ving at th1s defin1tion, wh1ch can therefore 
serve· as. guidance. · Moreover, WMCA ·expila,ins, uMTA has · · 
d,.i~timjuished cha;rter service from mass transit, which is ..... 
ch~racterized as·: 1).be~n~ und~r the control ·of the grantee, .2) 
be.1ng des~g~ed .to benefit the public at large, and 3) .J,:leing open 
to the. publ1c and not. closed door. ·(52 Fed. Reg. 11920) .. WMCA 
.indic~tes. that these_ characteristics __ can.be used in a process 9f' 
elimination test to determine what is not mass transportation·and 
is therefore. charter service·.: . -Based on these guidelines, .WMCA · .. 

·maintains.· _that the service· performed by METRO for .the University 
. is charter s~rvice,. j,n violat.ion of UMTA's .charter rule. . . ' ' .. . . . 

Th'e. se:r;Vice in question is described, WMCA states, in a document· 
entitled· "University of Washington ~tadium .Expansion· Parking Plan 
·and, Transportat-ion Man(lgement.Proqram" (th~ Transportation Plan), 
pt~pared by .the University of Washington Transportation o·ffice and 
·da·ted Februacy· 2, 1986. WMCA notes that the Pl-an despribe·s a . 
''trans-it scrip"· proq.ram,. designed to encourage passengers to .. ride 
public. transportation to the stadium •. Under the program, .WMCA 
·explains, a transit. pa~s or "scrip" is provided by the University 
to each football ticket-purchaser. The scrip allows.:the rider a 
free ride to and from football games on,regular METRO service, on. 
"Husky Special" routes (which, according to WMCA,. are extra 
schedules on. four existing routes), and'on .. a park and ride 
servi.ce~ I·t is the· park· and ride· service that is the subje.ct .of 
·this complaint. · · · · · 

Using the process of e_limination t_est, WMCA. maintains that. -the 
park arid :ride.service lacks. the first essential. element·of _mass 
transit since· it is under the control o_f a party ot~er than the 
recipient. First,· WMCA states, the university'designates.the_· 
number of buses that will be· needed. Second~ WMCA_contencis, the 
University has established the ·locations at wl;lich passengers will 
be picked up, as.well as a.p~imary and secondary route between 
each park and ride 'lot and the· stadium. Third, WMCA notes1 ... the 
university prov,ides scrip. for paym~nt and pays-to have tl;le ~crip 
printed. According to WMCA, .it is clear from this descr1pt1on 
that·t~e University and not METRO controls the service. 

(3): Sec_tion .604.5(e) defines "charter serv.ice" as: . . 
"Transportation using buses or vans ••• of a group of persons w1;o 
pursuant to acommon purpose, under.a single contract~ at a f1xed 
charge ••• , have acquired the exclus1ve use of the veh1cle.~.under 
an itinerary ••• specified in advance ...... 
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Again, applying the process of elimination test,. wMCA states tha.t· 
the "park and ride" service is charter and not mass transit, since 
it. is designed to. benefit a specific group, and not the public at 
large. This groupt WMCA argues, is composed of football ticket · 
holders, since only they are provided with scrip,· and only theY· 
are permitted ·to board the buses. A.ccording to WMCA, there are no 

. other members.of the public who might benefit. 

WMCA also contf!nds .that the serVice f~i'ls· to.meet the mass transit 
criterion of bei.ng "open do<?r," sinc.e, though theoretically, 
someone other than a football_ticket holder.could ride the bus, 
this· is a logical impossibility~ WMCA bases this assertion orL the 
"virtual· certainty that those using this park and ride 
transportation·will be travelling to· the football game," since 
the·re are no ·intermediate p'oi~t·s between the park and ride lots 
and the stadium. · 

Consequently I WM~ argues·, the park and ride service conforms to 
the definition .of charter service set forth in. section 604.5(e), 
since it is provi~ed to a specific group of persons (football game 
attendees), under a single contract (with the Uniyersity), at a 
fixed charge for the exclusive use of the vehicle und·er an 
itinerary set in advance (by the University). ·.Moreover, WMCA 
contends, the Plan shows that the service is under the control of 
the Unive~sity. · ,.- · ·· · · 

For the reasons set forth above, WMCA asks that UMTA find METRO in 
violation of the ··charter regulation in the provision of its · 
park.and ride service, direct METRO to cease and desist f~om such 
activities, ·and direct METRO in the 1future to · submit service 
propqsals to uMTA in advance of their operation. 

In support Of its complaint, WMCA attac~es e~cerpts from the 
Transportation Plan, copies of correspondence between METRO and a 
WMCA member concerni~g provision of·the service, and a copy of 
MET~O's private service proposal analysis.-

RESPONSE 

UMTA sent· a copy ·of the complaint t·o ·METRo· on October 19, 1987, 
and provided it witll 30 days from receipt to respond. METRO's 
response is dated November 20, 1987. 

· In its response, . MET:RO states that it is a municipal corporation 
organized un~er ·washington state law. · METRO expl~ins that. its . 
statutory funct.ion includes the. transportation of fare-pay1:ng 
passengers, "by means other than by .chartered bus." 
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METRO explains that it has traditionally offered tr~nsportation to 
the University stadium on game days. It claims that this servlce 
is open door, since nothing prevents members-of the general public 
from boarding,· stopping at stops·along the way,. and paying a · 
regular fare· ·rather than transit scrip_. . METRO maintains .that 
there ls still _much priv·ate_.charter service to the university 
football games, and these private charters have not be·en · 
supplanted'by METRO service. · 

METRO states ·that in 1983, in-anticipation of an expansion of the 
football stadium .and other University facilities, the city of 
Seattle and the University executed an agreement to create a 
~·workable parking P.lan and traff;c management program for the 
facility." .The TraJ:lsportation Plan wa~ therefore developed and 
adopted. by the Seattle' City Council. It·was pursuant to the 
Transportation Plan, METRO ·explains, that the transit scrip . 
prpgram was instituted· in 198_6·. Under ~his program, 'METRO states, 
theUniversity mails scrip along.with game tickets .for use on ... 
regular. transit, Husky Special service, ·and· park and ride· service. 
METRO says that the University reimburses METRO for each · · 
individual piece of scrip collected •. Each person pays 
individually on boarding,. METRO· states,· and riders who have no 
scrip pay the r_egU.lar fare. 

METRO exp.lains that it. was _a!'sC; in .1986 and purs~ant to the 
Transportatio~ Plan that the park and· ride service to the 
University stadi\.un began. .The service,· METRO sta:tes, was a 
response to increased ridership due to an expansion of the stadium 
capacity from 58,.500 to 12,.200 :seats. METRO- remarks that use of 
the serv-ice.has.exceeded expectations: approximately 7,077 riders 
use the sery;ce each ga;me day, and . Edghty:-two · buses . and. drivers, 
:el~ven ·supervisors,. and nine aQ.ministrative and· support personnel 
a,re· required :to operate it. . 

. . 

·METRO maintains that the park and. ride service does not meet 
UMTA's definition of charter--since it lacks two key elements: 
1). "a. single cont.ract for a fixed. charge ••• for· the ·vehicle or 
service," ,and 2) "exclusive use of the vehicle.·~ 

. . . . 

As to ·the first element, METRO states that the· Transportation Plan 
· is not a contract between the University and METRO, but merely a . 
blueprint ot the ~niversity•s response to·the .city of seattle's . 
rec:;iuirement of.a "workable.transportation plan for the University 
stadium." METRO says that ·the only a+g\iably.applicable contract 
between METROand the University is. an "lnterlocal cooperation 
.Agreement. " · Ho~ever, . METRO sta.t_es, the terms of this Agreement 

·'do not establish a "sing1e·contract for a fixed charge," but 
·rather an arrangement whereby.· the University reimburses METRO for 
individual .fares. · 
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METRO argues that its park and ride service also lacks the element · 
of exclusivity. METRO refutes wMCA's conte-ntion that it is a 
"logica~ impossibilityn that someone other .than a football game . 
attendee would use the service. While most riders will n6 doubt 
be heading for ~he game,· ~TRO says, this is not necessarily: 'the 
case for all, s~nce the Un1versity ~ospitall shopping complex, and 
other facilities are in the vicinity. In short, METRO 1qaintains, 
the service is clearly open door, a_nd therefore not charter. _· 

. . . . 

Moreover., METRO claims, UMTA' s own interp·retation of· the charter · 
regulation supports METRO in this dispute. METRO cites UMTA's 
recently issued "Charter Service Questions and Answer~," in which 
"service to regularly scheduled but relatively infrequent . · 
events ••• that is open door, with fares collected'from individuals" 
'is held to. be mass. transportation and not· charter. (See, Q&A · 27c, 
52 Fed. Reg. 44248-44255, November 3, 1987). 

Furthermore, METRO maintains, evert if the park and ride service 
were charter service, there -is no private carrier able to 
adequately provide. it. ME'l'RO cit:es 49 CFR 604·. S.(p), whibh states 
that· a private carrier is willing and able to provide charter 
service if it has the desire and the "physical capability of· . 

_providing the categories-of revenue vehicles requested.". While 
METRO acknowledges that there are private operators "willing" to ·· 
provide th·~ par~ arid ride service, it statet;~ that none is ''able" 
to.do.so. METRO explains that the park and ride service required 
the use of eighty-two buses each game day .in 1'987 ~ METRO. states 
·that no privat~ operator in the Seattle metropolitan area . 
possesses the vehicle capacity to provide the park ·and ride 
service, and .in order to perform it·, would. be obliged to lease 
vehicles from METRO •. ·Moreover, METRO contends, the service · 
requires not only equipment but expertise in radio communication, 
scheduling; route designation, and other types .of super-Vision and 
coordination. · According to METRO, WMCA has produced no evidence 
that any _qf its member carriers are "able" to '.provide these 
aspects of the service. ·cons·equently, METRO argu_es'l there is no 
showing that any·private carrier is "willing and able" to perform 
the service.. . v /. . 

METRO also_presents three subsidiary arguments. First, METRO 
states, UMTA's charter 'rules exceed tbe scope of ~A'S statutory 
authority, .since_ they are based in par,t on section ~(f) of. the· UMT 

·Act, which prohibits unfair com:pet'ition 'by UMTA rec1pients with 
intercity operators.· METRO claims that there is·no.statutory 

. basis for extending this prohibition to. ~ntracity. service·. This 
: being the case, METRO. argues, even if· the park _and ride service 

were charter, UMTA would·· have no authority. to prohibit it. 
, second, METRO states that there are pubiic policy reasons which 
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require tnat WMCA's complaint be dismissed. METRO states that in 
providing the park and ride ·service, .it is fulfilling its mission' 
of providing_ economical mass transportation. Since no private . · 

. carrier in the Seattl\! area has. shown _that it can provide sei:vice 
of_ similar CO$t and quality, the pub~ic interest requires that ··. 
METRO be supported in its role. Third, ME.TRO argues, the · 

· c.omplaint .. is moot!· since t~e park a11<1· rid~ service is .designed to 
operated only durl.ng football season. Since .49 CFR 604~15 set.s .a 
time frame Of 120 days for the .resolution ·Of COmplaints 1 a .. · . . 
decision could no-t be ·issued befor·e .the end df the season. 
Accordingly, · METRO· ·maintains, the complaint should be dismissed.· . . . . ~ . . 

Among the attac~ents sUb~itted by METRO wer~ copi•s of the April 
19~3 Agreement between .the_city of seattle and·the University, · 
Transportation Plan,. the In't;erlocal ~()operation Agreement; the-
1987 Park and Rfde service ·operation Plan, an_d. affidavits; by 
Michael E.·W.illl.ams, Transportation Engineer ·in t~e Univ~rsity's 
Transportation-Office, aJ1dby Rick Walsl1., Manager· of Service 
Planning and Marke.t Development for METRO.. · · 

·REBUTTAL 

METRO forwarded a _copy of METRO •.s response to WMCA on December · 2,. 
1987 I and prOVided it With 30 dayS frO~ rec:eipt t.O Submit a 

·rebuttal. WMCA~ S rebuttal is dated Oece~er 21·,· 1987· •. 

·First, WMCA r~jects METRO's argUment :that UMTA_act~d without·J~gal 
.authority in promulgating the charter regu,lation. WMCA maintains· 
that the l~gal b~sis for the rule _is adequate~y described in· the 

· preambl~, at 52 Fed. Reg. 11930.-1. ·Moreover, .WMCA states, since 
the l:1J,le was adopted foll·owinq appropriate rulemaking procedure, 
.it can only-properly be challenged before a court of competent . · 
jurisdiction,· and· not in this proceeding_. WMCA also r-efutes ·· 
METRO'.s contention th~t· public· policy.· rea~ons req\iire dismissal of 
the complaint. The' public policy,reasons to b~ consider~d in .this 
matter, WMCA-a,sserts, are those underlying tl:Le regulation, namely 
the provision of mass transit services by UMTA recipients, and the 
prote.ction of c~arter operators. . . . · .. . . •. 

second,. WMCA takes issue ~ith METRO's ·statement that ·there are·no 
willing :~nd able .private operators. Noting that METRO has. n()t . 

· undertak.e.n a public n~tice process aimed at determining i·f · th7re 
are willing and able operators, WMCA remarks "You don't know l.f 
you don • t a~k." Since METRO never requested pUblic partic.~pation, 
~CA points out~ it is a legal-_possibility for it to ·now argue . 
that there are no willing and able private operators. WMCA also 
challenges.METRO's definition of willing and able, stating that 
vehicle capacity and the-ability to sup~rVise and coordinate bus 
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movements should not be included in the ·definition. WMCA states . 
that to be found willirig and able under the charter regulation, a 
private operator need only possess at least one bus or van. 

Third, WMCA maintains that the park and ride service is charter 
service. WMCA states that the fare.s, of most. the· ride:J;s are paid 
by the University under its.transit scrip agreement with METRO, 
and persons paying·cash are a·de minimis proportion of all. 
riders. According to'WMCA, thiS demonstrates that· the service is 
not open door •. Mo;-eover, WMCA contends, the Transportation Plan 
shows ·that the University desigri~tes routes from the parking lots, 
and the pick-up points of the buses. .WMCA states that the ·service 
is thus.- not .under the cont'rol of METRO, but rather under that of· · 
the University. These ·facts show, ·WMCA states,· that the service . 
meets UMTA's definition of charter. METRO ar.gues that instead of 
Question.27c· of UMTA's "Charter Service Questions and Answers,". 
reference should be made to Question 27a, which describes service 
similar to the park a~q ride service as charter service. · 

Finally, WMCA ~tates that its complaint is not moot, since the 
servic·e will sur·ely be· run during the next football season unless 
METRO is directed to discontinue it. WMCA, moreover, maintains 
that the larger issues of what 90nstitutes charter service, the 
definition. of wiliing ·and able, and the application of the charter 
rule to services provided in Seattle, will survive the 1987 
football season. WMCA also argues· that dismiss.al would mean a re
filing of the complaint in 1988. Agairt,.given. the regulatory time 
frame, this complaint could not be dealt with on a·timely basis. 
Accordingly,.WMCA asks ~hat OMTA.entertain its complaint~ and 
provide the relief requested therein. 

DISCUSSION 

Be.fore reaching the main ise~ues · of this complaint, UMTA believes 
that it is appropriate to address the subsidiary questions raised. 
by the respondent. 

one thresbold ·matter is the issue of tnootness. Given.the.present 
capacity of the' University· stadium and the dic;:tates of the . 
Transportation Plan, UMTA considers it very lJ.kely that the 
service will pe operated again in 1988. In view of the recurring 
nature of this service, the issue of its proper characterization 
is'not moot, since it will probably arise durinq the forthcom~ng 
football season.·· UMTA therefore· finds that it is appropriate to 
.entertain the complclint at this· time. · 

Moreover, UMTA. agrees that thera' are substantial public'policy 
·grounds supporting METRO's PC?Sition that.it should be.et;couraged 
to provide mass transit serV'J.ces. However·, these polJ.cJ.es are not 
inconsistent with that ~nderlying the charter.regulation, namely 

·that.UMTA funds should be used· for mass transit purposes only, and 
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not- to compet·e unfairly· with private charter operators. METRO • s 
compliance with the, charter regulation can only assist. it in .. 
better fulfilling its mission by c};lannelling its services and . 
reso"Q~ces toward. mass transit use. ·For this·reason, dismissal· of 
the complaint on the public policy grounds advanced by METRO is · 

. unwarranted. · · · · 

UMTA also believes. that .it is appropriate to cl~rify the . 
definition of "willing and able." The respondent's comments 
indicate a serious misinterpretation of this term as it is ueu!d in 
the charter· regulation.- 49· ·cFR ·'604 .11 sets forth the procedures 
that a recipient must .. follow in determining whether·. there are .. 

·willing and able private operators. This s•ction limits the
recipient .'to two factors in making its determination: 
1)·possession of legal authority, and 2) ability to provide the 
required catego~ of vehicle. The preamble to the regulation,· at 
page 11~21, state~ that ~he definition should not include any . 

·notion of capacit;y, and that a pr.ivate operator with one .bus.- is
just as willing anq able as·. a private' operator. wit;.h 100 1:5uses~ : · 
METRO is thus incorrect in_assertinq that there are·ho willing·anc;l 
able private operators.in the.Seattle.atea, since nonepossesses 
the 82-vehicle-capac:fty or supervisory expe:rtise,needed. The 
willingness and ability· of ·private operators can only be 
determined after a recipient has.completed the·public· 
partfcipation process of 49.CFR 604.11. Moreover~ in making -its 
determination, a recipient may cons~der only the two above
mentioned factors, and no extraneous ones. 

As 'concerns the respondent's contention that·the charter . 
requlation.exceeds l.JMTA's statutory authority., uMTA believes that 
i-ts pos.itiop on tnis issue is· clearly and_comprehensively set 
forth on pages 11930-1 of the ·preamble to. the· rule.· Moreover, 

. since unde;- the terms of the· regulation, UMTA· is limited in these . 
pr~ceedings to a consideration,of the merits of the complaint, · 
this is not the proper forum tQ raise a challenge to the legality·· 
of.the regulation. · · 

Having dispensed with these. questions, we will proceed t'? an 
examination·of the main issues of this complaint, and wh1ch are as 
follows: · 

1. Whether METRO's ark and ride service ·is mass trans ortation 
or charter serv ce 

In .its compla.int, WMCA uses a process of efim~nation test t'? 
establish that the park and ride service prov1ded by METRO .. 1s · 
charter· service. This test is based on .UMTA's definition of. mass 
transportation, which is set fort~ at page 11920 of the preamble 
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to charter regulation, and which is characteri:zed·· ·as betng 
ser-Vice: 

1) . under the control of the· grantee; .. 
2) .designed to benefit the public at large; 
3) _open to the. public and·.not closed door. 

WMCA argues that since the park and ride·service does not contain 
. these three element·s, it. is not mass transportation, but rather 
charter service. · 

WMCA contends that· the first element is lacking, since the service 
:is not under the control of. METRO, but rather under that of . 
·another party,_ the .university. According to WMCA, the University 
designates the number of buses that will be used, establishes· · 
pick-up points and routes, and pays the cost of the service~ 

The matElrials submitted ~Y the respondent,_ however, fail -t;.o bear 
o~t WMCA's contentions on this point. The April 1983 Agreement 
between the. city o·f Seattle and the University outLines· the . 
transportati~:m objectives to· be. met as a result· of the· expansion 
of the University's facilities •. The Agreem-nt provides that 
"The City will.assist.the University in. meeting these objectives 
and will reduce non-University generated traffic ~nd. 
transportation volumes by implementing additional' programs. ".(4) 
The Agreement further stipulates that th~ University's role in 
this transportation scheme will be the formulation of a "Master 
Plan," to include a description of existing University facilities, 
and their ·projected expansion and use.(5). These provisions 
indicate that the ~.t of the Agreement is tha:t 'MET.RO ;·.· using 
data and information supplied by the University as guj,.del,.ines, 
should establish supplementary serv~ce to meet the needs of' 
members. of the general public travelling to t.he University. 

ME~RO's primary responsibility _for the service is confirmed ~y the 
statement of Rick Walsh, Ma.nager of service Planning and Mark,et 

·Development for METRO, that "METRO is respon.sible for determining_ 
the appropriate route for each park and·ride lot to Husky 
stadium." According.to Mr. Walsh, "METRO also determines.the 
scheduling of the buses, and .. fi~es the- ·amount .of 1are to be paid. 
by each rider." (6) Both accor~inq to the t:erms of the Agreemen-t;: . 

·.then; and to the statements of its operat~ons manager, the serv7ce 
is managed; supervised, and operated by METRO, with the ·UniversJ,.ty 
·playing mainly an informational role~ · .Accordin,qly, it m~ets the 
first mass transit criteria· of being under the control of the 
grantee. 

{4) "Agreement between the.city of 
washington," April 1983, page 15. 
(5) Id, at page 2. . 
(6) Affidavit of Rick ·walsh, p 4. 

28.0 
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Referring to t~e second element of UMTA's definition, WMCA also 
maintains that the park and ride service is charter·rather than 
mass. transit, since lt is not designed to benefit the public .at. 
large, but a particular group,. namely football' game attendees. · 
. ' . . . 

In this .c:;onnectlon, it should be pointed.out that on page·ll920 of 
the preamble to the regulation, UMTA states th~t service is. ·· 
designed·to benefit .the public at large when it serves the ·needs. 
c;>f the general public,· "and J.'lOt some special organizaticm such as 
a. private club." . +t is questionable whether football game' .· 
attendees form a well-defined and cohesive enough group to be 
considered a "special organization." Even admitting, arguendo, 
that such is the case,· it is ~lear from the above description that· 
METRO's park and ride service is not intended for the exclusive .· 
use~· of such riders, but is .available to anyone wishing to board . 
'it. As such, it can be said to benefit the p.ublic at large, in 
keeping with UMTA's second criterion of mass transportation. : . · ' , . 

This second element overlaps with UMTA' s third requirement :.for 
mass transportation, namely that the- servit:e be "open door·." WMCA 
maintains ~that·thotigh theo~etj,.cally, anyone could board the .. 
service, .C?nly football game goers aJ;e likely to do so,· s.ince· there 
are no intermediate.points between the'park and ride· lots and the 
football stad.ium. · 

METRO st~tes!. o~ th"' other hand, that ··the service is open door, 
since not only scrip holders, but also ra(.r.ilar. fare-paying 
passengers can ride it. METRO further arques tha~ many mem):)ers of 
the general public do in. fact .use the service, s~nc·e the .· 
University museum, hospital, shopping center, and other facilities· 
are located near .the terminus. 

In determining whether servic:;e . is truly open door, · UMTA looks not· 
only at the level .of riciel:'ship by the generalp$lic·as opposed.t:.o 
a particular group, but a'l'so the int~nt 'of the recipient .which . . ' 
offers it. The intent to make service open door can be discerned 
in the attempts' that a recipient has made to make.to service known 

·and availableto the public. UMTA thus takes· into consideration 
the effo:i.:ts a recipient has made to market the service. 
Generally 1 UMT.A considers that thls marketing effort. is best · 
accomplished by publishing .the service in· the grantee '.fa preprinted 
schedules. uMTA notes that METRO has fai~ed to submit copies of · 
any. such preprinted· schedules, and assu:mes.that none ~xist. 
However· UMTA;,notes that the Transportation .Plan.calls for .. active 
marketi~g of the sei:vice'tothe.public by means of promotional . 
mailings, billboard advertising, and radio an~ television public 

· servic;::e announc~ments~.(7) Assuming that METR<?.has followed 

_ (7) "University of .Washington Stadium E~ansion Parking Pl'an and 
Transportation Ma·nagement Program.,," pag.$ 9. 
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this strategy, UMTA concludes that METRO has adequately marketed 
the service during the 19.87 football season.· However, in order to 
strictly conform to. UMTA' s· requirements fo·r open door 'service., 
METRO should 1 before offering the sertice in .the future~ publish . 
. it in its preprintttd schedules. · 

Based on the f.,or~going, UMTA concludes . that METRO's . park and ~id~· 
·serv.ice to the University stadium is mass .transportation. This 
decision should-not be taken as a ruling that all service provided 

·by . .a recipient ·to regularly scheduled periodic events is mass ·. 
transportation. Presented with .a complaint·,. UMTA will look · 
carefully at each· individual · ca·se to determine wh·ether the servi-ce 
provided. contains the required elements. of mass transportation. 
In .. short~ UMTA caution~ transit providers against reading this 
decision too widel'y, and -reminds them that there are many cases 
which fall in b~tween the two categories, and which should be 
examined on an individual basis.· 

2. Whether METRO should have undertaken a.' private sector 
involvement process before instituting the park and ride service.· 

In its response, METRO correctly argues that its park and ride 
serv_ice is mass transportation, -since it conforms to the service 
described in Q&A 27c of UMTA's "Charter Ser'Vice Quest'ion$·and 
Answers, '' i.e. , service . to regularly scheduled bUt infreq\.lent 
events, that is under the control of the grantee, with fares 
collected from individuals. For the rea.sons'-stated above, UMTA · 
-agrees that the example cited in Q&A 27c is applicable ·to this 
case. However, the fol'lowing language from this same Q&A is 
equally applicable: 
., 

... such services would appear to be excellent candidates 
for privatization, since they may very well be self- · 
supporting without the .n·eed for public s·ubsidies. ·. 
In accordance wi.th UMTA' s private enterprise policy, 
grantees should examine the interest and capability 
o~ the private sector in providing the service. 

~·This statement is in conformity with the ·requiremen~s of 
sec.tion 3 (e) of the Urban. Mass Tra~sportation Act of 19641 as· 
amended (UMT Act) ,· and UMTA' s implementing policy guidelines 1 

which require maximum participation of the private secto~. 

These guidelines are set forth in uMrA·' ~ notice of policy,, 
·"Private Enterprise Participation in the Urban Ma·ss 
Transportat_ion. Programs," ·49 Fed. Reg. 4131? (Octobe~. 22,-
1984) • UMT~' s Circular 7005.1, "Doc:untentatJ.on of PrJ.vate . 

. Enterprise Required for sec::tions 3.and 9 Programs,". (December 5, 
1986), provides fu:t;ther guJ.dance Wltl?- respect ~o pr_J.vate secto~ 

11 'involvement and defines the type . of "new or restructured serv~ce 
which tri,gg~rs such. involvement. The circular states that "new or 
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restructured. service" may. include any of the foilowing: 

establishment ·of a new mass transportation service·; addition 
of·a ·new. route. or routes to a grantee 1s'mass transportation 
·system; a significant increase or decrease in service on an 
~xistinc;t route in a grantee 1 s-mass transportat"idn system;- a 
si.gnifica~t. realignment of ari existing_ route: in a gr~ntee·l s 
mass transportation system; · · ·· ·· · ··· 

Cleariy, METRO 1 s park and ri'de service is of· suft·!f:cferit '~agni tude 
.to. be. charactert1z.ed as the ·estabiishment· O.f a new- m&Ss('' "I. •· · 

transpo:.tet.tion•:service. A~cord~ng ·to informat.~on .. ~u~plied by -~~-
METRO, J.1: requi:;-es the use of 82 b\lses. and drivers on each_::·Q:ant~ 
day, transp~-~ts- abou~ 7, ooo riders, and -is coordinated by· 1:1 · · 
~upervisors':~nd nine support personnel. As such, .it constitutes- . 

. "~lew'. or re.structured servic~" .. as., qoritemplated. by circular· 7005 •. 1 ~ 
~~ . .. -: . . ..... -~ . . . ' . . ' ·. .. ' ~ . 

' .: '·. . • . • . )~ • 'I·'•':· • ' . . . . . •·.• ~- . • . . . • 

· The · sa;n·e Circular sets . out the miqimum · procedures ·w~ich a 'grantee 
must.·. fell o.w in . seeking to. involve· :the pr.i:vate sector. TheE,;e · _,}. 
incluc;le: . · · · 

.a) Notice to. and early consultation with private provi'ders 
. iri plans involving new or. restructured service·as well 

· as· the periodic re-examination of existing serVice. · · · 

·br ·~eriedic· exam,!na.tion, at least every three' years,.> o·f· _. ·. ·~ · 
. each route to:'determine if :·it co~ld be more_ effectively 

operated by private enterprise. '· · r 

c) Description of how new or restructured .services will be 
evaluated to determine if they co~ld be more effectively 
provided by ·a private sector operation pursuant to a 
competitive bid process. · · · 

. . . 

d) The use o'f c~sts . a~ ·a factor .in the private/public 
d·ecision. · · · · ·- · · 

. 
e) A dispute reso·lution process ·which affords .all 

interested parties an opportunity to object to the 
initial depi~ion~ · 

There is no indication in the submissions fr9m the parties-.that 
METRO attempted. to notify or inv.olve private operators du~ing .the 
early stages. of its planning of the service. ME~RO has . shc:>wn . 
that· it did perform ,a private/pUblic ¢9st analysis •. Th~s .... ~· . 
. analysis, however,· appears to ha\16 be~n performed on_ ~he basJ.s of 
limited information which was offered by, rather than solicited 
from, a single carrier •. It also appears ~hat METRO provided 
private operators with no ~isp';lte.resol':ltJ.on process or 
opportunity to appeal its J.nitJ.al negatJ.ve decis-ion. 
con'sequently, METRO 1 s 1 imi ted consideration o~ private· sec~C)r ._ . 
alternatives appears. to fail. to meet ·the requJ.rements of· CJ.rcul-ar· 
7005.1. 
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-CONC~USION 

After a thorough ·investigation, UMTA concludeS! that METRo·• ~~" __ pal;'k 
and ride servic~ is mass. transportatio.ri, since it ·substanti!lly 
;~.confq~s to th(!: following criteria: 1) it is u~d~r the cont:rol o£' 
the 'grantee; 2) it is.designed to benefit.the:publ.ic at large; and 
3) it is open door. ·With regard to the la'tter element, however, ·· 
tlMTA .;!,ng~ _th~t the service· fails to conform ·to one requlrement, 
namely t}?.~t, it be published in the grantee's regular.ly published 
schedules:';:· ·UMTA therefore orders METRO to publish 'the service in 
i1:s pr.eprirlted sch$dules prior to· re..:institutinq; Jt. UMTA ·also 
find~s that the park·. and r·ide se;vice constitutes·".'l'i:$w .o.r . _ 
_ restrvc;:tureci service¥ as contemplated by· UMTA. Circul'~r 7005-.l,j. _· 
.thereby ·triggering UMTA's private se.ctor involvement requil:'~'ltle:rtts. 
UMTA finds that the measures ME~o- took_ to involve t:Qe private· 
.s.ector did not fully meet the minimum requirements set out in .tlie 
circular. Therefore, ,prior to recommencing the service, METRO ··. 
should underta~e ~--public participation _process which follows the 
guidelines set forth in UMTA Circular 7005.1. 

~il~ .. ·~ 
Attorney-A~ 
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SEQUIN TAXI ) 
vs ) WA-09/85-01 

CLALLAM TRANSIT SYSTEM) 

DECISION 

I. SUMMARY OF DECISION 

This decision is the result of an investigation begun 
in response to a complaint received by the Urban Mass 
Transportation Administration (UMTA) on November 5, 1985, 
from Larry G. Ennen, President of Sequim Taxi. The 
complaint alleges that the local planning and programming 
process employed by Clallam Transit Service (CTS) did not 
include procedures for the maximum feasible participation 
of private transportation providers consistent with Section 
3(e) of the Urban Mass Transportation Act of 1964, as 
amended (UMT Act). UMTA finds that the vehicles used to 
provide the service which is the subject of this complaint 
~ere not U~fiA-funded, and CTS is therefore not required to 
follow the procedures of Section 3(~) in implementing this 
service. 

II. BACKGROUND 

A. Exhaustion of Local Remedies 

Mr. Ennen originally complained to UMTA in September, 
~985, claiming that CTS was detrimentally qffecting his 
business. UMTA acknowl~dged the letter on September 
24, indicating that a potential violation of UMTA . 
requirements had been shown, but that Sequim Taxi must 
first make an attempt to resolve the problem locally 
before UMTA could entertain a protest. Because CTS is 

-not a direct recipient of UMTA.funding, but a . . 
subrecipient under the state-administered Section 18 
program, UMTA notified the State of the complaint and 
requested that the State attempt to resolve the matter 
locally. By letter dated October 23, 1985, the State 
notified UMTA that local efforts to r~solve the 
dispute had been completed. According to the State's 
letter; Mr. Ennen had sought to increase his company's 
participation in the provision of dial-a-ride ~ervices, 
and specifically that he be allowed to lease or operate 
CTS vehicles used to provide such service. The contract 
between Sequim Taxi and CTS was to expire·on 
December 31, 1985, ·and CTS was planning. to solicit · 
proposals for operation of dial-a-ride services that 

·would include the opportu:nJty to use CTS equipment. 
It, therefore, appeared that Sequim Taxi's conce~ns 
had been satisfac~orily addressed. 
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B. The Complaint 

However, by letter dated November 1, 1985, Mr. Ennen 
notified UMTA that he did not consider the complaint 
adequately resolved, and formally requested UMTA's-
assistance. For purposes of this complain~ we have 
indicated Sequim Taxi as the complainant. It is somewhat 
unclear from the correspondence whether Sequim Taxi is 
also doing business as Sequim Transportation, Inc. and 
we use the names interchangeably. The letter alleged· 
that the local planning and programming process had not 
established procedures for the maximum feasible participation 
of private transportation providers. Although the letter 
alleges that the contract terms are drafted in a manner 
that precludes Sequim Taxi from bidding, it does not. 
elaborate. It also states that the "preliminary pr6cess 
.for establishing ways to work out disputes and resolutions 
was not followed by CTS", but again it does not explain 
the reasons for this conclusion. ~ 

c. The Response. 

The State of Washington responded by letter dated 
December 17, 1985, indicating that contrary to Sequim 
Taxi's al~egation, CTS did favorably consider its request 
to permit potential contractors the ability to lease or 
otherwise operate'CTS-owned equipment under the contract. 
The response indicates that the solicitation process used 
by CTS allowed for input and modification, and provided 
a forum for resolution of complaints through its regula~ 
Board meeting process. The-real problems, according to the 
State, result from on-going contract administration disputes 
arising out of an existing contract between CTS and Sequim 
Taxi. The response concludes that, while CTS did not have 
a formal private enterprise participation policy or process 
at the time the complaint was filed, that in practice 
iL complies with the spirit of the 3(e) requirements by 
considering the complaint and making changes. to address 
the concerns raised. 

D. The Rebuttal 

Although the complainant. was given the opportunity to 
rebut the State's response, no rebuttal was offered. 

E. Request for Additional Information 

By letter dated January 23, UMTA-. requested -that· the 
State provide addi tiona!. information relat'ive ·-to the 
planning process following by CTS, in particular with 
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respect to its decision to e~pand the special 
'transportation business during the term of Sequim 
Taxi's contract. 

F. Supplementary Response by State 

3 

By letter dated February 3, 1986, the State responded 
to UMTA's request for additional information. The 
response makes the following points: · 

1. Two changes were made to the program in June of 
1984: a) the hours of operation were expanded to 
match fixed route service, and.b) lift-equipped 
vehicles were made avail.able to ambulatory passengers. 

2. Mr. Ennen's contract was amended to allow for the 
increased hours of operation. (It is unclear 
whether the expanded use of CTS lift-equipped 
vehicles.by ambulatory passengers was consistent 
with the con~ract.) 

. 3. The State disagrees with Mr. Ennen!s assertion 
that these changes resulted in a loss of 
business. In support of its position the State 
notes that payments to Mr. Ennen under the 
contract increased dramatically after July 1984 
over previous·payments. Furthermore, the contract 
with Sequim Taxi was intended to be a supplementary. 
service and not a guarantee of an exclusive right to 
provide transportation. 

4. CTS did meet with the complainant to discuss Mr. 
Ennen's .concerns. ·However~ CTS indicated at that 
meeting that it would not ~onsid~r Mr. Ennen•i
proposal to use CTS vehicles until certain 
existing billing problems could be corrected. 
CTS maintained that Sequim Taxi was not following 
proper billing procedures in accordance with its 
contract. According to the State, it is this 
contract dispute which really forms the basis for 
the instant complaint, rather than a failure to 
fulfill private enterprise requirements. In any 
case, the CTS Board decision to provide the 
service through a competitive process is 
considered by the State to have cured any such 
failure. · - · 
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G. Rebuttal to Supplemental Response 

Mr. Ennen submitted a rebuttal to the State's 
supplemental response by letter received on March 4, 
1986. This rebuttal included numerous attachments. 
~riefly, the rebuttal makes the following points: 

1. The June 1984 changes by CTS, increasing use of 
lift-equipped vehicles, were unilateral. There 
was no prior consultation. Further, the 

·subsequently negotiated contract, which 
supposedly provided for these changes, was 
ignored by CTS. 

4 

2.· A chart was provided showing weekly earnings over 
a 4-year period to demonstrate that CTS, through 
its Dial-A-Ride program, has taken over the taxi 
business. Further, although the complainant's 
gross in.come has risen, net income has actually 
declined. 

3. With respect to the meeting betweep CTS and the 
complainant, the meeting was not consultative in 
nature and did not address the issue of use of 
CTS vehicles by the complainant • 

.. 
4• Complainant disputes allegations relative to 

improper billings under the contract. 

s. The competitive solicitation was too big, and the 
financial and paperwork requirements wer·e too 
·onerous, to permit complainant -to submit a 
responsive bid. 

H. Additional Supplemental Response by State 

By letter dated March 31, 1986, the State made the 
argument that neither UMTA nor the State has jurisdiction 
because no UMTA funding is directly involved in the 
elderly and handicapped ~ervices contracted otit by CTS. 
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III. Discussion 

CTS and Sequim Taxi were parties to a contract under which 
Sequim Taxi provided special transportation to the elderly 
and handicapped in the Sequim area. The contract was 
renewed in August 1984. During the course of the contract, 
Sequim Taxi raised concern about the level of competition 
from ~TS vehicles which were allegedly diverting customers 
from Sequim Taxi. 

5 

In June of 1984, CTS unilaterally expanded service with its 
lift-equipped vans~ Although no prior consultation occurred, 
CTS and Sequim Taxi did conduct subsequent discussions 
concerning the use of the vans. 

During these discussions, Sequim Taxi proposed that CTS make 
its vans available to Sequim Taxi in return for a mutual 
guarantee of service on Sequim's part, and restricted 
operation on CTS' part. CTS declined, based on questioned 
billing practices py Sequim arising out of the existing 
con~ract. 

CTS eventually issued a new solicitation for special 
transportation service, which permitted the successful . 
contractor to utilize CTS equipment to provide the service. 
The complainant did not submit a bid, and another provider 
was awarded the contract. Sequim Taxi complains that CTS 
did not follow the procedures set forth by Section 3{e) of 
the UMT Act in the awarding of this contract. 

Before UMTA will deal with a complaint pertaining· to-a 
violation of the terms of -Section 3(e), it must be 
established that the type of assistance which the grantee 
receive·s falls wit.hin the perimeters of this provision.· 

Section 3(e) provides, in pertinent part: 

No financial assistance shall be provided under this Act 
to any State or local public body or agency thereof for 
the purpose, directly or indirectly· ••• of providing 
by contract or otherwise for the operation 
of mass transportation facilities or equipment in 
competition with, or supplementary to, the service 
provided by ·an existing mass transportation company ••• 
unless the Secretary finds that ~uch program~ to the 
maximum extent feasible, provides for the_participatio~ 
of private mas·s transportation. companies._ 

CTS is a subrecipient of UMTA funds under- t,he·state...;. 
administered Section 18 program. Materials. submitted by_the 
parties, however, show that _this assistance.·ha~ __ been J?·l:'<;>vided 
exclusively for capital purposes, and has not been ~t1l1zed 
to acquire or operate the vehicles involved in-the 1nst~nt 
complaint. 289 · 
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Consequently, CTS is not subject to the requirements of 
Section 3(e} in its provision of this service. Therefore, 
though Sequim Taxi's allegations are not without merit, and 
though UMTA notes that at the time this complaint was filed, 
CTS lacked a private sector participation process as required 
by Section 3(e}, UMTA lacks jurisdiction to make a 
decision or ruling on this matter. · · 

IV. Conclusion 

Before UMTA will rule on a complaint pertaining to a 
violation of the terms of a grant agreement, it is 
essential that jurisdiction be established. In this case, 
CTS does not receive operating assistanc~ from UMTA. If it 
did, UMTA would assert jurisdiction on the ground that any 
operating assistance would be indirectly, if not directly, 
involved in the provision of transit service by CTS. CTS 
has utili-zed UMTA· assistance solely for capital purposes, 
and no UMTA funds were used to operate the vans which are 
the subject of this .complaint. - For this reason, . UMTA 
concludes that the provisions of Section 3(e) are 
inapplicab1e to the service which CTS provides using the 
vans in question, and that UMTA therefore lacks 
jurisdiction to make a ruling on this matter. 

;,f#!Y __ _ 

Date· 1 
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BEFORE THE URBAN MASS TRANSPORTATION ADMINISTRATION 

In the matter of 

BLUE GRASS TOURS AND CHARTER 
Complainant 

versus 

LEXINGTON TRANSIT AUTHORITY 
Respondent 

CHARTER COMPLAINT 

(49 u.s.c. 1602(f)) 

URO-III - 1987 

MEMORANDUM OF DECISION 

Question Presented 

Whether the transportation provided to the University of Kentucky 
principally for its faculty, staff and students by the Lexington 
Transit Authority, Lexington, Kentucky (hereinafter referred to as 
"LexTran") constitutes impermissible charter service in violation 
of 49 CFR Part 604, which implements Section 3(f) of the Urban 
Mass Transportation Act of 1964 as amended, 49 u.s.c. l602(f) 
(the "UMT Act")? 

Facts 

The facts as presented by complainant, Blue Grass Tours and 
Charter, a privately-owned transportation company located in 
Lexington, Kentucky, and by respondent, ~exTran, are as follows: 

The University asked the complainant to bid on a contract 
(referred to as "annual subsidy" by LexTran) to provide a certain 
number of hours in the course of the year according to a set route 
and schedule. The University asked complainant to give a rate per 
hour based on that information. Then, before complainant had 
replied, it was told by the University that LexTran had lowered 
its price and that the University would continue to have the 
needed transportation provided by LexTran. 

The service at issue is apparently around the University campus, 
from building to building. It is open and free to anyone going on 
the route. The service. is only provided when the University is 
open. It is in addition to the regularly scheduled LexTran routes 
that exist in Lexington, some of which travel to and through the 
campus. 
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Neither complainant nor respondent has provided for the record a 
copy of a written agreement setting forth the terms of the service 
in question. The schedule for the service is apparently set by an 
oral or informal agreement between the University and LexTran and 
runs when the University needs it. (There may have been in the 
past a written contract establishing the terms of the agreement 
but apparently the agreement is currently not in writing.) 

Instead of collecting fares from each passenger, as LexTran does 
with its regular routes, LexTran receives an annual subsidy from 
the University for the service. The agreement to provide the 
service appears to be renewed annually in July. 

Complainant's Position 

It is the complainant's contention that the service in question is 
actually a form of prohibited charter service. The definition of··.·· 
charter found in Urban Mass Transportation Administration (UMTA) 
regulations at 49 CFR Subsection 604.5(e) is as follows: 

transportation using buses or vans, or facilities funded 
under the Acts (49 u.s.c. 1601 et ~ and 23 u.s.c. 
103(e) (4) and 142] of a group of persons who pursuant to a 
common purpose, under a single contract, at a fixed charge 
(in accordance with the carrier's tariff) for the vehicle or 
service, have acquired the exclusive use of the vehicle or 
service to travel together under an itinerary either 
specified in advance or modified after having left the place 
of origin. This definition includes the incidental use of 
UMTA funded equipment for the exclusive transportation of 
school students, personnel, and equipment. 

The service complained of runs at the behest of the University 
which dictates locations and schedules. According to the 
complainant, LexTran has input in developing the routes from a 
logistical point of view as any operator would but the University 
determines the starting points and destinations and which areas of 
campus and specific buildings are to be included in the service. 

The service fluctuates according to when school is in session. It 
is reduced during the summer and it does not exist when school is 
out of session and during holidays such as Christmas. 

The complainant contends that the service may be open to the 
public but it is not advertised or promoted to make the public 
aware of its availability (except on the campus). Anyone wishing 
to use·LexTran's regular service to points off campus must take 
LexTran's regular (published) routes and pay a fare. 
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Respondent's Position 

LexTran•s position is that its campus service fits the definition 
of "mass transportation" found in Section 12(c) (6) of the UMT Act 
of 1964, as amended. According to that definition, mass 
transportation means: 

transportation by bus, or rail, or other conveyance, either 
publicly or privately owned, which provides to the public 
general or special service (but not including school buses or 
charter or sightseeing service) on a regular and continuing 
basis. 

To support that contention, LexTran states that the service 
operates on a regular and continuing basis throughout the year, 
Monday through Friday, between the hours of 7:10 a.m. and 
6:20p.m., but that service levels naturally vary during the year, 
based upon demand. 

Furthermore, the service is open.to the general public and the 
vehicles are not for the use of any particular group. The riders 
have no control of the route or destination of the vehicle. 

LexTran sets the routes and schedules based on LexTran's knowledge 
of transit operations and the area's geography with input from the 
University on class schedules, working hours, and peak hours of 
the hospital. 

There is no fare charged for the service. The University pays 
LexTran an annual subsidy, established by mutual agreement. There 
is no subsidy contract in effect. 

The service is promoted in conjunction with all of LexTran's 
services . 

. LexTran has signed an agreement with UMTA pursuant to 49 CFR 
Subsection 604.7 in which LexTran has agreed not to provide 
charter service with UMTA funded facilities and equipment unless 
there is no able and willing private operator or unless one of the 
exceptions in 49 CFR Section 604.9 applies. 

Conclusion 

The issue is not a simple one. Frequently, transportation service 
around a university complex is considered "mass transportation." 
(Please see in this regard Question number 27.d. of the Charter 
Questions and Answers published on November 3, 1987, 52 Fed. Reg. 
442252.) In this case, however, even though LexTran has argued 
that this service fits the definition of mass transportation, the 
facts would indicate that the service more closely resembles 
charter service. 
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Discussion 

The service in question more closely fits the definition of 
"charter" found in the UMTA regulations than the definition of 
"mass transportation" found in the UMT Act. However, there is no 
contention that LexTran is providing permissible charter service 
as an exception under UMTA charter regulations, 49 C.F.R. Section 
604.9. 

Notwithstanding the fact, as LexTran contends, that the service on 
the campus is "regular and continuing," it appears that that 
seryice has been set up "under a single contract" to regularly 
benefit a group of persons who have specified where and when they 
want the service to exist and who annually pay a special price to 
have it available only when they are there to use it. 

Notwithstanding the fact, as LexTran contends, that there may be 
no written contract in effect, the service is provided for the 
University only at the times and locations specified by the 
University and agreed to by LexTran. (Although not clearly stated 
by either complainant or respondent, I infer from th~ir letters 
that the annual subsidy only covers service required by the 
University except as altered for operational reasons by LexTran.) 

Notwithstanding the fact, as Lextran contends, that none of the 
individual riders has the ability to direct the vehicle to take a 
different course, the University, on behalf of those individuals, 
does have the prerogative of altering routes and schedules. 

Indeed, the campus service is, in some respects, quite dissimilar 
to LexTran•s other routes. For example, it is free to individual 
riders (while on Lextran•s other routes individual riders pay a 
fare) and there are no published schedules (while published 
schedules exist for LexTran's other routes). Moreover, while 
those two characteristics of the service are not in themselves 
determinative of whether it is either charter or mass 
transportation- See in this connection Question 27.a. of the 
Questions and Answers Published November 3, 1987. 52 Fed. Reg. 
42252. - the conclusion one would have to draw is that the service 
to the University is a special type of service which is set up, 
advertised and operated differently than LexTran's regular 
service. and notwithstanding the absence of a written contract, 
one that appears to be operating pursuant to a special agreement 
to accommodate the special needs of the University. 

This conclusion is reinforced by application of part of the 
discussion in the preamble to the charter regulation published on 
April 13, 1987 to the present situation. In the preamble UMTA 
explained that three characteristics of mass transportation 
differentiate it from charter service. 
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First, mass transportation is under the control of the 
recipient. Generally the recipient is responsible for 
setting the route, rate, and schedule, and deciding what 
equipment is used. Second, the service is designed to 
benefit the public at large and not some special organization 
such as a private club. Third, mass transportation is open 
to the public and is not closed door. Thus; anyone who 
wishes to ride on the service must be permitted to do so. 
[49 CFR Part 604, 52 Fed. Reg. 11916, at 11920] 

Although LexTran would argue that it is in control of the service 
with respect to setting routes, rate, schedule and equipment, it 
appears that the University has requested service generally - if 
not specifically - according to certain routes and schedules. 
LexTran has proposed to charge a certain rate and has decided what 
equipment to use in order to meet the needs of the University. 

Secondly, although LexTran would argue that the service provided 
to the University benefits the public at large, and is not 
exclusive as for a private club, it appears that it is designed to 
fulfill the transportation needs of the University students and 
personnel. It is not set up to benefit the general public except 
as the general public might coincidentally need to travel around 
the campus. 

Thirdly, although the service is "open door" in the sense that 
anyone wanting to ride on it is not excluded from doing so, UMTA 
has interpreted "open door" to mean involving a substantial public 
ridership andjor an attempt by the transit authority to widely 
market the service. That does not appear to be the situation 
here. Moreover, the service does not operate in the general urban 
area of Lexington, but only on campus. 

Finally, although the definition of "mass transportation" in the 
UMT Act does include the concept of "special" service, the type 
of service complained of in this case is not one of the two types 
of "special" service that legally fit the definition of "mass 
transportation." They are: service exclusively for elderly and 
handicapped and service provided for the workers who live in the 
innercity, but work in a factory in the suburbs. These 
historically are the only two "special" types of service still 
considered to be mass transportation. [52 Fed. Reg. 11916 at 
11920] 
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Decision 

Because the service provided by LexTran to the University of 
Kentucky is in reality charter servicerather that mass 
transportation, unless LexTran has gone through the public process 
described in the charter regulations at 49 C.F.R. ·604.11 and found 
there to be no legally "able and willing" private charter operator 
in its service area (and thus is operating the service pursuant to 
a legitimate exception to the regulation pursuant to 49 C.F.R. 
section 604.9,) I conclude that it is an impermissible use of UMTA 
funded facilities and equipment to continue to provide the 
transportation which has been the subject of this discussion. 

Accordingly, unless LexTran can show that it has gone through the 
abovementioned public process and found there to be no legally 
"able and willing" private charter operator, LexTran is ordered to 
cease and desist immediately this special service to the 
University. 

DATE f 1 
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BEFORE THE URBAN MASS TRANSPORTATION ADMINISTRATION 
OFFICE OF CHIEF COUNSEL 

In the matter of: 

SEYMOUR CHARTER BUS LINES, 
Complainant 

v. 

KNOXVILLE TRANSIT AUTHORITY, 
Respondent 

} 
} 
} 
} 
} 
} 
} 

DECISION 

SUMMARY 

TN-09/88-01 

Seymour Charter Bus Lines (Seymour) filed this complaint with the 
Urban Mass Transportation Administration (UMTA), alleqing that the 
Knoxville Transit Authority (K-TRANS) was providinq charter 
service in violation of the Urban Mass Transportation 
Administration's (UMTA) charter requlation, 49 CFR Part 604. The 
complaint specifically alleged that Seymour had contracted to 
provide charter service for the University of Tennessee (the 
University). Applying a balancing test to the service in 
question, UMTA conclUdes that it is charter service as defined by 
49 CFR 604.5(e). UMTA orders K-TRANS to cease and desist from 
providing the service as it is currently confiqured. K-TRANS must 
report to UMTA within 90 days on the measures it has taken to 
comply with the terms of this order. 

COMPLAINT 

Seymour filed this complaint with UMTA on Auqust 19, 1988. The 
complaint alleged that K-TRANS was providinq charter service in 
violation of UMTA 1 s charter regulation, 49 CFR Part 604. The 
complaint specifically alleged three violations. Accordinq to the 
first two allegations, set forth in paragraphs 5 and 6 of the 
complaint, K-TRANS had established brokering arrangements with Loy 
Bus Lines and Mays Bus Lines. In paragraph 7 of the complaint, 
Seymour alleged that K-TRANS had successfully bid on a contract 
for charter service to the University, at a charge that was less 
than its fully allocated cost of providing the service. 

By letter of September 23, 1988, UMTA advised Seymour that its 
allegations stated a complaint under 49 CFR 605.15. The letter 
directed Seymour to attempt local conciliation for thirty days. 
If no resolution were reached at the end of this period, the 
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letter stated, either party could write to UMTA to request a . 
formal investigation. 

On October 27, 1988, Seymour wrote to UMTA to state that it had 
met with K-TRANS on the previous day. As a result of discussions 
which took place, Seymour stated, it was withdrawing its 
allegations that K-TRANS had established brokering arrangements 
with Loy Bus Lines and May Bus Lines. Seymour stated, however, 
that the parties had been unable to reach an agreement on the 
nature of K-TRANS' service to the University. Seymour maintained 
that the service was charter service, and therefore prohibited by 
UMTA's charter regulation. 

RESPONSE 

By letter of November 21, 1988, UMTA advised Seymour and K-TRANS 
that it would proceed with a formal investigation of the remaining 
allegations concerning K-TRANS charter service for the University. 
UMTA gave K-TRANS 30 days to respond to the complaint. 

K-TRANS' response was dated December 21, 1988. K-TRANS noted that 
it was making no response to the allegations of paragraphs 5 and 6 
of the complaint concerning K-TRANS' brokering arrangements with 
Loy ~us Lines and Mays Bus Lines, since those allegations had.been 
withdrawn by Seymour. 

Responding to the allegations in paragraph 7, K-TRANS stated that 
it has been providing service to the University of Tennessee 
campus and to certain student apartments operated by the 
University. K-TRANS explained that it had been operating, as part 
of the mass transit system of the city for many years, service to 
and from the campus and to and from 5 off-campus apartments 
occupied by married and graduate students. 

In June 1988, stated K-TRANS, the University issued a request for 
quotations. K-TRANS indicated that it was providing service to 
the University not under a separate contract, but "pursuant to the 
request for quotations issued by the University and the response 
of K-TRANS." K-TRANS denied that the service was charter service, 
or that service was being provided in violation of the UMTA 
charter regulation. 

K-TRANS stated that the schedule for the Route 22 service, a copy 
of which was attached to its response, showed that the service 
provided for the University community was divided into two parts. 
The first part, explained K~TRANS, was known as the Campus Route, 
and connected the main campus with the University Agricultural 
campus along Weyland Drive, a main thoroughfare of the city. 
K~TRANS stated that no fare was charged for this intercampus 
service. 

The second part of the service, according to K-TRANS, was provided 
to five (5) separate apartment complexes which housed married and 
graduate students. K-TRANS explained that the service to.the 
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married student apartments ran along a principal thoroughfare, 
through residential and-commercial areas. R-TRANS maintained that 
the buses stopped and picked up at any R-TRANS stop along the way. 
Each rider, stated K-TRANS, paid a fare for this service. 

K-TRANS stated that in its request for quotations, the University. 
requested the use of 45-passenger buses, set the departure times 
from the campus and the apartments and the times during which the 
service would operate, and set the fare to be charged for 
students. Otherwise, K-TRANS maintained, the service. was totally 
under the control of K-TRANS. 

K-TRANS explained, notably, that it set the number of vehicles 
used to provide the service, handled all operational details, and 
determined the routes to be followed. K-TRANS stated that for the 
most part, the buses operated along publicly dedicated and 
maintained streets, were open to the public at regular fares, and 
stopped at all of K-TRANS' regular stops. Moreover, stated 
K-TRANS, the service appeared in K-TRANS' regularly published 
schedules, which were distributed to the general public. K-TRANS 
acknowledged that the service was geared to meet the needs of the 
University community, but stated that it was not tied exclusively 
to University class schedules, and had operated on a modified 
schedule during vacation periods. These factors, K-TRANS 
maintained, confirmed that the service was "mass transportation" 
as defined on page 11920 of the preamble to UMTA's charter 
regulation (52 Fed. Reg. 11916 et seq., April 13, 1987).1 

K-TRANS further contended that the service was for the benefit of 
the public-at-large, since University students were members of the 
public as was any group which lives in a particular sub-division 
or series of apartment complexes. College students were not, 
maintained K-TRANS, a restricted, nurtured group as would be 
secondary students served by a school bus, but were members of the 
local community. 

On the other hand, K-TRANS submitted, the service was not "charter 
service," because, among other things, the patrons did not have a 
common purpose or constitute a defined group, they had not 
acquired exclusive use of the bus, they did not travel under an 
itinerary specified in advance or have authority to set the 
desination, and each rider paid an individual fare. 

Responding to the allegation of paragraph 9 of the complaint 
concerning K-TRANS' failure to bid fully allocated costs for the 
University contract, K-TRANS acknowledged that.the successful bid 
price was $22.75 per hour, but stated that determination as to 

1) "Mass transportation" is herein def1ned as hav1ng the 
following three basic characteristics: 1) it is under the control 
of the grantee (i.e., the grantee sets the rate, route, fares and 
schedules); 2) it is designed to meet the needs of the general 
public as opposed to those of a particular group; 3) it is open to 
the public. 
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whether the charge was compensatory was not appropriate. If.it 
were determined that the service was charter service and should 
not be provided, argued K-TRANS, the amount of the charge would 
become a moot question. If, stated K-TRANS, the ultimate decision 
were that the service is mass transportation, then the matter 
complained of· in paragraph 9 should not be an issue. 

Further responding to the complaint generally, K-TRANS asserted 
that the regulations promulgated at 49 CFR Part 604 were not 
within the legal authority granted to UMTA under the Urban Mass 
Transportation Act of 1964, as amended (UMT Act), since. the 
service complained of was not being operated outside the urban 
area in which K-TRANS provided regularly scheduled mass 
transportation service.2 

For the above reasons, K-TRANS concluded that the complaint should 
be dismissed. 

REBUTTAL 

By letter of December 29, 1988, UMTA wrote to Seymour to state 
that it had received the response of K-TRANS on December 21, 1988, 
and that K-TRANS had indicated that it had forwarded a copy of its 
response to Seymour. UMTA stated that Seymour would have 30 days 
to file a rebuttal. 

seymour's rebuttal is dated January 17, 1989. Seymour therein 
stated that the issue presented in this proceeding was whether 
transportation provided to the University exclusively, or on a 
substantially exclusive basis, for its faculty, staff and students 
by K-TRANS, consituted impermissible charter service in violation 
of 49 CFR Part 604. 

seymour pointed out that in consideration of the payment of $22.75 
per hour per bus, K-TRANS agreed to provide service to the 
University campus, operating in an area and at times specified by 
the University. Seymour noted that in meeting this general 
transportation requirement, the University had imposed specfic 
requirements on K-TRANS, including the number and seat~ng capacity 
of buses used, detailed insurance specifications, maintenance of a 
cash collection system acceptable to the University, and frequency 
of service and points of origin and destination. 

Seymour asserted that the service provided by K~TRANS to the 
university was not mass transit. Seymour pointed out that mass 
transit is described in the preamble to UMTA 1 s charter regulaion 

2) UMTA will not discuss this issue, since it has already dealt 
with it extensively in two previous decisions, Washington Motor 
coach Association v. Municipality of Metropolitan Seattle, 
WA-09/87-01, March 21, 1988, and B&T Fuller Double Decker Bus 
company v. VIA Metropolitan Transit, TX-02/88-01, November 14, 
1988. 
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as being: 1) under the control of the grantee; 2) designed to· 
benefit the public at large; 3) open door. 49 Fed. Reg. 11920, 
(April 13, 1987). Seymour maintained that K-TRANS' service had 
none of those characteristics of mass transit. 

First, stated Seyroour, K-TRANS' service to the University was not 
under its control, but operated according to routes, minimum 
rates, and schedules set by the University, which also specified 
what equipment is used. · 

Second, Seymour argued, K-TRANS maintained that the service was 
designed to benefit "members of the public," since students were 
part of the public at large. That argument, Seymour pointed out, 
was rejected by the UMTA Chief counsel in Blue Grass Tours and 
Charter v. Lexington Transit Authority (Memorandum of Decision 
dated May 17, 1988). In that decision, Seymour noted, the Chief 
Counsel ruled that the service was not set up to benefit the 
general public, except as the general public might coincidentally 
need to travel around the campus.3 

Third, Seymour acknowledged that K-';t'RANS' service could be 
described as "open door" in the sense that no one wanting to use 
it was prevented from doing so, but denied that it was true "open 
door" mass transit. Seymour quoted the finding in an opinion 
letter of UMTA's Chief Counsel dated December 28, 1988, that 
certain service provided by the Ithaca Transit Authority was 
impermissible charter service since it was apparent that the 
purpose of the trip was to provide service for a particular group 
of senior citizens and not for the public-at-large. Seymour cited 
K-TRANS' failure to furnish the University with documentation of 
fares collected or passengers carried as evidence that there was 
no significant public ridership or routes serving the married 
students• apartments. 

Seymour maintained that K-TRANS' campus service conformed to the 
following seven criteria for charter service set forth in 
49 CFR 604.S(e): . 

1) The patrons had a common purpose, namely to travel to or from 
points on the University campus. 

2) The service was provided exclusively for University students 
and personnel. Moreover, Seymour stated, no transportation was 
provided when school was not in session. 

3) The Lexington Transit Authority, the respondent in the 
proceeding cited, eventually modified this element of the service 
by publishing schedules for its campus service, advertising them 
to the public, and marking campus stops with its logo, thereby 
evidencing an attempt to invite public ridership. By letter of 
December 27, 1988, to the Lexington Transit Authority, UMTA 
recognized that these and other changes had converted what it 
believed was charter service to mass transit. 
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3) While the passengers did not board as a group at a common . 
place, it was not uncommon for motor carriers to pick up at 
various locations (ex., pick-ups at various hotels in the case of 
convention charters). 

4) The University had acquired exclusive use of the bus for its 
students and personnel. 

5) The passengers travelled together under an itinerary specified 
in advance by the chartering party, the University. 

6) The University, the chartering party, set the destinations. 

7) The buses were chartered for the purpose of providing 
transportation on an individual basis; hence, each person paid an 
individual fare. 

Seymour argued that like the service in Blue Grass, the service 
provided by K-TRANS to the University was set up, advertised, and 
operated differently than K-TRANS' regular service and was geared 
to accomodate the special needs of the University when school was 
in session. 

Seymour responded to K-TRANS' argument that UMTA lacked legal 
authority to promulgate the charter regulation by stating that 
12(c) (6) of the UMT Act, by restricting UMTA funds to use for mass 
transit purposes, invested UMTA with the necessary authority to 
prohibit use of funds for other purposes. Section 12(c)(6), 
maintained Seymour, was a fairly typical example of a delegation 
of authority to frame major governmental policy without 
significant statutory guidance. 

Seymour asked that for the reasons set forth above, K-TRANS should 
be barred from receipt of further financial assistance for mass 
transit facilities and equipment. 

REQUEST FOR ADDITIONAL INFORMATION 

By letter of January 26, 1989, UMTA requested additional 
information from K-TRANS. The information requested, and K-TRANS' 
response of March 10, 1989, are summarized as follows: 

QUESTION: Why, after providing service to the University of 
Tennessee for many years as part of its mass transit system, is 
K-TRANS now providing it pursuant to the request for quotation 
from the University? 

ANSWER: Prior to 1988, the basis for subsidy by the University to 
K-TRANS had been by negotiated agreement. Last year, however, 
following an informal proposal from a private operator, the 
University determined that it should be satisfied as to the 
appropriate payment, and decided to solicit proposals. 
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QUESTION: Please submit a copy of Requirements Contract 
uc #0505-990. 

ANSWER: Document requested, dated June 23 1988, is attached. 

QUESTION: Has there been a change in fares, routes or schedules 
since the K-TRANS began operating the service pursuant to the 
University's request for quotation? 

ANSWER: No change has been made in fares, routes or schedules, 
though it has been determined to operate the service when the 
University is not in session. 

In a supplemental response, K-TRANS commented on two matters 
contained in complainant's rebuttal, and provided other additional 
information. 

First, K-TRANS stated, with regard to the assertion that all 
patrons had the common purpose to travel to and from points on the 
University campus, it should be pointed out that students may 
transfer to another K-TRANS route with the purchase of a transfer 
at the regular charge. 

Second, K-TRANS noted that complainant's rebuttal contained a 
footnote to the effect that no transportation was provided when 
the University was not in session. K-TRANS referred to Exhibit 
"C" of its response showing the schedule for the Christmas Holiday 
period between December 15, 1988, and January 10, 1989. 

K-TRANS further stated that bus stops signs were, and historically 
had been, posted and maintained on the regular campus. K-TRANS 
moreover maintained that while the University's request for 
proposals contained a schedule of desired departure times, this 
schedule had originally been developed by K-TRANS in consultation 
with the University. Finally, K-TRANS stated that in order to 
further illustrate the urban nature of the serVice in question, it 
was attaching a city street map showing the routes followed over 
the campus area. 

COMMENT ON SUPPLEMENTAL RESPONSE 

on March 20, 1989, Seymour provided the following comments on the 
supplemental information furnished by the complainant. 

First, ar.qued Seymour, the students' alleged ability to transfer 
to other routes did not make the campus routes part of an 
integrated mass transit system. 

second, stated Seymour, the operation of the service during the 
Christmas season did not negate the fact that the service wa.s not 
mass transportation, but was dedicated exclusively to the needs of 
University students and personnel. 
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Third, Seymour contended that the posting of stop signs was 
irrelevant if the general public did not use the service in 
question. 

Fourth, Seymo~r stated that it would be reasonable to assume that 
service for the University, whether mass transit or charter, would 
be discussed by officials of K-TRANS and the University to 
determine the most convenient departure times. 

Fifth, Seymour conceded that the service provided by K-TRANS under 
contract to the University was over routes depicted on the city 
map supplied by K-TRANS. Finally, Seymour maintained that K-TRANS 
had failed to establish that it had transported even one member of 
the general public. 

K-TRANS was required under the terms of its contract with the 
University, stated Seymour, to furnish documentation of fares 
collected and passengers carried, but had thus far failed to do 
so. 

DISCUSSION.~ 

The essential issue in this case is whether the service provided 
by K-TRANS to the University is impermissible charter service or 
permissible mass transportation. 

The complainant's argument that the service provided by K~TRANS to 
the University is charter.service is based in large·part on the 
definition of charter service set out at 49 CFR 604.S(e), and on 
the Chief Counsel's determination in Blue Grass (supra) concerning 
similar university campus service. . 

In Blue Grass, the Chief Counsel determined that the service 
provided by the Lexington Transit Authority (Lextran) essentially 
corresponded to the criteria of section 604.S(e). First, the 
chief counsel found, the service was charter service, since it was 
provided "under a single contract." The Chief counsel's 
investigation revealed that although no written contract had been 
concluded between the parties, the service was operated by the 
grantee on terms set by the University, and the grantee was 
eonpensated on the basis of hours of service. 

second, the Chief Counsel found that the service was operated and 
managed differently from the grantee's other routes, since there 
were no published schedules for the campus routes, and it was 
provided for free. 

Third, the Chief counsel found that the service had been designed 
to meet the transportation needs of university students and 
personnel, and that that though it was operated open door, only 
coincidentally served the needs of the needs of the general 
public. Balancing these factors, the Chief Counsel determined 
that the service was charter service. 

304 



9 

The same type of balancing test must be applied in determining the 
nature of service involved in any complaint filed with UMTA, 
since, as the preamble to the charter regulation points out at 
page 11926, there is no fixed definition of charter service, and 
the characteristics cited by UMTA ~re given as examples only. 

While the service provided by K-TRANS is similar to that provided 
by Lextran at the time of the complaint cited in Blue Grass, it 
has other characteristics which more easily fit the definition of 
mass transportation. 

In contrast to Lextran, K-TRANS does publish the campus routes in 
its regular schedules. Moreover, K-TRANS' service to and from the 
married student apartments is not provided for free, but each 
passenger pays an individual fare. In these respects, the service 
conforms to the criteria for mass transportation. 

At the same time, K-TRANS' service and Lextran's service as it was 
reconfigured following the Chief counsel's decision in Blue Grass, 
share similarities which also meet UMTA's mass transit criteria. 
While in both cases the routes serve mainly university students 
and personnel, both offer at least a significant opportunity for 
public ridership. In Lextran's case, following the issuance of 
the Chief Counsel's decision, the campus service was modified to 
invite public ridership through the publication of regular 
schedules and the marking of campus stops with the Lextran logo. 

The K-TRANS service affords an opportunity for public ridership 
through the publication of regular schedules and the posting of 
bus stop signs throughout the campus. Morever, as K-TRANS points 
out, since the University campus is located in a central part of 
the urban area, some of the campus route buses follow major 
thoroughfares and passengers using them may connect with other 
K-TRANS routes. Further, contrary to seymour's assertion that the 
campus service does not operate during school vacation periods, 
K-TRANS has demonstrated that the service does operate on a 
·modified schedule at least during the Christmas holiday season. 
Thus, the service does appear to be open and available to the 
general public. 

Seymour, while not denying that the service is open door, cites 
K-TRANS' failure to furnish the University with documentation of 
fares collected or passengers carried as evidence that there is no 
significant public ridership on the campus routes. Although 
K-TRANS has not made this information available to UMTA, UMTA 
disagrees with Seymour that this is conclusive evidence that no 
member of the general public has been transported by the campus 
service. The agreement between K-TRANS and the University 
does not require that K-TRANS provide separate data on student and 
nonstudent riders. Thus, even though K-TRANS may be able to 
provide information on fares collected and passengers using this 
service, it does not appear that this information would be in any 
way helpful in determining the number. of student riders versus the 
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number of members of the general public being transported on·the 
campus routes. 

on the other hand, both the university service originally operated 
by Lextran and X-TRANS' campus service meet UMTA's criteria for 
charter service in that they are provided under an agreement 
which links the cost of the service to the number of hours 
operated. This agreement, by allowing the University to set 
fares and schedules, places control of the service with a party 
other than the grantee. Although X-TRANS maintains that it 
handles other aspects of the service, such as the number of 
vehicles used arid the routes to be followed, UMTA notes that these 
are merely operational details and not determinative of actual 
control of the service. As UMTA has stated in its "Charter 
Service Questions and Answers," 52 Fed •. Reg. 42248, 42252 
(November 3, 1987), such control of fares and schedules is the 
critical element in distinguishing charter service from mass 
transportation in the case of service to a university complex. 
Question 27(d) indeed states: 

"If the service is for the exclusive use of students 
and the university sets the fares and schedules, the 
service would be charter. However, such service 
operated by a recipient which sets fares and schedules 
and is open door, though it serves mainly university 
students, would be mass transportation." 

Thus, by operating under· an agreement which allows the University 
to control the service, X-TRANS fails to meet the criterion set in 
the most important part of the balancing test which UMTA uses to 
distinguish charter service from mass transportation in the case 
of campus route service. 

It should be noted that following the Chief counsel's decision in 
Blue Grass, Lextran modified this aspect of its service by ceasing 
to provide it under an agreement linking payment to hours of 
service, instead receiving an annual grant from the University. 
In a letter to Lextran dated December 27, 1988, UMTA recognized 
that by thereby assuming control of the campus service and by 
making it open to the general public, Lextran had successfully 
converted the service to mass transportation. UMTA noted that in 
so transforming the service, Lextran had provided an example for 
similarly situated grantees. 

Should X-TRANS wish to continue providing service to the 
University, it must reconfigure the service to confo.rm to UMTA's 
mass transportation guidelines. It should be pointed out, 
however, that even if X-TRANS were to operate the campus service 
as mass transportation it should, in accordance with UMTA's 
private sector policy, examine the interest and capability of the 
private sector in providing this service. This is especially the 
case since, according to the information furnished by X-TRANS, 
this service has been operated for several years. Under the 
guidelines set forth in Circular 7005.1, "Documentation. of Private 
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Enterprise Participation Required for Sections 3 and 9 Programs" 
(December 5, 1986), UMTA grantees should examine each route at 
least every three years to determine if it could be more 
efficiently operated by private enterprise. 

CONCLUSION AND ORDER 

UMTA finds that the service provided by K-TRANS to the University 
service is charter service~· since it is provided under an 
agreement with the University, which controls rates and schedules. 
In order to come into compliance with UMTA requirements, K-TRANS 
must either cease and desist from providing the service, or it 
must provide it in conformance with UMTA's mass transportation 
guidelines. K-TRANS must report to UMTA within 90 calendar days 
of receipt of this decision on the measures that it has taken to 
comply with this order. 

Dated: November 29, 1989 
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LaFayette + Greenville Bus ) 
owners Association ) 

Complainant ) 
) 
) 

v. ) NJ-07/86-01 
) 
) 

New Jersey Transit Corporation ) 
Respondent ) 

SUMMARY 

The LaFayette + Greenville Bus Owners Association (L + G) filed 
this complaint with the Urban Mass Transportation Administration 
(UMTA) alleging that the New Jersey Transit Corporation (NJT) was 
unfairly treating small private bus operators in violation of 
Section 3(e) of the Urban Mass Transportation Act of 1964, as 
amended (UMT Act), with regard to the provision of mass 
transportation service for the Liberty weekend· celebration. 
After a thorough review, UMTA finds that NJT did violate UMTA's 
policies concerning the involve~ent of the private sector in the 
provision of this service and we order NJT to comply with these 
policies in the future when similar special service is planned and 
provided. ~ 

COMPLAINT 

On June 17, 1986, L + G wrote to UMTA complaining about the 
service that NJT was planning to provide for the Liberty Weekend 
celebration to be held from July 3 -7, 1986. L·+ G complained 
that NJT'S treatment of small private operators in relation 
to their participation in the transit service for this celebration 
was unfair. L + G included a copy of a newspaper article that 
described the additional services that NJT planned to provide for 
the celebration. 
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L + G sent another letter to UMTA dated July 1, 1986, on this-same 
issue. The letters included several pieces of correspondence 
between L + G and NJT. In a June 16, 1986, let~er to NJT, L + G 
complained about the service that NJT would provide from Journal 
Square, the Grove Street PATH station, and the Exchange Place 
PATH Station to Liberty Park. L + G .. states that it provides this 
serJice 365 days each year and that any such service NJT would 
provide will be an infringement on its rights and "unjustly 
deprive us of windfall profits." L + G claimed that NJT never 
took its capabilities into consideration and that it wants to 
resolve the issue before the celebration begins. 

L + G included a copy of NJT's response which stated that it 
understands that L + G does not have .the operating authority 
needed to provide regular route service between Journal Square and 
Liberty Park. Furthermore, NJT stated that it had contacted the·. 
Central Avenue IBOA which does have the needed authority, but that 
it was awaiting a response~ 

L + G responded and complained that NJT's response was sent too 
late to permit a resolution of the problem. L + G also 
reiterated its basic complaint •. 

RESPONSE 

UMTA reviewed the materials that L + G sent and concluded that it 
could be viewed as a complaint that NJT had not complied with 
Section 3(e), 8(e) o:r; (f) of the UMT Act and the implementing 
policies in the planning and prospective provision of the special 
service for the celebration. Since it a appeared that L +.G had 
attempted to resolve this problem at the local level and failed, 
UMTA sent NJT a copy of the materials submitted by L + G on 
July 31, 1986, for a response due no later.than 30 days from 
receipt. 

NJT's.,response dated August 26, 1986, states that it did not 
violat"e the UMT Act or any other federal law, regulation or 
policy in its planning or provision of this service. NJT enclosed 
several attachments with its response that include descriptions of 
the planning of the service, press releases about the service and 
schedules of the service. NJT states that it decided to provide 
the service in conjunction with the New Jersey Liberty weekend 
Executive Committee since the current services would be unable to 

· meet the anticipated unprecedented level of service that would be 
needed. 
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NJT admits that L + G provides service to within 1.25 miles of 
Liberty Park and that the Central Avenue IBOA provides regular 
service directly to the Park. NJT states that ~t offered a 
portion of the special service to Central if it could provide 
guaranteed operable air conditioned buses. Since Central could 
not make this guarantee, NJT did not use Central in the provision· 
of the service. Furthermore, NJT states that while it discussed 
the option of hiring private operators to provide the service that 
due to concerns about the quantity and quality of equipment, the 
decision was made not to use them. 

NJT states that the planning process for this service is not part 
of the regular planning process in Section 8(e) or 9(f) of the 
UMT Act and that L + G lacks standing to file this complaint since 
it does not have authority to operate'to the Park. 

NJT states that it did use UMTA funded buses to provide the 
service, but that the operating costs were borne by the farebox 
revenues and that the workers volunteered their time. Thus, NJT 
views this service as a local operation except for the buses. 

NJT concludes that L + G's only complaint is that NJT did not 
lease or hire it. NJT states that the decision which private 
operators should or should npt be included in the provision of 
special service such as here should be left up to the sound 
discretion of the local officials. As a result, NJT finds 
L + G's complaint frivolous. 

REBUTTAL 

UMTA sent a copy of NJT's response to L + G on September 11, 1986, 
and provided it with 30 days from receipt to rebut the response. 
L + G's rebuttal is dated October 6, 1986. 

__ ... 
"In its rebuttal, L + G states that NJT'~ actions 1n regard to 
this service are just another example of how it bullies the 
private, independent carriers in Hudson county, New Jersey. 
L + G states that as late as July 1, 1986, it was told by an NJT 
employee that L + G was to be included in the provision of this 
service. 

L + G provides a description of the service it provides and 
states that it serves Liberty Park, passing within 2 blocks on one 

-route and 3 blocks on another, of the entrances. L + G states 
that _NJT provides hardly any service during the year to the park. 
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The rest of L + G's rebuttal reiterates problems that it has had 
with NJT over the years. These issues are not relevant to the 
complaint at hand. 

DISCUSSION 

A central issue in this complaint is whether the special service 
that NJT planned and provided for Liberty Weekend is the type of 
service·for which a recipient needs to follow UMTA's policies on 
the involvement of the private sector. NJT claims that it is not 
and,. as a result, the complaint is frivolous. 

In UMTA's October 22, 1984, "Private Enterprise Participation.in 
the Urban Mass Transportation Program" we state that recipients 
should consult with the private sector by affording them the 
opportunity as early as possible to participate in the development 
of new and restructured mass transit service. In the January 24, 
1986, "Guidance on Documentation of Private Enterprise 
Parti.cipation in Urban Mass Transportation Programs," UMTA stated 
that "new or restructured services" may include any or all of the 
following, 

establishment of a new mass 
transportation service; addition of a new 
route or routes to an applicant's or 
grantee's mass transportation system; a 
significant increase in service on an 
existing route in an applicant's or 
grantee's mass transportation system; or 
a change in the type or mode of service 
provided on a specific, regularly 
scheduled route in an applicant's or 
grantee's mass transportatiqn system • 
. 51 Fed. Recj. 3307 

It is _arguable that the special service that NJT provided for 
Liberty Weekend does not fit with in this definition. It was 
service for a limited time, designed to serve one event, and 
would not continue beyond the scheduled activities. Since the 
definition that UMTA provided appears to contemplate service of a 
permanent nature, the service in question would not be subject to 
the guidance in the policy statements. 

UMTA disagrees. The ·service here involved the establishment of 
new routes and services. Although the services were offered for a 
limited time and for a limited purpose, the service was provided 
to meet an unprecedented level of need. such service requires 
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advance planning and it is clear that planning did occur at least 
two months prior to provision based on the documents that NJT 
provided. NJT included a copy of the "Transportation/Traffic 
control Plan Liberty Week Celebration 3 - 6 Jul~, 1986 11 with its 
response. This report is dated May 21, 1986, and the date on some 
of the pages is May 12, 1986. Thus, the service was not designed 
in response to an immediate emergency or an unanticipated need 
that would have made the involvement of the private sector 
i~possible. Therefore, ·UMTA concludes that this was "new or 
restructured service" and that NJT should have followed UMTA's 
P.Olicy guidance before instituting the serVice. 

This is not to say that all service of a limited duration or 
purpose will automatically be "new or restructured service." 
UMTA will make such decisions on a case-by-case basis. In 

.situations like this one, however, where there was time to involve 
the private sector, the recipient should treat the limited service 
as ·"new or restruqtured service." 

In the October 22, 1984, policy guidance, uMTA states that a 
recipient should have a process in to place provide for the 
participation of the private sector to the maximum extent 
feasible·. UMTA limits its review of complaints to only those that 
allege a procedural violation that there is·no such process, that 
the process was not followed, or that the process does not provide 
for the fair resolution of complaints. · 

NJT has not submitted a formal private sector participation 
process to UMTA. UMTA has, however, accepted NJT's Private 
Carrier Advisory Committee (PCAC) as NJT's good faith efforts to 
comply with UMTA's private sector policies. The PCAC includes a 
process for resolving disputes between NJT and private operators. 

NJT has.presented no evidence that it used the PCAC in the 
planning or provision of the special service for.'Liberty Weekend 
or for resolving the complaint which L + G filed with NJT. While 
UMTA admits that NJT did consider the use·of Central in the 
provision of this service, that consideration appears to have 
been done on an ad hoc basis and not the formal process that 
UMTA's policies envision. . 

UMTA acknowledges that NJT claims that L + G has no standing to 
·complain under Section 3(e) since it does not have authority to 
provide service into Liberty Park. At this point, UMTA does not 
find t~at this is an important issue. That fact may be a valid 
reason for deciding not to include a private operator in the 
provision of service, but it does not absolve a recipient from 
the basic and preliminary steps of foll~win~ ~ts private s7ctor 
process before a conclusion as to the capab1l1ty of.a part1cular 
provider is made. · 
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CONCLUSION 

After a thorough review of the materials submitted by the 
parties, UMTA concludes that NJT did not comply·with UMTA's policy 
guidance provision of service for Liberty Weekend. Therefore, 
UMTA orders NJT to comply with these policies in the future and to 
follow its own locally developed policies and procedures whenever 
similar. special service is planned and provided. Failure to do so 
may result in finding a pattern of violations that jeopardizes 
continued Federal funding. 

I I 

~~·~ 
/

/:EardJ.B~ i.t:e 
.Chief Couns~i I 
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LAFAYETTE + GREENVILLE BUS 
OWNERS ASSOCIATION 

Complainant 

y. 

NEW JERSEY TRANSIT CORPORATION 
Respondent 

SUMMARY 

) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
} 
) 

NJ-11/85-01 

In this complaint, the LaFayette + Greenville Bus OWners 
Association (complainant) alleges that the New Jersey Transit 
Corporation (respondent} is in violation of the private sector 
provisions in the Urban Mass Transportation Act of 1964, as 
amended (UMT Act), and the implementing policies. After a 
thorough investigation, the Urban Mass Transportation 
Administration (UMTA) finds that the allegations are not 
substantiated. 

COMPLAINT 

On November 13, 1985, Mr. J. Kevin Moran, complainant's president, 
wrote to UMTA to complain about the competition that it faces from 
the respondent. Complainant makes the following specific 
allegations. First, complainant alleges that respondent competes 
unfairly against it because respondent receives monies, operating 
subsidies, and equipment from the Federal Government, the State of 
New Jersey-and the New York-New Jersey Port Authority. 

Second, complainant alleges that there is a conflict of interest 
since respondent's Chairman is also the Director of the New Jersey 
Department of Transportation (NJDOT). As a result, complainant 
alleges that respondent in reality regulates the bus fare 
structure irt New_Jer~ey • 

• • '• ~ •• ' :'" ·'' • • 1 • ~ ~- • • " ... ';·~ ,.. :. ~ ... ~ '· ••• , • .. • •• .-: • 

Third, co~p'lain~nt alTeg.es .t_hat ~xe.spon.derit .. ~'S: .~-b.t Pxp}riaed·Ht ·.~:~· 
with equiprnen_t· for its· bus .. o~~.ra:t:~o~ns u~der:·:the'}983~;·a~d-l~:84 .bi?fs 
allocation plans ·~.<.:.~~~OI\lplainap!;' al:le_ges: that ·:it·:::t:s7,d.-pe· ·91.,~5 /~00 ,.for 
1983 and $300,000. £or '1984 .• · · . . :: ·~ . . ' .. . .. "' 
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Fourth, complainant alleges that respondent unfairly competes with 
it on its bus service in the Jersey City - Bayonne corridor 
because respondent uses advance design buses (ADB) on this route. 
These are relatively new buses and complainant states that it 
must use buses that are at least 10 years old. Complainant argues 
that out of fairness respondent ought to use the same type of 
equipment. Complainant states that it has written to respondent 
on this matter. Complainant states that respondent has replied 
that it may use the ADB's and that complainant cannot dictate the 
type of buses it uses. Complainant states that it does not object 
to respondent's use of the ADB's elsewhere. 

Fifth, complainant alleges that when it complains or makes an 
inquiry of respondent, NJDOT conducts an inspection of its 
equipment. Complainant alleges that these inspections cause a 
hardship. Complainant states that taking buses out of service for 
minor repairs inconveniences the customer because it has no spares 
and, thus, there are fewer buses on the line. 

sixth, complainant concludes by stating that it has asked 
respondent to buy it out because it can no longer compete with it. 
To date complainant states that no answer has been forthcoming. 

RESPONSE 

UMTA reviewed complainant's letter and decided to treat it as a 
private sector complaint. Pursuant to UMTA's complaint 
procedures, we forwarded a copy of complainant's letter to 
respondent on February 28, 1986, and provided it witn 30 days from 
receipt to respond to the allegations. Due to administrative 
oversight, UMTA neglected to enclose a copy of complainant's 
letter and corrected the error on March 24, 1986. UMTA extended 
respondent's time for response to 30 days from receipt of the 
second letter. 

Respondent replied on Apri.l 25, 1986. In general, respondent 
states that it has reviewed the applicable provisions in the UMT 
Act and the implementing policy statements and finds that it has 
violated no Federal law or regulation. Respondent concludes that 
there is no reason for UMTA to take further action on the matter. 

Respondent also responds to the specific allegations that 
complainant makes. In response to complainant's second 
allegations, respondent states that its Chairman is also the 
Commissioner of Transportation in New Jersey because of New Jersey 
state Law. Respondent states that the office that sets intrastate 
fares for private bus carriers is the Office of Regulatory 
Affairs. Respondent states that while the Director of this office 
does report to the Commissioner, the Director is completely 
independent of respondent. 
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In response to complainant's third allegation respondent provides 
a summary of the equipment that complainant was told that it would 
receive under the allocation plans. Respondent states that · 
complainant informed respondent on August 4, 1985, that it no 
longer wished that equipment. Respondent states that it is 
waiting for a request from complainant for replacement items. 

In response to the fourth allegation, respondent provides copies 
of the correspondence between the parties on this issue. 
Respondent notes that it had offered ADBs to complainant in 1981, 
but that complainant refused them since it would not be able to 
maintain such complicated buses. 

In response to the fifth allegation, respondent states that the 
safety inspection of buses in New Jersey is a responsibility of 
the Office of Regulatory Affairs within NJDOT and that its buses 
are subject to the same inspection as complainant's buses. 
Respondent provides the name of the director of this office and 
suggests that complainant contact him. 

REBUTTAL 

UMTA sent a copy of respondent's letter to complainant on May 7, 
1986, and provided it with 15 days from receipt to rebut the 
evidence. Complainant's rebuttal is dated June 16, 1986. Since 
this is dat~d after the expiration of the 15-day rebuttal period, 
UMTA does not regard the letter as part of the administrative 
record for this complaint and has not considered the material in 
rendering this decision. 

DISCUSSION 

In "Private Enterprise Participation in the Urban Mass 
Transportation Program," 49 Fed. Reg. 41310, October 22, 1984, 
UMTA describes its private sector complaint proc·ess. This notice 
states that UMTA will entertain complaints, 

Only upon procedural grounds that 
the local planning and programming 
process has not established procedures 
for the maximum feasible participation of 
private providers consistent with section 
8(e) and the spirit of this policy~ or 
that local procedures were not followed~ 
or that the local process does not 
provide for fair resolution of disputes. 
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In addition, UMTA states that we will not entertain any complaints 
until the complainant has attempted to resolve its problems at the 
local level. Therefore, UMTA has created a narrow range of issues 
that we will entertain as formal private sector complaints. 
Although there maybe many other problems that a private operator 
may have with an UMTA recipient, such problems will not form the 
basis of a complaint that UMTA will adjudicate. 

In this complaint, several allegations do not fall within the 
three categories listed in the policy statement. These are the 
first, second, and sixth allegations. The first allegation is a 
complaint about the structure of Federal, State and local funding 
mechanisms for mass transportation. The second is a complaint 
about the structure of State law. The sixth is a complaint that 
respondent appears to show no interest in purchasing complainant. 
Since none of these are allegations that fall with the three 
categories listed above, UMTA will not address them in this 
decision. The allegations that UMTA will discuss further are, 
therefore,' the third, fourth, and fifth. 

In the third allegation, complainant alleges that it has not 
received equipment under respondent's bus allocation plan. Read 
in a light most favorable to the complainant, the third allegation 
can be viewed as an allegation that respondent's planning and 
programming process does not provide for the maximum feasible 
participation of the private sector because the program does 
not provide the equipment promised under it. 

Respondent does not deny that complainant has not received the 
equipment that was to be provided in 1983 and 1984. Respondent, 
however, explains that complainant has not received any equipment 
because it wrote to say that it did not want the equipment 
originally sought and has not indicated any substitute equipment. 
It appears that there is not a problem with respondent's program, 
but rather that complainant has not followed the process involved 
with obtaining equipment under it. It appears that all 
complainant must do is contact the respondent to resolve this 
matter. 

In the fourth allegation complainant alleges that respondent 
unfairly competes with it because it uses ADBs on a route they 
both serve. Complainant does not allege that it is unfair 
competition that respondent serves this route. The complaint is 
limited to the use of newer buses on the route. Complainant 
alleges that it has written respondent numerous times in an 
attempt to resolve this problem, but that it has had no success. 
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In the fifth allegation, complainant alleges that the respondent 
initiates retaliatory inspections of complainant's equipment 
whenever it complains to respondent. Read in a light most 
favorable to complainant, these two allegations appear to be that 
respondent's local process does not provide for the fair 
resolution of disputes. 

It is important to note that the dispute that a party complains of 
must be something that the UMT Act or the implementing policies 
require or address. UMTA cannot reach beyond the limits of our 
authorizing legislation or implementing documents in order to 
control the relationships of our recipients arid piivate 
enterprise. In the case of the fourth allegation, UMTA recognizes 
that complainant is not satisfied with the fact that respondent 
uses newer buses and that it must use older buses to serve 
basically the same pool of riders. 

The use of newer equipment may attract more riders and result in 
higher revenues. This, however, is not a practice that the UMT 
Act or the implementing policies prohibit or even address. Thus, 
UMTA will not reach beyond these limits to address the merits of 
the disagreement. UMTA does note, however, that complainant did 
have the opportunity to obtain the same buses that respondent 
uses, but declined. That is a decision complainant made several 
years ago and with which it must live. 

Complainant_states that the respondent initiates retaliatory 
inspections of its equipment whenever it complains to respondent. 
The evidence presented by ~espondent shows, however, that 
respondent has no part in deciding if and when bus inspections are 
done. Rather, this duty lies within NJDOT's Office of Regulatory 
Affairs which is completely independent from respondent. 
Furthermore, this office inspects respondent's buses as well as 
complainant's buses. Therefore, UMTA finds that respondent cannot 
be guilty of violating the private sector protection provisions in 
the UMT Act or the policy statements with regard to any 
inspections since it has no responsibility for instituting or 
conducting them. 

318 



6 

CONCLUSION 

After a thorough review of the materials submitted, UMTA finds 
that complainant has not substantiated any violations by 
respondent of the private sector provisions in the UMT Act or the 
implementing policies. Therefore, the complaint is dismissed. 
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us. DeporTmenf 
ot Tronspononon 
Urt:>cn Mass 
Tronsponatton 
Admlnishataa 

Mr. Troy L. Nelson 
Charter Department 
Mass Transportation Authority 
1401-03 South Dort Highway 
Flint. Michigan 48503 

Dear Mr. Nelson: 

~ 23 1988 

•oo ~St .. s.w. 
Wastungaon. D.C. 20590 

Enclosed is a letter to me from Mr. Charles A. Webb, General 
Counsel of the American Bus Association, accompanied by a letter 
to you from Mr. Thomas w. Fisher, President of Tower Bus. 

The Urban Mass Transportation Administration (UMTA) is aware 
that, for a variety of reasons, a private operator might be 
unwilling or unable to perform certain charter trips. While UMTA 
has taken the position that an UMTA recipient, such as ·the Mass 
Transportation Authority (MTA), may perform a particular charter 
trip, even though the recipient has determined that there are 
•willing and able• private operators in its service a;-ea. there 
first must be an agreement to this effect between the recipient 
ang all the private operators in the recipient'• geographical area 
and any service provided must conform to the limitations of that 
agreement. In addition, the recipient's annual charter notice 
must have provided for this type of agreement. If it· did not, the 
recipient must, before undertaking the charter trip in question, 
amend its notice to specifically refer to such an agreement. 
Moreover, recipients are encouraged to engage private operators in 
a dialogue through other means as well, such as written 
communications, conferences, or informal meetings. 

From my r~1iew of Mr. Fisher's letter to you, it appears that 
there is a misunderstanding between you and Mr. Fisher about the 
conditions under which MTA may provide charter service. Indeed, 
unless the other private operators have concurred in the 
•agreement• MTA believes it has made with Tower Bus, MTA may not 
operate any charter aervice in its geographical area, since there 
is apparently at least one willing and able operator (Tower Bus) 
has been identified. 
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In au:JnJnary. 'OMTA requests that ¥.'!'A honor all the reqli1rements of 
the charter service regulations, 49 C.F.R. Part 604. 

Enclosures 

cc: Charles Webb 
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In the matter of: 

Yellow Cab Co. ) 
Complainant ) 

) 
) 

v. ) 
) 
) 

JAUNT, Inc. ) 
Respondent ) 

) 

SUMMARY 

BEFORE THE URBAN MASS 
TRANSPORTATION ADMINISTBATIQB 

VA-03/86-01 

DECISION 

Yellow Cab, Co. (Yellow) filed this complaint with the Urban Mass 
Transportation Administration (UMTA) alleging that JAUNT, Inc. 
(JAUNT) had not complied with the provisions in the Urban Mass 
Transportation Act of 1964, as amended (UMT Act) and the 
implementing guic:lance concerning the participation of private 
enterprise in the provision of UMTA assistec:l mass transportation. 
After a thorough review of the administrative record, UMTA finc:ls 
that the local c:lecision-maker erred in its interpretation and 
application of UMTA's guidance. Therefore, UMTA remands this 
matter to the local level for further action consistent with this 
c:lecision. 

COMPLAINT 
. 

Yellow•s·private·sector complaint with JAUNT came to UMTA's 
attention in 1985.1 By letter .dated. August ~, 1985, UMTA 
informed Yellow that it needec:l to attempt to resolve its problems 
with JAUNT at the local level· before ·tJMTA would become involved. 
Yellow's formal complaint dated March 2~, 1986, acknowledges that 
local attempts were made but that the local process did not 
provide for the fair resolution of its dispute with JAUNT. 

In the first part of its complaint, Yellow sets forth the 
chronology of events •. ~n June 18, 1985, the University of 

1 Yello·w states in various exhibits attached to its complaint 
that the service which is the subject of this complaint could be 
charter service. UMTA, however, has treated this as,a complaint 
of non-compliance with UMTA • s requ.irements for the participation 
of the private sector in the provis-ion of mass transportation 
since that is how Yellow chal;acterized its problems in·th•.actual 
complaint l.e.tter. UMTA believ.~s that the service is mass . 
transportation since while it i;s provided under contract, JAUN'l' 
appears to control the service and it is not exclusive to the 
employees of the Unive~~ity The contract, Exhib5.t 1~· to +..he 
complaint, makes this ~··.:/.ear 
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Virginia (University) issued a request to bid on bus service to 
shuttle its employees between two branches of its hospitals. 
JAUNT had been providing this service since 1977, but at Yellow's 
request, the University agreed to put it out to bid. 

Both Yellow and JAUNT responded. Yellow alleges that it bid 
$18.25/hour and that JAUNT bid $10.50/hour. The University 
selected JAUNT and Yellow appealed the decision to the 
Charlottesville-Albemarle Metropolitan Planning Organization (MPO) 
alleging non-compliance with UMTA 1s guidelines on the · 
participation of the private sector in the provision of mass 
transportation service. 

The MPO did not have a process for resolving private sector 
disputes, but Yellow states that it agreed with JAUN'l' to a three 
member arbitration panel that would issue a non-binding decision. 
The panel met and issued a dec.ision on December 2, 1985, finding. 
that JAUNT had not violated UMTA's guidelines. The MPO adopted a 
resolution approving this decision on December 12, 1985. Yellow 
states that there was no appeals process for this decision, but it 
requested the MPO to reconsider the decision on January 17, 1986. 
Yellow states that on January 30, 1986, it appeared before the 
MPO's technical committee requesting that it recommend to the MPO 
that the MPO should reconsider approval of the decision. The 
request was denied. Yellow asked the MPO to reconsider the 
decision on March 19, 1986, and this request was also denied. 

Yellow states that it must now seek UMTA involvement. Yellow 
states that it understands that OMTA will not review the substance 
of the local decision, but that it needs UMTA's assistance to 
establish a local procedure that protects private operators when 
disputes arise as a result of the application of UMTA's guidance. 

Yellow states that there are several bases for its appeal to UMTA. 
First, Yellow states that an appeals process is necessary due to 
various factors including the fact that the arbitration was non
binding, that the panel took a narrow approach in its analysis of 
whether it is appropriate for JAUNT to provide the shuttle 
service, and the panel's failure to address several issues raised 
by Yellow. 

Second, Yellow states that regardless of whether it is appropriate 
for JAUNT to provide the service, the panel erred in its failure 
to adequately consider the issue of true comparison of costs. 
Yellow raised this issue in the documents it presented to the 
panel arguing that JAUNT's bid of $10.50/hour does not represent 
its true cost for providing the service. 

Yellow quotes from the decision to support its position. The 
decision states that the concept of true comparison of costs ia 
difficult to analyze and such .a comparison would be difficult to 
do particularly since it did not know how Yellow calculated its 
costs. Yellow states that the ~anel never asked for this 
information and that Yellow did not furnish this information 
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itself since the UMTA guidance is directed to determining the true 
cost of recipients• service. Moreover, Yellow states that it 
believes that it introduced enough evidence to show that its coat 
was lower than JAUNT's subsidized cost and therefore established 
that it could provide the service more efficiently than JAUNT. 

Third, Yellow argues that the panel erred by stating that in fact 
the issue of true comparison of costs is •somewhat moot• since 
Yellow failed to establish that the shuttle service is not "new or 
.significantly.restructured.• Yellow argues that the service does 
meet this threshold test under UMTA guidance since the service 
described in t~e request for bids completely changed the route and 
doubled the distance. 

Yellow states that regardless of whether the service is new or 
restructured, the UMTA guidance ma)(es clear that true comparison 
of costs must be calculated when the private sector maintains that 
it can provide service more efficiently. Yellow refers to 49 Fed. 
-~· 41312 to support this position and to 51 lG· B.!g. 3306-
3308 to confirm this contention. 

Yellow states that JAUNT admitted to the panel that its bid of 
$10.50/hour had nothing to do with the cost of the service. It is 
alleged that JAUNT maintains that this figure represents the fare. 
Yellow quotes from the testimony by Linda Wilson, JAUNT's 
Executive Director, to the panel to support this argument. 

Yellow also quotes from JAUNT's pamphlet, Advantages to Human 
Service Agencies of Using the Consolidated JAUNT System Tor 
Transportation Needs (May 1985). This document states that one of 
the cost savings that social service agencies realize by 
contracting with JAUNT is that the •users pay only half of the 
cost of transportation" since half of JAUNT's operating costs are 
subsidized by State, local and Federal assistance. Yellow infers 
from this that JAUNT's real costs are approximately $20.00/hour. 
Yellow states that this inference is supported by JAUNT's 
statement of monthly performance indicators for the first 10 
months of fi-scal year 84-85 which shows JAUNT's total costs to be 
$19.31/hour. 

Yellow states that JAUNT disputed this $19.31 figure and stated 
to the panel that JAUNT·had never figured what its indirect costs 
would be. Yellow refers to Ms. Wilson's testimony when she states 
that she would guess that the adding of the indirect costs of 
operating its shuttle service would bring the cost to $15.00 or 
$16.00/hour. 

Yellow states that it was distressed to learn this since on 
April 18, 1984, JAUNT had prepared a cost analysis of the shuttle 
for the University and included indirect costs for this service. 
Yellow states that when the indirect costs listed in this analysis 
are added to the FY 84-85 direct costs the total cost would be 
$26.08/hour which is higher than Yellow's bid of $18.25/hour. 
Yellow states that JAUNT's failure to disclose this information to 
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the panel and its misrepresentation that no analysis bad been 
mbde, prevented the panel from reaching a decision on the true 
facts. 

Yellow also states that the $26.08/hour figure is significant 
since the service described in the request for bids was twice as 
long as that operated in FY 84-85. Yellow presumes that if 
JAUNT's bid had remotely reflected its true costs that it would 
have to have been in~reased from this figure. Instead, JAUNT bid 
the same price for FY 85-86 as it had in FY 84-85. 

Yellow describes in detail what it considers to be irregularities 
in the bidding process. Yellow states that there were discussions 
between JAUNT and the University during the biding process and 
that the service which JAUNT provides under the resulting contract 
does not reflect the service that was described in the request for 
bids. 

Yellow concludes by stating that part of the problem involved with 
this action is the MPO's uncertainty in how to implement UMTA's 
guidance. In addition, Yellow states that the MPO is predisposed 
to favor JAUNT due to its length in providing service in the 
Charlottesville area. Yellow states that this position makes it 
difficult for private carriers to become involved. 

RESPONSE 

UMTA reviewed Yellow's letter and determined that the service 
appears to be mass transportation, but that there was no evidence 
of how JAUNT attempted to provide for the participation of the 
private sector to the maximum extent feasible. Since there 
appeared to have been an attempt to resolve the matter at the 
local level, UMTA stated that it was now the appropriate time for 
us to investigate the complaint. On April 23, 1986, UMTA sent 
JAUNT a copy of the materials that Yellow submitted and provided 
JAUNT with 30 days from recipient to respond. 

JAUNT's response is dated May 2, 1986. JAUNT argues that there is 
a local process for resolving disputes and the process used in 
this complaint was in fact suggested by Yellow's attorney. JAUNT 
states that the MPO formally adopted this process to handle all 
future disputes on April 3, 1986. JAUNT questions whether Yellow 
accepts this process only when it.decides in favor of the private 
operator. 

JAUNT states that it has been providing the hospital shuttle 
service since 1977 and that it is part of a consolidated human 
service/public specialized transportation system. JAUNT states 
that the fee charged for this .service is based on recovering all 
direct operating costs and that indirect costs are funded by 
local, state and UMTA funds. 
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JAUNT states that none of the participants in the coordinated 
system bid tor services. They are, instead, public agencies being 
served by another public agency. JAUNT states that if private 
operators wished to participate they would have difficulties. As 
an example, JAUNT states that since it only receives subsidies to 
operate and administer its service, that these are the only funds 
it could pass along to a private operator through a subcontract. 
JAUNT states, however, that it would need to retain .these monies 
since it would still have administrative costs with the 
subcontract. 

JAUNT describes the series of ev~nts that have led up to this 
controversy. First, JAUNT states that in FY 85 no private 
operator expressed any desire to provide the shuttle service even 
though one of Yellow's employees was serving on JAUNT's board and 
on the MPO's technical committee. 

Second, JAUNT states that Yellow went to the University .and told 
it that it had to bid out the shuttle service. The University 
complied, but that the bid requests only the fee charged for the 
service. JAUNT states that as part of its transportati.on 
improvement process (TIP), it determined that the University 
qualified for JAUNT's subsidized fee. J;AUNT states that if the 
University had not qualified for this rate, it would not have bid 
on the service since JAUNT only serves approved agencies. 

Third, JAUNT states that it would investigate subcontracting to 
Yellow, but that it understands that Yellow is not interested in 
subcontracting for the shuttle. 

Fourth, JAUNT is unclear what remedy Yellow seeks. JAUNT states 
that a remedy could include the opportunity to subcontract or 
require JAUNT to bid its full costs for the shuttle service. 

Finally, JAUNT describes the activities it is doing to involve the 
private sector. First, JAUNT has developed an agreement to begin 
subcontracting demand-responsive urban public transportation to 
taxicabs. There are problems with insurance coverage in this 
effort that it is attempting to resolve. These same problems 
inhibit JAUNT's ability to subcontract out the shuttle service. 
Second, JAUNT has private sector representation on its board. 
Third, JAUNT will engage a consultant to design a complete cost 
allocation plan prior to the approval of the 1988 TIP. Fourth, 
JAUNT had private sector participation in its recent revision of 
its policies, procedures and long range plans • 

REBUTTAL 

UMTA sent a copy of JAUNT's response to Yellow on May 7, 1986, and 
provided it with 30 days from receipt to rebut JAUNT's response. 
On June 4, 1986, Yellow wrote to UMTA to request a copy o~ UMTA's 
decision in Raleigh Transportation Services v. ~ity of Raleigh. 
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North carolina and Capital Area Transit system, and an extension 
until June 23, 1986.2 UMTA sent the requested materials and 
granted the extension by letter dated June 10, 1986. Yellow'• 
rebuttal is dated June 19, 1986. · 

Yellow states that it had expressed an interest in and questioned 
JAUNT's role in providing the shuttle service since 1982. Yellow 
states that it never had the opportunity to become ·involved in 
this service until the University put the service out to bid in 
June 1985. Before Yellow responded to this request, it aent a 
copy of UMTA's guidelines to JAUNT ao that it could bid its fully 
allocated costs for the service. 

Yellow reiterates its allegations concerning the panel's failure 
to adequately address the issue of true comparison of coats. 
Yellow also reiterates JAUNT·' s failure to inform the panel of the 
analysis of indirect costs that it had done.in 1984. 

Yellow states that this failure to disclose information and other 
actions taken by JAUNT evidence its lack of good faith in this 
controversy. Yellow states that this attitude is evident in a 
newsp·aper article written by Ms. Wilson. 

Yellow closes by requesting that UMTA impose all available 
sanctions against JAUNT including the withholding of future 
funding until JAUNT complies with UMTA's private sector guidance 
and redresses the loss sustained by Yellow as a consequence of 
JAUNT's failure to comply with those guidelines in this matter. 

DISCUSSlON 

In its complaint, Yellow raises several issues, some of which are 
peripheral to the central issue. We will dispose of the 
peripheral issues first. 

First, Yellow describes irregularities with the bidding process. 
Yellow points to discussions between JAUNT and the University and 
differences between the service as described in the request for 
bids and the actual service. While UMTA is concerned with 
possible problems in the bidding procedures, our concerns are 
limited to situations where an UMTA recipient is conducting the 
procurement, and not where the recipient is bidding on service 
sought by a third party. It is UMTA's position that the third 
party, in this case the University, is in the best position to 
determine compliance with the procurement procedures that it auat 
follow and that any disputes arising from procurement procedures 
should be resolved in a local forum. Therefore, UMTA ia 

2 UMTA's letter of April 23,· 1986, to JAUNT cited this decision 
as the basis for initially determining that the shuttle service is 
mass transportation. 
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dismissing the allegations with respect to JAUNT's bidding 
irregularities. 

Second, Yellow states that its main concern with the local 
resolution process that was involved in this matter is that it did 
not provide for an appeals process. Since Yellow finds that the 
panel took a narrow approach in its analysis of whether it ia 
appropriate for JAUNT to provide the shuttle service and did not 
properly apply the guidance on fully allocated coats that an 
appeals process is critical. 

UMTA disagrees. The guidance which UMTA bas issuaa on private 
sector participation has never required a local appeals process to 
be part of the local dispute resolution process. Indeed, the most 
recent guidance provided in UMTA Circular 7005.1, ~Documentation 
of Private Enterprise Participation Required for Sections 3 and 9 
Programs" (December 5, 1986), states; "Once a Complainant has 
exhausted his local dispute resolution process, he should send his 
complaint to: [the UMTA] Chief Counsel." · 

The implication of this language is that a local appeals process 
is not required since UMTA sees its role as the party to whom . 
appeals of that local process are made. While a local dispute 
resolution process many provide for local avenues of appeal, UMTA 
does not require one. See, •• g. Durango Transportation. Inc. v. 
'ity of Durango, C0-09/85-01, February 24, 1987 (the local process 
provided for several levels of appeal). As result, the absence of 
such a component does not invalidate the local process nor is it 
the basis for UMTA to entertain a complaint. 

UMTA now turns to the central issue in this complaint. Yellow 
correctly states UMTA's position that we will not review the 
substance of local decisions regarding service or the appropriate 
service provider. UMTA articulated this position in the 
October 22, 1984, guidance on "Private Enterprise Participation in 
the Urban Mass Transportation Program," [49 ~. ~. 41310] and 
restated it in Circular 7005.1. This statement should not be 
interpreted to mean that UMTA will never review the substance of a 
local decision. Rather, UMTA's position is that we will not 
review the substance of a local decision when the decision is 
reasonable and correctly applies our guidance. If UMTA were to 
accept every local decision simply because a local process was 
followed, but not ensure that our guidance were _correctly 
articulated and applied, we would license arbitrary, unreasonable, 
and capricious decisions. 

In this case, UMTA finds that the decision which the panel issued 
and which the MPO adopted does not correctly reflect UMTA'a 
guidance and is, therefore, not acceptable to UMTA. There are 
several reasons for this, but before these ar~ stated, UMTA will 
summarize the decision. 

The decision, dated November 25, 1985, first thanks the parties 
for their participation and the opportunity to consider the 
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issues. The decision then turns to the specific two qtiestions 
that Yellow raised in the materials. that it submitted to the 
panel. First, the decision finds that JAUNT may provide service 
like the hospital shuttle service since there is nothing in the 
record to show that it is inappropriate for JAUNT to provide the 
service. 

Second, the decision addresses the issue of the rull allocation of 
costs as stated in UMTA's 1984 quidance. The decision states that 
JAUNT's bid does not take into consideration all of its costs 
since it does not include indirect costs. The decision, however, 
states that the concept of true allocation of costs is a ~1fficult 
concept to deal with for several reasons including the absence of 
a profit factor for the UMTA recipient and the lack of knowledge 
of how Yellow arrived at its bid of $18.25/hour. 

The decision addresses this quandary and finds that JAUNT's true 
cost is higher that the $10.50 it bid, but that the panel could 
not provide a definitive answer to Yellow's question "since the 
manner in which the Yellow Cab bid was calculated was unknown to 
the panel." p. 3. 

The decision, however, states that the matter of comparing costs 
was "somewhat moot" since the panel did not conclude that the 
service was "new or significantly restructured." The decision 
states that this is the threshold that service must meet, under 
UMTA's guidance, to require a comparison of the full allocation of 
costs. While the decision states that the panel reached this 
conclusion because the service as provided by JAUNT under the 
contract is the same as it was providing previously for the 
University, it states that the panel would have reached the same 
conclusion if the route had been changed in accordance with. the 
request for bids. 

Next, the decision states that the UMTA guidance and policies 
involved in this matter apply to UMTA recipi .. nts and not to third 
parties like the University. The panel did not permit "such 
technicalities" to prevent it from responding to Yellow's 
question. 

The panel concludes by stating that the MPO should give serious 
consideration to the involvement of the private sector in the 
provision of mass transportation in the area, but that the lack of 
clarity and nebulous concepts in UMTA's guidance do not provide a 
useful service. The decision closes with the request that the 
parties bring these views to UMTA's attention. 

UMTA finds that this decision is unacceptable for several reasons. 
First, the panel finds that the service is not new or 
significantly restructured so as to trigger the comparison of 
fully allocated costs between the various proposers. The decision 
states that the panel reached this conclusion because the service 
JAUNT provides under the contract is the same as it provided 
before. In addition, the panel finds that even if the service 
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were provided as described in the request for bids that it would 
not be new or significantly restructured. 

UMTA disagrees. First, it is the service as described ·in the 
request for bids that must be compared with existing service in 
order to make a decision whether it is new or restructured. T.be 
panel erred in using the service as provided by JAUNT under the 
contract as the benchmark. The service described· in the request 
for bids would follow a different route than that which JAUNT was 
providing and would have doubled the length of the route. This 
change is clearly a significant restructuring of an existing route 
and requires the comparison of fully allocated costs when making 
decisions between competing service providers. · 

UMTA would have reached this same conclusion even if the service 
described in the request for bids had been the same as JAUNT was 
providing. In a contract situation, as here, UMTA believes that 
any rebidding for existing service is new or restructured service. 

The second error that UMTA finds the panel made is to not compare 
the fully allocated costs of JAUNT with the bid made by Yellow. 
While UMTA does not dispute the panel's conclusion that the UMTA 
guidance is directed at the recipients and not third parties, UMTA 
holds that when a recipient bids on service requested by third 
parties, the recipient JDust bid its tully allocated costs if the 
provision of that servic.e will involve the use of UM'I'A 
assistance. 

In this case, JAUNT only bid its fare excluding any allocation of 
the indirect administrative costs associated with performing under 
the contract. The panel recognized that it could make a quess, 
based on JAUNT's testimony, that adding the indirect costs would 
increase the cost to more than the $10.50/hour which JAUNT had 
bid. The panel concludes that despite this, it could not provide 
a definitive answer since it did not have Yellow's c~lculations. 

UMTA's guidance does not require that all parties to a bid submit 
their fully allocated costs. It is only the public agencies and 
non-profit agencies whose bids must reflect their fully allocated 
costs. UMTA's guidance states that in such circumstances, 
"Subsidies provided to public carriers, including operating 
subsidies, capital grants and the use of public facilities should 
be reflected in the cost comparisons." 49 ~ •. ~. at 41312. 
Thus, UMTA does not intend that a private operator fully allocate 
it costs or bid this figure in a procurement. UMTA intends that 
the price bid by the private operator is the figure against which 
a recipient's or a non-profit agency's fully allocated ·cost i• 
compared. In this case, the panel did not follow this approach 
and UMTA cannot permit this error to stand. 

It is important to note that VMTA does not require that the 
service be performed by the low bidder. UM'l'A has always . 
maintained that cost is one of the factors that a decision maker 
should consider, bnt we have never stated nor do we support the 
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position that it ia the only factor to consider. UMTA Circular 
7005.1 makes this clear when it atates in Paragraph S.d. that the 
local process for the consideration of the private sector must 
include, MThe use of costs [defined in the circular as fully 
allocated costs] as A factor in the private/public decision.• 
[Emphasis added.] Thus, price ia one of •any factor• that should 
be considered before any decia~on is made on the appropriate 
service provider. 

CONCLUSION 

After a thorough investigation of the record, UMTA finds that the 
decision recommended by the arbitration panel and adopted by the 
MPO is not consistent with UMTA's guidance and cannot be accepted 
by UMTA as the end product of a local resolution process. 
Therefore, UMTA remands this matter to the MPO for further action 
consistent with it process adopted April 3, 1986, this decision, .. 
and UMTA's guidance. UMTA expects that the parties will act as 
expeditiously as possible to comply with this order. 

UMTA reminds the parties that if the local decision is that JAUNT 
should not provide the service, but the University decides that it 
wants JAUNT as the provider and JAUNT actually provides the 
service, then the service will not be eligible for any UMTA 
assistance and must be provided using only locally funded 
equipment, facilities and operating assistance. Any further UMTA 
action in this compl~int will be based on appeals, if any, of the 
decision on remand. 

1 _: 11. i • . ._ ' . .' I / •. / 1 .j 
Rita Oaquillard 
Attorney-Advisor 
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us. Deportment 
of Tronspor10tion 

Urban Mass 
Transportation 
Administration 

Dear Colleague: 

The Administrator 

~ 6 \988 

400 Seventh St., S.W. 
Washington, D.C. 20590 

The anniversacy of the effective date of the Urban Mass 
Transportation Administration's (UMTA) charter service regulation, 
49 C.F.R. Part 604, has recently passed. UMTA has been pleased 
with the cooperation of the many UMTA recipients that have 
implemented this regulation appropriately, and that have responded 
in a positive manner with the private charter bus industry. · 

Because the time is near when many recipients that wish to provide 
charter service to accommodate community needs.must publish new 
annual notices, UMTA would like to direct your attention to the 
following matters: 

Defective Notices 

Problems with notices have frequently arisen when recipients have 
described the types of equipment they intend to use, and suggested 
that a private provider must offer similar equipment to be 
considered willing and able. A recipient's notice must not 
require anything beyond: {1) a: statement that the private 
operator has the desire to provide the service described and the 
physical capability, by virtue of tile possession of at least on~ 
bus or van, to do so, and (2) submission of documents showing that 
the private operator possesses the requisite legal authority. 
Regardless of how the recipient describes its own service, the 
recipient must make it clear in the notice that private operators 
are not required to respond in similar detail. 

UMTA is aware that for a variety of reasons a private operator 
might be unwilling or unable to .perform certain charter trips. 
UMTA believes that a recipient may m~ke the "willing and able" 
process more.effective by expanding the content of its charter 
notice to include information which would be helpful-to the 
private operator in deciding whether to respond. Thus, in 
addition to the information required by 49 C.F.R. § 604.ll(c), 
i.e., days, times of day, geographic area, and category of revenue 
vehicle to be used, a recipient may include in its notice 
descriptions of destination, trip purpose, or clientele to be 
served. As long as the notice does not discourage a response from 
a person who meets the minimum criteria for a "willing and able" 
operator, a recipient has flexibility in using descriptions which 
allow private operators to decide whether they desire to perform a 
particular trip. 
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In addition, if the recipient's annual charter notice has provided 
for such an agreement, an UMTA recipient may perform a particular 
charter trip, even though it has teen.deter.mined that there are 
"willing and able" private operators in its service area, when 
there is- an agreement to this effect between the recipient .. and the . 
private operators. =--· 

In addition to this formal notice process, recipients ar.e 
encouraged to engage private operators in a dialogue through ether 
means as well, such as written communications, conferences, or · 
informal meetings. A recipient may also provide in its notice a 
telephone number which a private operator may call to obtain 
further information on the proposed service. 

For further information pertaining to requirements for charter 
notices, your attention is directed to Questions and Answers 
Numbers 2 through 18 of UMTA's Charter Service Questions and 
Answers, 52 ~Reg. 42242 et seq., November 3, 1.987. 

Special Service 

UMTA considers "special service" to be a type of·"mass 
transportation," _rather than "charter s-ervice." Among the types 
of sel0'ice that qualify as "special service" are service 
exclusively for elderly and handicapped persons and service 
provided for workers who live in the inner city, but work in 
the suburbs. However, these. types of special service should 
not be confused with charter service for non-profit or other 
similar groups. See preamble to the Charter Service Regulation, 
52 Fed. Reg. 11920, April 13, 1987, and Question and Answer 
Number 44 of UMTA's Charter Service Questions and Answers, 
52 Fed. Reg. 42242 et seg~, November 3, 1987, for further 
discussion. If youhave any questions about whether the special 
service you intend to offer qualifies as mass transportation, 
please contact the appropriate UMTA Regional Manager. 

Special Events 

A recipient need not announce in the notice its intention to seek 
a special events exception; nevertheless, it may be useful for 
recipients to use the notice as a···means to determine to what 
extent private operators are able to provide service to 
accommodate a particular special event. See Question.and Answer 
Number 23 of UMTA's Charter Service Questions and Answers, 52 Fed. 
Reg. 42242 et ~, November 3, 1987, for further discussion. ----
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Proposed Amendment To The Regulation 

I also call your attention to UMTA's recent issuance of a notice 
of proposed rulemaking (NPRM) eontaining proposed amen~ents to 
the cha~er service regulation, 53~ Reg. 18964 ~seq.; 
May 25, ~988. In response to cong~ess1onal guidance, UMTA is 
undertaking a rulemaking ·to consider an amendment to its charter 
regulation that would allow nonprofit social service agencies with 
a need for affordable or handicapped-accessible equipment to seek 
bids from public transit authorities. The NPRM also addresses 
whether an exemption to those public transit authorities which 
purchased charter rights entirely with non-Federal funds prior to 
enactment of the Urban Mass Transportation Act of 1964, as · . 
amended, should be permitted. UMTA held a hearing on this 
proposed amendment on June 20, 1988, in Washington, D.C., and will 
hold further hearings on June 29, 1988., in Kansas City, Missouri;·. 
on July 15, 1988, in Cincinnati, Ohio; and on July 20, 1988, in 
San Francisco, California. Please see the UMTA notice at 53 Fed. 
Reg. 20660 et seq., June 6, 1988, for more information on these-
he~rings. UMTA welcomes your participation in this rulemaking. 

Again, UMTA wishes to express its appreciation for the fine 
cooperation of many recipients in adhering to the requirements of 
the charter service regulation. 

Sincerely, 

/J1,.I'NI a. Jttt~,:~ 
~DelliBovi 
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SYRACUSE & OSWEGO MOTOR LINES 1 ·INC. 
Complainant 

v. 

CENTRAL NEW YORK REGIONAL TRANSPORTATION 
. AUTHORITY I 

Respondent 

SUMMARY 

) 
) 
) 
) NY-05/86-01 
) 
) 
) 

Syracuse & Oswego Motor Lines, Inc. (S&O), filed this complaint 
with the Urban Mass Transportation Administration (UMTA), alleging 
that the Central New York Regional Transportation Authority · ·· 
(Centro) had failed to comply with the provisions of the Urban 
Mass Transportation Act of 1964, as amended (UMT Act), and the 
implementing guidance concerning private enterprise involvement in 
the provision of mass transportation. The complaint specifically 
alleged that Centro was improperly providing shuttle service 
between Manley Field House and Crouse-Irving Memorial Hospital 
(the Hospital). After a thorough investigation of the materials 
submitted by the parties, UMTA finds that the service in question 
is charter service, and is therefore not subject to UMTA's private 
sector guidelines. However, UMTA's charter service regulation, 
49 CFR Part 604, prohibits grantees from providing charter service 
when there is a willing and able private operator. Centro has 
determined that there is at least one willing and able private 
operator in its service area. Therefore, assuming that the 
service is being operated in essentially the same manner 
described in the parties' original submissions, centro 
should therefore cease and desist providing this service 
immediately. 

COMPLAINT 

S&O filed this complaint with UMTA on April 17, 1986. In its 
complaint, S&O stated that it had been negotiating with the 
Hospital to operate their shuttle service between Manley Field 
House and the Hospital. According to S&O, Centro had operated 
this service for the price of $450.00 per day during the previous 
year. S&O claimed that Centro, upon finding that S&O was to 
receive this contract based on a lower price, cut its price by 25 
percent to $342.00 in Qrder to keep the contract. S&O indicated 
that Centro was providing the service for a price that was below 
its operating cost, thereby using its Federal transportation 
assistance to compete unfairly with a private operator. 

S&O stated that the local municipal planning organization (MPO) 
had no procedures for 1) judging private sector complaints or, 
2) making public/private cost analyses. It therefore requested 
that UMT~ take the necessary steps to have the local MPO conform 
to UWi'A ~ s privat• .. s- ~":' . .::-- pol~5 
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RESPONSE 

UMTA reviewed S&O's letter and determined that it should be 
treated as a formal complaint under Sections 3e/8e of the UMT Act. 
on June 19, 1986, UMTA forwarded a copy of the complaint to Centro 
and provided Centro with 30 days to respond. 

Centro's response is dated June 8, 1986. Centro states that the 
service it provides to the. Hospital is not subject to UMTA's 
private sector guidelines. First, centro explains, the service is 
described in two annual agreements between Centro and the 
Hospital. These agreements, states Centro, show that the service 
provided during the second annual term was identical to that 
provided during the first annual term. Consequently, Centro 
contends, there is no "new or restructured service" which would 
trigger UMTA's private sector guidelines. 

Second, Centro maintains, the service was solicited by the 
Hospital, which accepted centro's bid, even though it was higher 
than s&o•s. Thus, Centro implies, when an outside party selects 
the. service provided, the public operator has no control over the 
selection process, and cannot be held responsible for following 
the private sector guidelines. 

Centro suggests that UMTA make a preliminary determ.ination on the 
issue of whether service provided on an identical basis during 
successive terms to a private party which has solicited it, should 
be governed by UMTA's private sector guidelines. Centro states 
that it considers the guidelines inapplicable to such service, and 
urges UMTA to dismiss the complaint. 

REBUTTAL 

UMTA forwarded a copy of centro's response to S&O on March 22, 
1988, and provided S&O with 30 days to submit a rebuttal. S&O's 
rebuttal, dated March 31, 1988, 'contests the two main points 
raised by Centro. First, S&O denies that Centro's shuttle service 
during the second annual term of the agreement was not the type 
of service which triggers UMTA's private sector guidelines. S&O 
states that under these guidelines, existing service must be 
periodically reviewed to determine if it can be provided more 
efficiently without public involvement. According to S&O, a 
contract renewal is the ideal time to perform such a review. S&O 
moreover maintains that a true comparison of costs cannot be made 
between service providers without the privatization guidelines. 
Thus, S&O indicates, the guidelines should apply whenever service 
is put out for bid. 

second, S&O refutes Centro's argument that because the service was 
solicited by a private party, it falls outside the privatization 
guidelines. A major policy objective of these guidelines, states 
S&O, is to promote greater reliance on the private sector in the 
provision of mass transit services. Allowing a third party to 
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select a service provider while not requ1r1ng the public agency 
involved to follow the privatization guidelines, S&O argues, 
permits such public agency to circumvent UMTA's private sector 
requirements. Accordingly, says S&O, the private sector 
guidelines should apply to Centro's shuttle service for the 
Hospital. 

S&O also raises the argument that the shuttle service is charter 
service, since it meets all of definitional requirements of 
Section 604.5(e) of UMTA's charter regulation. S&O claims that 
th~ service is provided to a group of persons pursuant to a common 
purpose, since it is used to transport Hospital employees from 
the parking lot to the Hospital. These employees moreover have 
exclusive use of the vehicle, according to S&O, since the general 
public has no need for this service. S&O moreover states that the 
service is under a single contract, to the Hospital, at a fixed 
price, which changes on the basis of the level of service 
provided. Finally, S&O says, the itinerary for the service is 
specified in advance by the Hospital, which has complete policy 
control over this service. · 

The crux of Centro's counter argument, S&O states, is that the 
service is not charter since it is "open to the public." S&O 
contends that even if the service were run on a route that could 
be used by the general public, there are no published schedules, 
maps, or any other means by which the public could learn about the 
service. S&O consequently states that it is filing a charter 
complaint in reference to this service. 

DISCUSSION 

On the basis of the allegations originally made by the 
Complainant, UMTA decided to treat the matter as a formal 
complaint under Sections 3ej8e of the UMT Act, and UMTA's private 
sector policy. However, later allegations and the Respondent's 
reply to them, raise the more essential issue of whether the 
service in question is mass transit or charter service. 1 

1 {UMTA is aware that nearly two years have elapsed between the 
filing of the original.complaint and the submission of the 
complainant's rebuttal. Therefore, UMTA bases its 
characterization of the Hospital shuttle service on the assumption 
that the service is operated in essentially the same manner 
described in the original complaint and response, and has 
undergone no significant modification in the intervening period.} 
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Since, as the Complainant points out, the goal of UMTA's private 
sector policy is to "promote greater reliance on the private 
sector in the provision of mass transportation services," 2 
above-cited provisions apply only to a grantee's mass transit 
services. Charter service, on the other hand, must be examined in 
the context of UMTA's charter regulation, 49 CFR Part 604. 3 

49 CFR 604.5(e) describes charter service as: 

transportation using buses or vans, or facilities 
funded unde.r the Acts, of a group of persons who 
pursuant to a common purpose, under ·single contract, 
at a fixed charge ••• for the vehicle or service, 
have acquired use of the vehicle or service to travel 
together under an itinerary specified in advance or 
modified after having left the place of origin. 

The definition of mass transit is summarized in the preamble to 
the regulation, as follows: 

1 - it is under the control of the grantee; 
2 - it is designed to benefit the public at large; 
3 - it is open door. 4 

These characteristics can be measured against Centro's shuttle 
service to determine whether it is'mass transit or charter. 

First, when determining whether a particular service is under the 
control of the grantee, UMTA looks at whether he grantee sets the 
rates, fares, and schedules. In this case, it appears to be the 
Hospital, and not the Respondent, which is responsible for 
determining how the service operates. According to the 
Respondent's own statement, "In this case a private hospital and 
not the Respondent solicited service for which it, the hospital 
paid for." Since the hospital requested the service, and 
apparently sets the fare at which it operates, it presumably 

2 {"Private Enterprise Participation in the Urban Mass 
Transportation Program," 49 Fed. Reg. 41311, October 22, 1984.} 

3 {The charter regulation in effect at the time of this 
complaint was superseded by a new regulation, which went into 
effect on May 13, 1987. The former regulation allowed grantees to 
provide charter which was "incidental" to, i.e., did not detract 
from or interfere with, a grantee's regular mass transit services. 
Under the new regulation, recipients of UMTA funds may n9t provide 
charter service if there is a private operator willing and able to 
provide the service.} 

4 {52 Federal Register 11920, April 13, 1987.} 
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controls the other aspects of the service as well. As such, the 
service cannot be said to be under the control of the grantee. 

Second, the service is obviously not designed to benefit the 
public at large, but rather to serve the needs of a particular 
segment, namely employees travelling between a private parking lot 
and their jobs at the Hospital. It is therefore intended to meet 
the needs of a small, specific group, and not the general 
community. 

Third, while neither the Complainant nor the Respondent gives a 
detailed description of how the service operates, both state that 
it is provided under contract to the Hospital. considering the 
fact that the Hospital commissioned and ,pays for the service, it 
is highly unlikely that its aim was to open it up to the general 
public. since the shuttle is restricted to a particular group, 
then, and anyone wishing to board it is not allowed to do so, it . 
does not qualify as open door service. 

Therefore, assuming that the Hospital shuttle service is being 
operated in essentially the same manner described in the original 
complaint and response, UMTA concludes that it is not mass 
transit, but rather charter service. Thus, though S&O originally 
filed this complaint under Sections 3ej8e of the UMT Act, and the 
implementing guidelines, these provisions are inapplicable in this 
instance, since they apply only to a grantee's mass transpo~tation 
services. The provision applicable to this matter is Section 
604.9 of UMTA's charter regulation, which states that a recipient 
of UMTA funds may not provide charter service if it has determined 
that there is a willing and able private operator in its service 
area. It is UMTA's understanding that Centro has made this 
determination. Centro's provision of service between Manley Field 
House and Crouse-Irving Memorial Hospital is therefore in 
violation of UMTA's charter regulation. 

CONCLUSION 

Assuming that the shuttle service is being operated in essentially 
the same manner described in the original complaint and response, 
UMTA concludes that it is charter service, as defined by UMTA's 
charter regulation, 49 CFR Part 604. Therefore, it is not subject 
to UMTA's private sector guidelines, which apply to a grantee's 
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mass transit services. Centro's provision of the service is, 
however, in violation of Section 604.9 of the charter regulation, 
which prohibits grantees from providing charter service when there 
is a willing and able private operator, except under one of the . 
exceptions to the regulation. centro should therefore cease and 
desist providing this service immediately. 
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U.S. Department 
of Transportation 

Urban Mass· 
Transportation 
Administration 

Barry M.-shulman, Esq. 
Scolaro, Shulman, Cohen, 

Lawler & Burstein, P.C. 
90 Presidential Plaza 
Syracuse, New York 13202 

Dear Mr. Shulman: 

Headquarters 400 Seventh St., s.w. 
Washington, D.C. 20590 

AUG I 1 \988 

Re: NY/CENTRO 88-05-02 

This is in response to your letter of July 11, 1988, in which you 
inquired about the reference to printed schedules as being 
critical to the determination of whether service is classified as 
mass transit or charter. 

The definition of "mass transportation" set forth at section 
12(c) (6) of the Urban Mass Transportation Act of 1964, as amended 
(UMT Act), 49 u.s.c •. section 1608(c) (6) provides as fol).ows; 

the term 'mass transportation' means transportation 
by bus, rail, or other conveyance, either publicly or 
privately owned, which provides to the public general 
or special service (but not including school buses or 
charter or sightseeing service) on a regular and 
continuing basis. [emphasis supplied] 

It is the view of the Urban Mass Transportation Administration 
(UMTA) that, in general, a grantee best demonstrates that a 
service will be performed on a regular and continuing basis by 
including that service on its regular printed schedules. 

UMTA recognizes that the Charter Service Regulation itself did not 
stress the importance of regularly-printed schedules as a criteria 
for establishing that service constitutes mass transportation. 
Since the UMT Act defines •mass transportation,• UMTA did not 
create a new definition of •mass transportation• for its Charter 
Service Regulation. However, the preamble to the regulation does 
state, in several places, the necessity that service to be 
•regular·and continuing" before it may qualify as mass. 
transportation. See preamble to the Charter Se~ice Regulation, 
52 Fed. Reg·. 11919 and 11920, April 13, 1987 •. In addition, the 
preamble emphasizes that, for service to qual1fy as mass 
transportation, the recipient (rather than the customer) must· 
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establish the routes and schedules to be followed. A recipient 
best demonstrates that it (rather than the customer) has 
establish~~ a particular route and schedule by including the route 
and schedule in its regularly-printed schedules. Provision of 
service that deviates from the recipient's printed routes and 
schedules does not, in all cases, disqualify such service as 
"mass transportation." Nevertheless, a recipient might easily 
circumvent the restrictions of the Charter Service Regulation, if 
the recipient could merely adopt those routes and schedules · 
desired by particular customers without first printing those 
routes and ·schedules, particularly if the desired service were 
sporadic or infrequent. 

Although UMTA's Charter Service Questions and Answers, 
52 Fed. Reg. 42248 ~seq., November 3, 1988, do not expressly 
mandate regularly-printed routes and schedules, the importance of 
regularly-printed routes and schedules is alluded to in the 
reference to 11 regularly scheduled" service in Question 27.c. 
Moreover, the Answer to Question 39 states that, 11 UMTA would be 
suspicious or concerned about incidents in which recipients · 
operate service which, though it conforms to the above criteria 
[for sightseeing service], is without pre-arranged schedules and 
is specifically designed to accommodate the desires or a 
particular group." 

Therefore, UMTA is pleased that Centro will include its shuttle 
service for the New York State Fair in its printed schedules of 
service. In addition, UMTA appreciates the efforts Centro is 
making to privitize this and other service. 

cc: Mr. Russell Ferdinand 

/:k::;~· ~l~.tr /~~ard J abbitt 
Chief Co sel 
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U.S. Department 
of Transportation 

Urban Mass 
Transportation 
Administration 

Mr. Patrick L. Hamric 
General Manager 
Lexington Transit Authority 
109 Loudon Avenue 
Lexington, Kentucky 40508 

The Administrator 

AUG I 8 1988 

[_.9 ·t~ ('·\ , ·- 'rJ e_::e_·-~ 3 ~--
{!_/~ 

400 Seventh St. s.\v. 
Washington, D.C. 20590 

Re: Blue Grass Tours & Charter v. 
Lexington Transit-,· KY-08-08/01 

Dear Mr. Hamric: 

I am wri~ing in reference to your appeal of the decision of the 
Urban Mass Transportation Administration's (UMTA) Chief Counsel in 
the above-referenced matter. In his decision, the Chief Counsel 
found that the service provided by the Lexington Transit Authority 
(Lextran) to the University of Kentucky-was impermissible charter 
service, in violation of UMTA's charter regulation, 
49 CFR Part 604. You state that Lextran is in compliance with the 
charter regulation, and list a nuinber of areas you feel that:· UMTA 
should take into account in reconsidering its decision. 

First, you dispute the Chief Counse~'s finding that "the service 
complained of runs at the'behe~t of the University, which dictates 
locations and schedules." You state that the University and 
Lextran mutually agree on the routes and schedules. This 
practice, you point out, is used throughout the country with major 
employers, schools of all types, hospitals, and retail centers. 
Moreover, you maintain, while schedules for'the service may change 
according to-need, the routes have remained virtually the same for 
several years. 

UMTA agrees that the .provision of servic.e by a· grantee to a 
university complex may be mass transit. See Q&A 27{d) of UMTA's 
"Charter Service Questions and Answers;• 52 Fed. Reg. 42248, 
42252, November 3, 1987. However, one requirement for being 
categorized as such is that the service in question be under the 
control of the UMTA recipient. While you maintain that this is 
the case with the campus service provided by Lextran, the Chief 
Counsel's investigation revealed that the University essentially 
dictates the routes and schedules. A copy of the University's bid 
proposal for the forthcoming-school year confirms the Chief 
Counsel's finding. In this document, the University solicits bids 
from providers for "intra-campus transportation for the University 
of Kentucky Department Of Parking and Transportation." The 
University specifies in the bid proposal the type of vehicles 
required, and states that the service_will follow rou&:es and 
schedules determined by the University. Moreover,. the proposal 
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states that the bus stops will be designated by 
and that •these University designated bus stops 
stops recGgnized by the Provider's operators.• 
proposal is enclosed for your information. 

the University, 
shall be the only 
A copy of the bid 

It is clear from this description that the service is under the 
control of the University, and not of Lextran. As suchi · it lacks 
a major characteristic of mass transportation. 

Second, you take issue with the Chief Counsel 4 s conclusion that 
the service is "not advertised or promoted to make the public 
aware of its availability (except on campus).• ·You state that the 
service is indeed open to the public, and enclose a Lextran route 
map indicating the University service. 

UMTA notes, however, that the Lextran ro~te map for the campus 
service is not current, but is dated Ja~uary 1, 1982. Moreover, 
though Lextran states that it provides information on the service 
to telephone callers, there is, as the.Chief Counsel's decision 
pointed out, no indication of an attempt on the part .of Lextran to 
market the service to the general public. Consequently, UMTA 
considers that the. campu's bus servi"ce is ·not open. to the publ'ic, 
but is designed for the exclusive use of students and campus 
personnel. 

Finally, you explain that the University campus is located in the 
heart of the general urban area of Lexington~ and that the route 
serves a number of residential areas and businesses close to the 
University. 

The fact that the campus bus service concomitantly serves 
immediately adjacent off-campus areas is not enough to transform 
its essential character. As the Chief Counsel's investigation 
found, and the University's bid proposal confirms, the service is 
provided by Lextranunder contract with the University for the 
purpose of transporting students. Even admitting that members of 
the public may and occasionally do board the campus buses, such 
use of the service by the general population of ·Lexington is 
clearly secondary to its main purpose. 

I therefore conclude that the Chief Counsel correctly ruled on 
the record provided by the parties, and that the service provided 
by Lextran to the University of Kentucky meets the UMTA's criteria 
for charter service since it is under a single contract, under the 
control of a party other than the grantee, and for the exclusive 
use of a particular group. Therefore, I find no basis for 
overturning his decision. 
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Accordingly, I hereby deny your appeal of the Chief Counsel·' s 
decision in the above-cited matter. 

SAJil'D~·~ 
Alfred A. DelliBovi 

cc: Wallace c. Jones, Jr. 
Blue Grass Tours & Charter 

Enclosure· 

345 



US. Department 
of Transportation 

Urban Mass 
Transportation 
Administration 

August 25, 1988 

REGION VIII 
Colorado, North Dakota, 
Montana, South Dakota, 
Utah, Wyoming 

Richard c. Thomas, Public Transit Director 
City of Phoenix 
101 South Central Avenue, Suite 600 
Phoenix, AZ 85004 

Subject: Charter Service Public Notice 

Dear Mr. ~as: ·~~ 

1050 17th Street 
Prudential Plaza 
Suite 1822 
Denver, Colorado 80265 

Pursuant to our phone conversation regarding charter service 
public notice requirements, please note the answer to question 
number 13, page 42250, in the enclosed Federal Register notice. 
The answer indicates that a grantee does not to have to publish a 
notice if the grantee already knows that at least one willing and 
able private charter operator exists in the area, but the grantee 
intends to provide charter service only through subcontracting 
arrangements with the private sector. The answer also states 
that a grantee will not be precluded from obtaining a special 
events exception solely on the grounds that it failed to publish 
a notice of general willingness to provide charter. The latter 
provision appears to be designed for the grantee that does not 
originally intend to provide charter service at all, but is 
suddenly faced with a need for special events service and has no 
time for the usual notice process. 

As I understand the facts, Phoenix intends to provide charter 
service only through subcontracting arrangements or for special 
events~ The City also already knows that private operators 
exist in the area. Therefore, there is no absolute requirement 
for the City to publish an annual charter notice. 

~; a • 

J When reCI';lest~ng a spec;aal events. except1o~ f:om UMTA, howev7r, a 
:grantee 1s f1rst requ1red to not1fy all w1ll1ng and able pr1vate 
\operators of its intent to provide the charter service and give 
lthem an opportunity to comment. The annual charter notice is the 
usual means for determining which operators are willing and able 
to provide service and thus must be notified in such 
circumstances. 
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Since Phoenix is already aware that it may want to provide 
special events service and would have time to go through the 
usual notice process, the City may wish to issue the public 
notice so that it can establish a list of operators to contact 
when special events do occur. If the City has some other 
reasonable means of identifying private charter operators, 
however, it appears that the annual public notice would not be an 
absolute prerequisite to obtaining a special events exception. 

I hope this information will be helpful. 

Sincerely yours, 

~ 
Helen M. Knoll 
Regional Counsel 
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US. Deportment 
of Transportation 

Urban Mass 
Transportation 
Administration 

Arthur L. Handman 
Executive Director 

REGION I 
ConnectiCut. Ma.ne 
Massachusetts. 
New Hampsh•re, 
Rhode Island. Vermont 

August 31, 1988 

Greater Hartford Transit District 
One Union Place 
Hartford, Connecticut 06103 

Dear Mr. Handman: 

Transportation System Center-
Kendall SQuare. .. 
55 Broadway, 
Suite 904 
Cambridge, Massacl:lusetts 02142 

I am responding to your letter of August 24, 1988 regarding the 
interpretation of "special services" relating to the 
transportation of worker~: from the· inner city to sl,lburban job· 
sites. You ask whether such service coula be expanded to include 
carrying the children of the workers to day care centers at or 
ne?r the suburban job sites and to include transporting the inner 
city workers to remedial training sessions either prior to or 
after their employment periods. 

The definition of mass trarisportati"on, UMT Act section 12 (c) ·(6), 
includes "special service". The legislative history states that 
special service includes transportation of workers who live in 
the inner city, but work in a factory in the suburbs. See H.R. 
Rep. No. 1785, 90th Cong., 2d Sess., rep. in 1968 u.s. Code Cong. 
Ad. & News 2941. Thus, ·your description of the service that 
transports the workers to their job sites is special service and 
therefore can be operated closed door. {Please note that in 
order that the service not constitute charter service it must 
meet other. characteristics of mass transportation. ·see Charter 
Rule Preamble, 52 Fed. Reg. 11,916, 11920, col. 1 (Apr. 13, 
1987) .) . 

Although the additional service to transport the workers• 
children for day care and to transport the workers· to training · 
sessions is not specifically contemplated by the legislative 
history, this service as described is ancillary to the main 
objective of transporting workers from the inner city to suburban 
job sites. As such, the transportation of such workers t~ the 
suburbs, with the ancillary transportation of their children to 
day care and ·th'e workers to job training, would still constitute 
special service as contemplated in the legislative history 
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underlying UMT Act section 12(c) (6). Please note that this 
interpretation is based on the close linkage of the ancillary 
transportation to the main thrust .o~ the service: transporting 
workers from the inner city to suburban job sites. · Any 
alteration in the structure of the described service might well 
result. in recasting such service outside the narrow _statutory 
definition of special service·.. Please contact me if any changes 
to the proposed service might alter this legal opinion. 

If you have any·questions on this matter, please feel free to 
contact me. 
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ORIGINAL SIGNED BY 

Paul C; Bauer 
Regional counsel 



BEFORE THE URBAN MASS TRANSPORTATION ADMINISTRATION 

In the matter of: 

SANTA BARBARA TRANSPORTATION, INC. } 
} 

v. } 
} 

SANTA BARBARA METROPOLITAN TRANSIT } 
DISTRICT } 

DECISION 

SUMMARY 

CA-03/87-01 

Santa Barbara Transportation, Inc. ("SBT") filed this complaint 
with the Urban Mass Transportation Administration ("UMTA") 
alleging that the santa Barbara Metropolitan Transit District 
("the District") had failed to comply with the provisions of the 
Urban Mass Transportation Act of 1964, as amended ("UMT Act") and 
the implementing guidance concerning participation of private 
enterprise in the provision of mass transportation. After a 
thorough review of the administrative record, UMTA finds that the 
local metropolitan planning organization ("MPO") lacks a process 
for the fair resolution of disputes. UMTA considers that this 
failure to develop a dispute resolution process is contrary to 
UMTA policy, and encourages the MPO to develop such a process as 
soon as possible. UMTA also finds that the District did not 
follow its own private sector policy in bidding part of its mass 
transit services, and orders the District to rebid the service by 
January 1, 1989. · 

COMPLAINT 

SBT filed this complaint with UMTA on January 28, 1988. The 
complaint alleges that SBT has been unfairly denied the 
opportunity to bid on service with Metran during the past four 
years. 

SBT states that in 1984, the District ignored SBT's offer to 
provide paratransit service at 50% of the cost the District 
offered to the "nonprofit" it had helped to establish. 
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SBT'claims that in 1985, it again offered the District to provide 
paratransit service at 50% of the District's cost, and to provide 
regularly scheduled service. According to SBT, both offers were 
refused by the District's General Manager. 

SBT states that in 1986, it again approached the District with an 
offer to provide paratransit service at 50% of the District's cost 
and to provide regularly scheduled service. SBT alleges that in 
an attempt to punish SBT, the District underbid SBT on a contract 
for shuttle service that SBT was operating for the City of Santa 
Barbara. SBT states that the District's bid was far below its 
fully allocated cost to provide the service. 

SBT states that in 1986, it requested to be considered by the 
District to provide scheduled bus service. SBT indicates that 
the District invited bids to provide 20% of its regularly 
scheduled service. SBT claims that it submitted a bid within the 
five working days allowed by the District for response, but that 
the District's General Manager termed its bid "non-responsive." 
SBT asserts that its bid was for $722,000, and that the District 
had stated that its own fully allocated cost to provide the 
service was $1,135,000. 

·The District's General Manager, claims SBT, had advised the . 
District's Board of Directors not to contract with SBT, as only 
$380,000 could be saved from the District's $6,000,000 budget by 
doing so. A month later, states SBT, at an UMTA-sponsored 
meeting, the General Manager passed out a handout showing that 
$635,000 could be saved by contracting with a private company. 

SBT alleges that in bidding out this service, the District 
violated every part of its own dispute resolution process which, 
according to SBT, was written after the bid~ SBT asks UMTA to 
investigate these alleged violations of UMTA's private sector 
policy. 

RESPONSE 

UMTA reviewed SBT's complaint and determined tnat the allegations, 
if substantiated, constituted violations of the private sector 
provisions of the UMT Act and the implementing policy. UMTA 
forwarded SBT's complaint to the District on March 21, 19~8, and 
provided it with 30 days to respond. 

The District's response is dated March 30, 1988. In its response, 
the District characterizes SBT's allegations as "unsupportable, 
simply false, or a fabrication." 
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In response to SBT's allegation that the District had unfairly 
rejected its· offer to operate parat~ansit service, the District 
states that it does not have a paratransit service to subcontract. 
the District denies that it had helped to establish a nonprofit 
organization. The District explains that in 1977, it had operated 
a paratransit service. In 1979, the District states, the Easter 
seals Society of Santa Barbara purchased lift-equipped vans 
through UMTA's 16(b)(2) program,l and started Easy Lift, its own 
independent transit operation. The District notes·that it ceased 
its own paratransit operation, and began allocating a portion of 
its California Development Act funds to Easter Seals as a partial 
operating support. · 

The District further denies that it "punished" SBT by attempting 
to underbid SBT on a contract SBT had with the City of Santa 
Barbara. The District states that it had never obtained a 
contract to operate such service, but merely designed the service 
for the City and suggested that the City bid it out. 

The District moreover disputes SBT 1 s allegation concerning 
the District's consideration of its bid for regularly scheduled 
service. The District states that it solicited bids for about 15% 
of its scheduled service during the preceding summer. According 
to the District, the bid solicitation was issued immediately upon 
completion of the proposed public schedule, and bidders were given 
far more than·five days to respond. f2 Not only was SBT's bid 
non-responsive, the District maintains, but it was also for 
$980,066, and not for $722,000, as stated in SBT's complaint. 

The District states that § 13(c) of the UMT Act precludes transit 
operators from laying off workers without compensation.3 Since 
its labor contract mandates lay-offs on the basis of seniority, 
the District maintains, it would, if it subcontracted, be obliged 
to lay off most of its low-wage, part-time employees. The cost of 
compensating these workers, the District states, as well as 
increased overall labor costs resulting from the lay-off of its 
low-wage employees, would result in savings of only $380,000. 

!Section 16(b) (2) of the UMT Act authorizes UMTA to make grants 
to private nonprofit corporations for the purpose of assisting 
them in providing transportation services for the elderly and 
handicapped. 

2The District fails to specify, however, exactly how many days 
the bidders were given. 

3This statement is technically incorrect, since §13(c) contains 
no provision mandating compensation for laid-off workers. · 
However, this section does direct grantees to protect the 
interests of their employees, and to undertake such measures as 
may be necessary to protect their rights, privileges, and 
benefits. 
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As for SBT's claim that the District's General Manager had stated 
that $635,000 could be saved by contracting 20% of the District's 
service, the District indicates that these fiqures have no 
relationship to its subcontract bid. The District states that its 
subcontract bid was for lS% of its service. The 20% fiqure was 
mentioned in a speech by its General Manager, the District notes, 
to demonstrate that as greater levels of service are 
subcontracted, more real savings may occur. The 20% was offered 
only for explanatory purposes, MTD contends, and was not the level 
it requested proposals for. 

With regard to the $1,135,000 that SBT claims is the District's 
cost for providing the service in question, the District states 
that SBT "made up that fiqure. 11 The District maintains that its 
fully allocated costs for providing the service are nowhere near 
that amount. 

Finally, the District asserts that SBT had been given ample 
opportunity to have its case heard. The District Board of 
Directors, states the District, had given SBT several months to 
explain its case. The case was heard by the Board and rejected, 
the District maintains. SBT then appealed to the local MPO for 
relief, explains the District, and was denied a hearing. 
According to the District, every effort had been made to hear 
SBT 1 s appeal. 

The District concludes by affirming that UMTA's investigation will 
show that SBT's allegations are full of inaccuracies. 

REBUTTAL 

UMTA forwarded the District's response to SBT on April 7, 1988, 
and provided SBT with 30 days to submit a rebuttal. SBT 1 s 
rebuttal is dated May 12, 1988. 

In its rebuttal, SBT first of all disputes the District's claims 
that Easy Lift, the local nonprofit organization which provides 
paratransit service, is not funded by the District. SBT states 
that the District supplies most of Easy Lift's operating budget 
and has provided that organization with two lift-equipped vans. 

SBT indicates that for four consecutive years, from 1984 to 1987, 
it had requested to be considered to provide·paratransit service. 
According to SBT, it had not been allowed to make a presentation 
to the the District Board, despite repeated requests to the 
District's General Manager. The paratransit service was awarded 
to Easy Lift, states SBT, for each of the years in question. 
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SBT states that it bid on the service again in late 1987, when the 
Area Planning Council, the local MPO, required the District to put 
the service out for bid. Information available at the time, 
claims SBT, indicated that 55% of the users of the paratransit 
service were ambulatory and did not require lift-equipped 
vehicles. SBT states that the MPO drafted the bid specifications 
to reflect this fact, but that the District's General Manager 
changed the specifications to require lift-equipped vehicles only. 
SBT explains that only two transit providers bid on the contract, 
namely SBT and Easy Lift. Since all of Easy Lift's vehicles are 
lift-equipped, SBT indicates, Easy Lift won the contract, despite 
the fact that its cost per trip is substantially higher than 
SBT's. 

SBT complains that the District's decision was almost totally 
based on subjective criteria, and not on the normal bid criteria 
of cost, company experience, financial strength, and 
qualifications of the management team. SBT states that there was 
no pre-bid conference, and it was not allowed to be interviewed by 
the Board of Directors. As a result, claims SBT, it was again 
unfairly excluded from providing the paratransit service. 

Second, SBT states that while it is correct that the District has 
never operated a shuttle service for the City of Santa Barbara, 
"it is not from lack of trying." SBT claims that in 1985 and 
1986, the District attempted to undercut SBT's cost for operating 
the service by offering to provide it at less than its allocated 
cost. 

In 1987, SBT states, it won a two-year contract to provide the 
f;eryice. SBT indicates that since then, the District has been 
maklng renewed attempts to acquire the contract. Recently, SBT 
maintains, the District's General Manager placed the District 
employees on SBT's shuttle buses in order to monitor operations 
and passenger counts. SBT states that it expects the District to 
present a new cost undercutting proposal to the City before the 
present shuttle service contract expires on July 1, 1989. 

Third, SBT states that the District did not follow UMTA guidelines 
when it put its transit service out for bid in July 1987. SBT 
claims that it was given only five working days to respond to a $1 
million bid. Moreover, SBT maintains, " ••• it has been shown by 
the experts that the District's fully allocated cost to provide 
the service is $1,13~,000." SBT states that its· own bid was about 
$980,000, but that it offered to reduce its price to $722,276 if 
it could buy or lease the District buses at market value and use 
UMTA-funded fareboxes. The bid was rejected by the District, SBT 
indicates, on the advice of the General Manager, who told the 
District Board not to grant the bid to SBT as the District's 
partial incremental costs to provide the service were only 
$380,000. 
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stating that the District had unfairly thwarted all privatization 
opportunities and the accompanying cost savings during the past 
five years, SBT asks that UMTA end such a'lleged abuses and require 
the District to give fair consideration to bids from private 
companies. 

DISCUSSION 

UMTA developed its private enterprise policy in conformance with 
three provisions of the UMT Act, namely Sections 3(e), 8(e), and 
9(f). Under section 3(e) UMTA must, before approving a program of 
projects, find that such program provides for the maximum feasible 
participation of private enterprise. Section 8(e) directs UMTA 
recipients to encourage private sector participation in the plans 
and programs funded under the Act. Finally, as a precondition to 
funding under Section 9, recipients must develop a private 
enterprise program in accordance with the procedures set out in 
Section 9(f). 

In order to provide guidance in achieving compliance with these 
statutory requirements, UMTA issued its policy statement, "Private 
Enterprise Participation in the Urban Mass Transportation 
Program," 49 Federal Register 41310, October 22, 1984. This 
policy statement sets forth the factors UMTA will consider in 
determining whether a recipient's planning process conforms to the 
private enterprise requirements of the UMT Act. These factors 
include consultation with private providers in the local planning 
process, consideration of private enterprise in the development of 
the mass transportation program, and the existence of records 
documenting the participatory nature of the local planning process 
and the rationale used in making public/private service 
decisions. 

UMTA's private sector requirements are further detailed in 
Circ1,1lar 7005.1, "Documentation of Private Enterprise 
Participation Required for Sections 3 and 9 Programs," December 5, 
1986. The Circular outlines the minimum elements which a 
grantee's private sector consultation process must contain, and 
describes the documentation required to demonstrate that the 
process has been followed. 

The Circular·states that a grantee's private sector process must 
include the following elements: 

a. Notice to an early consultation with private providers in 
plans involving new or restructured service as well as the 
periodic re-examination of existing service. 
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b. Periodic examination, at least every three years, of each 
route to determine if it could be more efficiently operated 
by a private enterprise. 

c. Description of how new and restructured services will be 
evaluated to determine if they could be more efficiently 
provided by private sector operation pursuant to a 
competitive bid process. 

d. The use of costs as a factor in the public/private 
decision. 

e. A dispute resolution process which affords all interested 
parties an opportunity to object to the initial decision. 
UMTA's complaint process is designed to accept appeals of 
this local dispute resolution process. 

The-Circular also describes the complaint procedure which private 
operators may follow when they believe that a grantee's private 
sector policy is inadequate or has been improperly applied. 
Under this procedure, disputes should be resolved at the local 
level. The procedure ideally envisages a first stage of dispute 
resolution between the grantee and the private operator and, 
failing settlement at this level, a review of the grantee's 
decision by the local MPO. The Circular states that the MPO 
should develop its own dispute resolution process, and that 
complaints to UMTA will be referred to the MPO for an attempt at 
local settlement. Under the terms of the Circular, UMTA will 
entertain complaints only when a complainant has exhausted its 
loca~ dispute resolution process. 

In its complaint, SBT asks UMTA to resolve its dispute with 
the District, since it has exhausted local review. The District's 
response explains that SBT had asked the District's Board of 
Directors to reconsider its bid to provide transit service, and 
that this request had been denied. The District indicates that 
SBT then appealed to the Area Planning Council (APC), the local 
MPO, which refused to hear its appeal. 

In a letter dated January 12, 1987, to the California Bus 
Association (CBA), which sought to bring the appeal on behalf of 
SBT, the APC states: 

The APC staff is aware that the Santa Barbara Metropolitan 
Transit District had previously adopted a privatization 
policy which includes a dispute resolution process involving 
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the Area Planning Council. However, the policy was never 
presented to the Council for approval or acceptance. 
Furthermore, the APC has never indicated a desire to accept 
such a role since it has no authority to effect a resolution 
of disputes involving the SBMTD and private contractors. 

The APC's position in this matter is contrary to UMTA's dispute 
resolution process, as outlined in Circular 7005.1. Under this 
process, MPOs are expected to constitute an independent level of 
review of grantees' decisions. UMTA recognizes that an MPOs 
staffing and resources may not allow it to perform a thorough, 
substantive investigation of private sector complaints in all 
cases, but expects that MPOs will at the very least review the 
grantee's decision and indicate its concurrence or nonconcurrence 
before referring the complaint to UMTA. 

UMTA's policy requiring local dispute resolution is in accordance 
with the underlying spirit of the UMT Act, which is to afford 
communities maximum discretion in local,,decision-making. The 
policy also recognizes the fact that theylocal decision-maker is 
most knowledgeable about the facts and events surrounding a local 
dispute, and best situated to make a determination with regard to 
them. 

UMTA views unfavorably the APC's decision not to accept a role in 
the resolution of local disputes. This is especially the case, 
since the APC justifies its refusal on the ground that such a role 
was never presented to the APC for approval or acceptance. Under 
the terms of the UMTA Circular, the MPO is expected to develop a 
dispute resolution process on its own and independently, and not 
subsequent to referral by the grantee. UMTA believes that the 
APC's rejection of a dispute resolution role in this instance is a 
clear abnegation of its responsibilities in the private sector 
complaint process. 

This refusal is all the more regrettable in the present instance, 
since the parties make sharply contradictory statements which are 
difficult for UMTA, with its removal from the local situation, to 
reconcile. For instance, the parties make conflicting claims with 
regard to the establishment and funding of·Easy Lift and the 
awarding of the paratransit service contract to that organization. 
According to SBT, Easy Lift was created and is funded by the 
District, while the.District maintains that it is a totally 
independent organization to which the District merely passes along 
state development funds. SBT further alleges that Easy Lift won 
the local contract to provide paratransit service because the 
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District changed the contract specifications to correspond to Easy 
Lift's equipment capacity. The District, on the other hand, · 
indicates that the contract was awarded to Easy Lift because of 
the quality of its service. Since, according to the statements of 
both parties, the APC determines the level of funds the District 
allocates to Easy Lift and participated in the bid solicitation 
process, it is clearly in a better position than UMTA to decide 
the accuracy of the parties• claims. 

Likewise, the parties differ significantly in their clalms 
concerning the shuttle service SBT provides to the City of santa 
Barbara. SBT insists that the District is using cost undercutting 
tactics to win its shuttle contract, while the District denies the 
allegation, and maintains that it merely suggested that the City 
bid the service out. As the body which has direct control of 
.federal funding to the District and general involvement in local 
transportation matters, the APC has a distinct advantage over UMTA 
in determining the merits of these contradictory statements. 

FUrthermore, at the heart of. SBT's complaint with regard to its 
bid on the District's transit service, is its criticism of the 
cost allocation method used by the District. SBT alleges that 
the District used arbitrary cost comparison methods in rejecting 
its competitive service bid, while the District states that its 
analysis was based on standard, UMTA-approved cost allocation 
guidelines. Since, under circular 7005.1, MPOs are responsible 
for providing UMTA with a description of proposals submitted to 
grantees by private operators and how they are evaluated, UMTA 
presumes that the APC has direct knowledge of the cost allocation 
method used by the District. Again, therefore, UMTA believes that 
this is a question which could best be decided by the APC. 

UMTA recognizes, however, that by its own admission, the APC 
currently has no dispute resolution process in place, and that it 
might be several months before the APC can develop such a process. 
UMTA further recognizes that the complainant may be prejudiced by 
this delay in the hearing of its appeal. UMTA therefore believes 
that fairness to the complainant requires that UMTA decide these 
issues on the merits. 

As concerns the first issue raised by SBT, UMTA's review of the 
administrative record shows that, for the current year at least, 
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the·District did adhere to the requirements of the private sector 
policy in the awarding of the paratransit contract. Materials · 
submitted by the parties show that the District issued a request 
for proposals for the paratransit service on March 29, 1988. 
Bidders were given until April 19, 1988, to respond, and service 
was scheduled to begin on July 1, 1988. The record further 
indicates that the District received proposals from two 
transportation providers, namely SBT and Easy Lift, and that these 
proposals were thoroughly reviewed by an Evaulation Committee. 
This review, the records shows, was followed by a detailed 
recommendation to the the District Board, which included an item
by-item comparison of the two proposals. The Committee 
recommended in favor of awarding the contract to Easy Lift for 
various qualitative reasons, including the fact that SBT, unlike 
Easy Lift, had failed to submit a detailed budget and operating 
plan for the service. 

UMTA's investigation also failed to corroborate SBT's claim that 
Easy Lift is an organization ·established and funded by the 
District. Not only has SBT failed to show that Easy Lift was 
created or is controlled by the District, but it has also 
presented no clear evidence that the District provides funding to 
Easy Lift in addition to the funds which it is authorized under 
the California Transportation Development Act (TDA) to pass along 
to that organization. It indeed apparent from the administrative 
record that Easy Lift is an independent organization which 
receives funding from s~veral sources, including the TDA funds 
distributed by the District. 

On the basis of these findings, UMTA concludes that there is no 
merit to SBT's allegations with regard to the paratransit service 
contract. UMTA finds that by providing adequate notice to private 
providers and by using objective criteria to evaluate their 
proposals, the District conducted its bid process for the 
paratransit service in accordance with the private policy 
guidelines. 

The second issue raised by SBT concerns bidding by the District on 
a contract for shuttle service which SBT has with the city of 
Santa Barbara. While the District denies in one part of its 
response that it has any interest in the shuttle contract, it 
states elsewhere that "there is the possibility that Mertran may 
be forced by the City of Santa Barbara to expand its services in 
that area." · 

Although the requirements of Circular 7005.1 apply only to 
a grantee's contracting of its own mass transit services, a 
grantee is nonetheless bound by the provisions of Section 3(e) of 
the UMT Act when engaged in competitive bidding against a private 
operator. This Section requires that recipients of UMTA 
assistance must provide for the maximum feasible participation· of 
private operators in the provision of mass transit services. UMTA 
would view actions such as those allegedly taken by the District 
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iri attempting to win the shuttle contract from SBT, as a violation 
of this provision. 

However, UMTA notes that the District strongly denies using cost 
undercutting tactics or harassment to win the shuttle contract 
from SBT. It should moreover be noted that SBT has not yet 
suffered any actual injury in this regard, since it is still 
operating the service under the existing contract, which is set to 
expire on July 1, 1989. UMTA therefore believes that no 
corrective measures are called for in the matter of the shuttle 
contract, beyond an admonition to the District that as an UMTA 
recpient, it must refrain from any action which would be 
deliberately detrimental to tne interests of private providers, 
and must adhere to the requirements of Section 3(e) when competing 
with a private operator. 

The third aspect of SBT's complaint deals with its bid on part of 
the District's mass transit service. SBT in essence claims that 
the District failed to follow its own private sector guidelines by 
allowing bidders only 5 days to submit proposals, and by using 
improper cost allocation methods. 

The District denies that bidders were given an inadequate amount 
of time to submit proposals, but fails to specify how much time 
they were allotted. Moreover, while the District maintains that 
it used an UMTA approved cost allocation method, the brief 
submitted to the MPO by. the California Bus Association (CBA) on 
behalf of SBT questions this assertion. The CBA found that the 
cost allocation practices uesd by the District in this instance 
were inconsistent with UMTA's cost analysis guidelines in several 
important respects. These include the deletion by the District of 
approximately $211,493 in operating costs from its fully allocated 
model for the service. The CBA appropriately points out that "If 
all fixed and variable resources are included in a fully allocated 
cost· estimate, the model is not in conformance with the 
guidelines." The CBA also notes that the District used two 
different figures to represent its "marginal cost" to operate the 
service, citing. the sum of $461,212 in a letter to the the 
District Board, and $380,508 at the Board hearing on the matter. 
The District Board correctly describes these procedures as 
irregularities in the area of cost allocation. 

Since the District has failed to refute SBT's allegations 
concerning its bid solicitation deadline and its cost allocation 
practices, UMTA must assume that they are true. UMTA therefore 
concludes that the procedures which the District used in 
contracting out part of its transportation services are not in 
compliance with its own private sector participation process. 
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Since UMTA finds that the process used by the District in this 
instance unnecessarily excluded the private sector from 
competitive contracting of mass transit services, it orders the 
District to rebid, by January 1, 1989, the portion of that service 
which is the subject of this complaint. In so doing, the District 
should follow the guidelines for private enterprise involvement 
set out in Circular 7005.1, and its own private sector policy. 

CONCLUSION 

UMTA concludes that the Area Planning Council, the local MPO, 
failed to follow UMTA guidelines with respect to the development 
of a local dispute resolution process. UMTA encourages the MPO to 
develop a procedure for the review of grantees' decision, in 
conformance with the private sector guidelines set out in Circular 
7005.1. UMTA also finds that the District did not follow its own 
private enterprise policy in bidding out part of its mass transit 
services, and orders the District to rebid the service by 
January 1, 1989. 
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BEFORE THE URBAN MASS TRANSPORTATION ADMINISTRATION 

In the matter of: 

B&T FULLER DOUBLE DECKER BUS 
COMPANY, et al. 

Complainants 

v. 

VIA METROPOLITAN TRANSIT 
AUTHORITY, 

Respondent 

SUMMARY 
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DECISION 

TX-02/88-01 

This complaint was filed with the Urban Mass Transportation
Administration ("UMTA") on February 2, 1988, by the American Bus 
Association ("ABA") on behalf of three private bus operators, B&T 
Fuller Double Decker Bus Company ("Fuller"), Greyhound Lines, Inc. 
("Greyhound"·) , and River City Coaches ("River City") • The 
complaint alleged that the San Antonio Metropolitan Transit 
Authority, also known as VIA Metropolitan Transit Authority 
("VIA"), had violated UMTA's charter regulation, 49 CFR Part 604. 
UMTA's investigation finds that VIA has violated the regulation by 
leasing vehicles to entities which are not "private charter 
operators" within the meaning of the charter regulation. UMTA 
orders VIA to cease apd desist from such practices immediately. 
UMTA's investigation also leads it to believe that VIA may be 
providing charter service using surplus assets. In order to make 
a clear determination on this matter, UMTA will conduct an 
independent study of VIA's charter and mass transit operations. 

COMPLAINT 

The ABA, a national trade association of private bus operators, 
filed this complaint on February 2, 1988, on behalf of three of 
its members which provide charter service in the san Antonio, 
Texas area. The complaint alleges that VIA has violated UMTA's 
charter regulation, 49 CFR Part 604. The ABA specifically 
describes its complaint as follows: 
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The ABA states that on August 11, 1987, VIA published a public 
charter notice pursuant to 49 CFR 604.11.1 The notice 
indicated, explains the ABA, that VIA would complete its willing 
and able determination process by November 9, 1987. 

The complainants and other private operators submitted the 
evidence required by the notice, indicates the ABA, and were 
determined by VIA to be willing and able to provide charter 
service. The ABA maintains that VIA nonetheless made known its 
intent not to comply with the charter regulation by soliciting 
proposals from private charter providers or brokers to provide 
charter service for VIA under an exclusive arrangement with VIA. 
The ABA attaches to its complaint a copy of VIA's request for 
proposals (RFP). 

The ABA states that on October 24, 1987, it protested VIA's RFP on 
behalf of its members. likely to be adversely affected by it. The 
ABA indicates that VIA did not implement the proposal. 

The ABA maintains that VIA nevertheless failed to comply.with the 
charter regulation by failing to complete its public participation 
process by August 11, 1987, as required by 49 CFR 604.11(a) (2), 
and continued. to provide charter service subsequent to that date 
using UMTA funded facilities and equipment. 

Moreover, states the ABA, by memo dated October 13, 1987, school 
department heads were advised by Antonio G. Alvarez, Assistant 
Superintendent of the San Antonio School District, that they had 
the option of calling e~ther convention Coordinators or Lance 
Livingston Productions for charter service to be performed through 
october 27, 1987. The ABA attaches a copy of this memo.2 

1Under 49 CFR 604.11, recipients of UMTA funds desiring to 
provide charter service, must complete a public participation 
process in order to determine if there are willing and able 
private operators. This p+ocess, which must be followed 
annually, includes publishing in a newspaper a notice describing 
the proposed service, with a copy to all private operators in the 
area, as well as to the ABA and the United Bus Owners of America. 
If a recipient determines that there is at least one willing and 
able private operator, it may provide charter service only under 
one of the exceptions to the regulation. 

2The charter regulation became effective on May 13, 1987. UMTA 
recipients which were providing charter service on that date and 
desired to continue doing so, were required to publish their 
charter notice not more than 90 days thereafter. Recipients were 
expected to suspend charter operations after August 11, 1987, 
until they had established through the notice process that there 
were no willing and able operators in their service area. 
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According to the ABA, although VIA may occasionally refer charter 
customers to private bus operators, it attempts to channel most of 
its business to brokers or bus operators who are chronically short 
of equipment, and who must necessarily use VIA's equipment. The 
ABA maintains that VIA provides charter. service unlawfully under 
sham arrangements with one or more brokers, but principally with 
Convention Coordinators and Lance Livingston Productions. The ABA 
describes VIA's establishment of subcontracting and brokerage 
relationships and the steering of customers to firms having no 
equipment or chronically short of equipment, as a prohibited 
practice. 

The ABA requests that the UMTA Chief Counsel direct VIA to advise 
the complainants and UMTA whether it has provided charter service 
directly to customers or under sham arrangements with private 
firms; withhold UMTA funds or use other appropriate remedies; and, 
order VIA to cease and desist from providing illegal charter 
service. 

RESPONSE 

By letter of February 26, 1988, UMTA advised the ABA that the 
allegations contained in its letter, if substantiated, might 
constitute violations of the charter regulation. UMTA stated that 
under 49 CFR 604.15, parties should attempt conciliation at the 
local level before filing a complaint with UMTA. UMTA stated that 
if this attempt were not successful, the parties should notify 
UMTA in writing so that it could proceed with an investigation of 
the complaint. 

On April 8, 1988, the ABA wrote to UMTA to state that it had 
attempted to resolve the dispute with VIA but had failed. The ABA 
stated that the complainants had met with representatives of VIA 
on March 28, 1988. A summary of the meeting, attached to the 
ABA 1 s letter, showed that its results had been inconclusive. 

UMTA wrote to VIA on April 19, 1988, to state that it had been 
advised by the complainants that they had been unsuccessful in 
resolving their dispute with VIA. UMTA informed.VIA that it was 
consequently undertaking a formal investigation of the complaint, 
in conformance with 49 CFR 604.15(c). UMTA asked for VIA's 
response within 30 days. VIA's response is dated May 20, 1988. 
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In its response, VIA denies that it has violated the charter 
regulation. VIA states that it has taken all the required steps 
to determine that private charter operators are willing and able 
to provide charter service. VIA maintains that after the 
publication of the regulation, it went through the public notice 
process prescribed by 49 CFR 604.9(a) and 604.11. In. support of 
its assertions., VIA attaches copies of its published notice, of 
evidence received from private operators, and of VIA's letters to 
private operators informing them of the willing and able 
determination. 

VIA further denies that it has provided direct service to 
. charter customers. VIA states that it has provided no 
unauthorized service directly to customers after the determination 
was made, and has no intention of doing so. VIA attaches a copy 
of its current policy stating that it no longer provides direct 
charter service. 

VIA states that since the implementation of the regulation, it has 
provided charter equipment and service under contract only to bona 
fide private charter operators, and not to brokers. VIA notes 
that under 49 CFR 604.9(b) (2), an UMTA recipient may lease 
equipment to private pperators which lack handicapped accessible 
buses or the vehicle capacity required to provide a particular 
charter trip. VIA points out that under this exception to the 
regulation, a grantee may.contract with all private operators, .and 
not just those determined will1ng and able. Section 604.5(p) of 
the regulation, explains VIA, states that an operator is willing 
and able if it desires to provide service, and possesses the 
required vehicles and J_'egal authority. VIA states that since it 
takes so little to be determined willing and able, it is difficult 
to imagine what private charter operators are not willing and 
able. One explanation, states VIA, is that a .broker is a. private 
charter operator, though not a willing and able one. · 

VIA claims that despite this uncertainty as to whether a grantee 
may contract with a broker, it has not entered into subcontracts 
with brokers, but only with bona fide charter operators. VIA 
states that it has verified that each operator owns at least one 
bus or one van. VIA attaches a list of the operators with which 
it has contracted, as well as representations from each operator 
showing that it has one bus or one van. 
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According to VIA, the complainant's claim that VIA subcontracts to 
charter operators which are "chronically short of equipment" 
denotes a misunderstanding of the charter regulation, which treats 
all operators alike, whether they have one bus or 100 buses. 
Moreover, states VIA, Texas law prohibits discrimination against 
small operators. Furthermore, VIA notes, UMTA encourages grantees 
to contract with small businesses. VIA also adds that a refusal 
to do business with small operators could have serious antitrust 
implications. 

VIA disputes the complainants• claim that it has had an exclusive 
contract with a private charter operator. VIA maintains that its 
policy has been to contract with all private operators which 
request such service. VIA attaches a list of the private 
operators with which it has contracted. 

VIA affirms that although it will continue to comply with the 
charter regulation, it considers the regulation invalid. VIA 
contends that UMTA has exceeded its authority in implementing the 
regulation. Section 12(c) (6) of the Urban Mass Transportation Act 
of 1964, as amended (UMT Act), notes VIA, .defines "mass 
transportation," and prohibits funding solely or primarily for 
charter service. However, VIA states, nothing in this section 
justifies a total ban on charter service. On the contrary, VIA 
maintains, Section 3(f) reveals that the Congressional intent was 
to protect intercity, and not intr~city, operators from unfa-ir, 
not from all, competition by public operators. In support of its 
point, VIA presents a legislative and regulatory history of the 
UMT Act, as well as excerpts from the Comptroller General's 
opinion of December 7, 1966 (B-160204), which states that grantees 
may use UMTA-funded equipment to provide incidental charter 
service. 3 · 

According to VIA, the new charter regulation should in no event be 
applied to the use of equipment and facilities funded by Federal 
grants before the effective date of the regulation. VIA contends 
that principles of equity require that new regulations should not 
be applied retroactively. VIA moreover states that when the 
Federal government disburses money under its spending power, its 
relationship with the grantee is in the nature of ·a contract. 
When the Federal government tries to impose new, damaging 
restrictions on the recipient after the funding of the grant, 
maintains VIA, it changes the nature of the contract with the 
recipient and impairs the bargain. 

3 UMTA has chosen to define "incidental charter service" as 
service which does not interfere with or detract from a grantee's 
mass transit services. Several examples of what UMTA considers to 
be "incidental charter service" are cited on page '11926 of the 
preamble to the charter regulation (52 Fed. Reg. 11916, April 13, 
1987). 
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VIA moreover explains that it has expended funds in reliance on 
the former charter regulation. UMTA's retroactive implementation 
of the new regulation, contends VIA, prohibits the generation of 
revenue from the equipment and facilities upon which VIA had 
relied in good faith. UMTA's change in long-standing Federal 
policy, argues VIA, deprives VIA of a valuable stream of 
incidental income from assets purchased under the prior regulation 
and should be applied, if at all, only to assets funded with 
Federal funds after the effective date of the new regulation. 

VIA further argues that it is not a violation of the regulation 
for VIA to give out the names of one or more private charter 
operators. VIA states that it has distributed a list of private 
charter operators, and to its knowledge, all the operators listed 
have one bus or one van. · According to VIA, there are four reasons 
why the complainant's allegations of "steering" are meritless. 
First, says VIA, the charter regulation gives the grantee 
discretion in recommending charter operators. VIA states that the 
complainants• objections appear to be based on the philosophy that 
all charters should be provided with private equipment, and that 
private operators must subcontract vehicles from private 
operators. VIA points out that UMTA rejected this position in its 
final charter rule. 

Second, VIA maintains that giving out the names of one or more 
operators is not "steering." VIA states that the complainants 
base their complaint on Q&A 19 of UMTA's "Charter Service 
Questions and Answers," 52 Fed. Reg. 42248, 42251, November 3, 
1987. However, VIA e;tates, the Q&A does not define "steering," or 
cite any part of the regulation which prohibits it. Nonetheless, 
contends VIA, it has neither steered nor actively promoted any one 
private operator, but has merely recommended certain operators. 

Third, argues VIA, even if it had engaged in "steering," this 
practice is not prohibited by the charter regulation. VIA states 
that the regulation does not mention, much less prohibit steering. 
VIA maintains that UMTA can mandate such a prohibition only 
through the rulemaking process, which it has thusfar failed to 
do. 

Fourth, states VIA, the complainants allege that VIA's policy of 
recommending charter operators is contrary to the "intent" of the 
charter regulation. VIA argues that the "intent" of a regulation 
should not be an issue, unless there is some ambiguity in the 
regulation itself or in its enabling statute. According to VIA, 
49 CFR 604.9(b) (2) needs no clarification. 
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VIA maintains that even if Q&A 19, which characterizes "steering" 
as inappropriate, were to be defended as an agency interpretation 
of its regulation, such an interpretation would be invalid. VIA 
states that a Federal agency may not by interpretation read a 
requirement into a regulation which is not there. An 
interpretation of a regulation may not, argues VIA, enlarge the 
scope of the regulation beyond the enabling statute under which it 
was promulgated. VIA contends that an interpretation of the 
charter regulation which would allow UMTA to regulate the private 
charter market is plainly outside the scope of the UMT Act. · 

VIA states that its actions have been completely consistent with 
Congressional intention. VIA asserts that its federally funded 
buses are not primarily used in charter service, and not at all in 
intercity operations. VIA moreover states that it does not 
subsidize charter operations. In fact, says VIA, it has made a 
profit on its charter service. VIA attaches, in support of its 
assertion, a copy of its most recent auditor's report. 

VIA concludes by recapitulating the main points raised in its 
response, and requests that the UMTA Chief Counsel find that VIA 
has not violated Federal law or re~lations as complained of in 
Complaint TX-02/88-01. 

REBUTTAL 

By letter of May 27, 1988, to the ABA, UMTA stated that it 
understood that a copy of VIA's response had been sent to the ABA. 
UMTA advised the ABA that it could submit a rebuttal within 30 
days of receipt of the letter. 

The ABA's rebuttal is dated July 1, 1988. The ABA states that 
VIA. has violated UMTA's charter regulation, and accordingly 
disputes each of the main points raised in VIA's response. 

The ABA states that VIA has complied with the "willing and able" 
determination process as required by 49 CFR 604.9(a) and 604.11, 
with the one exception that the process was not completed by 
August 11, 1987, as required by 49 CFR 604.11(a) (2). on October 
6, 1987, the ABA maintains, VIA had found at least one private 
operator willing and able. consequently, states the ABA, VIA was 
precluded from providing direct charter service after that date. 

The ABA states that it does not allege that VIA has provided 
direct charter service after October 8, 1987. Rather, affirms the 
ABA, the gist of its complaint is that VIA has ·circumvented the 
prohibition against direct charter service, by referring its 
charter customers to brokers. The result of these actions has 
been, maintains·the ABA, that VIA has been providing the same 
amount of charter service since the implementation of the current 
charter regulation as before. 
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VIA denies, the ABA indicates, that it has provided direct charter 
service to brokers. However, states the ABA, this denial is 
premised on the position that an entity which transports 
passengers in a bus or van cannot be a broker. The ABA points to 
the statement in VIA's response that a broker can be a "private 
charter operator," though not a "willing and able" one. VIA's 
position, states the ABA, is that it can subcontract with all 
"private charter operators," and not just with those that are 
"willing and able." Thus, maintains the ABA, VIA is operating on 
the principle that it can subcontract with brokers; since it 
considers them to be to be "private charter operators" to the 
extent that they operate a bus or a· van. 

The ABA indicates that VIA's standard is overly broad, since in 
order to subcontract with an UMTA recipient, a.one-bus or one-van 
operator must be acting as a motor carrier, and not engaged in 
service as a broker. VIA fails to recognize, states the ABA, that 
an entity which owns or operates one bus or one van under 
appropriate legal authority may nevertheless be operating 
predominantly as a broker. The ABA cites Section 10102(1) of the 
revised Interstate Commerce Act, 49 u.s.c.A. 10102(1) (West Supp. 
1988), which defines "broker" as a person, other than a motor 
carrier, which sells or offers to sell transportation by motor 
carrier. Consequently, affirms the ABA, even though a person may 
own and operate motor vehicles and may be certificated by the 
Interstate Commerce Commission ("ICC"), it may nevertheless be 
found to be operating as a broker rather than as a private charter 
operator in a particular instance. 

The ABA notes that VIA has attached to its response a list of the 
entities to which it has provided charter service under contract 
and their qualifications to engage in a direct contractual 
relationship with charter customers. The ABA contends that VIA's 
service to ten of the entities listed was unlawful because these 
entities did not hold appropriate operating authority and, even if 
they possessed such authority, they dealt with VIA as brokers and 
not as carriers. The ABA provides a list of the ten entities in 
question, as well as of the number of passenger vehicles which .. 
they own and operate and of their motor carrier operating 
authority. 

The ABA states that VIA's financial statements for the year ended 
February 29, 1988, show charter and contract service revenues of 
$2,597,761. The ABA expressed its belief that VIA has derived 
similar monthly revenue since February 29, 1988, despite the 
limitations imposed on its charter service by UMTA's charter 
regulations. This volume of contract charter business could not 
have been generated, argues the ABA, unless one or more of the 
entities listed above acted as a broker in arranging for charter 
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transportation in VIA's buses. 

In fact, the ABA alleges, VIA has established sham arrangements 
with pseudo brokers in order to circumvent the charter regulation. 
Under these subterfuge arrangements, the ABA claims, VIA generates 
most of the charter business and channels it to an ostensible 
provider of charter transportation with the understanding that 
this provider will call upon VIA to provide the service under 
contract in UMTA-funded buses. 

Moreover, states the ABA, VIA's argument that a refusal to deal 
with small operators could raise antitrust implications, is 
disingenuous. By conspiring with certain entities to circumvent 
UMTA's charter regulation, claims the ABA, VIA and its co
conspirators have restrained competition in the San Antonio 
charter bus market and have attempted to monopolize that market to 
the detriment of their competitors. 

The ABA disputes VIA's claim that UMTA's charter regulation is not 
authorized by the UMT Act. The ABA argues that nothing in the 
statute or legislative history supports this assertion. Congress 
has, the ABA states, empowered UMTA to determine to what extent 
UMTA-funded equipment may be used for charter service. 

As concerns the interpretation of section 12(c) (6) by the 
Comptroller General, the ABA states that this opinion is an 
advisory one, issued without public notice and comment, and· ·has no 
legal force or effect. UMTA has~ argues the ABA; modified in its 
1976 charter regulation and in the current charter regulation, the 
"incidental use" concept enunciated by the Comptroller General. 

The ABA further disputes VIA's contention that the charter 
regulation is " ••• directly contrary to the expressed intention of 

.Congress." Conference Report language accompanying the 1988 
Department of Transportation Appropriations Act, the ABA points 
out, does not direct that the regulation be rescinded, but rather 
that UMTA recipients be permitted to provide charter service under 
certain circumstances. 

VIA attacks, notes the ABA, UMTA's legal authority to implement 
the charter regulation by contending that if Section 12(c) (6) 
contained an absolute prohibition on the provision of charter 
service, UMTA.would not need to also rely on Section 3(f). The 
ABA counters this view by stating that Section 3(f)is not 
superfluous, although it does overlap to· some extent with Section 
12(c) (6). Section 3(f), states the ABA, unlike Section 12(c) (6), 
authorizes UMTA to regulate charter service by its recipients _ 
irresp~ctive of whether that service is provided with buses funded 
under the UMT Act, or funded by non-Federal sources. 

The ABA agrees with VIA that the current charter regulation 
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differs markedly from UMTA's previous charter regulations. 
However, the ABA cites three court decisions which have held that 
an administrative agency may depart from its established 
precedents when the decision to do so is·supported by sufficient 
analysis.4 

The ABA rebuts VIA's argument that the charter service regulation 
applies retroactively to the use of UMTA-funded equipment and 
facilities. The regulation, argues the ABA, does not apply to 
UMTA-funded assets prior to the effective date of the regulation, 
but rather to the use of those assets after May 13, 1987. 
Accordingly, states the ABA, the regulation has no more 
retroactive impact than a prospective property tax increase 
applied to buildings constructed before the effective date of the 
tax increase. 

·Finally, the ABA states that it is unlawful for VIA to generate 
. charter business and channel it to brokers for the purpose of 
circumventing the regulation. The ABA maintains that it would not 
object to a policy under which VIA recommended charter customers 
to all, some, or only one bona fide charter bus operators in the 
San Antonio area. However, claims the ABA, VIA generates a large 
volume of charter business, which it refers to paper 
intermediaries with tpe understanding that VIA will be retained to 
provide the physical service under the contract. These sham 
arrangements, states the ABA, which serve no economic purpose 
other than regulatory evasion, constitute the gravamen of its 
complaint. · 

The ABA maintains that if the complaint were groundless, the truth 
of the matter could e~sily have been demonstrated by financial and 
traffic data in VIA's files. The ABA notes that no such 
refutation appears in VIA's response. The ABA points out that 
Exhibit H of the response shows that VIA derived $2,597,761 in 
charter and contract revenues for the year ended February 29, 
1988. The ABA states that it believes. that VIA continues to 
derive revenues in the same approximate amount from its charter 
service. The.ABA states that the Chief Counsel should obtain 
information from VIA's .files which would establish this fact. 

4The decisions cited by the ABA are: Columbia Broadcasting 
system, Inc. v. F. C. C., 454 F. 2d 1018 (D.C. Cir .• 1971): Public 
Interest Research Group v. F.c.c., 522 F. 2d 1060, 1065, (1st Cir. 
1975): and, Greyhound Corp. v.· I.c.c., 551 F. 2d 414, 416 (D.C. 
Cir. 1977). 
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The ABA concludes by stating that VIA has not complied with 
49 CFR Part 604 but, on the contrary, has circumvented it by sham 
arrangements with brokers and carriers. The ABA requests that the 
Chief Counsel find that there has been a continuing pattern of 
violation of the regulation by VIA and, as provided in 49 CFR 
604.17(b), bar VIA from the receipt of further financial 
assistance for mass transportation facilities and equipment. 

DISCUSSION 

This complaint raises a myriad a factual and legal issues. For 
the sake of clarity and logical progression, UMTA has divided 
these into four subsidiary issues and two central issues.. The 
subsidiary issues mainly concern the legality a~d applicability of 
the charter regulation. AlthoUgh these issues are not v'ital to a 
determination on this matter, UMTA believes that it is appropriate 
to deal, at least succinctly,. with the questions that they raise. 

The first subsidiary issue is whether UMTA's current charter 
regulation is authorized by the UMT Act. VIA maintains that UMTA 
has exceeded its statutory authority in promulgating the · 
regulation, since Section 12(c)(~) 1 s basic definition of "mass 
transportation" defined the projects eligible for Federal aid, but 
was not intended as a broad grant of authority for UMTA to become 
a charter marketing and regulatory agency. Moreover, states VIA, 
Section 3(f) gives UMTA the authority to regulate, to a limited 
extent, the intercity, and not the intracity, activities of_._a 
grantee. VIA therefore concludes that UMTA has gone beyond its 
statutory mandate in implementing .a regulation which prohibits a 
grantee from providing any charter service, except under one of 
the narrow exceptions to the regulation. 

UMTA has addressed the question of statutory authority on pages 
11930-1 of the preamble to the charter regulation. UMTA therein 
explains that comments from recipients and trade associations 
representing them argued, in basically .the same terms that VIA is 
now arguing, that UMTA had exceeded its statutory authority in 
implementing the regulation. UMTA 1 s extensive discussion in the 
preamble refutes these arguments, and explains the legal basis for 
the rule. UMTA therefore believes that its position on this 
matter has been clearly and comprehensively set· forth. Moreover, 
UMTA has ruled that since, under the terms of the charter 
regulation, UMTA is limited in these proceedings to an 
examination of the merits of the complaint, it does not consider 
this the proper forum for raising a challenge to the legality of 
the rule. Washington Motor Coach Association y. Municipality of 
Metropolitan Seattle, WA-09/87-01, March 21, 1988. 

The second subsidiary issue raises the question of the retroactive 
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application of the charter regulation. VIA contends that the 
current regulation should be applied, if at all, only to assets 
funded with federal moneys after its effective date, since a 
retroactive application of the rule would cr~ate an undue burden 
on VIA. As the ABA correctly points out, however, the charter 
regulation does not apply to facilities and equipment funded by 
UMTA before the effective date of the rule, but rather to the use 
of these capital assests after that date. As such, the charter-
regulation is not retroactive, but rather prospective in its 
application. 

Directly linked to the question of retroactivity is the third 
subsidiary issue, namely whether the charter regulation has 
imposed new and damaging restrictions on VIA which impair its 
contractual agreement with UMTA. VIA contends that it had relied 
on UMTA's prior charter regulation when making decisions regarding 
_acquisitions and projects. For example, states VIA, when 
constructing some of its federally funded buildings, VIA relied on 
the fact that it would be able to use them incidentally in charter 
service to produce a stream of income. VIA argues that UMTA's 
charter regulation marks· an abrupt change in long-standing Federal 
policy which, if applied to assets funded before the effective 
date of the new rule, would deprive VIA of a valuable stream o! 
income on assets purchased under ·the prior regulation. 

UMTA's current charter regulation is a departure from the prior 
rule only in the sense that it establishes more restrictive ... 
conditions under which a recipient·may provide charter service. 
As is stated in the preamble, this regulation does not preclude 
the provision of incidental charter service with UMTA-funded 
assets, but si~ply creates a new and tighter definition 
of incidental service. The current regulation, like the one which 
preceded it, is designed to ensure that UMTA assistance is used 
for mass transit purposes only, and not in support of charter 
operations.5 · 

VIA was, therefore, misguided in relying on the 1976 charter 
regulation to acquire assets which would produce a stream of 
income. That regulation established strict conditions under which 
a recipient could provide charter service. It presumed that 
charter service during peak.hours, beyond 50 miles of a 
recipient's service area, and which required the use of a bus for 
more than six hours, was non-incidental and therefore prohibited. 
UMTA fails to understand how these restrictive conditions could be 
construed as a mandate to invest extensively in equipment and 
facilities to be used for charter service. On the contrary, UMTA 
has never sanctioned the acquisition and use of assets for charter 

5See, 41 Fed. Reg. 14122, 14123 (April 1, 1976); and, 52 Fed. 
Reg. 11916, 11930 (April 13, 1987). 
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purposes. UMTA's participation in these assets was on the 
condition that they be used for mass transit purposes only. VIA's 
reliance on the prior charter regulation to purchase such assets 
with UMTA funds was despite the rule and not because of it. 
Clearly, ·then, the current charter regulation has not impaired 
VIA's contractual agreement with UMTA, since, through 
implementation of both it and of the 1976 regulation, UMTA has 
sought to limit the use of UMTA-funded facilities and equipment 
for purposes other than mass transit. 

The final subsidiary issue is whether UMTA is empowered to 
prohibit VIA's "steering" of charter customers. VIA maintains 
that the charter regulation neither defines nor prohibits 
"steering." VIA states that even if characterized as "steering," 
VIA's practice does not contravene the intentions of the 
regulation or the Act. 

UMTA states in Q&A 19 of its "Charter Service Questions and 
Answers," that under the charter regulation, recipients may use 
their discretion in determining which names of charter operators 
they may give out to the public. However, UMTA notes, it will 
view any attempt on the part of a recipient to establish an 
exclusive brokering ·or subcontracting relationship as a 
contravention. of the regulation. UMTA's position on this issue is 
based on its perception that a recipient could easily circumvent 
the regulation by systematically channelling all charter business 
to operators with which ~t has established a brokering agreement. 
such an arrangement would allow the recipient to do indirectly 
what the regulation prohibits it from doing directly, namely to 
provide an unlimited amount of charter service in competition with 
private operators. It would moreover undermine one of the main 
purposes of the regulation, which is to promote the health and 
vitality of the private charter industry by fostering free and 
open competition among charter operators. · UMTA believes that it 
is empowered to take any measure necessary to safeguard the 
effectiveness and integrity of the charter regulation, including 
imposing a prohibition on "steering" arrangements which would 
render it meaningless. 

Having dispensed with these questions, we will turn to the central 
issues raised by this complaint, and which are as follows: 

1) Whether VIA has leased vehicles to charter operators in 
violation of 49 CFR 604(b) (2) 

The crux of the ABA's complaint is that VIA has· provided charter 
service under sham arrangements with private operators. The ABA 
claims that VIA channels business to brokers who lack equipment, 
or to private charter operators who are chronically short of 
equipment, and who must necessarily use VIA's equipment. These 
brokering arrangements, states the ABA, are invalid under the 
charter regulation. 
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VIA responds by stat.ing that while it disagrees with UMTA's 
position that subleasing to brokers is prohibited under the 
charter regulation, it has not contracted with brokers, since all 
of the operators with which it has contracted own at least one bus 
or one van. Moreover, states VIA, the charter regulation allows 
recipients to lease vehicles to any operator it chooses, 
regardless of the size of that operator's vehicle fleet. 

In order to resolve this question, it is necessary to examine the 
basic intent of the regulation, which is to protect private 
charter operators from unfair competition by UMTA recipients. 
This competition may come directly from the recipient's provision 
of service to charter customers, or indirectly from the conclusion 
of arrangements which allow the recipient to provide service 
through an intermediary. 

Under the exception of 49 CFR 604.9(b)(2), a recipient may lease 
vehicles to "private charter operators" which lack the capacity or 
handicapped-accessible vehicles required to provide a particular 
charter trip. Although the charter regulation does not define the 
term "private charter operator," it is clearly the intent of the 
regulation that such an operator be the owner of at least one bus 
or one van which it is licensed to operate as a provider of 
charter transportation. The intent of the rule that leasing by 
grantees be restricted to owners of vehicles can be gathered, 
first of all, from the goal of the regulation as stated above. 
Secondly, the regulation requires that to lease buses from a--· 
grantee, an operator must have exhausted it capacity or have no 
accessible equipment. This requirement would be meaningless if 
the operator were a broker, who has no equipment of any type to 
begin with. For this reason, UMTA disagrees with VIA's conclusion 
that a broker may be a private charter operator. 

UMTA also disagrees with VIA's position that VIA meets the 
requirements of the charter regulation when it subleases vehicles 
to any entity which owns a bus or a van, regardless of whether 
that entity is licensed to operate such vehicle in charter 
service. VIA's interpretation of the regulation could lead to 
substantial abuse. It is common for organizations such as 
schools, nursing homes, social or recreational clubs, or even 
business whose mission is unrelated to transportation, to own a · 
bus or a van. VIA has, for instance, submitted evidence showing 
that one of the "private charter operators" to whom it has leased 
vehicles is a catering service, most of whose vehicles are cargo 
vans. Mere ownership of a vehicle does not transform such an 
organization into a "private charter operator" -for the sake of the 
regulation. If the regulation is to fulfill the purpose for which 
it was intended, it is essential that recipients be allowed to 
lease vehicles only to legitimate operators of at least one 
vehicle which they are licensed to operate in charter service, and 
which is not merely a tool for use in an unrelated activity. 
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There is no evidence in the administrative record that VIA has 
concluded a written or verbal agreement to channel business to any 
particular entity. It is, however, apparent that VIA has 
subleased vehicles to entities which are not "private charter 
operators" under the criteria set forth above. These include the 
above-mentioned catering service, as well as travel agencies, 
convention organizers, and one entity, identified as "J&P 
Enterprises," whose business activity is not specified. UMTA 
finds that such practices, even if they are not a deliberate 
attempt to circumvent the regulation, are at least contrary to its 
intent and purpose, and should be prohibited. 

In order to ensure that VIA is subleasing UMTA-funded equipment 
only to bona fide private charter operators, UMTA order VIA to 
provide, within 3 months and 6 months successively, of the date of 
receipt of this decision, a list of the private charter operators 
with which it has contracted, describing the number and type of 
vehicles which they operate, and their operating authority. 

2. Whether VIA has provided service which is not incidental to the 
provision of mass transportation 

The second major aspect of the ABA's complaint concerns the level 
of charter service which VIA is providing. The ABA claims that 
VIA is operating as much charter service under the current 
regulation as it did under the prior one, and points to the 
figures provided by VIA which show that for the fiscal year ended 
February 29, 1988, VIA derived $2,597,761 in charter and contract 
revenues. VIA, on the other hand, states that this service ··was 
provided under the capacity exception to the charter regulation, 
and moreover meets UMTA's definition of incidental charter 
service. 

UMTA states in the preamble to the charter regulation that in 
order to ensure maximum flexibility, it has chosen to define 
"incidental" in broad terms. Under this definition, charter 
service is incidental when it does not interfere with or detract 
from the provision of mass transit, or shorten the mass transit 
life of vehicles and facilities. UMTA provides in the preamble 
three examples of non-incidental service, including peak hour 
service, service which does not meet its fully allocated cost, and 
service using buses in excess of a 20% spare ratio. UMTA 
specifically points out, however, that this list is not 
exhaustive, and that there are many other possible examples of 
non-incidental service. 
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UMTA believes that one of these examples is charter service which 
generates a disproportionately large percentage of the grantee's 
transit revenues,. VIA 1 s charter revenues for the most recent 
fiscal year, which ended more than nine months after the 
implementation of the regulation, represent, according to VIA's 
own financial statement, nearly one-third of its regular line 
service revenues. The sheer magnitude of VIA's charter revenues 
leads UMTA to suspect that the charter service VIA is providing 
fails to conform to UMTA's incidental service guidelines. 

Moreover, UMTA is also led to conclude that in order to generate 
such large revenues, VIA may have a substantial amount of excess 
resources which it is using to provide charter service. UMTA will 
therefore conduct an independent study of VIA's charter and mass 
transit operations to determine whether this substantial amount of 
charter revenue is due to the use of surplus equipment and 
facilities. If such is the case, UMTA may determine that VIA 
should sell or dispose of these surplus assets in accordance with 
UMTA and Office of Management and Budget (OMB) guidelines. 

CONCLUSION 

UMTA's examination of the administrative record shows that VIA has 
leased vehicles to entities which are not "private charter 
operators" within the1 meanfng of the charter regulation. UMTA 
orders VIA to cease and desist from these practices·immediately. 
UMTA also orders VIA to provide, within 3 months and 6 months 
successively from the date of receipt of this decision, 
information which would enable it to determine VIA's compliance 
with the terms of this order. UMTA reminds VIA that failure to 
comply with the charter regulation may jeopardize VIA's Federal 
transportation assist~nce. UMTA also finds that VIA may be 
providing service which is not incidental to the provision of mass 
transit, and which is operated using surplus equipment and 
facilities. In order to make a determination on this matter, UMTA 
will conduct an independent study of VIA's charter and mass 
transit facilities. 

Theodore A. Munter 
Deputy Chief Counsel 
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400 Seventh St., s;w·. 
Washington, D.C. 20590 

Re: Use of UMTA Buses for Charter 

Dear Mr. Ferdinand: 

This responds to your recent letter dated November 17, 1988, 
wherein Y'- J.. query w.1ether S&O Tours, Inc. woul.d be in conformance 
with the Urban Mass Transportation Administration's (UMTA) charter 
regulation under various conditions. UMTA will enumerate each 
condition, followed by our analysis of·the r.equ~ation. 

1. At nQ time can 1 ine service be comprom·ised in any manner·' to 
operate a charter. It should be noted this policy originated in 
the 1930's when the company first.received ICC authority. 

True. As stated in 52 Federal· Register 42251, Question NUlllber 24, 
even when an UMTA recipient falls within one of ·the exceptions 
which would permit it to provide qharter servic.e with UMTA .. zunded 
equipment and facilities, such service must be "incidental~" 
"Incidental" is describe<;! as. charter service which does not 
"interfere· with .or detract frolt.l" providing· mass. transportation· 
service or does. not "shorten the mass _,.transportation -life· of, the 
equipment or facilities" beinq used. 

2. The company would be requested to operate charters that exceed 
charter capacity (sp). 

Initially, it is important. to note that the regulations apply to 
subrecipients of UMTA funds which use UMTA-funded equipment· just 
as it does to recipients. Thus, a recipient, or· in this Case a 
subrecipient, can enter into a contract to sublease charter 
equipment to a private operator when the operator needs equipment 
in excess of its capacity. This is an exception, which permits a 
recipient to provide charter service with UMT.A. ·funded equipment 
and facilities. 
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3. The company has s separate set of accounts for its charter 
business. The separation is audited }2y A CPA firm. · 

To the extent that S&O Tours, Inc. is truly an independent 
company, it is like any other private company and can lease to 
anyone they please without being subject to the regulation. 
However, if this independent company is determined to be a sham, 
UMTA will pierce the corporate veil. 

4. The company swaps miles to insure that the PMTA funded 
equipment does not operate in. excess .Q.! total line miles. IhY§., 
i! an UMTA funded bus travels 1QQ miles Qn A charter A company 
charter bus will operate .lQQ miles of line service. This insures 
that UMTA capital value is not misused. 

UMTA is unclear as to the purpose of this question and needs more 
info~ation in order to respond. 

5. The company charters buses to other willing and able private 
companies when their capacity is exceeded.· Points ll & li would 
still apply in this circumstance. 

The preamble to UMTA's charter regulation, 52 Federal Register 
11916, 11918 (April 13, 1987),· states.. that the..,.x:ec;ulation only 
applies to charter service using UMTA-fund·ed· ... e'qtiipment and 
facilities. If a recipient or subrecipient sets up a· separate 
company that has only locally funded equipment, or is able to 
maintain·separate accounts for its· ch-arter operation that show the 
charter service is truly a separate division, then the. charter 
regulation would not apply. Moreover, such a separate entity 
could even lease buses or garage space from an UMTA recipient or 
subrecipient on an incidental bas-is. In short, there are no 
restrictions on the charter activi:ties of an UMTA subrecipient's 
separate charter entity which uses .. only non-UMTA funded vehicles 
and facilities. 

I trust that this provides you with the necessary clarifications. 

Sincerely, 

~ter 
Deputy Ch~ef Counsel 
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U.S. Department 
of Transportation 

Urban Mass 
Transportation 
Administration 

Mr. Patrick L. Hamric 
General Manager 
LEXTRAN 
109 Loudon Avenue 
Lexington, Kentucky 40508 

Dear Mr. Hamric: 

Headquarters 400 Seventh St., S.W. 
washington. D.C. 20590 

December 28, 1988 

Re: Blue Grass Tours and Charter v. 
LeXington Transit. KX-88/08-01 

I am writing to close the investigation of the above-cited 
complaint, which was filed by Blue Grass Tours and Charter a yea~ 
ago. Based on the information you have provided, we can conclude 
that the service Lexington Transit (Lextran) provides in the area 
around the University of Kentucky is mass transit as opposed to 
charter. 

In the course of her visit with you on December 14, 1988, Nancy 
Greene, Regional counsel, Urban Mass Transportation Administration 
(UMTA)" Region III, learned that while the service is still ··
provided to the University, it is no longer provided p~~'uant to a 
contract which links payment to hour$ of, ~erv.ice;!:·--:xns~--c;i, . 
Lextran receives an an-nua·l-·qra·nt·~'from.· ~- UniverS,lty~. , .. Sdl\e4ul.es 
have- been pUblished for the t~~ ~::tout.~s ... that circul~t;e~,.i# · ~e · 
university area. students hav~:·_t}?.e""J.:>rivil~.q~ :.~o~··:·ridinq':·tree upon 
showing a student ID, wh'ile the' ·e;ene;-.al p~lic :.pays_ the ·~t:~gular. 
fare. Bus stops are marked with si.q.~~ ·:s}lowihg ·the_~·Le~r.~~:·:loq:o·. 
and route number and· transfers .. to the ·other routes~ in 'tne_. _ _+.,extran 
system are indicated. · ... 
In short,·.··,i_t appears that you ha_Vf!l .suc·c,~~fully coi1:yert~d Whal: .,we 
believe was· charter service _;.to.~ my~;,~;:t;_;-Zl;n&_i:t·•_<t:·~n-~ac:~, yo~· :h~ve . 
provided an example for otb~_t':.J;JX;~nte~s wh.p.,: 8;~~· sjjai::(J.;_:r,·ly. ·:~ituated 
to follow. · · 

I would like to point out, ·-how~yer, that in accordance with UMTA's 
private sector policy, Lextran should examine the interest and 
capability of the private $.~9.t.or in providing this service. This 

· is especially the case sinC'e /'·according to the information you 
have furnished, this service has been operated by Lextran since 
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1982. Under the guidelines set forth in Circular 7005.1, 
nDocumentation of Private Enterprise Participation Required for 
section 3 and 9 Programs" (December 5, 1986), UMTA grantees should 
examine each route at least every three years to determine if it 
could be more efficiently operated by private enterprise. 

co: Wallace Jones 

Nancy Greene, URO-III 
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Theodore A. Munter 
Deputy Chief Counsel 



BEFORE THE URBAN MASS TRANSPORTATION ADMINISTRATION 

In the matter of: 

MARTUCCI BUS COMPANY AND } 
E. VANDERHOOF AND SONS, INC. } 

} 
v. } 

} 
NEW JERSEY TRANSIT CORPORATION } 

DECISION 

SUMMARY 

NJ-02/87-01 

Martucci Bus Company and E. Vanderhoof and Sons, Inc. 
("Martucci") jointly filed this complaint with the Urban Mass 
Transportation Administration ("UMTA") alleging that New Jersey 
Transit Corporation ("NJT") had failed to comply with the 
provisions of the Urban Mass Transportation Act of 1964, as 
amended ("UMT Act") and the implementing guidance concerning 
participation of private enterprise in the provision of mass 
transportation. After a thorough review of the administrative 
record, UMTA finds that the violations alleg.ed by the complainant 
do not fall within the scope of the private sector provisions of 
the UMT Act and the implementing policy. 

COMPLAINT 

Martucci filed this complaint with UMTA on January 10, 1987. The 
complaint alleges that NJT had violated the private sector 
provisions of the UMT Act by improperly transferring operations of 
the Number 24 bus route to orange, Newark .and Elizabeth Bus, Inc. -
(ONE Company), a privately owned company. According to Martucci, 
NJT had decided to pursue an option under which it would exchange 
its operating rights on its Number 24 line for the operating 
rights of a number of single bus operators servicing a number of 
routes in direct competition with NJT. However, Martucci claims 
that a private agreement was made between ONE Company and NJT for 
ONE Company to purchase the operating certificates of these 
sixteen operators (excluding Martucci), in exchange for a 
certificate to allow ONE Company to operate the Number 24 route. 
Martucci alleges that these negotiations were conducted under a 
veil of secrecy. Furthermore, Martucci states that there has been 
a lack of interest on NJT's part in having Martucci acquire full 
operation of the Number 24 route because·of the secret agreement 
between ONE Company and NJT. Martucci further claims that this 
foreclosed an opportunity for it to engage in meaningful 
negotiations for the Number 24 route. In other words, they have 
been foreclosed from any meaningful competition. 

Second, Martucci alleges that the operating certificates 
belonging to the independent bus companies were bought by ONE 
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Company at way below fair market value. Martucci st~tes this· also 
resulted in destructive competition. 

RESPONSE 

UMTA reviewed Martucci's complaint and determined that the 
allegations could possibly constitute violations of the private 
sector provisions of the UMT Act and the implementing policy. 
UMTA forwarded Martucci's complaint to NJT on April 16, 1987, and 
provided it with thirty days to resp9nd. 

NJT's response is dated May 15, 1987. In its response, NJT 
states that Martucci has not alleged any violations of either the 
UMT Act or UMTA policy. "The real complaint," states NJT "is that 
they were unable to negotiate a favorable business deal like the 
business deal negotiated by the ONE Company." 

In response to Martucci's allegation that NJT had unfairly 
rejected the offer to have complainant acquire the number 24 
route, NJT states that Martucci's real complaint was that a deal 
was made with the ONE Company and not with complainant. NJT 
explains that by agreeing to a trade of routes between it and the 
newly created ONE Company, the number of buses operated by private 
carriers in the affected area has increased from 25 to 36 buses, 
thus effectuating UMTA's private enterprise policy. 

NJT further does not deny that negotiations between ONE and NJT 
(to have ONE purchase the operating rights of the smalL private 
carriers in exchange for the number 24 route) were kept 
confidential until all purchases were consummated. The Assistant 
Executive Director, in a supporting affidavit, states that a year 
prior to these negotiations, in the summer of 1984, NJT began to 
meet with private carriers to determine if they might be 
interested in transferring to another route or in being bought 
out. NJT concluded that these small independent carriers were 
being unreasonable and that they believed that NJT would be 
·willing to pay whatever price was necessary to accomplish its 
goals; NJT subsequently terminated said negotiations. Thus, in 
September 1986, while the agreement between ONE Company and NJT 
was being finalized in secrecy, ONE succeeded in purchasing almost 
all the operating rights of the independents (except for 
Martucci). NJT states that this arrangement saves them 
approximately $600,000 annually in operating losses, it eliminates 
inefficient, duplicative service and it is in accordance with 
UMTA's private enterprise policy. 

NJT moreover contends that Martucci never attempted to locally 
resolve its claim of destructive competition. NJT states that it 
has adopted detailed procedures to resolve destructive competition 
complaints and Martucci has not exhausted this local 
administrative remedy. Lastly, NJT claims that Martucci has 
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offered no evidence that NJT has actually engaged in destructive 
competition.! · 

NJT .concludes by stating that the complainant is unable to allege 
any violations of either the UMT Act or UMTA policy. 

REBUTTAL 

UMTA forwarded NJT's response to Martucci. On April 28, 1988, 
UMTA advised Martucci that it had not received its rebuttal 
statement. By letter of May 2, 1988, Martucci filed a photocopy 
of its rebuttal, which is dated June 9, 1987. 

In its rebuttal, Martucci initially states that the basis of its 
complaint is that NJT "has improperly benefitted members of the 
private sector at the expense of the taxpayers of the State of New 
Jersey, the taxpayers of the United states ••• and the members of 
the private sector that we are representing in this action." 

Specifically, Martucci alleges that the agreement between ONE 
Company and NJT has virtually forced it out of business and 
negated its profitability margin. ONE Company, states Martucci, 
was able to purchase the independent bus companies at 'bargain 
basement' prices and exchange those operating certificates for the 
right to operate the Number 24 route. Martucci complains .that 
while NJT broke off negotiations with the independents because 
they were demanding prices in excess of fair market value, NJT was 
then willing to make a deal with the ONE company, which was 
finalized in September 1986, to trade NJT's operating rights for 
far below fair market value. It is alleged that· ONE Company 
purchased the independents with a very small amount of cash, the 
balance in long term notes. 

Second, Martucci complains that prior to the transfer of 
operations to the ONE Company, NJT had conducted coordinated 
operations on the Number 24 route with Martucci as well as with 
Wohlgemuth Bus Company, which is operated by Robert White, who is 
also the President of ONE Company. (White also represents the 
independent carriers in the Newark-Elizabeth area on the Private 
Carrier Advisory Committee).2 These private companies, 
inclu~ing Martucci, were given first choice in the selection of 
runs which permitted them to operate profitably without the need 
to seek state subsidies. However, subsequent to the transfer, 
Martuccci was assigned runs by NJT which were less favorable, 
resulting in both reduced revenue and income. 

1 NJT's regulation for destructive competition provides for an 
impartial administrative law judge to conduct a hearing and make 
recommendations to the NJT Board. See, New Jersey Administrative 
Code 16:74-1, et seq. 

2 The NJT Board created the Private carrier Advisory-Committee 
(PCAC) to advise the Board concerning policy matters affecting all 
private carriers. Mr. White is one of its members and Frank 
Gallagher, President of ONE Company, chairs the PCAC. 
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Third, Martucci states that the ONE Company did not exist prior to 
the agreement between NJT and ONE. Therefore, claims Martucci, 
"to all appearances [ONE] is undercapitalized in the sense that 
its first action was to go out and purchase a number of bus routes 
by means of using promissory notes." 

Fourth, Martucci alleges that the ONE Company has been provided 
with new buses to conduct its operations while NJT has refused to 
replace the older buses presently leased to Martucci. Also, NJT 
has redetermined its standard formula for making payments under 
its Bus Card Program which has resulted in substantially reduced 
payments to Martucci. 

Fifth, states Martucci, "as a result of the transfer of operation 
from the private companies to NJT and NJT's decision to hold off 
on a formal conclusion of the -oNE Company, the ONE Company has 
fallen under the direction of NJT rather than the the New Jersey_ 
Department of Transportation and has been able to make changes in 
its route structure without going through the long administrative 
process required by the Department of Transportation." In sum, 
claims Martucci, ONE Company has been able to circumvent a process 
that Martucci is bound to follow; that is, Martucci must receive 
approval from the New Jersey Department of Transportation to 
conform its routes to that of ONE Company. 

Sixth, Martucci alleges that ONE Company has been privy to inside 
information in negotiating its agreement with NJT. ONE Company is 
composed of Frank Gallagher and Robert White. As stated above, 
Mr. Gallagher chairs the PCAC and Mr. White represents the 
independent carriers in the Newark-Elizabeth area on the PCAC. 
Martucci states that Mssrs. Gallagher and White used information 
obtained in their capacity as members of the PCAC in order to 
negotiate favorable business deals to their personal benefit. 

Finally, Martucci states that UMTA is neither governed nor bound 
by state law in deciding this case. Thus, the New Jersey 
regulations concerning destructive competition can be overridden 
by the intervention of a Federal agency. 

DISCUSSION 

UMTA developed its private enterprise policy in conformance with 
three provisions of the UMT Act, namely Sections 3(e), 8(e), and 
9(f). Under Section J(e) UMTA must, before approving a program of 
projects, find that such program provides for the maximum feasible 
participation of private enterprise. Section 8(e) directs UMTA 
recipients to encourage private sector participation in the 
plans and programs funded under the Act. Finally, as a 
precondition to funding under Section 9, recipients must develop a 
private enterprise program in accordance with the requirements set 
out in Section 9(f). 
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In order to provide guidance in achieving compliance with these 
statutory requirements, UMTA issued its policy statement, "Private 
Enterprise Participation in the Urban Mass Transportation 
Program." 49 Federal Register 41310, October 22, 1984. UMTA's 
private sector requirements are further detailed in Circular 
7005.1, "Documentation of Private Enterprise Participation 
Required for Sections 3 and 9 Programs," December 5, 1986. 

However, before a private enterprise complaint is entertained by 
UMTA, there must be an initial determination that UMTA has 
jurisdiction over the issues raised therein. UMTA will not 
examine the substantive issues before m~king this initial 
determination. After reviewing all evidence contained in the 
administrative record, UMTA has concluded that none of the issues 
raised by Martucci falls within the scope of UMTA's private sector 
policy. Thus, UMTA has no jurisdiction over Martucci's complaint, 
and specifically over the six allegations outlined in its 
rebuttal. · 

The first allegation in Martucci's rebuttal states that Martucci 
was virtually forced out of business when NJT traded its operating 
rights to the ONE Company at far below market value, thus enabling 
the ONE Company to purchase the independent bus companies at 
'bargain basement• prices, The ONE company in turn, states 
Martucci, traded these operating rights to NJT in exchange for the 
right to operate the Number 24 route, in competition with 
Martucci. 

While UMTA agrees that the above mentioned arrangement may have 
provided the ONE Company with a distinct advantage over its 
competitor, Martucci, such matters do not fall within the scope O·f 
UMTA's private sector policy. UMTA 1 s private sector policy in no 
way dictates, or even addresses, the substance or conduct of a 
grantees• business transactions, or the manner in which these 
transactions are financed. 

Moreover, Martucci's complaint is not that it was not consulted in 
connection with the plan to exchange operating rights on the 
Number 24 route, but rather, that it was later excluded from these 
negotiations, which were then continued with the ONE Company. 
At the time that these negotiations were being conducted, late in 
1985 through September 1986, UMTA 1 s private sector policy was 
contained in 49 Federal Register 41310 (October 22, 1984). The 
Federal Register Notice simply required that "when ••• services 
are significantly restructured, consideration should be given to 
whether private carriers could provide such service." NJ'l' met 
this requirement when it undertook negotiations with Martucci. 
Although the policy guidelines now in effect in Circular 7005.1 
(December 5, 1986) contain more stringent requirements, including 
a competitive bid process and cost factoring, NJT could not be 
held to these requirements in the case of route planning or 
negotiations which predate the Circular. consequently, both 
because NJT met its private sector obligations to Martucci under 
the guidelines in effect at the time, and because Martucci's 
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allegations with respect to the structuring and financing of route 
trade w~th the ONE Company falls outside of the scope of UMTA's 
private sector policy, UMTA will not entertain the first issue 
raised in Martucci's rebuttal. 

In its second allegation, Martucci states that subsequent to the 
transfer of operations to the ONE Company, Martucci was assigned 
runs which were less favorable, resulting in both reduced revenue 
and income. Martucci's second allegation stems directly from the 
first one since the re-assignment of runs is a direct consequence 
of the route trade between NJT and the ONE Company. since UMTA 
has determined that Martucci's first allegation is outside·of 
UMTA's jurisdictional boundaries and moreover would not constitute 
a violation of the guidelines in effect at the time of the events 
in question, this second allegation similarly cannot be 
entertained. · 

In its third allegation, Martucci states that the ONE Company is 
undercapitalized and was formed mainly to carry out the 
transaction between ONE Company and NJT. UMTA's private sector 
policy addresses only the measures that a grantee has taken to 
involve the private sector in its provision of service. However, 
it does not address issues pertaining to financial structure. 
Thus, UMTA does not have jurisdiction to decide this issue. 
Rather, complainant should address this issue to a proper state 
judicial andjor administrative forum. 

In its fourth allegation, Martucci states that the ONE-Company has 
been provided with new buses while Martucci's request for newer 
equipment has been denied. Initially, it should be noted that NJT 
has developed a complex formula for bus allocation including a bus 
allocation plan dispute resolution process. Martucci has not 
sought redress under this state procedure. However, even if this 
procedure had been followed, UMTA has determined that Martucci has 
not alleged facts sufficient to make a determination that there 
has been a violation of UMTA's private sector policy. 

In its fifth allegation, Martucci states that NJT is holding off 
on formally transferring ONE Company's operation of routes so that 
it does not fall under the jurisdiction of the New Jersey 
Department of Transportation (NJ DOT). This is not a matter that 
is within UMTA's jurisdiction. Any complaint wherein a party has 
not followed proper NJ DOT procedures must be addressed to the NJ 
DOT. 

In its sixth allegation, Martucci states that ONE Company has had 
access to inside information. Similarly, this is not a matter 
that is within UMTA's jurisdiction; Martucci may address this 
issue to an appropriate state forum. 

Finally, Martucci states that UMTA is neither bound nor governed 
by New Jersey law. As a general rule, Federal law preempts state 
law. However, the legislative intent as expressed through UMTA's 
private sector guidelines, clearly mandates the development or 
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adoption of a local process. Both the Federal Register notice and 
Circular 7005.1 expressly state that disputes should be resolved 
on the local level, and that UMTA will entertain a complaint only 
when local remedies have been exhausted. Thus, in the case of 
private enterPrise dispute resolution, UMTA has consented to 
decision-making by local jurisdiction. 

CONCLUSION 

UMTA concludes that the violations alleged by Martucci do not fall 
within the scope of the private sector provisions of the UMT Act 
and the implementing policy. Moreover, while two of Martucci's 
allegations might conceivably fall within the scope of the private 
sector policy now in effect, the conduct at issue predated the 
enactment of more stringent private sector guidelines. Therefore, 
UMTA has no jurisdiction to entertain this complaint. 
Accordingly, UMTA dismisses Martucci's complaint. 

Theodore A. Munter 
Deputy Chief Counsel 
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US. Depa~tment 
of Transportation 

Urban Mass 
Transportation 
Administration 

The Honorable Silvio o. Conte 
House of Representative$ 
Washington, D.c. 20515 

c-~ vi · 
D~ar of!r. ~~t e : 

The Administrator 

JAI'~ - 5 1989 

Thank you for your letter concerning the Urban Mass 

400 Seventh St., S.W. 
Washington, D.C. 20590 

Transportation Administration's (UMTA) amendment to·its charter 
service regulation, which was recently published in the Federal 
Register~ Your letter commends UMTA on its amendment which, you 
state, clearly reflects an intent to help persons with 
disabilities. However, you suggest certain changes to the 
amendment which you believe will assure that UMTA's charter 
regulation does not inadvertently burden people with disabilities. 

First, you state, the definition of "transportation disadva~taged"· 
appears to be limited to "persons of limited fiscal or financial 
means." You suggest that the definition be expanded so that it is 
clear that "transportation disadvantaged" also includes the 
mental~y impaired. 

In response to comments on its notice of p~oposed rulemaking 
(NPRM) on the amendment, UMTA considered the possibility of 
including mental impairment in the definition of "transportation 
disadvantaged." However, UMTA determined that the inclusion of 
this category of persons was not feasible· because of the 
difficulty of establishing criteria or guidelines for defining 
eligibility. The rule does not limit and in fact UMTA encourages 
its recipients to provide the broadest possible coverage in 
defining handicaps eligible for the exception, including mental 
impairment. 

Second, you ask that UMTA carefully review the rule and modify it 
where necessary to ensure that the chartering process is as simple 
and direct as possible. You suggest that UMTA adopt two 
suggestions made by the Consortium for citizens with Developmental 
Disabilities (the consortium) in its comments of July 22, 1988, on 
the NPRM. 

The Consortium's first suggestion is that contracting agencies be 
able to obtain a single certification for-charter services for 
multiple groups. UMTA agrees that a single certification may be 
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appropriate under some circumstances, and has· allowed for it in 
the final rulemaking. The amendment as now drafted recognizes 
situations where one contract may cover more than one trip for the 
same passengers and the same purposes, such as a week-long day 
camp program for handicapped children •. Under these situations, a 
single certification would be acceptable. 

The Consortium's second comment addr$sses the question of allowing 
non-disabled persons to benefit from the exception as long as 
the purpose of their trip is directly related to assisting 
disabled persons. UMTA again believes that the inclusion in the 
amendment of such a broad category of persons would be impractical 
and unworkable and generate complaints of abuse. At the same 
time, UMTA is mindful of the fact that organizers or sponsors of 
activities for the disabled may in some cases have a valid need to 
contract charter services from UMTA recipients. UMTA believes, 
however, that the needs of these groups will in large part be met 
through use of the formal agreement process, which UMTA has 
included in the final rulemaking. This process allows ·a recipient 
to provide certain charter services when it has concluded a formal 
agreement with the willing and able private operators in its 
service area. The only procedural requirement, in addition to the 
conclusion of a formal agreement, is that the recipient's 
published notice provide for this type of agreement or be 
subsequently amended to specifically refer to.the agreement. UMTA 
believes that this procedure will provide the most flexible·and 
least burdensome mechanism for meeting the charter needs of 
sponsors of events for disabled persons. 

Finally, you state that one e~emption under the final rule would 
be limited to those groups receiving funds only from the u.s. 
Department of Health and Human Services (USDHHS). You ask that 
the exemption be expanded to cover low income people receiving 
funds from Federal agencies other than USDHHS. 

Several organizations provided UMTA with similar comments on the 
NPRM. In response to these comments, UMTA has expanded the 
exception to include organizations which receive or are eligible 
to receive, from a State or local body, funding comparable to that 
provided by certain USDHHS programs. In order to be eligible for 
the exception, these groups must be certified by t~e State under a 
procedure set out in the final rule. It should moreover be noted 
that the charter needs of groups receiving funds from Federal 
agencies other than USDHHS or from State sources may be met 
througp. use of the formal agreement process outlined above. 

390 



UMTA believes that its final rulemaking on the amendment reflects 
the intent of Congress as expressed in the Conference . 
Report 100-498, as well as the many comments received on the NPRM. 
I share your confidence that the amendment will allow our 
recipients to serve the disabled, while fulfilling UMTA's 
statutory goal of limiting the use of federally funded equipment 
for purposes other than mass transit. 

Sincpr_, 
Alfred A. DelliBovi 
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US Deportment 
of Transportation 

Urban Mass 
Transportation 
Administration 

Mr. Bryon Baxter 
Director of Transportation 
City of Davenport 
2929 Fifth Avenue 
Rock Island, Illinois 61202 

Dear Mr. Baxter: 

Re: IL/RICMMTD/87-12-01 

Thank you for your recent letter concerning transit service in the 
city of Davenport, Iowa. 

The first issue concerns the discontinuance of transit service on 
Route 11. The Urban Mass Transportation Administration (UMTA) 
acknowledges the city of Davenport's contention that it has 
followed the guidelines as established by the UMTA charter service 
regulation, and specifically, the public comment process, as · 
required by 49 u.s.c. § 1607 (e) (3) (H), which provides for a 
locally developed process to solicit and consider public comment 
prior to raising fares or implementing a major reduction of 
transit service. UMTA considers the discontinuance of charter 
service on Route 11 to be in accordance with the charter service 
regulations. 

The second matter involves transit service to the Quad City 
Thunder basketball games, alleged to be referred to as "chartered 
buses." The city of Davenport states that this service is 
scheduled service which is open to the public. UMTA recognizes 
that special service is not necessarily charter service, as 
defined at 49 CFR section 604.5(e) of UMTA's charter service 
regulations. In this instance, UMTA has determined that this 
service is not charter service. 
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Based on our investigation of facts involved in certain aspects of 
transit service conducted in the Quad Cities, UMTA has determined 
that there is no violation of the charter service regulation, or 
49 u.s.c § 1607 (e) (3) (H), with respect to the discontinuance of 
service on Route 11 and service to accommodate Quad City 
basketball games. · 

UMTA, therefore, will not be taking any.further action with 
respect to these matters. 
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BEFORE THE URBAN MASS TRANSPORTATION ADMINISTRATION 

In the matter of: 

SUMMIT COACHES, 

Complainant, 

v. 

FORT WAYNE PUBLIC TRANSPORTATION 
CORPORATION, 

Respondent/Recipient 

. . . 

. . 

DECISION 

SUMMARY 

IN-Ft. Wayne/88-06-01 

Sununit Coaches ("Summit") filed i!n informal complaint with the 
Urban Mass Transportation Administration ( 11 UMTA 11 ) on June 8, 1988, 
alleging that Fort Wayne Public Transportation Corporation 
("FWPTC"} has provided charter service in violation of the UMTA 
charter regulation, 49 CFR Part 604. UMTA's investigation ·finds 
that FWPTC has violated UMTA's charter regulation by using UMTA 
funded equipment in "charter" service, as that term is defined in 
the charter regulation, although FWPTC has labelled that service 
as "group demand service". UMTA does find, however, that two of 
the services offered by FWPTC come within UMTA's definition of 
mass transportation: the Lincoln Life service.and the Target 
Store service. In addition, the attempted separation of the 
operations of FWPTC Charter Division from its PUblic Transit 
Division does not meet UMTA requirements. Neither may FWPTC use 
UMTA funded equipment and personnel whose salary is partially .. paid 

. with UMTA funds to upgrade non-UMTA funded buses which later may 
be used for charter operations. UMTA orders FWPTC to cease and 
desist from such practices immediately. 
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COMPLAINT 

Loser & Loser, Inc., d/b/a Summit Coaches, is a private bus 
operator located in Ft. Wayne, Indiana. On June 8, 1988, Summit's 
informal complaint referencing 24 possible violations of the 
charter regulation, 49 CFR Part 604, was forwarded to UMTA. 
Summit contends that certain of the transportation services . 
provided by FWPTC are not "mass transportation" as defined in the 
Urban Mass Transportation Act of 1964, as amended, 49 u.s.c. app. 
§ 1608 § ·12 (c)(6) (UMT Act), but prohibited "charter bus 
operation", as defined in 49 u.s.c. § 1602, § 3(f). The other 
significant aspect of the complaint is the allegation that FWPTC 
is using UMTA funded equipment and facilities to assist in its 
charter service and does not have an entirely separate charter 
service division that uses no federally assisted resources. 
Summit specifically describes its complaint as follows: 

On May 4th and 5th, 1988, three FWPTC chartered buses, which 
Summit believed to be funded by UMTA, transported passengers from 
the Marriott Hotel to the Magnavox and ITT plants. 

On May 14, 1988, FWPTC chartered two buses to r~ligious 
organizations, one bus to Bethel United Methodist Church and one 
to st. John's Lutheran Church. 

On or about March 1, 1988, FWPTC chartered two UMTA funded 
trolleys to transport a movie actress, Lori David, and her friends 
to the Hollywood II Cinema. 

On November 4, 1987, three FWPTC buses, marked "charter", two of 
them believed to be UMTA funded, were chartered by Fort Wayne 
National Bank to the Embassy Theatre. The next morning, the same 
three buses were intermingled among the rest of the fleet on FWPTC 
property. In a meeting on the morning of November 5, 1987, John 
J. Murphy, General Manager of FWPTC, admitted that two of the 
buses were UMTA funded and had been used for charter purposes in 
response to this complaint. · 

On April 27, 1988, four FWPTC buses, two of them believed to be 
UMTA funded, were chartered by A.R.M. Services to move passengers 
from a parked airplane to the terminal at Baer Field Airport. 

On May 16, 1988, Foster Grandparents chartered one FWPTC UMTA
funded bus from the Senior Citizens Center to Hall's Guesthouse. 

FWPTC non-UMTA funded buses are not headquartered or maintained 
off property by a private c~ntractor, as claimed by FWPTC, but are 
repaired and maintained at the UMTA funded facility by UMTA funded 
employees. Additionally, the drivers for charters are dispatched 
from and the charter records<are maintained at an UMTA funded 
facil.ity. 
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Two UMTA funded employees, John Murphy and Mike Bill, 
respectively, manage and are in charge of the charter operations. 
Another UMTA funded employee answers·the telephone for both the 
"charter division" and the "mass transportation division". 

FWPTC advertises under "Buses-Charter and Rental" in the Yellow 
Pages of the Fort Wayne telephone directory us.ing the same address 
and telephone number for the "charter division" as is used for its 
"mass transportation division". 

On April 29, 1988, a FWPTC bus ran charter service from Hall's 
Guesthouse to the General Motors plant. 

On May 13, 1988, a non-UMTA funded FWPTC bus ran charter service 
from Hanna Street to Calvary Temple Park. 

on May 14, 1988, a non-UMTA funded FWPTC bus ran charter service 
to the Indianapolis Time Trials for the Fort Wayne Board of 
Realtors. 

On May 17, 1988, a FWPTC bus ran charter service for a union group 
from the Holiday Inn to the B.F. Goodrich plant. 

on May 21, 1988, a FWPTC bus ran charter service from American 
Plaza to the Foellinger Botanical Conservatory. 

In December 1987, FWPTC ran charter service to Target Stores from 
various senior complexes. 

At the time of the complaint, FWPTC was providing daily shuttle 
service for Lincoln Life's employees that was funded by Lincoln 
Life at $19.50 per hour. 

RESPONSE 

By letter of July_l3, 1988, UMTA advised FWPTC that the 
allegations contained in summit's complaint would constitute 
violations of UMTA's charter service regulations and requested 
FWPTC to provide comprehensive data on the nature and scope of its 
charter bus operations. On August s, 1988, FWPTC provided some of 
the requested material, but did not submit substantiating 
documentation until September 29, 1988. 

The documentation submitted by FWPTC shows that the trips 
alleged by Summit to have been chartered with UMTA-funded 
vehicles were in fact provided with such vehicles. The 
documentation also shows that non-UMTA funded vehicles used for 
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charter operations were supported by UMTA-funded employees and 
facilities since FWPTC did not enter into the lease with JRR · 
Corporation for separate storage and maintenance facilities for 
its non-UMTA funded equipment until August 2, 1988. FWPTC also. 
acknowledges that UMTA funded employees are engaged in charter . 
activities. FWPTC acknowledges that the Yellow Pages list FWPTC 
under the "charter" category for buses. 

In its defense FWPTC claims that the services provided were not 
"charter" but "group demand response". FWPTC states that group 
demand response service differs from charter service since FWPTC 
''retains the rig!1t to remove the bus from its destination and to 
utilize it in normal mass transportation service •••• (and that) 
[i]n some instances, FWPTC has charged a fare to each individual 
user of demand response service." 

FWPTC states that the provision of trolley service on or about 
March 1, 1988, was provided at the request of the county sheriff's 
department without cost as a community service. 

In the case of the December 8, 1988, service to Target Store, 
FWPTC states that the service was made available by the 'store to 
provide transportation to senior citizens for special Christmas 
shopping and that such service is "mass transportation" as defined 
by UMTA in 52 Fed. Reg. 11920, April 13, 1987. 

In the case of the daily shuttle to Lincoln Life for its 
employees, FWPTC claims that the service is "(r]eqular1y 
[s]cheduled [d]owntown (s]huttle service open to the general 
public at 25 cents fare. It is subsidized at $19.50 per hour by 
Lincoln Life. Lincoln Life employees show their passes but do not 
pay a fare." In support of this claim FWPTC provided a published 
schedule for the service. 

John J. Murphy, General Manager of FWPTC, stated in a meeting with 
Summit that "buses the FWPTC owned without federal involvement 
were being maintained in FWPTC's facility awaiting an agreement 
with JRR Corporation for storage and maintenance on its lot." 
FWPTC states that this situation continued until August 1, 1988, 
when the FWPTC Board approved the terms and authorized the 
execution of a contract with JRR Corporation. In support of this 
statement, FWPTC later provided an executed copy of the contract 
between FWPTC and JRR Corporation dated, August 2, 1988, which 
provides for both the storage and maintenance and repair of five 
non-federally funded buses. 
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Until the contract with JRR Corporation was executed, FWPTC states 
it attempted to separate out costs related to charters from the 
total costs incurred by means of a percentage based on ·relative 
monthly mileage. FWPTC acknowledges that this is not acceptable. 

FWPTC also claims that it separates out the charter activities of 
employees whose. salary is UMTA funded and provides documentation 
showing how this accounting is accomplished. The documentation 
indicates that the allocation is again made on a percentage basis 
of total time worked to time spent on "special division" work, and 
that percentage is applied to the following. fringe benefits: 
insurance premiums, pensions and F.I.C.A. FWPTC states that it 
does not allocate the costs of the building in this calculation. 

FWPTC claims that the 1987 Yellow Pages advertisement was inserted 
without its knowledge and states that no Yellow Pages advertising 
of charter operations was done in 19·88. The copies of the ... 
pertinent Yellow Pages provided by FWPTC, however, shows a line 
listing for FWPTC·under "buses-charter & rental" for 1988 with the 
same telephone number listing shown for regular bus service. 

Summit reviewed the information provided by FWPTC in its 
September 29, 1988, letter to UMTA and stated that it believed 
that FWPTC has provided, and is continuing to provide chart~~ 
service in violation of the 49 C.F.R. Part 604 regulations. 
Summit requested UMTA to direct it and FWPTC to attempt 
conciliation of this charter service complaint· in accordance with 
the procedure described in § 604.15 (b) .of the regulations. 

On October 28, 1988, UMTA advised FWPTC that summit's allegations 
would be treated as a formal complaint under 49 CFR 604.15 and 
directed the parties to attempt conciliation of the dispute for a 
period of 30 days. At the end· of the 30-day period no settlement 
had been reached, but UMTA was advised by Summit that the issues 
between the parties were narrowed to four: (1) has FWPTC's use of 
UMTA funded equipment in what it now acknowledges to be "charter" 
operations, violated any UMTA regulations; (2) has FWPTC used UMTA 
funded equipment in "charter" service, as that term is defined in 
Federal regulations, although FWPTC has labeled that service as 
"regularly scheduled service" or "group demand response"; (3) are 
the operations of the FWPTC Charter Division sufficiently 
separated from its Public Transportation Division to meet.UMTA 
requirements; and (4) may UMTA funded equipment and personnel 
whose salary is partially paid with UMTA funds be used to upgrade 
non-UMTA funded buses which later may be used for charter 
operations. 
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On November 30, 1988, UMTA notified FWPTC that it must respond to 
Summit's complaint within 30 days of receipt of the notice. On 
December 28, 1988, FWPTC submitted a request for a 10-day 
extension of time to file its response. UMTA granted FWPTC until 
no later than January 13, 1989 to submit its response. The 
FWPTC's response is postmarked January 13, 1989, but was not 
received by UMTA until January 18, 1989. 

In its response, FWPTC maintains that their "demand response 
service" does not come within the definition of "charter service" 
as cont~ined in the regulations. FWPTC relies on Fe~eral Register 
Vol. 52, No. 70, 11919 for a definition of "charter service": 
"the service was to a defined group of people; there was a single 
contract between the recipient and the riders, not individual 
contracts between the recipient and each rider; the patrons had 
the exclusive use of the .bus." FWPTC claims that their "group 
response service" is available to members of more than one group 
since the bus does not wait at the destination of any group but is 
available for such other service as it may be able to provide 
until it is time to pick up passengers for the return trip. It 
then returns to pick up the members of the different groups at 
whatever times they desire. FW.PTC states, hypothetically, that 
"there could be separate contracts between each group on the bus 
and the PTC; no group had the exclusive use of the bus and there 
was not necessarily service to a defined group of people because 
there could have been service to several such groups." 

FWPTC states that it also provides individual demand response 
service which is primarily designed for the handicapped, who pay 
$2.00 for the service. The service is also available to non
handicapped individuals for $4.00. 

FWPTC states that if charter trips were equipped with UMTA funded 
vehicles, it was because it failed to comprehend the importance of 
using only non-UMTA funded vehicles for that purpose. FWPTC 
believes it has corrected the problem by the creation of the 
"special services division" and fully informing all employees of 
the necessity of using only non-UMTA funded vehicles for charter 
purposes. 

FWPTC states in its response that it has been working to segregate 
the costs of charter bus operations to ensure that UMTA funds are 
not expended. Since August 1988, FWPTC claims, all buses used in 
the charter operation are non-UMTA funded and have been stored and 
maintained at JRR Corporation's property. 
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FWPTC maintains that it has allocated all costs of the charter 
service to the Special Services Division, including employee 
payroll and expenses, utilities and building maintenance. FWPTC 
requests UMTA's opinion as to whether its cost allocations are 
adequate. · 

FWPT~ states.that its downtown shuttle service is partially f~nded 
by L~ncoln L~fe Insurance Company and that Lincoln's employees 
ride without charge. But, FWPTC maintains, the service is 
available to anyone in the downtown area who pays the normal fare. 
Lincoln's payment, says FWPTC, is offset by any reven~e collected 
from paying customers. FWPTC states that this shuttle service 
falls clearly within the definition of "mass transportation" 
contained in 52 Fed. Reg. 11919, April 13, 1987. 

In concluding its response, FWPTC denied Summit's allegation that 
it is upgrading non-UMTA funded buses, usi~g UMTA funded 
facilities, for use in charter service. Instead, the FWPTC claims 
that it plans·to buy 13 more buses, using non~UMTA funds, and 
place them in its Special Services Division. 

REBUTTAL 

The response was forwarded by UMTA to Summit. Summit then had 30 
days to submit a rebuttal. Summit requested and received a 
10-working-day extension of time, until March 10, 1989, to submit 
its rebuttal. Summit's rebuttal is dated March 10, 1989. 

summit challenges the response of FWPTC and maintains that the 
service which FWPTC calls "demand response" is in fact charter 
service; that the shuttle 'service for Lincoln Life is charter 
service rather than "mass transportation"; that FWPTC's violations 
of UMTA's charter regulations are persistent and continuing; that 
FWPTC uses UMTA funded facilities and employees in support of its 
charter services; that FWPTC's method of allocating costs of 
charter services is unsound; and that FWPTC's charter service is 
not· "incidental" to its mass transportation service. 

Summit claims that FWPTC's argument that its service is "demand 
response" rather than charter service is disingenuous. First, 
Summit points to FWPTC's own definition of "demand response 
service". The distinguishing characteristic of "demand response 
service", as defined by FWPTC, is that the buses are available for 
other service. Summit analyzed the "demand response" data 
provided by FWPTC on September 29, 1988, in response to UMTA's 
request. Summit concluded that the definition is more theory than 
fact since for numerous trips the data showed that there could not 
have been any other service provided either because of time 
constraints or because FWPTC i.s not permitted to originate traffic 
outside FWPTC 1 s service area. · 
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Summit contends that if FWPTC's definition of "demand response 
service" was accepted, "all the buses parked outside of stadiums, 
sports arenas, racetracks, theaters, theme parks, and historical 
sites for a period of three hours or more would be engaged in 
group response if they were available for hire during that period 
by other groups." While Summit agrees that UMTA's definition of 
charter service includes the concept of exc,lusive use, Summit 
claims that FWPTC has contrived its definition of demand response 
service to circumvent the charter regulation. 

Further, Summit asserts that FWPTC's actual "demand response 
-service" does not coincide with its own definition. Because FWPTC 
does not inform its "damand response" clients that they might have 
to share a bus, and because buses used in "demand response" are so 
rarely shared, in most cases the "demand response" client has the 
exclusive right to the bus. 

Summit contends tha,t other facts which lead to the conclusion that 
FWPTC's "demand response service" is really "charter service" are 
that the buses carry no destination designation, the schedule is 
established to accommodate the "demand response party", and no 
schedules or fare information are published for the information of 
the general public. 

Summit challenges the claim of FWPTC that the service provided to 
Lincoln Life employees is "mass transportation". As authority, 
summit relies on UMTA's definition of "mass transportation" 
contained in the preamble to the charter service regulation. Mass 
transportation "(1) is under the control of the grantee; (2) 
designed to benefit the public at large; and (3) is open door. 49 
Fed. Reg. 11920 (April 13, 1987). 11 

Summit states that the Linco).n Life shuttle service is·operated by 
FWPTC in accordance with Lincoln Life's contract and the service 
is only operated when Lincoln Life's employees are going to or 
returning from work. Lincoln Life employees pay no fare, Summit 
claims, and any revenue generated reduces the amount paid by 
Lincoln Life~ Summit states that only a very few members of the 
general public ride the buses. 

Summit compares the Lincoln Life service to service provided by 
the Utica Transit Authority which was determined by UMTA to be 
impermissible charter service.l/ While the Utica service was 
provided "on an open-door basis in that any member of the public 

1/ UMTA made this determination in a letter to Barry Shulman 
dated December 28, 1988. 
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could board, including senior citizens, it appears that the true 
purpose of the trip was to provide charter service for the senior 
citizens, and not for the ·public-at-large. UMTA believes that 
under the circumstances, there was probably little public 
ridership during the trip in question." 

Summit claims that FWPTC's violations of the charter service 
regulations are persistent and continuing. · SUmmit infers that 
Summit's use of non-UMTA funded equipment for its charter services 
for some 13 months after UMTA's charter regulation became 
effective was not the result of ignorance and inadvertence. 
Summit reports that even after the submission of FWPTC's response 
in which it declared that it had taken measures to inform all its 
employees of the necessity of using only non-UMTA funded equipment 
for charter trips, FWPTC, in Febru~ry 1989, used an L~A funded 
minibus in its charter service for the Fort Wayne Home and .Garden 
Show. Summit also casts doubt on whether in December 1988, FWPTC 
could have transported a reported "650 youth and 10 local 
celebrities all over the city on PTC buses • • 11 solely in 
the five non-UMTA funded buses owned by FWPTC. As another aspect 
of FWPTC's continuing violation of the charter service regulation; 
Summit points to FWPTC's current advertisement in the Yellow Pages 
under "Buses-Charter and Rental". 

summit contends that FWPTC uses UMTA funded facilities and 
employees to support its charter operations. To illustrate 
FWPTC's lack of credibility on this issue, Summit points out 
several contradictions between the facts FWPTC has represented to 
UMTA and the facts as known to Summit. Summit states that in an 
october 5, 1987 letter from FWPTC to UMTA, FWPTC claimed to have 
purchased the Federal interest in 15 buses, while UMTA's files 
only reflect purchase of the Federal interest in three buses. 
In particular, FWPTC claims to have purchased the Federal interest 
in bus number 192, but according to Summit that bus remains 
federally funded and is consistently used ·for charter service. 

Additionally, the same FWPTC letter states that the buses used for 
charter operations are maintained off FWPTC's property by a 
private· contractor. Summit points out that this is patently false 
since FWPTC did not enter into the contract with JRR Corporation 
until August 2, 1988. $ummit also claims that FWPTC engaged in a 
subterfuge to remove the buses used for charter operations from 
FWPTC property just prior to UMTA officials arrival on site to 
conduct an audit on July 23, 1988; that FWPTC allowed an UMTA 
funded bus which is regularly used in charter operations to 
receive an extensive engine overhaul at the FWPTC facility; that 
as of March 10, 1989, buses identified by FWPTC·to have been 
purchased for FWPTC's charter operation are stored on FWPTC 
property. Summit acknowledges that in FWPTC's response, FWPTC 
states that the identified buses are not the buses which FWPTC 
intends to upgrade for charter use, but Summit claims that FWPTC's 
statement is at variance with its earlier statement. 
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In its Rebuttal, Summit points out that FWPTC's claim that it is 
no longer engaged in advertising its charter services alongside 
its re~~lar mass transportation services is belied by FWPTC's 
current advertisement contained in the Yellow Pages. 

summit notes a new development with regard to FWPTC's bus 
operators. According to Summit, while FWPTC stated in its 
response that all demand response and charter service has been 
performed by private contract operators, in January 1989, an 
arbitrator interpreting the Collective Bargaining Agreement 
between FWPTC and its union ruled that all such service must be 
performed by union operators in the future. 

Summit relies on a previously issued UMTA opinion as authority for 
the proposition that mere bookkeeping separation between charter 
accounts and mass transportation accounts is not sufficient to 
comply with the UMTA charter regulation.2/ Further, Summit 
contends that FWPTC's cost allocation between its Special Services 
Division and its Mass Transportation Division inequitably 
transfers losses from its charter service to its UMTA subsidized 
mass transportation service. As evidence of this allegation, 
Summit directs attention to FWPTC's audit report dated December 
31, 1987. The audit report shows that the Special Services 
Division's operating loss was reduced by $135,567.00 revenue from 
receipts at the Fort Wayne Municipal Garage. 

Summit alleges that FWPTC' s alleged "-break-even" rate of $19.50 
per hour for its Special. Services Division is in fact subsidized 
by UMTA since $19.50 per hour is substantially below Summit's 
"break-even" rate and since FWPTC's Special Services Division has 
experienced a substantial actual loss. 

Summit contends that because FWPTC uses the same telephone number 
for both its Special Services Division and its Mass Transportation 
Division it probably uses the same UMTA funded personnel to 
perform both functions. 

Finally, Summit submits that FWPTC's substantial charter and 
"demand response" service in no way meets the basic UMTA 
requirement that any charter service allowed pursuant to the 
exceptions to the charter regulation must be "incidental". 

2/ Memorandum Opinion Re: Manchester Transit Authority Charter 
Operations, dated July 14, 1987. 
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DISCUSSION 

The first question to be determined, among the four issues agreed 
to by the parties and UMTA on October 28, 19S8, as stated above, 
is whether FWPTC's use of UMTA funded equipment in what it now 
acknowledges to be "charter" operations, violated any UMTA · 
regulations. The answer is in the affirmative. UMTA's charter 
regulation, 49 C.F.R. Part 604 (April 13, 1987), provides that a 
recipient may provide charter service that uses equipment or 
facilities provided under the UMT Act or under 23 u.s.c. 103 
(e) (4), 142(a), or 142(c) only to the extent that there are no 
private charter service operators willing and able to provide the 
charter service, unless one or more of the exceptions in 49 C.F.R. 
604.9 applies. Prior to providing its charter service there is no 
indication that FWPTC utilized any of the necessary procedures to 
determine whether. there were any willing and able operators. 
(although Summit's complaint is evidence that there is at least 
one potential willing and able operator). Neither does FWPTC make 
a case that any of the recognized exceptions contained in the 
charter regulation apply. 

The second question which requires determination is whether-FWPTC 
used UMTA funded equipment in "charter" service, as that term is 
defined in Federal regulations, although FWPTC has labelled that 
service as "regularly scheduled servic·e" or "group demand 
response". It is apparent from the evidence submitted by Summit, 
and FWPTC acknowledges, that FWPTC regularly provides bus service 
to private gro\J.pS at their request. Summit claims that the·--· 
service provided is prohibited charter service·within the meaning 
of the UMTA regulation, while FWPTC maintains that the- service, 
which FWPTC labels "demand response", is mass transportation. 

Further, summit claims, and FWPTC acknowledges, that some of this 
service was rendered with the use of UMTA funded equipment. FWPTC 
submits, however, that it has remedied the lack of instruction to 
FWPTC employees which resulted in the inappropriate use of UMTA 
funded equipment in its "demand response" service. Summit 
maintains that despite FWPTC's claim that it no longer uses UMTA 
funded equipment to provide its "demand response" service, FWPTC 
continues to use UMTA funded equipment for such service. 

The parties are also in dispute as to the nature of·FWPTC's 
provision of service on behalf of Target Stores, Inc. and Lincoln 
Life. FWPTC claims that these services are not charter service 
or "demand response", but fall squarely within the definition of 
mass transportation. 
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In these contexts, therefore, it is necessary to compare charter 
service, "demand response" service and mass transportation. UMTA 
defines mass transportation as being provided to the public on a 
regular and continuing basis. In addition, UMTA has expressed 
three other characteristics by way of illustration. "First, mass 
transportation is under the control of the recipient. • • 
• (s]econd, the service is designed to benefit the public at large 
and not some special organization such as a private club. • • 
• [t]hird, mass transportation is open to the public and ls .not 
closed door." 52 Fed. Reg. 11920 (1987). 

FWPTC adds no new facts to the information submitted by Summit 
relating to the Target Store service. According to the newspaper 
article submitted by Summit, Target Store chartered FWPTC buses 
"to shuttle shoppers to and from nursing homes, apcb:tments and 
senior citizens' centers" on December 8, 1987, in accordance with 
schedules published therein. The service was instituted to 
provide senior citizens, disable~ people and their companions with 
"hassle-free" shopping at the store. The store would be closed to 
other shoppers when this occurred. 

FWPTC claims that the "Lincoln Life" service it provides is 
regularly scheduled downtown service. It is open to the public at 
twenty-five .cents fare and there is a published schedule of its 
operations. Lincoln Life employees do not pay a fare, but their 
employer subsidizes the operation of the service with payment of 
$19.50 per hour to FWPTC. Summit claims that the service is 
really charter service sirice it operates only when Lincoln Life is 
open for business, is used almost exclusively by Lincoln Life 
employees who do not pay any fare and the fee Lincoln Life pays to 
FWPTC is reduced by the amount of any extraneous fares received 
from non-Lincoln Life employees. 

In comparing FWPTC's Target Store service and Lincoln Life service 
with UMTA's definitions of prohibited charter service and mass 
transportation it is apparent that the two services for different 
reasons come within UMTA's definition of mass transportation. 

The Target.Store service was spec~ally rather than regularly 
scheduled since it was a once a year event and there was no 
schedule promulgated by the FWPTC. Target Store specified the 
time and route for the service and Target Store itself paid FWPTC 
for the use of the buses rather than the individuals who took 
advantage of the service. Thus Target Store rather than FWPTC was 
in control of the service. The service was limited to the 
elderly, handicapped and disabled and their companions and its 
destination was to Target store which would only be open to this 
specific group. Even though this service meets the definition of 
charter service, since it constituted exclusive service for the 
elderly and handicapped, it is considered to be "mass 
transportation" under the UMT Act. 52 Fed. Reg. 42252, 
November 3, 1987. 
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The Lincoln Life service, for different reasons, comes within 
UMTA's definition of mass transportation. The service operates 
regularly and FWPTC has and provided to UMTA a published schedule 
of the service offered. FWPTC lists revenue from this service in 
its regular operations, not in either its "demand response" or 
charter service, evidencing the control FWPTC assumes over this 
service. Although Lincoln Life pays for the cost of the service 
on behalf of its employees, the service is not restricted to them 
a~d a member of the general.public can use the service for twenty
f~ve cents. Thus UMTA cons~ders the service regularly scheduled 
service, in the control of FWPTC, beneficial to the public at 
large and open-door. 

FWPTC does not take a position as to whether the Lori David 
trolley service was charter·service or mass transportation, but 
relies on its statement that the trolley service was provided free 
of cost as a public service to the community at the request of the 
county sheriff's department. UMTA has ruled that cost is 
irrelevant in distinguishing mass transportation from charter 
service. See Question and Answer 27(a) of UMTA's "Charter Service 
Questions and Answers," 52 Fed. ~· 42248, 42252, November 3, 
1987. The service was provided for a singular occasion at the 
request of the sheriff's department. The transportation service 
did not benefit the public at large, but was limited to Lori David 
and her coterie of friends. Therefore the service was neither 
regular nor under FWPTC's control, and neither beneficial nor open 
to the public. 

The largest number of specific complaints regarding the provision 
by FWPTC of charter service have been distinguished by FWPTC as 
"group demand response". In answering the question whether FWPTC 
has used UMTA funded equipment in "charter" service, as that term 
is defined in federal regulations, in providing such service, it 
is again useful to compare UMTA's definitions of mass 
transportation and charter service with the service FWPTC calls 
"group demand response". 

FWPTC makes several distinctions between "group demand response" 
service and charter service. In contrast to FWPTC's understanding 
of the term charter service, in which all passengers are members · 
of the same group and the bus is used exclusively for the group, 
in "group demand response" .service the bus is available to members 
of more than one group, FWPTC retains the right to remove the bus 
from its destination and to utilize it in regular mass 
transportation. For the greatest part, fares are not collected 
from individual passengers. FWPTC bases its position on a narrow 
reading of the definition of charter service contained in 
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the regulation. FWPTC focuses only on one aspect of -the 
regulation: "that the service was to a defined group of people •• 
there was a single contract between the recipient and the riders 
not individual contracts between the recipient and each rider • : 
the J?atrons had the exclusive use of the bus." 52 Fed. Reg. 11919 
(Apr11 13, 1988). FWPTC overlooks the rest of the definition of 
charter service as well as the definition of mass transportation. 
FWPTC's position is not supportable when the so-called "demand 
response service" is examined against the complete definition and 
intent of the regulation as well as the system in actual operation 
instead of mere theory. 

FWPTC's "demand response" service is not regularly scheduled and 
continuing service within the FWPTC's control, rather it is 
provided to singular events at the request of outsiders. The 
possibility that the bus could be used for more than one group at 
the same time does not bring the service outside the definition of 
charter service. The services do not benefit the public at larga 
but are for the use of private organizations. Also, because there 
are no published schedules or any marking on the buses indicating 
their designations, the service is essentially closed door. 
Further, an examination of the "Daily Charter/Demand Response 
Records submitted by FWPTC shows that in fact the services are 
rendered exclusively to only one group per bus and that many of 
the trips are of insufficient duration for the FWPTC to be ··
providing regularly scheduled service using the same equipment 
during the "demand response" party's excursion, contrary to 
FWPTC's hypothesis. 

In determining whether the operations of the FWPTC Special 
Services Division are sufficiently separated from its PUblic 
Transportation Division to meet UMTA requirements, UMTA is 
particularly mindful of the prohibition against using UMTA funded 
equipment or facilities to provide charter service unless one or 
more of the exceptions applies, 49 c.F.R. I 604.9 (a). 
"Facilities" in the context of the charter regulation applies to 
offices and other administrative locales. Any expense for items 
such as depreciation, utilities, labor, etc. , i-ncurred by the 
entity providing charter service must be accounted for separately 
and not charged to any UMTA grant, 52 Fed. Reg. 42252 (November 3, 
1987) • 

Clearly, prior to the time any costs were allocated to the Charter 
Division, UMTA funded equipment and facilities· were being used to 
support FWPTC's charter service. FWPTC does not rely on any·of . 
the recognized exceptions to the provision of charter service with 
UMTA equipment to justify its charter operations. Instead, FWPTC 
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has recently instituted a system of allocating certain selected 
employee salaries and expenses to its Charter Division. From·an 
examination of FWPTC's Attachment f 5, describing the method for 
allocating administrative costs and the December 31, 1987 Audit 
Report, it appears that FWPTC has not fully allocated the costs of 
its charter services. For example, FWPTa allocates the costs of 
medical insurance, pension plan and FICA, but does not allocate 
all employee fringe benefits, including but not limited to, sick 
leave, holiday pay, vacation pay, unemployment taxes and worker's 
compensation. 

Additionally, FWPTC indicated in its Response that it had not yet 
discovered a satisfactory method of allocating.· the operation and 
maintenance of its building. This is also evidenced by Summit's 
allegations that FWPTC uses the same telephone number, office and 
responsive personnel to operate its charter service as its mass 
transportation service. 

In Question and Answer 26 of UMTA's Charter Service "Questions and 
Answers," 52 Fed. ~. 42248, 42252, November 3, 1987, UMTA 
concluded that, "· •• if there is a willing and able private 
provider, a transit authority may not allow its separate charter 
entity to use, on an incidental basis, the UMTA-funded garage in 
connection with its charter operations, even if the separate . 
charter entity were to pay the transit authority rent and fees for 
such incidental use." (Emphasis originial). The opinion is based 
on 49 c.F.R. 604.9 (a), which prohibits the recipient "from 
providing charter service with UMTA-funded equipment or 
facilities," and UMTA notes that the term "facilities" applies to 
offices and other administrative locales. Therefore, FWPTC may 
not continue its charter service using a system of cost 
allocation. · 

summit also pointed out that according to the December 31, 1987 
Audit Report, FWPTC had subsidized· its Special Services Division 
with the receipts from the Municipal Garage. This practice is 
entirely inconsistent with the charter regulation and UMTA directs 
that the Audit Report be revised so that the UMTA funded revenues 
do nqt in any way offset the expenses.of the Special Services 
Division and that no such accounting practices be followed in any 
future financial statements. 

For the reasons set forth above it would also be inconsistent with 
the charter regulation for UMTA funded equipment and personnel 
whose salary is partially paid with UMTA funds be used to upgrade 
non-UMTA funded buses which later may be used for charter 
operations. 
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·coNCLUSION 

UMTA's examination of the administrative record shows that FWPTC 
has engaged in charter operations within the meaning of the 
charter regulation; has used UMTA funded equipment in "charter 
service", as that term is defined in federal regulations. UMTA 
finds that the Lori David trolley service was prohibited charter 
service. Additionally, the "group demand response" service which 
FWPTC regularly provides does not meet UMTA's definition of mass 
transportation, and is also prohibited charter service. UMTA does 
find, however, that the Target Store service and the Lincoln Life 
service meet the criteria for mass transportation. UMTA directs 
FWPTC to cease and desist from all prohibited charter service 
immediately. 

UMTA further finds tnat FWPTC's system of cost allocation between 
its Special Services Division and its Mass Transportation Division 
has been both incompletely and improperly executed. FWPTC has 
failed to fully allocate personnel and building operating 
expenses. But UMTA notes that the entire cost allocation concept 
is not proper in these circumstances since it allows FWPTC to · 
participate in charter operations through its Special Services 
Division to a greater extent than a private charter operator 
operating under contract to the FWPTC. UMTA also specifically 
directs FWPTC to revise any financial statements which transfer 
revenues from the Mass Transportation Division to the Special 
Services Division to offset losses incurred by the Special 
services Division. 

FWPTC is further advised that it would be improper under the 
charter regulation to use UMTA funded equipment and personnel 
whose salary is partially paid with UMTA funds to upgrade non
UMTA funded buses which later may be used for charter operations. 

In reviewing the December 31, 1987, Audit Report UMTA noted that 
the FWPTC is also providing school service. By way of information 
and proscription, UMTA takes this opportunity to advise FWPTC that 
if this service is exclusive school bus service, it is prohibited, 
49 u.s.c. app. § 1602 § 3(g), and is further regulated by the 
provisions of 49 C.F.R. Part 605. Should FWPTC be providing 
exclusive school service in violation of UMTA's statutory and 
regulatory requirements, it should cease and desist immediately. 
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UMTA received a letter dated June 7, 1989, from FWPTC stating that 
as a result of an arbitration decision, FWPTC pad ceased all 
charter operations. To the extent the issues raised by Summit's 
complaint are not resolved, however, UMTA issues this decision. 

Theodore A. Munter 
Deputy Chief counsel 
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U.S. Deportment 
of Transportation 

Urban Mass 
l'ransportation 
Administration 

Headquarters 

JUL I 4 1989 

Mr. Richard Rohde, General Manager 
South Bend Public Transportation Corporation 
901 East Northside Boulevard 
Post Office Box 1437 
South Bend, Indiana· 46624 

Dear Mr. Rohde: 

400 Seventh St.. S.W 
Washington, D.C. 20590 

It has been brought to my attention that the South Bend Public 
Transportation Corporation (SBPTC) published a charter service 
notice on June 23, 1989, that is defective. 

The notice states that in order for a private bus operator to be 
considered "willing and able" it must submit written evidence that 
the private operator has the."desire and physical capability to 
actually provide the categories of revenue vehicle specified." 
The categories of vehicles specified in the notice are "35-foot 
advanced design air-conditioned buses" and "the 'Transpo Trolley,' 
a_.pecialty vehicle". · 

The Urban Mass Transportation Administration (UMTA) stated in 
Question and Answer number three of "Charter Service Questions and 
Answers" 52 Fed. ~. 42248, 42249, November 3, 1987, that in its 
notice a grantee may describe its own service in any way, but that 
it "must make it clear in the notice that private operators are 
not required to respond in similar detail. Instead, private 
operators are required to show only that they have • ·• • the 
desire to perform ~he service plus at least one bus or van." And 
in Question and Answer number six, supra at 42249, UMTA stated 
that "[i]n order to prove that it is 'able' to provide the 
service, the charter operator does not have to demonstrate that it 
has any particular.capacity level, in other words, a charter 
operator is as willing and able if it has one bus as it would be 
if it had one hundred buses." Enclosed for your information is a 
copy of the "Charter Service Questions and Answers". 
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Therefore it appears that SBPTC 1s notic~ is not in conformance 
with UMTA's charter regulation, 49 C.F.R. 604.9, since it could 
inhibit an operator, who otherwise would be considered willing and 
able, from responding to the notice. Please revise the charter 
service notice as indicated to c.onform to UMTA 's regulation and 
republish it. 

Enclosure 

cc: Charles A. Webb, Esq. 

Sincerely, 

Theodore A. Munter 
Deputy Chief Counsel 
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U.S. Department 
of Transportation 

Urban Mass 
Transportation 
Administration 

Mr •. John L. Carter 
Director of TALTRAN 
555 Appleyard.Drive 
Tallahassee, Florida 32304 

Dear Mr. Carter: 

Headquarters 

JlA. l 7 i;;ss 

r·-~~, :'·~ . 
r '·-··'·.·: 

. / 

1 i ~'' 1.1 v"'-'-

400 Sevemh St.. S.W 
Washington. D.C. 20590 

Please find enclosed a copy of a letter from Charles A. Webb, 
Esq.,· informing the Urban Mass Transportation Administration 
(UMTA) that the City o.f Tallahassee (TALTRAN) has apparently 
published a notice expressing its willingness to provide charter 
service in a manner that violates UMTA's·charter service 
regulations, by specifying that TALTRAN would be employing 
handicapped accessible as well as non-accessible buses or vans. 

'I 

UMTA's charter service regulations limit the description of 
charter service a recipient may include in its notice, "··· to 
the days, times of day, geographic area, and categories of revenue 
vehicle, but not the capacity or duration of the charter service." 
UMTA specifically defined categories of revenue vehicles in the 
regulations to mean, ."bus or van," 49 CFR 604.5(d), in order to 
preclude other subcategories of vehicles, such as accessible or 
non-accessible·vehicles, from influencing the determination of 
which private operators would be found willing and able. 

It is UMTA's view that by offering to provide service in coaches 
or vans described as handicapped accessible and non-accessible and 
asking private providers to submit a statement that they have the 

·"desire and the physical capability to actually provide the 
categories of revenue vehicle specified ••. ," TALTRAN has implied 
.that private operators will not be found "willing and able" if 
their buses or vans differ from those specified in the notice. 

This practice violates the requirements of 49 CFR 
604.ll(c) (5) (i)and (ii), which provide that the recipient's public 
notice must state that the evidence to determine whether a private 
charter operator is willing and able should include only a 
statement that the private operator has the desire and physical 
capability to provide one or both "categories of revenue vehicle" 
specified in 49 CFR 604.5(d), i.e., buses or vans, and that the 
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private operator has the requisite legal authority to provide the 
service .• 

The notice TALTRAN. published is unduly restrictive beqause it 
discourages private operators with different capabilities from 
informing TALTRAN that they are willing and able to provide 
charter service. Therefore, TALTRAN should immediately publish a 
nonrestrictive notice in strict accordance with UMTA regulations 
in order to determine which private operators are willing and 
able. 

Should you have any questions concerning this requirement, please 
contact Rita Oaquillard of my staff at 202/366-1936. 

Enclosure 

cc: Charles A~ ·webb, Esq. 

George T. Snyder, Jr. 
Executive Vice President, ABA 
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Theod re • Munter 
Deputy Chief Counsel 



BEFORE THE URBAN MASS TRANSPORTATION ADMINISTRATION 

In the Matter of: 

BLUE BIRD COACH LINES, 
Complainant 

v. 

JAMESTOWN AREA TRANSIT SYSTEM, 
Respondent 

} 
} 
} 
} 
} 
} 
} 

DECISION 

SUMMARY 

NY-09/88-01 

Blue Bird Coach Lines, Inc. (Blue Bird) filed this complaint with 
the Urban Mass Transportation Administration (UMTA) on 
September 19, 1988. The complaint alleged that the Jamestown Area 
Transit system (JARTS) had provided service in violation of UMTA's 
charter regulation, 49 CFR Part 604. The complaint specifically 
alleged that JARTS was using both its own buses and buses owned by 
the Jamestown City School District (the District) in charter 
service under contract with the District. After a thorough 
investigation, UMTA has determined that JARTS has serviced and 
maintained in an UMTA-funded garage vehicles used for charter and 
school service, in violation of 49 CFR Part 604 and 49 CFR Part 
605. UMTA orders JARTS to correct these violations within three 
months of receipt of this order. 

COMPLAINT 

Blue Bird filed this complaint on September 19, 1988, against 
JARTS, alleging that JARTS is in violation of UMTA's charter 
regulation. The complaint specifically alleges that JARTS had 
been the successful bidder on a contract calling for the use by 
JARTS of "substitute buses"l in transporting students in charter 

!According to the specifications of the contract, a copy of 
which is.attached to the complaint, "substitute buses" are 
vehicles provided by the contractor which are to be furnished on 
days when buses owned by the:· District are undergoing maintenance 
or are out of service for any reason. 
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service to and from school, and for the use of JARTS.;;;dwhed'buses 
in transporting students in charter service to destinati.ons. 
beyond the District. Even if some of the b\}~es operated'by JARTS 
under the contract are not UMTA-funded, thebompla:i,.nt alleges, 
they·a~e serviced, garaged, and maintained in a facilit:y funded by 
UMTA, i'nviolation of 49 CFR Part 604.2 -

The complaint moreover states that JA,RTS h~s used UMTA .· ~unds. to 
purchase transit buses to be used in school service. trnTA +U:nas~ 
the complaint points out, may lawfully pe u;;eCJ.,);>y ,_;.JzffiT·S 'onl¥ for 
"mass transportation .•• ," which, as defined in Sect:J . .on :L.2Jc) '(6). 'o'f 
the Urban Mass Transportation Act of 1964 ~ as S:mend_ep .. ; .. (UMT Act)·, · 
specifically excludes both school bus and cha_rt:e-r ·sepvice. 

Blue Bird 'attaches to its complaint copies of the bid proposal.al)d 
specifications for the service in question, . as we,.li as a copy of) 
the_ school transportation contract between''IJAR':('S ·and the District.> 

Blue.Bird requests that the Chief Counsel withdraw funds for 
equipment and facilities from JARTS, order such other remedies as 
may be appropriate, and direct JARTS to cease and desist from 
providing charter service in violation of 49 CFR Part 604. 

RESPO.NSE 

By letter dated September 14, 1988, UMTA advised Blue Bird .. that 
the allegations in its complaint, if substantiated, might · ···· 
const1tute violations of UMTA's school bus regulation, 49 CFR Part 
605, and UMTA's charter regulation, 49 CFR Part 604. 'QMTA stated 
that under the procedure set out in these regulations, the parties 
should attempt local conciliation for thirty ·(30) days. t]MTA 
indicated that it.would begin an investigation if no resolution 
were reachedwith.in this period. 

on October 21, 1988, Blue Bird wrote to inform UMTA that it had 
met with JARTS to attempt local conciliation of the dispute. As a 
resul~ o£ .. ;t1;le discussion, stated Blue Bird, only one issue " 
remained in. dispute, namely whether certain. buses, not funded by 
U~TA, have been engaged in charter service using UMTA-funded 
f'cilit.ie~. · · 

.. . 
2There is no specific provision of' 49 GFR Part 604 wh~q!l .. ··. 

prohibits grantees from servicing and maintaining their non UMTA.
funded charter vehicles in an 'QMTA-funded facility. H;pw:~ver:.t UMT~ 
hasinterpreted the language of the regulation as imposing this 
prohibition.· see Q&A 26 of UMTA's "Charter Sep7ice Questions and 
Answers," 52 Federal Register 42248, November 3, 1987. 
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By letter of November 3, 1988, UMTA informed the parties that it 
would focus its investigation of the complaint on this issue. 

JARTS response is dated January 3·1 1989. In its response, JARTS 
states that the gravamen of the complaint, as contained in 
paragraphs 7, 8 and 9, is 'that JARTS has violated the charter 
regulation by successfully bidding on a contract to transport 
students "to and from school" and to "destinations beyond the 
Jamestown city School District." Although it was initially 
alleged, JARTS states, that "the busesused in such charter 
operations were UMTA-fun¢led," it is now conceded that JARTS "had 
not used UMTA funds to purchase buses which were used in school 
services." 

.-. •. • .I 

JARTS indicates thp.t it is d;i.f~icuit.to,respond to the complaint~ 
since the essence of. the alJ.:egation 'ha,e( been removed. The 
complainant has/ ·says J}I.RTS, · ·taken,, a sbbtgun approach with the 
hope that one P,ellet wo:uld st'rike. JA~~s indicates that it will 
focus its; respdhs,e 0~. the school bus; c'dritp:J.a:i:nt. 

~. .. . - .. ·~ 

JARTS explains that the; '1:ransitlonifrom ·~rivate to public 
ownership of transit c.>P~l:"at,ion;B< occurr,ed ·in,. June 1962, when the 
Jamestown City Council author~~ed the acquisition of the 
Jamestown Motor Bus Tran,sport.P.tion ,Coll\pany, Inc. (JMBTC). For the 
years ending Deqeniber 3o·,, :19,?12'~ ··anci D~cember 30, 1973, states 
JARTS, the audi:ted ,fimmci·ar':'·sta;ements .of the JMBTC clearly 
reflect the existence 'of a school}?p.s qpntract for both these 
years. Accqrdingl,y, JARTS maintains, tber~: is clear evidence of 
the provision of.• school b4.:; service prior to the enactment of 
section 3(g) of the Urban.:Mass Transportation Act of 1964 1 as 
amended (UMT Act). · 

In 1973 and 1974, JARTS explains, Congress enacted Section 3(g) of 
the UMT Act, which provides that.if a public transit authority or 
its predecessor operated school bus service during the twelve 
months immediately prior to the date of enactment, said. operator 
could continue to provide said school bus service.. Moreover, 
JARTS points out, counsel .for Blue Bird has· conceded that JARTS 
uses no federally funded vehicles in providing this .service.3 

3The preamble to UMTA's school bus regulation explain~? that even 
if a federally assisted operator.is allowed to engage in school 
bus operations under one of the exemptions listed in Section 3(g) 
of the UMT Act, the operator cannot use federally funded buses, 
facilities or equipment in those operations. 41 Federal Register 
14127, April 1, 1976. 
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Accordingly, states JARTS, it is a "grandfathered" recipient and 
can lawfully engage in school bus operations. 

Moreover, JARTS asserts, the complainant has not shown that it is 
an interested party as defined by Part 604.5(j). The UMT Act, 
JARTS states, was carefully crafted to make a distinction between 
charter bus operations and school bus operations. The 
complainant, JARTS points out, has failed to allege that it 
engages in school bus operations, or that it can comply with the 
"Transportation Specifications" developed by the City. JARTS 
also states that there is no allegation that the complainant and 
the respondent are in competition. Thus, argues JARTS, the 
complainant has no standing to challenge the awarding of the 
school district's transportation contract to JARTS. 

Furthermore, states JARTS, it has serious concerns regarding the 
motivation for the filing of the present complaint. On June 1, 
1988, JARTS states, the complainant submitted a proposal to be the 
management firm for JARTS. Instead .of selecting the complainant, 
JARTS explains, the City selected another management company to 
manage and operate the system effective July 1, 1988. It appears, 
contends JARTS, that in retaliation for that decision, the 
complainant filed the instant complaint on or·about August 11, 
1988. Undoubtedly, JARTS asserts, if the complainant had been 
selected as the new management firm, the present complaint would 
not have been filed. 

JARTS describes itself as a "non-urbanized area," i.e., ~n area 
with a population of less than 50,000. Assuming a;rguendo.; states 
JARTS, that the charter regulation applies in thief case to the 
school buses owned by the school district, the regliirements for an 
exception would be met since there would be a clear hardship for 
the "customer" - the City School District - in that the 
complainant is "located too far" from the' region Of the 
service.4 JARTS points out that the complainant has no garage 
facility in Jamestown_, and has its home office some fifty (50) 
miles from Jamestown. The complainant's garage and maintenance 
facility, states JARTS, is located some 30 miles away in Fredonia, 
New York. Accordingly, JARTS argues, the spirit and the letter of 
the charter regulation mandate this exception. 

4Subsection 604.9(b) (3) (ii) of the charter regulation provides 
that a recipient in a non-urbanized area ma,y petition UMTA for an 
exception to provide charter·service if the charter service 
provided by the willing and able private charter operator would 
create a hardship on the customer because the willing and able 
private operator is located too far from the origin of the charter 
service. 

418 



5 
Further assuming arguendo,.~: states JARTS, that the school bus ·,· 
operations of Jamestown are charter service, the plain langUage of 
Section 3(f) of th~ ll!T Act restricts only "intercity" charter 
service using federally financed·. buses. JARTS maintains that its 
school bus operations are e~sent-ially within the Jamestown area, 
and it is clear that i~t;r,a"7citf1or intra-urban service is not 
affected by the UMT Act: · · , · · 

JARTS concludes by stating that the complainant has failed to meet 
the standing requir~ments by sl)owing that it is an interested 
party becaus.e it has not· allegS"d OI' shown any financial interest 
which is aq:yersely affected by the\schoql bus contract awarded to 
JARTS. . . ;Moreove.:)::', . contends ¥N}';IJSt . thepe 'has been no showing by the 
complainant: that it J.s willing or abl'e' to' perform the school bus 
contract as evtdencedi]::)y the'fact that for over a quarter of a 
century, it has~·nei.ther J:>id upqn _or responded to the school · 
district's a!mcruncemen~sn . It .. Js clear I states JARTS I that the 
respondent has compl~~4 with alrl··-~pplicable _;requirements and is 
not in violation of .the_ charter r;egulation. ·.- ... 

RE.BUTTAL ·. 

By letter of;,yanua~y 11/ .. 19~·9, ·. UMTA\ forw-arded a copy of the 
response to the, complainant, arid .. _provided it with 30 days to 
submit a rebuttal. -'The dompla:inant.•s rebu.et~l is .dated .. 
February 2, 1989; and 'addres·ses JARTS' arguments in the order in 
which they appear.iri 'the ,+."esponse. 

First, Blue Bird statesthat JARTS' claim that it is qualified 
under the "grandfather" clause of Section 3(g)'of the UMT Act 
is irrelevant to the issues raised in the complain-t;:. Blue Bird 
states that it has not alleged that JARTS may not lawfully engage 
in school bus operations within th,e meaning of 49 CFR Part 605. 
Its complaint, states Blue Bird, is not concerned with the 
transportation of school children in "school.bus operations" as 
defined in 49 CFR 605.3, except ·to the extent that such operations 
involvethe transportation of school children in charter service 
using UMTA-funded facilities. Blue Bird states that service 
provided by_.::TARTS to the City of Jamestown pursuant to the 
Invitationto Bid is charter service as defined in 
49 CFR 604.5(e)~5 

sunder 49 CFR 604.5 (e), 'Cha-rter Service' means transportation 
us~ng buses or vans, or facilities funded under the Acts of a. 
group of persons, who pursuant to·a common purpose, under a s~ngle 
contract, at a fixed charge (in accordance with the carrier's 
tariff) for the vehicle or service, have acquired the exclusive 
use of the vehicle or serviceto travel together under an 
itinerary either specified in advance or modified after having 
left the place of origin. This definition includes the use of 

.UMTA funded equipment forthe exclusive transportation of school 
students,'personnel, and equipment. (Emphasis added). 
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second, Blue Bird maintains that it is an interested party within 
the meaning of 49 CFR 604.5(j). Blue Bird states that it has a 
financial interest which is adversely affected by the provision of 
charter service for school children in UMTA-funded coaches, and by 
the provision of service for school children in non-UMTA funded 
coaches which are maintained in an UMTA-funded facility. Blue 
Bird states that if such operations were not conducted, it would 
be willing and able to handle the traffic. 

Third, Blue Bird denies that it challenges the awarding of the 
school district's transportation qontract to JARTS. If the 
contract. service were performed without the use of UMTA-funded 
equipment or facilities, Blue Bird states, it would not object and 
would indeed have no standing to challenge of provision of the 
contract service. 

Fourth, Blue Bird maintains that the complairlt was filed•in good 
faith. Blue Bird acknowledges that it made an offer to serve as 
the management firm for JARTS. However, states Blue Bird, to 
suggest that the filing of the complaint was motivated by some 
improper and unspecified purpose is both snide and ludicrous. 
Blue Bird indicates that if it had been selec:ted~ ·there• would have 
been no need to file the complaint, since it would not have 
provided charter service using UMT~-funded equipment· or 
facilities. 

.·, 

Fifth, Blue Bird rebuts JARTS' argument that the challenged 
service is inapplicable under the hardship exception of 49 CFR 
604.9 (b) (3). The hardship exception, t:Uue Bird points out,·· is not 
self-executing, but must be specifically requested and granted by 
UMTA in acqordance with the procedure specified in the regulation. 
Blue Bird states that to the best of its knowledge, no such 
reqUest has been made. 

sixth, Blue Bird challenges JARTS' argument that the Jamestown 
school ,'operations, even if they can be considered charter service, 
are not prohibited by UMTA's charter regulation, since the 
regulation restricts only intercity charter service. JARTS' 
argument, states Blue Bird, is based on the erroneous assumption 
that Section 3(f) of the UMT Act is the only basis for the charter 
regulation. Blue Bird recognizes that Section 3(f) addresses only 
charter service performeO. outside a grantee's urban area. The 
regulation, however, states Blue Bird, is also based on 
section 12(c) (6) of the UMT Act, which is not limited to the 
charter operations of UMTA grantees which are conducted outside 
their urban areas. Blue Bird lists various adverse conditions in 
the private charter industry which UMTA, according to the preamble 
to the current charter regula:tion, prompted UMTA to implement the 
new rule in order to protect the industry. 
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Finally, Blue Bird maintains that contrary to JARTS' apparent 
belief, it is not required 't,o show·that it.is willing and able to 
perform the school bti$ contract awall'dedito JARTS. It was the 
responsibility of JARTS, states alue B1t.d, in accordance'w.ith the 
procedure set forth in the charter regulation, to determine 
Whether any private bU$ oper~tors in'the area are Willing to 
handle any of the charter servi~e within the purview of 
49 CFR Part 604. 

Blue Bird states that for the·'above reasons, the Chief Counsel 
should find that there has been a: 'continuing pattern of violation 
of 49 CFR Part 604 by the reli,\lpondent, and that the r;~spondent 
should consequently be barred from receipt of further Federal 
transportation assistance. 

ADDITIONA.L RESPONSE" OF ,JARTS 

-.··:sy letter of February 7, .. 1989, JARTS stated that the complainant 1 $ 
rebuttal had narrowed the issues, and that it would therefore be 
appropriate to file an additional response. Accordingly, JARTS 
requested leave to file such additional response within fif.teen 
( 15) days. UMTA granted; J~TS'' .requ~st by letter dated 
February 16, 1989. 

JARTS' additional respo'i-1se is dated·: Marcll, 8, 1989. JARTS therein 
maintains that it, has no.t i:ri 't:Jil.,~ past, . and does not now use UMTA 
funded buses to s~tisfy ·'the r~·qij::ir~ment:,s ·of the school district 
contract.- The contract,' 'stat:,es· JA!i'T.'~" i$ serviced by "District
own~d vehicl~s," .· ~f.ld ·it,. ,j..~, .. o.Ii~¥t ·itf·i·~h:~ 7vent that District-owned 
veh~cles are· unava~lable· that,· J~RTS' veh.~cles may be used. · In 
practice I ·• says JAR'l'S I this has: never '"'happeped. 

'.. - . ' ,,. ·~. '" ' • . " ·+. 

JARTS moreover maintains: tlia·t·., .. its incidental service under the 
scho<;>l contract ;b§ au,tl1¢i:-ized ·:b:Y .. ·.4!;f Ci'.R,, 6.05~ l2 .6 JARTS argues 
that the.:.c;:omplainapt, woilld:·transf~rm.·~.a: ·.traditional schoo.l bus . 
contract intoc):lar~e~~bjl$tset:vice./''J:'pis, states JARTS, would be 
contraiy to both tlie r~9u+atiqns ~:Q.d J:he . clear intent of congress. 
JARTS sta,tes th,at .in ·sa;ti~fying,•th'e\,ppovision of the school bus 
contract; it utilizefs only bis.t;:ic:t_;qwned equipment, whether it be 
for regularli,\lphool transpo~tatiohor 'tdp. :lncidental service. 
These vehicles, J,ARTS indicates, are sepiiced and maintained in· 
an UMTA funO.ed garage in conformance·wit.h the charter regulation. 

6Subsection 49 CFR 6()5.3(bJ .. defiiJes:"incidental'' a~ "the . 
transportation of school students, personnel.and equ~pment ~n 
charter bus operations:during off peak hours which does not 
interfere with regularl.:y scheduled service to the public." 
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With regard to the issue of good faith, JARTS maintains that Blue 
Bird·'·!:? failure. to sp~cifically address the issue in its response . 
raises.a·serious question as to motivation and whether it has 
"cl~an hands." JARTS moreover argues that if the complainant had 
been selected. as themanagement"company, it would have used the 
same school district'bu:;;:es serviced by the· same garage facilities 
to satisfy the school district's requirements. 

Respondirigto the-question of its failure to request a hardship 
exc~ption, J~TS_main,tains that no such request was required, 
si~ce its op~rat~ons are clearly school bus operations well within 
the regulatory definition. However, states JARTS, assuming such a 
request was required, it would have been entitl~d to the 
exception. · · ·· ·. 

JARTS concludes by stating that at all times from 1962 to the 
pres·ent, JARTS has operated the school transportation services in 
Jamesto"m' which includes the recogni:z;ed incidental service 
transporting school students, personnel and equipment to 
extracurricular activities. Dv.ring the current contract period,. 
states JARTS, it has never used UMTA funded buses for this 
purpose·.: 

BLUE BIRO'S COMMENT ON. JARTS' ADDITIONAL RESPONSE 

By letter of March 20, 1989, Blue Bird provided a brief comment on 
JARTS' additioJ;lal response. .JARTS contends, Bl.ue Bird states, 
that uMTA funded fac,!lities lawfully may be used to service and 
maintain·non-UMTA funded equipment where such ~quipment is used in 
providing "incidental service" for extracurricular activities 
beyond the school district. Contrary to JARTS '· impression, Blue 
Bird states, "school bus. operations" are limited to the 
transportation of school children from home to school and do not 
extend to extracurricular activities far beyond the boundaries of 
the school district. Blue Bird cites the F:ederal Motor Carrier 
Safety Regulations (49 CFR Part 305) and the: Federal-Highway. 
Administration Regulations (49 CFR Part 390). in support of its 
position. · · 

Even assuming, states Blue Bird, th~t the'challe~ged charter bus 
operations of JARTS are "incidental" in nature, ~:~uch incidental 
charter operations violate the 49 CfR ];:~art 604 regulations. 

DISCUSSION 

In its letter of No~-ember 3, 1988, UMTA agreed to focus/its 
investigation of this complaint on the issue -of whether nqn UMTA
funded vehicles allegedly used in charter service are being 
serviced and maintained ·in an UMTA-funded garage. However~
subsequent submittals by the parties also raise other issues which 
UMTA believes it is necessary and appropria·te to. address. 
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1. Standing 

The first question to be addressed is that of.standing. JARTS 
contends that_Blue Bi:r~ lacks standing to file,this complaint, 
since i't is not a sch()ol bus. operator and does riot have a 
financia,l interest whic})-is.affected by the school service 
contract being performed by JARTSI and. is therefore not an· 
"interested party."_ 

.This contention, however, overlooks the fact that the Blue Bird 1 s 
complaint ·wa·Si! filed l.mder ·the charter regulation:, 49 CFR Part 604. 
The. complaint as originally submitted essentially alleged that the 
service beirig provided by JARTS wa~ charter serVice, since it· 

··involved the use of UMT~~funded facilities and equipment in 
transpprting students f.or non school-related activities. such 
operat~ons are indeed charter service as defined by · · 
49 CFR 604.5 (e). Since Biue· ·Bird ldentifies itself in the 
complaint as a private charter operator· which would be able to 
perf<n"ltl these operations ~'if JAR',I'S> we·re not. p~r.forming .. them, it has 
a financial interes.t which\ ~ay be- adversel'y affected by the 
actions of JARTS I and . thus. may properly be. ,getermined an. .. 
"interested party" under, 49. CFR (i04.~ ... (d'). 

2. Good faith otl,the coinp'la·:Linfliht , 
,, . .,. , .. ·. .l.. . .. , ' ; 

The next qu,estfon to ·be. d~a·lt~witll:. ieL· that of Blue Bird 1 s 
motivation \111 'b,r'i,ngi-ng, t.&rs· complain:t''!t ... JARTS . asserts that the 
complaint is ndt ·brqpgp:t .:· i;n g9~:9. ~a;tlt,:i.:anq, states that it was 
filed ip. retali~t~ot{-~g~iris.t the aw.ardin(J .by JARTS of its 
management service oont.ract'>to • anothe~. firm:.~. 

.. . . :-- _,,. . .,; . ····, 

UMTA ·cannot ~e certain. of the·. unQ.erly±;pg motivations of Blue Bird 
in filing.thfs co~pl~ip.t, no:t: shgll'ldhs'uch an inquiry be necessary. 
su~section 604 .15(b.) >of the 'd;t:'l(:lr,ter ·regulation merely requires 
that a c.omplaint b~.·· "not witho»~ oby:t.pus, merit" and "state grounds 
upon which relief ··sh<:)~ld ,be gra.nt.ed;;.t,.1\, Tl\e regulation does not 
require that the cmnp'iainant be'>q~ .·•·ariy particular mental • . . ' • . • ~ : . • . . . . : ..,..,j. . . . . ·. . • 
d~spos~t~ori or att~tude. As long+-a·s· the compla~nt meets the 
threshold requirements cit-ed. above, i.t can be properly entertained 
by UMTA, despite the state._of mind of the complainant at the time 
that' it was filed. 

3. Applicability of the hardship exception 

JARTS argues that even if its schpol,operations are charter 
service, they are permissible under the 11hardshipi1 exception of 49 -
CFR 604.9(b) (3). JARTS states tha,t it meets ail the requirements 
of this subsection, and would have been entitled to a hardship 
exception had it requested one. The charter.regulation mandates 
the granting of this exception, states JARTS, since Blue Bird is 
located "too far" from the origin of the service, thereby creating 
a hardship on the customer, the school district. 
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UMTA -disagrees. The regulation in no instance mandates the 
grant'ing of a hardship exception; the regulation allows the UMTA 
Administrator to grant such an exception when he determines, on 
the b9-sis of the information provided, that there are reasonable 
grounds to do so. Moreover, JARTS cannot assume an automatic 
finding that tP,e private provider is located "too far" from the 
origin of the-service. Q&A 38 of UMTA's "Charter service 
Questions and Answers," 52 Federal Register 42248, November 3, 
1987, points out that UMTA has no fixed guidelines for determining 
what is "too far," but will examine the information submitted by a 
recipient on an individual basis. 

. . 

Until JARTS has submitted its reqUest and information-and has 
received notification of the Administrator's decision, it should 
not assume that it should or will receive a hardship exemption, 
nor should it perform charter operations in accordance with this 
assumption. . 

4. UMTA's authority to regulate intra-city charter operations 

JARTS argues that even if its school bus operations are charter 
service, they are permissible, since Section 3(f) of the UMT Act 
restricts only "intercity" charter service. JARTS maint~ins that 

. its school bus operations take place within the Jamestown area, 
and are thus ~ntracity service, not affected by the UMT Act. 

The crux of JARTS' argument is that UMTA has, exceed~d its 
statutory authority in promulgating the charter regulation,. which 
prohibits both intercity and intracity charter operations. 

It should be pointed out that JARTS' argument with respect to this 
issue is disingenuous, since Exhibit E o·f . the "Transportation 
Specifications" clearly indicates that JARTS is to. provide service 
forextracurricular activities outside its urban area. Thus, even 
under the restrictive interpretation, of ·:.:UMTA' s authority proposed 
by JARTS, the ~ervice in question would be prohibit:ed to the 
extent that it involves the use of UMTA-funded eqUipment or 
facilities. 

Even admitting, however, that JARTS is providing no intercity 
charter service, its argument was raised and-rejected in two 
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previous administrative proceedings.? PMTA's response is the 
same in this case as it was in those two instances. First, UMTA 
has addressed the question of statutory authority on pages 11930-l 
of the preamble to the charter regulation (52 Fed. Reg. 11916 et 
seq., April 13, 1987). UMTA's extensive discussion refutes the 
argument of la,ck of statutory authority, and explains the legal 
basis for the rule. Second, since, under the terms of the charter 
r~gulation, UMTA is limited in these proceedings to an examination 
of the merits of the complaint, it does not consider this a proper 
forum for considering a challenge to the legality of the rule. 

5. JARTS' service for extracurricular school activities 

The preamble to UMTA's school bus regulation, at page 14128, 
explains that "school bus operations" generally take place during 
peak morning and evening hours. The transportation of students 
and personnel during off-peak hours is said to be charter service, 
governed by 49 CFR Part 604. The trips provided by JARTS for 
extracurricular school activities, some of which involve overnight 
service outside the school district, are clearly not "school bus 
operations" providing peak hour transportation to and from school, 
but rather charter service as defined by 49 CFR 604.5(e). 

JARTS states, and Blue Bird concedes, that no UMTA-funded vehicles 
are used to provide this service. In its additional response, 
however, JARTS affirms that the locally funded vehicles utilized 
for these trips are serviced and maintained in an UMTA-funded 
garage. JARTS indicates that it considers such use of an UMTA
funded facility to be in conformance with UMTA regulations. 

JARTS' position is in direct contradiction with an UMTA ruling 
set forth in Q&A 26 of the above-cited "Charter Service Questions 
and Answers." Q&A.26 explains that even when a grantee provides 
charter service with locally funded vehicles, such vehicles may 
not be. stored or maintained in an UMTA-funded facility, even if 
the separate charter'operation were to pay rent and fees for such 
use. Accordingly, even though UMTA concludes that JARTS has used 
no UMTA-funded vehicles in .. providing extracurricular charter 
service under the school contract, JARTS is nonetheless in 

?Washington Motor CoachAs,;sociation v. Municipality of 
Metropolitan Seattle, WA.;..09/87-:0l, March ~l, 1988; c:nd, B&T Fuller 
Double Decker Bus Company v. VIAMetropol~tan Trans~t, 
TX-02/88-01, November·l4, 1988. 
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violation of the charter regulation to the extent>that it services 
and maintains its charter vehicles in an UMTA-funded garage. In 
order to come into compliance with the charter.regulation, JARTS 
must .either store and maintain its charter buses in a separate 
facility which was not purchased with UMTA funds, or it must 
reimburse.UMTA for the part of the UMTA.;..funded garage which is 
used for charter operations. 

6. ·. JARTS' use of an UMTA-furtded. g~.rage in school bus operations 

Information provided by JARTS, and uncontradicted by Blue Bird, 
indicates that JARTS may lawfully provide school bus service, 
since it was doing so more than twelve months prior to the 
enactment of Section 3(g); and thus falls under the "grandfather" 
exception. Moreover, both JARTS and Blue Bird appear to agree 
that JARTS uses only locally funded vehicles in providing the 
service. 

However, as is indicated in its additional response, JARTS 
apparently believes that vehicles used in school bus operations, 
like those used in charter service, may be stored and maintained 
in an UMTA-funded garage. Again, JARTS has erred with regard to 
this question. Subs!;ction 605.12 of UMTA's school bus regulation 
clearly provides that a grante.~ may not engag.e in school bus 
operations using UMTA-funded facilities or equipment. The 
preamble to the regulation, at page 14127, specifically states: 

Even if a federally assisted operator is allowed to 
engage in school bus operations under one of the 
exceptions liste~ in sectibns 3(g) and 164(b), the 
operator cannot use federally assisted buses, facilities 
and eqliipment in those operations. 

JARTS' use of an UMTA garage to service and maintain vehicles used 
in school operations is thus in direct violation of UMTA's school 
bus regulation. In order to come into compliance with the school 
bus regulation, JARTS must either service and maintain its school 
buses in a separate facility which was not purchased with UMTA 
funds, or it must reimburse UMTA for the part of the UMTA-funded 
garage which is used for school operations. 
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CONCLUSION 

On the basis of its investigation, UMTA concludes that JARTS is 
providing charter service under its contract with the school 
district. Although JARTS uses locally funded vehicles in these 
charter operations, it .. services and maintains them in an UMTA
funded garage, in violation of 49 CFR Part 604. Similarly, JARTS' 
school bus operations are perfo~ed using locally funded vehicles 
which are also serviced and maintained in an UMTA-funded garage, 
in violation of 49 CFR Part 605. In order to come into compliance 
with UMTA requirements, JARTS must either service and maintain its 
charter and school buses in a facility which was not purchased 
with UMTA funds, or it must reimburse UMTA for the part of the 
UMTA-funded garage which it uses for charter and school 
operations. JARTS should report to UMTA within 90 calendar days 
of receipt of this decision on the measures that it has taken to 
comply with this order. 

/--, 
( .. _ _../~----:- v7 

(~~-~-------~--~~:._ ··r;~=~6~--~·.:::.:' .. ~- <<--··---,.....-
Steien A.,./biaz 
CQ.,fef counsel 

/ 
/ 
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U 5 DectJr~ment 
ot Transportation 
Urban Moss 
Transportation 
Administration 

Mr. Jeffrey Nelson 
Rock Island County Metropolitan 

Mass Transit District 
2929 5th Avenue 
Rock Island, Illinois 61201 

Dear Mr. Nelson:. 

t.UG 2 ! 1 ~0o ...... 

Re: IL-Metro/89-0b-Ol 

Thank you for your recent response to the above-cited complaint.· 
Your letter states that the service cited in the complaint is mass 
transportation. You maintain that it is provided by the Rock 
Island Metropolitan Mass Transit District (RICMMTD} on a regularly 
scheduled basis to homes currently on the market, and that RICMMTD 
has received no complaint that persons have been denied access to 
this route. - · 

Your letter fails, however, to provide information sufficient to 
allow the Urban Mass Transportation Administration (UMTA) to 
de·termine the nature of the service in question. In this 
connection, I draw your attention to the preamble to UMTA's 
charter regulation, 52. Fed. Reg. 11916, 11920 (April 13, 1987), 
which describes "mass transportation" as having the following 
three characteristics: 

1) the service is under the control of the grantee; 
2) it is designed to benefit the public at large: 
3) it is open to the public. 

CMTA views service as being under the control of the grantee when 
the grantee, and not a third party, sets the route, rate and 
schedule, and decides what equipment is used. · UMTA considers that 
service is in conformance with the second element of the 
definition when it is intended to meet the needs of the general 
public as opposed to those of a particular organization or 
specified group of users. Finally, in determining whether service 
is open.door, UMTA considers whether it stops at the grantee's 
regularly scheduled stops, appears in the grantee's printed 
schedules, and has a substantial level of public ridership. 

Service which does .not have these characteristics is charter 
service, and is impermissible under UMTA's charter regulation, 
43 CFR ?art 604. 

428 



2 

Please provide, within fifteen (15) days of receipt of this 
letter, information, including supporting documentation~ which 
will allow UMTA to determine to which category RICMMTD'~·homes 
tour service belongs. Should you have any questions in the 
meantime, you may address them to Rita Daguillard of my staff at 
202/366-1936. 

Sincerely, 

I 
·-

Steven A. Diaz 
Chief Counsel 

cc: Charles A. Webb, Esq. 
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US Deportmeni 
ot TransportatiOn 

Urban Mass 
Transportation 
Administration 

The Depuly Adm1ms1ra1or 

AUG 2 5 1989 

Mr. Ronald P. Spall 
Vice President 
Grant County Convention and 
Visitors Bureau 

215 South Adams Street 
Marion, Indiana 46952 

Dear Mr. Spall: 

400 Sevenlh $1 . S W · 
Wash1ng1on. DC 20590 

This responds to your·recent letter concerning the use by the 
Grant County convention and Visitors Bureau ("Grant County") of 
buses owned by the City of Marion ("the city"), a recipient of 
Urban Mass Transportation Administration { 11 UMTA") funds, to 
transport conventioneers within the county. You indicate that 
Grant county and the City have recently been advised by a 
consultant to the State of Indiana Department of Commerce that 
such use of UMTA-iunded equipment may jeopardize the City's' 
Federal transportation assistance. 

You.maintain that Grant County's use of the vehicles in question 
should be permitted for two reasons. First, you state, Grant 
County does not "charter" the UMTA-funded buses, but uses them to 
provide a free community service. Second, you explain that there 
is no private provider of charter service within the area, since 
the closest one is located 35 miles away. 

Neither of these reasons, however, exempts Grant county or the 
City from the prohibition on the use of UMTA-funded equipment for 
charter service. In connection with your first point, I draw your 
attention to Q&A #27{a) of UMTA's "Charter Service Questions and 
Answers," 52 Fed. Reg. 42248, 42252 (November 3, 1987), which 
states: 

Cost is irrelevant in determining whether service is mass 
transportar~~n or charter service. Thus, service which meets 
criteria set by UMTA, i.e., service controlled by the user, 
not designed to benefit the public at large, and which is 
provided under a single contract, will be charter regardless 
of the fact that it is provided for free. 
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Grant county's use of UMTA-funded buses to transport groups of 
conventioneers indeed meets the c;:riteria of "charter servlce" 
provided on page 11919 of the preamble to UMTA's charter 
regulation, 4~ CFR Part 604 (49 Fed. Reg. 11918 et seg.,-April 13 
1987), since it is: (1) by bus; (2) to a defined group of people;' 
(3) there are no single contracts between the recipient and 
individual riders; (4) the patrons have exclusive use of the bus; 
(5) the riders have sole authority to set the destination. 
Accordingly, though the service is provided for free, it falls 
under the prohibition of the charter regulation. 

With regard to your second argument, I would like to point out 
that distance from the service area is not a factor that UMTA 
recipients may take into consideration in determining that a 
private operator is willing and able to provide charter service. 
Section 604.11 of the charter regulation provides that to be 
determined willing and able, a private operator need only 
demonstrate that it has the capability to provide the required 
categories of revenue vehicles, and the legal authority to operate 
charter service in the area where it desires to provide such 
service. To the extent that there is such a willing and able 
private opera·tor in the City's service area, the City may make 
UMTA-funded vehicles available for charter service only under one 
of the exceptions to the regulation. 

One exception which may be applicable to the situation you 
describe is that of section 604.9(b) (7) of the regulation, which 
permits a recipient to provide particular types of charter service 
when there is an agreement to this effect between the recipient 
and all the private charter operators it has found willing and 
able. Under the procedure set forth in this section, the 
recipient's annual public charter notice must have provided 
for this type of agreement. If it did not, the recipient must, 
before undertaking the charter trip(s) in question, amend its 
charter notice to specifically refer to such agreement. 

Moreover, under section 604.9(b) (3), a recipient in a non
urbanized area (i.e., an area with a population of less than 
50,000) may petition UMTA to provide charter service directly when 
charter service provided by willing and able charter operators 
would create a hardship on the customer because the private 
operators are located too far from the origin of the charter 
service. Before any such exception is.granted, however, the 
recipient must petition the UMTA Chief Counsel to grant such an 
exception, and give notice of its request to any private ope~ator 
it has determined willing and able. The private operators w~ll 
then have 30 days to .submit written comments to the recipient on 
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reauest. The question of what is "too far" from the charter point 
of-origin will be decided by UMTA's Chief Counsel on a case-by
case basis. 

I trust that this responds to your inquiry and clarifies the 
points raised in your letter. 
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US. Deportment 
ot Transportation 

Urban Moss 
Transportation
Administration 

The Honorable Cass Ballenger 
House of Representatives 
Washington, D.C. 20515 

Dear Mr. Ballenger: 

The Deoutv Admtmstrator 

StP I 2 /C.~O ......... ,_ 

LAl Y G'7:1f 
G.:~.( ... ._ (.': 

400 Seventh St . S W 
Washtngton. 0 C 20590 

This is in response to your letter requesting information 
regarding the concerns of your constituent, Christopher D. Turner, 
of Boone, North Carolina, about the federal regulations governing 
charter service by public transportation agencies. Mr. Turner 
describes a problem experienced by AppalCART, the local 
transportation authority. He states that there should be an 
exception to the charter service regulation for rural and low 
income areas and that a private operator should have at least 
three buses in order to be considered a "willing and able" 
carrier. 

Five limited exceptions to the basic prohibition of the charter 
service regulation are set out in 49 C.F.R. 604.9(b). Two of 
these exceptions may be applicable to AppalCART's situation. The 
regulation provides that 

(2) A recipient may enter into a contract with a 
private charter operator to provide charter equipment 
to or service from the private charter operator if: (i) 
The private charter operator is requested to provide 
charter service that exceeds its capacity; .... 
(3) A recipient in a non-urbanized area may petition 
UMTA [Urban Mass Transportation Administration] for 
an exception to provide charter service directly to the 
customer if the charter service provided by the 
willing and able private charter operator or operators 
would create a hardship on. the customer because: ... 
·The willing and able private operator or operators are 
located too far from the origin of the charter service. 

These aspects of the regulation are further explained in question 
twenty of "Charter Service Questions and Answers" 52 Fed. Reg. 
42248, 42251, November 3, 1987, several reprints of which are 
enclosed for your convenience. 
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The regulation also specifies that a "willing and able" private 
charter operator need only express in writing its desire to 
perform, have the physical capability of providing the categories 
of revenue vehicles specified in the notice and possess the 
required legal authority to operate charter service in -the area 
where it desires to provide such service. Questions five and six 
of the enclosed reprints address this point. 

I trust that this responds to and concerns. 

Enclosure 
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U.S. Deportment 
of Transportation 

Urban Mass 
Transportation 
Administration 

The Honorable Phil Gramm 
United States Senator 
712 Main Street, Suite 2400 
Houston, Texas.; 77002 

Dear Senator Gramm: 

The Deputy Administrator 

OCT -6 1989 

400 Seventh St.. S.W. 
Washmgton. D.C. 20590 

This responds to your recent letter enclosing correspondence from 
your constituent, Jack Ussery of the Texas Department of Mental 
Health and Mental Retardation in Corpus Christi. Mr. Ussery 
expresses disappointment that a Federal agency would prohibit a 
transit authority from transporting retarded citizens in the event 
of a destructive hurricane. An attachment to Mr. Ussery's letter 
indicates that he was advised by VIA Metropolitan Transit (VIA) 
of San Antonio, Texas that the Urban Mass Transportation 
Administration's (UMTA) charter regulation prohibits VIA from 
operating outside its service area, even in emergency situations. 

The-information which VIA provided to Mr. Ussery is inaccurate in 
two respects. First, UMTA's charter regulation, 49 CFR Part 604, 
prohibits an UMTA grant recipient from providing charter service 
when there is a private operator willing and able to provide the 
service. If there is no such willing and able private operator, 
the UMTA recipient.may provide any charter service it chooses, as 
long as such service is 11 incidental, 11 i.e., it does not interfere 
with or detract from the recipient's mass transit service. 
The regulation does not contain any geograph:i..9 restriction: any 
limits on charter operations outside the reci~t's service area 
are not mandated by UMTA. Bona fide emergency operations are, 
similarly, not limited by this UMTA regulation. 

Second, even if there is a willing and able private operator, 
UMTA has provided a special exception which allows recipients to 
perform charter operations in emergency situations. Q&A #45 of 
UMTA' s "Charter service Questions and Answers," 5.2 Fed. Reg. 
42248, 42255, states: · · 

"UMTA will allow recipients to perform otherwise 
prohibited charter service in the case of a serious 
emergency, in which time is of the essence in transporting 
victims or rescue workers. The types of emergency situations 
contemplated under this exception are man-made and natural 
disasters, such as fire, chemical spills, floods or 
hurricane. 11 · -
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Accordingly, UMTA's charter regulation would not prohibit VIA from 
providing.the type of emergency service requested by Mr. Ussery. 

I trust that this responds to your inquiry. 

Enclosure: 
Transmittal Correspondence 

cc: Washington Office 
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U.S. Department 
of Transportation 

Urban Mass 
Transportation 
Administration 

Brent A. Sheffer, Manager, 
Financial Planning Budget 

central Ohio Transit Authority 
1600 McKinley Avenue 
Columbus, Ohio 43222 

Dear Mr. Sheffer: 

Headquarters 400 Seventh St.. S.W. 
Washington, D.C. 20590 

Please find enclosed a copy of a letter from Charles A. Webb, 
Esq., which requests that the Urban Mass Transportation 
Administration (UMTA) inquire as to·the legality of a service 
being provided by the Central Ohio Transit Authority (COTA) for 
Seniors on the Town. 

You are reminded that under UMTA's charter regulation, 
49. CFR Part 604, recipients of UMTA funds may not provide charter 
service if there is a willing and able private operator, except 
under one of the exceptions to the rule. However, it should be 
noted that exclusive service for the elderly and handicapped is 
"mass transportation" under the definition of the Urban Mass 
Transportation Act of 1964, as amended (UMT Act), and is not 
considered to be charter. UMTA has ruled that in order to qualify 
as ••exclusive," the service in question must be open to all 
elderly and handicapped in a particular service area, and not 
restricted to a particular group of elderly and handicapped 
persons. See, Q&A #27(b) of UMTA's "Charter Service Questions and 
Answers," 53 Fed. Reg. 42248, 42252 (November 3, 1989). 

Please provide, within thirty (30) days of receipt of this 
letter, specific information concerning the nature of COTA's 
serVice to Seniors on the Town. Your response should explain who 
controls the service (~., sets the rates, routes and schedules), 
whether it was designed to accommodate the needs of a particular 
group as opposed to those of the general public or a specific 
segment thereof, and whether it is open, if not to the general 
public, at least to. all the elderly and handicapped in COTA's 
service area. 

When UMTA has received this information, it will make a 
determination in this matter. 

~ely,. / 

---::::::::= . ~ ~ '-::::) =n\:. Diaz 
Chief counsel 

Enclosures 

cc: Charles A. Webb; Esq. 
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BEFORE THE URBAN MASS TRANSPORTATION ADMINISTRATION 
OFFICE OF CHIEF COUNSEL 

In the matter of: 

SEYMOUR CHARTER BUS LINES, } 
Complainant } 

} 
v. . } 

} 
KNOXVILLE TRANSIT AUTHORITY, } 

Respondent } 

DECISION 

SUMMARY 

TN-09/88-01 

Seymour Charter Bus Lines (Seymour) filed this qomplaint with the 
Urban Mass Transportation Administration (UMTA), alleging that the 
Knoxville Transit Authority (K-TRANS) was providing charter 
service in violation of the Urban Mass Transportation 
Administration's (UMTA) charter regulation, 49 CFR Part 604. The 
complaint specifically alleged that Seymour had contracted to 
provide charter service for the University of Tennessee (the 
University).· Applying a balancing test to the service in 
question, UMTA concludes that it is charter service as defined by 
49 CFR 604.5(e). UMTA orders K-TRANS to cease and desist from 
providing the service as it is currently configured. K-TRANS must 
report to UMTA w~thin 90 days on the measu~es it has taken to 
comply with the terms of this order. 

COMPLAINT 

seymour filed this complaint· with UMTA on August 19, 1988. The 
complaint alleged that K-TRANS was providing charter service in 
violation of UMTA's charter regulation, 49 CFR Part 604. The 
complaint specifically alleged three violations. According to the 
first two allegations, set forth in paragraphs 5 and 6 of the 
complaint, K-TRANS had established brokering arrangements with Loy 
Bus Lines and Mays Bus Lines. In paragraph 7 ot the complaint, 
Seymour alleged that K-TRANS had successfully bid on a contract 
for charter .service to the University, at a charge that was less 
than its fully allocated cost of providing the service. 

By letter of September 23, 1988, UMTA advised Seymour that its 
·allegations stated a complaint under 49 CFR 605.15. The letter 
directed Seymour to attempt local conciliation for thirty days. 
If no resolution were reached at the end of this period, the 
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letter stated, either party could write to UMTA to request a 
formal investigation. 

On October 27, 1988, Seymour wrote to UMTA to state that it had 
met with K-TRANS on the previous day. As a result of discussions 
which took place, Seymour stated, it was withdrawing its 
allegations that K-TRANS had est-ablished brokering arrangements 
with Loy Bus Lines and May Bus Lines. Seymour stated, however, 
that the parties had been unable to reach an agreement on the 
nature of K-TRANS' service to the University. Seymour maintained 
that the service was charter service, and therefore prohibited by 
UMTA's charter regulation. 

RESPONSE 

By letter of November 21, 1988, UMTA advised Seymour and K-TRANS 
that it would proceed with a formal investigation of the remaining 
allegations concerning K-TRANS charter service for the University. 
UMTA gave K-TRANS 30 days to respond to the complaint. 

K-TRANS' response was dated December 21, 1988. K-TRANS noted that 
it was making no response to the allegations of paragraphs 5 and 6 
of the complaint concerning K-TRANS' brokering arrangements with 
Loy Bus Lines and Mays Bus Lines, since those allegations had been 
withdrawn by Seymour. 

Responding to the allegations in paragraph 7, K-TRANS stated that 
it has been providing service to the University of Tennessee 
campus and to certain student apartments operated by the 
University. K-TRANS explained that it had been operating, as part 
of the mass transit system of the city for many years, service to 
and from the campus and to and from 5 off-campus apartments 
occupied by married and graduate students. 

In June 1988, stated K-TRANS, the University issued a request for 
quotations. K-TRANS indicated that it was providing service to 
the University not under a separate contract:, but "pursuant to the 
request for quotations issued by the University and the response 
of K-TRANS." K-TRANS denied that the service was charter service, 
or that service was being provided in violation of the UMTA 
eharter regulation. · 

K-TRANS stated that the schedule for the Route 22 service, a copy 
of which was attached to its response, showed that the service 
provided for the University community was divided into two parts. 
The first part, explained K-TRANS, was known as the Campus Route, 
and connected the main campus with the University Agricultural 
Campus along Weyland Drive, a main thoroughfare of the City. 
K-TRANS stated that no fare was charged for this intercampus 
service. 

The second part of the service, according to K-TRANS, was provided 
to five (5) separate apartment complexes which housed married and 
graduate students. K-TRANS explained that the service to the 
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married student apartments ran along a principal thoroughfare, 
through residential and commercial areas. K-TRANS maintained that 
the buses stopped and picked up at any K-TRANS stop along the way. 
Each rider, stated K-TRANS, paid a fare for this service. 

K-TRANS stated that in its request for quotations, the University 
requested the use of 45-passenger buses, set the departure times 
from the campus and the apartments and the times during which the 
service would operate, and set the fare to be charged for 
students. Otherwise, K-TRANS maintained, the service was totally 
under the control of K-TRANS. 

K-TRANS explained, notably, that it set the number of vehicles 
used to provide the service, handled all operational details, and 
determined the routes to be followed. K-TRANS stated that for.the 
most part, the buses operated along publicly dedicated and 
maintained streets, were open to the public at regular fares, and 
stopped at all of K-TRANS 1 regular stops. Moreover, stated 
K-TRANS, the service appeared in K-TRANS 1 regularly published 
schedules, which were distributed to the general public. K-TRANS 
acknowledged that the service was geared to meet the needs of the 
University community, but stated that it was not tied exclusively 
to University class schedules, and had operated on a modified 
schedule during vacation periods. These factors,· K-TRANS 
maintained, confirmed that the service was "mass transportation11 

as defined on page 11920 of the preamble to UMTA 1 s charter 
regulation (52 Fed. Reg. 11916 et seq., April 13, 1987).1 

K-TRANS further contended that the service was for the benefit of 
the public-at-large, since University students were members of the 
public as was any group which lives in a particular sub-division 
or series of apartment complexes. College students were not, 
maintained K-TRANS, a restricted, nurtured group as would be 
secondary students served by a school bus, but were members of the 
local community. 

on the other hand, K-TRANS submitted, the service was not 11 charter 
service, 11 because, among other things, the patrons did not have a 
common purpose or constitute a defined group, they had not 
acquired exclusive use of the bus, they did not travel under an 
itinerary specified in advance or have authority to set the 
desination, and each rider paid an individual fare. 

Responding to the allegation of paragraph 9 of the complaint 
concerning K-TRANS 1 failure to bid fully allocated costs for the 
University contract, K-TRANS acknowledged that the successful bid 
price was $22.75 per hour, but stated that determination as to 

1) 11Mass transportation 11 is herein defined as having the 
following three basic characteristics: 1) it is under the control 
of the grantee (i.e., the grantee sets the rate, route, fares and 
schedules); 2) it is designed to meet the needs of the general 
public as opposed to those of a particular group; 3) it is open to 
the public. 
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whether the charge was compensatory was not appropriate. If it 
were determined that the service was charter service and should 
not be provided, argued K-TRANS, the amount of the charge would 
become a moot question. If, stated K-TRANS, the ultimate decision 
were that the service is mass transportation, then the matter 
complained of in paragraph 9 should not be an issue. 

Further responding to the complaint generally, K-TRANS asserted 
that the regulations promulgated at 49 CFR Part 604 were not 
within the legal authority granted to UMTA under the Urban Mass 
Transportation Act of 1964, as amended (UMT Act), since· the 
service complained of was not being operated outside the urban 
area in which K-TRANS provided regularly scheduled mass 
transportation service.2 

For the above reasons, K-TRANS concluded that the complaint should 
be dismissed. 

REBUTTAL 

By letter of December 29, 1988, UMTA wrote to Seymour to state 
that it had received the response of K-TRANS on December 21, 1988, 
and that K-TRANS had indicated that it had forwarded a copy of its 
response to Seymour. UMTA stated·that Seymour would have 30 days 
to file a rebuttal. 

Seymour's rebuttal is dated January 17, 1989. Seymour therein 
stated that the issue presented in this proceeding was whether 
transportation provided to the University exclusively, or on a 
substantially exclusive basis, for its faculty, staff and students 
by K-TRANS, consituted impermissible charter service in violation 
of 49 CFR Part 604. 

Seymour pointed out that in consideration of the payment of $22.75 
per hour per bus, K-TRANS agreed ·to provide service to the 
University campus, operating in an.area and at times specified by 
the University. Seymour noted that in meeting this general 
transportation requirement, the University had imposed specfic 
requirements on K-TRANS, including the number and seating capacity 
of buses used, detailed insurance specifications, maintenance of a 
cash collection system acceptable to the University, and frequency 
of service and points of origin and destination. 

Seymour asserted that the service provided by K-TRANS to the 
university was not mass transit. Seymour pointed out that mass 
transit is described in the preamble to UMTA's.charter regulaion 

2) UMTA w1ll not discuss this 1ssue, s1nce 1t has already dealt 
with.it extensively in two previous decisions, Washington Motor 
Coach Association v. Municipality of Metropolitan Seattle, 
WA-09/87-01, March 21, 1988, and B&T Fuller Double Decker Bus 
Company v. VIA Metropolitan Transit, TX-02/88-01, November 14, 
1988. 
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as being: 1) under the control of the grantee: 2) designed to 
benefit the public at large: 3) open door. 49 Fed. Reg. 11920, 
(April 13, 1987). seymour maintained that K-TRANS' service had 
none of those characteristics of mass transit. 

First, stated Seymour, K-TRANS' service to· the University was not 
under its control, but operated according to routes, minimum 
rates, and schedules set by the University, which also specified 
what equipment is used. 

Second, Seymour argued, K-TRANS maintained that the service was 
designed to benefit "members of the public," since students were 
part of the public at large. That argument, Seymour pointed out, 
was rejected by the UMTA Chief Counsel in Blue Grass Tours and 
Charter v. Lexington Transit Authority (Memorandum of Decision 
dated May 17, 1988). In that decision, Seymour noted, the Chief 
Counsel ruled that the service was not set up to benefit the 
general public, except as the general public might coincidentally 
need to travel around the campus.3 

Third, Seymour acknowledged that K-TRANS' service could be 
·described as "open door11 _in the sense that no one wanting·to use 
it was prevented from doing so, but denied that it was true 11open 
door" mass transit. Seymour quoted the finding in an opinion 
letter of UMTA's Chief Counsel dated December 28, 1988, that 
certain service provided by the Ithaca Transit Authority was 
impermissible charter service since it was apparent that the 
purpose of the trip was to provide service for a particular group 
of senior citizens and not for the public-at-large. Seymour cited 
K-TRANS' failure to furnish _the University with documentation of 
fares collected or passengers carried as evidence _that there was 
no significant public ridership or routes serving the married 
students• apartments. 

Seymour maintained that K-TRANS' campus service conformed to the 
following seven criteria for charter service set forth in 
49 CFR 604.5(e): 

1) The patrons had a common purpose, namely to travel to or from 
points on the University campus. 

2) The service was provided exclusively for University students 
and personnel. Moreover, seymour stated, no transportation was 
provided when school was not in session. 

3) The Lexington Transit Authority, the respondent In the 
proceeding cited, eventually modified this element of the service 
by publishing schedules for its campus service, advertising them 
to the public, and marking campus stops with its logo, thereby 
evidencing an attempt to invite public ridership. By letter of 
December 27, 1988, to the Lexington Transit Authority, UMTA 
recognized that these and other changes had converted what it 
believed was charter service to mass transit. 
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3) While the passengers did not board as a group at a common 
place, it was not uncommon for motor carriers to pick up at 
various locations (ex., pick-ups at various hotels in the case of 
convention charters). 

4) The University had acquired exclusive use of the bus for its 
students and personnel. 

5) The passengers travelled together under an itinerary specified 
in advance by the chartering party, the University. 

6) The University, the chartering party, set the destinations. 

7) The buses were chartered for the purpose of providing 
transportation on an individual basis; hence, each person paid an 
individual fare. 

Seymour argued that like the service in Blue Grass, the service 
provided by K-TRANS to t~e University was set up, advertised, and 
operated differently than K-TRANS' regular service and was geared 
to accomodate the special needs of the University when school was 
in session. 

Seymour responded to K-TRANS' argument that UMTA lacked legal 
authority to promulgate the charter regulation by stating that 
12(c) (6) of the UMT Act, by restricting UMTA funds to use for mass 
transit purposes, invested UMTA with the necessary authority to 
prohibit use of funds for other purposes. Section 12(c) (6), 
maintained Seymour, was a· fairly typical example of a delegation 
of authority to frame major governmental policy without 
significant statutory guidance. 

Seymour asked that for the reasons set forth above, K-TRANS should 
be barred from receipt of further financial assistance for mass 
transit facilities and equipment. 

REQUEST FOR ADDITIONAL INFORMATION 

By letter of January 26, 1989, UMTA requested additional 
·information from K-TRANS. The information requested, and K-TRANS' 
response of March 10, 1989, are summarized as follows: 

QUESTION: Why, after providing service to the University of 
Tennessee for many years as part of its mass transit system, is 
K-TRANS now providing it pursuant to the request for quotation 
from the University? 

ANSWER: Prior to 1988, the basis for subsidy by the University to 
K-TRANS had been by negotiated agreement. Last year, however, 
following an informal proposal from a private operator, the 
University determined that it should be satisfied as to the 
appropriate payment, and decided to solicit proposals. 
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QUESTION: Please submit a copy of Requirements Contract 
uc #0505-990. 

ANSWER: Document requested, dated June 23 1988, is attached. 

QUESTION: Has there been a change in fares, routes or schedules 
since the K-TRANS began operating the service pursuant to the 
University's request for quotation?· 

ANSWER: No change has been made in fares, routes or schedules, 
though it has been determined to operate the service when the 
University is not in session. 

In a supplemental response, K-TRANS commented on two matters 
contained in complainant's rebuttal, and provided other additional 
information. 

First, K-TRANS stated, with regard to the assertion that all 
patrons had the common purpose to travel to and from points on the 
University campus, it should be pointed out that students may 
transfer to another K-TRANS route with the purchase of a transfer 
at the regular charge. 

Second, K-TRANS noted that complainant's rebuttal contained a 
footnote to the effect that no transportation was provided when 
the University was not in session. K-TRANS referred to Exhibit 
"C" of its response showing the schedule for the Christmas Holiday 
period between December 15, 1988, and January 10, 1989. 

K-TRANS further stated that bus stops signs were, and historically 
had been, posted and maintained on the regular campus. K-TRANS 
moreover maintained that while the University's request for 
proposals contained a schedule of desired departure times, this 
schedule had originally been developed by K-TRANS in consultation 
with the University. Finally, K-TRANS stated that in order to 
further illustrate the urban nature of the service in question, it 

·was attaching a city street map showing the routes foll.owed over 
the campus area. 

COMMENT ON SUPPLEMENTAL RESPONSE 

on March 20, 1989, Seymour provided the following comments on the 
supplemental information furnished by the complainant. 

First, argued Seymour, the students• alleged ability to transfer 
to other routes did not make the campus routes part of an 
integrated mass transit system. 

second, stated Seymour, the operation of the service during the 
Christmas season did not negate the fact that the service was not 
mass transportation, but was dedicated exclusively to the needs of 
University students and personnel. 
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Third, seymour contended that the posting of stop signs was 
irrelevant if the general public did not use the service in 
question. 

Fourth, Seymour stated that it would be reasonable to assume that 
service for the University, whether mass transit or charter, would 
be discussed by officials of K-TRANS and the University to 
determine the most convenient departure times. 

Fifth, Seymour conceded that the ·service provided by K-TRANS under 
contract to the University was over routes depicted on the city 
map supplied by K-TRANS. Finally, Seymour maintained that K~TRANS 
had failed to establish that it had transported even one member of 
the general public. 

K-TRANS was required under the terms of its contract with the 
university, stated Seymour, to furnish documentation of fares 
collected and passengers carried, but had thus far failed to do 
so. 

DISCUSSION 

The essential issue in this case is whether the service provided 
by K-TRANS to the University is impermissible charter service or 
permissible mass transportation. 

The complainant's argument that the service provided by K-TRANS to 
the University is charter service is based in large part on the 
definition of charter service set out at 49 CFR 604.5(e), and on 
the Chief Counsel's determination in Blue Grass (supra) concerning 
similar university campus service. ----

In Blue Grass, the Chief Counsel determined that the service 
provided by the Lexington Transit Authority (Lextran) essentially 
corresponded to the criteria of section 604.5(e). First, the 
Chief Counsel found, the service was charter service, since it was 
provided "under a single contract." The Chief Counsel's 
investigation revealed that although no written contract had been 
concluded between the parties, the service was operated by the 
grantee on terms set by the University, and the grantee was 
eonpensated on the basis of hours of service. 

Second, the Chief Counsel found that the service was operated and 
managed differently from the grantee's other routes'· since there 
were no published schedules for the campus routes, and it was 
provided for free. · 

Third, the Chief Counsel found that the service had been designed 
to meet the transportation needs of university students and 
personnel, and that that though it was operated open door, only 
coincidentally served the needs of the needs of the general 
public. Balancing these factors, the Chief Counsel determined 
that the service was charter service. 
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The same type of balancing test must be applied in determining the 
nature of service involved in any complaint filed with UMTA, 
since, as the preamble to the charter regulation points out at 
page 11926, there is no fixed definition of charter service, and 
the characteristics cited by UMTA are given as examples 9nly. 

While the service provided by K-TRANS is similar to that provided 
by Lextran at the time of the complaint cited in Blue Grass, it 
has other characteristics which more easily fit the definition of 
mass transportation. 

In contrast to Lextran, K-TRANS does publish the campus routes in 
its regular schedules. Moreover, K-TRANS' service to and from the 
married student apartments is not provided for free, but each 
passenger pays an individual fare. In these respects, the service 
conforms to the criteria for mass transportation. 

At the same time, K-TRANS' service and Lextran's service as it was 
reconfigured following the Chief Counsel's decision in Blue Grass, 
share similarities which also meet UMTA's mass transit criteria. 
While in both cases the routes serve mainly university students 
and personnel, both offer at least a significant opportunity for 
public ridership. In Lextran's case, following the issuance of 
the Chief Counsel's decision, the campus service was modified to' 
invite public ridership through the publication of regular 
schedules and the marking of campus stops with the Lextran logo. 

The K-TRANS service affords an opportunity for public ridership 
through the publication of regular scpedules and the posting of 
bus stop signs throughout the campus. Morever, as K-TRANS points 
out, since the University campus is located in a central part of 
the urban area, some of the campus route buses follow major 
thoroughfares and passengers using them may connect with other 
K-TRANS routes. Further, contrary to Seymour's assertion that the 
campus service does not operate during school vacation periods, 
K-TRANS has demonstrated that the service does operate on a 
modified schedule at least during the Christmas holiday season. 
Thus, the service does appear to be open and available to the 
general public. 

Seymour, while not denying that the service is open door, cites 
K-TRANS' failure to furnish the University with documentation of 
fares collected or passengers carried as evidence that there is no 
significant public ridership on the campus routes. Although 
K-TRANS has not made this information available to UMTA, UMTA 
disagrees with Seymour that this is conclusive ·evidence that no 
member of the general public has been transported by the campus 
service. The agreement between K-TRANS and the University 
does not require that K-TRANS provide separate data on student and 
nonstudent riders. Th~s, even though K-TRANS may be able to 
provide information on fares collected and passengers using this 
service, it does not appear that this information would be in any 
way helpful in determining the number. of student riders versus the 

446 



10 

number of members of the general public being transported on the 
campus routes. 

on the other hand, both the university service originally operated 
by Lextran and K-TRANS' campus service meet UMTA's criteria for 
charter service in that they are provided under an agreement 
which links the cost of the service to the number of hours 
operated. This agreement, by allowing the University to set 
fares and schedules, places control of the service with a party 
other than the grantee. Although K-TRANS maintains that it 
handles other aspects of· the service, such as the number of 
vehicles used and the routes to be followed, UMTA notes that these 
are merely operational details and not determinative of actual 
control of the service. As UMTA has stated in its "Charter 
Service Questions and Answers," 52 Fed. Reg. 42248, 42252 
(November 3, 1987), such control of fares and· schedules is the 
critical element in distinguishing charter service from mass 
transportation in the case of service to a university complex. 
Question 27(d) indeed states: 

"If the service is for the exclusive use of students 
and the university sets the fares and schedules, the 
service would be charter. However, such service 
operated by a recipient which sets fares and schedules 
and is open door, though it serves mainly university 
students, would be mass transportation." 

Thus, by operating under an agreement which allows the University 
to control the service, K-TRANS fails to meet the criterion set in 
the most important part of the balancing test which UMTA uses to 
distinguish charter service from mass transportation in the case 
of campus route service. 

It should be noted that following the Chief Counsel's decision in 
Blue Gr~ss,,Lextran modified this aspect of its service by ceasing 
to prov1de 1t under an agreement linking payment to hours of 
service, instead receiving an annual grant from the University. 
In a letter to Lextran dated December· 27, 1988, UMTA recognized 
that by thereby assuming control of the campus service and by 
making it open to the general public, Lextran had successfully 
converted the service to mass transportation. UMTA noted that in 
so transforming the service, Lextran had provided an example for 
similarly situated grantees. 

Should K-TRANS wish to continue providing service to the 
University, it must reconfigure the service to·conform to UMTA's 
mass transportation guidelines. It should be pointed out, 
however, that even if K-TRANS were to operate the campus service 
as mass transportation it should, in accordance with UMTA's 
private sector policy, examine the interest and capability of the 
private sector in providing this service. This is especially the 
case since, according to the information furnished by K-TRANS, 
this service has been operated for several years. Under the 
guidelines set forth in Circular 7005.1, "Documentation of Private 
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Enterprise Participation Required for Sections 3 and 9 Programs" 
(December 5, 1986), UMTA grantees should examine each route at 
least every three years to determine if it could be more 
efficiently operated by private enterprise. 

CONCLUSION AND ORDER 

UMTA finds that the service provided by K-TRANS to the University 
service is charter service~ since it is provided under an 
agreement with the University, which controls rates and schedules. 
In order to come into compliance with UMTA requirements, K-TRANS 
must either cease and desist from providing the service, or it 
must provide it in conformance with UMTA's mass transportation 
guidelines. K-TRANS must report to UMTA within 90 calendar days 
of receipt of this decision on the measures that it has taken to 
comply with this order. 

Dated: November 29, 1989 

448 



U.S. Department 
ot Transportation 

Urban Mass 
Transportation 
Administration 

Darryl A. Mayers, Esq. . 
Assistant Chief Counsel 

Law Division 

Headquarters 

Massachusetts Bay Transit Authority 
10 Park Plaza 
Boston, Massachusetts 02116 

Dear Mr. Mayers: 

DEC 1 3 1938 

400 Seventh St., S.W. 
Washington, D.C. 20590 

This is in response to your November 3, 1989, letter requesting 
clarification of certain provisions of the Urban Mass 
Transportation Administration's (UMTA) charter bus regulations, 
49 C.F.R. Part 604. 

You ask for clarification as to whether the Massachusetts Bay · 
Transit Authority (MBTA) must take passenger costs into 
consideration when determining whether a private charter operator 
is "willing and able." To the contrary, cost should not be a 
consideration in this determination. Section 604.5(p) clearly 
defines "willing and able" and section 604.11(b) (5) clearly 
establishes what a private operator must do to obtain a 
designation that it is "willinq and able." The only permissible 
criteria are (1) a statement from the private operator to the 
recipient that it has the desire and the physical capability to 
actually provide the categories of revenue vehicle specified in 
the recipient's published notice, e.q., buses or vans, and (2) a 
copy of the documents showinq that the private operator has the 
requisite legal authority to provide the proposed charter service 
and that it meets all necessary safety certification, licensinq 
and other requirements to provide the proposed charter service. 
No other factors are.to be considered in determining whether a 
private operator is "willing and able," even when the service 
falls within the parameters of section 604.9(b) 's exceptions. 

Regarding the procedural steps you outline for determining when 
MBTA may contract directly to provide charter service under 
section 604.9(b)(5) and (6), the first three points are 
essentially correct as regards Part 604 as a whole. The remaining 
two points, however, require some amplification. 

First, under sections 604.9(b)(5) and (6), before MBTA can enter 
into a direct contract with a requestinq entity it must obtain a 
letter from the requesting entity which certifies, inter alia, 
that (1) the organization is a governmental entity or a private, 

449 



2 

non-profit organization which is tax-exempt under subsections 
50l(c) (1},(3),(4), or (19) of the Internal Revenue Code; (2) the 
proposed charter 'is consistent with the requesting organization's 
function or purpose; and (3) the proposed charter complies with 
Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, as amended. 

In addition, under subsection 604.9(b) (5), which applies to all 
recipients, the requesting organization's certification must 
indicate that the proposed charter (1) involves carrying a 
significant number of handicapped persons; or (2) is operated by a 
qualified social service agency under Appendix A of Part 604; or 
(3) is operated by an entity which, at the request of a state, has 
been certified in writing by UMTA as receiving or being eligible 
to receive public assistance funds· from a State or local 
governmental agency for purposes which may involve the 
transportation of transit-disadvantaged or transit-dependent 
persons. 

Subsection·6o4.9(b) (6), on the other hand, is limited to 
recipients in nonurbanized areas. Such areas have a population 
under 50,000 persons. Under this subsection, the re9ipient may 
contract.directly with an entity which also certifies that more 
than:5o percent of the passengers on a charter trip will be 
elderly. 

We also direct your attention to the preamble to the amendment to 
the Charter Service regulations, which appeared in the 
December 30, 1988 Federal Register, 53 ~. ~. 53348. 
Pages 53353-4 contain a detailed analysis of subsections 
604.9(b) (5),(6), and (7). A copy of the Federal Register notice 
is enclosed. 

Enclosure 
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U.S. Department 
of Transportation 

Urban Mass 
Transportation 
Administration 

Paul T. Coulis, General Manager 
Hammond Yellow Coach Lines 
920 - 150th Street 
Hammond, Indiana 46327 

Dear Mr. Coulis: 

Headquarters 

DEC 1 3 

400 Seventh St .. S.W 
Washington. D.C. 20590 

.l'JQC 
I'-. ~ ·· . .,.t 

Thank you for your recent response to our letter of September 21, 
1989, forwarding correspondence from Senators Richard Lugar and 
Dan coats, which enclosed a complaint from Ms. Barbara L. DuBroff 
against Hammond Yellow Coach Lines (Hammond). Ms. DuBroff alleged 
that Hammond had been providing scanty and poor service on its 
commuter runs, while concentrating its better resources and 
personnel on its charter operations. our letter to you requested 
a detailed response to Ms. DuBroff's allegations as well as 
answers to specific questions concerning Hammond's charter 
operations. 

You state that Hammond runs a mass transit and a charter service 
from the same facility using 7 buses funded by the Urban Mass 
Transportation Administration (UMTA) and 18 non-federally funded 
buses. You indicate that HamMond uses UMTA-funded buses in 
charter service in conformity with UMTA 1 s charter regulation, 49 
CFR Part 604. 

The charter regulation, you maintain, allows the "incidental 11 .use 
of UMTA-funded equipment in charter service. You state that 
Section 604.ll(a) of the rule presumes that a recipient is using 
its equipment and facilities incidentally if it does not conduct 
weekday charters: 1) during peak morning and eveninq hours; 
2) requiring a bus to travel more than 50 miles beyond the 
recipient's urban area; and, 3) requiring the use of a particular 
bus for more than 6 hours in any one day. 

The provision which you cite was found in the regulation which was 
superseded by the current charter rule on May 13, 1987. 52 Fed. 
~. 11916 et ~· (April 13, 1987). The regulation now in effect 
prohibits UMTA recipients from providing charter service using 
UMTA-funded equipment when there is a private operator "willinq 
and able" to provide the service, unless one of the exceptions to 
the regulation applies. If Hammond is providinq charter service 
which does not fall under one of these exceptions, it is in 
violation of the charter regulation. 
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It should be emphasized that this prohibition applies only to 
charter serVice using UMTA-funded equipment and facilities. If 
Hammond sets up a separate company that has only locally funded 
equipment and operates it with only local funds, or is able to 
maintain accounts for its charter operations that show that the 
service is truly a separate division which receives no benefits 
from the mass transit division, then the charter rule will not 
apply. 

Please note that even if Hammond were to set up a separate charter 
division, it should not service and maintain its locally funded 
vehicles in an UMTA-funded facility. Furthermore, any 
maintenance expenses incurred by Hammond's separate charter entity 
must be paid for exclusively with local funds and not charged to 
any UMTA grant. In this connec~ion, please see Q&A ·f26 of UMTA's 
"Charter service Questions and Answers," 52 Fed. B§g. 42248, 
42252 (November 7, 1987). 

Please advise me, within thirty (30) days of receipt of this 
letter, of the measures that Hammond has taken to conform to the· 
requirements of UMTA' s charter regulation as outlined above •. 
Should you have any questions in the meantime, you may contact 
Rita Daguillard of my staff at 202/366-1936. 

Steven A. Oiaz 
Chief Counsel 
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U.S. Department 
of Transportation 

Urban Moss 
Transportation 
Administration 

Richard c. Thomas 
Public Transit Director 
City of Phoenix 
Public Transit Department 

Headquarters 

FEB 8 1900 

101 South Central Avenue, Suite 600 
Phoenix, Arizona 85004-0000 

Re: Charter Bus Complaint 
AZ-PHX/89-10-01 

Dear Mr. Thomas: 

400 7th Street S.W. 
Washington, D.C. 20590 

This is a further inquiry with respect to the charter service 
complaint brought by Greyhound Travel Services, Inc. dated 
September 29, 1989, alleging that the City of Phoenix, Public 
Transit Department (Phoenix Transit) may have engaged in 
impermissible charter service by providing transportation on 
August 11, 1989, to the Phoenix Cardinal game, and handling 
charters for Realty Executives, Russ Lyon Realty and Paradise 
Valley Multiple Leasing. · 

On November 3, 1989, Phoenix Transit responded to the Urban Mass 
Transportation Administration's (UMTA) initial inquiry regarding 
the complaint by advising UMTA that none of the nine Phoenix 
Transit buses used for the August 11, 1989, C~rdina1 football game 
were direct charters, but were for a "variety of clients" and that 
the service provided to Realty Executives was subcontracted 
through Valley Coach,.a private operator. Phoenix Transit further 
stated'1_that charter service was provided to Russ Lyon Realty and 
Paradise Valley Multiple Leasing only prior to the change in 
UMTA's regulation. 

The information UMTA has received so far is insufficient for it to 
make a complete analysis of whether the services at issue were 
impermissible charter service. The charter service regulation 
provides two exceptions to the basic prohibition against charter 
service which may be applicable to Phoenix Transit's 
circumstances. The regulation provides that a recipient may enter 
into a contract with a private charter operator to provide charter 
equipment to or service for the private charter operator if: "(i) 
the private charter operator is requested to provide charter 
service that exceeds its capacity; or (ii) the private charter 
operator is unable to provide equipment accessible to elderly and 
handicapped persons itself." 49 C.F.R. Part 604.9{b) (2). 
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From the explanation Phoenix Transit submitted UMTA is unable to 
determine whether either of these two exceptions to the 
prohibition against charter service is applicable. Please submit 
any documentation Phoenix Transit may have concerning either of 
the applicable exceptions to the charter service prohibition, 
specifically: 
{1) documentation establishing the nature of the contractual 
relationship between Phoenix Transit and the "variety of clients" 
for whom service was provided on August 11, 1989, to the 
Cardinal's football game; 
(2) documentation establishing the nature of the contractual 
relationship between Phoenix Transit and Valley Coach concerning. 
the service provided to Realty Executives; 
(3) copies of the private operator licenses of Phoenix Transit's 
"variety of clients" and Valley Coach; 
(4) how many buses and or vans each of these "variety of clients" 
and Valley Coach has in its inventory; 
(5) what information these "variety of clients" and Valley Coach 
provided Phoenix Transit concerning their equipment before 
entering into the contractual relationships with Phoenix Transit; 
and 
(6) all documentation concerning any transit services provided by 
Phoenix Transit to Russ Lyon Realty and Paradise Valley Multiple 
Leasing since May 13, 1987, the effective date of UMTA's current 
'charter service regulation. 

Thank you for your cooperation in the enforcement of UMTA's 
charter service regulation. 

cc: ~augsland 

t:J:Ro-~ 
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U.S. Department 
of Transportation 

Urban Mass 

Headquarters 

Transportation uAr l 6 1990 
Administration 1'1 K 

Ms. Debra Ruggles, General Manager 
Abilene Transit 
1189 s. 2nd Street. 
Abilen~, Texas 79602 

Dear Ms. Ruggles: 

400 7th Street S.W. 
Washington, D.C. 20590 

This responds to your recent letter to Wilbur Hare, Regional 
Manager, Urban Mass Transportation Administration (UMTA) Region 
VI. You explain that the Abilene Transit System (ATS) receives 
occasional requests from Taylor County Courthouse officials to 
provide short trips for jurors. You state that because of the 
small number of passengers to be transported and the short 
duration of the trips, the services of the two local willing and 
able priyate operators are not suitable to meet this need. 
Moreover, you indicate that ATS does not wish to use local funds• 
to.purchase a van which would be used only sporadically. You 
therefore request that UMTA grant an exemption which would allow 
ATS to provide this service. 

UMTA's charter regulation, 49 CFR Part 604, prohibits UMTA 
recipients from providing charter service using UMTA-funded 
facilities and equipment if there is at least one private operator 
willing and able to provide the service. The regulation, however, 
provides eight exceptions to this general prohibition. 

The exception which appears appropriate for the situation you 
describe is that of 49 CFR 604.9(b) (7). Under this exception, a 
recipient may operate particular charter trips contracting 
directly with the customer where there is a formal agreement to 
this effect between the· recipient and all the private operators 
responding to the recipient's notice and determined to be willing 
and able. 

To take advantage of this exception, the recipient must complete 
the review process on all replies to its annual charter notice. 
Except for the limitations of incidental use, the recipient and 
the private charter operators may define the excepted charter 
service in any terms and conditions agreed to. 

UMTA is not a party to these agreements, nor is UMTA's concurrence 
or approval required. The only procedural requirement, in 
addition to conclusion of a formal agreement, is that notice of 
the agreement be published. ~he recipient's annual published 
notice must provide for this type of agreement or be subsequently 
amended to specifically refer to the agreement, before the 
recipient undertakes the charter trips described in the agreement. 
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My staff would be happy to provide you with any further 
information or guidance you require with regard to this 
exception. 

Sincerely, 

Ste~+4!--
Chief Counsel 
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US. Department 
of Transportation 

Urban Mass 
Transportation 
Administration 

Mr. Richard D. Bauman 
General Manager 
Regional Transportation 
1600 Blake Street 
Denver, Colorado 80202 

Dear Mr. Bauman: 

District 

REGION VIII 
Arizona, Colorado, Montana 
Nevada, North Dakota, 
South Dakota, Utah, Wyoming 

Federal Office Building 
1961 Stout Street 
Room 520 
Denver, Colorado 80294 

We have been notified of RTD's intent to provide charter service 
for major conventions to the extent that private operators are 
unable to meet the demand for such service. It is our 
understanding that RTD will issue the required public notice of 
its intent to provide the service. The draft notice provided to 
UMTA states that RTD will attempt to execute an agreement with 
all willing and able private charter operators who respond to the 
notice in accordance with 49 CFR Section 604.9(b) (7).· The 
agreement would allow RTD to provide the service directly with 
maximum participation by private operators. 

We appreciate RTD's expressed intent to•comply with all aspects 
of UMTA's charter regulations •. We are concerned, however,. that 
providing charter service for major conventions could interfere 
with RTD's provision of mass transportation. 

As you are aware, charter service may be undertaken by UMTA 
gran'tees only if it is "incidental" to and does not interfere 
with regular mass transportation operations. We would appreciate 
receiving information about RTD's plans to insure that charter 
service for conventions will not interfere with mass transit, 
particularly during peak hours. Because of the possibility that 
RTD could provide a substantial amount of this type of charter 
service, we would prefer a written response. 
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Again, RTD's coordination with UMTA on this issue and RTD's 
concern for compliance with UMTA requirements are much 
appreciated. Questions concerning this issue should be addressed 
to Helen Knoll of this office at 844-3242. 

Sincerely, 

~J~z~t Reg1onal~nager 

cc: Frank Sharpless 
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BEFORE THE URBAN MASS TRANSPORTATION ADMINISTRATION 

In the •attar of: 

AMERICAN BUS ASSOCIATION,· 
et al., 

Complainants 

v. 

WASHINGTON METROPOLITAN 
AREA TRANSIT AUTHORITY~ 

Responden,t 

SUMMARY 

: 
: 
; 
I 
: 
: 
: 
I 
: 
• • 
• • 
• • 
• .. 

DECISION 

The ~erican Bus Association (ABA) tiled acoaplaint with the 
Urban Mass Transportation Administration (UMTA) on April 14r 1989, 
alleqinq that the Washington Metropolitan Area Transit Authority 
(WMATA) was brokerinq charter service in violation of the UMTA 
charter service requlation, 49 CF,R Part 604. UMTA'• investiqation 
finds that it·is beyond the scope of tts jurisd~ction to consider 
an issue related to the operatinq authority of companies with 
which WMATA subcontracts UMTA vehicles for charter servicer UMTA 
does not require WKATA to l'ook behinc:l a request for .the use of 
·their buses by a private operator in the absence of fraud.·or 
falsified statement; that the charter service provided by .WMATA : 
throuqh its subcontractinq arranqeaents with Lakeland and·. . 
International.does not constitute "brokerinq" and is within UMTA's 
definition of allowable subcontract service ·described·in the 
charter service requlation; that Complainants offered no proof 
that either Lakeland or International were brokers •in' fact;" and· 
that the evidence established that both Lakeland and International 
entered into valid subcontractinq arranqements.with WHATA. 
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COMPLAINT 

The ABA is the national trade association for the intercity bus 
industry and is headquartered in washinqton, D. c. 1 Allerican coach 
Linea, Inc., East Coast Parlor car Tours, Byre Bua Service, Inc., 
Gold Line, Inc. and Greyhound Linea, Inc. are aellbera of the ABA 
(collectively referred to as co.plainants) and are engaged in· 
transporting passengers in charter bus operations in the 
Washinqton, D. c. aetropolitan area. 

on April 1•, 1989, Coaplainants subaitted a foraal ca.plaint to 
UMTA alleging that WMATA used the services of Lakeland Tours, Inc. 
(Lakeland), of Charlottesville, Virvinia, and the services of 
several other carriers as brokers of transportation. . Complainants 
alleged that WMATA has transported passengers in charter·· trips .. 
which begin and end at points within the Washinqton Metropolitan 
Area Transit District (District) in violation of 49 C.P.R. Part 
604. · · Furthermot-e, Complainants. allegec;l . that· ~e companies with .. 
which WMATA does business are themselves. not authorized ·to· ·· ··· 
transport passengers between points within the District..-· As 
evidence of. these allegations coaplainants provided copies of 
eight of WMATA's service orders and •anif~sta showing charter 
service in and around the Washington aetropolitan area. 

Secondly, Complainants alleged that w.MATA provi~ed ~barter 
transportation pursuant to contracts entered into with 
International Limousine, Inc. (International), of Washington, 
D. c., despite the fact that International does not own or operate 
buses. Complainants alleged that WMATA's contractual arrangement 
with International is a sham arrangement contrived for the purpose 
of enabling WMATA to provide charter services directly to 
customers using UMTA-funded equipment and services. 

Complainants requested UMTA to direct WMATA.to immediately cease 
and desist from providing charter service in violation of 
49· C.F.R. Part 604 and to withhold from WMATA funds for equipment 
and facilities. 
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RESPONSE 

Under the procedure set out·in the regulation, a complainant must 
seek conciliation at the local level before filing a complaint 
with UMTA. Because co•plainants advised UMTA that WMATA 
previously had declined to participate in infor.al efforts to 
resolve the Complaint, UIITA directed WMATA to respond to the 
complaint within thirty (30) day•• 

By letter dated May 1, 1989, UMTA forwarded to WMATA a copy of the 
Complaint. UMTA advised WHATA that the allegation that charter 

·service was rendered within the District without authority was 
outside the scope of UMTA's review since UMTA has no jurisdiction 
over operating authority. But, tJKTA also advised WMATA that the 
allegation that WHATA was leasing equipment to a broker which had 
no buses of ita own would constitute, if substantiated, a valid 
complaint under UMTA'a charter regulation. By letter dated 
May 30, 1989, WMATA submitted ita response to the Complaint. 

tq!ATA stated that based on the information available to it, the 
allegations·contained in the Complaint were without m•rit •. WMATA 
stated that it required each subcontract carrier to certify that. 
it had at least one bus or van. This certification, WMATA stated, 
met the requirements of 49 C.F.R. Part 604 as amplified in 52 ~ 
~ 42248 at 42249, November 3, 1987. FUrthermore, WMATA cited 
49 C.F.R. Part 604.13(e) as authority for ita contention that it 
was .not allowed to look behind a subcontract carrier's statements 
absent evidence of fraud. 

WMATA stated that it required all subcontract carriers to possess 
operating authority from either the Washington Metropolitan Area 
Transit Commission (Commission) or the Interstate Commerce 
Commission (ICC). 

Finally, WMATA stat~d that ita Office of Marketing was provided 
with information from International stating that it currently 
owned twenty-four twenty-seat vans and one twenty-nine seat. 
passenger bus. WMATA stated that according to the terms of 52 
~ ~ 42248 at 42249, November 3, 1989, International would 
not be a broker. 
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REBUTTAL 

The response was forwarded by UMTA to Complainants on June 15, 
1989. Complainants then had thirty (30) days to submit a 
rebuttal. Co~plainants' rebuttal is dated July 13, 1989. 

Complainants stated that WMATA did not deny .that it used the 
services of Lakeland in providing charter bus aervice·between 
points in the District despite the fact that Lakeland holds no 
authority from the co .. ission. Coaplainanta conceded that 
.International now owns one bus capable of seating twenty-nine 
passengers. · Complainants stated that WMATA did not specifically 
deny the a~l~gation that WMATA'• contractual arrang .. ent with 
International was a shaa operation. 

First, Complainants argued that WMATA is required to exercise 
reasonable judgment to determine whether its subcontract carriers 
possess the requisite authority to provide the contracted service 
and that WMATA • s reliance on 4.9 c. F. R. Part 604.13 (e) is· · · · .. 
misplaced. Complainants stated that that provision only relates 
to the review of evidence submitted by a private bus operator in. 
response to a charter service notice published pursuant to.49 
c.F.R. Part 604.11. Complainants noted that in the "Charter · 
Service Questions and Answers," 52 Fed. Reg; 42248 at 42253 
(November 3, 1987), in the answer to a question regarding the 
grantee's responsibility to asaura.the circumstances fit the 
limited exceptions set forth in l604.9(b)(2), UMTA. stated that it 
."will allow ita ·grantees to use their reasonable, good faith. 
judgment as to whether the requirements of the regulations have 
been met. " Complainants stated that· it is rea.aonable to require 
WMATA to check the District Annual Report to ascertain whether a 
private operator can lawfully use buses between points in the 
District • 

. secondly, Complainants argued that WMATA cannot lawfully use 
subcontract carriers which are not authorized to provide the 
involved charter service. In support of this argument, 
Complainants referred to the Washington Metropolitan Area 
Transportation Regulatory Compact, Pub. L, No, 86-794, 74 Stat. 
1031 (1960). The compact is applicable · 

to the transportation for hire by any 
carrier of persons between any points 
in the Metropolitan District and to the 
persons engaged in rendering or perforaing 
such transportation service • • • . 
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supra, Article XII, Section l(a). _Section 4(a) of Article XII 
provides that no person shall engage in transportation subject to 
the Act unless there is in force a certificate issued by the 
commission. 

Lakeland Tours, Inc., Complainants argued, aay have been 
authorized by the ICC, but the ICC baa no juriactiction over 
transportation between points in the District. Thua, Coaplainants 
imply that WMATA has not aade a reasonable deteraination of the 
operating authority of ita lessee. 

Thirdly, Complainants argued that w.MATA was not providinq lawful 
charter service as a subcontractor because ita arranq .. enta with 
other entities were aerely brokerages or shaaa •. Coaplainants 
claimed that WMATA cirCWRVented the prohibitions against direct 
chartering by promoting charter business and referring it to 
entities with the-understanding that they would arrange for·WMATA 
to provide the physical transportation as a carr~er. Complainants 
cite the case of Golbal Van Lines. Inc. v. I.c.c., 691 F.2d 773 . 
(5th Cir •. 1982), fo:r the proposition that __ even though an activity 
may not be labeled "br~kering," it aay.be so i~ fact. _ 
Complainants arqued that UMTA's charter service regulations .would· 
be meaningless if the prohibitions against contracting with 
persons acting as brokers could be nullified by the broker's 
purchase of a second-hand bus for five thousand dollars. 

Finally, complainants requested UMTA to obtain from WMATA full 
information on the charter bus service provided-by WMATA as a 
subcontractor for Lakeland and International including dates on 
which such service was provided, number of buses used on each trip 
and names of the groups for· which the· chart.er service was 
performed, CQmplainants also requested UMTA to seek further 
information from WMATA regarding the charter service provided by 
WMATA between points in the District. · 

on July 27, 1989, as a supplement to its Rebuttal statement, 
Complainants provided UMTA with a copy of the Certificate of 
Public convenience and Necessity issued by the Commission granting 
authority to International to engage in charter operations 
restricted to a vehicle capacity of thirty passenger• or ~ess, and 
against transportation to and from Washington National Airport, 
Dulles International Airport and operations solely_between points 
in Virginia. 
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. DISCUSSION 

complainants confuse the leqal authority aspect of the •willinq 
and able" requirement with the requirement that in order for an· 
UMTA recipient to subcontract with a private operator, the private 
operator must either lack capacity or not have equipment · 
accessible to elderly and handicapped pers&aa. UMTA advised the 
parties in its Kay 1, 1989, letter to WKATA that the alleqation 
that WMATA rendered charter service within the District without 
authority was_outside the scope of OMTA's review since O'KTA has no 
jurisdiction over operatinq authority. Thill aspect of ~· 
complaint may, however, be cognizable by either the District or 
the Commission. Thus, Complainants allegation that Lakeland does 
not have authority fro• the co-.iasion to perfora charter service 
in the District will not be discussed further. · 

WMATA asserted that International aet the "willing and able" 
requirement_for private operators by owning twenty-four twenty 
seat vans and one twenty-nine seat paa.senqer bus.. UMTA only . 
requires that a private operator have at least one bus or van to 
be determined "willinq and able." complainants conceded that 
International had one twenty-nine seat passenger bus, but 
continued to assert, with no further·evidence, that WMATA's 
subcontracts with International were merely shams for a brokered 
arrange~ent. 

While conceding the central point; 'complainants advocated an 
increased level of scrutiny by grantees of private operators with 
whom grantees may contract for charter service. Complainants 
suggested that lanquaqe contained in "Charter Service Questions 
and Answers" ~2 ~ ~ 42248, 42253 (November 3, 1987), 
required a q~antee to use "reasonable, good faith judgment as to 
whether the requirements of the regulation have been aet." ·The· 
context in which the use of the term "reasonable, qood faith 
judgment" is used; however, is critical. UMTA's direction is that 
it will "allow" its· grantees to use "reasonable, good faith. 
judgment," but not "require" th .. to look behind a request for 
the use of their buses by a.private operator in the absence bf 
apparent fraud or falsified statement. complainants showed no 
evidence of falsifica~ion or fraud which would put.WMATA on notice 
to look behind the certifications provided by privata charter 
operators. Complainants' alleqation that WMATA's subcontract 
arranqements with International are "brokered" is not justified 
since International more than meets UMTA's minimum vehicle 
requirements arid Complainants showed no evidence of fraud. 
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Lastly, Compla.inanta a1"9Ued that evan if. neither Lakeland. nor .. 
:International·were "broker•" within the strict diltfinition of the 
term by UMTA, they should be considered as brokera because they 
are so "in fact." Complainants offered no evidence that either 
Lakeland or International were brokers "in fact." The evidence 
established that both Lakeland and International entered into 
valid subcontracting arrangeaenta_vith w.NATA. 

CONCWSION 

UMTA finds that it ia beyond the aoope of ita jurilldiction to 
consider an issue related to.tha operating authority of coapanies 
with which WMATA subcontracts OMTA vehicles for charter service. 

> 

UMTA does not require WMATA to.look behind a request for the use 
of their buses by a privata operator in the absence of. fraud or 
falsified statement. The charter service provided by WHA?:'A 
through its subcontracting arrangements with Lakeland and 
International does not constitute "brokering" and ia within UMTA's 
definition of allowable subcontract service described in the 
charter service regulation, 49-CFR. Part 604. 

complainants offered no proof that either Lakeland or 
International were brokers "in fact." The evidence established 
that both Lakeland and International entered into valid 
sub~ontracting arrangements with WMATA. 

~liz eth A. Snyder ~ 
Att~ney Advisor 

/~:-·:: ~-----;:;:--_~-
/. --;· / - - . 

.. ,..,· '··- ,/.~-
__ -<... ---~, '--" _.c\,_, . L . '(; / . . ~- ·.-· "---

Steven A. Diaz 
fief counsel 

Date. D 
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URBAN MASS TRANSPORTATION 
ADMINISTRATION 

In the Matter of: 

MEDICINE LAKE BUS COMPANY, ) 
Complainant ) 

) 
v. ) 

) 
METROPOLITAN TRANSIT COMMISSION ) 

Respondent ) 

I • Background 

MN/01-01-90 
DECISION 

On January 12, 1990, a complaint was filed with the Urban Mass 
Transportation Administration ("UMTA") on behalf of Medicine Lake 
Bus Company ("Medicine Lake"), which operates in the Minneapolis, 
Minnesota area. The complaint alleges, in brief, .that the 
Metropolitan Transit Commission ("MTC"), a recipient of UMTA 
funds, violated the private sector provisions of the Urban Mass 
Transportation Act of 1964, as amended ("UMT Act"), and the 
implementing guidance. The complaint specifically alleges that 
the MTC bid both its marginal and its fully allocated cost on a 
potential contract to provide service for the Southwest Transit 
Commission ("Southwest"), and that the MTC was awarded the 
contract on a marginal cost basis. 

According to the facts as presented by the parties, the dispute 
arose following the issuance of a request for proposals for the 
Route 53 service by Southwest in April 1989. Both Medicine Lake 
and the MTC submitted proposals. As required by UMTA guidance, 
the MTC proposal listed fully allocated costs. However, the MTC 
proposal also listed marginal costs. On August 17, 1989, the MTC 
was awarded the contract, which was executed on a'marginal cost 
basis. Medicine Lake's protest was then heard and denied by 
Southwest, the Transit Dispute Resolution Board ("TDRB"), and the 
Regional Transit Board ("RTB"), in accordance with the 
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UMTA-approved local dispute resolution process.1 

This complaint has been handled in accordance with the procedure 
used by UMTA in similar matters. The complaint was forwarded to 
the MTC for reply. The MTC then moved for dismissal of the 
complaint on the ground that Medicine Lake had raised no issues 
within UMTA's jurisdiction. UMTA denied the MTC's motion stating 
that the issues raised in Medicine Lake's complaint were ~ithin 
UMTA's jurisdiction to interpret and apply the private sector 
policy. The MTC subsequently submitted its reply on March 13 
1990. on March 23, 1990, Medicine Lake filed its rebuttal. ' 
Southwest filed two documents with UMTA. The first, dated March 
13, 1990, was a brief in opposition to Medicine Lake's appeal. 
The second, dated April 4, 1990, was a request for dismissal of 
Medicine Lake's appeal. By letter of April 25, 1990, UMTA advised 
Southwest that Southwest had not been joined as a party to these 
proceedings, and Southwest's submittals would therefore not be 
considered part of the administrative record. On April 24, 1990, 
UMTA requested from the MTC additional data on its cost for 
providing the Southwest service. This information was received on 
May 16, 1990. 

II. The Statutory Requirement 

The purpose of the UMT Act is to provide assistance for the 
development of mass transportation systems in metropolitan and 
other urban areas. 49 u.s.c. 1601. To this end, Congress has 
made available to state and local public bodies matching funds for 
the purposes of capital acquisition and construction, operating 
assistance, and planning activities in connection with mass 
transportation projects. 

In so doing, Congress has expressed its concern that such Federal 
assistance not be used without regard for the interests of 
existing mass transportation companies. At the same time, 

1UMTA Circular 7005.1, "Documentation of Private Enterprise 
Participation Required for Sections 3 and 9 Programs," December 5, 
1986, describes the complaint procedure which private operators 
may follow when they believe that a grantee's private sector 
policy is inadequate or has been improperly applied. Under this 
procedure, disputes should be resolved at the local level. The 
procedure ideally envisages a first stage of dispute.r7solution 
between the grantee and the private operator and, fa111ng 
settlement at this level, a review of the grantee's decision by 
the metropolitan planning organization (MPO) • Under the terms of 
the Circular, UMTA will entertain complaints only when a 
complainant has exhausted its local dispute resolution process. 
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however, Co:t;tgress h~s made it clea: that. decisions regarding mass 
transportatl.on serv1.ces to be prov1.ded wl.th Federal assistance 
must be made locally, as required by local needs. Hence 
Section 2 (b) of the UMT Act states that one of the Purpo~es of the 
Act is 

"(3) to provide assistance to State and local 
governments and. their instrumentalities in financing 
such systems, to be operated by public or private 
mass transportation companies as determined by local 
needs." 49 u.s.c. 1601(b) (3). (Emphasis added). 

This emphasis on local decision-making in determining how best to 
serve the transportation needs of the local area was recognized in 
Pullman v. Volpe, where the court stated: 

"The statutory scheme of UMTA emphasizes the large 
role to be played by local bodies respons i.ble for 
urban mass transit.... This reliance on the local 
or state group is consistent with the statute's 
encouragement of local responsibility in urban mass 
transportation. The statute does not promote a 
procedure which leaves . all decisions with the Secretary 
(of Transportation), but rather, emphasizes local 
solutions to problems." 337 F.Supp. 432, 438-439 
(E.D.Pa. 1970). · 

Within this framework, Congress has expressed its desire that 
private enterprise be afforded the opportunity to participate "to 
the maximum extent feasible" in the locally funded ltlass 
transportation program. Under Section 3(e) UMTA must, before 
approving a program of projects, find that such program provides 
for the maximum feasible participation of private enterprise. 
Section S(e) directs UMTA to encourage private sector 
participation in the plans and programs funded under the UMT Act. 
Finally, as a precondition to funding under Section 9 recipients 
must develop a private enterprise program in accordance with the 
procedures set out in Section 9(f). 

It is clear from this reading of the UMT Act that both local 
decision-making and private sector participation are essential to 
the statutory scheme, and that in any program of projects funded 
under the UMT Act, there must be a balancing of these two 
elements. 
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III. UMTA and Congressional Guidance concerning Private sector 
Involvement 

The above-cited provisions of the UMT Act mandate private sector 
participation as a condition for the granting of Federal D1ass 
transportation assistance. The statute does not, however, outline 
the precise standards which a grantee's private sector pr~gram 
must meet, but rather leaves these to be defined by the a~ency 
Particularly with respect to the findings to be made unde~ section 
3(e), the statute allows UMTA wide discretion.2 

In order to provide guidance for achieving compliance witt1 the 
requirements of these provisions, UMTA issued its policy 
statement, "Private Enterprise Participation in the Urban Mass 
Transportation Program," 49 Federal Register 41310, october 22 
1984. The policy statement sets forth the factors UMTA wi_ll ' 
consider in determining whether a recipient's planning pre>cess 
conforms to the private enterprise requirements of the UM~ ·Act. 
These factors include consultation with private providers in the 
local planning process, consideration of private enterpri~e in the 
development of the mass transportation program, and the e>ci!stence 
of records documenting the participatory nature of the loc:al 
planning process and the rationale used in making public/l?rivate 
service decisions. 

However, in the Conference Report Accompanying the FY 198 7 
Department of Transportation and Related Agencies Appropriations 
Bill (99th Congress, H. R. 5205) ("the 1987 Conference Report") , 
Congress expressed concern that UMTA had overstepped the 
boundaries of its discretion by conditioning certain Section 9 
grants on private sector involvement. Congress therefore inserted 
in the bill Section 327, which states that such a conditioning of 
formula grants cannot occur. At the same time, however, the 
conferees made it clear that the basic private sector provisions 
of the UMT Act were to remain unaltered. 

"Section 327 emphasizes that it is not the intent 
to supersede or override the existing statutory 
provisions relating to the private sector sections 
3(e), 8(e) and 9(f) of the Urban Mass Transportation 
Act of 1964, as amended. Nor is it the intent of the 
section to affect or limit the (UMTA) administrator's 
authority to allocate funds under the section 3 
discretionary program." 1987 Conference Report at 29. 

2In south Suburban Safeway Lines, Inc. v. City of Chicago, 416 
F.2d 535, 539 (1969), the Court noted with respect to the four 
standards to be met by applicants for assistance under Section 
3 (e), that "(e) ach standard ••• calls for an administrative decision 
which is essentiall¥ an exercise of discretion." 
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UMTA interpreted and implemented the congressiona1 guidanc~ in 
Circular 7005.1, "Documentation of Private Enterprise 
Participation in Sections 3 and 9 Programs," December 5, 1 986 
("the circular") • In the preamble to the Circular, at pag-e 2 
UMTA notes with respect to Section 327: 

"The provision ••• imposes limitations on UMTA, bu_ t 
also recognizes UMTA's ongoing statutory 
responsibilities under Section 3(e), S(e) and 
9(f) of the UMT Act. After review of the provision 
and its legislative history, UMTA interprets Sec1Cion 
327 to mean that UMTA may not: 

a. Condition a Section 9 grant on a specific 
level of private sector involvement; 

b. Establish quotas for private sector. involvemer1t; or 

c. Mandate the local decision regarding private sector 
involvement. 

This Circular imposes no such requirements." 

Instead, the Circular outlines the minimum elements that a 
grantee's private sector consultation process must containt, and 
describes the documentation required to demonstrate that ~he 
process has been followed. Among these elements is the use of 
costs in the public/private decision. See, Circular at page 5. 
The Circular explains that "'costs' means fully allocated costs 
which are attributable to the provision of the service." Id. at 
page 3. 

Finally, UMTA has enforced its private enterprise requirennents and 
has clarified and corrected problems of interpretation of private 
sector guidance through administrative decisions which ar~ issued 
following the adjudication of disputes under the complaint: process 
described at page 5 of the Circular. 

IV. Discussion 

The central issue in this matter is whether the MTC has violated 
the private sector provisions of the UMT Act and the implementing 
guidance by bidding on and entering into a contract to provide 
service for Southwest on a marginal cost basis. The comp1ainant 
points out that UMTA's decision in In the Matter of YellOl9 Cab 
co. v. JAUNT. Inc., dated June 30, 1988, specifically states that 
when an UMTA recipient bids on service requested by third parties, 
the recipient must bid its fully allocated cost if the provision 
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of the service will involve the use of UMTA assistance. s~e 
complaint at 10. The complainant argues that the requirem~nt 
that the MTC bid only its fully allocated cost necessarily impli 
that the MTC also be required to contract on a fully alloc~ted es 
cost basis. Id. at 11. The complainant requests that UMT~ find 
that according to UMTA ·policy, the MTC can contract for th~ 
Southwest service only on a fully allocated cost basis. I~. at 2 • 

In opposition to Medicine Lake's appeal, the respondent ra .:i..ses two 
main arguments. First, the respondent argues that UMTA sh~uld 
uphold the decision to award the Route 53 contract to the ~TC 
since it comports with UMTA policies. See, .. Response at 3. ' 
Second, the respondent argues that Medicine Lake's appeal s;eeks an 
exercise of power outside UMTA's authority. Id. at 26. 

UMTA will deal with these two arguments in reverse order, since 
the second one raises the threshold question of UMTA's aut~ority 
to decide this matter. 

A. UMTA's Review of This Matter is within the Scope of it1a 
Authority under the UMT Act 

The MTC argues that Medicine Lake, in seeking to impose tr.te 
private sector provisions of the UMT Act and the implementing 
guidelines in the case of the Southwest Route 53 service, is 
stretching UMTA's mandate beyond congressional intent. 

The MTC contends that by defining the precise cost terms sruiding 
each local process, UMTA seeks to exercise extra-statutor~ powers. 
This, states the MTC, would place UMTA in a position simi~ar to 
that which it occupied in Amalgamated Transit Union v. Skinner, 
_F.2d._, DK No. 89-5321 (D.C. Cir. 1990) .In that case, the MTC 
notes, the court found that UMTA had exceeded express limitations 
by imposing its will upon local entities and by conditioning 
Federal assistance on their compliance with its drug testing 
policies. 

The MTC also disputes the applicability of UMTA's decision in 
Yellow Cab v. JAUNT, VA-03/86-01 (1988) to the instant case on 
several grounds, the principal one being that in using JAlJNT to 
announce a rule on fully allocated cost, UMTA has circumvented the 
rulemaking requirement of the Administrative Procedures Act, 
5 u.s.c. §553 (APA). The MTC states that an agency's discretion 
to adopt rules through the adjudication process has been expressly 
limited by the courts, and agencies may not use adjudication as a 
means of avoiding the APA's rulemaking requirements. 
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UMTA believes that this proceeding is not the proper forum ::ear 
raising ·issues concerning its authority or the means used t~ 
formulate its private sector guidance. Under the terms of 
Circular 7005.1, UMTA is limited in these proceedings to an 
examination of whether its guidance was correctly applied. UMTA 
notes, however, that it has been given wide discretion unde~ the 
private sector provisions of the UMT Act to issue and imple3nent 
this guidance. UMTA believes that it has properly exerciseo. its 
discretion in formulating the requirement that when a recip:Lent 
bids on service requested by third parties, the recipient mL~st bid 
its fully allocated cost if the provision of that service w :ill 
involve the use of UMTA assistance. 

Moreover, UMTA notes that the imposition of this and other private 
sector requirements is not, as the MTC indicates, tantamount1C to an 
examination by UMTA of the level of private sector involvement in 
each local project. As indicated above, UMTA will not mandlate any 
local decision regarding private sector involvement. UMTA . 
requires that recipients establish and implement a private sector 
involvement process, and examines the application of this Process 
to a particular project only when there is an indication tr.tat it 
may have been improperly applied. Even in such cases, UMT~ limits 
itself to determining whether a recipient's process comport:s with 
the privatization guidelines, and leaves decisions concerning the 
level of private sector involvement in a particular project: to the 
grantee. UMTA thus believes that in issuing its private sector 
guidance, it has ensured the balancing of private enterprise 
participation and local decision-making required under the 
UMT Act. 

UMTA accordingly concludes that it is acting within the scope of 
its authority under the private sector provisions of the ~T Act 
in reviewing the MTC's compliance with these requirements i.n its 
bid on the Southwest Route 53 service. 

B. The MTC's Bid on the Southwest Route 53 Service Does Not 
comport with UMTA's Private sector Guidelines 

The MTC states, at page 17 of its Response, that this dispute is 
one of semantics, since its so-called "marginal cost" bid on the 
southwest Route 53 service meets UMTA's fully allocated cost 
requirements. Based on UMTA's accounting principles, the MTC 
maintains, its "marginal cost" proposal actually. bids full.y 
allocated costs attributable to the service, within the meaning of 
UMTA Circular 7005.1. 
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However, a verification by UMTA of cost figures for the Southwest 
service provided by the MTC, shows that this is not the case. 
Paragraph 4 of Circular 7005.1 explains that UMTA's costingr 
principles are described in its "Guidelines for Fully Alloc:::a ted 
Costs in Transit Service." This publication clearly states that 
fully allocated costs must include all costs associated with the 
provision of the specified service, including fixed and va~iable 
costs, as well as direct and shared costs. 

The MTC, on the other hand, indicates that it had excluded from 
its marginal cost bid certain fixed costs, since the Southwest 
service would account for only a small portion of the MTC' s . total 
operation, and thus would require no administrative, persor1ne1, or 
operational charges to accommodate it. According1y, the M~C 
explains, its marginal cost bid includes only costs which ~ould be 
additionally incurred as a result of the Southwest service. 

This cost presentation fails to meet UMTA's fully allocated cost 
guidelines. The first fully allocated cost component, listed on 
page 4 of the above-cited publication, is "Fixed Costs, 11 which are 
constant over very large increments of service and therefore do 
not vary with small changes in the level of transit service. 
Examples of fixed costs include most administrative labor costs, 
facility related capital costs, and materials and supplies costs 
incurred directly to support revenue services. 

The need to include costs that will be incurred whether or not the 
MTC provides the Southwest service is further underscored on page 
5 of this publication. 

"Some costs can be directly attributed to the specific 
service segment of transit service •••• Other costs, 
however, cannot be directly and exclusively attributed 
to the specific segment of service but instead are costs 
which support and are shared by the range of services 
provided by the transit operator. These costs are 
normally the fixed costs of the overall transit system. 
A fully allocated costing analysis takes both of these 
types of costs into account." 

UMTA consequently finds that the MTC's marginal cost bid for the 
southwest Route 53 service did not represent "fu~ly allocated 
costs attributable to the service" within the me.aning of Circular 
7005.1 

473 



9 

The MTC further defends· its position by stating that UMTA h~s 
never adopted any rule or policy outlawing proposals which ~eflect 
both fully allocated and marginal costs. This position 
reiterates the one taken by the TDRB, which, in its decisio~ on 
this dispute, stated that UMTA's policies were vague in thi~ 
regard, and that UMTA had never clarified its guidelines on this 
issue. In its analysis of the matter, the TDRB found that · 
Southwest's awarding· of the contract to the MTC on a marginal cost 
basis was proper, so long as the MTC's fully allocated costES were 
disclosed and considered in the bid process. According to the 
TDRB, a fully allocated cost bid is an analytical too1 that · 
enables third-party providers to make policy d.eterminations as to 
whether the "magnitude and the application of the public subsidy 
involved is appropriate under the circumstances. 11 In the TDRB, s 
view, the comparative process does not require that service 
contracts between a subsidized operator and third-party providers 
be pegged at fully allocated costs. 

UMTA strongly takes issue with this position. In elaboratiJng its 
fully allocated cost guidelines, UMTA intended that they be used 
as a practical tool for making service decisions, and not simply 
as an analytical tool for making policy determinations. UM'J:'A'!s 
purpose in establishing these guidelines was to ensure that public 
and non-profit entities fairly account for all direct and shared 
costs of capital, operations, and administration attributak>le to 
the services under consideration for competition, thereby removing 
any unfair advantage accruing from their Federal subsidy. The 
guidelines treat "public and non-profit agencies as if they were 
required to. recover their cost of production, like a private firm, 
in a competitive environment." 

It is UMTA's intent that these guidelines form the basis for the 
evaluation of the public entities' cost bids in all public/private 
competitive bid situations, and not be used on an optiona~ or 
selective basis. In UMTA's view, the bidding of both ful~y 
allocated and marginal costs provides the decision maker ~ith the 
option of which cost bid to choose. The possibility of such a 
selection would clearly undermine the effect of the fully 
allocated cost requirement, since decision makers could simply 
overlook a recipient's fully allocated cost bid whenever they 
found it advantageous or desirable. The requirement would be 
similarly undermined if recipients could contract for t~ird-party 
service at a cost which did not take their Federal subsJ.dy into 
account. UMTA believes that this would be contrary to its policy 
of ensuring the maximum feasible participation of private 
enterprise, and to the congressional directive underlying it. 
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UMTA.fully ~grees with t~e MTC that c~st is o~ly one factor to be 
cons~dered ~n the select~on of a serv~ce prov~der, and has i. n fa t 
consistently stated this position.3 However, costs are c 
undeniably an important factor, and weigh heavily in a parti. cular 
service decision. UMTA believes that compliance with its fully 
allocated cost guidelines will ensure that costs do not outw-eigh 
the other evaluation factors. 

UMTA therefore concludes that in bidding both its fully 
allocated costs and its marginal costs for the Southwest Rou1te 5 3 
service, and in contracting to provide the service on a marginal 
cost basis, the MTC acted in contravention of UMTA's private 
sector guidelines. 

However, UMTA recognizes that it had not, as the TRDB points out 
clarified its position on the issue of fully allocated and ' 
marginal cost bids, and that its failure to do so may be 
responsible for the apparent confusion on this issue which has 
resulted. Therefore, while UMTA finds that the MTC's marginal 
cost bid for the Southwest service was contrary to UMTA's 
guidelines, it will not require the MTC to cease and desist from 
providing this service. However, UMTA expects that in the future 
bids on third-party service contracts, the MTC will conform to 
UMTA's fully allocated cost guidelines as articulated.in this· 
decision. UMTA will expect to receive from the MTC within thirty 
(30) days of receipt of this decision a written confirmation that 
it will adhere to these guidelines. UMTA will approve no further 
grants for the MTC prior to receipt of this written confirmation. 

v. conclusion 

UMTA's investigation of this matter reveals that the MTC failed to 
conform to UMTA's private sector guidelines by bidding both fully 
allocated and marginal costs in a bid on the Southwest Route 53 
service, and by entering into a contract to provide this service 
on a marginal cost basis. However, UMTA recognizes that it had 
not clarified its position on this issue, and that its failure to 
do so may be responsible for the apparent confusion on this issue 
which has resulted. Accordingly, UMTA will not require that the 
MTC cease and desist from providing this service. However, in 
order to ensure future compliance with its fully allocated cost 
guidelines, UMTA will expect to receive from the MTC, within 
thirty (30) days from receipt of this decision, a written 
confirmation that it will adhere to these guidelines. UMTA will 
approve no further grants for the MTC prior to receipt of this 
written confirmation. 

3see discussion of UMTA's position on this issue in JAUNt at __ , 
page 9. 

475 



11 

476 



U.S. Department 
of Transportat_iOn 

Urban Mass 
Transportation 
Administration 

Headquarters 

30 JANUARY 1991 

CERTIFIED MAIL--RETURN RECEIPT REQUESTED 

Russell Ferdinand, President 
Syracuse & Oswego Motor Lines, Inc. 
105 Terminal Road 
P.O. Box 2667 
Syracuse, New York 13220 

u cc -: ..5 0 .. ~d".l.f"Y/. 
~::~~-U-. .c.. (!..,;;! .. w(- ... ,.~:_,A ' -·· 

.\ 

400 7th Street S.W. 
Washington. D.C. 20590 

Re: Charter Service 

Dear Mr. Ferdinand: 

This is in response to your inquiries regarding the parameters of 
the Urban Mass Transportation Administration's (UMTA) charter 
service regulation. You stated that your company, syracuse & 
Oswego Motor Lines, Inc. (S _& 0), operates a number of UMTA funded 
buses in regular line service under contract with Onondaga County. 
s & o occasionally charters buses from onandaga County and the 
Regional Transit Authority 

You noted that UMTA's charter service regulation does not appear 
to.restrict the distance UMTA funded buses can travel while in 
incidental charter service. For example, you stated that it would 
seem that an UMTA. funded bus could travel approximately 325 miles 
round trip from Syracuse to Buffalo on a Sunday when there are 
excess buses. 

In response to the questions you posed UMTA provides the following 
guidance: 

(1) Can UMTA funded buses travel outside the Metropolitan area if 
they are in incidental charter service? 
Answer: Yes, however, the service must be restricted to 
incidental charter service. The regulation defines "incidental 
charter service" as charter service which does not (1) interfere 
with or datract from the provision of the mass transportation 
service for which the equipment or facilities were funded under 
the Acts; or (2) does not shorten the mass transportation useful 
life of the equipment or.facilities. UMTA has published further 
guidance giving examples of non~incidental service including: 
"service performed during peak hours; service which does not meet 
its fully allocated cost; service being used to count toward the 
useful life of any facilities or equipment; and service provided 
in equipment that is in excess of an UMTA-approved spare ·ratio." 
52 Fed. Reg. 42248 at 42252, "Charter service Questions and 
Answers," November 3, 1987. 
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(2) If the answer to the above is yes, would there be any other 
distance rest~tions, assuming the trip meets all other-
regulations? 
Answer: No other specific distance restrictions ·are applicable. 
UMTA will evaluate inquiries based on the above quoted criteria on 
a case by case basis. 

(3) Would there be any difference in regulation, as it regards 
this issue, between this Company operating an out of area trip and 
the Regional Transportation Authority operating a similar trip? 
Answer: As noted above, distance is not a criteria for · 
determining whether a charter trip meets UMTA's definition of 
"incidental charter service." The Regional Transit Authority must 
comply with the regulations to the same extent as any other UMTA 
recipient. It· is important to note, however, that from your 
description S & o is operating in two different ~vles: first, 
under its contract with Onondaga County, s & o is acting for and 
on behalf of an UMTA recipient; second, s & o is a private charter 
operator. When S & o desires to operate a charter trip using UMTA 
funded equipment from Onondaga County, S & o must distinguish 
between these two roles to meet the requirements of·the 
regulation. 

For example, as operator of the onondaga county line s & o may not 
operate charter service unless (l) there are no willing and able 
private charter operators; (2) it has obtained a "hardship" 
exception from UMTA; . ( 3) it has obtained a "special exception" 
exception from·UMTA; or (4) it contracts with a government entity 
or private non-profit organization exempt from taxation under 
subsection SOl(c) of the Internal Revenue Code, under certain 
conditions. In order for S & o, in its role as private charter 
operator, to lease equipment from Onondaga County, S & 0 must have 
exceeded its capacity or be unable to provide equipment accessible 
to handicapped and elderly persons itself. 

I trust that this responds to your questions and concerns. If you 
have further questions please contact me or Rita Daquillard, the 
attorney assigned to this matter, at (202) 366-1936. 

Sincerely, 

/----~; b-~1 '-· ::> .'5 
··-- ~-Steven A. Diaz 

~- Chief counsel 

cc: Leslie Rogers, Regional Counsel 
URO-II 
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u.s. Department 
of Transportation 

Urban Mass 
Transportation 
Administration· --Jeff Hamm, General Manager 
Jefferson Transit 
1615 w. Sims Way . 

Headquarters 

7.FEBRtAAY 1991 

Port Townsend, Washington 98368 

Dear Mr. Hamm: 

400 7th Street S W, 
Washington. D.C. 20590 

This responds to your request on behalf of Jefferson Transit 
Authority (JTA) for a "hardship" exception under 49 CFR 
604.9(b) (3) which· would allow JTA to provided charter services 
within Jefferson County and the Olympic Peninsula, Washington. 

According to the information contained in your letters and from 
your conversations with Elizabeth Martineau of my staff, two 
companies, Janssen's Charters & Tours (Janssen) and Grayline of 
Seattle (Grayline), responded to JTA's public notice requesting 
willing and able private operators. JTA notified the two willing 
and able private operators in writing on March 14, 1990, of its 
intention to seek a "hardship" exception. JTA stated that neither 
of the operators responded to JTA's request to meet on April 24, 
1990, to discuss the exception request further. 

Both operators who responded are based outside of Jefferson 
County: Janssen is located one and one-half hours away and has a 
$7·5.00 deadhead fee with a minimum charge of $195.00 up to the 
first 5 hours and then $35.00 for each additional hour; Grayline 
is located two and one-half hours away, has a deadhead charge of 
$1.50 per mile and a minimum charge of $155.00 for two hours. 
These charges amount to extraordinary deadhead costs and create 
hardships for local customers. 

In light of this information, it appears that granting a 
"hardship" exception is justified. Accordingly, I hereby grant 
JTA an exception under 49 CFR 604.9(b) (3) to provide charter 
service within Jefferson county using buses and vans for twelve 
consecutive months from the date of this letter. If, at the end 
of this period, JTA wishes to continue providing charter service, 
it must submit another exception request. 

Sincerely, 

------~~~even A. Diaz 
Chief Counsel 
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The Honorable Newt Gingrich 
House of Representatives 
Washington, D.C. 20515 

Dear Mr. Gingrich: 

'1\l'R .- 5···1991 

RTG: YM)OJ-.. 
2 

Please find enclosed, a copy of the response of Elton w. Gogoli ..... VI/.J.: .... 
Jr., Managing Attorney for the Metropolitan Atlanta Rapid Trans· tm~/sla. 
Authority (MARTA) , to the recent allegation by your constituent ....... AL. . .. 
Mr. William H. Bodenhamer, that MARTA had violated the Urban Ma ~~Eu 
Transportation Administration's (UMTA) charter service regqlati~~-~~~~ 
49 CFR Part 604. In my letter of March 5, 1991, I stated that A i;M L-~ 
would advise you of the results of UMTA' s inquiry into this .... ~t.2 .. . :::g. 

matter. ..:~:~.~~···· 
Mr. Gogolin's response indicates that on the occasion in 
question, the Home Builders Convention from January 18, 1991, 
through January 21, 1991, MARTA was providing vehicles to a 
private operator which lacked the capacity, pursuant to 49 CFR 
Part 604.9(b) (2) (i). This exception allows that a recipient ma 
enter into a contract with a private operator to provide charte 
equipment to or service for the private operator, if the privat 
charter operator is requested to provide charter service that 
exceeds its capacity. It should be noted that this provision 
not require a private operator to seek vehicles from another 
private operator before requesting them from an UMTA grantee. 
Moreover, the leasing of the vehicles appears to have been 
incidental service, since it did not interfere with or detract 
from MARTA's provision of mass transit service, as the lease 
involved only 5% of MARTA's total active bus fleet. 

D 

INITIALS/ V•-'• 

DATE 

RTG. SYMBOL 
es 
INITIALS/SIG. 

DATE 

RTG.SYMBOL 

INITIALS/SIG. 

In view of the information provided by Mr. Gogolin, UMTA 
Mr. Bodenhamer's complaint on March 12, 1991. A copy ~f 

dismis ed 
UMTA I s .. ~~~E····· ...... . 

letter to Mr. Bodenhamer is enclosed. i 

I hope that this responds to your concerns with regard\t.o this 
matter. 

Enclosures 
Form DOT F 1320.65 (Rev. 5/83) 
Supersedes previous edition 

Sincerely, 

Brian W. Clymer 
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JUN 1 2 1991 

The Honorable Victor Ashe 
Mayor 
city of Knoxville 
Knoxville, Tennessee 37901 

Dear Mayor Ashe: 

Secretary Skinner has asked me to respond to your letter 

CONCURRENCES 

ATG. SYMBOL 
J).t..f::.~. 

INitiALS/SIG. 

··&~~ ... 
G, /1 

concerning the Urban Mass Transportation Administration's {UMTA ···· ·· ···· ···· 
charter regulation, 49· CFR Part 604. Specifically, you state t ~ 
under UMTA's interpretation of the regulation, a grantee may 
offer charter service to city departments in connection with 
government service, even if the service is provided free of 
charge. You ask if the administration would object to the INITIALS/SIG. 

adoption of amendments to Sections 3 {f) and 12 (c) (6} of the ................... . 
Urban Mass Transportation Act of 1964, as amended (UMT Act), wh' g'}iE 
would provide that mass transit equipment funded in part by 
Federal grants could be used for and on behalf of any level of RTG. SYMBOL 

government which contributed to its cost of acquisition, in far ........... , ..... . 
INITIALS/SIG. 

free charter service, without violating the charter rule. 

UMTA understands and appreciates the concerns expressed in your 
DATE 

letter. However, UMTA is bound by its statutory mandate to 1--Ar-o.-s-vM_e_oL-
protect the private charter industry, and to ensure that UMTA 
funded equipment is used solely for mass transit purposes. Sin 
the type of trip described in your letter meets UMTA's definiti 
of charter service, it is inconsistent with these statutory 
requirements. In order to accommodate users of charter service 
however, UMTA has allowed grantees to use both the charter noti~-o-.s-Y-Me_o_L 
process and the eight exceptions to the regulation in a manner 
which maximizes the service.they may provide. INITIAlS/SIG. 

Therefore, UMTA sees no need to change the current regulation, .. ~~;~········· 
since it believes that the rule achieves the statutory goals wh le 
being flexible enough to ensure that community needs for charte~A-TG-.s-Y-MB_o_L 
service are met. For example, UMTA has recognized that for a . 
variety of reasons, a private operator may be unwilling or unab ·~iii..:L.sis'Ki.' 
to perform certain charter trips. UMTA believes that a recipie t 
may make the "willing and able" process more effective by ··i:;;,;~:~:.~::,··· 
expanding the content of its charter notice to include inforw~ ..... -
about the types of charter trips it desires to providP ·-· 
be helpful to the private operator in deciding whetl\ 

\ 
Form DOT F 1320.65 (Rev. 5/83) 
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Thus, in addition to the information required by 49 CFR 604.11, 
i.e., days, times of day, geographic area, and category of revenue 
vehicle, a recipient may include in its charter notice 
descriptions of trip purpose, destination, or clientele to be 
served. As long as the notice does not discourage a response from 
a person who meets the criteria for a "willing and able" operator, 
a recipient has flexibility in using descriptions which allow 
private operators to decide whether they desire to perform a 
particular type of charter trip. 

In addition to this formal notice process, recipients are 
encouraged to engage private operators in a dialogue through other 
means as well, such as written communications, conferences, or 
informal meetings. A recipient may also provide in its notice a 
telephone number that a private operator may call to obtain 
further information on the proposed service. 

Furthermore, as indicated above, a recipient may perform certain 
charter trips, even though it has been determined that there are 
"willing and able" operators, when it qualifies for one of the 
exceptions of 49 CFR 604.9. For example, under 49 CFR 
604.9(b)(7), a recipient may provide direct charter service when 
there is a formal agreement to this effect between the recipient 
and the private operator. The recipient's annual public charter 
notice must have provided for this type of agreement. If it did 
not, the recipient must, before undertaking the charter trip in 
question, amend its notice to refer specifically to such an 
agreement. 

UMTA believes that the charter needs of local communities can be 
met through judicious use of the measures outlined above. Our 
legal staff is willing to assist grantees in meeting these needs 
within the confines of the current law and regulation. Although, 
as we have indicated above, UMTA sees no need to change the 
current charter law or regulation, we would be happy to review any 
legislative proposal addressing this matter. 

Sincerely, 

Brian W. Clymer 
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Wayne Cook 
General Manager 

DEC 3 0 '1991 

VIA Metropolitan Transit 
800 West Myrtle Street 
P.O. Box 12489 
san Antonio, Texas 78212 

Dear Mr. Cook: 

CONCURRENCES 

RTG.SYMBOL 

I If'' ·~-z, · ... v..v.C.."..L. .... 

INITIALS/SIG. 

DATE 

RTG.SYMBOL 

INITIALS/SIG. 

DATE 

Please find enclosed copies of letters from Senators Lloyd Bent EmG.svMeoL 

and Phil ~ramm, enclosing c::orrespondence frol!l their constituent, ...................... . 
Johnny Kel.th, of San Antonl.o, Texas. Mr. Kel.th, an employee of tNITIALs/stG. 

Kerrville Bus Company, a private transportation provider, asks 
an investigation into what he terms the "illegal operations" of 
VIA Metropolitan Transit (VIA). 

I would appreciate your providing me with a specific and detail 
response to the issues raised by Mr. Keith, including the 
following: 

INITIALS/SIG. 

DATE 

- Mr. Keith states that VIA, a federally funded system, has 
been placed in charge of a new sports dome and allows only VIA ~Rr-G.-sv_M_eo_L_ 
buses access to the facility. He indicates that this places 
private operators at a competitive disadvantage. Please explain~·iNi,:,~·CsisiG:···· 
the arrangement under which VIA is allowed to manage and control 
the sports dome, whether it restricts access to the facility by ··o'ArE ........... . 
private providers, and if so, for what reason. 

RTG. SYMBOL 

- Mr. Keith states that VIA has proposed to the City Counci ................. . 
a ground transportation ordinance which would impose fees and INITIALs/stG. 

training requirements on local charter operators, and also manda .. ~ .............. . 
inspections of their buses and maintenance facilities. Please DATE 

indicate whether VIA has proposed such an ordinance and if so, h w 
!-----

this proposal encourages private enterprise participation to the RTG?svMeoL 

maximum extent feasible, in keeping with the requirements of .U.~.~~.~ 
section 8 (o) of the Federal Transit Act of 1991. ..:WD.~.'~· .. 

- Mr. Keith complains that VIA, the local city bus system, ·~TE 
performing charter operations outside of its local service area. lg, -1 r -Of. 
If VIA is performing such charter service, please explain how it 
is able to do so, in light of the requirement of 49 CFR Part 604 
that recipients may provide charter ·service only under one the 
exceptions to the regulation, and on an incidental basis. 
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I look forward to receiving your response within thirty (30) days 
of receipt of this letter. 

Enclosure 

stncerely., 

\S l }Jlun~ 
Steven A. Diaz 
Chief Counsel . ~ . . . . . 

URBAN MASS TRANSPORTATION ADMINISTRATION 
UCC:32:R.DAGUILLARD:LD:366-1936:12-18-91 
CC:UCC-1,2,32,CHRON 
NETWORK:VIACOOK 
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U.S. Department 
of Transportation 

Federal Transit 
Administration 

Vincent H. Savill, President 
Park Trans 
100 Wales Avenue 
Avon, Massachusetts 02322 

MARCH 12, 1992 

Re: MA-BATA/91-10-01 

Dear Mr. Savill: 

400 Seventh St.. 's.w. 
Washington. D.C. 20590 

Please find enclosed a copy of the response of Charles c. 
Stevenson, Administrator of the Brockton Area Transit Authority 
(BAT), to your allegation that BAT has engaged in impermissible 
charter service. Specifically, you allege that BAT has been .. 
providing transportation services to the developmentally disabled 
clients of the Massachusetts Department of Mental Retardation 
(DMR), in violation if the Federal Transit Administration's (FTA) 
charter service regulation, 49 CFR Part 604. 

Base~ on the information in Mr. stev~nson's letter, it appears 
that the BAT is providing special charter service· exclusively for 
the elderly and handicapped. The Federal Transit Administration 
has determin-ed that this tyPe of exclusive service, even when 
provided on a demand responsive basis, is "mass transportation" 
and is not considered to be charter. See, 52 Fed. Reg. 42252 
(November 3.; 1987). Therefore, it would appear that the service 
being provided by the BAT, .in this instance, does not violate 
FTA's charter service regulation. · 

Please do not hesitate to contact us if the FTA may be of further 
assistance. 

Enclosure 

cc: Charles c. Stevenson 

teven A. Diaz 
Chief counsel 

Brockton Area Transit Authority 
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~vloo~ ~ 
~ . \orw ~ ... ~~ ~ ........... h .... ~ 
. L U>- • - ". A \; ~ INITIALSISIG. l-ll\ ~ ~~ .N: .. R:? .•....... 

MAR 2 6 1992 

The Honorable Phil Gramm 
United States Senator 
2323 Bryan Street, #1500 
Dallas, Texas 75201 

Dear Senator Gramm: 

Please find enclosed the response of Wayne M. Cook, former 
General Manager of VIA Metropolitan Transit, to allegations by 
your constituent, Johnny Keith, that VIA has engaged in "illega 
operations." Specifically, Mr. Keith, an employee of Kerrville 
Bus Company (Kerrville), has alleged that VIA has restricted 
access by private operators to a local sports dome, has propose 
local ordinance which would place onerous conditions on private 

DATE 
3-l9- 2 
ATG. SYMBOL 

... fl.f!::~ 

•• , '~ •.••••. •,. f' ' ...... •.• 

INITIALSISIG. 
........................ 

DATE 

ATG. SYMBOL 

INITIALS/SIG. 
.. ,a ....•.....•...... 

DATE 
charter operators, and has performed charter operations outside~-----
its service area. The Federal Transit Administration (FTA) ·has RTG.sYMBoL 
reviewed Mr. Keith's allegations and VIA's response, and conclu 
that none of the actions of which Mr. Keith complains constitut 
a violation of FTA requirements. 

With respect to Mr. Keith's allegations concerning the sports 
dome, VIA states that it has contracted with the City of 

DATE 

ATG. SYM~L 

San Antonio to develop and operate the facility, which was buil · ................ . 
~yiTIALSI SIG. entirely with local funds. This information has been confirmed u 

our Fort Worth Regional Office. VIA maintains that it has DATE 
encouraged the City to set aside space for charter bus parking, 
and has recommended to the City that Kerrville be represented o AT s ~ 
the task force reviewing the issue of charter bus parking. Sin eG. YM L 
no Federal funds have been used to build or operate the sports ................. . 
dOme, the iSSUe Of Charter bUS parking at the facility iS a lOC riTIALSISIG. 
one, which apparently is being appropriately handled by the loc ·~~~~ .......... . 
task force. 

VIA denies that its has proposed the ground 
ordinance referred to by Mr. Keith. Unless 
additional facts to support his allegation, 
further action on this matter. 

Form DOT F 1320.65 (Rev. 5/83) 
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Finally, VIA states that any charter operations conducted outside 
its service area have been performed under one of the exceptions 
to the FTA's charter regulation, 49 CFR Part 604, and have been 
provided on an incidental basis. since the charter regulation 
does not impose geographic restrictions on charter operations 
which are being otherwise lawfully provided, the provision of 
service by a grantee outside its service area does not constitute 
a violation of the regulation. Accordingly, the FTA can take no 
action against VIA on the basis of this allegation. 

I trust that this responds to your inquiry. 

Sincerely, 

fl 
Brian w. Clymer 

Enclosure 

cc: washington Office 

FEDERAL TRANSIT ADMINISTRATION 
TCC:32:R.DAGUILLARD:LD:366-1936:3-5-92 
CC:TCC-1,2,32,CHRON, TES 
NETWORK:PHIL 
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SUMMARY 

BEFORE THE FEDERAL TRANSIT ADMINISTRATION 

In the Matter of 

ANNETT BUS LINES, 
Complainant 

versus 

CITY O.F TALLAHASSEE, 

. . . . 

. . 
Respondent : 

No. FL-TALTRAN/90-02-01 

Annett Bus Lines (Annett), a private bus operator, complains to 
the Federal Transit Administration (FTA) alleging that the City of 
Tallahassee, Florida (TALTRAN) provides impermissible charter 
service to the campus of Florida State University (FSU) using PTA
funded equipment and facilities. FTA concludes that the service 
being provided on the FSU campus is mass transportation, and that 
TALTRAN has not violated the Charter Service Regulation, 49 
C.F.R. 604 (Regulation). 

BACKGROUND 

Annett alleges that TALTRAN, a public transit provider and 
recipient of FTA financial assistance, provides charter bus 
service to the FSU campus despite an awareness that Annett was 
willing and able to provide such service. Under the Regulation a 
recipient is prohibited from providing qharter service using PTA
funded facilities and equipment when there is a private operator 
willing and able to provide the service unless it comes under one 
of the express exceptions to the-rule. TALTRAN claims that the 
service it· provides to the FSU campus constitutes mass _ 
transportation, and not impermissible charter service, under the 
Regulation. 1 

1 After Annett filed its rebuttal statement, TALTRAN submitted a 
response to the rebuttal. Annett, in turn, submitted a response 
to TALTRAN's response. Because the complaint procedure defined in 
the Regulation (49 C.F.R. 604.15) does not provide for the filing 
of documents beyond the rebuttal statement, neither response has 
been considered. 
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TALTRAN has provided bus service on the FSU campus since 
August 16, 1989. But, on August 15, 1990, TALTRAN began providing 
service to FSU under a new Service Agreement (the Agreement) which 
gave TALTRAN control over routes, schedules, and publicity for the 
service. The issue presented is whether service under the new 
Agreement constitutes mass transportation or charter service. 

DISCUSSION 

Annett alleges that the bus service provided to the FSU campus 
under the Agreement is charter service and therefore in violation 
of 49 C.F.R. 604.9(a). The rule defines "charter service" as "bus 
or van transportation of a group of persons traveling pursuant 
to a single purpose, under a single contract, at a fixed charge 
for the service or vehicle. Charter passengers acquire exclusive 
use of the vehicle or service and control the itinerary." 
49 C.F.R. 604.5(e). 

TALTRAN contends that the service it provides under the Agreement 
is mass transportation. As described in the preamble to the 
Regulation, 52 Fed. Reg. 11916 (1987), (Preamble), "mass 
transportation" is "service which is under the control of the FTA 
grant recipient; it also benefits the public at large and is open 
to the public - anyone wishing to use the service is permitted to 
do so." 

TALTRAN asserts that it is in control of the FSU service. Under 
the Agreement between TALTRAN and FSU, TALTRAN alone has the right 
to schedule service. Service level and route adjustments are 
within the sole discretion of TALTRAN, including the reduction, 
addition, or complete curtailment of service. In addition, the 
FSU service benefits the public at large: the service is 
available to the public, there are several transfer points on the 
routes in question to other routes on the TALTRAN system; and the 
routes are advertised on the generally published schedule. .2 
While FSU students, faculty, and staff benefit most from the 
service, it is not provided for their exclusive use •. Anyone 
wishing to tr.avel on the FSU campus or to any of its facilities 
may use these bus routes. Finally, although the service is 
reduced during the summer months, it is operated on a regular, 
continuous basis in a manner similar to TALTRAN's other service. 

2 Although the routes in question are not depicted on the 
published generally schedule or on TALTRAN route maps, route 
numbers are noted prominently as are instructions on how to obtain 
additional information about the routes. 
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Annett does not dispute TALTRAN's claims of control over the 
service; it states: "where the contract places the ultimate right 
and responsibility (for controlling routes and schedules, pick up 
points, and frequency of service) is not decisive."3 
Instead, Annett contends that " ••• the crucial factual issue in 
dispute is whether patrons of the service represented by FSU -
the students, faculty, and staff of FSU -- have the exclusive use 
of the buses involved or whether the service is open to the 
general public and used by the public at large to an .extent that 
is not de minimis."4 

Annett argues that TALTRAN's service is not mass transportation 
because it is not "open door," that is, it is not used to a 
significant extent by the general public. Annett claims, based on 
its observations, that it believes TALTRAN's service has never 
been used by riders other than FSU students, faculty, and 
staff.5 

We do not agree with Annett's narrow definition of "open door" 
service. As described in the preamble, an open door service is 
one which does not exclude anyone wanting to use the service. The 
description in the preamble does not require the service actually 
to carry riders outside its target group, but merely requires that 
riders outside the target group be eligible to use the service. 
Annett alleges not that the general public is excluded from the 
service, but merely that the general public does not use the 
service, except on an incidental basis. The fact that the general 
public's use of the service is incidental or de minimis is not 
determinative. It is the general public's opportunity to use the 
service which is dispositive of the issue. 

FTA has previously held that one of the indicia of open door 
service is that the transit authority has marketed it widely. 
Blue Grass Tours and Charter y. Lexington Transit Authority, 
Memorandum of Decision dated May 17, 1988. TALTRAN 
notes the existence of the routes in question in a conspicuous 
place in its general routes and schedules brochure. While these 
routes do not appear on the route map, they are not the only 
TALTRAN routes which are not depicted. 6 Readers of the 
brochure requiring additional information about campus routes are 
provided with a telephone number and an address where additional 

3 Rebuttal Statement at 5. 
4 Rebuttal Statement at 4. 
5 TALTRAN'S complaint of May 16, 1991, at page 5. 
6 Qn. cit. 
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information, including a printed schedule, may be obtained. The 
telephone number and address to which riders are referred for 
additional information about the campus routes belong to TALTRAN: 
they are the same address and phone number to which the public is 
referred for information on all routes on the general schedule.? 
Thus, FTA finds that TALTRAN clearly has notified the general 
public that it is providing service on the FSU campus and that it 
is available to anyone wanting to use it. 

Moreover, the service provided by TALTRAN is similar to examples 
of mass transportation service which appear in the preamble. 
In one example, a human services agency contracts with an FTA 
recipient for weekly service to a shopping center for the agency's 
clients. According to the preamble, as long as the FTA recipient 
is free to accept riders who are not clients of the agency, the 
service would be mass transportation.s This example is analagous 
to the instant case. FSU has contracted for service on its campus 
and TALTRAN serves any rider on these routes, even if the rider is 
not affiliated with FSU. 

CONCLUSION 

It is FTA's view that the bus service provided by TALTRAN on the 
FSU campus is mass transportation within the meaning of the 
Regulation. The Service Agreement which became effective in 
August, 1990 has placed control over the service with TALTRAN, and 
TALTRAN .is operating the service on an open door basis, not 
restricting passengers to FSU students and staff, and publicizing 
the routes to the general public. The fact that members of the 
general public only use this service infrequently or on an 
incidental basis does not convert it to charter service. 
Accordingly, FTA finds that TALTRAN is not in violation of the 
Charter Service Regulation. 

April 28, 1992 
Date 

Approved: 

7 TALTRAN's routes and schedules brochure dated August 1990. 
8 52 Fed. Reg. 11920 
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U.S. Deportment 
of Transportation 

Federal Transit 
Administration 

Headquarters 

MAY 4, 1992 

carl F. Kiessling III, President 
Kiessling School Transportation, Inc.· 
P.O. Box 153 . 
South Walpole, Massachusetts 02071 

Re: MA-PVTA/91-10-01 

Dear Mr. Kiessling: 

400 Seventh St., S.W. 
Washington, D.C. 20590 

Please find enclosed a copy of the response of Marlene B. Connor, 
Director of Programs and Planning of the Pioneer Valley Transit 
Authority (PVTA), to your allegation that PVTA·has engaged in 
impermissible charter service. Specifically, you allege tha~ PVTA 
has been providing transportation services to the developmentally 
disabled clients of the Massachusetts Department of Mental 
Retardation (DMR),. in violation of the Federal Transit 
Administration's (FTA) charter service regulation, 49 CFR Part 
604. . 

Based on the information in Ms. Connor's letter, it appears. that 
the service provided by the PVTA'falls within the bounds of 
permissible charter service, as the PVTA-provides direct_charter 
service for state-certified human service agencies, pursuant-to 49 
CFR 604.9 (b) (S), which states that a "recipient may execute a · 
contract with a government entity or a private, non-profit exempt 
from taxation under subsection 501(c) (1), 501(c) (3), 501(c) (4), 
501(c) (l9) of the Internal Revenue Code to provide charter · 
service upon obtaining a certification from that ·entity or 
organization." Therefore, it would appear that the service being 
provided by the PVTA, in this instance, does not violate FTA's 
charter service regulation. 

Please do not hesitate to contact us if the FTA can provide you 
with further assistance. 

Enclosure 

teven A. Diaz 
Chief Counsel 
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u.s. Department 
of Transportation 

Federal Transit 
Administration 

Headquarters 

MAY 4, 1992 

John J. Belli, President & CEO 
Travel Time 
277 Newbury Street 
West Peabody, Massachusetts 01960 

Re: MA-WRTA/91-10-01 

Dear Mr. Belli: 

400 Seventh St., S.W. 
Washington, D.C. 20590 

Please find enclosed a copy of the response of Robert E. Ojala,, 
Administrator of the Worcester Regional Transit Authority (WRTA), 
to your allegation that WRTA has engaged in impermissible charter 
service. Specifically, you allege that WRTA has been providing 
transportation services to the developmentally disabled clients of 
the Massachusetts Department of Mental Retardation (DMR), in 
violation of the Federal Transit Administ·ration' s (FTA) charter 
service regulation, 49 CFR Part 604. 

Based on the information in Mr. Ojala's letter, it ·appears that 
the WRTA is providing special service exclusively for the elderly 
and handicapped. The Federal Transit Administration has 
determined that this type of exclusive service, even when provided 
on a demand responsive basis, is "mass transportation" and is not 
considered to be charter. See 52 Fed. Reg. 42252 (November 3, 
1987). Therefore, it would appear. that the service being provided 
by the WRTA, in this instance, does not violate FTA's charter 
service regulation. 

Please do not hesitate to contact us if the FTA can be of further 
assistance. 

Enclosure 

steven A. oiaz 
Chief Counsel 
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BEFORE THE FEDERAL TRANSIT ADMINISTRATION 

In the Matte~ of: 

THE AMERICA BUS ASSOCIATION, 
Complainant, 

versus 

VIA METROPOLITAN TRANSIT, 
Respondent 

} 
} 
} 
} 
} 
} 
} 

DECISION 

SUMMARY 

TX-08/89-01 

The American Bus Association (~iBA) comp"l.~ins on behalf of p,ri vate 
bus operators in San Antonio, ·Texas, a-l'i'eging that the .. Set:rl ··Ant,<;>nio 
Metropolitan Transit Authority (VIA) ··pr.Ovl~s chart'er service in 
violation of the Federal Transit Administration's (FTA) 
1 Charter Service Regulation, 49 CFR.Part 604, (Chetrter 
Reg~lation or Regulation).2 The complaint specifically alleges 
that VIA circumvents the Charter Regulation by steering charter 
business· to an entity whose relationship with VIA is essentHtlly 

1on:J).e'cember 19, 1991, the President signed·· the. Intermodal 
· surf.~o'e''· Transportation Efficiency Act of 1991 (ISTEA) •. Title 
III,· .. ·section 3004t.of ISTEA, the Federa·l Transit Act, redesignates 

:the Urban Mass Transportation Administration the "Federal Transit 
· .Adminis:trat.±on." Under Section 3003 ·of Title III, the name of the 

agency' s··:..~nabl.ing statute is. changed from the . "Urban Mass 
Transportationt'Act of 1964 11 ("the UMT Act") to· the "Federal 
Transit Act of 1991" ("theFT Act"). Consequently, all references 
in this decision to "UMTA" and the "UMT Act" mean "FTA" and the 
11 FT Act." . 

2under the charter regulation, recipients of FTA assistance ma,y 
not provide charter service when there is a private operator 
willing and able to provide the service, unless one of .the 
exceptions to the regulation applies. 
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that of a br-oker. 3 The FTA finds that VIA does channel most of 
its charter business to one private operator, in violation of the 
Charter Regulation. The FTA orders VIA to cease and desist from 
this pr~ctice immediately. 

·BACKGROUND 

On February 2, 1988, the ABA complained alleging that VIA leased 
vehicles t-o entities which were not·"private charter operators" 
within the meaning of the Charter Regulation. On November 14, 
1988, the FTA issued a cease and desist order against such 
practices (1'the Prior. Decision"). 4 The ABA now complains that 
VIA is not in compliance with the Prior Decision. 

DISCUSSION 

The ABA contends that VIA circumvents the Charter Regulation by 
steering a large volume of business to-convention Coordinators,
which owns only one or two buses and whose relationship with VIA 
is essentially that of a broker rather than that of a carrier.s 
Moreover, the ABA states that VIA engages in price discrimination 
because it gives Convention Coordinators a.substantial discount on 
vehicle-leases which is not available to other private operators. 
The ABA points out that this discount, based on the volume of 
buses that a subcontractor leases from VIA, ostensibly available 
to all. As a practical matter, however, it is granted only to 
Convention coordinators, VIA's preferred provider.6 

3. 49 u.s.c.A. § 10102(1) (west supp. 1988), defines· 
"broker" as follows: 

(1) 'broker' means a person, other than a motor carrier or an 
employee or agent of a motor carrier, that as a principal 
or agent sells, offers for sale, negotiates for, or 
holds itself out for solicitation, advertisement or 
otherwise as selling, providing, or arranging for 
transportation by motor carrier for compensation. . 

4under 49 CFR 604.9 (b) ( 2) , ·a recipient may lease vehicles to a 
private charter operator which lacks the capacity to perform a 
particl,llar charter trip. The FTA's decision found that several of 
the entities to which VIA was leasing equipment did not meet the 
definition of "private charter operator," since they owned no 
vehicles, and were not providers of transportation services. 

5complaint, p. 6. 
6complaint, p. 10. 
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VIA argues ·that the present complaint should be dismissed on res 
judicata principles; claiming that the issues presented were 
decided in the Prior Decision.? 

VIA argues that the Charter Regulation is not authorized by the FT 
Act, and should in no event be applied to the use of federally 
funded equipment or facilities authorized before the effective 
date of the regulation.s In the Prior Decisio~, the FTA 
affirmed that it is acting within its statutory authority, and 
that the Charter Regulation it not retroactive in its 
application.9 ·The FTA sees no need to· elaborate on these 
points •. 

The _doctrine of res judicata does not preclude FTA review since 
both the central legal question and the factual circumsta~ces in 
this case are clearly distinguishable trom those presented in the 
ABA' s Prior Complaint.. The main issue in that complaint was the 
leasing of vehicles to entities which owned no vehicles, and which 
were not transportation providers. To comply with the Prior 
Decision VIA has changed its leasing practices, and now leases 
only to private transportation providers which own at least one 
bus or one van.10 The issue now. before the FTA is that VIA 
circumvents the Charte?"Regulation by steering charter business to 
an entity whose relationship with VIA is essentially that of _a 
broker. 

Moreover, under VIA '_s current leasing policy as revised on 
April 1, 1990, VIA now contracts with three private operators on a 
rotating basis.11 However, documentation provided by VIA in 
response to the FTA's request indicates that one private operator, 
Convention Coordinators, was responsible for 96.6 perc~nt of al~ 
VIA's charter invoicing in the period from April 1, 1990, to 
January 31, 1991.12 __ VIA's quasi-ex~sive relationsh_!P with. this 

_ ___m:_iyste operator, ancfnot~ _ _yr~_s__f.Q.~e,;-~_prac::~.!_c_«:_'? .. ~. ~.9..:11:~~~cting 
with non-transportation ~J;_g_vig_@.~_§_,__l,_~ ___ th.~ __ s;p,b):ept. ____ Q_f .-t:.h.e p1;esent 

.:__c_o..mplafm:~---·AcccfraT-ri-gly-; -the doctrine of res judicata is not 
applicable to this matter. : 

While VIA acknowledges that it subcontracts mainly with Convention 
coordinato+s, it maintains that the charter regulation allows it 
to do so. VIA points out that the charter regulation does not 
regUlate the relationship between a grantee and a private charter 

?Response, p. 3. 
8Response, pp. 9-10. 
9prior Decision, pp. 11-13. 

10Response, p. 7. 
11Response, Exhibit 18. 
12Response, Exhibit 14. 
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operator.13 Under 49 CFR 604.9(b)(2), a grantee has the right to 
contract or refuse to contract with all, somet or none of the 
private operators seeking to lease vehicles.14 

VIA corectly notes that in the charter regulation the FTA 
intentionally does not interject itself in the relationship 
betw.een a recipient and private charter subcontractors. In 
allowing recipients wide discretion in their sub~ontracting 
arrangements, the FTA relies on the recipients' good faith and 
sound business judgment.15 The FTA has nonetheless specifically 
stated that it will not allow this exception to be abused: 

Grantees who have a roster of several private 
operators may use their discretion in determining 
which ·names to give to a member of the public who 
calls. They may give out all, some, or any one of 
the names o·f "willing and able" operators. However, 
the FTA will view any attempt on the part of a · 
recipient to establish an exclusive subcontracting or 
brokering relationship with or steer customer~ to 
one particular operator, as a contravention of the 
regulation, and will, in such cases, ·take·appropri~te 
action_.16 

In the Prior ·Decision, the FTA explained that a prohibition of 
exclusive subcontracting arrangements ensures the effectiveness of 
the charter regulation:. 

UMTA's position on this issue is based on 
its perception that a recipient could easily 
circumvent the regulation by systematically 
channelling all charter.business to operators 
with which it has established a brokering 
arrangement. su~h an ·arrangement would allow 
the r.ecipient to do indirectly what the · 
regulation prohlbits it from doing directly,_ 
namely to provide an unlimited amount of charter 
service in competition with private operators. 

13Response, p. 27. 
14Ibid. · 
15s2 Federal Register 11916, 19925 (April 13, 1987). 
1652 Federal Register 42248, 42250 (November 3, 1987). 
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It would moreover undermine one of the main 
purposes of the regulation, which is to promote 
the. health and vitality of the private charter 
industry by fostering free and open competition 
among. charter operators. UMTA believes that 
it is empowe.red . to take any measure ne.cessary to 
safeguard the effectiveness and integrity of the 
charter regulation, including imposing a prohibition 
on "steering" arrangements which would render it 
meaningless.17 . 

As indicated above, despite VIA's purported policy of rotating 
charter referrals among three private operators, Cc;mvention 
co·ordinators accounted for 96.6 percent of all VIA's charter 
invoicing during the_period· studied indicating that VIA has a 
quasi-exclusive subcontracting arrangement with Convention. 

·coordinators, in violation of the charter regulation, and in 
contravention of specific FTA guidance. 

The FTA orders VIA to cease and desist· immediately from violating 
the charter regulation by either: 1) discontinuing all charter 
service; or, 2) subcontracting on an equal basis with -all willing 
and able private charter ·operators in its ·service area. To ensure 
compliance with the terms of this order, the FTA orders VIA to 
provide a repor.t covering the period from June 1, 1992, to 
November 30, 1992, that inc.ludes a list of the private operators 
to which it has leased charter vehicles, the number of vehicles 
leas'ed to each operator, and the amounts charged by VIA to each 
operator for lease of these vehicles. VIA should submit this 
report to the FTA by December 15, 1992. If, upon review of this 
report, the FTA concludes that. VIA has failed to comply with the 
terms .of this order, it will suspend immediately all FTA 
assistance to VIA• · 

CONCLUSION 

The FTA finds that VIA has violated _the charter regulation by 
establishing an exclusive subcontracting arrangement with one 
private operator. The FTA orders VIA to cease and desist from 
this practice immediately. The FTA will monitor VIA's compliance 
with this order by reviewing VIA's charter subcontracting over a 

l7prior Decision, p. 13. 
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6-month period. If, at the end of this period., the FTA finds that 
VIA has failed to comply with this order, it will. suspend 
immediatelY .. J~ll FTA assistance to VIA. 

Dated: May 6, 1992 

Approved: 
teven A. Diaz 

Couns~l 
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u.s. Department 
of Transportation 

Federal Transit 
Administration 

Darlene A. Reipold, President 
F. M. Kuzmeskus·, Inc. 
P •. o. Box 484 
Turners Falls, MA 01376 

Dear Ms. Reipold: 

REGION I 
Connecticut. Maine. 
Massachusetts. 
New Hampshire, 
Rhode Island. Vermont 

Transporation System Center 
Kendall SQuare, 
55 Broadway 
Suite 904 
Cambridge, Massachusetts 02142 

JUN 8 1992 

Please find enclosed a copy of the response of Thomas Chilik, 
General Manager of the Greenfield Montague Transportation Area 
(GMTA), to your allegation that GMTA has engaged in impermissive 
school bus service. Specifically, you allege that GMTA has been 
providing transportation services to children enrolled in 
Headstart in violation of the Federal Transit Administration's 
(FTA) school bus regulation, 49 CFR Part 605. 

Based on the information in Mr. Chilik's letter, it appears that 
GMTA is providing charter ~ervice for pre-school children who are 
enrolled in the local Headstart program which is operated by the 
Parent Child Development Center, Greenfield, Massachusetts. This 
type of charter service falls within an exception to the charter 
service regulation at 49 CFR Section 604.9(b) (5) (ii). Therefore, 
the service provided by GMTA, in this instance, is not in 
violation of federal regulations. 

-If you have any further qu~stions, please contact Margaret Foley, 
Regional Counsel, at (617). 494-2055. 

~·\~~ 
Richard H. Doyle ~ 
Regional Administr~~r 

Enclosures: 49 CFR Part 604 
Mr. Chilik's letter of May 20, 1992 

cc: Thomas Chilik, General Manager. 
GMTA 
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u.s. Deportment 
of TransportatiOn 

Federal Transit 
Administration 

John J. Belli, President & CEO 
Travel Time 
277 Newbury street 

Headquarters 

NOVEMBER 2. 1992 

West Peabody, Massachusetts 01960 

Dear Mr. Belli: 

Re: MA-GATRTA/91~10-01 

400 Seventh St.. S .W. 
Washington, D.C. 20590 

This responds to your complaint alleging that Gre•ter Attleboro
Taunton Regional Transit Authority (GATRTA) has engaged in 
impermissible charter service. Specifically, you allege that 
GATRTA has been providing transportation services to the 
developmentally disabled clients of the Massachusetts Department 
of Mental Retardation (DMR) in violation of the Federal Trans.it 
Administration's (FTA) charter service requlation, 49 CFR Part 
604. . 

Based on the information provided regarding GATRTA's operations, I 
find that GATRTA provides special charter service exclusively for 
the elderly and persons with disabilities. Previously, the FTA 
has determined that this type of exclusive service, even when 
provided on a demand responsive basis, constitutes "mass 
transportation"; it is not charter. See, "Charter Service 
Questions and Answers," 52 ~. BG· 42248, 42252 (November 3, 
1987). Moreover, pursuant to 49 CFR 604.9(b)(S), an FTA 
"recipient may execute a contract with a government e~tity or a 
private, non-profit organization exempt from taxation under 
subsection 501(c)(1), 501(c)(3), 501(c)(4), or 501(c)(19) of the 
Internal Revenue Code to provide charter service upon obtaining a 
certification from the entity or organization." Thus, in this 
instance, I find that the service that GATRTA is providing is not 
in violation of the FTA's charter service requlation. 

Please do not hesitate to contact us if the FTA can provide you 
with further assistance. 

cc: Mr. Francis J. Gay 
Administrator, GATRTA 
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Ms ~ Lyne~t:e Wg,gner . 
Operatio~ Management Assistant· 
M1~i Valley Transit Au~hority 
GOO L.c;~ngwortli sr;reet 
~.6; Box 1~~1 ·· .· , 
Dayton, OhJ.o 45401-1301_ 

Dear Ms. Wagner: 

141003/004 
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~~~93 14:28 No.003 P.02 . 

MV~-rf 
SS East Mcnr~:~e Sue+t 
Suite 1415 
Chleaac. lllil'lols 60603 . 

. NOV 2 199l 

I am w.riting you to :respond t.c the quest:icns ra.i•ed. in ycur Oct.o
ber 15. 1992. let~er regarding the F,ederal Tranaie Admini•traticn 
(FTA} Char~er Service Regula~ion. Yo~r lecte~ inaieates that 
Miami Valley Transit Authorit.y (MV'R'rA) wishes to eng_a.ge ill ~ 
lim.;t_ed amount of c:haxoter ·a;erviee involving ita electric trolley 
buses and simulated ·litreetears. MVR'rA, · in aecordlilllce· wieh· 49 CFR. 
par~ iG04.l.l, has placed a nct::Lce in a local newspaper ind.i~kting 
ite ~asire eo .p·rovide c:ha.:r;eer. service and requestiflg comment tram 
the ~riva~e charte% operators. Your lat~e:r.iDd1catee that ·at the 
conclusion :of the public notice procaa·s there ie only one p;cr1vaee 
opera;eor vhe; has reqrieetec:i that MVR'l'A not provide the ser,ice · 
bec:auae c.hsy do n:ot see where chey will receive a. benefit. Ac
~o~ding to your letter none of the private opara:ors responding to 
t:.he notice have eit.her electrie trolley bulae or· streetcars. 

As a general rui.el a recipient ot FTA funding :may not: provide> 
charter se::vic:e. unless. certain· exceptions ae stac·ed in 49 erR pare 
o04.~ are applieable. One of these exceptions is a deter.minaeicn 
that: thllr&t ar~ no 11 tTilllng ora.J:)le" p.rivaee eharte: operatars 
capable of providini cba~~·r ~ervica .. -The :•eional behind the 
requirement to pUbl ely ·advertise a grantees desire eo prO'ri.cle · 
eha.rt:e:r setvic~ is co determine if there is any privat_e charter 
op·erator who is "will.ing and able" to p~ovid~ c::harter service. BTA 
defines Pwilling and able'' in its Charter R.eeula.tion whic:b 
states; 

Willing and Able meane having t:he.desire,-having 
~he ~hyeic&~l capability gc p;oy~sSing_the ·~a';eqories 
of reyenue YehiS:,:l;.§.s requeet:e;. and posssssing·the legal 
aut.horit:y ... ·to provide the service in t.he· area in 
-whic::h it is prop,<:)se~ to }:)e provided. (emphasis a~ed.) 

-
Saell!!d,on t.h~ info~ci.on t.hat: you have given me :t believe· chat 
MVR.TA hal9 eompliecl wi'ch the requirements of 'fTA•a :oegul_a1;ioa. You. 
may proc:eed tc." provide inl!iden.t.~ cha:oeer ae::vice gver the -~jec· 
t:ion of the single private: operator because it: is unab.l.e to quali
ty as a. wil~ing andable provider c:l\le t.o the fa.ct thai: ·ic doaa nc;~t 
own or operate electric: .trol~&2_.buse• or railca.rs.. I woula Cf!.U· 
.ticn you on t:he fadt that cht!' onlv t:voe of c:har~l!!!r a-=o.,......4,..o:o .,..,....,.,. 



12/08/00 14: 57 . '6'513 226 0510 ' 
O:UD4/9i Ttl£ 11:41 FA! l. 9:l~Jf3 3123 

RTA 
kT~ FINANe£ l>EPT. 

. AUG 24'93 

141004/004 

-.at !)!.1~ •• 
14:29 No.003 P.03 

at~etca~ is requested. If any' other._type of vehicle·ia :eque•ted 
1NR.TA would _ba requ."Ired under .F1'A '·a reg:ulaeions to refer the 
raquestcr.eo a private operator. 

I hope this information answers the questions that yog had abcut 
the eharter re~lation .. If ycY. hav~ any aclelitiana:a. queeticne, 
please feel. free to contact me. 
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.f'~ 
U.S. Department 
of Transportation 

Federal Transit 
Administration 

Headquarters 

NOVEMBER 2, 1992 

Alan F. Kiepper, President 
New York City Transit Authority 
370 Jay street · 
Brooklyn, New York 11201 

Dear Mr. Kiepper: 

TCC-3;;:;.. 

400 Seventh St., S.W. 
Washington, D.C. 20590 

The United Bus Owners of America (UBOA) has forwarded to me a copy 
of a charter service notice dated September 15, 1992, issued by 
the New York City Transit Authority (NYCTA). The notice states 
that the NYCTA will not provide any of the categories of charter 
service listed therein if a private operator indicates willingness 
to provide the service, with four exceptions: 

1. Transportation of employees for the purpose of 
attending funeral services of employees who die 
during period of active employment. 

2. Transportation required in the interest of public 
safety, as in the case of police or other public 
safety emergency needs. 

3. Transportation of juries on an on-demand basis 
through contractual arrangements with the 
Federal andjor other courts. 

4. Transportation for groups attending NYCTA 
sponsored forums and ceremonies. 

Please note that each of the above categories meets the definition 
of "charter service" set out in the FTA charter service 
regulation, at 49 CFR 604.5. Specifically, the service is by bus; 
to a defined group of people; there are no single contracts 
between the recipient and individual riders; the patrons have the 
exclusive use of the bus. Moreover, these categories are 
specifically described as charter service in the FTA's "Charter 
Service Questions and Answers," 52 Federal Register 42253 
(November 3, 1987). However, as indicated in this same document, 
the FTA will allow recipients to provide the type of service 
described in Category 2 in the case of a serious emergency, in 
which time is of the essence for transporting victims, police 
officers, or rescue workers. 
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Accordingly, the NYCTA should amend its charter service notice to 
allow private operators to indicate willingness to provide the 
four types of service referenced above, with the exception of 
Category 2 in case of serious emergency. The NYCTA should submit 
a copy of the amended notice to this office within thirty (30) 
days of receipt of this letter. 

cc: wayne Smith 
UBOA 

teven A. Diaz 
Chief Counsel 
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u.s. Department 
of Transportation 

Federal TransH 
Administration 

Richard Armour, President 
Y.C.N. Transportation 
19 Vernon Street 
Norwood, Massachusetts 02062 

Dear Mr. Armour: 

Headquarters 

ROVEKBD. 13 • 1992 

Re: HA-BATA/91-10-01 

400 Seventh St.. S w 
Washmgton. 0 C. 20590 

This responds to your request for reconsideration of the above
cited decision, which held that the service being provided by the 
Brockton Regional Transit Authority (BATA) to the Massachusetts 
Department of Mental Retardation (DMR) is not impermissible 
charter service. The ruling indicated that the service falls 
within the definition of "mass transportation" at Section 12(c) (6) 
of the Federal Transit Act, as amended (F'l' Act), which congress_ 
extended in 1968 to include special service in addition to general 
service. The two examples of special service that Congress 
provided are service exclusively for the elderly and. persons with 
disabilities, and service for workers who live in the innercity, 
but commute to a factory in the suburbs. ~, H.R. Rep. No. 1785, 
90th Cong., 2d. Sess., reprinted in 1968 u.s. Code Conq. Ad. & 
News, 2941. 

I understand from your letter of November 6, 1992, and your 
conversation of that date with Rita Daquillard of my staff, that 
you request reconsideration of this decision on the grounds 
outlined in a.letter of June 26, 1992, submitted on your behalf by 
Mr. Jonathan Haverly. In his letter, Mr. Haverly maintains that 
documents obtained from the Massach~setts Comptroller through the 
Freedom of Information Act contradict BATA's characterization of 
the service as exclusively for the elderly and persons with 
disabilities. These documents, which are attached to his letter, 
include portions of BATA's service contract with the DMR 
describing the clientele eligible to be served under the contract. 
According to Mr. Haverly, this description indicates that the 
service is not mass transportation since it is restricted to 
clients of the DMR and is not available to all elderly and persons 
with disabilities in BATA's service area.·*Mr· Haverly points out 
that under Federal Transit Administration (FTA) guidance, to 
qualify as "exclusive," service must be open to all elderly and 
persons with disabilities in a particular geographic area and not 
restricted to a particular group of elderly and persons with 
disabilities. ~, 52 Federal Register 42252, November 3, 1987. 
Mr. Haverly therefore concludes that the service is charter, and 
is being provided by BATA in violation of the FTA's charter 
regulation, 49 CFR Part 604. 

506 



The FTA finds that Mr. Haverly's conclusion is erroneous tor two 
reasons. First, the FTA considers that service is restricted to a 
particular group when it is "designed to benefit some special 
organization such as a private club." ~, 52 Federal Register 
11920, April 13, 1987. The designation by a statewide human · 
services agency of individuals as disabled and therefore eligible 
tor specialized mass transportation, does not meet this criterion. 
In fact, the FTA recognizes that recipients may delegate the 
responsibility for certifying individuals as disabled to other 
agencies, provided that such agencies administer the certification 
in an acceptable manner and allow reasonable access to the elderly 
and disabled. see, FTA circular 9060.1, pp. IX-2,3 (April 20, 
1978). The FTA notes that many recipients make extensive use.of 
both public and private social service agencies to identify 
individuals eligible for special mass transit benefits. ~. 

Second, the "DMR Service Description" dated December 26, 1991, 
submitted by Mr. Haverly, states that the "DMR service is not 
exclusive and non-DMR clients are transported with DMR clients.". 
Under FTA guidelines, the fact that service designed for the 
elderly and disabled is also open to the general public, is an 
indication that such service is mass transportation: 

[A]ssume a human services agency contracts 
with a recipient to ••• provide service for the 
agency's clients. If the service is open-door 
and the recipient can put any rider on the 
vehicle in addition to the agency's clients, 
the service would probably be mass transportation. 
52 Federal Register 11920, April 13, 1987. 

Therefore, consistent with this guidance, the F'I'A maintains that 
the service provided by BATA to the DMR is mass transportation, 
and denies your request for reversal ot its decision in 
MA-BATA/91-10-01. 

even A. Diaz 
Chief Counsel 
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BEFORE THE FEDERAL TRANSIT ADMINISTRATION 

In the matter of: 

LAS VEGAS TRANSIT SYSTEM, INC. 

v. 

REGIONAL TRANSPORTATION COMMISSION OF 
CLARK COUNTY I NEVADA 

DECISION 

SUMMARY 

NV06/92-2J.04 

Las Vegas Transit System, Inc., (LVTS) filed this complaint with 
the Federal Transit Administration (FTA) alleging that the 
Regional Transportation Commission of Clark County, Nevada (RTC) 
had failed to comply with the provisions of the Federal Transit 
Act, as amended (FT Act), and the implementing guidance 
concerning participation of private enterprise i~·the provision 
of mass transportation. LVTS asked that the FTA withhold RTC's 
grant funds for restructured mass transit service in the Las 
Vegas area. 

After a thorough review of the administrative record, the FTA 
finds that the RTC, which is also the local metropolitan planning 
organization (MPO), does not have a process for the review of 
local decisions that includes a second level of review. Und~r 
these circumstances, the lack of a two-tiered review process does 
not, however, affect the substantive rights of tne parties and 
does not constitute a fatal flaw in RTC's disposition of this 
matter. The FTA finds that the RTC provided for the 
participation of private mass transportation companies in its 
proposal for fixed route service to the maximum extent feasible. 
Accordingly, the FTA finds that the RTC did not violate the 

508 



2 

private sector provision of section 3(e) of theFT Act and the 
implementing policy. 1 

COMPLAINT 

LVTS filed this compla.int with FTA on June 12, 1992. The 
complaint alleges that RTC failed to provide for the 
participation of the private sector to the maximum extent 
feasible in its proposal for restructuring the Las Vegas Valley 
transit system. LVTS states that RTC issued a nRequest for 
Proposals" (RFP) that precluded LVTS from having an equal 
opportunity to submit a bid for fixed route service. LVTS states 
that "the [RFP] evaluation criteria imposed unreasonable 
restrictions that neither ••• LVTS nor any other local company 
could meet. "2 LVTS further claims that it objected to the RFP 
during the drafting stage, but its comments were ignored. 

According to LVTS, the RFP imposed a mandatory-requirement that 
was exclusionary and discriminatory. LVTS claims that the 
requirement called for each offeror to submit five references 
from cities where the company had previously provided mass 
transit service. LVTS claims that this requirement precluded 
consideration of companies like itself that have not provided 
services to other cities. 

Nevertheless, LVTS states that it submitteq a proposal,·entitled 
"Segmentation Plan," but the proposal was denied ··on three 
separate occasions .. LVTS claims that RTC's stated reason for the 
denials was that "[it] could not make a determination on the 

LVTS raised several other claims against RTC in its 
complaint to the FTA. Those claims involve alleged violations of 
sections 9 and 13(c) of theFT Act, and of the Common Grant Rule, 
49 CFR Part 18, the Intermodal Surface Transportation Efficiency 
Act of 1991 (ISTEA), and the President's Executive Order for 
Privatization of the Country's Infrastructure (Executive Order). 
The FTA finds that it does not have jurisdiction over LVTS' claims 
under section 9 and 13(c) of the FT Act. FTA Circular 4220.1B, 
nThird Party Contracting Guidelines," limits FTA's review of 
section 9 bid protests to claims that a grantee failed to have 
written protest procedures. Furthermore, alleged violations of 
section 13 (c) should be directed to the Secretary pf Labor. 
Finally, the FTA finds that LVTS has not articulated its claims 
under ISTEA and the Executive Order. Therefore, this decision is 
limited to an examination of the RTC' s alleged violation of section 
3(e) of theFT Act. 

2 LVTS has been the sole provider of fixed route service ~n 
Clark County, Nevada for approximately 45 years. LVTS asserts that 
RTC is restructuring the mass transit system primarily to eliminate 
LVTS from the business. 
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ability of [LVTS] to provide [the] service ..•• " 

Finally, LVTS claims that RTC did not attempt to resolve the 
dispute at the local level as .called for by FTA's policy 
guidelines. LVTS claims that the FTA's guidelines required RTC 
at least to establish an independent internal body (~., a group 
separate from that which reviewed the proposals) to handle th.is 
dispute. 

RESPONSE 

The FTA reviewed LVTS' complaint and determined that the 
allegations, if substantiated, constituted violations of the 
private sector provision of the FT Act and the implementing 
policy. The FTA forwarded LVTS' complaint to the RTC on July 7, 
1992, with 30 days to respond. 

RTC's response· is dated August 17, 1992. RTC claims that LVTS' 
complaint is totally without merit and states that the complaint 
is an attempt by LVTS to hold on to its "near monopoly position" 
in the Las Vegas Valley. RTC claims that its decision to 
restructure the mass transit service in Las Vegas Valley was 
based on the results of a local referendum. RTC states that the 
results of the referendum indicate that most transit passengers 
in the area were unsatisfied with the condition of mass transit 
service in the Las Vegas Valley. 

In response to LVTS' claim under section 3(e) that RTC did not 
provide for the maximum feasible participation of the private 
sector in its proposed restructured service, RTC claims that LVTS 
lacks standing. RTC asserts that LVTS is not a private provider 
but instead a "publicly subsidized carrier ... that has been the 
beneficiary of two types of Federal subsidies."3 

Moreover, RTC states that even if LVTS has standing under 3(e), 
its claim against RTC is not valid. RTC asserts that it has 
complied with both sections 3(e) and S(o) of theFT Act·by 
attempting competitively to procure the services of the private 
sector to operate its new fixed route system. 

According to RTC, the planning conunittee that drafted the RFP 
for the new fixed route services included an LVTS representative. 

REBUTTAL 

The FTA forwarded RTC's response to LVTS on August 21, 1992, and 

3 LVTS operates 58 vehicles, 30 of which it has acquired 
through leases with the City of Las Vegas and the RTC. These 
leases permit LVTS to use federally-funded buses in exchange for 
LVTS contributing a local matching share. 
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provided LVTS with 30 days to submit a r~buttal. LVTS's rebuttal 
is dated October 6, 199~. 

In its rebuttal, LVTS reasserts its position that "RTC has 
seriously and substantially violated the [FT Act]" by failing to 
provide for the meaningful involvement of the private sector in 
its new route services. LVTS admits that it participated in the 
RTC's planning committees; however, it claims that the 
subcommittees had no impact on the actual planning process. 

Moreover, LVTS claims that the realproblem lies in the·fact that 
the RTC is the MPO. LVTS asserts that it is unreasonable to ask 
a private operator to appeal its 3(e) complaint to the same 
entity that initially dismissed its complaint. LVTS urges the 
FTA to demand RTC develop an independent dispute mechanism to 
review initial decisions on private sector complaints. 

ANALYSIS 

The FTA developed its private enterprise policy under the 
provisions of three sections of theFT Act, namely sections 3(e), 
8(o), and 9(f). Under section 3(e) the FTA must, before 
approving a program of projects, find that such program provides 
for· 'the maximum feasible participation of private enterprise. 
Section 8(o) directs FTA recipients to encourage private sector 
participation in the plans and programs funded under the Act. 
Finally, as a prerequisite to funding under· secti~n 9, recipients 
must develop .a private enterprise program in accordance.with the 
procedures set out in section 9(f). 

In order to provide guidance in achieving compliance with these 
statutory requirements, the FTA issued its policy statement, 
"Private Enterprise Participation in the [Federal Transit] 
Program," 49 FR 41310, October 22, 1984. This policy statement 
sets forth the factors the FTA will consider in determining 
whether a recipient's planning process conforms to the private 
enterprise requirements of the FT Act. These factors include 
consultation with private providers in the local planning 
process, consideration of private enterprise in the development 
of the mass transportation program, the existence of records 
documenting the participatory nature of the local planning 
process and the rationale used in making public/private service 
decisions. 

The FTA's private sector requirements are further detailed in 
Circular 7005.1, "Documentation of Private Enterprise 
Participation Required for Sections 3 and 9 Programs," 
December 5, 1986. The Circular outlines the minimum elements a 
grantee's private sector consultation process must contain, and 
describes the documentation required to demonstrate that the 
process has been followed. 
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The Circular states that a grantee's private sector process must 
include the following elements: 

a. Notice to and early consultation with private providers in 
plans involving new or restructured service as well as the 
periodic re-examination of existing service. 

b. Periodic examination, at least every three years, of each 
route to determine if it could be more efficiently operated by a 
private enterprise. · 

c. Description of how new and restructured services will be 
evaluated to determine whether they could be more efficiently 
provided by private sector operation pursuant to a competitive 
bid process. 

d. The use of costs as a factor in the public/private decision. 

e. A'dispute resolution process which affords all interested 
parties an opportunity to object to the initial decision. FTA's 
complaint process is designed to accept appeals of this local 
dispute resolution process. 

The Circular also describes the complaint procedure which private 
operators may follow when they believe that a grantee's private 
sector policy is inadequate or has been improperly applied. 
Under this procedure, disputes should be resolved .. at the local 
level. The procedure requires dispute resolution·between the 
grantee and the private operator and, failing settlement at this 
level, a review of the grantee's decision by either a local MPO 
or the FTA. Under the terms of the Circular, the FTA will 
entertain complaints only when a complainant has exhausted its 
local dispute resolution process. 

FTA's review of the administrative record indicates that LVTS' 
complaint was originally submitted to the RTC as a bi:d protest, 
and that while the RTC reviewed and adjudicated the protest in 
accordance with its bid protest procedures, it did address the 
merits of the 3(e) complaint. In a memorandum dated January 2, 
1992~ counsel for RTC notes that LVTS included in its bid protest 
an allegation that RTC nfailed to satisfy its obligation under 
3(e) to provide for private sector participation in the project 
to the maximum extent feasible by not allowing LVTS to continue 
its existing operations.n4 The memorandum dismisses the 
allegation on the ground that RTC's new fixed· route service 
will be provided only by private operators, and that RTC 
therefore involved the private sector to the maximum extent 
feasible in the planning and provision of this service. 

4 ~ Memorandum of Clark County Regional Transportation 
Conunission, August 17, 1992 at Atta.chment J-1. 
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Therefore, FTA concludes that· RTC did in fact render an iilitial 
decision rejecting LVTS' 3(e) complaint. Based upon the 
stipulation of the parties, we find that the parties have 
exhausted the local process. 5 Thus, we reach the merits of this 
case. 

The FTA recognizes that Nevada law delegates to the RTC, among 
other duties, the authority to act as the MPO. Specifically, 
section 373.1161 of the Nevada Revised Statutes giyes the RTC the 
power to conduct studies, develop plans and conduct public 
hearings to establish short-range and regional plans for 
transportation. RTC has not submitted, however, a copy of its 
format process for the resolution of private sector complaints. 
6 Circular 7005.1 requires all recipients to develop a local 
dispute resolution process. 

The FTA's policy requiring local dispute resolution is in 
accordance with the intent of the FT Act, which is to afford 
communities maximum discretion in local decision-making. 7 The 
policy also recognizes the fact that the local decision-maker is 
most knowledgeable about the facts and events surrounding a local 
dispute, and best situated to make a determination with regard to 
them. 

Therefore, in view of the fact that RTC has not established that 
it currently has a process for review of lo.cal decisions, but is 
willing to stipulate for the purpose of this complaint that the 
local 3(e) dispute process has been exhausted, and that a delay 
in hearing this appeal might prejudice both parties, the FTA will 
decide the section 3(e) complaint on the merits 

The primary issue LVTS raises is that RTC did not provide for the 
participation of the private sector to the maximum extent 
feasible. The FTA's review of the administrative record shows 

5In Santa Barbara Transportation. Inc. v. Santa Barbara 
Metropolitan Transit District. CA-03/87-01, the FTA directed its 
grantee to refer requests for reconsideration of private sector 
decisions to the local MPO before referral to the FTA. However, in 
this case, the grantee and the MPO are the same entity. It is 
therefore not feasible to expect an independent level of.review of 
private sector decisions under this structure, and none is 
required. 

6 Although the RTC states it adopted a grievance and 
complaint procedure for dealing with transit issues, the FTA 
finds that RTC did not submit any document that substantively 
supports that contention. 

7 See sections 2(b) and 3(a) (1) of theFT Act. 
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that this argument is without merit. RTC involved private 
operators in the project's planning stage from as early as March 
1989. 

Both RTC and LVTS submitted materials that show that RTC set up a 
Transit Technical Study Committee to provide assistance in the 
restructuring of Las Vegas Valley's mass transit system. This 
committee included members of both the private and public 
sectors. The record also indicates that on June 14, 1990, RTC 
adopted the Transit Technical Study's Interim Report which 
specifically encouraged the RTC to competitively procure private 
sector services. 1 

. 

Moreover, the record details a June 13, 1991, notice of intent to 
issue a request for proposal for transit service, in addition to 
an advertisement in Passenger Transport that noted RTC's proposed 
new service. 9 In total, RTC received six proposals from the 
private sector based on these efforts. 

Based on the record, the FTA finds that the RTC did not violate 
the provision of section 3(e) requiring private sector 
involvement. RTC fully provided for private sector involvement 
through early notice and consultation with those private 
providers. 

A secondary issue raised by LVTS concerns RTC's failure to afford 
it "just and adequate compensation" under the provisions of 
section 3(e). Section 3(e) provides in pertinent part: 

No financial assistance shall be provided under this Act to 
any State or local public body ..• for the purpose ... of 
providing by contract or otherwise for the operation of mass 
transportation facilities and equipment in competition with 
or supplementary to, the service provided by an existing 
mass transportation company, unless ... (3) just and adequate 
compensation will be paid to such companies for acquisition 
of their franchises or property to the extent required by 
applicable State or local laws ••.• 

As earlier noted in FTA's letter to LVTS, dated August 20, 1991, 
section 3(e) is intended to ensure that the rights of existing 
private transit operators are protected in the event of an 
acquisition by an FTA-funded public entity. The determination, 
however, of whether an acquisition has taken place, and what 
compensation is due to affected private providers as a result of 
such acquisition, is properly made under applicable State or 

8 

9 

See RTC Memorandum, Attachment A at 5. 

See RTC Memorandum, Attachment A at 10. 
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local law. 10 Therefore, FTA will not make any findings based on 
this claim, which falls outside its jurisdiction. 

CONCLUSION 

The FTA requires that the RTC submit a copy of its local dispute 
resolution process, as required by Circular 7005.1, within 60 
days of the date of this decision. FTA also finds that RTC 
complied with the requirements of section 3(e) by providing for 
the participation of the private sector to the maximum extent 
feasible in its proposal for restructured mass transit service in 
the Las Vegas Valley. LVTS should refer its claim for 
compensation for acquisition of its property by the RTC to the 
appropriate State or local forum. 

November 25! 1992 
Date 

-----~n-.even A. Diaz·". 
Chief Counsel 

10 See South Suburban Safeway Lines. Inc. v. City of Chicago __ , . . 
et al., 416 F.2d 535 (7th Cir. 1968), and Rose C1ty Trans1t Co. v. 
City of Portland, Or. Ct. App. 525 P.2d 1325 (1974). 
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0 
us. Deportment 
of Transportation 

Urban Mass 
Transportaflon 
Administration 

Richard Armour, President 
Y.C.N. Transportation 
19 Vernon Street 
Norwood, Massachusetts 02062 

Dear Mr. Armour: 

Headquarters 

DECDIBD 2, 1992 

Re: HA·BATA/91·10·01 

400 7th Street S.W. 
Washington, D.C. 205il0 

This responds to your second request for reconsideration of the 
above-cited decision, which held that the service being provided 
by the Brockton Regional Transit Authority (BATA) to the 
Massachusett.s Department of Mental Retardation (DMR.) is not 
impe~issible charter service. My ruling of November 13, 1992, on 
your first request for reconsideration stated that the service in 
que.stion falls within the Federal Transit Administration (PTA) 
definition of special service for the elderly and persons with 
disabilities, and is therefore permissible mass transit. My 
ruling was based on two findings: 1) the service is not 
restricted to a particular group but is open to all persons 
designated by the DMR as elderly and disabled; and 2). the service 
is open door, and BATA can put any rider on the vehicles in 
addition to the agency's clients. The PTA has determined that 
service having these characteristics meets the criteria for mass 
transit set out in PTA guidance. See, 52 Federal Register 11920, 
April ·13, 1987. · 

I understand that the arguments supporting your second request are 
presented in a letter dated November 17, 1992, submitted on your 
behalf by Jonathan Haverly. Mr. Haverly terms my first finding 
"unjustifiable" and states that •should you wish to persist in 
promoting this first argument, we are fully prepared to respond.• 
Mr. Haverly notes that my second finding is based on the •oMR 
Service Description• dated December 26, 1991. Be denies that he 
submitted this document to the PTA, and claims that it'was 
submitted by BATA. In this connection, please find enclosed a 
copy of Mr. Haverly's letter to me of June 26, 1992, which, at 
page 2, references the document in question as •Attachment 3• and 
quotes from it extensively. 

Neither of the points raised by Mr. Haverly meets the standard for 
review of initial decisions set out in the PTA's charter · 
regulation, 49 CPR Part 604. Under 49 CPR 604.19(b), ~he PTA will 
take action on an appeal only if the appellant presents evidence. 
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that there are new matters of fact or points of law that were not 
available or known during the investigation of the complaint. 
Moreover, the regulation provides for only one appeal of 
decisions. Under 49 CFR 604.21, a decision on appeal is final and 
conclusive, but is subject to judicial review pursuant· to sections 
701-706 of Title 5 of the u.s. Code. 

In view of the foregoing, the PTA will entertain neither this 
nor any other request for reconsideration of its decision in · 
MA-BATA/91-10-01. 

Enclosure 
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U.S. Department 
ot Transportation 

Federal Transit 
Administration 

Debra Swetnam 
Assistant Transit Manager 
Blacksburg Transit 
300 south Main Street 
Blacksburg, Virginia 24060 

Dear Ms. Swetnam: 

Headquarters 

JANUARY 8, 1993 

400 Seventh St.. S. w. 
Washington, D.C. 20590 

This is in response to your request, on behalf of Blacksburg 
Transit, for a hardship exemption to provide charter bus service 
authorized under the Federal Transit Administration's (FTA) 
charter service regulations, 49 CFR 604.9(b) (J)(ii). Blacksburg 
Transit claims that Abbott Bus Lines, Inc. (Abbott), the only 
willing and able private operator in the service area, is located 
too far from the town of Blacksburg. FTA has granted exemptions 
from this regulation to Blacksburg Transit for calendar years 
1988, 1989, 1990, 1991, and 1992. 

FTA has reviewed the materials submitted in your letter of 
December 8, 1992, as well as that provided in your telephone 
conversation with Rita Daguillard of my staff. Under 49 CFR 
604.9(b) (ii), one of the factors that FTA may take into 
consideration in deciding whether to grant a hardship exemptions 
is the private operator's distance from the origin of the charter 
service, and the effect this distance may have on the price and 
other aspects of the service. The information you have provided 
indicates that Abbott is located 41 miles from the town of 
Blacksburg, most charter trips in Blacksburg's service are 
relatively short, and Abbott's minimum base rate and deadhead 
mileage adds approximately $200.00 to the cost of a charter trip. 
The cost of Blacksburg Transit's average charter trip is about 
$280.00. 

FTA notes that Blacksburg Transit has provided written notice to 
Abbott, as required by the charter service regulation at 49 CFR 
604.9(c)(l). FTA has received, both as part of Blacksburg 
Transit's submittals and directly from Abbott, notice of Abbott's 
objection to the granting of this hardship exemption. However, 
given the above-mentioned price difference between Blacksburg 
Transit and Abbott, and the fact that most of Blacksburg Transit's 
charter customers are nonprofit groups for whom this price 
difference would constitute a hardship, FTA believes that the 
exemption is nonetheless justified. 
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Based on the information provided in your petition, FTA has 
determined that Blacksburg Transit does qualify for an exemption 
under 49 CPR 604.9(b){3) {ii). I· am therefore granting your 
request tor an exemption. Your exemption becomes effective on the 
date of this letter, and permits Blacksburg Transit to provide 
charter service throughout its service area for up to twelve 
months. 

steven A. Diaz 
Chief Counsel 
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BEFORE THE FEDERAL TRANSIT ADMINISTRATION 

In the Matter of: 

ACADEMY BUS TOURS I INC. ) 
) 
) 
) 
) 

Complainant 

v. 

NEW JERSEY TRANSIT CORPORATION) 
Respondent ) ___________________________ ) 

No. NJ-05/92-2101 

Decision of the Office of Chief Counsel 

SUMMARY 

Academy Bus Tours, Inc. (Academy), a private carrier, filed this 
complaint, dated May 15, 1992, with a supplement to the 
complaint, dated May 26, 1992, (docketed May 27, 1992) with the 
Federal Transit Administration (FTA) . The complaint alleges that 
New Jersey Transit Corporation (NJT) failed to comply with the 
private sector p.rovisions of the Federal Transit Act, as amended 
(FT Act), 49 u.s.c. app. section 1602(e) and section 1607(e), and 
the implementing guidance concerning participation of private 
enterprise in the provision of mass transportation. 
Specifically, Academy alleges that NJT improperly used its own 
"avoidable cost" methodologyl instead of FTA's prescribed "fully 
allocated cost" methodology" to compare the costs of Academy's 

The avoidable cost methodology employed by NJT uses direct 
costs (g.g., fuel, parts, insurance), plus shared semi-fixed costs 
(g.g., garage costs, personnel and management costs) if they are 
significant, in the cost evaluation of a particular service. (New 
Jersey Transit Corporation Answer to Academy Bus Tours Complaint, 
August 6, 1992, at 19, note 11.) 

2 FTA' s fully allocated cost methodology, as described in the 
FTA' s "Fully Allocated Cost Analysis: Guidelines for Public 
Transit Providers," prepared by Price Waterhouse, April 1987, uses 
direct costs, shared semi-fixed costs, and shared fixed costs. 
Fixed costs are costs that cannot be eliminated (g.g., top 
management salaries, office building costs) ~ The purpose ot._,~J;J.e 
fully allocated cost method is to provide an accurate and equitable 
accounting of both fixed and variable costs, so that FTA recipients 
may not derive an unfair advantage from their Federal subsidies. 
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proposal for bus service against the costs presented in the 
proposal of New Jersey Transit Bus Operations (NJT Bus) . Based 
on this comparison, NJT awarded the contract to its own 
subsidiary, NJT Bus. The date of NJT's decision does not appear 
in the record before the FTA. Academy has asked the FTA to 
decide whether NJT is in violation of the provisions of FTA 
Circular 7005.1 for failing to use a "fully allocated· cost" 
methodology to compare the costs of public and private proposals. 

A threshold issue is whether the complainant exhausted local 
administrative remedies before appealing to the FTA. 3 NJT, in 
its response, dated August 6, 1992, contends that Academy did not 
file a pre-award complaint with NJT's Board, nor did it later 
avail itself of other available administrative mechanisms. 
Academy, in its rebuttal, dated October 2, 1992, argues that NJT 
does not have a local process. The FTA finds that NJT has no 
written process for the local resolution of private sector 
disputes, as required by FTA Circular 7005.1. Academy was 
therefore unable to exhaust local remedies, and the FTA takes 
jurisdiction of this matter. The FTA directs NJT to develop a 
local resolution process, and to forward it to the FTA within 
sixty (60) days. The FTA also finds that NJT's avoidable cost 
methodology is inconsistent with the FTA's fully allocated cost 
guidelines. The FTA directs NJT to develop, before submitting 
bids to provide service in competition with private operators, a 
methodology which provides an accurate accounting of both fixed 
and variable costs, irt keeping with the FTA's fully allocated 
cost methodology. 

BACKGROUND 

This dispute originated when NJT Bus and Academy competed for the 
Airlink bus route contract4 • New Jersey Transit Bus Operations 
ultimately won the contract award, but Academy claims that New 
Jersey Transit Bus Operations' successful bid was predicated 

3 According to NJT, in its response at p 2.n1, the parties are 
litigating the issue of whether NJT violated FTA's requirement by 
permitting the use of avoidable cost financing techniques for other 
routes in a New Jersey appeals court. Academy Bus Tours Inc., v. 
New Jersey Transit Cor:poration, Superior Court of New Jersey, 
Appellate Division, Nos. A-2195-90-K. Under FTA Circular 7005.1 
entitled "Documentation of Private Enterprise Participation 
Required for Sections 3 and 9 Programs, 11 December 5, 1986, 
complainants must exhaust local administrative remedies for 
resolving private sector complaints before appealing to the FTA. 

4 The Airlink bus route runs daily between Broad Street and 
Pennsylvania Train Station in and the Newark International .. Airport. 
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upon its use of an avoidable cost methodology. 5 Academy 
maintains that the use of the avoidable cost methodology is not 
only unfair, but a violation of the FTA Circular 7005.1, which 
prescribes the use of a fully allocated cost methodology. It is 
on these grounds that Academy filed its Section 3(e) complaint. 
Academy alleges it exhausted all local remedies. · 

According to NJT, Academy never exhausted its local remedies as 
outlined in the FTA Circular 7005.1. Thus, FTA should dismiss 
the matter. 

In its rebuttal; Academy asserts that no local administrative 
mechanism exists to address its 3(e) complaint, therefore its 
complaint is properly before the FTA. Further, Academy claims 
that NJT has misread the provisions of the ISTEA concerning the 
amount of discretion that should be afforded to a local transit 
agency. Academy submits that "the FTA is free to demand that 
certain minimum criteria be employed bl the grantee to determine 
exactly what satisfies 'local needs'." Finally, Academy 
reasserts its position that NJT is in violation of FTA Circular 
7005.1 based on NJT's failure to consider the fully allocated 
costs in its cost comparison of private and public proposals. 

DISCUSSION 

In its complaint, Academy raises one primary issue, whether or 
not FTA Circular 7005.1 mandates that a grantee use a fully 
allocated cost methodology when it compares the costs of private 
and public proposals. The NJT, however, raises an issue in its 
response that must be decided before the FTA can make any 
findings on Academy's complaint, namely whether or not Academy 
exhausted the local review process. 

The Circular describes the complaint procedure which private 
operators should follow when they believe that a grantee's 

5 According to Academy, NJT has allowed NJT Bus to submit bid 
proposals based on an avoidable cost methodology since November 
1990. Academy claims that this practice permits New Jersey Transit 
Bus Operations to exclude from its proposals "the shared costs of 
labor and overhead of its operation . . . when competing with 
private carriers pursuant to the grantee's. private sector 
initiative." ~,Academy Bus Tours Complaint, May 15, 1992, at 2. 
It is Academy's position that New Jersey Transit Bus Operations 
receives an unfair advantage over private carriers who include 
fully allocated cost in their proposals. 

6See, Academy Bus Tours Rebuttal to NJT's Response, October 2, 
1992, at 8. 
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private sector policy is inadequate ·or has been improperly 
applied. Under this procedure, disputes should be resolved at 
the local level. The Circular requires a process for the 
iesolution of disputes at the local level between the grantee and 
the private operator and, failing settlement at this level, a 
review of the grantee's decision by either a local Metropolitan 
Planning Organization or the FTA. Under the terms of the 
Circular, the FTA will entertain complaints only when a 
complainant has exhausted its local remedies. 

Academy contends that NJT has no local administrative process to 
hear Section 3(e) complaints. While NJT states that Academy has 
failed to exhaust local remedies, it fails to identify a specific 
dispute resolution process. The FTA has reviewed NJT.' s private 
sector involvement process, and finds that it contains no written 
procedures for the local resolution of disputes, as required by 
Paragraph S(e) of Circular 7005.1. The FTA therefore finds that 
Academy could not avail itself of local administrative remedies, 
and takes jurisdiction of this matter. 

The FTA fully allocated cost guidelines are stated and described 
in three documents. The Private Enterprise Participation in the 
Federal Transit Program (Federal Register, Volume 49,· Number 205, 
October 22, 1984) is a policy statement regarding private 
enterprise participation in programs funded by FTA. As one of 
its provisions, this guidance states that: 

When comparing the service proposals made by public and 
private entities, all the fully allocated costs of 
public and non-profit agencies should be counted. 
Subsidies provided to public carriers, including 
operating subsidies, capital grants and the use of 
public facilities should be reflected in the cost 
comparisons. 

FTA Circular 7005.1 provides guidelines for the development and 
documentation of a local process for the consideration of private 
enterprise participation and private operation of mass 
transportation. The Circular states that one of the factors to 
be included in the process is: 

d. The use of costs as a factor in the private/public 
decision. 

Costs are defined in the Circular as follows: 

"Costs" means fully allocated costs which are 
attributable to the provision of the service. The 
application of these costing principles which reflect 
generally accepted accounting principals [~] are more 
fully described in "Guidelines for Fully Allocated 
Costs in Transit Service," available from FTA. 
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The guidelines, entitled "Fully Allocated Cost Analysis: 
Guidelines for Public Providers" (April 1987), describe generally 
accepted approaches to fully allocated costing that are 
consistent with the guidance. The report defines fully allocated 
costing to include both fixed and variable costs (page 4): 

Fixed Costs, which are constant over very large 
increments of service and therefore do not vary with 
small changes in the level of transit service .. 
Examples of fixed costs include most administrative 
labor costs incurred directly to support revenue 
service. 

Variable Costs, which normally vary with the level of 
transit service provided. Variable costs include 
driver wages and vehicle fuel costs which vary directly 
with the level of service. 

The report also states that fully allocated costing requires the 
estimation of direct and shared costs (page 5): 

Direct Costs of a segment of transit service - These 
are the costs which can be associated on a one-to-one 
basis with a segment o.f transit services. At the route 
or vehicle level, for example, direct costs generally 
consist of operator, mechanic and servicer wages, 
associated fringe benefits, fuel and lubricants, tires 
and tubes, and the depreciation costs associated with 
the vehicles used to operate that service, including 
spare vehicles. 

Shared Costs of a segment of transit service - These 
are costs which cannot be associated on a one-to-one 
basis with a specific segment of transit services. The 
shared costs relevant to a single bus route or vehicle, 
for example, consists at a minimum of the costs to 
operate the facility from which the route or vehicle is 
dispatched. Shared costs must be allocated to specific 
segment of transit service in a logical manner which 
reflects the rate at which the cost is incurred to 
support the specific segment of service. [Emphasis in 
original.] 

NJT's avoidable costing approach is not consistent with the FTA's 
costing guidelines. In its Response, NJT describes the NJT 
avoidable costing approach to include: 1} all direct costs; and 
2) shared semi-fixed costs only if they are of significant scale 
to result in significant savings (footnote 11, page 19} . By 
contrast, NJT states that the fully allocated method advocated by 
Academy requires that all direct and shared costs should be 
included in the costs for evaluation. 
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In its Response, NJT goes on to state that the NJT Board 
concluded that the fully allocated approach recommended by FTA 
was inappropriate in New Jersey. The Board recommended that the 
avoidable cost approach be used (page 20) . 

Later the NJT describes its use of the avoidable cost approach. 
It states that (page_ 25}: 

... only the costs which will actually change as a 
result of the contracting out of the service must enter 
into the financial evaluation. In the Airlink RFP, it 
would be irresponsible and illogical for NJ Transit to 
assess NJ Transit's fixed and unavoidable costs to a 
small and minute bus service which utilizes only a tiny 
fraction -- four (4) buses -- of NJ Transit's fleet of 
nearly 1,880 buses. 

These statements indicate that NJT is familiar with the concepts 
involved in fully allocated and avoidable costing approaches. 
They also indicate that NJT's avoidable costing approach is not 
consistent with the FTA costing guidelines, since it takes into 
account only the variable and not the fixed costs of providing a 
particular service. 

The FTA directs NJT to develop, before submitting further bids to 
provide service in competition with private operators, a 
methodology that takes into account both variable and fixed 
costs, consistent with the FTA's fully allocated cost 
methodology. 

CONCLUSION 

The FTA determines that NJT does not have a local process for 
resolving Section 3(e) disputes, and that Academy was unable to 
avail itself of a local process. The FTA directs NJT to develop 
a local dispute resolution process, and to submit it to the FTA 
within sixty (60) days of receipt of this decision. NJT should 
also develop, before submitting further bids on transit service 
in competition with private operators, a costing methodology that 
is consistent with the FTA's fully allocated cost principles. 
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The FTA intends to monitor NJT's compliance with this decision 
before approving future grants to NJT. 

January· 19, 1993 
Date U~·!!¥ Rita Dagu~ 

Attorney Advisor 

....._ __ --'7~:-eoo:;ren A. D iaz 
Chief Counsel 
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U.S. Deportment 
of Transportat1011 

Federal Transit 
Administration 

Headquarters 

January 25, 1993 

Mr. Alan F. Kiepper 
President 
New York City Transit Authority 
370 Jay Street 
Brooklyn, New York 11201 

Dear Mr. Kiepper: 

400 Seventh St.. S.W. 
Washington. D.C. 20590 

This responds to your letter of December 24, 1992, concerning the 
annual notice of charter service recently published by the New 
York City Transit Authority (NYCTA). Your letter states that 
NYCTA is willing to amend its charter notice to remove three of 
the exceptions enumerated in an earlier letter from the Federal 
Transit Administration (FTA). You state, however, that NYCTA 
believes that the fourth exception mentioned therein, i .§.. '· .. . 
transportation of service to NYCTA-sponsored ceremonies, does not 
fall within the definition of charter service. You seek 
clarification from the FTA concerning this category of service. 

Your letter indicates that NYCTA believes that this service is 
mass transportation, since NYCTA will set the routes and schedules 
and decide which type of equipment will be used. The service 
therefore appears to have some of the characteristics of mass 
transportation as defined by the FTA at 52 Federal Register 
11920 (April 13, 1987). However, this service, as described in 
your letter, lacks other characteristics set out in this 
definition, namely that the service be designed to benefit the 
public at large, and be provided on an open door basis. Moreover, 
the service meets the FTA's definition of charter service, set out 
at 49 CFR 604.5, since it is to a defined group of people, on a 
one-time basis, with no individual contracts between the users and 
the recipient. Accordingly, the FTA finds that this fourth 
category of service is charter service, and should not be cited as 
an exception in NYCTA's annual charter notice. 

I trust that this provides the clarification you requested. 
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March 5, 1993 

stephen Anzuoni, Executive· secretary 
New England Bus Transportation Association 
464 Statler·office Building · 
20 Park Plaza 
Boston, MA 02116 

Dear Mr. Anzuoni: 

The enclosed correspondence ·from John Po~ell, General Manager of 
the Worcester Area Transportation Co., Inc. (WATC), responds to 
your allegation that the Worcester Regional Transit Authority 
(WRTA) intends to engage in impermissible charter service. 
Specifically, you claim that on March 11, 1993, the WRTA plans to 
use federally-funded buses to perform tours in connection with a 
conference sponsored by the NorthEast Transit Association (NETA). 

According to Mr. Powell, NETA asked ElderBus, a WRTA para-transit 
service· operator, to provide a vehicle on March 11 to transport 
attendees of the "Sections 16 and 18 Rural Transit Operations 
Seminar" from the Host Hotel i~ Sturbridge to th~ ElderBus 
operation in Southbridge and then on to the Worcester·Area Van 
·Express (WAVE) operation in Worcester. Essentially, the ElderBus 
will be used to transport the public transit operators on a "tour" 
of the public transit facilities. 

Based on the information contained in Mr. Powell's ~emorandum, the 
Feqeral Transit Administration (FTA) has determined that the tours 
scheduled for March 11 are promotional in nature and will s~rve to 
educate the conference ~ttendees in the area of public transit. 
Therefore,. NETA' s use of the ElderBus for the limited purpose of 
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touring the public transit operations will not violate the Charter 
Regulation, 49 CFR Part 604. 

If you have any questions, please call Margaret Foley, Regional 
Counsel, at (617} 494-2055. 

;n;\·\~ 
Richard H. Do~ o
Regional Administrator 

Enclosure 

cc: Mr~ Robert E. Ojala 
Administrator, WRTA 

Mr. John Powell 
General Manager, WATC 
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U.S. Deportment 
of Transportation 

Federal Transit 
Administration 

REGION I 
Connecticut. Maine. 
Massachusetts. 
New Hampshire. 
Rhode Island. Vermont 

Ray Penfold, General Manager 
V.I.P. Tour & Charter Bus Company 
129-137 Fox Street 
Portland, ME 04101 

Dear Mr. Penfold: 

Transporation System Cenjer 
Kendall Square. 
55 Broadway 
Suite 904 
Cambridge, Massachusetts 02142 

APR 7 1993 

The enclosed correspondence from Kenneth W. McNeill of the Maine 
Department of 'rransportation (MOOT), responds to your allegation 
concerning the Western Maine Transportation Services, Inc. (WMTS), 
also known as Pine Tree Transit. Specifically, you allege that 
WMTS, a private nonprofit organization which receives federal 
funds through MOOT, has engaged in impermissible charter service 
between The Bethel Inn, Bethel, Maine, and the Sunday River Ski 
Resort, Newry, Maine. · 

Under Section 12(c) (6) of the Federal Transit Act (Act), "mass 
transportation" is defined as service to the public on a regular 
and continuing basis. By contrast, . "charter service" usually 
involves a one-time provision of service and the user, not the 
recipient of federal funds, has control of the service. See 52 
Federal Register 11919-20 (April 13, 1.987). 

Based upon the information contained in MDOT's response, the· 
service in question appears to fall within the definition.of "mass 
transportation." First, WMTS exercised control over the service 
by setting the route and schedule and deciding what· type of. 
equipment to use. Second, the service was not restricted to 
guests of The Bethel Inn but was provided to benefit·the public
at-large and was adverstised as "open to the public" in a local 
newspaper. Third, WMTS provided the service on a regular and 
continuing basis during weekends and holidays. 

' . 
\ 

Although you tiave styled your letter as a complaint under the 
F'rA~s charter service·regulation, I note that your allegation is 
also in the nature of a private sector complaint under Section 
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3(e) of the Act. Under FTA's private sector participation 
guidelines, recipients of federal funds should consider the views 
of private providers when using FTA-funded vehicles to provide new 
or restructured transportation services. Moreover, when bidding 
in response to a request for service, the fully allocated costs of 
public and nonprofit agencies receiving federal funds should be 
disclosed. Subsidies provided to public and private nonprofit 
carriers, including operating subsidies, capital grants, and the 
use of public facilities should be reflected in the cost 
comparisons. According to Mr. McNeill, WMTS bid its fully 
allocated costs in response to The Bethel Inn's.request for 
·service betweeen the Inn and the Sunday River Ski Resort. 

In conclusion, please note that questions dealing with the 
fairness of local procedures and decisions involving private 
sector complaints should be addressed at the local level. 
Complaints which cannot be resolved at the local level should be 
resolved at the state level. If you have further questions 
involving private sector involvement in the provision of transit . 
service, I recommend that you call or write to Kenneth W. McNeill, 
Director, Highway Mass Transportation Division, MDOT, State House · 
Station 16, Augusta, ME 04333, (207) 287-3318. 

~rely, /\ ~,~~i 
Richard H. Doyle 
Regional Administ ator 

Enclosures: MDOT ltr dtd 2/19/93 
MDOT ltr dtd 3/9/93 

cc: Kenneth W. McNeill, MDOT 
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U.S. Department 
of Transportation 

Federal Transit 
Administration 

James M. Jalbert, President 
C & J Trailways 
P. 0.· Box 190 
Dover, NH- 03820 

Dear Mr. Jalbert: 

REGION I 
Connecticut. Maine. 
Massachusetts. 
New Hampshire. 
Rhode Island. Vermont 

Transporation System Cel)ler 
Kendall SQuare, 
55 Broadway 
Suite 904 
Cambridge, Massachusetts 02142 

APR 7 1993 

The enclosed cor:r:-espondence. from Joe R. Follansbee, Executive _ 
Director of the Cooperative Alliance For Seacoast Transportation 
(COAST), responds to your allegation that COAST may have engaged 
in impermissible charter service. Specifically, you allege that 
COAST provided transportation services to Pro Portsmouth for their 
Market Square Day event on June a; 1992, and to the Prescott Park 
Arts Festival on August 23, 1992. You also claim that COAST has 
bid on and.perfor.med charter service for the University of· New -
Hampshire (UNH) Alumni Center and for other organizations 
throughout the campus. ' 

Based upon the information contained in Mr. Follansbee's letter, 
. it appears that the transportation services provided on June 8 and 
August 23, 1992, did not meet the charter criteria of being 
provided under. a single contract for the exclusive use of a 
defined group of people who have authority to decide the . 
itinerary. According to Mr. Follansbee,·coAST donated its 
services during the community events for traffic mitigation 
purposes. He states that COAST exercised control over the-service 
by setting the route, rate and schedule and c;lec;:iding what type· of 
equipment to use. Moreover, the service was open to the ptibli_c 
and was not restricted to a private group. The FTA has previously 
determined that this type of service is mass transportation and 
not charter. See 52 Federal Register 11919-20 (April 13, 1987}. 

With reference to transportation services conducted at ~, 
Mr. Follansbee. notes that the charter operator on campus ·1s UNH 
Kari-Van. He .~intains that COAST has· absolutely no interface 
with UNH Kari-Van charters and emphatically denies that COAST 
conducts charter service on campus grounds. Accordingly, it 
does not ·appear that COAST is in violation of the FTA's Charter 
Service Regulation at 49 CFR Part 604. 
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In closing, I would like to take this opportunity to encourage 
both you and Mr. Follansbee to remain in close contact in order to 
enhance your opportunities, as a private operator, to participate 
in the development of new transportation services in and around 
the Portsmouth area. 

I hope this·informatio~ has been helpful. If you need any 
additional clarification or assistance, please. call Margaret 
Foley, Regional Counsel {617) 494-2055. 

sine rely, 

\ \\~! R1chard . Doyle 
Regional Administr or 

Enclosure 

cc: Mr. Joe R. Follansbee 
Executive Director, COAST 
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U.S. Department 
of Transportation 

Federal TransH 
Administration 

G. Stephen Anzuoni, Esq. 
Statler Office Building 
20 Park Plaza, Suite 464 
Boston, MA 02116 

Dear Mr. Anzuoni: 

REGION .I 
Connecticut. Maine, 
Massachusetts. 
New Hampsnire, 
Rhode Island. Vermont 

Transporation System Center 
Kendall Square, 
55 Broadway 
Suite 904 
Cambridge. Massachusetts 02142 

JUL 161993 

This responds to your letters dated May 6 and July 6, 1993, written on behalf of Gulbankian Bus 
Lines (GBL) alleging that AVCOA, a private, nonprofit organization which receives Section 9 
funds through the Worcester Regional Transit Authority·(WR'I,'A), is providing impermissible 
charter service by transporting senior citizens to various shopping centers. 

In response to your complaint, the WRTA forwarded a letter from Ms. Gail Heald, A VCOA's 
Planner for Elderly and Disabled Transportation. According to Ms. Heald, A VCOA provides 
coordinated regional transportation for the elderly/disabled residents of Southboro and five other 
WRTA member municipalities for any trip purpose, including shopping: Ms. Heald further . 
maintains that each rider pays an individual fare to receive the demand responsive/shared ride 
service. In your July 6, 1993 rebuttal to AVCOA's response, you claim that the senior citizens do 
not pay individual fares but rather, the Town ofSouthboro pays a single charge for the 
transportation service. You further argue that AVCOA ~s "providing shopping trips, every 
Thursday, for prearranged groups of senior citizens." 

Based upon the information provided regarding AVCOA's operations,. the Feqeral Transit 
Administration (FTA) has determined that AVCOA is providing special service exclusively for the 
elderly and persons with disabilities. :f»reviously, the FTA has determined that this type of . 
exclusive service, even when provided on a demand responsive basis, is "mass transportaton" not 
charter service. See, "Charter Service Questions and Answers," 52 Fed. Reg. 42248, 42252 
(Nov. 3, 1987). To qualify as "exclusive" the service in question must be open to all elderly or· 
disabled persons in a particular geographic service area and not restricted to a particular group of 
elderly or disabled persons. The FT A considers that service is restricted to a particular group 
when it is designed to benefit "some special organization such as a private club." See, 52 Fed. 
Reg. 11916, 11920 (Ap,. 13, 1987). Scheduling shopping trips for senior citizens does not meet 
this criterion ~erely because the trips are "prearranged." 

Several other characteristics of the service provided by A VCOA indicate that it is mass 
transportation rather than charter. According to Ms. Heald, A VCOA is in charge of the regional 
transportation services in question. Ms.Heald states that the riders do not exercise control over 
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the service; in fact, trips are clustered whenever possible in order to achieve greater 
operating/cost efficiencies. Furthennore, the fact that AVCOA provides the service every 
Thursday is consistent with the language at Section 12(c)(6) of the Federal Transit Act which 
defines "mass transportation" as service provided on a regular and continuing basis. Although a 
dispute exists regarding the question of whether the riders pay their fares individually or whether 
the Town ofSouthboro pays a single charge, the method of payment, by itsel( is not dispositive 
of whether a service is charter or mass transportation. Rather, in any complaint situation, FT A 
must review the service in question and determine tQ which category it most properly belongs. 
See, 52 Fed. Reg. at 11920. Accordingly, ba5ed upon a review of all the infonnation submitted, 
the FTA has determined that the service provided by A VCOA is mass transportation. · 

. . 
Since the FTA has determined that AVCOA is not in violation ofFTA'sCharter Regulation, 49 
CFR 604, your request for damages and other appropriate relief is moot. However, I will take 
this opportunity to advise you that the FTA is a grant-making agency, not a regulatory or 
enforcement agency. As such, the FTA is not empowered to award damages or assess fines. 

I trust this infonnation has been helpful. If you ~eed any additional clarification or assistance, 
please call Margaret E. Foley, Regional Counsel (617) 494-2055. 

cc: Gail Heald, Planner 

~\\0:) 
Ricbatd H. Doyle t 
Regional Administrator 

Elderly and Disabled Transportation 

Robert E. Ojala 
Administrator, WRTA 
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U.S. Department 
of Transportation 

Federal Transit 
Administration 

G. Stephen Anzuoni, Esq. 
Statler Office Building 
20 Park Plaza, Suite 464 
·Boston, MA 02116 

Dear Mr. Anzuoni:· 

REGION I 
Connecticut. Maine. 
Massachusetts. 
New Hampshire. 
Rhode Island. Vermont 

Transporation System Center 
Kendall Square. 
55 Broadway 
Suite 904 
Cambridge, Massachusetts 02142 

This responds to your request for reconsideration of my July 16, 1993, decision which held that 
AVCOA, a subrecipient of the Worcester Regional Transit Authority (WRTA), is not providing 
impermissible charter service to elderly citizens of Southboro, Massachusetts. The ruling 
indicated that the service falls within the definition of"mass transportation" at Section 12(c)(6) ·of 
the Federal Transit Act, as amended (FT Act), which Congress extended in 1968 to include 
special service in addition to general service. The two examples of special service that Congress 
provided are service exclusively for the elderly and persons with disabilities, and service for 
workers who live in the intercity, but commute to a factory in the sl.lburbs. See, H.R. Rep. No. 
1585, 90th Cong., 2d. Sess., reprinted in 1968 u.s.· code Cong. Ad. & News, 294(and 52 Fed. 
Reg. 11920, Aprill3, 1987. 

In requesting reconsideration you raise several issues. First, you allege that, if the service in 
question is mass transportation, AVCOA and the WRTA are in violation of Section 3(e) of theFT 
Act "for providing a mass transportation service that is competing with an existing private mass 
transportation company.". You further claim that the WRT A did not put the .service out to 
competitive bid. Iri response to this allegation, please note that Section 3 ( e }does not prohibit 
grantees from competing with private transportation providers, but rather, requires.that grantees 
provide for the maximum feasible participation of private enterprise. The FT A's private sector 
requirements are further detailed in "Private Enterprise Participation in the Urban Mass 
Transportation Program," 49 Fed. Reg. 41310, October 22, 1984, and FTA Circular 7005.1, 
"Documentation of Private Enterprise Participation Required for Se~ions 3 and 9 Programs, 11 

December 5, 1986 (copies attached). These documents state that interested parties may appeal to 
the FT A only after exhaustion of the local dispute resolution process, and only on proceQural 
grounds. Accordingly. if you intend to pursue a private sector complaint, you must first attempt 
to resolve the problem at the local level. 

Next, you maintain that; if the service in question is special service, A VCOA is operating in· 
violation of state law because the Massachusetts Department of Public Utilities (DPU), and not 
the WR T A, has jurisdiction over special service operating rights. In support of this contention1 • 
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you submitted a decision rendered by the DPU granting petitions filed by the Cape Cod & 
Hyannis Railroad, Inc., for a license and certificate to operate a shuttle bus service which would 
be restricted to passengers of the Railroad. According to the DPU, 11When such restrictions exist, 
the resulting service is not within the meaning of mass transportation service providing public 
general or special service on a regular and continuing basis 11as defined by theFT Act. (See DPt.J 
160 II 1602 at pages 1 0," 14-15.) Thus, the DPU's decision does not appear to be inconsistent with 
the FTA's ruling in this matter. Nevertheless, whether or not AVCOA and the WRTA are 
violating Massachusetts law is not an issue for the FTA to decide. Allegations regarding 
violations of state law should be referred to appropriate state authorities. 

Finally, you contend that material issues of fact need to be explored and request an evidentiary 
hearing with an adequate procedure for full discovery of all relevant material. The FTA's 
determination in this matter was based upon the documents submitted by A VCOA, the WRTA 
and your client, Gulbankian Bus Lines. Your July 19, 1993, request for reconsideration does not 
contain new matters of fact or relevant points oflaw that were not available or .. not known during 
the investigation of the complaint. Therefore, consistent with the July 16, 1993, decision, the 
FT A maintains that the service provided by A VCOA to the elderly residents of Southboro is mass 
transportation, and denies your request for reconsideration. If you need any additional 
clarification or assistance, please contact Margaret E. Foley, Regional Counsel (617) 494-2055. 

~\·:U 
Richard H. Doyle ~ 
·Regional Administrator 

Enclosures: 49 Fed. Reg. 41310, October. 22, 1984 
FTA Circular 7005.1, December 5, 1986 

cc: Gail Heald, Planner 
Elderly and Disabled Transportation, A VCOA 

Robert E. Ojala, Administrator 
WRTA 
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U:S;- Department· 
.of ... Transportatlon 
·Federal Transit 
~dministration.~ 

Mr. Russell J. 01 vera 
Director 
Regional Transit System 
100 S.E. lOth Avenue 
Gainesville, Florida 32602 

Dear Mr. Olvera: 

SEP I 5 1993 

400 Seventh Sl., S.W. 
Washington, D.C. 20590 

This respondb to yo-ur req-uest fox.· a temporary w-aiver of the 
Federal Transit Administration's (FTA) charter regulation, 49 CFR 
.Part .. 604. You indica-te that this request .by the Regional Transit 
System (RTS) is prompted by the failure of Breakaway Tours, Inc. 
·(Breakaway), a private carrier that has been.subcontracting RTS 
buses for charter service, to pay $14,478.00 in arrears of 
leasing charges. You seek a waiver which would allow the RTS to 
provide charter service for the University of Gainesville and 
other local customers until Breakaway has settled its past due 
account. 

Enclosed with your letter is a copy of the RTS' annual charter 
notice. Under 49 CFR 604.11, a private operator will only be 
determined willing and able if it responds to a recipient's 
notice in writing by the stated deadline. Therefore, if no 
private operator responds to the RTS' notice .in writing by its 
deadline of September 30, 1993, none may be determined "willing 
and able." Thus, pursuant to 49 CFR 604.9, the RTS may begin 
providing direct charter service on that date. 

In the meantime, assuming that the RTS is barred from providing 
direct charter service because there is currently a willing and 
able local provider, the RTS may provide charter service through 
subcontracting arrangements with a private operator that lacks 
the capacity to perform a particular charter trip. The RTS may 
subcontract with any legitimate private charter operator, not 
only with an operator that has been determined willing and able 
under the procedures of 49 CFR 604.11. FTA has defined 
"legitimate private charter operator" as the owner of at least 
one vehicle which it is licensed to operate in charter service. 
see, B&T Fuller, et al. v. VIA Metropolitan Transit Autho~ity, 
TX-02/88-01, November 18, 1988. 
' . ,.. . . 

If, as you say, Breakaway Tours owns no buses with which to 
perform local charter, work, it is not a legitimate private 
charter operator, ·and '·thus does not qualify either to lease 
vehicles from the RTS, or to be determined willing and able. 
It appears from your letter that the RTS may be able to provide 
direct charter service by September 30, 1993, or, in the 
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meantime, through subcontracting arrangements with operators 
other than Breakaway. 

If you have further questions concerning the FTA's charter 
requirements, please contact Rita.Daguillard·at 202/366-1936. 

539 

ry B. McBride 
ng Chief Counsel 



/ 

U.S. Department 
of Transportation 
Federal Transit 
Administration 

Mr. Sonny Hall 
President 
T1ansport Workers Union 

1 Greater New York 
80 West End Avenue 
New York,New York 10023 

Dear Mr. Hall: 

SEP 2.71993 
~ 

of 

pc_ J 
400 Seventh St., S.W. 
Washington, D.C. 205 

CONCURRENCFS 

INI IALS/SIG. 

···~··············· .. ··· .. 
DATE 

ATG. SYMBOL 

INITIALS/SIG. 

This responds to your letter concerning a ruling of November 2 ···················· 
1993, by then-Chief Counsel Steven A. Diaz. In this ruling, DATE 

Mr. Diaz stated that certain categories of service listed in tae~.-----
New York City Transit Authority's (NYCTA) annual charter netic ~rG.svMBoL 
including transportation for groups attending NYCTA-sponsored ...... ., ........ , .. 
forums and ceremonies, constituted charter service. Under the INITIALSJSIG. 

Federal Transit Administration (FTA) charter regulation, 49 CF 
Part 604, an FTA recipient may not provide charter service if 
there is a willing and able private operator. 

You ask that FTA confirm your understanding that Mr. Diaz' rul'ng .. ··· 
does not apply to service for the Annual Retiree Picnic for NY !ii~ALS/: 
employees. You state that NYCTA has sponsored and provided 
service for this event for the past fifteen years, but has 
recently indicated that it must discontinue doing so because t.ru:~--
service falls within one of the categories of "charter service' G.sYMBoL 

mentioned in Mr. Diaz' ruling. . .................. . 
INITIALS/ SIG. 

"Charter service" is defined at 49 CFR 604.5 as transportation .................. . 
• . 'D~ 

us1ng buses or vans, of a group of persons who, pursuant to a 
common purpose and under a single contract, have acquired 
exclusive use of the vehicle to travel together under an 
itinerary specified in advance. Bus service exclusively for t 
transportation of NYCTA employees to the Annual Retiree Picnic 
appears to meet this definition. Accordingly, if there is a 
willing and able private operator, NYCTA may provide this ser 
only under one of the exceptions to the regulation. 

One of these exceptions, 49 CFR 604.9(b) (7), allows a recipie 
to provide particular types of charter service where a formal 
agreement has been executed between the recipient and willing 
able local operators. The recipient must have referenced the 
services in question in its annual charter notice. 

ATG. SYMBOL 

ATG. SYMBOL 

INITIALS/SIG. 

a;u~········ .... · 
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It is my understanding that NYCTA has referenced service to 
transport NYCTA employee to NYCTA-sponsored events in its annual 
charter notice. NYCTA is therefore eligible for this exception. 

Please do not hesitate to contact me if I can be of further 
assistance. 

cc: Alan F. Kiepper 
President, NYCTA 
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Gregory B. McBride 
Deputy Chief Counsel 

Gregory B. McBride 
Acting Chief Counsel 



US. Department 
ot Transportation 

Federal Transit 
Administration 

October 12, 1993 

REGION VIII 
Arizona, Colorado, Montana 
Nevada, North Dakota 
South Dakota, Utah, Wyoming 

Richard c. Thomas, Public Transit Director 
City of Phoenix 
302 N. First Avenue, Suite 700 
Phoenix, AZ 85003 

Columbine Place 
216 Sixteenth Street 
Suite 650 
Denver, Colorado 80202 · 

Subject: Exception to Provide Direct Charter Service 

Dear Mr. Thomas: 

The City of Phoenix has requested an exception under 49 CFR 
Section 604.9(b) (4) to allow Phoenix Transit System (PTS) to be 
the primary provider and organizer of charter service for the 
Lions Club International annual convention to be held in Phoenix 
during July 1994. PTS has been asked by the Lions to coordinate 
the service, based on PTS' experience and type of equipment and 
operations. 

A petition for a special events exception must describe the 
event, .explain how it is special, and explain the amount of 
charter service which private charter operators·are not capable 
of providing. 49 CFR Section 604.9 (d) (2). The service to be 
provided must be incidental charter service in accordance with 49 
CFR Sections 604.5(i) and 604.9(e), that is, it must not 
interfere with or detract from mass transit operations. 

The City of Phoenix has described the extraordinary size of the 
Lions' convention and the number of buses that will be needed to 
serve the organizations' needs. Further, Phoneix has stated that 
a combination of pu~lic and private contractors will be needed to 
provide the service. Phoenix has assured FTA that any charter 
service provided by PTS will will not interfere with scheduled, 
fixed-route service. Therefore, Phoenix has met the criteria for 
a special events exception. 

Accordingly, FTA hereby grants an exception to provide charter 
service during the Lions' convention to the extent that private 
operators are not capable of providing the service. 49 CFR 
604.9(b) (4). The City shall assure that private operators are 
notified of their opportunity to participate in the service and 
are permitted to participate t~ the maximum extent feasible. 
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Thank you for submitting the request for an exception in such a 
timely fashion. Best wishes to both the Lions and the City for a 
successful convention in 1994. 

Sincerely yours, 

rt.~Mra Jr. 
Regional Administrator 
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U.S. Department 
of Transportation 

Federal Transit 
~lnlstrat~ 

Mr. R. Jeffrey Henning 
President 
VPSI, Inc. 
1220 Rankin Street 
Troy, MI 48083-6004 

Dear Mr. Henning: 

HeadQuarters 

.November 24, 1993 

400 Seventh St.. S.W 
Wash1ngton. D.C 20590 

VPSI, Inc. filed this complaint with the Federal Transit 
Administration (FTA) alleging that the Suburban Bus Division of 
the Regional Transportation Authority (PACE) had failed'to comply 
with provisions of the Federal Transit Act, as amended (FT Act), 
and implementing guidance concerning the participation of private 
enterprise in the provision of mass transportation. 
Specifically, VPSI alleges that PACE initiated a vanpooling 
service, PACE VIP Vanpool Program, without determining that such 
service is essential to its program of projects. Further, VPSI 
contends that PACE has not allowed VPSI to avail itself of the 
local dispute resolution process. VPSI asserts that its 
complaint is "against the use of federal funds to unfairly 
compete with the private sector." 

FTA concludes that PACE did undertake a. process to determine that 
it was .essential to provide subsidized vanpool services and 
provided opportunities for private carriers to participate in 
that program. FTA's review of this matter also indicates that 
PACE has a local dispute resolution process, and has followed 
this process in its handling of VPSI's complaint. FTA further 
finds that PACE's process afforded VPSI a fair opportunity to 
resolve this dispute. Accordingly, FTA finds that PACE has met 
the applicable procedural requirements. Since under FTA's 
private enterprise policy statement FTA may entertain private 
enterprise complaints only on the grounds that.a recipient has 
not established or has not followed .fair ax::td equitable procedures 
for considering private sector partlcipation in federally . 
assisted programs and resolving dis'putes, FTA will not· further 
consider this matter. · 

Complaint/Supplemental Information . 
VPSI filed its complaint with FTA on August 7, 1992~ By .letter 
dated October 7, 1992, FTA requested that VPSI submit 
additional information and documentation in,order to clarify the 
complaint. for continued processing under .'FTA Circular 7005. 1. 
When VPSI failed to respond, FTA sent·a second reque:;;t, dated 
February 19, 1993, seeking the supplemental information. VPSI 
forwarded the information on March 8! 1993. On 1~pril 15, 1993, 
FTA requested that PACE respond to the VPSI supplemental 
information. FTA received the PACE response, dated May 18, 1993, 
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~ackground 

FTA developed its private enterprise policy under sections 3(e), 
S(o), and 9(f) of theFT Act. Under section 3(e) FTA must, 
before approving a program of projects, finq that such program 
provides for the maximum feasible participation of private 
enterprise. Section S(o) directs FTA recipients to encourage 
private sector participation in the plans and programs funded 
under the FT Act. Finally, as a prerequisite to funding under 
section 9, recipients must develop a private enterprise program 
in accordance with the procedures set out in section 9(f). 

To provide guidance under these statutory requirements, FTA 
issued its policy statement, "Private Enterprise Participation in 
the [Federal Transit] Program," 49 FR 41310, October 22, 1984. 
This policy statement sets forth the factors FTA considers in 
determining whether a recipient's planning process conforms to 
the private enterprise requirements of the FT Act. These factors 
include consultation with private providers in the local planning 
process, consideration of private enterprise in the development 
of the mass transportation program, the existence of records 
documenting the participatory nature of the local planning 
process, and the rationale used in making public/private $ervice 
decisions. 

FTA Circular 7005.1 outlines the minimum elements to be included 
in a grantee's private sector consultation process: 

a. Notice to and early consultation with private providers 
in plans involving new or restructured service as well 
as the periodic re-examination of existing service. 

b. Periodic examination, at least every three years, of 
each route to determine if it could be more efficiently 
operated by a private enterprise. 

c. Description of how new and restructured services will be 
evaluated to determine whether they could be more 
effectively provided by private sector operation 
pursuant to a competitive bid process. 

d. The use of costs as a factor in the public/private 
decision. 

e. A dispute resolution process that affords all interested 
parties an opportunity to object to the initial 
decision. FTA's complaint process is designed to accept 
appeals of this local dispute resolution process. 

The Circular also describes the complaint procedure private 
operators should follow when they believe that a grantee's 
private sector policy is inadequate or has been improperly 
applied. Under this procedure disputes should be resolved at the 
local level. The procedure requires a dispute resolution process 
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between the grantee and the private operator and, failing 
settlement at this level, a review of the grantee's decision by 
either a local MPO or FTA. Under the terms of the Circular, FTA 
will entertain complaints only when a complainant has completed 
its local dispute resolution process. 

piscussion 

The policy statement provides that FTA will entertain complaints 
from private enterprise organizations only on grounds .'that (1) 
the recipient does not have a local private enterprise process 
that includes dispute resolution procedures, (2) the ~ocal 
process was not followed, or (3) the local process does not 
provide for the fair resolution of disputes. The policy 
statement also provides that FTA will not review disputes 
concerning the substance of local decisions regarding service or 
the appropriate service provider. The threshold issue in this 
matter is therefore whether PACE has met the three aforementioned 
procedural requirements. 

First, PACE clearly has a private enterprise process that 
includes dispute resolution procedures, as is evidenced by a copy 
of these procedures submitted to FTA by VPSI on June 4, 1993. 

Second, we conclude that in processing VPSI's complaint, PACE 
followed its written local procedures. The record indicates 
that on November 13, 1991, VPSI filed with PACE a complaint that 
PACE is providing subsidized vanpooling service in competition 
with similar service provided by VPSI. PACE issued an initial 
decision on December 29, 1991. on January 22, 1992, VPSI 
requested reconsideration. PACE denied the request on 
February 10, 1992. VPSI then appealed to the Chicago 
Metropolitan Planning Organization (MPO), which on July 17, 1992, 
refused to entertain the appeal on the ground that it did not 
fall within the MPO's subject matter jurisdiction. Under the 
local dispute resolution process, the MPO will only entertain 
complaints dealing with planning issues or the participation of 
the private sector in the planning and programming process. 

VPSI cites the failure of the MPO to hear its appeal as evidence 
that the local dispute resolution is flawed since it does not 
provide complainants with adequate recourse against adverse 
decisions. 

FTA guidance has never required that a local appeals process be 
part of the local dispute resolution process. While a local 
dispute resolution process may provide for local avenues of 
appeal, FTA does not require one. See, e.g., Durango 
Transportation, Inc. v. city of Durango, C0-09/85-01, 
February 24, 1987. Consequently, the absence of such a component 
does not invalidate the local process, nor is it a basis upon 
which FTA would entertain an appeal. 
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Third, FTA finds that PACE's process afforded VPSI a full and 
fair opportunity to settle its dispute. Indeed, in attempting to 
resolve this matter, PACE exceeded the requirements of its local 
written process. VPSI's own submittals indicate that between 
January 1992 and July 1992, VPSI participated in numerous 
meetings and telephone conferences with PACE officials to discuss 
and resolve issues related to its complaint. 

Moreover, in ruling on VPSI's complaint, PACE responded 
specifically and in detail to all of VPSI's allegations 
concerning the establishment of its vanpool service. PACE noted 
that the service had been competitively bid, and that VPSI not 
only was invited to submit a proposal, but also appeared at the 
pre-bid meeting. For reasons it has failed to explain, VPSI 
chose not to bid on the service. The bid was won and the service 
is now being provided by another private operator. 

PACE further noted that prior to establishing its program, PACE 
had met with representatives of VPSI to discuss PACE's interest 
in vanpooling and possible VPSI involvement. PACE also met with 
representatives of other vanpool programs across the nation to 
discuss the operational, legal and market impacts of its 
involvement. In response to VPSI's allegation that PACE's 
program duplicates VPSI's service, PACE cites several 
studies--including one by the local MPO--indicating that the 
Chicago metropolitan area could support between 1,200 and 2,000 
vanpools, only a fraction of which are currently operating in the 
region. 

Conclusion 

FTA finds that PACE has established and followed local dispute 
resolution procedures and that these procedures afforded VPSI an 
equitable opportunity to resolve this dispute. Since under the 
policy statement FTA will not review the substance of a local 
decision, FTA hereby dismisses VPSI's appeal. This decision 
constitutes FTA's final agency action in this matter. 

cc: Mr. Joseph DiJohn 
Executive Director, PACE 
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U.S. Department 
of Transportation 

Federal Transit 
Administration 

G. Stephen Anzuoni, Esq. 
Statler Office Building 
2 Park Plaza, Suite 464 
Boston, Massachusetts 02116 

Dear Mr. Anzuoni: 

Administrator 

DEC I ·JOC3 
'"'"' 

400 Seventh St., S.W. 
Washington, D.C. 20590 

This responds to your appeal on behalf of Gulbankian Bus Lines 
{GBL) of a decision by Richard H. Doyle, Regional Administrator, 
Federal Transit Administration {FTA) Region I, which held that 
the Assabet Valley Council on Aging {AVCOA), a subsidiary of the 
Worcester Regional Transit Authority (WRTA), is not providing 
impermissible charter service to elderly citizens of Southboro, 
Massachusetts. The ruling indicated that the service falls 
within the definition of "mass transportation" at section 
12(c) (6) of the Federal Transit Act, as amended (FT Act), which 
Congress extended in 1968 to include special service such as 
transportation of the elderly, in addition to general service. 

Under FTA's charter regulation, at 49 CFR 604.19, a losing party 
may appeal a decision to the FTA Administrator if it presents 
evidence that there are new facts or points of law that were not 
available or known during the investigation of the complaint. 
You indicate that there are several facts or points of law that 
were not avai.lable or known to GBL during the investigation of 
this matter. 

First, you state that FTA recently changed its procedural rules 
for the processing of charter complaints, and that GBL was 
unaware of these rules at the time it filed its complaint. 

There has been no substantive change in FTA's procedural rules 
for the processing of charter complaints. On December 1, 1992, 
under Order 1100.50, Chango: 2 ("FTJ\_ Delegations of ~.uthority"), 
responsibility for deciding complaints under 49 CFR Part 604 was 
delegated to the FTA Regional Administrators. FTA has issued a 
Federal Register notice advising of this delegation (58 FR 52684, 
October 12, 1993). The Region I Office has informed me that you 
were notified of this delegation at the time you filed your 
complaint. Indeed, your submittals in this matter are addressed 
to the Regional Administrator, and not to the FTA Chief Counsel. 
It is apparent from this documentation that you had requisite 
knowledge of FTA procedures during the investigation of your 
complaint, and that these procedures were available and known to 
you at that time. 

Second, you state that GBL was unaware of the definition of 
"special service," since this term-does not appear in 49 CFR Part 
604 or the FT Act. 
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In the preamble :to its,charter regulation (52 FR 11920, April 13 
1987), FTA discussed the definition o£ "special service." FTA ' 
noted that in 1968, Congress amended the definition of "mass 
transportation" to permit special service in addition to general 
service. One example of special service provided by Congress was 
service exclusively for elderly and handicapped persons. FTA 
stated that henceforth it would consider any exclusive service 
meeting this definition to be mass transportation. Since FTA 
published this information in the Federal Register onApril 13,. 
1987, it was available to GBL at the time of the investigation of 
this complaint. 

Third, you claim that . GBL was unaware of the e·xact nature of 
AVCOA's ser,.rice '9.t the tima.it filed its·coin~laint. You state 
that the Central Massachusetts Regional Planning Commission, 
which responded to the complaint on behalf of AVCOA, described it 
in general terms, and that GBL therefore lacks essential 
information concerning AVCOA's service. You request that AVCOA 
provide detailed responses to an extensive li"st of questions 
concerning this' service. 

My review of the record 'indicates that GBL filed submittals in 
this matter on June 14, July 6 and July 19, 1993. In none of 
these submittals did GBL request the type of detailed information 
concerning AVCOA's service that it is now seeking. Having failed 
to solicit this information during the investigation of the 
complaint, GBL may not now claim that it was unavailable at that 
time. 

Finally, you state that coincidentally, in an envelope postmarked 
August 17, 1993, you received unsolicited correspondence relating 
to a complaint against the Massachusetts Bay Transportation 
Authority (MBTA) alleging violations of the private sector 
provisions of the FT Act. This correspqndence indicates that the 
Regional Administrator had referred the complaint to the MBTA 
with a request that the MBTA respond directly to the 
·complainant '·s allegations. You state that this correspondence 
presents evidence relating directly to the Regional 
Administrator's past practice regarding the resolution of private 
sector complaints, and constitutes a new matter of fact not 
available or known during the investigation of this matter. 

FTA finds that the availability of information concerning the 
processing of private sector complaints is not germane to this 
matter, which alleges a violation of FTA's charter·service 
regulation. The Regional Administrator's practice in handling 
private sector complaints is therefore not a new matter of fact 
that justifies an appeal under 49 CFR Part 604. 
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In view of the foregoing, .r deny your request for an appeal of 
the Regional Administrator'$ decision·in this matter. 

Sincerely, 
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U.S. Department 
of Transportation 
Federal Transit 
Administration 

December 8, 1993 

G. stephen Anzuoni, Esq. 
Statler Office Building 
2 Park Plaza, suite 464 
Bo.ston, Massachusetts 02116 

Dear Mr. anzuoni: 

-400 Seventh St.. S.W. 
Washington. D.C. 20590 

In response to your correspondence of December 3, 993, concerning 
the appeal of Gulbankian Bus Line (GBL) of a decision by Richard 
H. Doyle, Regional Administrator, Federal Transit Administration 
(FTA) Region I, concerning alleged charter violations by the 
Assabet Valley Council on Aging (AVCOA), I am enclosing a copy of 
FTA's denial of this appeal. 

After reviewing the record in this matter, Gordon H. Linton, FTA 
Administration, concluded that GBL had presented no new ~acts of 
points of law that were not known of available during the 
investigation of this complaint. Mr. Doyle's decision that 
AVCOA 1 s service for the elderly is permissible mass transit 
therefore stands. 

Your letter states that "in the nature of an alternative 
argument, GBL, on October 19, 1993, took Mr. Doyle at his word" 
and filed a complaint with the Worcester Regional Transit 
Authority (WRTA), AVCOA's parent organization, alleging that 
AVCOA and WRTA had failed to follow FTA's private enterprise 
guidance. You state that GBL has received no response to this 
complaint. 

FTA's private enterprise policy guidance (FTA Circular 7005.1) 
provides that complaints should be resolved locally, and that FTA 
will entertain complaints from private operators only after the 
complainant has exhausted the local dispute resolution process. 
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Accordinqly, I am forwarding a copy of this complaint to WRTA for 
resolution at the local level. 

I trust that this responds to your concerns. 

Enclosure 

co: Richard H. Doyle, TR0-1 
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us. Department 
ot Transportation 

REGION VIII 
Arizona, Colorado, Montana 
Nevada, North Dakota, 

Columbine Place 
216 Sixteenth Street 
Suite 650 Federal Transit 

Administration 
South Dakota, Utah, Wyoming Denver, Colorado 80202 

December 29, 1993 

Craig D. Busskohl, President 
Arrow Stage Lines, Inc. 4001 
4001 S. 34th Street 
Phoenix, AZ 85040 

Subject: City of Phoenix Charter Service 

Dear Mr .. Busskohl: 

Your letter of December 13, 1993, expresses your concerns about 
the exception given to the City of Phoenix by FTA so that Phoenix 
Transit System (PTS) may provide charter service for the Lions 
Club International convention to be held in Phoenix during July 
1994. This special events exception was granted through an 
exercise of FTA discretion under 49 CFR Section 604.9(b) (4). A 
copy of the application for the exception, including supporting 
documentation, and a copy of FTA's· determination, dated October 
12, 1993, are enclosed. 

As the 'determination points out, the application for the 
exception included information that is sufficient to meet the 
requirements of 49·CFR Section 604.9(d) (2), 604.9(e) and 
604.5(i). Therefore, the exception was approved. 

In addition, Phoenix.has demonstrated that private operators will 
be relied upon to help provide the charter service. In 
accordance with Sections 3(e) and 8(o) of the Federal Transit 

· Act, FTA is requiring that Phoenix include private operators in 
the charter service to the maximum extent feasible. 

,II I ' (_VI yvt.rev ,v 
The special events exception in FTA' s charter regulations is 4 ~J) ,J11n, 
designed for just such large-scale gatherings as the Lions ..) .(,. 0ft Q, 

convention, where it appears that local private operators may be 
unable to provide the amount and type of service that is needed 
without significant involvement or leadership by FTA grantees. 
Although your letter indicates that you feel capable of brokering 
charter service for the Lions, the Lions and others have 
indicated that PTS services and equipment are essential. 

As a matter of precedent, FTA has previously granted special 
events exceptions for other Lions Club conventions, as well as 
papal visits, Olympics, etc. Currently, FTA is also working with 
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a number of other grantees and large organizations to ensure the 
provision of service for extraordinary events. 

I hope that you will work with the City and PTS so that Arrow 
Stage Lines will have an opportunity to participate with other 
private operators in providing charter service for the Lions 
convention in Phoenix. 

F. Mraz, Jr~ 

Enclosures 

cc: Richard Thomas 
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U.S. Department 
of Transportation 

Urban Mass 
Transportation 
Administration 

Mr. Lawrence J. Hanley 

Headquarters 

FEB I 7 1994 

President and Business Agent 
Amalgamated Transit Union, Division 726 
40 Yukon Avenue 
Staten Island, New York 10314 

Dear Mr. Hanley: 

400 7th Street S.W. 
Washington, D.C. 20590 

This responds to your letter asking what regulations govern the 
ability of a federally funded transit agency, specifically the 
New York City Transit Authority (NYCTA), to provide service for 
events such as employee funerals. 

Under the Federal Transit Administration (FTA) charter 
regulation, 49 CFR Part 604, an FTA recipient may not provide 
charter service if there is a willing and able private operator. 
"Charter service" is defined at 49 CFR 604.5 as transportation, 
using buses or vans, of a group of persons who, pursuant to a 
common purpose and under a single contract, have acquired 
exclusive use of the vehicle to travel together under an 
itinerary specified in advance. Bus service exclusively for the 
transportation of NYCTA employees to employee funerals would 
appear to meet this definition. Accordingly, if there is a 
willing and able private operator, NYCTA may provide this service 
only under one of the exceptions to the rule. 

I am enclosing a copy of the charter regulation for your 
information. Should you have further questions concerning the 
provision of charter service by FTA recipients, please contact 
Rita Daguillard at 202/366-1936. 

Enclosure 

Gregory B. McBride 
Acting Chief Counsel 
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U.S. Department 
of Transportation 

federal Transit 
Administration 

The Honorable Leonard Stavisky 
New York State Senate 
10-17 147th Street 
Flushing, New York 11357 

Dear Senator Stavisky: 

Headquarters 

MAR 2 4 1994 

400 Seventh St~. SW. 
Washmgton. D.C. 20590 

This responds to your request for clarification of the procedural 
requirements for obtaining· an exception to the Federal Transit 
Administration (FTA) charter regulation that would allow Queens 
Surface, a private subrecip·ient of funds from FTA, to provide 
charter service for the North Flushing Senior Center (Flushing) . 
You indicate that Flushing is a tax-exempt, non-profit social 
service center. 

The FTA charter regulation, 49 CFR Part 604, prohibits the 
provision of charter service using PTA-funded facilities or 
equipment, unless one of the exceptions to the regulation . 
applies. 

One of thes~ exceptions, at subsection ~04.9(b) (5) (i), provides 
that a recipient or subrecipient of FTA funds may use FTA-furided 
vehicles to provide charter service for certain tax-exempt, 
non-profit social service agencies that receive funds either . 
directly or indirectly under one of the U.S. Department of Health 
and Human Services (USDHHS) programs listed in Appendix A of the 
regulation. These programs include Administration on Aging (ADA) 
grants for supportive services and senior centers, and ADA social 
service block grants. If Flushing is receiving funding under one 
of these programs, it should submit to Queens Su:t;:"face a 
certification in accordance with subsection 604.9(b) {5) (i). 
Queens surface may then provide direct charter service to 
Flushing without seeking or obtaining a waiver from FTA. 

If Flushing does not receive USDHHS funds, it may also be 
eligible for an exception to the charter regulation if it 
receives assistance frQm a state or local government comparable 
to the assistance provided by USDHHS under the programs listed in 
Appendix A. In subsection 604.9(b) (5) (iii), FTA has established 
a mechanism by which a State may petition FTA for inclusion in 
Appendix A of such an organization. 

The state must petition FTA on behalf of the requesting 
organization, including in its petitio~ th7 following . . 
information: (1) the name of the organ1zat1on, a descr1pt1on of 
its membership, and the type of public welfare activities it 
performs; (2) evidence that the organization is exempt from 
taxation under section 501(c) (1), (3), (4), or (~9) of the 
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Internal Revenue Code; and (3} a certification by the 
organization that: (a} it is tax-exempt; (b) it receives ~r is 
eligible to receive from a State or. local government assistance 
comparable to that provided by USDHHS to the programs listed in 
Appendix A; and (c) that in the course of carrying out its 
activities, it arranges for travel of groups who are 
transit-disadvantaged or transit-dependent. 

If FTA approves the petition, it will provide the State and the 
organization in question with a written statement to the effect 
that an FTA recipient or subrecipient may provide direct charter 
service to the organization. 

Rita Daguillard of my staff would be happy to provide any 
assistance'you may need irt submitting on behalf of Flushing 
either a certification to Queens Surface under subsection 
604.9(b) (5) (i) or a petition to FTA under subsection 
604.9(b) (5) (iii). You may contact her at 202/366-1936. 

I hope that this provides the necessary clarification. 

Very truly yours, 
/' .......... .··,........--....'(·~ 

'~\ ~.:··-. -.::p.-· ':-'-......) <._:_-~- .... ----. 
/ ·'! ~ 
~ r~g B. McBride 

~tin :chief counsel 
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Mr. Charles D. Buss~ohl 
Chief Executive Officer 
Arrow Stage Lines 
4001 South 34th Street 
Phoenix, Arizona .85040 

Dear Mr. Busskohl: 

JUN I 3 1994 

Your letter to Senator John Mccain has been forwarded to me for 
response. You express concern that your company, Arrow Stage 
Lines, will be adversely affected by the Federal Transit 
Administration's (FTA) recent recision of its private enterprise 
policy. 

In rescinding this guidance, FTA followed the requirements of 
section 12(i) of the Federal Transit Act, as amended (FT Act), 
which prescribes prior notice and a 60-day public comment period 
for all significant changes in agency law or policy. In its 
final Notice of Recision of Private Enterprise Participation 
Guidance (59 Federal Register 21890, April 26, 1994), FTA noted 
that commenters opposed to the recision failed to provide 
substantive evidence that the previous policy had resulted in a 
significant increase in private sector involvement in the 
provision of mass transit services or assisted in the improvemen 
of mass transit systems. Accordingly, FTA cannot agree that the 
recision will cause financial harm to private operators. 6~ 

~ 
FTA's action was also based on its judgment that the require 
imposed by the previous guidance, while ineffective, have unduly 
infringed on the decisionmaking authority that local officials 
are entitled to exercise under the FT Act. FTA believes that 
this recision is within the broad limits of its authority under 
the FT Act, represents a policy choice that is reasonable and 
valid in light of the agency's experience in administering the 
provisions over the past ten years, and is fully within the 
limits of its policymaking discretion. 

I wish to emphasize that in rescinding these requirements, the 
agency continues to support the participation of private 
enterprise in the FTA program. Indeed, the section 8 planning 
process and the section 9(f) consultation process, during which 
key decisions concerning private enterprise participation are 
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made, represent a thorough and comprehensive approach to the 
consideration of private enterprise at the local level, 
consistent with the requirements of the FT Act. FTA is confident 
that these processes will provide local officials with the 
flexibility to decide whether service is to be operated by public 
or private mass transportation companies, as determined by local 
needs. 

Sincerely, 

'/a"j original signed by 

Gordon J. Linton 

cc: Senator John McCain 
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U.S. Department 
of Transportation 
Federal Transit 
Administration 

JUL I I ·1994 
~,/ 

G. Steven Anzuoni, Esq. 
Statler Office Building 
20 Park Plaza, Suite 464 
Boston, Massachusetts 02116 

Dear Mr. Anzuoni: 

400 Seventh St., S.W. 
Washington, D.C. 20590 

This responds to your letter of May 19, 1994, alleging that the 
Massachusetts Bay Transportation Authority (MBTA) made material 
misrepresentations of fact to the Federal Transit Administratio 
(FTA). You state that in response to the FTA's inquiry 
concerning a private enterprise complai~t filed by your. former 
client, Hudson Lines, Inc. (Hudson), the MBTA made knowing and 
willful false statements that "constitute fraud on a tribunal." 

Specifically, you allege that in its letter of.December 27, 1993 
the MBTA sought to convey to FTA the impression that it was 
working diligently to resolve the complaint by conducting and 
evaluating various surveys, studies, etc. The truth of the 
matter, you state, is that since . receiving Hudson's complaint . of ...... . 
June 30, 1993, the MBTA neither conducted nor evaluated anything 1MiiA .. 

at all as regards the service or routes concerned. Hence, you 
conclude that the MBTA's letter of December 27, 1993, contained 
material misrepresentations of fact and constituted willful 
misconduct. 

~-~':,,;:;i:~,:~~:r~~tt' 
Please find enclosed a copy of a letter dated June 24, 1994, ·~~~it.~L!SI~·· 

~' ' ·, ' ::;.~ 

from Peter B. Morin, General counsel of the MBTA, which ;.,,r:,.';;:::;~·~.;-~ 
emphatically denies your charge that the MBTA sought to deceive o~T{ ... ··· · 
FTA. Mr. Morin explains that the resolution of Hudson's private.. : .. ; .· 
enterprise complaint was directly related to the resolution of Ri&:·~lf~~~J 
more global issues regarding transportation for all commuters in .,.:: .... f•}:·~:~i 
and around the town of Stoneham. He states that the lltBTA qid, i •i\lif~~!'SIG:: 
fact, conduct studies and did evaluate these studies and related :fi!::·.\·~~·.E.:i 
data in arriving at its decision concerning transport~tio~ 06i~ ,., '•· 
options for that area. I understand that Mr. Morin forwarqed 
copies of these studies to you on May 6, 1994. 
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In view of Mr. Morin's explanations and submission of the reports 
in question, as well as of the fact that you have presented no 
substantive evidence that the MBTA knowingly and willfully 
intended to deceive or mislead FTA, I find further inquiry into 
your complaint unwarranted. Accordingly, FTA closes its file on 
this matter. 

Enclosure 

cc: Peter B. Morin, Esq. 
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U.S. Department 
of Transportation 
Federal Transit 
Administration 

Mr. Craig D. Busskohl 
Arrow stage Lines· 
4001 ·south 34th street 
Phoenix, Arizona 85040 

Dear Mr. Busskohl: 

JUL ·t 5 1994 

n ~,'\ v· 1'\/\ ~.c{!~r.·· ' _., ·. I . \ . . ---~ 
'--- \. 1.. \,. . . 

. 400 Seventh St., S.W. 
Washington, D.C. 20500 

Thank you for your letter concerning charter operations by 
recipients of funds from·the Federal Transit Administration 
(FTA). You ask ·for stricter enforcement of FTA' s charter ·. 
regulation, and .request a commitment that FTA-funded equipment 
will no longer be leased f·or charter purposes. · 

Your concern appears to stem from FTA's granting of a special 
events exception to permit Phoenix Transit System (PTS), a 
subrecipient of FTA funds, t~ provide charter service for the· 
Lions Convention. In a recent letter to Mr. James L. Schmidt of 
.Arrow stage Lines, FTA Administrator Gordon Linton explained that 
the granting of this waiver by·Mr. Louis -F. Mraz, Regional 
Administrator, FTA Region VIII, was· both appropriate under the 
circumstances and consistent with the requirements of FTA's 
charter.regulat~on, 49 CFR Part 604. 

Under 49 CFR 604.9(b) (4), a recipient· of FTA funds may·obtain a 
waiver to provide charter'service for special events to the 
extent that private charter operators are not capable of 
providing the s·ervice. FTA chose not to define "ca,pable" to 
provide for a maximum degree of flexibility. Nevertheless, FTA 
stated that it would consider that private charter operators 
would not be capable of providing charter service if, for 
example, their fleets, even when · pool.ed together, would not equal 
or even approximate the leve.l of service required for this event. 
FTA noted that it added this exception to cover the situation 
where a city is hosting an event of national.or international 
importance and private charter operators simply would not be 
capable of delivering the service needed. 52 Federal Register 
1192~ (April 13, 1987). 

According to information FTA received, the·Lions Club 
International meeting is·expected to draw more than 20,000 
attendees and to contribute over $20 million to the local 
economy. The Lions Club and the Phoenix and Valley of the sun 
convention and Visitors Bureau requested in writing that PTS, the 
principal contractor for the city of Phoenix (the City), 
coordinate transportation for the event, based on their 
perception that its experience, personnel and equipment best 
qualified it to provid~ the service required. The City stated 
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that in requesting that PT.S coordinate the . arrangements, the 
Lions Club specified.that because of the large amount of 

·hotel-to-convention shuttle service involved,.it would prefer to 
use as many urban style, two-door buses a·s possible, ·and- to 
contract with an operator specializing in the delivery of urban 

· service on a ~ay-:-to-day basis. · · 

FTA granted the City's petition for·a special events exception 
.based on th~se. factors and on the condition that private 
operators would be given.an .opportunity· to participate.in this 

.service to the maxilllum extent feasible. Moreover, th.e city 
assured FTA that; in.accordance with 49 CFR 604.9(e), any· charter 
service provided by PTS will be "incidental," i.e.~ will not 
interfere with or detra.ct from. scheduled, fixed route service. 

-FTA's cha-rter regulation-allows the use of.FTA-funded equipment· 
for charter service f.or special events and in· other situations 
whereprivate operators are unable to meet the anticipated need. 
Any commitment by-FTA that FTA.-funded equipment will no longer be 
used in charter·service would therefore be inconsistent with the 
.regulation' and contrary to the interest of the transit-riding, 
public. · · 

I assure· you, h_owever, that FTA actively enforces the charter 
regulation. For this reason, FTA carefully examines every 
request for exceptions to the charter regulation, and, grants them 
o'nly when it is clear that the factors presented meet the 
regulatory ·criteria •. Moreover, FTA monitors its ·grantees' 
compliance with the charter regulation through triennial reviews 
and p.eriodic audits-and through the investigation of complaints 
by private ·operators. These measures meet the regulatory goal of 
protecting private charter operators from federally subsidized · 
competition with public agencies, while providing these agencies 
wjth,the flexibility to meet charter needs that otherwise would 
not be served. 

.?J t~ly yo~ ~. ~ '. 

, ·:~;a ~;:i i~~d~/r<-:: · ;c.:L<c-·~~y/ : 
Deputy Assistant · hief counsel 

for General La . 
. . . 
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BEFORE THE FEDERAL TRANSIT ADMINISTRATION 

In the matter of: 

Ark Transportation, Inc. 
Complainant 

V. 

l 
} 
} 
} 
} 
} 
} 

Marble Valley Regional Transit District, } 
Respondent } 

CHARTER COMPLAINT 

49 U.S.C. § 5323( d) 

TR0-1NT -12/94-01 

DECISION 

SUMMARY 

Ark Transportation, Inc. (Ark), filed this complaint with the Federal Transit Administration 
(FT A), alleging that the Bus Company, Inc., a/kla/ Marble Valley Regional. Transit District 
(MVRTD) is providing charter service in violalion of the FTA charter regulation, 49 CFR Part 
604. The complaint specifically alleged that MVRTD had executed an "Operating Agreement for 
Transportation Services" (Operating Agreement) to provide charter service for Killington, Ltd. 
(Killington), a Vermont corporation. Applying a balancing test to the service in question, FT A 
finds that the service is in fact mass transportation, and therefore, not in violation of the charter 
service regulation. However, some terms of the Operating·Ag·reement interfere with the 
MVRTD's prerogative to control the service in the public interest. In order to correct that 
deficiency, the Operating Agreement must be changed to make clear that MVRTD will exercise 
sufficient control over the transportation services in accordance with FT A's definition of mass 
transportation. MVR TD must report to FT A within thirty days on the measures it has taken to 
comply with the terms of this order. 

MVRTD and Killington entered into the Operating Agreement on September 29, 1994. which 
commenced upon execution and is to terminate on March 30, 1997, unless ended sooner by 
mutual agreement ofthe parties in writing. On November 21, 1994, MVRTD and Killington 
executed an Addendum to the Operating Agreement which provides that provisions therein shall 
prevail over the September 29 agreement. The· Addendum deleted Paragraph D of Section III 
concerning MVRTD obligation to supply Killington with four 6-passenger waiting shelters. 
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COMPLAINT 

Ark, which operates the Killington Shuttle Bus, is a private bus operator located in Killington, 
Vermont. By letter dated October 7, 1994, Ark filed this complaint with theFT A alleging that 
the service in question is actually a form of prohibited charter service. Ark attached a copy ofthe 
Operating Agreement to the complaint. The definition of charter service found in FT A's 
regulations at 49 CFR § 604.5(e) is as follows: 

... transportation using buses or vans, or facilities funded under the Acts 
of a group of persons who pursuant to a common purpose, under a single 
contract, at a fixed charge ... for the vehicle or service, have acquired the 
exclusive use of the vehicle or service to travel together under an itinerary 
either specified in advance or modified after having left the place of origin .... 

Specifically, Ark complains that MVRTD contracted with Killington to provide charter service 
operations along the Killington Access Road. According to its complaint, Ark had previously 
performed these services pursuant to contracts with Killington and with restaurants, lodges and 
nightclubs in the area. In addition, Ark states that MVR TD intends to provide services from 
Rutland to Sherburne, Vermont, for employees ofKillington and the general public. Ark bases its 
complaint upon eleven allegations. 

In Allegation #1, Ark contends that the service in question is a classic charter operation and not 
mass transit. First Ark states that MVR TD will pick up employees of Killington, along with 
members of the public, at 6:30a.m. each morning during the ski season. Moreover, Ark asserts 
that the fact Killington is paying MVRTD to transport its employees roundtrip from Rutland to 
Killington, Vermont, each day is further evidence that the service in question is charter. Finally, 
Ark claims that MVR TD is running the same shuttle service that Ark performed previously under 
contract with Killington whereby the scheduled times and pick up points were set by Killington. 

In Allegation #3, Ark maintains that the service is charter because riders will pay a set fare of 
$1.00 or more which will be turned over to Killington. Ark further claims that Killington and 
local businesses will set the schedule for the service. In addition, Ark contends that MVRTD has 
no authority to operate on the Killington Access Road or to operate at night. 

In Allegation #4, Ark claims that the local businesses have been pressured to accept the terms of 
the transportation services. 

Under Allegation #5, Ark maintains that MVRTD and Killington had already decided to enter into 
a contract well before the bidding process and that the terms and conditions contained in the bid 
documents do not correspond to the contract executed between MVRTD and Killington. 
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Ark further alleges in Allegation #6 that MVR TD did not fully allocate its costs and is unable to 
separate its federally funded and private-for-profit operations. 

In Allegation #10, Ark claims that in effect the contract between MVRTD and Killington will put 
Ark out of business. Ark further states that its buses will be taken back by their manufacturer and 
resold to MVRTD which currently does not have sufficient equipment to meet its contractual 
obligations with Killington. 

Allegation # 11 states that Ark is a willing and able provider of charter service and has the 
authority to provide t~is service. 

Finally, Ark claims that MVRTD failed to comply with FTA's charter regulation for the following 
additional reasons: MVR TD did not publish a notice of its intent to provide charter service 
(Allegation #2); MVRTD did not send a notice of its intent to provide charter service to the 
American Bus Association or the United Bus Owners of America (Allegation #7); the service in 
question does not fall within an exception to the charter regulation (Allegation #8); and MVRTD 
is using federally funded equipment and facilities to compete unfairly with private charter 
operators (Allegation #9). 

RESPONSE 

By letter dated October 18, 1994, FT A informed MVR TD of the complaint filed against it. The 
letter stated that pursuant to the implementing regulation, a recipient ofFTA funding may not 
provide charter service using FT A funded facilities or equipment if there is a private operator in 
its geographic area wilting and able to provide that charter service, unless one or more of the 
exceptions listed at 49 CFR § 604.9(b) apply. Furthermore, MVRTD was advised that any 
charter service provided by a recipient under an exception must be incidental. The letter further 
stated that ifMVRTD' was providing charter service that is· impermissible under the regulation, it 
should di~continue do'ing so immediately. In order to expedite the matter, FTA gave MVRTD 
until November 4, 1994, to respond to the complaint. 

In its response dated November 3, 1994, MVRTD argues that the service being provided under 
the Operating Agreement with Killington is "mass transportation." In answer to Allegation #1, 
MVRTD contends that the fact that Killington is paying for the fares of its guests and employees 
does not defeat a finding that the service in question is mass transportation. Moreover, MVRTD 
claims that the issue of whether the service is provided under a single contract, or under separate 
contracts with each individual patron, is not the touchstone of a charter· service. Instead, 
MVRTD notes that according to the Operating Agreement, it will provide "open door" service 
which is not limited to Killington employees and guests. MVR TD maintains that approximately 
30 to 40 Killington employees will use the service and that members of the general public will 
take the remaining 80.to 90 seats on a first-come, first-served basis. With reference to the shuttle 
service from downtown Rutland to Sherburne which will transport Killington employees, 
MVR TD likewise argues that this service is mass transportation because access is extended to 
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anyone who wishes to ride on the buses. Furthermore, MVR TD contends that the mere fact that 
employees and guests of Killington may take greater advantage of the Rutland-Sherburne shuttle 
does not make this a charter service.l/ In support of this contention, MVR TD cites the preamble 
ofFTA's charter regulation which states that under all FT A programs, "recipients provide 
subscription service, parking lot shuttles and other services that while open to the public may be 
oflimited utility due to destination, hours of service or need." (52 Fed. _Reg. 11919, Apr. 13, 
1987) As further evidence that the service is public in nature, MVRTD notes that the schedules 
prepared by MVRTD and Killington will be advertised by MVRTD in the local papers and posted 
by Killington at its ski area in accordance with the terms of the Operating Agreement. In sum, 
MVRTD claims that the "open door" character of the service in question is central to the 
conclusion that the service constitutes mass transportation, not charter service. 

In the second part ofits response to Allegation #1, MVRTD addresses theissue of its control 
over setting the routes and schedules identified under the Operating Agreement. MVRTD 
explains that the routes and schedules were developed by MVR TD, in conjunction with its 
transportation consultant, Multi-Systems, Inc., as part ofMVRTD's Short Range Transit Plan. 
While MVR TD acknowledged that Killington served in an advisory capacity by identifying areas 
and times of peak traffic flow and supplying information regarding routes and schedules which 
had proven satisfactory in the past, MVRTD states that Killington did not have "control" over the 
routes and schedules. · MVR TD asserts that it is clearly responsible for setting the routes because 
under the Operating Agreement it is obligated to provide regularly scheduled service and to 
mutually coordinate any changes in the routes with Killington. 

In response to Allegation #3, MVRTD submits that the night service does not qualify as charter 
merely because the fares collected from patrons will be forwarded to Killington. As stated 
previously, MVRTD claims that the issue of whether the service is provided under a single 
contract, or under separate contracts with each rider, does not est~blish the service as charter. 
Rather, MVRTD contends the service is clearly mass transportation because it is open to the 
general public and the routes and schedules are established by the recipient. In reply to Ark's 
contention that it has no authority to perform the service herein, MVRTD submits that it has been 
granted authority under 24 Vermont Statutes Anno ted Section 5121, et seq. to deliver 
transportation services to all points within Rutland County. MVRTD further states that it is not 
constrained by the limits of the Certificate of Public Good issued to "The Bus" in 1981. 

With reference to Allegation #4, MVRTD argues that Ark's claim that local businesses have been 
pressured to accept the terms of the transportation services is irrelevant in determining whether 
the service in question is charter. Nevertheless, MVRTD responds that ·there is nothing in the 

11 MVRTD attached copies of schedules for the Killington Shuttle Bus mid-day service and the 
Rutland/Mendon/Sherburne commuter service which indicates the first bus will depart Rutland at 
6:15a.m. and arrive at Killington at 7:30a.m. 
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Operating Agreement. that requires local businesses to take advantage of the transportation 
services and claims they are free to obtain services elsewhere. Moreover, the bus stop structures 
being provided to Killington under separate contract will be placed at high-traffic stops on public 
roads along MVR TO-designated bus routes. 

Responding to Allegation #5, MVRTD again notes that the issue of whether MVRTD and 
Killington had already decided to enter into a contract before the bidding process began is 
irrelevant to a determination of charter service herein. However, MVR TD responds that 
Killington contacted Ark on about May 9, 1994, requesting submission of a bid for the services in 
issue for the 1994-95 ski season. Ark submitted its bid to Killington on June 14, 1994. The 
transportation service contract was awarded to MVRTD on July 19, 1994. Thus, MVRTD 
contends that Ark's aliegation that the contract bid was somehow a "done deal" before Ark had a 
chance to bid on the contract is simply untrue. 

Furthermore, MVRTD ~aintains that the issues raised in Allegation #6 concerning full cost 
allocation are totally irrelevant to Ark's contention that MVR TD is providing charter service. 
Moreover, MVRTD contends that since the service in question is mass transportation, and not 
charter service, this allegation is moot. Nevertheless, MVRTD responds that it has fully complied 
with the applicable regulations governing full cost allocation. 

In Allegation #10, Ark claims that the contract between MVRTD and Killington will put Ark out 
ofbusiness. MVRTD again responds that this issue is wholly irrelevant in determining whether 
the service herein is charter and states that Ark's financial woes are in no way attributable to the 
Operating Agreement. 

With reference to Ark's claim under Allegation # 11, MVR TD claims that Ark is not a willing and 
able provider of chart~r service as defined at 49 CFR § 604. 5(p) because Ark's equipment has 
been repossessed by Commonwealth Thomas and thus, Ark is·currently unable to provide charter 
services. 

In conclusion, MVRTD responds that since the service in question is mass transportation and not 
charter: it was not required to solicit responses from willing and able charter service operators 
through a newspaper notice (Allegation #2), it was not required to send a notice to American Bus 
Association or the United Bus Owners of America (Allegation #7), the charter exceptions 
provided under 49 CFR § 604.9(b) are not applicable (Allegation #8), and the transportation 
services to be provided under the Operating Agreement are mass transit which is fully consistent 
with federal and state law (Allegation #9). 

REBUTTAL 

By letter dated October 18, 1994, FTA notified Ark to submit any comments on MVRTD's 
response not later than 15 days after receipt thereof. In its rebuttal, dated November 15, 1994, 
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Ark argues that theFT A decisions of Seymour Charter Bus Lines v. Knoxville Transit Authority , 
TN-09/88/01, and Blue Grass Tours and Charter v. Lexington Transit Authority, UR0-111-1987 
support the complainant's position that the service in question is charter and not mass 
transportation. These cases involved service in and around university campuses which the FT A 
determined was charter and not mass transportation. 

Specifically, Ark contends that the Operating Agreement is actually an agreement under a single 
contract for two defined groups of people, employees of Killington and skiers who come to the 
Killington region. Ark claims that Killington's employees and the skiers essentially have exclusive 
use of the buses. In support of this contention, Ark cites the Bluegrass case which stated that 
"[a]lthough the service is 'open-door' in the sense that anyone wanting to ride on it is not excluded 
from doing so, [FTA] has interpreted 'open-door' to mean involving a substantial public ridership 
and/or an attempt by the transit authority to widely market the service." As to exclusive use by 
the employees, Ark argues that the first buses will arrive at the ski area more than one hour prior 
to the operation of the lifts and therefore, the statement that the early buses are open door is 
fallacy. Ark explains that skiers and other members ofthe public would not be interested in 
arriving at the ski area at such an early hour. With reference to exclusive use by the skiers, Ark 
claims that the bus schedules indicate they were drawn up for the convenience of the skiers and 
notes that transportation between Rutland and Killington for individuals interesled in shopping is 
extremely limited. In addition, Ark notes that the shuttle bus does not stop at all restaurants and 
hotels on the Killington Access Road but only at those particular businesses who are paying for 
the service. 

Furthermore, Ark argues that under the Bluegrass case, it is clear that the service in question is 
charter becaue it is being provided based upon an hourly rate. Moreover, according to the 
midday public transit schedule, the bus stops and bus shelters are located on private property and 
not along public roads: In addition, Ark claims that it has sole authority to make stops along the 
Killington Access Road. Ark contends that these facts clearly· place the Operating Agreement 
within the ambit of the Seymour case because although there supposedly is an "open door" policy· 
and regular schedules, there is no posting ofbus stop signs on public right-of-ways and the service 
only operates during the ski season from mid-November through April. 

On the issue of control, Ark asserts that the Operating Agreement is actually for service provided 
under a single contract whereby Killington determines the route, rate and schedule. Moreover, 
Ark claims that MVRTD cannot be setting the scheduling for the Village Shuttle because the 
scope of the service is exactly the same as that provided by Ark in the past during which time 
Killington set the schedule. Ark also points out that under the terms of the Operating Agreement, 
Killington is required to supply MVRTD with two-way radio communication equipment in order 
to interface with Killington which indicates that Killington has control over the service. In further 
support of its contention that Killington has control over the service, Ark notes that Killington 
will retain ownership of the ski racks/holders which it is obligated to install on the buses pursuant 
to the Operating Agreement and will have exclusive advertising rights on all buses. 
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In response to MVR TO's statement that Ark is not a willing and able provider of charter service, 
Ark claims that it was a willing and able provider at the time ofthe contract bids and is presently 
capable of providing the service to Killington. Ark further claims that it was not given the 
opportunity to bid on all of the services now being provided by MVR TD. 

FT A'S REQUEST FOR ADDITIONAL INFORMATION 

By letter ofNovember 22, 1994, FTA requested from MVRTD additional information needed to 
clarify points concerning the extent of control which the MVR TD will exercise in carrying out the 
provisions set forth in the Operating Agreement. The information requested and MVRTD's 
response ofNovember 29, 1994, are summarized as follows: 

QUESTION: Paragraph liLA: Please clarify the terms stating that the service may vary upon 
reasonable notice from Killington and whether MVRTD has the prerogative of honoring the 
questions or not. 

ANSWER: The District may increase or decrease routes and scheduling based upon demand and 
volume. Hours and service have been designed and coordinated by the District's consultant, 
Multi-system Inc., in cooperation with Killington. The District has the final say in setting 
schedules and hours. for confirmation of this, see paragraph III. F. 2. and 3. of the Operating 
Agreement which provides that it is the District's obligation or responsibility to alter frequency of 
pick-ups or days or hours of operation. 

QUESTION: Paragraphs III.C and F: Please clarify MVRTD's obligation to provide additional 
vehicles and services and explain what flexibility MVRTD has in this regard. 

ANSWER: The District has no contracted obligation to provide any specific number of buses or 
size of buses. It is the District's responsibility to provide "fixed~route, open door service" but, 
beyond that, Killington has only the ability just as any resid(mt would to suggest additional routes 
or stops. 

QUESTION: Paragraph III.F: Please clarify the provision that at Killington's election, members 
of the public using the services may be charged $1.00 per ride which will be turned over to 
Killington. This fact indicates that Killington wilt be setting and retaining fares for services 
provided by MVRTD; Please explain this issue more fully. 

ANSWER: It is true that a $1.00 fare will be refunded to Killington for Evening Route users as a 
partial return of the Killington subsidy. However, the District stilt retains the right to charge more 
than $1.00. The District intends to charge a $1.00 fare one-way to the general public between 
Rutland and Sherburne. This is the same fare charged by the District on its other routes. These 
dollarswill not be refunded to Killington. The suggested $1.00 fee was set by the District and its 
consultant Multi-system, Inc., with input from Killington. The fare was conceived to offset the 
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cost of service elements that could have hindered system delivery and thus make some service 
unavailable to or for the public. The City of Rutland, Town of Proctor and other communities 
subsidize the District's existing mass transit system in a similar fashion as Killington will do in this 
case. 

QUESTION: Paragraphs VI.A and XI: Please clarify these paragraphs in terms of restrictions 
on MVR TD control. 

ANSWER: Paragraph VI. A, "Employees and Use of Sub-Contractors" was intended to require 
that the District supply the mass transit services contemplated in the Operating Agreement and 
not a third party hired by the District. Killington wanted a mass transit system in place and is 
willing to subsidize it :to make it happen. Killington did not want the District to be able to hire a 
subcontractor to perform any of the routes. 

Paragraph XI is a standard arbitration clause. The parties desired to work 
collaberatively to bring mass transit to Sherburne and wanted to underscore the need to meet in 
person and resolve any differences. 

Along with its November 29, 1994, response to FTA's questions, MVRTD submitted a responsive 
memorandum to Ark's rebuttal.2,/ MVRTD argues that there are substantial factual differences 
between the Seymour and Blue Grass cases and the instant case. First, both ofthe cited cases 
involved service to a university campus where the university was found to have set the schedules 
and fares which MVRTD claims is not true in this case. Also in Blue Grass, there was a finding 
that while service to the campus was open to all, it was not advertised sufficiently to make the 
public aware of its availability. In MVR TD's case, the service will be advertised in several local 
papers, on the buses, and by Killington and other eating and sleeping establishments in the area. 
Moreover, MVR TD explains that it allows riders who take the evening bus to Rutland to transfer 
and utilize other MVRTD routes, unlike the service at issue in· the Blue Grass or Seymour cases. 
Secondly, MVRTD argues that Blue Grass and Seymour involved services to an identifiable 
group of people attending a university which is distinct from MVR TD's situation which is not 
geared toward any defined group but to the public at large. MVRTD explains that the service will 
provide public transportation to the thousands of people living, shopping and working along U.S. 
Route 4, in Rutland, Mendon and Sherburne and not only to employees of Killington or skiers. 
MVRTD notes that Killington's competitor, Pico Ski Area, will no doubt benefit from the same 
service. 

2,1 MVR TD' attached its cost breakdown which indicates the following: Killington will be 
charged an annual rate of$101,949.76 (3,872 hours at $26.33 per hour) for the Daytime 
Shuttlebus; $9,242 (351 hours at $26.33 per hour) for the Commuter Route; and $33,518 (1,273 
hours at $26.33 per hour) for the Evening Route. 
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MVRTD explained that the public demand for transportation services that exist in the 
Rutland-Sherburne region is due to the fact that two large ski areas are located in the Rutland 
area. MVRTD argues that "(s]kiers, in this factual background, are not a 'defined group,' they 
are the 'transportation public."' MVRTD claims that its mass transportation services between 
Rutland and Sherburne further the goals ofFT A's program of transit assistance for nonurbanized 
areas as set forth in FTA Circular 9040.1 C, dated November 3, 1992. 

In response to Ark's contention that the early morning service will be for the exclusive use of 
Killington's employees, MVRTD states that there is no evidence that skiers will not use the 
morning shuttle run and claims that the service is timed to get most skiers to the ski area in time 
for lifts to open. MVRTD states that under the present schedule buses depart Rutland for 
Killington at 7:00a.m., lifts at Killington open at 8:00a.m. on weekends and 9:00a.m. during the 
week, and lifts at Pico open daily at 8:30a.m. Furthermore, MVRTD anticipates that the service 
will take extra time in order to facilitate pick-ups and drop-offs throughout the service area. As 
to Ark's position that the service is for the exclusive use of the skiers, MVR TD states that the 
general public is already making use of the service going up and down the mountain and several 
businesses along the route have asked to be included in the service. 

Referring to Ark's argument that under Blue Grass the service is charter because it is being 
provided on an hourly''basis, MVRTD points out that some base had to be established with regard 
to subsidy. Fur,therm9re, MVRTD's CPA and business manager configured service cost with full 
cost allocation. In reply to Ark's assertion that the bus stops are not located along public roads, 
MVRTD states that bus stop signs are located along the Killington Road and MVRTD buses will 
stop when they are flagged by the public, in safe areas. Further, MVR TD claims that there is no 
authority or documentation to substantiate the contention that Ark has sole authority to operate 
along the Killington Road. MVRTD states that the Killington Road is a public road and MVRTD 
buses are entitled to use it. Although the service only operates during the ski season, MVRTD 
explains that year-round service might be offered if demand necessitates. 

With regard to the issue of control, MVRTD responds that although it coordinates with 
Killington, under the Operating Agreement MVRTD has the final say in choosing the rates, routes 
and schedules for the service. MVRTD notes that in reaching its decision in the Blue Grass case, 
the FT A considered the fact that the university had the prerogative to alter routes and schedules. 
Here, while Killington will be consulted, MVRTD claims it has the final say over schedules and 
routes and relied heavily on its consultant to design the system. MVR TD further contends that 
the Operating Agreement herein does not dictate what equipment is to be used as was the case in 
Blue Grass. , 

In response to Ark's allegation that there is a single contract between MVR TD and Killington, 
MVRTD contends that the Operating Agreement is essentially a subsidy agreement for public 
mass transportation. Furthermore, MVRTD argues that although Ark served the same general 
area previously, the service is open to the public this year as opposed to past years. MVRTD 
notes that it asked Killington to supply two-way radio communications as an extra precaution to 
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allow MVRTD to patch into town highway departments to facilitate help if needed with respect to 
road conditions. MVRTD claims it will use its own two-way communications equipment for 
dispatch and other everyday functions of service delivery. In regard to Killington's exclusive 
advertising rights on the buses, MVRTD asserts that all advertising is subject to appoval in 
advance by MVRTD and claims that Killington in coordination with MVRTD will use advertising 
space to display route schedules and configurations. 

As to Art's claim that it is a willing and able provider of charter service, MVR TD responds that it 
was informed by Commonwealth Thomas that Ark vehicles were taken back by Commonwealth, 
are on Commonwealth's floor, and could be purchased by the MVRTD. Moreover, MVRTD 
claims that none of Ark's vehicles are ADA equipped and therefore, are unsuitable for Pt)blic 
transportation. 

COMMENT ON SUPPLEMENTAL RESPONSE 

On December 6, 1994, Ark provided the following comments on the supplemental information 
furnished by the respondent. The FT A will consider those comments which concern issues 
previously raised in this proceeding and which are relative to the determination of whether the 
service herein is charter or mass transportation. 

Ark takes issue with MVRTD's claim that "[t]he District has no contracted obligation to provide 
any specific number of buses or size of buses." Ark points out that Paragraph III.C specifically 
provides that MVRTD is obligated to provide up to four 32-passenger buses and one back-up 
bus. 

In addition, Ark contends that the buses used in the night shuttle and mid-day shuttle will be used 
exclusively by Killington because Killington has contracted with MVR TD for their use. Ark takes 
issue with MVR TD's response that the service is open to the ·public this year as opposed to past 
years because the buses stop at condominiums located on private property that are connected to a 
ski area via a shuttle s~rvice just as apartments were connected to a university in the Seymour 
case. Furthermore, Ark claims that the fact that MVR TD is advertising the service in the 
"Mountain Times" underscores the fact that the service caters to vacation visitors as the paper's 
greatest circulation is ·in Sherburne at local eating, dining and lodging facilities. 

Ark further contends that according to MVRTD schedules, it does not appear that riders may 
transfer to and from the Rutland/Sherburne route. With reference to the bus stop signs along the 
Killington Road, Ark claims that the signs, and posts they are attached to, are owned by Ark, not 
MVRTD. 

Finally, Ark denies that its vehicles were taken back by Commonwealth Thomas. Instead, Ark 
explains that it asked Commonwealth to floor plan the vehicles which Ark can have back at any 
time. 
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DISCUSSION 

The essential issue in this matter is whether the service provided by MVR TD is impermissible 
charter service or permissible mass transportation. 

In its complaint, Ark claims that the service provided under the terms of the Operating Agreement 
is clearly charter service and is merely "cloaked" in mass transportation. Ark's argument that the 
service provided by MVRTD is charter service is based in large part on the Chief Counsel's 
determinations in the Blue Grass and Seymour cases and the definition of charter service set out 
at 49 CFR 604.5(e). 

In Blue Grass, the Chief Counsel determined that the service provided by the Lexington Transit 
Authority (LexTran) basically corresponded to the definition of charter for the following reasons. 
First, the service was provided under a single contract, was operated on terms set by the 
university, and the recipient was compensated on an hourly rate. Second, the service was 
operated and managed differently from the recipient's other routes because there were no 
published schedules for the campus routes and the service was provided free to individual riders. 
Third, the service had been designed to meet the transportation needs of the university students 
and personnel, and, though it was operated open door, only coincidentially served the needs of the 
general public. 

It should be noted that following the Chief Counsel's decision in Blue Grass, LexTran modified 
the service by ceasingto provide it under an agreement linking payment to hours of service, 
instead receiving an ar\nual grant from the university. In addition, LexTran modified the service 
by publishing schedules for its campus service, advertising them to the public, and marking 
campus stops with its.logo, thereby evidencing an attempt to invite public ridership. 
Subsequently, in a letter to the recipient, FT A recognized that by assuming control of the campus 
service and by making it open to the general public, the service had been converted to mass 
transportation. 

In Seymour, the Chief Counsel found the campus service met FT A's criteria for charter service 
because it was provided under an agreement with the university which linked the cost ofthe 
service to the number of hours operated. Furthermore, pursuant to the agreement, the university 
was allowed to set fares and schedules which placed control of the service with a party other than 
the recipient. The Chief Counsel concluded that in order to come into compliance with FT A 
requirements, the recipient would be required to reconfigure the service to conform to FT A's 
mass transportation guidelines. 

In the preamble to the,. charter regulations, FT A states that the main features of charter are: 1) the 
service is by bus or van; 2) the service is to a defined group of people; 3) there is a single contract 
between the recipient :and the riders, not individual contracts between the recipient and each 
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rider; 4) the patrons have the exclusive use of the bus; 5) the charge for the bus is a set rate; and 
6) the riders have the sole authority to set the destination. (52 Fed. Reg. 11919, Apr. 13, 1987) 

; 

In the instant case, Ark first argues that the service is charter because it is provided to two 
"defined groups" of people, skiers and Killington's employees, who essentially have exclusive use 
of the buses. Second, Ark maintains that the Operating Agreement is, in reality, an agreement 
under a single contract, whereby the service is being provided on a hourly rate. Third, Ark 
claims that Killington actually determines the route, rate and schedule, and Killington, and the 
riders via their rental contract with Killington, set the destination. 

As stated by the Chief Counsel in Seymour, a balancing test must be applied to determine the 
nature ofthe service involved in any complaint filed with FTA, since, as the preamble to the 
charter regulation points out at pages 11919-20, there is no fixed definition of charter service, 
and the characteristics cited by FT A are given as examples only. 

In applying the balancing test to the instant case, FTA notes that the service provided by MVRTD 
has similarities to that·provided in Blue Grass and Seymour in that it is provided pursuant to an 
agreement and paid for on a hourly basis. 

Moreover, certain provisions in the Operating Agreement appear to diminish MVRTD's control 
over the service. Specifically, although in its November 22, 1994, response to questions posed by 
the FTA, MVRTD stated that "it is the District's obligation or responsibility to alter frequency of 
pick-ups or days or hours of operation," a reading of Section III.F indicates that MVR TD will, in 
fact, be obligated to provide additional services at Killington's request. Furthermore, Section VI, 
"Employees and Use of Sub-Contractors," appears to lessen MVRTD's control over the service 
by providing that MVR TD will not be discharged from any obligation or liability by 
subcontracting or delegating any services except as specifically set forth in writing in advance of 
such delegation. In addition, while the FT A would encourage· resolution of any differences which 
might arise between Killington and MVRTD, Section XI, "Dispute Resolution and Arbitration," 
puts both parties on an equal footing and therefore, appears to diminish MVR TD's control over 
the service. Further, although MVRTD responded that it has no contracted obligation to provide 
any specific number of buses or size ofbuses, the Operating Agreement states that MVRTD is 
obligated to provide tip to four 32-passenger buses and one back up bus. On this point, FTA 
notes that determining the number of vehicles used is merely an operational detail; however, the 
type of equipment used should be decided by the recipient. Finally, Section III.F provides that 
"[a]t Killington's election" members of the public may be charged $1.00 per ride which will be 
turned over to Killington to defray the cost of providing services. On this issue, the decision to 
charge fares should be MVRTD's not Killington's. Moreover, the fares received should not be 
transmitted directly to Killington, but instead, Killington's subsidy fee for the service should be 
reduced by the amount of any extraneous fares received from members of the general public. 
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In consideration of the foregoing, FT A has determined that the language in Operating Agreement 
shou{d be changed to make clear that MVR TD has primary responsibility for the service and that 
Killington merely makes suggestions concerning the service and otherwise serves only in an 
informational capacity. 

Although the service provided by MVRTD is somewhat similar to that provided in Blue Grass 
and Seymour, it has other characteristics which more easily fit the definition of mass 
transportation. While the Federal Transit Laws, as codified, at 49 U.S. C. § 5302(a)(7) define 
mass transportation as service provided to the public and operating on a regular and continuing 
basis, the FT A has further distinguished charter service from mass transportation by 
characterizing it as: 1.) being under the control of the grantee, who generally is responsible for 
setting the route, rate; and schedule and deciding what equipment is used, 2) being designed to 
benefit the public at large and not some special organization such as a private club, and 3) being 
open to the public and not closed door so that anyone who wishes to ride on the service must be 
permitted to do so. (52 Fed. Reg. 11920, Apr. 13, 1987) 

Ark argues that because the service provided by MVRTD does not contain these three elements, 
it is not mass transportation, but rather charter service. Ark claims that the first element is lacking 
because Killington sets the route, rate and schedule. In addition, Ark asserts that Killington has 
control over the service because it will supply MVR TD with two-way radio communication 
equipment which will be used to interface with Killington. As further confirmation ofKillington's 
control over the service, Ark notes that Killington will have exclusive advertising rights on the 
bus~s and will retain ownership of the ski racks/holders attached to the vehicles. 

The documentation submitted by MVR TD refutes this contention. MVR TD's maintains that the 
routes and schedules identified under the Operating Agreement were developed by MVRTD in 
conjunction with its tiansportation consultant, Multi-Systems, Inc., as part ofMVRTD's Short 
Range Transit Plan (Plan). The MVRTD submitted a draft cb"py of a portion ofthe Plan which 
outlines the transportation objectives to be met as a result of bus service between Rutland and 
Killington. Section 8.2.2 of the Plan indicates that the purpose behind the service design is to 
combine ski-mountain shuttle bus service with regularly scheduled public bus service between 
Rutland and Killington Village. The Plan further provides that the service would be for (I) 
employees from Rutland and Castleton State College traveling to work on the ski mountain~ (2) 
day skiers from Rutland and possibly from Castleton State College~ and (3) Killington Village 
visitors who might be interested in day-time shopping opportunities in Rutland. According to 
the Plan, the immediate objective is to develop a service design for an operation that will be 
cost-efficient, convenient, and well-used. These provisions indicate that it is MVRTD's intent to 
use information supplied by Killington to assist in designing service to meet the needs of members 
of the general public travelling between Rutland and Killington. 

Moreover, MVRTD's·control over the service is evidenced by its response that MVRTD has the 
final say in setting schedules and may increase or decrease routes and scheduling based upon 
demand and volume. ·According to MVRTD, Killington merely has the ability to suggest 
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additional routes or stops. MVR TD further states that it intends to charge $1.00 to the public 
between Rutland and Sherburne and retains the right to charge more than that amount for the 
evening service. Furthermore, it appears that the radio equipment supplied by Killington does not 
necessarily diminish MVR TD's control, but instead will likely facilitate MVR TD's operations. In 
addition, although Killington will have exclusive advertising rights on the buses, according to the 
terms ofthe Operating Agreement the advertisements must be approved by MVRTD in writing in 
advance and thus this provision does not seem to lessen MVRTD's control. Finally, as to the ski 
racks/holders which Killington will attach to the buses and retain ownership of, the Operating 
Agreement provides that MVR TD must give approval prior to installation, and therefore, this 
factor does not appear to decrease MVRTD's control over the service. 

Therefore, assuming that MVRTD will change the language in the Operating Agreement to 
strictly conform to FT A's definition of control, the FT A finds that the service meets the first mass 
transportation criterion ofbeing under the control of the grantee. This corrective action is 
consistent with the PTA's decision in Washington Motor Coach Association v. Municipality of 
Metroplitan Seattle, WA-09/87-01, where the Chief Counsel found that service was mass 
transportation although it failed to conform in one aspect, namely that the service be published in 
the grantee's schedules. In that case, before reinstituting the service, the grantee was ordered to 
publish the service in its preprinted schedules. 

With reference to the second element ofFT A's definition of mass transportation, Ark maintains 
that the service is charter because it is not designed to meet the needs of the public at large, but 
rather two defined groups, namely skiers and employees of Killington. 

In this regard, it should be noted that in the preamble to the charter regulation, FT A states that 
service is desighed to benefit the public at large when it serves the needs of the general public and 
not some special organization such as a private club. (52 Fed. Reg. 11920, April 13, 1987) 
MVR TD claims that the service will provide mass transportation to thousands of people living, 
shopping and working in Rutland, Mendon and Sherburne and not only to skiers or Killinton's 
employees. In addition, MVRTD notes that it is likely that Killington's competitor, Pico Ski Area, 
will benefit from the service. Assuming arguendo that the skiers and employees of Killington 
formed two "defined groups," it is clear from MVRTD's submission that MVRTD's service is not 
intended for the exclusive use of such riders, but is available to anyone wishing to board it. As 
such, it is being provided to benefit the public at large and is consistent with the second criterion 
of mass transportation~ 

This second element of mass transportation extends over to FT A's third· requirement for mass 
transporation, namely that the service be "open door." Ark claims that the skiers and employees 
ofKillington essentially have exclusive use of the buses. In this connection, Ark states that 
members ofthe public will not avail themselves ofthe early morning service and that 
transportation services for shoppers is extremely limited. 
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On the other hand, MVR TD states that the service is open door because access is extended to 
anyone who wishes to ride on the buses. MVR TD points out that skiers in the Rutland area do 
not fit into a "defined group" but actually are the transportation public. In addition, MVRTD 
claims that the general public is already using the service and states that several businesses along 
the route have asked to be included in the service. 

In determining whether service is open door, FT A looks not only to the level of ridership by the 
general public as opposed to a defined group, but also to the intent ofthe recipient who provides 
the service. The intent to provide service that is open door can be discerned by the efforts that a 
recipient has made to make the service known and available to the public. FT A thus takes into 
consideration the efforts a recipient has made to market the service. Generally, FTA considers 
that this marketing effort is best accomplished by publishing the service in the recipient's 
preprinted schedules. ':FTA notes that MVRTD has submitted copies of its schedules for the 
Killington mid-day and evening shuttle bus, and the Rutland/Mendon/Sherburn daytime and late 
afternoon/evening commuter service. Moreover, MVR TD claims that its service schedules will be 
advertised in several local papers and on the buses, and posted at local restaurants, lodging 
facilities, and the ski area. Accordingly, the FT A finds that the service conforms to the third 
criterion of mass transportation in that it is open to the public and not closed door. 

CONCLUSION 

After a thorough investigation, FT A concludes that the service provided by MVR TD is mass 
transportation because it substantially conforms to the following criteria: 1) it is under the control 
of the grantee; 2) it is designed to benefit the public at large; and 3) it is open door. With regard 
to the first element, however, FT A finds that certain provisions in the Operating Agreement 
interfere with the MVR TD's prerogative to control the service in the public interest. FT A, 
therefore, orders MVRTD to change the language of the Operating Agreement to make clear that 
MVRTD is responsible for setting the route, rate and schedules·and deciding what equipment is 
used, with Killington playing mainly an informational tole. MVR TD must report to FT A within 
thirty days on the measures it has taken to comply with the terms of this order. 

Richard H. Doyle 
Regional Administrator 
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Mr. H. Edward Dowling, Jr. 
Owner/Operator 
Florida Stage Lines, Inc. 
3016 W. 38th Street 
Orlando, Florida 32839 

Dear Mr. Dowling: 

FEB I 6 1995 

Thank you for your correspondence of January 30, 1995, alleging that the Regional Transit 
System (RTS) of Gainesville, Florida is in violation ofthe Federal Transit Administration's (FTA) 
charter regulation, 49 CFR Part 604. Specifically, you allege that RTS continues to lease vehicles 
to Breakaway Tours, which is not a legitimate private operator. 

Under the charter regulation, FTA recipients are barred from providing direct charter service if 
there is a willing and able private local provider. Recipients may; however, provide charter 
service through subcontracting arrangements with a legitimate private operator that lacks the 
capacity to perform a particular charter trip. FTA has defined "legitimate private charter 
operator" as the owner of at least one vehicle which it is licensed to operate in charter service. 
See, B&T Fuller. et al. v. VIA Metropolitan Transit Authority, TX-02/88-0 I, November 18, 
1988. 

Complaints that recipients are in violation of the charter regulation are investigated by the 
appropriate FTA Regional Office. Accordingly, by copy of this. letter, I am forwarding your 
correspondence to Paul T. Jensen, Regional Counsel, FTA Region IV. You may contact him at 
404/347-3948. 

cc: Paul Jensen, TR0-4 
Russell J. Olvera 

Form DOT F 1320.65 (Rev. 5/83) 
Supersedes previOUS edtlton 

Very truly yours, 

;sf 
Berle M. Schiller 
Chief Counsel 
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U.8. Department 
ornansponauon 
FeOttal Transit 
AdminiStration 

·Mr. RUG:iell J. Olvera 
Dii'ACt:.OZ'· 
Raqional Transit System 
100 s.a. l.Ot.h Avonue 
Geinesville, Flo~ida 32602 

Dear Mr. Olvera: 

.FEB 2 8 1995 

400 ·~ 81., s.w. 
Wuhlngton, D.C. 2«*0 

Thi~ reBponda to your request for an interpretation oe the 

1·--~~...-IIITCio &YNOC. 

......... 1~0-\u 

l
'' '"'"'""'T·
INrutll() 

.. . 
~. ... . . ··-· .... 
Da.tl/ [q5 ;<2 ;5_ 

I lllfO I\'UIQl 
·~'( .. 'l_ 
I·• , ..• ~J-2.<. 
• Qollfll\lll$1(1 
l. Qfl . 
•••••• I;:;;J(. .... , ••• / 

~1t.l- Ins 
-ic,~· 
rr7' c.,-~<J) 

.~.\-.. ';;; .......... . 
Fedaral T•cm•it AdminiatJ;o•t.i~m'• (fTA) cbart.er regu1G.tion, 49 em-"1Ci.;.c_/f!-J2.~ 
Part 604, aa it applies to the provision of charter service by 
the Reqional 'l'ra.n8lt Sy•tem (RTS) u£ GaJ.m:usvil.1e, !"l.o:t·ic1a.. · 

You sta~a that on JUne 18, 1994, RTS published a notice ot inta 
to provide charter service, re~ueetinq a raapon•• from private 
operators bY Ju!y 31, 1~94. No privata operator responded to 
R'l"S' notioe within the deacUine. on october 26, 1994, Florida 
stage·Lines or Orla.nc!ofOcala contacted RTS to request that .it b 
datamined "willing and able. •• You ask whether Florida Stage ,..--..-. 
Linea ia eligible to be determine4· 11w1111ng and able," aince it 
failed torespond. toRTS' notice by the stated deadline, and al 
sinoa it lacks a valid occupational license ae required by 
municipal ordinance. You moreover point out that Florida stage 
Linea• principal place of business ia in orlando, which is 
approximately 125 mile•. from Gainesville. · ATO IYW~ 

.... u ........ , ••••• 

................... 
Under 49 CFR 604.11, a private operator ~ill only be 4e'tandne4 
"Villing and a:t:>le• if it reaponda to a recipient's notice in 
Writing by th• r•quir.a.d d•adU.f\,_. 'l'hAra'fora, if Florida St.ave 
Lines diet not respond. to R'l'S' notice by July 18, 1994, it may n 
bo 4etezominac! "willing and ab1Q" for the period oov•zo~;~d by tl\at t-----
n~i~. · ., ................. . 

. IHIIIALIIIIO 

Florida Stage Linea may be determined "willing and able" in .................. . 
reeponae ~o a ~vbucquent charter notice if it aeeta tho cri~eri ~,q 
of 49 CFR 604.S(p). i.e., if it possesses the cateqoriea ot 
revenue venic1•• requi~e4 an4 the legal authority-to p~ovido 
c:hartar service ill the affected area. An operator's distance 
:from tb• liervl~~ u·ea may not b• c:ona:l.~e•ed in makin9 a ."villin "P.ioi~~it:IO __ .. 
and able" determination. I understand from your lettar that 
Florida Stage Lines O.oes not hav• " vt::~l.L\1 ""~mit to provide ··················' 
charter service in the Gainesville area.. If auch ia indeed the .. ··~--· 
casa, Florida ~tage ~ines doe& not meet one o:r: the r•q~lc•d 
criteria and therefore ••Y not ba determined "willing and able.". 

7: ( '~ tj (D J)_ ~ 
vvl 

Form DOT F , 3aa.es (Atv.IIU) 
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You alao aRk if, in the absence of a lagitiaate private charter 
operator in the Gainesville area, RTS uy lease vehicles· to 
Breakaway Toura, a local travel agency. 

Aa FTA etate4 in ita letter of ~eptember 15, 1993, RTS may . 
subcontract only with a le9itimete cbart•r operfttn~. FTA haa 
defined. •l•;itimate charter operator• as ·the owner of·at least 
one vehicle which it is licenAAd to operate in eharter ·•orvico. 
See, BiT fuller~ ot al. y. VIA Mettgpolitan Transit AutbQritx, 
TX-02/88-01, November 18, 1881. If .8rotakawuy 'rou:r:lt.owna no 
vehicle• with Which it may provide charter service, .it 18 not a 
legitillate privato·c;~h"rter opez-atoz:o anct thus doea not tiU«li.Cy t.o 
lease vehicle• .from RTS. 

However, in the absence of a ":willing and able" charter operator 
ia-. ita l:f~rvice area, RTS may provide any ~ype of incicientlll · 
charter service, including 4irect earvioe to clients ot BreakaW&J 
Tours. FTA aet 1nes ••inc:1C1antal •• as aarvice tbat does not detraci 
from or interfere ·vitba 9rantee•s regular mass transit 
operat1ons~ · 

Please contact Rita Daquillard at 202/366•1t36 if you need 
furthe~ information concerninq r~A•s Qharter service 
requiramanta. 

cc: Cbarl•• Webb, Boq. 
H. Edward Dowlinq, Esq. 
P•~l J~en, TR0-6 

Very.truly your•, 

1%/ 
Bo~l• H. Sohille~ 
Chief eounael 
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U.S. Department 
of Transportation 
Federal Transit 
Administratiol1 

Mr. Thomas P. Kujawa 
Managing Director 

. Milw~ukee County Transit System 
1942 North 17th Street 
Milwaukee, Wisconsin 53205-0016 

Dear Mr. Kujawa: 

REGIONV 
Illinois, Indiana, 
Michigan, Minnesota, 
Ohio, Wisconsin · 

55 East Monroe Street 
Suite 1415 
Chicago, IL oo003 
312-353-2789 
312-886-0351 (fax) 

.MAR 1 3 1995 

This letter is in response to your request dated March~,. 1995 for guidance as to whether the 
Milwaukee County Transit System (Milwaukee)may provide charter service to.Lambeau Field in 
Green Bay, ·Wisconsin. I understand that Milwaukee has been providing service to various 
sporting events at Milwaukee County Stadium since 1976, but that effective ip 1995 the Green 
Bay Packers will play all of their home games at Lambeau Field. Season ticket holders have been 
offered ti~kets to attend the football games in Green. Bay and Milwaukee would like to provide 
charter service to those season ticket holders. 

As you know, the Federal Transit Administration (FTA) charter regulations (49 CFR Part 604) do 
not allow a recipient of federal funds to use FT A funded. vehicles for the provision of charter 
service excepf under certain limited sitUations. It is my opinion that the facts presented in your 
letter would not qualify for any of the exceptions contained in the regulations. Unless Milwaukee 
can determine that there are no willing and able p.rivate charter operators in the Milwaukee area 
capable of fulfilling this need for charter service, Milwaukee may not provide charter service for 
the pu.rpose described in your letter. 

Please be advised that this opinion is not intended to preclude Milwaukee from providing charter 
· service under a subcontract arrangement with a private charter operator pursuant to 49 CFR Part 
604.9(b)(2) as long as such service is considered incidental and does not impact Milwaukee's 
ability to meet its regular fixed route demand. I hope that this letter answers your questions 
regarding this matter, if you have any additional questions or need additional i.nformation please 
feel free to call me at 3 12-664-7200. 

Sincerely, 

#J/~ 
Dorval R. Carter Jr. 
Regional Counsel 
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us. Department 
of TransportatiOn 

Federal Transit 
Administration 

Mr. Robert E. Ojala 
Administrator 
Worcester Regional Transit Authority 
287 Grove Street 
Worcester, MA 01605 

Dear Mr. Ojala: 

REGION I 
Connecticut, Maine, 
Massachusetts, 
New Hampshire, 
Rhode Island. Vermont 

Transporation System Center . 
Kendall Square, -
55 Broadway 
Suite 904 
cambridge, Massachusetts 02142 

MAR 13 1995 

Thisresponds to your letter of February 24, 1995, concerning the FY .1994 Triennial Review of 
the Worcester Regional Transit Authority (WRTA). Specifically, you dispute the finding of 
non-compliance with the Federal Transit Administration's (FTA) charter regulation and maintain 
that the services WRTA provides in addition to its regularly scheduled routes do not constitute 
charter service. These additional services involve the use ofFTA-funded buses by advertisers and 
the City of Worcester. According to the Triennial Review report, these services are provided on 
an incidental basis approximately two to three times per year on s~~rdays. 

You submit the following reasons to support your contention. First, you state that the WRTA has 
five painted buses in its fleet. You explain that the entire exterior of each of these buses has been 
painted with an advertisement by one advertiser who pays the painting cost and a monthly fee. 
The WR T A allows the advertisers to use the painted buses at various promotional events where, 
in most cases, the buses are merely on display. Under WRT A's current policy, the buses are 
provided either free of charge without. a driver or for $30 per-hour with a driver. Ne~ you cite 
two examples where the WRTAprovided transportation services to accommodate the City of 
Worcester in conjunction with official events. In the first instance, a van accompanied the Mayor 
and other city officials during the "Mayor's Walk," and in the second instance, the WRTA 
provided a van to transport visiting dignitaries on a tour of the city and various revitalization sites. 

Based on the information contained in your letter and the Triennial Review report, the FT A makes 
the following findings. The incidental use of the painted buses by advertisers is not in violation of 
FT A's charter regulation so long as the vehicles are used for demonstration purposes o~y. 
However, if the advertis.ers use the vehicles to transport passengers, the services will be : 
considered charter. 

In response to the issue· concerning the use ofFT A-funded buses to accommodate the City of 
Worcester, the FT A has determined .that these services are charter because the city officials had 
exclusive use of the vehicl~s and sole authority to set the itinerary: Moreover, the services were 
designed to benefit a defined group of people and not the public at large. Furthermore, from the 
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facts submitted it appears the services were operated closed door and were not open to the public. 
Indeed, the transportation services WRTA provided to the City ofWorcester are analogous to the 
charter services described in Question and Answer No. 33 contained in "Charter Service 
Questions and Answers," 52 Fed. Reg. 42253, Nov. 3. 1987 (copy enclosed). However, it is 
important to note that the enclosed final rule published in the Federal Register on October 7, 1994 
(59 FR51133) extended through October 31, 1995, a charter services demonstration program to 
permit transit operators to meet the transit needs of government, civic, charitable and other 
community activities, as directed by Section 3040 of the Intermodal Surface Transportation 
Efficiency Act (ISTEA). Thus, while the services WRTA is providing to the City ofWorcester 
are presently prohibited by the charter regulation, the FT A is currently evaluating this type of 
service and depending on the data collected during the demonstration prognim, the FT A may 
revise the charter regulation to permit this type of service in the future. 

Please be reminded that the FTA charter service regulation prohibits a recipient ofFTA assistance 
from providing charter ~ervice which uses FTA-funded facilities or equipment when there is at 
least one willing and able private charter bus operator. A recipient wishing to provide direct 
charter service must engage in the public notice process set forth at 49 CFR Part 604.11. I£: as a 
result of the public notice process, a recipient determines that there is no willing and able private 
operator, it may provide charter service. Even if a recipient determines that there is a willing and 
able private operator, it may qualify for one of the exceptions set out at 49 CFR 604.9. 

IfWRT A wishes to continue providing the charter service described above it must take the 
following action immediately, as the 90-day period allowed to come into compliance with the 
Trielmiai Review has passed. As stated in the Triennial Review Report and in compliance with 49 
CFR 604.11, the WR T A must annually publish a notice that decribes the charter service that it 
proposes to provide in.order to determi.ne ifther~ i!l a ~ll.il)g ~d able private provider of charter 
service. The notice musi also be sent to all private charter service operators in the proposed 
geographic charter service area and to any private charter service operator that requests notice. 
In addition, a copy of the notice must be sent to the United Bus Owners of America, 1100 New 
York Avenue, N.W., Suite 1050, Washington, DC 20005-3934 and the American Bus 
Association, 1015 15th Street, N.W., Suite 250, Washington, DC 20006. 

With reference to the service WRTA provided during the NCAA Championships in 1992, the 
FTA notes that the WRTA certifies that it will follow the proper procedures to obtain a ''Special 
Events" exception in the future. For guidance regarding services which fall within this ~xception, 
see the information .in Question and Answer No. 21 and the paragraph beginning "Exception 5" 
at 52 Fed. Reg. 42251/Nov. 3, 1987. 
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I hope this information is helpful. If you have any questions, please call Carol Morrissey at (617) 
494-2396 or Margaret Foley at (617) 494-2409. 

~· /\ ~ '<D~ 
Richard H. Doyle U 
Regional Administrator 

Enclosures: Federal Register, Vol. 52, No. 212, Nov. 3, 1987 
Federal Register, Vol. 59, No. 194, Oct. 7, 1994 
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U SOepartment 
of Transportation 

Federal Transit 
Administration · 

Melvin B. Neisner, Jr., Esq. 
Killingt_on..Road, P.O. Box 186 
Killington, VT 05751 

Dear Mr. Neisner: 

Aominis\lator 

APR 4 l995 

.. J::::.t..t£._:._, __ ~-.if~--:Y::- I. ,_6Je·c.cS"Lc:lVI., / 
I 

400 Sever.tt• St.. S W. 
Washtngton. D.C. 20590 

. . 

By your letters dated December 21, 1994, and January 25, 1995, Ark Transportation, Inc. (Ark) 
· appeals the December 16, 1994, decision of Regional Administrator Richard.H. Doyle that service 
being provided by the Marble Valley R_egional Transit District (M:VRTD) in the Killington, · . 
Vermont, ski area is "mass transportation" for the purposes of the Federal transit laws. For the · 
reasons discussed below, l affirm· Mr. Doyle's decision. 

History of the Complaint 

On October 7, 1994, Ark filed a complaint with the Federal Transit Administration (FtA), .. 
alleging that MVRID was providing charter service in violation of 49 CFRPart 604. Under Part 
604, a recipient ofFTA fin~cial assistance may not provide charter service if a private operator is 
willing and able to do so: Ark alleged. that MVRTD had executed an "Operating Agreement for 
Transportation Servic~s'' to provide charter .service for Killington, Ltd. (Killington), a Vermont 
c<?rporation. 

Mr. Doyle found that the service inet most ofFT A's cnteria for mass transportation. and, 
therefore, was not in violation of the charter service regulation. However, since sonie terms of 
the Operating Agreement interfered with MYR TDis control of the service, FT A ordered 
amendment of the Operating Agreement. On January 13,1995, MVRTD submitted a new · 
version of the Operating Agreement, a "Subsidy Agreement," which addressed the control issues 
raised in the FTA decision. Ark has appealed pursuant to 49 CFR § 604.19: 

Discussion 

Each party raises a threshold matter. First, Ark alleges that MVRTD's submission of the Subsidy· 
Agreement was not timely because it was received after business hours on January b, 1995~ and 
thus beyond the 30-day period allowed by the FTA Decision .. Under se~ion 604.5(g), however, 
in this ·complaint process, "[d]ays ·:; . means Federal working days." Accordmgly, the submission 
was timely because FTA received it on January 16, 1995, well within the. deadline ofFebruary 1, 
1995.-. -

Second, in its response dated Feb.ruary 22, 1995, MVRTD alleges that Ark1s appeal thlls to raise · 
new matters of fa~t or points of law that were not available or not known to Ark during the 
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investigation of the October· 6, 1994 Complaint filed by_ Ark, as required by section 604.15. As 
discussed ~elow, I find that Ark's appeal does in fact meet that standar~l. 

I tum now to the princip~ issue of this case, whether the service in question is impermissible 
charter service or mass transportation. The Federaftransit laws define "mass traJ1sportation" as 
"transportation by a conveyance tha~ provides regular and -continuing ·general or special 
transportation to the public, but does not include schoolbus, -charter, or sightseeing · 
transpQrtation." 49 U.S. C. § 5302(a)(7). From this provision, PTA has identified three salient 
characteristics of mass transportation: 

First, mass transportation is under the control of the recipient. Generally, the recipientis 
responsible for setting the route, rate, and schedule, and deciding what equipment is used. 
Second, the service is designed to benefit the public at large and not' s~me special 
organization such as a private club. Third, mass transportation is open to the public and 
not closed door. 

52 Fed. Reg. 11919-20 (April 13, 1987) 

1. Under the control of the recipient. Ark makes several allegations related to the control 
criterion. First, Ark suggests that the schedule and routes _of the village shuttle are controlled by . 
Killington, noting that the routes and times have not chang~d since Ark ran the villagtf shutt~e.~ 
However, section III(k) of the Sub-sidy Agreement vests MVRTD with sole responsibility and 
authority for the setting and modification of routes and schedules. Ark presents no evidence that 
this provision has in fact been violated. 

Second, Ark suggests that MVR TD lacks control over the service because it is limited tQ charging 
one dollar for its evening -service. Again, the Subsidy Agreement provides that "MVRTD shall 
have the option, at its discretion, to charge an appropria~e fee to the general public utilizing-public 
transportation services" provided ·under the Agreement (§ill (G)). 

Third, Ark alleges that the use oftw6-way radios between Killington·and MVRTD demonstrates 
Killington's ·control over MVRTD's routes and schedules. Ark argues that since-local ordinances 
proscribe the use· of r~dios to contact local police, the ra~ios cannot be used for safety purposes. 
However, MVRTD has provided _evidence that the radios are used for safety purposes, not as a 
means for Killington's controL Ark-has not rebutted this. evidence, nor has it explained how such 
radios have been used to control MYRTD's routes and schedules: 

Fourth, Ark questions the section of the Subsidy Agreement requiring MvRTD to proVide 
additional services at Killington's request· AccOrding to Ark, the only time MVRTD need not 
comply with the· request is ifMVRTD does_not have sufficient equipment. Ark believes that 
MVRTD will always have sufficient equipment, so it has·no effective right to refuse Killington's 
request for additional services. However, Ark has provided little evidence ofMVRTD's excess· 
capacity. In the absence. of such evidence, the. Subsidy Agree_ment adequately addresses this 
concern: section II_I(F) provides that additional public transportation services may be requested 
by Killington in exchange for a mutually agreect~upon extra subsidy. MVRTD will not be required 
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to provide the extra services if it does not have vehicles available, if the scope and extent of the 
additional services would significantly or materially alter the Agreement, or if agreement cannot 
be reached on price. ln addition, sectjon III(K) gives final responsibility and authority. to 
MVRTD for any setting and modification of routes and schedules~ Hence, ultimate control rests, 
WithMVRTD. 

Fifth, Ark objects to sections VI and XI of the Subsidy Agreement~ which deal respectively With 
assiglliJlent of contract and dispute resolution. Ark claims that both interfere with MVRTD's 
controf over service. Again, Ark has failed to show how these provisions interfere with 
MVRTD's control over the routes, rates, and the equipment to b~ used. We fioo, on the contrary, 
that the assignment of contract provision increases MVRTD's control over its liability. Moreover., 
the dispute resolution provision does not interfere with MVR TO's control over rates; routes, and 
equipment; rather, it sets the gromid rules for dispute resolution, which makes the agreement 
more predictable for both parties. · · 

Finally, Ark contends that a leftet serit by Killington requesting contributions from local · · 
businesses for bus service shows that Kiilington, not MvRTD, is in control ofthe service. Ark 
contends that the letter was sent only to businesses that previously supported Ark's charter 
service. This request for contribution does not give local businesses control over the service 
because payment is not obligatory. Nothing in the letter indicates that service will be cut offifthe 
contribution is not sent. 

Ark argues that Killington's request for contribution is analogous to Killington's collecting fares 
for the night shuttle, which FTA found in its December 16, 1994, decision to diminish MVRTD's 
control over the service (Decision, at 12). However, requesting contributions from b~sinesses is 
distinguishable from collecting fares for the night shuttle. The passengers on the 'night shuttle are 
obligated to· pay the fare in order to ride the bus. The businesses in .the present scenaii.o are not· 
obligated to subsidize the service in or(ier to benefit from it. Nothing prevents Killington ·from 
asking local businesses to contribute in order to reduee its subsidy to MVRTD. In anyfuture 
letters, however, we recoinmend that Killington clarify that, it is collecting to reduce its own 
subsidy, rather th~ to provide transportation services at the deimmd of the contribut~rs. 
In addition, the letter stated that the contribution could be made either to MVRTD or Killington. 
As discussed above, J9llington may attempt to solicit contributions to reduce its own subsidy. As 
for.checks written to MVRTD, the Subsidy Agreement provides that fees charged to the general 
public by MVRTD will be applied as a credit toward Killington's annual subsidy. (See 
Agreement, §lli(G).) 

2. The service is designed to benefit the public at large. FTA has notedin prior. decisions that 
service is designed to benefit the public at large when it serves the needs of the generat public, 
instead of those of "some special organization such as a private club." 52 Fed. Reg. 11920 (April 
13, 1987). Ark alleges thatMVRTD's village shuttle is not open to t~e public because the routes 
accommodate only those traveling among condominium developments, and not persons travelin_g 
to Rutland or throughout Sherburne dunng·nwst of the day. In FTA's view. persons renting 
condominiums and their guests are not a suffiCiently defined gr~mp to be considered a ''private 
club." Moreover, while the service accommodates them primarily,· it is not restricted to their 
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exclusive use. FT A has ·round that service provided in this manner is. designed to benefit the 
public at'large. Las Vegas Transit s·ystem. Inc. v. Regional Transportation Commission of Clark 

_County. Nevada, NV06/92-2104 (November 25, 1992); Washington Motor Coach Association v . 
. Municipality ofMetropolitan Seattle," WA-09/97-01 (March 21,. 1988). · 

3. Mass transportation ·is open to the ·public and not closed door.· In determining whether 
service is truly ;'open door," FTA looks both at the level of ridership by the general public as 
oppos~d- t.9 a particular group and at the intent of the recipient in offering the service. The intent 
to make service open door can be discefi!ed in the attempts to make service known and available · 
to the public. FT A thus takes into a~coimt the effort~ a reCipient has made to ~ket the service .. 

Generally, this marketing effort is best evidenced by publication of the service in the grantee's 
preprinted schedules (Washington Motor Coach, at 1 0). According t() Blue Grass Tours and 
Charter v. Lexington Transit Authority, URO-ill-1987 (May 17, 1988), FTA has interpreted 
"open door" to mean a substantial public ridership and/or an attempt by the transit' authority to 
widely market the service ffih.ie Grass, at 5). The posting of bus stop signs ·and the connections 
to other transportation routes were also considered indicators of "opportunity for public 
ridership" in Seymour Charter Bus Lines v. Knoxville Transit Authority, TN-09/99-01-(November 
29, 1989) at 9. These ·are simply examples of how recipients maymarufest their intent to make 
.service open door. A recipient is not required to make all of these efforts in order to have 
manifested the intent to make service open door. 

I find that MVR TD has made adequate efforts 'to demonstrate its intent to inake service open 
door. MVRTD.has a preprinted schedule that is made available on request and has published tht. 
schedule several times in local newspapers. In addition, MVR TD has stated its intention to place 
signs along the route. In the meantime, MvRTD_ has stated in its schedule that it will pick up 
anyone who flags its buses so' long as sa:rety ·allows. The level of public ridership (which includes 
skiers using the village shuttle) is also significant. Ark makes a series of allegations regarding lack 

· ofMVRTD signage along the route, MVRTD's failure to advertise routes in certain local · . 
newspapers, lack of "public" ridership, and lack of connections with other local routes. However, 
as noted, a recipient is not requirt~d ~o make all the efforts outlined in earlier FTA decisions, only 
enough effort to manifest an intent that the service is open door. That level of effort has been 
reached in this case. 
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Conclusion 

In summary, the service provided by MVR TD to the Killington, Vermont, ski area meets PTA's 
criteria for mass transportation. I therefore affirm the December 16, 1994, decision·ofthe · 
Administrator ofFTA Region I that the service is not in violation ofFTA's charter regulations.· 

Sincerely, 

cc: John A.. Facey, IIi, Esq. 
Reiber, Kenlan, Schwiebert, Hall & Facey, P.C. 
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U.S. Department 
of TransportaTion 

Federal Transit 
Administration 

Melvin B. Neisner, Jr., Esq. 
Killington Road, P. 0. Box 186 
Killington, VT 05751 

Dear Mr. Neisner: 

REGION I 
Connecticut, Maine, 
Massachusetts, 
New Hampshire, 
Rhode Island. Vermont 

Transporation System Center. 
Kendall Square, 
55 Broadway 
Suite 904 
Cambridge, Massachusetts 02142 

April, 27, 1995 

This responds to your letters dated February I and March 3, 1995, writt~_n on behalf of Ark 
Transportation, Inc. (Ark) alleging that the Bus Company, Inc., 8ikla Marble Valley Regional 
Transit District (MVRTD) is providing charter service in violation of the Federal Transit 
Administration's (FTA) charter regulation, 49 CFR Part 604. Specifically, Ark alleges that 
MVRTD executed a "Grant Agreement" to provide charter service for the Mountain Green 
Condominium Owners Association (Mountain Green) located in Sherburne, Vermont. 

In its response dated February 16, 1995, MVRTD argues that the service in question is mass 
transportation and notes that the purpose of the Grant Agreement is to provide funds for public 
mass transit service in the Mendon-Sherburne area. According to MVRTD, the funds provided 
under the Grant Agreement were used to expand Sherburne's ·pre·serit public transportation system 
by adding a bus to the fleet being operated on the Sherburne-Mendon routes. Furthermore, 
MVRTD points out that prior to the execution date of the Grant Agreement, MVRTD was 
providing what has already been found by FT A to be mass transit servicel/ to Mountain Green 
and actually had a scheduled stop at Mountain·Green. Moreover, MVRTD states that .it.could not 
ignore Mountain Green on its bus route because it is the largest condominium complex in 
Sherburne with 214 units and a commercial center. Finally, MVRTD asserts that the stop at 
Mountain Green connects with its other routes and does have an open door policy. 

lf See Ark Transportation, Inc. v. Marble Valley Regional Transit District, TR0-1/VT-12/94-01 
(December 16, 1994), affdby Gordon J. Linton; Administrator, on April4, 1995. 
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The essential issue in this case is whethenhe service in question is impennissible charter service 
or mass transportation. The Federal Transit Laws define "mass transportation" as service 
provided to the public and operating on a regular and continuing basis. 49 U.S. C. § 5302(a)(7). 
The FT A has articulated other features which logically follow from this definition: 

First, mass transportation is under the control of the recipient. Generally. 
the recipient is responsible for setting the route. rate. and schedule, and 
deciding what equipment is used. Second, the service is designed to benefit 
the public at large and not some special organization such as a private club. 
Third, mass transportation is open to the public and not closed door. Thus, 
anyone who wishes to ride on the service must be pennitted to do so. 

52 Fed. Reg. 11919-20 (Aprill3,:1987). 

First, Ark .makes several allegations concerning the control criterion. Ark argues that the service 
is under the control ofK.illington, through its original underlying contract, and Mountain Green. 
As noted above, the FTA has already determined that the service being provided by MVRTD 
pursuant to the Subsidy Agreement with Killington is mass transportation. Nex;t, Ark argues that 
there has not really been an increase in service on the evening shuttle route because MVR TD has 
added only one additional stop since executing the Grant Agreement, and contends that there is 
actually less frequency of service because the 10:00 p.m. run has been dropped from the evening 
schedule. Moreover, Ark claims that MVRTD does not stop at each ofthe locations listed on the 
Killington Road Rapid Transit Schedule. In FT A's view, the decision to increase or decrease 
service and setting routes and schedules is a proper exercise ofMVRTD's control within the 
meaning of mass transportation and is a critical element in distinguishing it from charter service. 
Moreover, section IV ofthe Grant Agreement between MVRTD and Mountain Green states that 
"delivery of service, scheduling, and type and number of vehicies will be totally under the control 
ofthe [MVRTD]." Ark presents no evidence that this provision has been violated. ·. 

With reference to the second element of mass transportation, the FT A has determined that service 
is designed to benefit the public at large when it serves the needs ofthe general public and not 
some "special organization such as a private dub. 11 52 Fed~ Reg. 11920 (April 13, 1987). Ark 
maintains that the service is not designed to benefit the public at large, only skiers staying at 
Mountain Green's condominium hotel during the ski season. Moreover, Ark claims that the 
Upper Basin Service only transports ~kiers traveling through the condominium developiJ!ents and 
not persons making c;o~ections to other rout~s. In the April 4, 1995, decision on appeal, FT A 
found that "persons ren~ing condominiums and their guests are not a sufficiently defined group to 
be considered·a pdvate club. Moreover, while the service accommodates them primarily, it is not 
restricted to their exclusive use. 11 Accordingly , it is being provided to benefit the public at large 
and is consistent with the second criterion of mass transportation. 
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Turning now to the third characteristic of mass transportation, the FT A notes that deciding 
whether service is open door, involves a two-part test. FT A looks both at the level of ridership by 
the general public as opposed to a defined group and at the intent of the recipient in offering the 
service. The intent to make service open door can be ascertained from the attempts to make the 
service known and available to the public. While FT A considers that this marketing effort is best 
evidenced by publishing the service in the recipient•s preprinted schedules, other examples include 
displaying destination signs on buses, a substantial public ridership and/or attempts to widely 
market the service, and posting bus stop signs and connections to other transportation routes. 

In its decisions ofDecember 16, 1994, and April4, 1995, the FTA determined that MVRID 
made adequate efforts to demonstrate its intent to make the service in question open door. In this 
case, Ark alleges that MVRTD failed to advertise the schedule which included the Mountain 
Green· stop in certain local newspapers during the weeks of December 15 and 22, 1994. The FT A 
notes, however, that the Grant Agreement between MVRTD and Green Mountain did not go into 
effect until December 23, 1994. Moreover, based upon the February 16,1995, edition of 11The 
Mountain Times., it is apparent that MVR TD has been publishing the updated schedule. FT A has 
previously found that a recipient is not required to exhaust all efforts to make the service known 
and available to the public, only enough effort to indicate an intent that the service is open door. 
That level of effort has been reached in this case. 

In con~lusion, the service provided by MVRTD to the Mountain Green Condominium 
Association meets FT Ns criteria for mass transportation. If you have any questions, please 
contact Margaret E. Foley, Regional Counsel, at ( 617) 494-2409. 

Sincerely, 

~\1:0+ 
Richard H. Doyle ~ 
Regional Administrator 
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cc: John A. Facey, II( Esq. 
Reiber, Kenlan, ·schwiebert, 

Hall & Facey, P.C. 
P. 0. Box578 
Rutland, VT 05702-0578 

Ark Transportation, Inc. 
P. 0. Box 313 
.Killington. VT 05751-0313 

Larry Dreier, Administrator 

-4-

Marble Valley Regional Transit District 
158 Spruce Street 
Rutland, VT 05701 

Ms. Judy Douglas 
Vermont Agency of Transportation 
133 State Street 
Montpelier, VT 05633-5001 

Mr. Schulyer Jackson 
Vermont Transportation Board 
133 State Street 
Montpelier, VT 05633 

Frank P. Urso, Esq. 
S-K-I Ltd. 
Killington Road 
Killington, VT 05751 
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Senator James M. Jeffords 
2 South Main Street 
Rutland, VT 05701 

Representative Betty Ferraro 
Ill State Street 
Montpelier, VT 05633 

Mr. Fred Bever 
The Rutland Herald 
27 Wales Street 
Rutland, VT 05701 

Mr. Tim Crossrnan 
The Rutland Tribune 
98 Allen Street 
Rutland, VT 05701 

Senator Patrick 1. Leahy 
P. 0. Box 933 
Montpelier, VT 05601-0933 

Representative John Kasick 
United States Congress 
Washington,_D.~. 20510 

Federal Highway Office 
133 State Street 
Montpelier, VT 05633 



0 
us. Deportment 
of Tronsportotion 

Federal Transit 
Administration 

MI. Joe R. Follansbee 
Executive Director 
Cooperative Alliance for Seacoast Transportation 
213 Main Street 
Durham, NH 03 824 

.Dear 'Mr. Follansbee: 

REGION I 
Connecticut, Maine, 
Massachusetts, 
New Hampshire, 
Rhode Island, Vermont 

June 8, 1995 

Transporation System Center 
Kendall Square, 
55 Broadway · 
Suite 904 
Cambridge, Massachusetts 02142 

This responds to your request ofMay 30, 1995, concerning COAST's plans to provide 
transportation for three upcoming events which are being run by independent non-profit 
organizations. Specifically, the events are Market Square Day (Portsmouth, 80,000 people, 2-3 
buses), First Night (Portsmouth, 60,000 people, 2 buses), and the International Children's Festival 
(Somersworth, 10,000 people). You state that you will perform the service, at the request of the 
communities and organizations holding the events, solely to ease traffic congestion through 
creation of park-arid-ride type shuttle service. According to your letter, the directors of these 
events have told you that without donated transportation services they would be unable to fund 
traffic mitigating shuttles of any type. The service will be completely open to the public, with 
publiCly announced or advertised stops and schedules, at a 25-cent fare. . 

The essential issue in this matter is whether the service in question is mass transportation or 
· impennissible charter service. Based upon the information contained in your letter, the service in 
question does not meet the charter criteria of being provided under a single contract for the -
exclusive use of a defined group of people who have authority to decide the itimerary. Instead, 
the service falls more closely within the definition of mass transportation which is defined under 

. the Federal Transit Laws as service provided to the public and operating on a regular and 
· continuing basis. 49 U.S.C. § 5302{a)(7). The FTA has articulated other features which logically 

follow from this definition: 

First, mass transportation is under the control of the recipient. Generally, 
the recipient is responsible for setting the route, rate, and schedule, and 
deciding what equipment is used. -Second, the service is designed to benefit 
the public at large and not some special organization such as a private club. 
Third, mass transportation is open to the public and is not closed door. Thus, 
anyone who wishes to ride on the service must be permitted to do so. 

52 Fed. Reg. 11920 (Apr. 13, 1987). 
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During a June 8, 1995, conversation with Margaret Foley, Regional Counsel, you stated that 
COAST would set the route, rate and schedule and decide what equipment is used in providing 
the service. Therefore, the FTA finds that-COAST will exercise sufficient control over the service 
within the meaning of mass transportation. Next, you state in your letter that the_service will be 
provided "completely. open to the public." Accordingly the FTA has detennined that the service is 
being provided to benefit the public at large and is consistent with th~ second criterion of mass 
transportation. Turning now to the third characteristic of mass transportation, the FTA notes that 
deciding whether service is open door, involves a two-part test. FTA looks both at the level of 
ridership by the general public as opposed to a defined group and at the intent of the recipient in 
offering the service. The intent to make service open door can be ascertained from the attempts 
to make the service known and available to the public. While FTA considers that this marketing 
effort is best evidenced by publishing the service in the recipient's preprinted schedules, other 
examples include displaying destination signs on buses, a substantial public ridership and/or 
attempts to widely market the service, and posting bus stop signs and connections to other 
transportation routes. According to your letter, the stops and schedules will be publicly 
announced or advertised .. The FT A has previously found that a recipient is not required to 
exhaust all efforts to make the service known and available to the public, only enough effort to 
indicate an intent that the service is open door. That level of effort has been reached in this case. 

In conclusion, the service in question meets FT A's criteria for mass transportation. If you have 
any questions, please contact Margaret Foley at (617) 494-2409. 

Sincerely, 

~\':U+-
Richard H. Doyle U 
Regional Administrator 
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u.s. Department 
of Transportation 

Federal Transit 
Admlnlstrlltlon 

MS'. Rosemary Doyle 
President 
Cape Ann Travel· Company, Inc. 
d/b/a Cape Ann Tours 
5 \Yhlstlestop Mall 
Rockport, MA 01966 

Dear Ms. Doyle: 

REGION I 
Connecticut, Maine, 
Massachusetts, 
New Hampshire, 
Rhode Island, Vermont 

Transporation System Center 
Kendall Square, 
55 Broadway 
Suite 904 
Cambridge, Massachusetts 02142 

8 1995 

This responds to your recent undated letters of complaint addressed to President Clinton alleging 
that a subrecipient ofthe Cape Ann Transportation Authority (CATA) performed impermissible 
trolley service during 1994 and intends to resume the service during the summer of 1995. 
Specifically, you claim that the Cape Ann Transportation Operating Company (CATOC), a 
private nonprofit organization which receives federal funds th,rough CAT A, conducted narrated 
trolley tours last year outside CAT A's fixed-route service and that CATOC plans to apply for a 
State license to conduct sightseeing and charter service this year. 

In its response dated April6, 1995, CATA argues that the service in question is mass 
transportation and not sightseeing or charter service. CATA maintains that its drivers did not 
give narrated tours on the trolley system last year and claims that the service was open to the 
public at an established fare with a fixed schedule. In response to your contention that CATA 
intends to perform sightseeing and/or charter service this year, CAr A submitted a March 14, 
1995, letter addressed to you from the Massachusetts Department of Public Utilities (DPU) 
advising you that CAT A has not petitioned for authority to operate either trolley sightseeing 
service or charter service. Further, CATA notes that, as a private nonprofit company, CATOC 
may petition theDPU for a license to provide sightseeing or charter service as long as CATOC 
does not use publicly funded equipment or receive public funds to operate.the ·service. According 
to CAT A there will be no route devi·ation because the trolley will travel along its regular 
fixed-route system. Moreover, CATA points out that its route system has been in effect since the 
early 1970's and states that Cape Ann Tours operates as a private for-profit sightseeing/charter 
business over existing previously approved CATA routes. · 
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Before reaching the main issue of this complaint, it is appropriate to address several subsidiary 
questions you raised. First, in regard to your concerns that CATA has selected CATOC to 
operate its transportation service, please be advised that FTA's private enterprise participation 
policy (copy enclosed) emphasizes local decision-making. Thus, the public/private operator 
choice is to be made at the local level. Furthermore, although Cape Ann Travel was.not selected 
to provide the service,· CATA did contract with a private nonprofit otganization to operate its 
system. Next, you complain that it is difficult for you to compete with CAT A's fare structure. 
Under 49 U.S.C. § 5307(d)(1)(I), FTA'sjurisdiction over fares is limited to assuring that its 
recipients have a locally developed process to solicit and consider public comment before raising a 
fare. Therefore, CAT A's fare structure is strictly a local matter and as long as CAT A follows its 
public participation process to ensure consideration of public comment in final plans for fare 
increases, it will be in compliance with FTA regulations concerning fare structure. Having 
dispensed with these questions, we will proceed to an examination of the main concerns of your 

·complaint. 

The essential issue in this case is whether the serv1ce in question is mass transportation or 
impermissible charter or sightseeing service. The Federal Transit Laws define "mass 
transportation" as service provided to the public and operating on a regular and continuing basis. 
49 U.S. C. § 5302(a)(7). The FTA has articulated other features which logically follow from this 
definition: 

First, mass transportation is under the control of the recipient. Generally, 
the recipient is responsible for setting the route, rate, and schedule, and 
deciding what equipment is used. Second, the service is designed to benefit 
the public at large and not some special organization such as a private club. 
Third, mass transportation is open to the public and is not closed door. Thus, 
anyone who wishes to ride on the service must be permitted to do so. 

52 Fed. Reg. 11920, Apr. 13, 1987 (copy enclosed). 

You allege that CATA performed impermissible charter service, sightseeing service and school 
bus service as described below. 

Charter Service. Under Section 5323(d) of the Federal Transit Laws, as codified, 49 U.S. C. § 
5301, et seq., and the FTA's implementing regulation, 49 CFR Part 604, a recipient ofFTA 
financial assistance may not provide charter service if a private operator in its geographic area is 
willing and able to do so unless one or more of the exceptions listed at 49 CFR 604.9 apply. 

First, you claim that CATA r~m buses during the Travel Writers Weekend for the Cape Ann 
Chamber of Commerce (COC). In its supplemental response dated May 16, 1995, CATA 
maintains that it advised the COC to "always contact private-for-profit companies" to provide 
these services. CATA acknowledges that on one occasion it did provide transportation for the 
COC during the Travel Writers Weekend but only after you gave CATA permission to do so after 
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withdrawing your offer to provide the service at the last moment which left the COC with no 
other transportation provider.l/ Second, you claim that CATA provided charter service during 
St. Peter's Festival and submitted a copy of the" 1994 Fiesta schedule" whicli states that the Fiesta 
shuttle would run directly between State Fort Park and St. Peter's Square from 6:00 p.m. to 10 
p.m. on Friday and from 7:30p.m. to 10 p.m. on Saturday and Sunday .. In answer to this 
allegation, CATA points out that this schedule was advertised in a newspaper as open to the 
public. Moreover, it is apparent from the schedule that this service was designed to benefit the 
public at large and not some special group· or organization. Third, you allege that CAT A violated 
the charter regulation because they used a vehicle for a parade in Salem, Massachusetts. CATA 
responded that the vehicle was used for advertising only, with no ridership. The FTA has · 
previously determined that the incidental use of buses for advertising purposes is not in violation 
ofFTA's charter regulation so long as the vehicles are used for demonstraton purposes only. 
However, if the advertisers use the vehlcles to transport passengers, the services will be 
considered charter. Fourth, you ask why CATA has an office in Peabody. In its response CATA 
properly notes that this is not a matter of concern to the FTA and explains that the Peabody office 
represents CAT A's Medicaid Dispatch Office for the Department ofPublic Welfare for the cities 
of Salem andLynn. Indeed, CATA notes that your company, Cape Ann Tours, is a transportation 
provider for CAT A's Medicaid Program. Fifth, you complain that CATA ran buses to the 
Peabody Shopping Mall. According to CAT A, this service was instituted pursuant to a request 
made by citizens of Gloucester to the Mayor, is open to the public and is outlined in its fare 
schedule. Accordingly, based on the facts stated above, theFT A concludes that the services 
provided by CATA do not constitute impermissible charter service. 

Sightseeing Service. Under the Federal Transit Laws, as codified, 49 U.S. C. § 5302(a)(7), a 
recipient ofFTA funding may not provide sightseeing service. However, as n.oted in Question 
and Answer No. 39 contained in :"Charter Service Questions and Answers," 52 Fed. Reg. 42254, 
Nov. 3, 1987 (copy enclosed), sightseeing service is ~ot subject to the restrictions placed on 
charter service, and may be provided by a recipient if it is incidental to the provision of mass 
transportation. 

In support of your contention that CATA performed impermissible sightseeing service, you 
submitted a video cassette which was taped during a trolley ride in which the driver pointed out 
places of interest and stated that he was given information to memorize about the area. In 

11 The May 16letter states that CATA provided this service in the Spring of 1994; however, on 
May 18, Mr. Wallace called Margaret Foley, Regional Counsel, to clarify this information. Mr. 
Wallace stated that while CATA had performed the service once in the past, last year the COC 
hired a school bus operator to provide the service. Mr; Wallace further stated that he believes 
that this year Cape Ann Tours will be providing these transportation services. 
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addition, you claim that you saw books describing. the Cape Ann area on the desk of Kay 
Nordstrom, CAT A's operator, and contend that is further evidence that CATA performed 
sightseeing service. In deciding whether service is mass transportation or sightseeing, the PTA 
reviews the characteri~tics of the service to determine to which category it most properly belongs. 
As indicated in copies of CAT A's schedules for its fixed-route and tr.blley system, the provision of 
trolley service will not result in a deviation ofCATA's regular fixed-route service. CATA points 
out that years ago it attempted to run fixed-route service through Essex but due to low ridership 
the service was terminated. Although CAT A's regular fixed-route service only goes as far as the 
·Essex line while the trolley service runs through Essex, under PTA guidelines, recipients have 
discretion to reopen or extend a route and are required to conduct a public participation process 
only in those cases involving major service· reductions. See 49 U.S. C. § 5307(d)(I). Accordingly, 
the PTA finds that CAT A's trolley service is mass transportation and not in violation of federal 
law. 

School Bus Service. Section 5323(f) of the Federal Transit Laws, as codified, 49 U.S. C. § 5301, 
et seq., prohibits the use ofFT A-funded equipment or operations to provide service exclusively 
for the transportation of students and school personnel in competition with private sch9olbus 
operators. However, under PTA's implementing regulation, 49 CFR Part 605, grantees may 
provide 11tripper service," which is regularly scheduled mass transportation service which is open 
to the public and which is designed to accommodate school students and personnel, using various 
fare collections or subsidy systems. Section 605.3 of the regulation states that buses used in . 
tripper service must be clearly marked as open to the public and may not carry designations such 
as .. school bus." These buses may stop only at a grantee's regular service stop and must travel 
within a grantee's regUlar route service as indicated in the published route schedules. 

In your letters of complaint, you allege that CATA is performing school bus service for 
Gloucester High School. In support of this allegation, you state that normally CATA buses can 
be waved down; but not the buses coming from the high school. In addition, you claim that your 
son had to travell/4 of a mile from the high school in order to board a CATA bus. 

In Lamers Bus Lines. Inc. v. Green Bay Transit System, dated May 10, 1982, the PTA found that 
. . 

.loading and unloading passengers in a school yard was not a regular service stop because it was 
uncertain whether the public would be allowed to use the stop on school property or whether the 
stop would be visible and known to the public. In. Lamers, the PTA stated that both of these 
criteria must be met in order to find that a stop on school property is aregular stop. With regard 
to the first criterion, CATA maintains tpat the service stop located at the high school is open to 
the public. MoreoVer, the PTA notes that the bus stop was relocated at the high school after 
William J. Leary, Superintendent of the Gloucester Public Schools, wrote to Mr. Wallace on 
September 30, 1992, asking that CATA use the circle at the main school entrance in front of the 
high school as its bus stop because that area offers the maximum safety for the students who, at 
that time, were required to cross a heavily trafficked street when entering and exitmg the CATA 
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buses (copy ofletter enclosed). Mr. Leary stated that "for safety reasons, CATA has our 
permission to enter school property and to use the circle as its bus stop. II Based on these facts, 
the FTA finds that CAT A's bus stop located at Gloucester High School is publicly accessible. 
Turning now to the second characteristic of a regular bus stop, the FTA is unable to find that the 
high school stop is known and visible to the general public. Although Gloucester High School is 
listed on CAT A's published bus schedule, it is unclear whether the public has been sufficiently 
notified of its location and use as. a regular service stop. FTA, therefore, orders CATA to submit 
documentation that appropriate signs have been placed qn the street, indicating to. the public 
where on the school premises the bus stop may be found. 

In conclusion, the FT A finds that CAT A is not performing charter service or sightseeing service in 
violation of federal law. With regard to the provision of school bus service, CATA is ordered to 
report to the FTA within thirty days on the measures it has taken to comply with the terms of this 
order. 

In accordance with 49 CFR 604.19 (copy enclosed), you may appeal this decision within ten days 
to Gordon J. Linton, Administrator, Federal Transit Administration, 400 Seventh Street, S.W., 
Room 9328, W~shington, DC 20590. 

Sincerely yours, 

~)\:ot 
Richard H. Doyle 
Regional Administrator 

Enclosures: Private Enterprise Participation Notice, 59 Fed. Reg. 21890 (Apr. 26, 1994) 
Charter Service, Final Rule, 52 Fed. Reg. 11916 (Apr. 13, 1981) 
Charter Service Questions and Answers, 52 Fed. Reg. 42248 (Nov. 3, 1987) 
Letter from William J. Leary to CAT A, dated 9/30/92 
FTA's Charter Regulation, 49 CFR Part 604 

cc: Eugene Wallace, CATA 
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""li.S.Department 
of Transportation 

Federal Transit 
Administration 

June 12, 1995 

REGION VIII 
Arizona. Colorado,· Montana 
Nevada. North Dakota. • 
South Dakota, Utah, Wyoming 

Richard c. Thomas, Public Transit Director 
City of Phoenix 
302 N. First Avenue, Suite 700 
Phoenix, AZ 85003 

Subject: Charter Service for Super Bowl XXX 

Dear Mr. Thomas: 

Columbine Place 
216 Sixteenth Street 
Suite 650 
Denver, Colorado 80202-5120 
303-844-3242 
303-844-4217(FA>q 

The City of Phoenix has requested an exception under 49 CFR 
Section 604.9(b} (4} to allow the City to participate directly in 
charter service for Super Bowl XXX to be held in Phoenix on 
January 28, 1996. The City has been asked by the Super Bowl XXX 
Host Committee to provide buses, which will complement the 500 to 
700 buses coming from out of State. 

A petition for a special events exception must describe the 
event, explain how it is special and explain the amount of 
charter service which private charter operators are not capable 
of providing (49 CFR Section 604.9(d) (2)). The service to be 
provided must be incidental charter service in accordance with 49 
CFR Sections 604.5(i) and 604.9(e), that- is , it must not 
interfere with or detract from mass transit operations. 

The Ciby of Phoenix has described the extraordinary size of the 
Super Bowl and the number of buses that.will be needed to serve 
the event. Further, Phoenix has stated that a combination of 
public and private contrac~o~s will be needed to provide the 
service • Phoenix has assured FTA that any charter service 
provided by the City will not interfere with scheduled, 
fixEid-route serv-ice. Therefore, Phoenix has met the criteria for 
a special events exception. 

Accordingly, FTA hereby grants an exception toprovide charter 
service during Super Bowl XXX to the extent that private 

·operators are not capable of providing the service (49 CFR 
Section 604.9(b) (4)). The City shall assure that private 
operators are notified-of their opportunity to participate in the 
service and are permitted to participate to the maximum extent 
feasible. 
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,., 
Thank you for·submitting the request for an exception in such a 
·timely fashion. Best wishes to the Host Committee and the City 
for a successful Super Bowl XXX. 

Sincerely yours, 

i0)1hrj--
; L.9ts ~. Mraz, ~. 
~egional Administrator 

OPTlONAl FOAM 99 (7-90) . 

NSN 7540-01-317-7368 5099-101 . GENERAL SERVICES. ADMINISTRATION 
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rJ 
US.~rtment 
of Transportation 

Federal TransH 
AdmlnlstratJori 

Robert B. Kennedy, Administrator 
Lowell Regional Transit Authority 
145 Thorndike Street 
Lowell, MA 01852 

Dear Mr. Kennedy: 

REGION.! . 
Connecticut, Maine, 
Massachusetts, 
New Hampshire, 
Rhode Island. Vermont 

Transporation System Center 
Kendall Square, 
55 Broadway 
Suite 904 
Cambridge, Massachusetts 02142 

June 13, 1995 

Reference is made to y~ur May 19, 1995, response to the complaint filed by Rosemary Doyle of 
Cape Ann Travel Company, Inc., d/b/a Cape Ann Tours, alleging that Lowell Regional Transit 
Authority (LRTA) was "doing airport service." You acknowledgethat, during the first week of 
May 1995, LRTA provided airport service to the Lowell Sun Charities for the National Golden 
Gloves Boxing Tournament, but contend that the service was within the "incidental basis 
exception of 49 CFR 604.9(b )." According to your letter, the Lowell Sun Charities was unable to 
make a satisfactory arrangement with a private carrier to transport tournament participants to and 
from Logan Airport. You further state that LRTA does not anticipate providing this service to 
. any group in the future. 

Based upon the information contained in your letter, the service provided did not fall within one 
or more of the exceptions set forth in the Federal Transit Administration's {FTA) charter service 
regulation, 49 CFR Part 604. Moreover, there is n<;> "incidental basis exception;" instead, the 
regulation states that any charter service that a recipient provides under any of the exceptions 
must be incidental.charter service. Furthennore,.it appears that LRTA did not complete the 
public participation process as required by 49 CFR 604.11 when FTA-funded equipment is used 
to provide charter service. Accordingly, the FTA has determined that LRTA was in violation of 
the charter regulation. in May 1995. The LRTA must cease this practice in the future or 
jeopardize its federal traiisportation assistance. 
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I hope this infonnation is helpful. If you have any questions, please contact Margaret Foley, 
Regional Counsel, at 494-2409. 

Sincerely, 

~\~+ 
Richard H. Doyle ~ 
Regional Administrator 

cc: Ms. Rosemary Doyle . 
(w/copy ofLRTA's 5/19/95letter) 



US Department 
of Transportatton 

Federal Transit 
Administration 

Mr. Richard J. Simonetta 
General Manager 
Metropolitan Atlanta Rapid Transit Authority 
2424 Piedmont Road 
Atlanta, Georgia 30324-3330 

Dear Mr. Simonetta: 

ALirlWiistrato: 

JUL 21 !995 

400 Seventll St S.\V 
wa~;tMgton. D c. 20590 

In response to your letter dated July 14, 1995, I grant your request for an exception to the Federal 
Transit Administration's (FT A) charter service regulation, 49 CFR Part 604, for charter bus 
service in support of the 1996 Olympic Games in the Atlanta area from June 1, to August 10, 
1996. I understand that this service will require a maximum of six hundred ( 600) transit buses, as 
circumstances dictate, for the sole purpose of transporting certa:in members of the Olympic 
Family, consisting of athletes and accompanying officials, and media personnel (Rightsholding 
Broadcasters and Accredited Press) to and from security-restricted competition and 
non-competition venues. The number of buses required for the Olympic Family System may rise 
to a maximum of eight hundred (800) for extraordinary situations, such as on July 17, 1996, for 
Opening Ceremonies when all athletes and accompanying officials and media personnel need to be 
transported to the Olympic Stadium during. a limited time period. This increase will be utilized 
only when the needs of the Olympic Spectator System are sufficiently diminished. This charter 
service will operate solely to support the transportation of approximately 50,000 of the. members 
ofthe Olympic Family as defined above on a fixed, predetermined schedule. Transit buses used in 
both the Olympic Family System and the Olympic Spectator System will come from transit 
providers from around the country. 

I grant this exception under the special event provision of the regulation, which permits such 
service where private charter operators are not capable of providing the needed service. 49 CFR 
604.9(b)(4). As you indicate, over the last year and a half, the Atlanta: Committee for the· 
Olympic Games (ACOG), the coordinating entity for the Olympics, has met with private 
operators in the Atlanta area regarding service requirements; equipment inventories and estimated 
market demand for charter service during the 1996 Olympic Game~. ACOG has also met with 
senior officials from national and State 01:·ganizations that represent private operatorsin the 
Atlanta area including the Georgia Motor Coach. Association (GMCA), the American Bus 
Association (ABA), and United Bus Owners of America (UBOA). As a result of these 
discussions, ACOG determined that private operators in the Atlanta area do not have enough 
transit buses to meet its needs. 

ACOG has determined that only transit buses can satisfy its needs for a variety of reasons·. Of 
special note, the unique security concen1s presented by the Olympic Games make imperative the 
use of transit buses because they ( 1) afford ease of surveillance and inspection, (2) do not include 
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restrooms, underbelly storage, or overhead storage that pose additional security risks and impose 
additional inspection requirements, (3) have seating that is smooth and easy to inspect, (4) have 
large windows that provide good lighting, and (5) have large wheel wells that are easy to inspect. 
rbelieve that this security factor alone justifies your requirement to use transit buses. 

As you note, other factors support the use of transit buses. Transit buses provide wide aisles for 
transportation of equipment, two-:-doors for access/egress, and interior system information displays 
that will make an important contribution to accommodating the multilingual Olympic Family. In 
addition, I certainly support your desire to use new or nearly new buses for the Olympics. This 
desire, however, is not a factor I have considered in granting the exception. · 

In a similar context, Congress has clearly signaled its intent that exceptions from our charter 
regulation be granted when extraordinary circumstances are present, noting the 1987 Pan 
American Games as an example of a situation that supported the use of "the services of the 
Indianapolis Public Transportation Corporation in meeting the extraordinary transit needs of the 
international competition." S. Rep.No .. 423, 99th Cong., 2d Sess. 66 (1986). Of course, the 
1996 Centennial Olympic Games is an extraordinary event for which transit needs will far exceed 
those ofthe 1987 Pan American Games. The Olympic Games in Atlanta will be the largest 
Olympic Games in history;.twice as large as the 1984 Olympic Games in Los Angeles. Moreover, 
Congress has recognized the extraordinary transit needs of the i 996 Olympic Games and the 
Paralympics by specially appropriating $16 million dollars for the costs of planning, delivery and 
temporary use oftransit vehicles. Department of Transportation and Related Agencies 
Appropriations Act; 1995, Pub. L. No. 103-331, 108 Stat. 2471 (1994).· 

I note also that private operators will provide service during the Olympic Games for 
transportation demand commensurate with their service capabilities. On June 5, 1995, AGOG 
issued a Request For Quotations from private providers to provide transportation service to 
Olympic sponsors·and to ACOG itself. ACOG estimates that approximately 750 over-the-road 
coaches will be used by Olympic sponsors and that a smaller number will be used by ACOG to 
provide Olympic Family services not requiring the sp~cial transportation requirements of the 
Olympic FaO}ilY System fleet. In addition, of course, the Olympics will generate very substantial 
independent demand for transit services on the part of spectators, vendors, and local residents. 
Please advise Susan E. Schruth, Regional Administrator'in Atlanta, on a monthly basis, ofyour 
efforts to coordinate the t~se of private operators for these charter opportunities. 

Sincerely, 
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The Honorable Jon Kyl 
United States Senate · 
Washington, D.C. 20510-0304 

Dear Senator Kyl: 

JUL 3 \ \995 

This responds to your letter enclosing correspondence from your constituent, Mr. R.K. Vollmer, 
President ofNava-Hopi Tours, Inc. Mr. Vollmer expresses concern that the use of subsidized 
transit buses during the 1996 Olympic Games in Atlanta will preclude private operators from 
providing service for that event. You request an explanation and pertinent written information 
concerning this matt~r. 

The 1996 Olympic Games in Atlanta are expected· to be the largest in history - according to 
projections, attendance will be twice that of the 1984 Olympic Games in Los Angeles. 
Recognizing this extraordinary need, Congress provided that in Fiscal Year 1995 "$16,000,000 
shall be available for grants for the costs of planning, delivery, and temporary use of transit 
vehicles for the special transit needs of the XXVIth Summer Olympics and the Xth Paralympiad." 
Public Law 103-33 (September 30, 1994). 

The transit buses to be used for the members of the Olympic Family, defined as athletes, 
accompanying officials, and media personnel, will also operate on a fixed, predetermined 
schedule. These transit vehicles will not be open to the general public, and will therefore be 
providing charter service as defined in FTA's charter service regulation, 49 CFRPart 604. Since 
the regulation prohibits FTA recipients from providing charter service if there is a willing and able 
private operator, the Metropolitan Atlanta Rapid Transit Authority (MARTA), on behalf of the 
other transit agencies lending vehicles for this event, requested an exception under 49 CFR 
604.9(b)(4) to provide service for the Olympic Family (see enclosed copy ofletter from Richard 
J. Simonetta, General Manager ofMARTA). 

Under that provision, recipients may petition FT A to provide charter service for an event of an 
extraordinary or singular nature. One of the factors FT A considers in reviewing such requests is 
the recipient's attempts to determine whether private operators are able to provide the service. 
Attached to MARTA's request is a chronology of contacts that ACOG has had with private 
operators during the past year and a half. According to MART A, these discussions indicate that 
local private operators do not have a sufficient quantity of transit buses to meet the needs of the 
Olympics. MARTA states that for various security reasons, transit buses, rather than 
over-the-road coaches are needed to provide this service. 

ACOG will nonetheless use private operators to support other transportation needs for official 
Olympic sponsors and the Olympic Family that are appropriate to their service capabilities. Please 
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find enclosed a copy of ACOG's request for quotations for charter service for the Olympic 
sponsors. 

FT A granted MART A's request after considering all of the factors outlined above. 

Mr. Vollmer states that the use of publicly subsidized buses during the Olympics will not affect hi 
company, but that it may be affected by the granting of waivers for events such as the Phoenix 
Super Bowl. Please note that upon receipt of such requests, FTA applies the criteria of 49 CFR 
604.9(b)(4) on a case-by-case basis. 

I trust that you find this information helpful. Please do not hesitate to contact me if you need 
further information concerning this matter. 

Enclosures 
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Sincerely, 

/sf original signed by 

Gordon J. Linton 
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BEFORE THE FEDER.AL TRANSIT ADMINlSTRA TION 

In the matter of: ) 

Great American Trolley Co., Inc. ) 

Complainant CHARTER COMPLAINT 

) 49 u.s.c. § 5)23(d) 

Coastal Rapid Public Transit Authority ) TR0-1 V /SC-9/95·0 1 

Respondent ) 

DECISION 

SUMMARY 

Great Americ:.an TroUe:y Co:~ Inc. (GAT). filed this complaint with the Federal Transit 
Administration (FTA), alleging that Coastal Rapid Transit Authoriiy (CR:PT A) is providing 
charter service in violation of theFT A charter regulation, 49 CFR Pan 604. The complaint 
specifically alleged that C~T A bad entered into an agreement to provide charter service for 
Mynle Beach Farms Co., Inc., d/b/a Broadway at the Beach (.SATB). a commercial resort 
development. Applying a balancing test to the service in question. FT A finds that the ervice is in 
fact mass transportation, and therefore, not in violation of the charter service regulations. 
However, CRPTA has failed to modifY eKisting schedules or publish supplementary u.r 
amendatory schedules reflecting the availability of the BATB semce including routing. scheduling 
or fare infonnation. In order to correct this deficiency, such action must be taken to properly 
advertise this service, CRPT A must repon to FT A within thirty days on the measures it has taken 
'o comply with the terms of this order. 

CR.PTA and BATB entered into a "Trolley Operations Contract'' on May 12. 1995 with 
transportation services commencing May 25. 1995, and terminating January 3, 1996~ BATB 
having the option to extend the contract until May L 1996. · 
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GAT is a private transit company operating trackless trolleys (buses) in South Carolina. By 
l~tt~rs dated April 27, 1095, May l. JQ9S, and May 2 t, 1995. GAT filed thi~ complaint with the 
FT A alleging tbat the service in question is actually. a form of prohibited charter service. A copy 
of the "Trolley Operations Contract" was forwarded by the respondent with its response. The 
definition of charter service found in FT A's regulations at 49 CFR § 604.-S(e) is as foUows: 

... transportation using .buses or vans, or facilities funded under the Acts 
of a group of persons who pursuant to a common purpose. under a single 
contra(t. at a fixed charse ... for the vehicle or service, have ac:quired the 
exclusive use of the vehicle or service to travel together under an itinerary 
either specifled in advance or moditied after having left the place of origin .... 

Specifically, GAT complains that CRPT A contracted with BA TB to provide charter services 
within B A TB. a commercial reson development consisting of restaurants, retail shop8. 
entertainment and other business establishments along tbe 21st through 29th Avenue Nonh area 
in Myrtle ncaeh;- South Carolina. According to the complaint. GAT has several trackless trolleys 
which it operates in and around Myrtle Beach; was ready, willing and able to contract with BA TB 
to provide the desired service; but was underbid by C.R..PT A resulting in the contract being · 
award~f to CRPT A hy RA TB. GAT bases its complaint upon nine allegations. 

Allcsation II 1; The proja in question is a prlva1ely owned amusement part called BA TB located 
ia the City of Myrtle Beach, South Carolina. BATB is located at 2ht ~Bypass '1#17. 

Allegation -#2: G~ T has the only approved service to BATB. 

Allegation #3: CRPTA has equipment which is totally funded by the Federal government. 
CRPT A has no approved route to BATS. 

Allegation #4: BATB went o\lt for bids to provide transportation for it$ cmpluyccs and 
customers. This transportation requested would be confined totally to within the amusement 
park. 

Allegation #S: CRPTA submitted a bid to the request for proposal using a trolley funded by FTA. 
CRPTA was awarded the <:ontract. 

Allegation #5A: GAT asserts that it is a gross abuse of the public trust to use Federally funded 
equipment to provide service to a private amusement park and take business from a private 
provider (GAT). 
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Allegation #6: GAT has several trackless tro~leys which it operates in and around Mynle Beach. 
GAT WM ready, willing and able to provide tht service. GAT bid on the <:ontract but was 
underbid_by CRPTA. 

Allegation #7: The contracting entity in this case, BATB. has contracts with the tenants in the 
amusement park wherein BA TB is comnUtted to providing transportation service to the 
employees of the tenants albeit totally within the park. That i$, tht cmploye~s wiU park their cars 
within the park and take contracted for transportation to the tenant properties. 

Allegation #8: The fare, the route. the hours of service and the frequency of servace will all be set 
by BATB. Moreover. BA TB has required that the vehicle to be used will be a trackless trolley. 
BA TB will pay the transportation provider an hourly contract rate and the fare to passengers in 
the park wilt be tree. 

Allegation #9: The service constitutes charter aerviee and not mus transit. GAT has the only 
approved ~rvice to the park. CRPT A will not be setting rates, schedules, or selecting equipment 
to be used. Moreover, this service is ror the bem:fit of a private organization. namely BATB. 
Only employees and patrons of BA TB can use this service. 

R.ESPONSE 

GAT's complaint was forwarded to CRPTA for response and by letter dated June 27. 1995. its 
response was provided. CRPTA asserts that it is a private. non·profit corporation which provides 
maa·transponation services in Horry and Georgetown Counties. South Carolina. CRPTA admits 
that it utilize$ Federal as well as stat~ and local fUnds in the provision ofthese services. · 
Moreover. CRPTA asserts that services it provides at BATB, which is located in Horry County, 
constitute mass transportation allowable under the decisions of thefT A and Federal law and 
re~lation. 

In reipc>ns:~ to allegation #l,CRPTA asacrts that GAT's c:haractcrimtion ofBATB as a "privalely 
owned amusement park•• is misleading. CRPT A describes the project as a development consisting 
of commercial retail. space. theaters. restaurants and retail shops which are leased to individuals 
and are open to the public. It maintains that BA TB is a major development operi to arid 
frequented by the public through the use, in part, of connecting mass transit service provided by 
CRPTA. 

CRPT A denies GArs second allegation that GAT has the only approved service to BATB. 
CRPT A asserts that it has continuously operated routes in the area of' BATS for years and will 
have the capacity t~ provide connecting service to the area. CR.PT A states th~t it has been 
designated by the City of Myrtle Boach M the designated recipient uf funds and that no fUrther 
authorization is needed for transporting passengers within the limits of a municipality. 
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ln response to allegation #3, CRPT~ admits to purchasing cenain equipment (including trolleys 
which it anticipates using at Broadway at the Beach) hut asserts that it has continuously scr"'Yi<:ed 
the surrounding area .. 

CRPT A contends that with regard to allegation #4, it submitted a proposal to BATB to provide 
public transportation for employees and members of the public which frequent the theaters. 
restaurants. and retail shops. CRPT A as~terts that although the service which it has contracted fur 
will take place witiUn the BA TB area, CRPT A will be able to provide connecting service outside 
the area. 

With regard to allegation #5, CRPT A assens that it submitted a proposal using Federally funded 
equipment which was accepted by BA TB. 

CRPTA a6serts in respon:n:: to allegation #'A that Its proposal.to provide service is a lawful use 
allowed by Federal law and regulation. Furthennore. CRPT A contertdS that BA TB is a major 
commercial facility open to the public .and not a private amusement park. 

With. regard to allegation #6. CRPT A states tha~ it is without knowledge as to GAT's ability to 
provide 5ervic~~: to BA TB ·and therefore denies same. Jt also states that it lacks sufficient . 
information to fonn an opinion as to whether GAT provided a bid to perform the service in 
question but admits that GAT provides very limited ~rvice withln the Myrtle Beach area. 

In response to allegation #7, CRPTA asserts that it will have an open-door policy making its 
services available not only to employees but to thl!t public aa weD. 

CRPT A asseru that with regard to allegation #8, CkPT A will establish fares, routes, houri of 
service and frequency of service; not BA TB. CRPT A abo maintains that it retains control O\o'er 
the service to be provided. · 

FinaUy, with regard to allegation #9. CRPT A denies that its •sreernent with BA TB constitutes 
charter service since CRPT A sets its own rates and schedules and maintains control over the 
equipment it will use. CRPT A maintains the service is dt.::.igned to benefit the public at large and 
that it is open door. 

By letter dated June 27, 1995. FTA forwarded a copy ofC.R.PTA's response and notified GAT 
that it would be provided 30 days from receipt to rebut that response. FT A advised GAT that 
upon review of the rebuttal. a review of the evidence would be conducted and a decision 
rendered. GAT submitted its rebuttal to FTA by letter dated Ausust 21, 199S. 

In its t'Cibut1al, GAT asicrU ihot at lh" lime: CRPT A submitted its bid fi>r the service, CRPT A had 
no connecting service 10 BATB nor does it provide connecting service at the present time. GAT 
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alleges that CRPTA has applied to the South Carolina Service Commission for authority to 
operate coMectin.: service but that it has not yet received approval. 

GAT allege:$ that only it has bcc:n authorized by the City ofMynte Beach to service BATB and 
included a letter from the City Manager modifying GAT's route to include service to BATB. 
GAT maintains that the vehicle in question was funded by FTA to service specific route& but that 
the vehicle is used im;tead as an amu!U!ment park t"rolley. not ira rnus transportation as intended. 
GAT encloses pictures which depict a trolley with BATB signage. GAT argues that the vehicle is 
only used at the iimusement park and because of the stgnage, can only be ~sed at the park. GAT 
furthennore argues that BATB controls the usage of the vehicle and points to requirements 
BATB imposes upon said use such as the loc:ation of the route or routes and the times that such 
service mu~t be provided. GAT acknowledges that CRPTA's contract with BATS contains 
provisions which _reserves to CRPT A the sole responsibility and authority for reducing, setting. 
and modifying routes, sc~dules and services but alleges that .6A TB in fact. controls said 
operations since it is given the right to terminate should CRPT A materially chanJe its rateli, 
routes, and schedules. 

Finally. ·GAT alleges that it is a willing and able private provider and. that under FT A's charter 
regulations, CRPT A should be prohibited from providing the service in question. 

PISCUS£IQN 

The essential issue in this matter is whether the service provided by CRPT A is charter or 
permissible maN trauportation. 

The: Ff A has rendered several decisions regarding what constitutes charter service. Those 
decision:t include Swour Charter Bus Lines v. KnS'!xviUe Iroosit Authority,· TN-09/88/0 1; ~ 
QrlUI fpurs and Charter v. Ltlinaton Transit Autho~. URO-W-1987; •nd most recently, Ark 
Transportation. Inc. v. Marble VaHey Regio~al transit District, TRO-lNT-12/94-0l. AJthouJb 

. GAT does not cite prior FT A decisions in suppon of it1 claima, it raises itsues sinillar to those 
raised in the above cited decisions. Smn2.Yr and Blues;ru& were cases involving service in and 
around university campuses which the FT A determined was chaner and not mass transportation. 
M.involved service in Killington, Vennont which parallels in numerous respects the service 
CRPT A intends to provide to Broadway at. the Beach. 

The Federal transit laws, as codified at 49 U.S.C. §5302(a)(7) define mass transportation as 
service provided to tbe public and uperating on a regular and continuing basis. The fT A has 
further distinguished charter service from mass transportation by characterizing it as: l) being 
under control of the grantee, who generally is responsible for setting the route, rate, and schedule· 
and de.ciding what equipment is used. 2) beins designed to benefit the public at large a.nd nol 
some special organization such as a private club, and .3) being open to the public and not closed 
door so that anyone who wishes to ride on the service must be permitted to do so. (52 Fed. Reg. 
ll920t April13, 1987) On the other hand, FTA has defined the main features ofchaner as: 1) 
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the service is by bus or van: 2) the service is to a defined group of people: J) there i& a single 
contract between the recipient and the riders. not individual contracts between the recipient and 
each rider: 4) the patrons have the exclusive use of the bus: 5) the charge for the bus is a set rate; 
and 6) the riders have the sole authority to set the de3tination. (52 Fed. Re-g. 11919, April 13, 
1987) GAT argues that because the service provided by CRPT A does not contain the elements 
characteristic of mass transportation, that it is therefore chaner service. OAT claims that because 
of a cancellation clause included in CRPT A's contract with BA TR. RAm has control over the 
service rendered thus effectively placing it in the position of establishing the route; rates, schedule. 
and dec:i~ion of what equipment i$ to be uS<Xl. GAT t\mhcr argues that permanent advertising by 
BA TB upon the trolley dictates that there can be no discretion as to which vehicle can be used, 
thus placing the operation of the vehicle in the control ofBATB. 

Ibe Issue ofContrQI 

The operative clauses in question invoked by GAT in asserting that BA TB controls the operation 
of the service are found in paragraphs 2 and 8 ofCR.PTNs Operations Contract. Paragraph 2 
reads in part: 

" ... Notwithsumdins. any provision to the con1rary, CRPT A reserves the sole 
responsibility and authority for reducing, setting, and modification of routes, 
schedules and services provided under this agreement. provided. however. that 
any m-aterial chanse by CRPT A in the rates, routea and schedules provided 
under this agreement shall give BATB tbe right to terminate this agreement .... " 

11 
••• In the event a CRPT A troUey is out o( strvice for one ( l) hour. CRPT A 

.shaD provide a replacement trolley .... Replacement trolley will cany nq 
advertising. If a CRPT A mini-bus (Goshen) is substituted at the discretion 
ofC.RPT A for troUey during extended sernce hours. additional BA TB 
signnge identiti~ation will be applied.". 

CRPT A maintains that it alone establishes the fares, routes, hours of service and frequency of 
service based on its proposal to BATa . .i-TA finds CRPT A's argument persuasive. The terms of 
the Operations Contract clearly reserve the sole responsij>itity and authority to CRPT A for 
reducing, setting, and modification of rou~es~ schedules and services. It clearly authorizes 
CRPT A to substitute at its discrotion a mini-bu5 for the trolley during ex.ttmded hours of service. 
It allows CRPT A the discretion of picking up and dropping off passengers anywhere along the 
route as det.ermined by CRPT A. It provides that CRPT A shall fumi$h the operators, fuel, and 
supplies at its own expense and that the operators and other persons employed by CRPT A in or 
about the performance of this service shall be and remain the employees of CRPT A and not 
BA TB. And finally. it rc:servts to CRPT A the autho1ity to approve any requested advertising or 
vehicle markings in advance. FT A believes these facts outweigh any influence BAm could bring 
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to bear due to its nght to tenninate since clearly the contract must be mutually beneficial to each 
party with each having demands. necessitities. and legal obligations which dictate 'the nature and 
manner of ~ervice to be provided. 

Many of these same factors existed in Ark wherein FT A detennined that the provider in question. 
Marble Valley Regional Transit Distri~ (MVRTD), developed the routes and schedules identified 
in its Operating Agreement and that it had the final say in $ettins $Chedules and increasing or 
decreasing routes and scheduling based on demand and volume. In addition, MVRTD had final 
approval authority over alladvertisins placed on the bus, even though BA TB's counterpan in 
,M, Killington. had exclusive advenising rights on the buse$. FT A det~nnined that this provision 
did not diminish MVRTD•s control or operation of the service. Ark and the instant case are 
distinguiJhable &om Seymour and Blue Grui. cases involving service to university campuses 
wherein the universities were found to have set the schedules and fares rather than the transit 
operator and had the prerogative to aher routes and schedules. Such i:s not the case in the matter 
before us here. · 

The Iawe ofWhs;ther Service is Designed tQ Benefit the Public at Lw;~ 

OAT maintains that the service provided by CRPT A is confined to the employees and customers 
of a private amusement park and·therefore not designe~ to benefit the public at large It .. 
flarthennore asserts that CRPT A has no connecting service to BA TB and lhat GAT has the only 
approved service to the park. 

In this reprd, it shoUld be noted that in the preamble to the charter replation. n A stites that 
IJei'Yice is designed to benefit the publi~ at larae when it 'serves the needs of the seneral. public and 

·not some special organization such as a private club. (S2 Fed. Reg. 11920, Aprill3, 1987) 
CRPT A argue. that BA TB is a development of ~ommcreial retail space frequented by the public 
and that members of the public as weU as employees wi~ be provided transportation. CRPT A 
furthermore adds that it anticipates providing connecting service to the park at some point in the 
fUture although none is currently provided. 

It is clear that service is not intended for an cxdu$ivc group of riders, as -.ppeared tO be the we 
in BluesrasJ and Sewour, i.e. college students, but that it is available to anyone wishing to board 
it. In addition, although FTA recognizes connecting service would enhance the availability of the 
service to the public. it is not essential that it be provided in order to cause the service in question 
to be detennined to be mass transponation; that is, under the control of the grantee. of benefit to 
the public at large, and open door. finally, for purpu~~ of the Federal government, CRPT A has 
submitted a legal opinion stating that it has the legal authority and capacity to provide mass transit 
service and to receive and disburse Federal funds for·that purpose. · It has entered into contractual 
agreements with FTA agteeing to provide mttss transit se-rvices in accordanc::e with applico.blc 
Federal rules and regulations. In this regard. no further authorization is needed for purposes of 
wmplying with FT A mandates. Should additional local 

616 



t- I HI IJW-4 1Jt.L. J.J. ':;:~;) 

-8-

authorization be deemed necessary by the State of South Carolina, that is an issue of purely local 
concern. 

The I s;.u~ of Whether Service is Open Door 

GAT maintains that the service provided by CRPT A is for 1he benefit of a private organization. 
i.e. BA TB. and that only employees and p~trons ofBATB can use this Bervice. Once again, 
CRPT A argues that its service is open to all employees and members of the public seeking 
h ansportation i.n the area. 

In determining whether service is open door. FT A looks not only to the level of ridership by tbe 
general public as opposed tn a defined group, but also to the intont of tho recipient who provides 
the service. The intent to provide service that is open door can be discerned by the efforts that a 
recipitml hae~ mau,., lu make the service known and avallable to the public. rTA thus takes into 
consideration the efforts a recipient has made to market the service. Generally, FT A considers 
that this marketing etron is best accomplished .by publishing the service in the recipient's 
pre-printed s~hedules. 

CRPT A states that schedules will be posled not only on the Cfli'TA verucles but also throughout 
the restaurants. retail shops and theaters of the development as well as throu.Khout Horry and 
Georgetown Counties. CRPTA provided no schedules as evidence of this assenion however, 
and, in fact, the only schedule pro.vided w•s provided by GAT as exhibit S to its rebuttal. That. 
schedule is entitled, "System· Wide Route Map/Year Round Schedule/C.R.PT A/Effective February 
1995." Illists various route infonnation, maps. and fares for services provided by CR.PTA. 
Nowhere does it list service or route information relative to the BATB service. Since the 
Operating Agreement is dated May 12. 1995. the schedule obviously would not reference the 
BATB service. No evidence was. presented, however, which indicates that the schedule was 
updated.or that other commonJy distributed schedules to the general public are .now in existence 
which advise the pubUc of the availability of service at BA TB. It therefore is not apparent that 
CRPT A has taken efforts to market the service and make the service known and stvallable to the 
public, the second test in determining whether the service is. in fact,. open door. In consideration 
o~the forgoing, FTAgas detonnined that although the service dOC$ not"appea1 to be pro\ided to 
an exclusively defined group. and is thus. "open door", CRPT A has failed to adequately make the 
availability of the service known to the general public. Assuming, however, that CRPT A reprints 
its existing schedules or provides supplementary schedules which depict and describe availabUity 
of the BATB service, FTA finds that the service meets the third mass transportation criterion of 
11 open door''. 

[:ONCLUSIQN 

After a thor9ugh investigation, FT A concludes that the service provided by CRPT A is mass 
trunsporta.tion bec;uwse it substantially conforms to the tollowing criteria: 1) it is under the control 
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of the grantee; 2) it is designed to benefit the public at large; and 3) it is open door. With regard 
to the third ~lement, however. F'J'A finds that CRPTA has failed to adequately ·inform the public 
of availability of service at BA TB. FTA accordingly orders C.RPT A to reprint exi11ting schedules 
or publish amendatory schedules which clearly notitie the.public of the availability of service at 
BA TB including routing, :~cheduling. and fare information. CRPT A must repon to FT A within 
thirty days on the measures it has taken to comply with the terms of this order. 

~z~ 
Susan E. Schroth 

~z..,tqq_s 
· Date 

.R..:giunal Administrator 
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u.s. Department 
of Transportation 

Federal Transit 
Administration 

Ms. Rosemary Doyle 
President 
Cape Ann Travel Company, Inc. 
d/b/a Cape Ann Tours 
5 Whistlestop Mall 
Rockport, MA 01966 

Dear Ms. Doyle: 

REGION I 
Connecticut. Maine. 
Massachusetts. 
NeW Hampshire. 
Rhode Island. Vermont 

Transporation System ~nter 
Kendall Square, 
55 Broadway 
Suite 904 
Cambridge. Massachusetts 02142 

.OCT 2 3 ·~~~ 

This responds to your letters of complaint dated September 6 and 16, 1995, alleging that the Cape 
Ann Transportation Authority (CATA) performed impermissible charter service during Schooner 
Festival w~ekend on September 2, 1995. In addition, your September 6letter suggests that 
CAT A is violating charter regulations by transporting students to after-school events. 

Before addressing the essential issue of your complaint, it is appropriate to address a subsidiary 
question you .raise4. You complain that it is difficult for you to. compete with CAT A's fare 
structure. Under 49 U.S.C. § 5307(d)(1)(I), the FTA's jurisdiction over fares is limited to 
assuring that its recipients have a locally developed process to solicit and consider public 
comment before raising a fare. Therefore, CAT A's fare structure is strictly a local matter and as 
long as CATA follows its public partiCipation process to ensure consideration of public comments 
in final plans for fare increases, it will be in compliance with FT A regulations concerning fare 
structure. Having dispensed with this question, we will proceed to the main concern of your 
complaint. 

Based upon the information contained in CAT A's September 18, 1995, response, the service in 
question does not meef

1
the charter criteria of being provided under a single contract for the 

exclusive use of a defined group of people who have authority to decide the itinerary. 49 CFR § 
604.5(e). Instead, the servicefalls more closely within the definition of mass transportation which 
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is defined under the Federal Transit Laws as service provided to the public and operating on a 
regular and continuing basis. 49 U.S. C.§ 5302(a)(7). From this provision, the FTA has 
identified several salient characteristics of mass transportation: service that is under the control of 
the provider, designed to benefit the public at large, and open to the public and not closed door. 

· 52 Fed. ~eg. 11919-20 (April 13, 1987). 

In his September 18 response, Eugene Wallace, Administrator of CAT A, maintained that the 
service in question operates over CAT A's regular fixed-route system. Moreover, during an 
October 19, 1995, conversation with Margaret Foley, FTA Regional Counsel, Mr. Wallace stated 
that CAT A sets the route, rate and schedule and decides what equipment is used in providing the 
service. Therefore, the FTA finds that CATA exercises sufficient control over the service within 
the meaning of mass transportation. 

Next, CATA claims that the service is not for the exclusive use of any group or organization. 
Accordin~y, the FTA has detennined that the service is being provided to benefit.the public at 
large and is consistent with the second criterion of mass transportation. This second element of 
mass transportation overlaps with PTA's third requirement for mass transportation, namely that 
the service be "open door." In detennining whether service is open door, FTA looks not only to 
the level of ridership by the general public as opposed to a defined group, but also to the intent of 
the recipient who provides the service. The intent to provide service that is open door can be 
discerned by the attempts that a recipient has made to make the serVice known and available to 
the public. FTA thus takes into· consideration the efforts a recipient has made to market the 
service. Generally, FT A considers that this ~arketing effort is best evidenced by publishing the 
service in the recipient's preprinted schedules, however, other examples include displaying 
destination signs on buses, a substantial public ridership, public advertisements, and posting bus 
stop signs and connnections to other transportation. routes. A recipient is not required to exhaust 
all thes·e efforts to make the service known and available to the"}>Ublic, only enough effort to 
indicate an intent th~t the service is open door. In this regard, FTA notes that CAT A's 
transportation schedule for Schooner Festival weekend was advertised in a local newspaper which 
stated that the service was being provided to ease traffic congestion. Moreover, CATA submitted 
a copy of its regular route schedule which lists service to and from Gloucester High School as 
well as several other-schools. Mr. Wallace maintains that the buses that stop at the schools are 
open to the public and do not carry school bus designations. Thus, it appears that the 
transportation CATA provides to students for after-school events is "tripper service" which is 
defined at 49 CFR § 605.3 as regularly scheduled mass transportation serVice which is open to the 
public and designed to accommodate school students. Accordingly, the FT A finds that the service 
in question conforms to the third criterion of mass transportation in that it is open to the public 
and not closed door. 
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In conclusion, theFT A finds that CATA is not performing charter service in violation of federal 
regulations. In accordance with 49 CFR § 604 .. 19, you may appeal this decision within ten days 
to Gordon J. Linton, Administrator, Federal Transit Administration 400 Seventh Street, S.W., 
Room 93~8, Washington, D.C. 20590. 

We hope this information is helpful. If you have any questions, please contact Margaret Foley at 
(617) 494-2409. 

/ft,,(L)~ 
Richard H. Doyle 0 
Regional Adrnirustrator 

· Enclosures: 49 CFR Part 604 - Charter Services 

cc: Mr. Eugene Wallace, CATA 
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U.S. Department 
of Transportation 

Federal Transit 
Administration . 

Rosemary Doyle, President 
Cape Ann Travel Company, Inc. 
d/b/a Cape Ann Tours 
5 Whistlestop Mall 
Rockport, MA 01966 

Dear Ms. Doyle: 

REGION I 
Connecticut. Maine. 
Massachusetts, 
New Hampshire. 
Rhode Island. Vermont 

Transporation Sys,tem Center 
Kendall Square. 
55 Broadway 
Suite 904 
Cambridge, Massachusetts 021"-

October 10, 1996 

This responds to your letters of complaint alleging that ·the Cape Ann Transportation Authority 
(CATA) is perfonning impermissible charter service. Specifically, in your undated letter received 
in this office July 3, 1996, you claim that CATA is perfonning charter service for the joint 
<;:harnbers of Colllll)erce (COC) and is providing trolley service aloJl$ the same route that Cape 
Ann Tours has operated over for the past eight years. In your letter of July 5, 1996, you contend 
that CATA violat¢ charter regulations in connection with transportation service for the Boston 
Consulting Group (BCG); and you also complain because CAT A selected the Cape. Ann 
Transportation Operating Company (CATOC) as their operatpr instead of your company. CATA 
submitted responses to your complaint on July 11 and 12, 1996; however, you did not submit a 
rebuttal. 

With regard to your allegation that CATA is providing impermissible charter service for the COC, 
CATA.maintains that Federal funds and. Federally funded equipment are not used.toprovide the 
"Rockport Shuttle" service. Furthermore, in support of its statement that the service is open· to 
the public and operates as regularly scheduled service on a fixed-route system, CAT A submitted a 
copy of the printed route schedule for the "Rockport Shuttle." Moreover, CATA claims that it 
does not provide transportation service solely for the.use of any organization or group. In 
response to your claim that CATA operates trolley service over the same route you have used for 
the past eight years, CATA points out that its operations predate those 'of Cape Ann Tours; and 
while your company operates as a private for-profit charter and sightseeing business, CATA 
operates as a public transit provider: 

Pursuant to FT A's cll.arter service regulation, 49 CFR Part 604, a recipient ofFT A funding may 
not provide charter ~ervice using Fi A-funded equipment or facilities if there is a private operator 
in its geographic area willing and able to provide that charter service, unless one or more of the· 
exceptions listed at 49 CFR 604.9(b) apply .. Recipients are subject to the charter regulation but 
only to the extent that they use FT A-funded equipment or facilities to provide charter service. If 
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a recipient sets up a separate company that uses only locally funded equipment and facilities and 
operates the service solely with local funds, or the recipient is able to maintain separate accounts 
for its charter operators to show that the charter service is truly a separate division that receives 
no benefits from the mass transportation division, then FTA's charter rule does not apply. 52 
Federal Register 42248 (November 3, 1987) According to CAT A, no Federal funds or Federally 
funded equipment are being used to provide the "Rockport Shuttle" service. How~ver, even if 
Federally funded equipment and facilities were used to provide the service in question, based 
upon CAT A's July 11 response and the "Rockport Shuttle" route schedule submitted therewith, 
the service in question does.not meet the charter criteria of being provided under a single contract 
for the exclusive use of a defined group of people who have authority to decide the itinerary. 49 
CFR § 604.5(e} Rather, the service falls more closely within the definition of permissible mass 
transportation which is defined under the Federal Transit Laws as service provided to the public 
and operating on a regular and continuing basis. 49 U.S. C.§ 5307(a)(7). 

Next, you assert that CATA "compounded" the alleged charter violations by notifying you of an 
opportUnity to perform charter service for theBCG. To substantiate your claim, you submitted a 
copy of CAT A's April25, 1996, letter to you which states that, "[i]fyou are interested and are 
able to provide transportation for .the enclosed [BCG] schedules, please_ call ... with a price quote 
as soon as possible." In his July 12, response Mr. Wallace explains that CATA only assisted the 
BCG in locating private operators to perform charter service, but did not supply any vehicles or 
equipment, Federally funded or otherwise, and did not contract with any operators to provide the 
service in question. In ·addition, you complain that CATA selected CATOC, a private nonprofit 
organization, as its operator instead of Cape Ann Tours. In this regard, FTA's jurisdiction is 
limited to requiring its grantees to follow the procurement standards set forth at 49 CFR § 18.36 
and FTA Circular 4220.1D, "Third. Party Contracting Requirements" in order to assure full and 
open competition. Otherwise, the choice of operator is to be made at the local level. 

In conclusion, the FTA finds that CATA did not perform charter service in violation ofFederal 
regulations. In accordance with 49 CFR § 604.19, you may appeal this decision within ten days 
of receipt to Gordon J. Linton, Administrator, Federal Transit Administration, 400 Seventh 
Street, S.W., Room 9328, Washington, D.C. 20590~ You must include in your appeal the basis 
for the appeal and evidence to support your position and provide a copy of the appeal to CATA. 
I hope this information is helpful. If you have any questions, please contact me at ( 617) 
494-2409. 

Sincerely, 

"'--jJLtJ/u/ diU r f 50 .. /A 

Margaret i Foley --"T ., 7 
Regional Counsel 

cc: CATA 
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US·~t 
0( TnilnSPQrtcitiOn 
Federal· Transit 
AdmtlliStratlon 

Rosemary Doyle, President 
Cape Ann Tours and Trolley 
Jl. 0. Bo~278 
Rockport, ·¥A 01966-0378 

Pear Ms. Doyle: 

REGION I 
Connecticut. Maine, 
Massachusetts. 
New Hampshire. 
Rhode Island, Vermont 

Transporation System Center 
Kendall Square, 
55 Broadway 
Suite 904 
Cambridge, Massachusetts 02142 

Nove~~~r 7 ~ 1996 

This is to advise you that we are not con~ider;ing your lett.er. of Oct;o~er 2~, 199~, an. appeal of 
tJte Federal Transit Administration's (FTA) OctoberlO,.'l996, d~cisio~ because· your Ietter .. does 
not meet the standard set forth at 49 CFR § 604~ 19 (~op~ e11closed)'wQich requires :that an appeal 
preseJ1t evidence that there are new matters. of fact oi poiptS of law that were not 'available or not 
knoWn duriilg the investigation of the complaint. The· October I 0 ruling held' that the service 

• i • ·•) ~ ., 

being prov.ided by the Cape~ Tran~portation Autb,opty (CATA) is no~' impermi~si\)le charier 
service. In the preamble to the charter regulations, FTA"staies that· the main featUres of charter 
are: 1) the: service is by bus or van; 2) the service is'tQ:.~ defined~groqp ofpeople;j) thefe is a. 
single contract be~een the recipient alld the riders, not IndiVidual contract~.~e!Ween the recipient 
and each rider; '4) the patrons have the exclusive use of the bus; 5) tlie. charge for the by~js a:ser 
rate; and 6) the riders have the sole authority to set the destination. (52 Fed Reg,. I 't9i~~ April' 
13, 1987) (copy enclosed). Charter service is usually thought of as a on~-t~e.provi~ion 'or · 
~ervice and the user, not the recipient, has the control of the service .. .Jd' .. · 

In contrast, the Federal transit laws define "mass transportat~on" as servic~ provided· to the public 
and operaiing .on a regular and continuing basis. 49 U.S. C.§ 5302(a)(7)(copy enclosed). From 
·this provision, FTA has identified.three salient_characteristics of mass transportation: 

Firs~,rnass transportation is under the control of the recipient. Generally the recipient 
is responsible for setting th¢ rQU~~ •. ~a;t~, ,and schedule, an9 deci9,~g what _equipmertt 
is U$ed. S~~nd, the ~~fyic.e is.~((e~ign~d tp benefit the ~ublic ~t.farS,~.~~ hot some· 

. special organization such as a priva~e club. Third, inas's'.fransport~tiori is op~~ to'•' 
the public and is··~,ot closed d~or. · ·· · 

5.~ Fed Reg. 11919-20.:~ 

As $.tedjn:.FTA's.October 10 decision, even:ifFederally funded equipment and faciliti~s were 
Jj~ed.~o,;:p~ovide the tran~portation m questiqn, based upon Cf\TA's July 11, 1996, response and 
the Rockport Shu~le route schedule s~bmitie~ therewith; the ~~rVic:;e in question does not meet 
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the charter criteria of being provided ·under a single contract for the exclusive use of a defined 
group of people who have authority to decide the itinerary. 49 CFR § 604.5(e). Rather, the 
service falls more closely within the definition of permissible mass transportation because it is 
open to the public and operates on a regular and continuing basis. 

Furthermore, the FTA found that CATA did not violate the charter regulations by notifying you 
of an opportunity to perform charter service for the Boston Consulting Group (BCG). You note 
in your October 24 letter that you were asked to submit a bid directly to CATA instead of to the 
BCG and although this request may have given the appearance that CATA was involved in 
providing the service, CATA explained in its July 12 response that it only assisted the BCG in 
locating private operators to perform charter service, but did not provide any vehicles or . 
equipment and did not contract with any operators to provide the service. While FT A does not 
require grantees to give members of the public who request it the name of a "willing and able" 
private provider, we recognize that this information may be beneficial to the public and encourage 
grantees to provide it. 52 Fed Reg. 42250 (November 3, 1987) (copy enclosed). Grantees who 
have a roster of several private providers may use their discretion in determining which names to 
give to a member.ofthe public who calls. !d. In this case CATA went further andnotified you of 
the opportunity to provide charter service and asked you to submit a price quote. The FTA 
recommends that in the future, if a member of the public calls CAT A for charter services, CATA 
should only provide the names of willing and able private providers so as not to create the 
appearance that the charter regulations are being circumvented. 

In your October 24letter, you state that you havenot been at the Whistlestop Mall address since 
July 1995. You complain because FTAfor:Warded CAT A's responses to your complaint to that 
address, but also state that you did riot see any .sense in submitting a rebuttal thereto. 
Unfortunately, you do not usually put a return address on your correspondence, and it was not 
until the Post Office returned the October 10 decision that FT A first realized mail is no longer 
delivered to the old address. Please be assured that we will keep a record of your new address in 
our files. In order that our records remain accurate, we ask that you include your address on 
future correspondence so we will know whether you are still at the same location. 

. . . . 

:;;· .wr~ MArg.:k. Foley (/ 
Regional Counsel 

cc: Joseph Randazza, Acting Administrator, CATA 

Enclosures: 49 CFR Part ·604 
49 U.S.C. 5301, et seq. 
52F~d Reg.-11916 (April13, 1987) 
52 Fed Reg. 42250 (November 3, 1987) 
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· u S DeoarrrneN 
ot Transpononon 

Federal Transit 
Administration 

Mr. Richard A. White 
General Manager 
Washington Metropolitan Area Transit Authority· 
500 Fifth Street, N.W. 
Washington, D.C. 20001 

Dear Nlr. White: 

-1 I 
C ll rDh-

..:.:~; s~\;en:r St. s "/V 

·.vd:::ril"·<;;:cr. ~ c .::~J::.;c 

This responds to your request for an exception under 49 CFR 604.9(b)(4) that would pennit the 
Washington Metropolitan Area Transit Authority (WMATA) to provide charter service to any 
governmental or political agency affiliated with the inaugural of the President and Vice President 
of the United States, from January 15, 1997, through January 22, 1997. 

The Federal Transit Administration's (FTA) charter regulation, 49 CFR Part 604, prohibits 
recipients from providing charter service ifthere is a willing and able private operator. Under 
section 604. 9(b )( 4 ); a recipient may petition F~ A to provide charter service for special events of 
national importance to the extent that private charter operators are not capable of providing the 
service. The key determinant in this exception is the extent to which private charte·r operators are 
not capable of providing service for the event. See, 52 Federal Register 11925, April 13, 1987. 

FT A has consulted orgariizations representing local private operators in connection with your 
request. These organizations have indicated that they have no objection to FT A's granting of this 
exception, on the condition that all charter trips provided thereunder originate and terminate 
within WMATA's service area, and that WMATA provide only th.os~-services that private 
operators are unable to provide. 

Accordingly, I hereby grant an exemption under 49 CFR 604.9(b)(4) permitting WMATA to 
provide charter service during the inaugural of the President and Vice President of the United 
States, from January 15, 1997, through January 22, 1997. This exception allows WMATA to 
provide only charter trips originating and terminating within its service area, and only those 
services that private operators are unable to provide. 

626 



U.S. Department 
of Transportation 
Federal Transit 
Administration 

Mr. William J. Evans 
Director of Evaluation and Development 
Rochester -Genesee Regional 
Transportation Authority 
1372 East Main Street 
P.O. Box 90629 
Rochester, New York 14609 

Dear Mr. Evans: 

DEC I 6 1996 

400 Seventh St., S.W. 
Washington, D.C. 20590 

This responds to your letter to our Region II Office requesting an extension of a waiver allowing 
the Rochester-Genesee Regional Transportation Authority (RGRTA) to provide specific charter 
services using vehicles funded by the Federal Transit Administration (FTA). 

Under FTA's charter regulation, 49 CFR Part 604, recipients may not provide charter service using 
FTA-funded equipment ifthere is a willing and able private operator. I understand that FTA's 
Region II Officegranted RGRTA a 12-month waiver on October 11, 1995, since no private 
operators responding to RGRTA's 1995 annual charter notice could provide "transit-type lift and 

-front-end and kneeling-equipped" vehicles. You indicate that in response to its 1996 charter 
notice, RGRTA again received no responses from operators having the specified type ofvehicles. 
You therefore seek an extension ofthe waiver to provide charter service. 

The granting of such a waiver is contrary: to 49 CFR 604 .3(p ), which provides that a private 
· operator is willing and able if it has the required category of vehicles and the legal authority to 

provide charter service.· In implementing guidance, FT A has expbiined that there are only two 
categories of revenue vehicle, namely buses and vans. Under the charter regulation, a bus is a bus 
whether it is an intercity bus, a transit bus, a school bus, or a trolley bus. A private operator does 
not have to demonstrate that it has any particular type of bus in order to be considere~ "able." 52 
Federal Register 42248, November 3, 1987. 

Consequently, any private operator responding to RGRTA's annual charter notice and having at 
least one bus or one van that it is licensed to use in charter service, must be determined willing and 
able. RGRTA may therefore provide charter service using FTA-funded equipment only _under one 
of the exceptions to the regulation. One of these exceptions, at section 604. 9(b )(2)(ii), allows a 
recipient to provide charter equipment to or service for a private operator that lacks accessible 
vehicles. Further, under section 604.9(b)(5)(ii), a recipient may provide direct charter service to 
certain tax-exempt entities requesting service for persons with disabilities. Also, under section 
604. 9(b )(7), a recipient may provide specific types of charter service under a formal agreement 
with all the willing and able private operators in its service area. Before concluding a formal 
agreement under this section, recipients must complete the review process to ensure that all willing 
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and able private operators are valid parties to the agreement. Recipients are not required to seek 
approval or concurrence from FT A in order to provide service under these exceptions. 

I regret any confusion caused by FTA's erroneous decision to grant RGRT A's 199)waiver 
request, and trust that this provides you with the necessary clarification and guidance concerning 
FTA's charter requirements. 

cc: L. Penner, TR0-2 
Scott Biehl, TCC-30 
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BEFORE THE FEDER.U. TR-\NSIT ADl\111aSTR~ TION 

California Bus Association, 
Complainant 

v. 

SunLine Transit Agency, 
Respondent 

DECISION 

Introduction 

Charier Complaint 

49 u.s.c. § S323(d) 

The California Bus Association (CBA) filed this complaint with the Federal Transit 
.Administration (FTA) alleging that the SunLine Transit Agency (Sunl..ine) is providing service in 
violation ofFTA.'s charter regm~tion, 49 CFRPart 604. Specifically, CBAclaims that SunUne's 
group trip policy and procedures are designed to promote charter service for school groups and 
that this practice excludes fixed-route riders. Applying a balancing test to the service in question, 
FT A :finds that SunLine's group trip service is charter service in violation of 49 CFR Part 604 
which implements Section 5323(d) of the Federal Transit Laws: as codified, 49 U.S. C.§ 5301, et 
~- Therefore, SuriLine is ordered py this decision to correct the practices that do not comply 
with FT A's requirements. 

Complaint 

CBA ·filed this complaint with the· FT A on June 24, 1996, and also provided photographic, video 
and docutrientary evidence. Specifically, CBA alleges that SunLine buses (aka "SunBuses") fail to 
stop for passengers waiting at designated bus stops, display unclear and misleading head-signs, 
and make off-route stops including Joad.ing and unloading passengers on school property. CBA's· · 
complaint and rebuttal descfribe incidents occurring on nine separate days between May 1993 and 
September 1996 all of which involved service to school groups. 

Response to Comblnint 
' 

CBA's complaint was forwarded to SunLine and by letters dated August 23 and September 3, 
1996, SunLine provided its response. SunLine submitted additional documentation including its 
preprinted schedule, "SunBus Group Trip Policy Summary," and "Planning Group Trips11 

brochure. The brochure describes the service in question as trips maqe by a group of ten or inore -
people from one mut~ origin to one mutual destination. In addition, the brochure advertises that. 
groups can go on field trips within a one-mile radius of the fixed route. To qualify for the group 
fare discount of fifty cents per rider, trips must be requested at least five working days prior to but 
no more than three months in advance of the trip. The brochure goes on to state that Sunl..ine is 
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not a charter service; all SunBus services are open to the general public and ·operate on published 
fixed routes; all buses will make any stop on the route where passengers need to board or alight; 
additional buses may be placed in service for groups of fony or more at SurtL!rte's discretion; and 
SunLine may limit the number of buses accommodating group trips, pamcularly during peak 
hours. According to the policy summary, SunLine reserves the right to cancel confirmed group 
trips because its first'commitment is to meet regular fixed-route n~. The summary also 
contains procedures for groups to follow when cancelling trips. · 

In a July 12, 1996, memorandum, SunLine's Senior Trainer exp~ !hat new coach operators 
are advised that after picking up group trip riders, SunBuses must proceed.along the regular fixed 
route, street by street, picking up regular passengers along the way uritil they reach their 
destination. At no time are SunBuses allowed to enter school grounds or private propeny. After 
the group has alighted the coach, the operators must remam in ~ervice until the end of the line 
unless a "follower" has caught up to them at which time they may transfer the remaining 
passengers. In addition, all "moneys" for the trips go through the farebox and the operators must 
log in the number of passengers in the group. ' 

SunLine states that it sends the group trip brochure to schools annually and submitted a mailing 
list containing names and addresses of more than ninety schools and organizations. According to 
SunLine, the brochure is also included with a letter confirming group trip arrangements scheduled 
by a group leader u~ing the service for the first time. Furthenriore, SunLine acknowledged that it 
has petforrned over 4,000 group trips including most of the trips documented in CBA's complaint, 
for example, group· servicf? for Della Lindley Element~ Schoo~ Vista Del Monte Elementary 
Schoo~ Cahuilla Elementary Schoo~ Desert Springs Mddle Schoo~ and Bubbling Wells 
Elementary School. SunLine maintains that it has instructed its operators not to enter school 
property to load and unload rider~, and to pick up passengers along fixed routes. 

With regard to CBA's allegations that SunBuses display clear and miSleading head-signs, SunLine 
claims in its September 3 response that "Going into Service" is the correct head-sign to display 
while a group is bo8fding a bus, and' !hit once the group has finished boarding, the sign should be 
changed to "Supplemental Service." SunLine's Senior Trainer .states, however, that new coach 
operators are instructed to use headsigns reading "Supplement~ Limited Service" during group 
trips. Finally, SunLine roaintajns that it is intensifying its driver training and will discuss these 
issues.:. in upcoming Operator Safety Meeting~. 

Rebuttal 

In its rebuttal dated September 17, 1996, CBA challenges the legality of the group trip policy 
because the policy provides that SunBuses can deviate from estabished routes at the charter 
paeys request and that ·the policy excludes fixed-route riders. Furthermore, CBA Contends that 
when it became aware SunLine intended to provide the group trips in ,question, it monitored 
SunLine's activities and obseiVed that SunBuses did not just occasionally pass up passengers 
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but rather, "never" stopped for passengers waiting at Sunline bus stops no matter how persistent 
the· people were to board the SunBuses. · · 

Moreover, CBA claims that Sunline has continued to perform close~-door charter service in spite 
of this complaint and Sunl..ine's subsequent response thereto. Specifically, CBA alleges that on 
September 13, 1996, Sunline transported the Cathedral City High School band to the College of 
the Desert in two SunBuses displaying "Suppleriiental Service" and "Going into Service" 
head-signs. In support of this claim, CBA provided additional pho~ographs. According to CBA, 
when one of the drivers obsexved someone taking pictures, the head-sign was changed to "Out of 
Set:Vice" for the duration of the trip. In addition, CBA claims that two female passengers were 
refused entry into one of the buses and that the SunBuses passed up fixed-route passengers along 
Highway 111 and travelled off-route. 

Finally. CBA submitted correspondence regarding a November 10, 1992, complaint filed with 
FTA alleging that Sunline was operating exclusive school bus service !n violation ofFTA's 
school bus regulation, 49 CFR P.art 605. In a December 2, 1992, response to CBA, SunLine 
represented that the service complained of was supplemental tripper service along fixed routes 
and that SunBuses did not enter s~hool grounds or make off-route stops. CBA claims that 
SunLine's letter is a "local agreeme~t" under 49 CFR 604.9(b)(7) and that SunLine is in violation 
thereof. CBA argu~s that despite FTA involvement and the subsequent "local agreement," 
SunLine has continued to operate closed-door service and that CBA's repeated efforts to resolve 
the matter over the course_· of three years have been u~successful. 

Discussion 

B~fore reaching the main issue of this complaint, it is appropriate to address a subsidiary question 
raised. CBA chracterizes SunLine's December 2, 1992, correspondence as a"local agreement" 
within an exception ,to die charter reguiation, and maintains that SunLine is in violation thereof. 
SunLine's correspondence, Jtowever, pertains to supplemental tripper service under FT A's school 
bus regulations, 49 CFR 605.3 and therefore, does not constitute a "formal agreement" as defined 
at 49 CFR 604.9(b)(7) o.fthe s;harter regulation. 

The Fr A points out, however, that CBA properly brought this complaint under the cfuuter 
regul~tion, not the school bus regulation. The preamble to FT A's school bus regillation explains 
that "school bus operations" generally take place during peak morning and evening hours. 41 
Fed. Reg. 14127, 14128 (Aprill, 1976). The transpOrtation of students and personnel 
exclusively during off-peak hours would be charter service governed by 49 CFR Part 604. The 
group trips provided by- SunLine for extracurricular school activities are clearly not "school bus 
operations" providing peak hour transportation to and from school; however. the service does 
warrant scrutiny under the charter regulation. We turn now to ari examination of the main 
concerns of CBA's complaint. 
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The essential issue in this matter is whether the service provided by SunLine is impermissible 
charter service or permissible mass transportation. The definition of charter service found in 
FTA's regulations at 49 CFR 604.5(e) is as follows: 

... transportation using buses or vans, or facilities funded under i.he·Acts 
of a group of persons who pursuant to a common purpose, under a single 
contract, at a fixed charge ... for the vehicle or service, have acquired the 
exclusive use of the vehicle or service to travel together urtd~r an itinerary 
either specified in advance or modified after having left the place of origin. 

Charter service is usually thought of as a one-time provision of service and the user, not the 
recipien.t, has the control of the service. 52 Fed. Reg. 11916, 11919 (April13, 1987). 

In contrast, the Federal Transit Laws define "mass transportation" as transportation that provides 
regular and continuing general or special transportation to the public. 49U.S.C. § 5302(a)(7). 
The FT A has articulated other features whicq logically flow from this definition: 

First, mass transportation. is under the control of the recipient. Generally, 
the recipient is responsible for setting the route, rate, and schedule, and 
deciding wl)at equipment is used. Second, the service·is designed to benefit 
the public at large and not some special organization such a~ a private club. 
Third, mass transportation is open to the puqlic and is not closed door. Thus, 
anyone who wishes to ride on the service must be permitted to do so. 

52 Fed. Reg. 11920. 

FTA has previously stated that a balancing test must be applied to determine the nature ofthe 
·service involved in any complaint filed with FTA because, as the preamble to the charter 
regulation points.ow at pa~es 11919-20, there is no fixed definition of charter service, and the 
characteristics cited by FT A are not exhaustive, but merely illustrative. Sevmour Charter Bus 
Lines v. Knoxville Transit Authority, TN-09/88-01· (November 29, 1989). We have established 
the following findings and det~rminations on the basis of such an analysis. 

1. Under the control of the recipient. 

The record establishes that SunBuses deviate up to one mile from the published fixed routes to 
accommodate groups often or more. According to SunLine, the vehicles return to and continue 
along the regular route and. stop at any bus stop where passengers need to board or alight. In 
addition, SunLine has discretion to increase or decrease the number of SunBuses used for group . 
trips based on demand and volume. Ne>-.1:, SunLine has set a group-rate fare of fifty cents per 
rider, decides whether an additional fare will be required if transfers are involved, and advertise~ 
the fare in the preprinted fixed-route schedule and group trip brochure. Finally, according to the 
group trip brochure; the group representative must contact SunLine to schedule the trip and 
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supply the following information: .date of tnp, time of outbound trip, time of inbound trip, origin, 
destination,. and group ~ize. SunLine then confirms the reservations with a .fb~low-up letter. 

SunLine submits that the one-mile route deviations do not violate the charter regulation because 
SunBuses travel along the prepublished fixed routes during part of~ group trips and stop to 
pick up regular route passengers. On the other hand, CBA contends that the group trip policy 
itself is irreversibly flawed both in theory and in pra¢ce because the policy provides that ·-
SunBuses can deviate up to one mile from established routes to perfqrm services that are not 
regularly scheduled. -

FT A finds that SunLine's group trip service does not operate on a regular and continuing basis 
within SunLine's control; rather, it is provided regularly to singular events at the behest of the 
group participants. The groups travel pursuant to a common puipose under an itinerary specified 
in advance in accordance with the group's selection of pick-up and drop-off points. Although· 
Sunl.ine decides the number of vehicles to be used for group trips and may determine the route to 

· follow during the deviations, FT.A has previously found that these are merely operational details 
and not determinative of actual control of the service (Sevmour. at 1 0). As Fr A has stated in 
Question 27(d) ofits .. Charter Seiyice Questions and Answers," 52 Fed. Reg. 42248, 42252 
(November 3, 1987), control offar~s and schedules is the critical element in distinguishing charter 
service from mass tr:ansportation. · 

The Fr A has previously determined that compensation on the basis of hours of service is evidence 
of charter operations, whereas individu~ fares paid by each rider indicates the service is mass 
transportation (Sevmour at 9). Under the group trip policy, each nder pays an individual fare set 
by Sunl.ine, and the money collecJed goes through the fare box. ID this respect, the service 
conforms to mass transportation. FTA finds, hoV{ever, that SunLine does not set the schedules 
for the group trips which is supported by the fact that there are no published schedules for the 
service. SunLine may have input in deyeloping the group trip service sChedules as any operator 
would, but the gr.oup repre~entatives specify arrival and departure times and trip origins and 
destinations and thus, have•the prerogative of altering schedules. Blue Grass Tours and Charter 
v. Lexington Transit Authority. URO-III (May 17, 1988). 

. . 
In apP-lying a balancing test to the foregoing. 'factors, FT A finds that SunLine's group ~p service 
does not meet the first criterion of mass transportation. ' · 

2._ Designed to benefit the public at large. 

CBA argues that SunLine's group trip policy is designed to promote group trip charters and to 
exclude fixed-route riders in violation of 49 CFR Part 604. In response. SunLine submits that 
SunBuses make one-mile deviations from the fixed route for the convenience of the groups as 
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long as .SunBuses make all stops along the fi..-.:ed route and the deviations do not inconvenience 
regular passengers. 

The FTA has previously noted that service is designed to benefit the,:public at large when it serves 
the needs of the general public, instead of those of"some special organization such .as a private 
club.'' 52 Fed. Reg. 11920 (April13, 1987). J!te charter regulation requires that riders outside a 
target group ofcustomers be eJigible to use the service. See Annett Bus Lines v. Citv of . .,. 
Tallahassee, FL-TALTRAN/90-02-01 (April28, 1992). SunLine's. group·tfip policy targets 
groups often or more people and any members of the public who are unable or unwilling to form 
a group· of at least ten riders are not eligible to use the service. Thus, the group trip service is not 
designed to benefit the public at large and in practice, is basically designed to meet the 
transportation needs of defined groops of students and school r>ersonnel as well as other 
organizations. 

Indeed, the group trip service may cause inconvenience to members of the public. According to 
SunLine, the buses used for grot1p trips stop at all stops along the fixed-route to pick up regular 
passengers. At SunLine's discretion, additional buses are added for groups ·of forty or more 
riders. These facts lead FT A to conclude that regular route passengers may be disadvantaged in 
either of the following ways. Frrst,.fixed-route riders, without prior notice, may be required to 
travel up to two miles roundtrip along route deviations made for group trips in SunBuses that do 
not keep within the fixed-route schedule; or second, supplementary SunBuses may be put into 
service solely to accommodate group trips with the result that regular passengers are excluded. 

SunLine's group trip service is designed differently from SunLine's.regular fixed-route service in 
other respects as well. For example, SunLine allows group participants to call from five days to 
three months in advance to schedule trips. Next, SunBuses deviate up to one mile from the fixed 
route to accommodate group trip passengers. Moreover, the photogra{'hic and video evidence 
show that there are no designated bps $top signs at the origin and destination points of the group 
trips. In addition, the group .trip fare is fifty cents while SunLine's regular fare is seventy-five 
cents. Further, published schedules exist for SunLine's other routes but there are no published 
schedules for group. trip service: Finally, group trip buses display restrictive headsigns. The 
reasonable conclusion adduced from these facts is that the group trip service is a special type of 
service which is set up, advertised and operated differently from SunLine's re~lar seryice. 
pursuant to a written agreement, to accommodatethe special needs of the group participants' 
Wlue Grass, at 4). Although the definition of "mass transportation" in the Federal Transit Laws. 
49 U.S.C. § 53Q2(a)(7), does include the concept of~special" transportation. the type of service 
complained of in this case is not one of the two types of"special" service that legally fit the 
definition of "mass transporation." ·They are service exclusively for elderly and disabled persons 
and service provided fo·r \Vorkers who live in the innercity but work in a factory in the suburbs. 
52 Fed. Reg. 11920. 
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Thus, the group trip service is not designed to benefit the public at large and in practice, is 
designed to meet the transponatioQ needs of school groups and orga~zations: 

3. On en to the public and not closed door. 

In determining whether service is truly "open d~or," FTA looks both at the level of ridership by 
the general public as opposed to a panicular group and at the intent of the recipient in offering the 
service. The intent to make service open door can be discerned in the atteiJlpts to make the 
service·known and available to the public. FTA thus ~akes into account the efforts a recipient has 
made to market the service. Generally, this marketing effort is best evidenced by publication of 
the sen-ice in the reCipient's preprinted schedules. Washin!!ton Motor Coach Association v. 
Municioalitv ofMetropolitan Seattle. WA-09/87-01 (March 21>, 1988). FTA has also interpreted 
"open door" to mean a substantial public ridership and/or an attempt by the transit authority to 
widely market the service ffilue Grass, at 5). The posting ofbus stop signs and the connections 
to other transportation routes are also_ considered indicators_ of"opportunity for public ridership" 
(Sevmour, at 9). A recipient is not required to make all of these efforts in order to have 
·manifested the intent to ~7 seryice open door. 

Although SunLine asserts that its buses are open to the general public at all times, SunLine's 
position is not supportable when the group trip service is exaniined against the complete definition 
and intent ·of the charter regulation as well as the system in actual operation. The opportunity to 
arrange group trips is briefly descnbed on page 7 of the published fixed-route schedule along with 
a number to call for additional information. The "Planriing Group Trips" brochure is printed 
separately and SunLin-e's submissior. indicates that it is mailed to at least ninety schools and 
organizations. In other respects, however, SunLine's group trip service is essentially closed door. 

CBA argues that the group trip service is not available to the general Pl;lblic because SunBuses 
display unclear and misleading head-; signs, and fail to stop for passengers waiting at SunLine bus 
stops. The photographs submitted by CBA corroborate these claims; In response, SunLine 
claims that "Going into Service," "Supplemental Service," and "Supplemental, Limited Service" 
are the correct destination signs to use on SunBuses performing group trips. These facts clearly 
contradict SunLine's assertion. that all SunBuses are qpen to the public. Moreover, such practices 
are inconsistent with the instructions given to the general public on page 2 of ~e preP:rinted _ 
schedule which direct passengers to "[c]heck the destination sign atthe front ofthe bus to be sure 
you are boarding the correct bus." 

In ·order for service to be considered open·to the public~ head-signs on buses must display route 
numbers and destinations, and must operate according to the published schedule. Destination 
signs on buses such as those used by SunLine are not permitted .under 49 U.S.C. 5323(d). FTA 
finds that SunLine has employed _signing procedures of obvious impropriety. Funhermore, using 
a tenninus where there is no bus stop sign and refusirig entry to passengers render SunLine's 
claims that the service is open to the public unpersuasive. Therefore, FT A finds that the service in 
question is not "open door" and does not meet the third criterion of mass tiansponation. 
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Conclusion and Order 

After applying a balancing test to the service in question, FT A concludes that SunLine's group trip 
operations are charter service in violation of 49 CFR Part 604. Therefore, SuilLine shall 
immediately discontinue operating the service as it is presently configured. Should SunLine wish 
to reinstitute group trip operations, it must reconfigure the service to tonfonn to FT A's mass 
transportation guidelines, and submit its plan to FT A for review and approval prior to 
implementation. · 

Within thirty days, SunLine must provide a written report to the rt A on the measures it has taken 
to ensure compliance with the terms of this order .. 

'f!t&-lif.-1£ 7 c-1:6.1 Margar E. Foley -
Regional Counsel 

F£8 I 0 1991 

(Date) 
Regi~_nal Administrator 
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0 
US. Department 
at Tronsportation 

Federal Transit 
Administration 

Mr. Loren L. Jones, President 
Northwest Iowa Transportation, Inc. 
Northwest Iowa Tours 
P. 0. Box911 
Old Highway 20 E 
Fort Dodge, lA 50501-0911 

Dear Mr. Jones: 

REGION VII 
Iowa, Kansas 
Missouri, Nebraska 

April 25, 1997 

6301RockhUIRoad 
Suite 303 
Kansas City, Missouri 64131 

Re: Charter and Intercity Service Inquiry 
of April21, 1997 

This letter is the response to your inquily of April21, 1997 regarding whether federally
funded coaches (buses) if leased by the Heart oflowa Regional Transit Authority (lllRTA) to· 
Five Oaks Charter, Inc. of Des Moines, Iowa, for the purpose of providing intercity bus service 
may be used to compete with privately funded vehicles owned by your company and other 
private charter providers. 

The general answer to your inquily is no: FTA regulations found at 49 C.F.R 604.9(a) 
prohibit recipients of federal funds from providing charter service if there are any private charter 
operators willing and able to do so. Furthermore, FT A funded equipment may not be used to 
provide charter service unless at least one of the exceptions in 49 C.F.R 604.9(b) applies. 

Given the facts of your letter, exception (2)(ti) appears to be the only exception that could 
apply. This exception allows FTA funded equipment to be used when the recipient (HIRTA) 
enters into a contract with a private charter operator , such as Five Oaks Charter, Inc., to provide 
charter equipment to the operator because the operator itself is unable to provide equipment 
accessible to elderly and handicapped persons. However, any charter service provided under any 
of the exceptions must be incidental charter service as required by 49 C.F.R. 604.9(e). 
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Letter to Mr. Jones 
April 22, 1997 Page2. 

If you have additional questions or concerns, please contact Ms. Paula L. Schwach, 
Regional Counsel at 816.274.5203. 

Sincerely, 

~~ 
Regional Administrator 

cc: Heart of Iowa Regional Transit Authority 
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U.S. Department · 
of Transportation 
Federal Transit 
A~ministration 

Mr. Kenneth A. Hazeltine 
Public Transportation Administrator 
New Hampshire Department of Transportation 
P.O. Box 483 . 
Concord,~ 03302-0483 

Dear Mr. Hazeltine: 

REGION I 
Connecticut, Maine, 
Massachusetts, 
New Hampshire, 
Rhode Island; Vermont 

Volpe Center 
55 Broadway Suite 904 
Cambridge, MA 02142 
61.7-494-2055 
617-494-2865 (fax) 

MAY 2 199l] 

This responds to your April22, 1997, request for an exception under 49 CFR § 604.9(b)(4) which 
would allow the New Hampshire Department of Transportation (NHDOT) to operate charter 
service for the 13th Rural Public and Intercity Bus Transportation Conference to be held 
September 13-17, 1997, in North Conway. 

The preamble to the charter regulation explains that the Federal Transit Administration.· (FTA)'will. · . 
grant an exception under § 604.9(b )( 4) only for· events of an extraordinary, speCial at:td singular 
nature such as· the Pan American Games and the visits offoreign dignitaries. 52 Fed. Reg.' 11925 . 
(April13, 1987) Regularly schedul~d yearly or periodic ev(mts would not qualify for the . 
exception. "Charter Service Questions and Answers," 52 Fed. Reg. 42251 (November 3, 1987) 
With reference to O':Jr telephone conversation last week, the FTA did grant a "special event"· 
exception to several transit authorities ·in Iowa for the 1988 World Ag Expo, an international 

· agx:icultural exposition which had been held in the United States only twice in twenty years and 
which was expected to draw between 200,000 and 300,000 visitors. However, yourl~tter 
indic~t~s that the transportation conference, which is held periodically, is not the type of activity 
intende'd by the regulation's n special event" exception .. 

~or these reasons, the FTA has determined that NHDOT must follow the public participation 
process set forth at § 604. 11 to determine if there is a willing and able private provider of charter 
service. If no willing and able operator exists, NHDOT can provide charter service. for the 
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conference as long as it is incidental charter service which is defined at§ 604.5(i) as. charter service 
that does not inter(ere with or detract from providing mass transportation service or does not 
shorten the mass transportation life of the equipment being used.· See also 52 Fed. Reg. 4 2251-
42252. 

We hope this infonnation is helpful. If you have any questions, please call Margaret E. Foley, 
Regional Counsel, at (617) 494-2409. · 

~rt~ 
. Richard H Doyle 1-. 

Regional Administrator 

Enclosures: 49 CFR Part 604, "Chartet: Service" 
52 Fed. Reg. 11916 (April13, 1987) 
52 Fed. Reg. 42248 (November 3, 1987) 
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U.S. Department 
of Transportation 
Federal Transit 
Admi.nistration 

John Barberis 
Superintendent ofTransportation 
Regional Transportation District 
1900 31st Street 
Denver, CO 80216 

Dear Mr. Barberis: 

REGlONVlll 
Arizona, Colorado, Montana, 
Nevada, North Dakota, 
South Dakota, Utah, 
Wyoming 

Columbine Place 
216 Sixteenth Street, Suite 650 
Denver, Colorado 80202-5120 
303/844-3242 
303/844-4217 (fax) 

June 6, 1997 

You asked whether RTD may enter into a contract with Colorado Charter Lines whereby RID 
will provide buses and drivers for service during Denver's Summit of the Eight. 

Under 49 CFR section 604.9(b)(2), a recipient may enter into a contract with a private charter 
operator to provide charter equipment to cr service for the private charter operator if the private 
charter operator is requested to provide charter service that exceeds its capacity. Colorado 
Charter Lines, via its advertisement for additional coaches, has indicated that the charter service 
required by the Denver Summit of the Eight exceeds its capacity. Therefore, the contract RTD 
proposes to enter into with Colorado Charter Lines is permissible under FTA's charter service 
regulations. 

If you have any further questions, please contact Kristin O'Grady, Regional Counsel, of my staff. 
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U.S. Department 
of Transportation 
Federal Transit 
Administration 

Thomas Chilik, General Manager 
Greenfield Montague Transportation Area 
382 Deerfield Street 
Greenfield, MA 01301 

Dear Mr. Chilik: 

REGION I 
Connecticut, Maine, 
Massachusetts, 
New Hampshire, 
Rhode Island, Vermont 

Volpe Center 
55 Broadway Suite 904 
Cambridge, MA 02142 
617-494-2055 
617-494-2865 (fax) 

NOV 1 4 i99J 

Reference is made to your October 23, 1997, response to the charter complaint filed by Mr. 
Donald Sadler of Chapin & Sadler, Inc. Specifically, Mr. Sadler alleged that the Greenfield 
Montague Transportation Area (GMTA) performed impermissible charter service for a trip that 
was originally booked with Chapin & Sadler. In addition, he submitted evidence that GMT:A ... 
advertises itself as a charter company in the local telephone directory. · 

According to your response, GMT A did provide the charter service in question by transporting a 
group of passengers from the Blessed Sacrament Church to the Marian Fathers Shrine in 
Stockbridge. You explain that the violation occurred because your staff did not understand that 
this was a charter trip that should have been referred to a private operator, and maintain that you 
have taken corrective measures to avoid making such errors in the future. You also state that the 
reference to charter service .will be deleted from. the November 1997 issue of the telephone 
directory. · ··· · 

As you know, 49 U.S. C . .S323(d) and the Federal Transit Administration's (FTA) implementing 
regulation, 49 CFR Part 604, prohibit anFTA recipient from providing charter service using 
FTA-funded equipment or facilities if a private openi.tor in its geographic area is:willing and able to 
perform the service, unless one or more of the exceptions listed at 49 CFR § 604.9 apply. You are 
also reminded that applicants seeking FT A assistance must certify annually that they understand . 
these requirements and that violation thereof may require corrective measures and the imposition 
ofpenalties, including debarment from the receipt of :further Federal assistance for transportation .. 
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In light of the foregoing, FT A deems it incumbent upon GMTA to properly train its employees to 
ensure that violations of this sort do not.occurin the future. Finally, we request that you forward· 
a copy of GMT A's listing from the November 1997 issue of your telephone directory for our 
records. · 

We trust this information is helpful.. If you have any questions, please call Margaret Foley at {617) 
494-2409. 

Sinceryly, 

!\ ~\~-t-
Richard H. Doyle \J 
Regional Administrator 

cc: Mr. Sadler 
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us. Department 
of Transportation 

Federal Transit 
Administration 

Mr. Robert Roundtree 
General Manager 
City Utilities 
P.O. Box511 
301 E. Central 
Springfield, MO. 65801 

Attn: Diane Hogan 

Dear Mr. Roundtree: 

REGION VII 
Iowa, Kansas 
Missouri, Nebraska 

6301 Rockhill Road 
Suite 303 . 
Kansas City, Missouri 64131 

August 18, 1998 

Re: Charter Service 

The Federal Transit Administration (FTA) has reviewed your letter dated July 13, 1998 
requesting permission to use three, fully depreciated, 1979 fixed route buses which have been 
retired from service for charter services. 

Vehicles purchased with FT A assistance in which there is a continuing Federal interest may not 
be used for charter services, and no federal operating subsidy can be uSed for maintenance or 
operating (including labor) costs of charter service unless an exception as outlined in 49 CFR 
Part 604 (a)(b) applies. However, pursuant to FTA Circular 5010.1B, Section 7 (g) and 49 
CFR Part 18.32(e), federally-funded equipment which is no longer needed for transit purposes 
may be retained by the grantee. When, as represented by your staff in the teleconference with 
Regional Counsel, advertisement of the property has yielded no buyers or no buyers offering 
even $5,000 per bus, the grantee (pursuant to 49 CFR Part 18.32(e)(l)) has no further 
obligation to FT A What City Utilities does with this equipment now that it has extinguished 
the Federal interest is outside the scope ofFTA's purview. 

You are reminded that buses used for charter service may not be housed in an FT A-funded 
facility or maintained with FT A operating assistance. 

If you have further questions or need additional information, you may contact Shannon· Graves, 
Program Manager at (816) 523-0204. 

Sincerely, 

~ ~ ~~ 
{) . Regional Administrator 
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~.s. ~P.artment 
of TransP,ortatlon 
Federal Transit 
'Admiriistratlon . SEP J 8 1998 

. Ms.· Edith L. Lowery 
Director/Grant. Programs 
Metropolitan Transit Authority 
1201 LQu;i.siana 

·Houston, Texas 61429 

Dear:-~s. LOwery: 

-400 S.Venlh St., S.W. 
· Washington, D.C. 2.0590 

This responds to your letter of July 24, 1998 1 . commenting on the 
Federal Transit Administ~ation•.s (FTA) July .1, 1998,· Federal 
Register notic• se~kinq to extend the info~ation collection 
requirements· for charter service operat~ons. You· ·ask why 
recipients should be burdened with a;nnual publication.and 
reporting requirements it they do not intend to operate charters, 
or.if·they are aware of the existence of private providers. · 

. . .. . . ' 

.FTA's charter regulation~ 49 CFR Part 604, r.equires recipients to 
·complete a process for determining if there are willing and able 
private operators only if they wish to provide charter service. 
A ·recipient not· wishing to.engage in.charter operations is not 

· reqli;.;· red to follow ·this process. Similarly, -a recipient nee4 not 
publish a notice of its willingness ·t·o: provide cqarter ·service if 
it is aware of. at le•st one willing and able private operator 
within itsgeograpbic area .. FTA's July 1 Federal Register merely 
annou·nces the age~cy• s intent t(). reinstate ·its 'information · 
cQlleption·requirements for charter service operations, and does 
riot propose any amendment.to-FTA's charta~ regulation. 

I thank you for your comments, and hope th~t you find tnis 
information· helpful. · · 

Please· contact Rita Daquillard'at;. (202)366-1936 if you need 
further informat;.ion. · 

cc: Sylvia Barney, TAD 
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U.S. Department 
·of Transportation 

Federal Transit 
Administration 

Ms. Pamela Pottle · 
Manager, Program Management 
Maine Department of Transportation 
Transportation Building 
Station 15, Child Street 
Augusta, ME· 04330 

Dear Ms. Pottle: 

REGION I 
Connecticut, Maine, 
Massachusetts, 
New Hampshire, 
Rhode Island, Vermont 

Volpe Center 
55 Broadway Suite 904 
Cambridge,~ 02142 
617-494-2055 
617-494-2865 (fax) 

October 8, 1998 

R~ference is made to the encloseQ letter from Theresa Samson, Vice President and General 
Manager ·of Hudson Bus Lines. (Hudson); a private for-profit openi.tor, regarding two issues 
involving the Western Maine Transportation Services alk/a Pine Tree ·Transit (Pine Tree), a 
subrecipient of the Maine Department of Transportation (rv.fDOT). · 

First, Ms. Samson complains that because Pine tree is a private non-profit operator it was able to 
underbid Hudson and take over fixed-route services that her comgany had operated since 1959. 
As you know, the Federal Transit Administration's (PTA) "Notice of Recision of Private 
Enterprise Participation GUidance" was published in 59 Federal Register 21890 on April26, 1994. 
FTA's new policy still requires cOnsideration of private sector involvement consistent with . 
statutory provisions, but allows local officials greater flexbility in making local transportation 
decisions. Under the new guidance, FTA specifically stated that it was eliminating the private 
sector appeal process and would instead monitor grantees' corp.pliance through the transportation 
planning process~ annual audits and trienniel reviews. Therefore, FT A :will not entertain the · 
private sector issue raised by Ms. Samson. · 

Next,.Ms. Samson claims that her comp~ny will be adversely a.ffected if Pine Tree is allowed to 
perform charter trips withFTA-funded assets as proposed in Pine Tree's legal notice of AuguSt 31, 
1998. The notice states that Pine Tree is available to perform charter service "Mondays through 
Sundays from 1.2:01 a.~ .. to 12:00 mi~night year :ound." UnderFT~'s~ .. eer service.regulat~on, 
49 CFR Part 604, a recipient who desires ~o provtde any ~harter servtce'usi~ PTA-funded 
equipment or facilities must first determine if there are any private charter operators willing and 
able to provide the service. To the extent that there is at least one such private operator, the 
recipient is prohibited from providing charter service with FTA-funded assets, unless one or more 
ofthe exceptions in§ 604.9(b) apply. Furthermore, any charter service provided by a recipient 
under an exception must be incidental. 49 C~ § 604.9(e). "Incidental charter service" is defined 
as service which does not interfere with or detract from the provision of mass transportation 

· service, or does not shorten the mass transportation life of the equipment or facilities being used. 
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;49 CFR § 604.5(i). Thus, service performed during peak hours is not considered incidental. See 
Question and AnsweJ;" 24, 52 Federal Register 42248, 42251 (November 3, 1987). 

According to Ms. Samson, ~udson is.a willing and able private operator. Therefore, Pine Tree 
·will be prohibited from performing the proposed charter service with FTA-funded assets ·unle~s it 
. is provided on an incidental basis under one or more of the limited exceptions. In, this regard, 
please note that Pine· Tree's legal notice states it will be available on a 24-hour basis, which would 
include prohibited servic<? performed during peak hours. 

Please look int~ the above ~atter and submit a written -response t.o the FTA within thirty days of 
receipt of this notice and send a copy pfyour response to Hudson. By copy of this letter, Hudson 
is notified that it has thirty days from·receipt ofMDOT's answer .to submit a rebuttal to the FTA . 
with a copy io MDOT. If you have any questions, please call Margaret Foiey, Regional Counsel, 
at (617) 494-2409. · · 

f 

Sincerely, 

Hi.~~ Ric~. Doyle 
Regional Administrator 

Enclosure: 52 Federal Register 42248 (Nov. 3, 1987) 
59 F~derafRegister 21890 (Apr. 26, 1994) 

'cc: Ms. Theresa S. Samson . 
Hudson Bus Lines 
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~ 
u.s. Department 
of TransportatiOn 

Federal Transit 
Administration 

Mr. Peter Hallock, Transportation Coordinator 
Iowa Department of Transportation 
100 E. Euclid Ave., Suite 7 
Park Fair Mall 
Des Moines, lA 50313 

·- -~ Dear~tock: 

REGION VII 
Iowa. Kansas 
MISSOUri. Nebraska 

November 10, 1998 

6301 Rockh1ll Road 
Suite 303 
Kansas City, Missouri 64131 

Re: NHTSA Safety Standards and 
Definition of School Bus 

This letter is FTA's response to your correspondence ofNovember 4, 1998. In that 
correspondence you requested a letter clarifying that vehicles purchased for coordinated public 
transit services are not considered school buses (despite NHTSA's·regulations or guidance 
letters to state motor vehicle dealers' associations), even if the vehicles are used in part to 
provide non-exclusive transportation for children to and from Head. Start and some 
transportation to and from public and parochial schools. You indicated that Iowa Department 
ofTransportation's (IDOT's) subrecipients funded under the Section 5310 and Section 5311 
Programs are having difficulty obtaining delivery of vehicles because they are unwilling to 
certify that such vehicles will never be used to transport students to or from schools or school 
events. 

FT A encourages the coordination of public transportation services. Our regulations have long 
recognized the tripper service exception for non-exclusive transportation of school-age 
children by transit systems with fixed route service. (See 49 CFR 605.13, tripper service 
exclusion to prohibition of offering school bus services.) Similarly, for rural systems operating 
general public transportation as a demand response service, coordinated human services 
transportation like Head Start are allowable. While such coordinated human services 
transportation primarily serves elderly, persons with disabilities and generally transportation 
disadvantaged persons, it is not restricted from carrying other members of the general public, if 
the service is marketed as public transit service. (See Cir. 9040.1~ Chapter Ill, Eligibility. 
Also see Cir. 9070.10, Chapter V, Vehicle Use.) 53 USC 5323(t) prohibits the use ofFT A 
funds for exclusive school bus transportation for school students and school personnel. 
However, the implementing regulation (49 CFR Part 605) does permit regular service to be 
modified to accommodate school students along with the general public. 
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FT A hopes that this clarification assists IDOT and its subrecipients in taking delivery. ofFT A
funded equipment in a timely manner so that you may continue to meet established milestones 
in the applicable grant(s). 

Pls:MA 
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Sincerely, 

Mokhtee Ahmad 
Regional Administrator 



U.S. Department 
of Transportation 
Federal Transit 
Administration 

·Ms. Theresa S. Samson 
Vice-President & G_eneral Manager 
Hudson Bus Lines 

· 280 Bartlett Street 
·Lewiston; ME 04240· 

Dear Ms. Samson: 

REGION I 
Connecticut. Maine. 
Massachusetts. 
New Hampshire, 
Rhnn,. l,.l .. nrl V,.rmnnt 

Volpe Center 
55 Broadway Suite 920 
Cambridge, MA 02142-1093 
617494-2055 
617494-2865 (fax) 

This letter responds to your August 31, 1998, complaint addressed to Gordon J. Linton, 
Administrator of the Federal 'Transit Administration (FTA), regarding a private non-profit operator 
working under ~ontnict for the Maine Department of Transportation (MDOT). Specifically, you 
complain that Weste~ Mairie Transportation Services, Inc.; a/k/a Pine Tree Transit (Pine Tree), 
took over fixed-route service in the Lewiston-Auburn area previ9usly operated by Hudson Bus 
Lines (Hudson). Furthermore, you infer that Pine Tree intends to perform charter service iii 
violation ofFTA' s charter regulation, 49 CFR Part 604. 

Iri its October 19, .1998, answer to the complaint, MDOT explained that. both theLewiston~Auburn 
· Transit Conunittee (LATC) and MDOT reviewed the bidding process use_d ~n procuring the fixed
route, seryi~~ in. question and deterrllined that it was in total complianc.e with FT A's third party 
contraCt.ing'criteria. As noted in our previous correspondence to· you dated.Oct~ber 8 and ·. 
November 5, 1998, PTA's new private sector policy allows local officials-greater flexibility in 
making local transportation decisions and eliminates the private sector appeal process. Please be · 
assured, however, thatFTA will continue to monitor MDOT's procurement practices·through the 
transportation planrting process, annual audits and triennial reviews. 

With regard to the charter service allegation, we note that Pine Tree sent you a letter on October 5, 
1998 (copy enclosed), stating that it has determined there is at least one -private operator willing 
and able to provide charter service in Pine Tree's service area; and therefore, it will only perfonri 

. charter trips_ if one or more of the exceptions listed in 49 CFR § 604 .. 9(b) applies. Moreover, 
:MDOT has asserted that it will contact Pine.Tree to insure that any ch~er service provided undef 

· an exception must be incidental as required by 49 CFR § 604.9(e). By copy of our letter of 
October 8, 1998, Hudson was provided thirty days from receipt of MDOT'sanswer to submit a 
rebuttal to the FTA To date, we have not received your response. Accordingly, theFT A finds 
that this issue has been resolved. 
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In accordance with 49 CFR § 604.19, you may appeal this ~harter service decision within ten days 
of receipt to Gordon J. Linton, Administrat<;>r, FederalTransit Administration, 400 Seventh Street;
S.W., Room 9328, Washingto.n, DC 20590. 

\ . \9-l 
Richard.H. Doyle~- ~· . 
Regional Administrat9r 

Enclosure: 49 CFR Part 604 
Pine Tree ltr to Hudson dtd 10/5/98 

Cc: Pamela S. Pottle~ Manager 
:MDOT Transportation Programs Unit 
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U.S. Department 
of Transportation 
Federal Transit 
Administration 

December 2, 1999 

Richard N. Winston 
Executive Vice President 
For Transit Operations 
Chicago Transit Authority 
120 North Racine Avenue 
Chicago, IL 60607 

Dear Mr. Winston: 

REGIONV 
Illinois Indiana, 
Michigan, Minnesota, 
Ohio, Wisconsin 

200 West Adams Street 
Suite 2410 
Chicago, IL 60606-53232 
312-353-2789 
312-886-0351 (fax) 

This letter responds to the Chicago Transit Authority's (CTA's) request for a special events 
charter exception under 49 CFR Section 604(b)(4) dated December 1, 1999, addressed to the 
Federal Transit Administration (FTA). The exception would allow the CTA to operate charter 
service for the "Aviation in the 21st Century - Beyond Open Skies Conference" to be held 
December 5-7, 1999, in Chicago. 

The preamble to the charter regulation explains that the FTA will grant an exception under 
§ 604.9(b )( 4) only for events of an extraordinary, special and singular nature such as the Pan 
American Games and visits of foreign dignitaries, 52 Fed. Reg. 11925 (April13, 1987). This 
event is an international aviation conference. Attendees will include fourteen Transportation 
Ministers and eight other heads of delegations. FTA understands that the City of Chicago has 
special concerns for the attendees' safety and seeks a higher level of security for these people. As 
a result, the City of Chicago has requested that the CTA provide mass transit buses, which have 
the necessary capacity and which do not contain undercarriage storage. Due to issues of security 
related to the attendees, as well as the unusual and unique nature of this event, the FT A 
recognizes the "Aviation in the 21st Century- Beyond Open Skies Conference" as the type of 
event envisaged by§ 604.9(b)(4). CTA hasalso indicated that the use of the buses at the 
conference will not affect the CTA's ability to provide service to its passengers at all times of 
day, including rush hour periods. 

For these reasons, I hereby authorize CTA to make FTA funded buses available to accommodate 
the need for a secure charter service during the "Aviation in the 21st Century- Beyond Open 
Skies Conference." CTA may, in accordance with the information provided to the FTA, utilize 
up to nine buses for the conference in the provision of this charter service. 

CTA is reminded that, in accordance with 49 C.F.R. § 604.9(e), "Any charter service that a 
recipient provides must be incidental charter service." The regulations define "incidental charter 
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service" as service that does not interfere with or detract from mass transit use or shorten the mass 
transportation life of FT A funded facilities or equipment. 

Sincerely, 

Joel P. Ettinger 
Regional Administrator 

cc: Frank Kruesi 
Duncan Hanis 
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U.S. Department 
of Transportation 
Federal Transit 
Administration 

Ms. Pam Ward, Administrator 
Ottumwa Transit Authority 
Ten Fifteen Regional Transit 
1 OS E. Third Street 
Ottumwa, Iowa 52501 

Dear Ms. Ward: 

REGION VII 
Iowa, Kansas, 
Missouri, Nebraska 

April.l8, 2000 

901 Locust Street 
Room404 
Kansas City, MO 64106 
816-329-3920 
816-329-3921 (fax) 

By Facsimile: 515-683-8671 

Re: Charter and School Bus Complaint -
Unfair Competition 

I have enclosed herewith a copy of a complaint dated February 15, 2000 from Mr. Jerry Kjer, 
General Manager of Southern Iowa Transit, Inc. (''SIT"). This complaint alleges that Ottumwa 
Transit Authority ("OTA'') and Ten Fifteen Regional Transit ("10-15 Transit") performed 
impermissible charter service on a number of occasions listed in the written complaint from April 
1998 to April 2000. In addition, Mr. Kjer claims that OTA is transporting student to school
sponsored sports activities. 

Under 49 USC 5323(d) of the Federal Transit Laws and under 49 CFR Part 604, FTA's 
implementing regulations, a recipient of FT A financial assistance may not provide charter service 
using FTA-funded facilities or equipment if a private operator in the recipient's geographic area of 
operations is willing and able to provide the service, unless one or more of the exceptions listed at 
49 CFR 604.9 apply. 

Furthermore, 49 USC 4323(f) of the Federal Transit Laws prohibits the use ofFTA-funded 
equipment or operations in the provision of service exclusively for the transportation of school 
students and school personnel in competition with private school bus operators. However, under 
FTA's implementing regulations, 49 CFR Part 605, grantees may provide ''tripper service." 
Tripper service is regularly scheduled mass transportation service which is open to the public and 
which is designed to accommodate school students and personnel using various rare collections or 
subsidy systems. 49 CFR 605.3 states that buses used in tripper service must be clearly marked as 
open to the public and may not carry designations such as "school bus." These buses may stop 
only at a grantee's regular service stop and must travel within a grantee's regular route of service 
as indicated in published route schedules. 
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Letter to Ms. Ward 
April 18, 2000 Page2 

Please note that with regard to the charter complaint, FTA's regulations define a process~ More 
particularly, 49 CFR 604.15 provides that the Regional Administrator shall advise the complainant 
and respondent to attempt to conciliate the dispute informally. However, it is apparent from 
correspondence between the parties, that such a process would only result in delay and not in 
resolution satisfactory to the parties. 

Accordingly, FT A requests that OT A and 10-15 Regional Transit submit a written response to the 
complaint to the Regional Office within 30 days of the date of this letter and send a copy of the 
same to SIT. OTA and 10-15 Regional Transit should also submit copies of any relevant · 
published route schedules to this office. SIT, by copy of this letter, is advised of its right to rebut 
the OT A and 10-15 Regional Transit response within 30 days. 

In addition, FTA Regional staff will conduct a site visit to assist it in fact-finding. This visit will 
occur on Monday, April 24, 2000. Staff will contact you regarding estimated time of arrival. 
Please be available and plan on making certain records available for this site visit. 

If either party has any questions, please contact Ms. Paula L. Schwaclt, Regional Counsel, at. 
816-329-3935. 

Enclosure 

cc: Mr. Jerry Kjer, lOOT 
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Sincerely, 

~rr7cw~~ 
Mokhtee Ahmad 
Regional Administrator 
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u.s. Department 
of Transportation 
Federal Transit 
Administration 

Ms. Pam Ward, Administrator 
Ottumwa Transit Authority 
Ten Fifteen Regional Transit 
1 OS E. Third Street 
Ottumwa, Iowa S2S01 

Dear Ms. Ward: 

REGION VII 
lowa,1<ans.a, 
t.tuowt. Nebraka 

May 18,2000 

801lOCUil Street 
Room404 
l<anaae Cly, MO 6<t106 
818-329-3820 . 
&1 e-329-3e21 (fax) 

By Facsimile: s 15-683-8671 

Re: Charter and School Bus Complaint -
Unfair Competition 

On February IS, 2000, Mr. Jerry K.j~. General Manag~ of Southern Iowa T~ Inc. \SIT"), 
filed 1 complaint aDeging that Ottumwa Transit Anthority ("'TA j and Ten Fifteen Regional 
Transit \10-IS Transit") performed illegal eha.rtet service on 1 number of occasions listed in the 
written complaint &om Aprill998 to Apri12000. In addition, Mr. KJer claimed that OTA 
transported stu<knU to scbool-sponsored sports activities. 

Following receipt oC tbe complaint, OT A and I 0-1 S Transit were invited to submit a written 
rebuttal oftbe complaint You have chosen not to do so. 

On April 24, 2000, Leah Russell, Director of OperaDons, and Paula Schwacb, Regional Counsel, 
made a lite visit to Ottumwa to ascertain what the routes in question were lib, what services were 
being provided, IDd what was the rationale of OT A and 10-1 S Transit for the JCrVices in question. 

FI'A's cooclusiom are u follows: 

1. 10-lS Transit hu oo two occuic:m u dac:ribed in tbe c:Unplaint provided bus service to 
IChool..,e chi1clra1 b trips to PioDeer Ridp( a llat:UR ceota") &om and to a public acbool site 
usiDg FrA-fimded equipmaJthollin ltock. This lei'Vic:e wu provided without charge md in 
orda' to prn&D a de8dbead bus. Tbe ICIVice wu UDder ·a vabal c:ontnc:t with tbe IChool 
district ThiiiCIVice was previously provided by SIT. We find that such ICn'ice constitutes 
cbarta' ICIVice IDd <:Ompetes with tbe private tee:tor. Tbis is a violation of 49 USC S323(d) of 
the Federal Tnaait Lawa and UDda' 49 CFil Part 604, FrA' s implementina rqnlationa. 
because a privlte opc:ntor, SIT, in 10-IS Transit's geographic area of operations is willins and 
able to provide the service, and none oftbe exceptions listed at 49 CFR. 604.9 apply. 
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2. OT A operates a bus referred to as the Mid·Day Circulator. The destination of the Mid· Day 
Circulator is a water recreationaVteaching facility caJled "the Beach." The riders are school age 
children and or school staff going to a common destination (the Beach) from a single point of pick 
up (the school) for a common purpose (swimming lessons offered by the school district) under a 
single contract between the school district and OTA This description contains all of the elements 
of the very definition of charter service save one: clientele. , 

The only item in issue is whether this clientele has the exclusive use of the vehicle. Practically 
speaking, while the service is advertised as open to the public on the public access television 
channel, the route changes so frequently depending on which school is currently participating in 
the swim program offered by the local school district that the schedule is not reliable. The public 
access channel is arguably a niche market and not a medium designed for broad, general 
audiences. No schedule is available in paper format as are the fixed route and tripper service 
schedules. While drivers have been advised to allow members of the general public access to the 
Mid-day Circulator and haw dooe 10 on at least one occasion, such ridership is 10 rare as to be 
merely incidental if not co-incidental. This appears to violate the spirit of the charter regulations. 
This is not to say that a Mid-day Circulator could not be designed which would accommodate 
some school children as well u the general public. However, we find that as currently designed, 
the service is charter service. 

Accordingly, FrA requests that OTA and 10-15 Regional Transit cease providing service to 
Pioneer Ridge immediately. Tbe Mid-Day Circulator is more problematic because of the potential 
ramifications of breach of cootrac:t with the school district. Therefore, FT A requests that OTA 
present this office with an exit plan or otherwise advise us as to how the service wiD be modified 
to meet tbe requirements of the Federal Transit Laws within 30 days. Any such plan must be 
implemeoted with all chle speed but not later than 60 days from the date of this letter. Please 
provide tbe complainant, SIT, with a copy of any response toFT A 

If either party hu any questions, please contact Ms. Paula L. Schwach, Regional Counse~ at 
816-329-3935. 

ce: Mr. Jerry Kjer, SIT 
Mr. Samil Samet, lOOT 
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BEFORE THE FEDERAL TRANSIT ADMINISTRATION 

United Limo, Inc., 
Complainant 

v. 

South Bend Public Transportation Corporation, 
Respondent. 

Charter Complaint 
49 U.S.C. Section 5323(d) 

DECISION 

Summary 

On September 13, 1999, United Limo, Inc. ("Complainant") filed a complaint dated August 31, 
1999, with the Federal Transit Administration {"FT A") alleging that South Bend Public 
Transportation Corporation ("Respondent") is providing a service in violation ofFTA's charter 
regulation, 49 Code ofFederal Regulations (C.F.R.) Part 604. The service specifically 
complained of pertains to Respondent's bus service to the Notre Dame/St. Mary's Complex 
located in South Bend, Indiana. Respondent filed an·answer dated December 22, 1999. 
Complainant filed a response on February 4, 2000. Respondent filed additional information on 
March 13,2000, and Complainant responded on April18, 2000. Upon reviewing the allegations 
in the complaint and the subsequent filings of both the Complainant and the Respondent, FTA has 
concluded that the service in question does violate FTA's regulations regarding charter service. 
Respondent is hereby ordered to cease and desist in providing such illegal service. 

Complaint History 

Complainant filed its compl~int with the FTA on September 13, 1999.1 The complaint alleges 
that the Respondent is providing illegal charter service2 by providing private charter service for 
the University ofNotre Dame DuLac and St. Mary's (collectively referred to as the "schools")3 

beginning on August 23, 1999. Specifically, Complainant alleges that this service is not open to 
the public because: (1) the service is to provide shuttle service among the schools; (2) the service 
is pursuant to a contract between the schools and the Respondent; (3) the service is on private 
property that is gated and secured; ( 4) the schools are billed for the service on a monthly basis; 
(5) hours of operation are prescribed by the schools; (5) the schedule f~r the service is to be 

1 Complainant filed its original complaint on August 31, 1999, with the Michiana Area Council of Governments 
("MACOG"). On September 29, 1999, MACOG filed a Motion to Dismiss with the FTA. MACOG contends they 
should not be a party to this action because they do not handle federal funds for the Respondent as the Complainant 
alleges in their complaint. MACOG in their Motion to Dismiss correctly points out that Respondent is a direct 
recipient of federal funds from the FTA; the funds do not pass throughMACOG. FTA agrees With this factual 
assertion and dismisses MACOG as a party to this complaint. 
2 Respondent receives Section 5307 and 5309 funds from FTA; therefore, they must comply with the charter 
regulations. 
3 The Respondent is also providing service to Holy Cross College, but it is not a signatory to the agreement. 

1 
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distributed by the schools (and the drivers); (6) collection of fares is at the discretion of the 
schools; and (7) Respondent agrees not to allow any advertising on the buses inconsistent with the 
missions of the schools. Complainant also asserts that Respondent entered into its agreement for 
charter service with the schools without giving the Complainant proper notice and an opportunity 
to offer its service. Complainant requested a cease and desist order or in the alternative a loss of 
federal funds. 4 

Respondent filed its answer on December 22, 1999. In it, Respondent denied that it was 
providing illegal charter service, and attached as an exhibit a copy of the agreement between itself 
and the schools dated November 22, 1999. Respondent asserts that its service is not illegal 
because it is offered to the general public. Respondent also claims their legal notice was posted 
prior to their entering negotiations with the schools. Respondent alleges that it consulted with 
FTA staff before providing the service. 

Complainant responded on February 4, 2000. This reply reiterated the assertion that 
Respondent's service is an illegal charter operation and that Complainant was not provided proper 
notice for an opportunity to offer its own charter service. Complainant again requested a cease 
and desist order. 

Respondent requested leave to file a further response on February 23, 2000, and subsequently 
filed a response on March 13, 2000. Respondent again claimed that the service is open to the 
public and attached a map of the service as an exhibit. 

Complainant filed an additional reply on April18, 2000. Complainant reasserted its prior 
position in its reply. It also addresses the references the Respondent makes to conversations with 
FTA employees as to the legality ofthe service being provided. Complainant asserts any 
opinions offered by FTA would be advisory not controlling.5 

Discussion 

As Complainant has accurately stated, recipients of federal financial assistance can provide 
charter service in very limited circumstances. In the absence of one of the limited exceptions, the 
recipients are prohibited from providing the service. 49 C.F.R. Section 604.9(a). Complainant is 
not asserting that any of the charter exceptions apply, but rather that the service they are 
providing is not charter service. 

The regulations define charter service as the following: 

transportation using buses or vans, funded under the Acts of a group of persons who 
pursuant to a common purpose, under a single contract, for a fixed charge for the vehicle 

4 The Complainant has requested that MACOG withhold federal funds, but as previously indicated the Respondent is 
a direct recipient of federal funds from the FT A. 
5 Although Respondent makes assertions that it consulted with FT A staff regarding the legality of the service, 
Respondent provided no written documentation that it sought a formal legal opinion from the FTA. Any 
conversations with FT A staff would have been of a general nature, since it would be difficult to determine the type of 
service being provided without viewing the contract between the Respondent and the schools. Respondent did not 
provide a copy of the contract for FTA legal review until after the complaint had been filed. 
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or service, who have acquired the exclusive use of the vehicle or service in order to travel 
together under an itinerary either specified in advance or modified after leaving the place 
of origin. Includes incidental use of FT A funded equipment for the exclusive 
transportation of school students, personnel, and equipment. 49 C.F.R. § 605.5(e). 

Thus, a determination needs to be made as to whether Respondent's service meets the definition 
of charter by examining the elements required for charter service. In order to qualify as charter 
service, the following questions need to be answered: 

a) Is this transportation service usi.tig buses funded with FTA money? 
b) Is the service for a common purpose? 
c) Is it under a single contract? 
d) Is it for a fixed charge for the vehicle or service? 
e) Is the exclusive use of the vehicles to travel together under an itinerary either specified in 

advance or modified after leaving the place of origin? 

Each of these elements is discussed below. If Respondent's service includes each of these 
elements, then it is charter service. If it is charter service, a determination needs to be made as to 
whether it is permissible charter service. 

A. Is this transportation service using buses funded with FTA money? 

The Respondent receives federal money for its buses and its capital maintenance expenses. It is a 
publicly funded transportation service. Its primary source of funding is dollars it receives from 
the FTA. Respondent's purpose is to provide public transportation through a bus system. The 
buses it uses are purchased with fedelial money. 

B. Is the service for a common purpose? 

The Agreement dated November 22, 1999 (the "Agreement"), between Respondent and the 
schools6 includes several relevant provisions, which relate to the question as to whether the 
service provided is charter service. The Agreement discusses that its purpose is to provide a 
public shuttle bus service between the University ofNotre Dame campus, the Saint Mary's 
College campus, and the Holy Cross College campus. The service runs between the schools on 
private property owned by the schools, since the Agreement states that the schools grant 
Respondent the right to use their roads.and highways for the shuttle service. The Agreement als< 
states that the University of Notre Dame duLac agrees to keep its key card controlled gate 
operational during the shuttle service. Since the campus is gated and the service runs on private 
property, the shuttle service is not open to the public. · 

C. Is it under a single contract? 

The Agreement serves as the single contract for the shuttle service. 

6 The Agreement as previously indicated is between the Respondent and the University of Notre Dame du Lac and 
the Corporation of Saint Mary's College Notre Dame. 
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D. Is it for a fixed charge for the vehicle or service? 

The Agreement states that Respondent will provide at least two buses on a daily basis to run the 
shuttle service between the schools during the hours of operation prescribed by the schools. The 
schools will determine the actual number of buses used and the days and hours of service. The 
schools will pay $32 per hour per vehicle during the hours the shuttle operates. The hours will 
include fifteen minutes in each direction for deadheading each bus between the Respondent's 
garage and the school campuses. Therefore, there is a fixed ~harge for the vehicle for which the 
schools will be charged. 

E. Is the exclusive use of the vehicles to travel together under an itinerary either specified in 
advance or modified after leaving the place of origin? 

Under the Agreement, the Respondent shall set the schedule for the shuttle service during the 
hours set by the schools. The Respondent shall also set the routing. The schools and the drivers 
will distribute the schedule. The schools can decide to levy a fare at a later date, and then their 
billing for the shuttle service will be reduced accordingly. 

Other provisions of the Agreement include the restriction on advertising on the shuttle buses. In 
the Agreement it states that the Respondent agrees to no advertising inconsistent with the schools' 
mission. The Agreement does state that the Respondent assumes responsibility and liability for 
the service. It also states that the Respondent is not an agent of schools, but it is a public carrier. 

Examining all the indicators of the service, it is clear that the service being provided by the 
Respondent is a charter service. Respondent's own reply dated December 22, 1999, states, "We 
were informed that the cost of the service for a year must be provide ... so that comparisons could 
be made with other providers who might also be interested in the service." Respondent must have 
known at the time this was charter service or why would other providers be interested. In fact, 
Respondent indicates in their reply dated March 13, 2000, that they provided their annual notice 
to provide charter service and received no responses from private providers, so they clearly knew 
this service was a charter service. 

Respondent fails to provide evidence to back up its assertion that it is providing a public shuttle 
service. In its reply dates March 13, 2000, it states, "We [Respondent] carry the public on the 
shuttle trips, including students, non-students, parents of students, visitors to our area,· sports fans, 
and other persons from the community." However, the Agreement indicates that the route starts 
and ends at the gates to the Schools and payment for service is hourly by the schools. Included in 
the hourly calculations is the time spent deadheading the vehicles. · 

The two cases Complainant cites, Greyhound Lines, Inc. v. Citv ofNew Orleans, 29 F. Supp. 2d 
339 (B.D. LA. 1998) and Blue Bird Coach Lines. Inc. v. Linton, 48 F. Supp. 2d 47 (D.D.C. 
1999), expand on the interpretation of charter service. The Greyhound case involved Greyhound 
buses being used for transporting passengers from their hotels to the Convention Center. The 
Court in making its determination that this was charter service stated that the service Greyhound 
provided was only available to clients of The Convention Store, not to the general public. 
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Payment came through a contract not individual paying passengers. Both these criteria were used 
to define charter service. In the Blue Bird case, the Court determined the service being provided 
by the Rochester-Genessee Regional Transit Authority of roundtrip transportation from Rochester 
to Buffalo and Syracuse for football and basketball games was not charter service. The service 
was widely advertised and open to the public. Individuals paid their own fare; it was not under a 
fixed contract. A finding that the service provided by the Respondent is charter service is 
consistent with both these cases. 

In addition to the facts listed above, in the questions and answers section of the implementing 
charter regulations in the federal register, an on-point question was posed. The question asked 
whether service within a university complex according to routes and schedules requested by the 
university would constitute charter service. The answer indicated that "if the service is for the 
exclusive use of students and the university sets fares and schedules, the service would be charter. 
However, such service operated by a recipient which sets fares and schedules and is open door, 
though it serves mainly university students, would be mass transportation [Question 27(d)]." 52 
FR 42248 (November 3, 1987) (DOT Charter Service Questions and Answers) The description 
of the service as set forth in the answer indicates that factually the Respondent's service is more 
like the former rather than the latter type of service. 

Finally, it is interesting to note that from 1996 through 1999, the Complainant provided charter 
service to the schools. The description of the service in Complainant's complaint is identical to 
the service at issue here. Complainant states, "On July 26, 1996, [Complainant] United entered 
into a written charter service agreement with the University of Notre Dame DuLac and Saint 
Mary's College, to provide specified charter motor carrier transportation services on a scheduled 
per vehicle per hour basis, invoiced monthly, with payment due within thirty (30) days." The 
service being provided by the Respondent is the same service and the terms of the Agreement are 
the same. 

The Respondent has entered into a contract with two universities to provide shuttle service among 
three schools. The buses, which were purchased with federal dollars, are for the exclusive use of 
the shuttle service. The two schools are being billed for the use of the buses. The schools and the 
drivers are providing the schedules; the schedules are not available to the public with the other 
regular route information. The shuttle service is conducted on private roads and on a gated 
campus. The schools monitor the advertisements on the shuttles and they decide the hours of 
operation. The Respondent is clearly providing a private charter service. 

Acceptable Charter Service 

If a recipient of federal funds, like the Respondent wishes to provide charter service, then it must 
comply with the procedural requirements. The regulation states the following: 

If a recipient desires to provide any charter service using FT A equipment or facilities the 
recipient must first determine if there are any private charter operators willing and able to 
provide the charter service . . . To the extent that there is at least one such operator, the 
recipient is prohibited from providing charter service with FTA funded equipment or 
facilities unless one or more of the exceptions applies, 49 C.F.R. Section 604.9(a). 
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There are a number of exceptions listed for providing charter service. However, the Respondent 
has not contended that one of the exceptions to the charter regulations applies in this case. 
Instead, the Respondent claims that even if this is a charter service, the Complainant failed to 
respond as a willing and able charter service to the solicitation for service. Respondent alleges 
they were not provided the opportunity to respond. 

The regulations clearly state that before a recipient provides charter service it must determine if 
there is any willing and able charter operator. 49 C.P.R. § 604.9(a). In order to determine if there 
is at least one private charter operator willing and able to provide the service, the recipient must 
complete a public participation process. 49 C.P.R.§ 604.11(a). The regulations under 49 C.P.R. 
§ 604.11(a) require that the recipient complete the following: 

(1) At least 60 days before it desires to begin to provide charter service ... 

(b) The public participation process must at a minimum include: 
(1) Placing a notice in a newspaper, or newspapers., of general circulation within the 
proposed geographic charter service area; 
(2) Send a copy of the notice to all private charter service operators in the proposed 
geographic service and to any private charter service operator that requests notice; 
(3) Send a copy of the notice to the United Bus Owners of America, 1300 L Street, 
NW., Suite 1050, Washington, DC 2005 and the American Bus Association, 1100 New 
York Avenue, SW, Suite 1050, Washington, DC 20005-3934. 

(c) The notice must: 
(1) State the recipients name; 
(2) Describe the charter service that the recipient proposes to provide limited to days, 

times of day, geographic area, and categories of revenue vehicle, but not the 
capacity or the duration of the charter service; 

(3) Include a statement providing any private charter operator ... at least 30 days ... to 
submit written evidence ... 

( 4) State the address to which the evidence must be sent; 
(5) Include a statement that the evidence necessary for the recipient to determine if a 

private charter operator is willing and able includes the following: 
(i) A statement that the private operator has the desire and the physical capacity to 
actually provide the categories of revenue vehicle specified, and 
(ii) A copy of the documents to show that the private charter operator has the 
requisite legal authority to provide the proposed charter service and that it meets 
all necessary safety certification, licensing and other legal requirements to provide 
the proposed charter service. 

(6) Include a statement that the recipient shall review only that evidence submitted by 
the deadline, shall complete its review within 30 days of the deadline, and within 60 
days of the deadline shall inform each private operator that submitted evidence what the 
results of the review are. 

(7) Include a statement that the recipient shall not provide any charter service using 
equipment or facilities funded under the Acts to the extent that there is at least one 
willing and able private charter operator unless the recipient qualifies for one or more of 
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the exceptions in 49 C.F.R. § 604.9(b). 

Procedural Determination Discussion 

The regulation under 49 C.F.R. § 604.11 clearly sets forth the procedures for determining if any 
willing or able private charter operators exist. The onus is upon the recipient to provide a ''public 
participation process." At a minimum, the recipient is required to provide any private charter 
operator with at least 30 days to submit written evidence to prove that it is willing and able, and 
then it must inform each private operator what the results are at least 60 days before the deadline. 

The Complainant has indicated that it is a "willing and able" charter service within the geographic 
area in question. It provided the charter service to the schools the three prior years. The 
Respondent does not challenge this assertion. In a letter dated August 16, 1999, written by the 
Complainant to the Respondent, the Complainant clearly notifies the Respondent of its desire and 
willingness to provide charter service to Notre Dame University. The letter further reminds 
Respondent of the requirements contained in 49 C.F.R. § 604 to publish a notice in the newspaper 
and to send a copy of the notice to the United Bus Owners Association and the American Bus 
Association. However, 49 C.F.R. § 604.11(b)(2) also requires the Respondent to send a "copy of 
the notice to all private charter service operators in the proposed geographic charter service area 
and to any private charter service operator that requests notice." Respondent admits in their reply 
dated March 13,2000, that they failed to send a notice to the Complainant. They state they 
received no responses to their annual notice. However, they do not attach a copy of their notice, 
so it is not clear what their "annual notice" referred to or where it was published. 

Respondent seems not to understand the procedural requirements of the charter regulations. In its 
reply briefs, it discusses that the schools indicated that no private charter operators had replied to 
their request for a proposal. The Respondent indicates that this is one of the reasons it did not 
send a notice directly to the Complainant. However, the regulations are clear, the procedural 
notice requirement applies to the Respondent not the schools. 49 C.F.R. § 604.1l(a). Respondent 
was required to send Complainant a copy of the notice, as a private charter operator in the 
geographic area, and because they had indicated an interest in providing the service. 49 C.F.R. § 
604.ll(b)(2). . 

Respondent appears not to have complied with additional procedural requirements regarding 
published notice. In Respondent's reply dated December 22, 1999, it states, "This year, our legal 
notice was posted shortly before the negotiations were undertaken with the University of Notre 
Dame for the public shuttle service about which the complaint stemmed. A copy of the notice 
was not mailed directly to [Complainant] United Limo, Inc. at that time, because [Respondent] 
TRANSPO took their owner's telephone call to us inquiring into charter provisions as an 
indication of their availability for charter service." The regulations require that notice be 
published at least 60 days before recipient desires to begin providing the service. 49 C.F.R. § 
604.11(a)(1). 

Respondent failed to properly determine whether there were any willing any private charter 
operators willing and able to provide the service to the schools. Therefore, since Respondent has 
not raised any of the exceptions that would apply to providing charter service, it is prohibited 
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from providing charter service with FTA funded equipment or services under 49 C.F.R. § 
604.9(a). 

Remedy 

Complainant has requested that Respondent immediately cease the charter operations at issue and 
begin the notice and review procedures as required under 49 C.F .R. Part 604. Complainant has 
requested in the alternative that there be a loss of federal funds. FT A does not need to address 
this question since it will be granting the cease and desist order. FTA grants Complainant's 
request for the cease and desist order and orders Respondent to cease providing charter service to 
the schools, and if they desire to provide charter service, they must follow the notice and review 
procedures for determining if there are any willing and able private charter operators. ·. 

Conclusion and Order 

FT A fmds that Respondent has been providing impermissible charter service and orders it to 
cease and desist any' such further service. Refusal to cease and desist in the provision of this 
service could lead to additional penalties on the part ofFTA. 

In accordance with 49 C.F.R. § 604.19, the losing party may appeal this decision within ten days 
of receipt of the decision. The appeal should be sent to Nuria F emandez, Acting Administrator, 
FTA, 400 Seventh Street, S.W., Room 9328, Washington, D.C. 20590. 

Jo . Ettinger 
R gional Administrator 
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U.S. Department 
of Transportation 
Federal Transit 
Administration 

Thomas .P. Kujawa 
Managing Director 
Milwaukee County Transit System 
1942 North 17th Street · 
Milwaukee, WI 53205-1697. 

Dear Mr. Kujawa: 

REGJONV 
Illinois Indiana, 
Michigan, Minnesota, 
Ohio, Wisconsin 

200 West Adams Street 
Suite 2410 
Chicago, IL60606-53232 
312•353-2789 . 
312-886-0351 (f~x) 

August 3, iooo 

This letter serves as the Federal Transit Administration's (FTA) response to your request dated 
June 28, 2000, for a waiver of the charter regulations for the trolley.replica buses. Unfortun-ately, 
the FT A charter regulations, which can be found at 49 Code of Federal Regulations Part 604, do 
not distinguish between trolley replica buses and regular buses. Unle~s one of the· charter 
exceptions applies, you cannot provide charter service with ·the trolley replica buses. FT A wquld 
be happy to review any request to provide charter service under one of the charter exceptions. 
However, since y:ou are not applying fe>r consideration under one of the charter exceptions, your 
request for a waiver from the charter regulatio·I).s is denied. Should you· have any question_s; 
please contact our office. 

Sincerely, 

g-t·f, 
Joel P. Ettinger 
Regional Administrator 
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U.S. Department 

of Transportation 

Federal Transit 
Administration 

September 20, 2000 

Mr .. W. James Chamberlain 
President 
Mackinaw Trolley .Company 

·Po Box358 
101B East Central· . . . - . 

Mackinaw City, MI 49701 

RE: Use of Public Funds for Private Charters 

Dear tJr. Chamberlain: 

REGIONV 
Illinois, Indiana, 
Michigan, Minnesota, 
Ohio, Wisconsin 

200 West Adams Street . 
Suite 2410 
Chicago, IL 60606-5253 
312-353-2789 . 
.312-886-0351 (fax) 

This letter serves as the Federal Transit Administration's (FTA) response to your letter dated 
August 26, 2000, concerning charter operations by recipients of federal funds. In your letter, you· 
indicated that' Charlevoix County Public Transportation in Boyne City, Michigan haS been using a 
federally funded vehicle for private charter operations and you asked that the FTA investigate this 
situation. Y oti should also have provid~d a copy of your complaint to Charlevoix County. 
However, FTA will be sending them a copy along-with fuis letter. 

Under 49 CFR § 604.1S(b ), parties to charter disputes shall fiist attempt to resqlve the dispute 
informally through discussions between the recipient .and complainant. A period of informal 
conciliation ~hall last for up to 30 days from the date of receipt of this letter, unless an ext~nsion is 
mutually agreed upon by both parties. If you are unable· to reconcile this matter between both 
parties, either party may send notification to this office. The FTA will send a copy of the 
notification to the other party and the respondent shall have 30 days from the receip,t of notifi~ation 
in which to provide written evidence which responds to the co~plain(.The complaining party will 
then have 30 days from·receipt of the _Respondenes response to respond to the Respondent's 
evidence. The FT A :Will then review the evidence and prepare a written decision. 

If it is determined that further investigation is necessary or an informal evidentiary hearing is 
necessary, you will be informed in writing. Either party may request an infolmal evidentiary 
hearing prior to the Regional Administrator's decision. The Regional Administrator may grant or 
deny the request. If such a hearing is determined to be necessary, the date and location_will be 
prearranged by consultation with both parties. AnY new evidence presented at the informal· 
evidentiary hearing shall be submitted to the Regional Administrator within 10 days after the 
hearing. Deadlines may be extended in writing by the Regional Administrator. . 
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The regulations regarding filing complaints for charter violations can be found at 49 CFR Section 
604.15. Should you have any questions, please contact Nancy-Ellen .Zusman .of my staff at 
(312)353-2789. 

Sincerely, . 

Mr?~. 
ci6'et Etti;ge~ . . U 
Regional Administrator 

cc: Charlevoix County Public Transportation w/enclosure 
Mr. Paul Fran<;e, Air Bear T~ansportation Company 

2 

668 



Sep-04-(11 05:16pm From-FTA TCC 

us. Depanment 
ofTronsportarion 
Federal Transit 
Administration 

Mr. Richard A. White 
General Manager 

ZOZS66SBD9 

rhe Deputy Administrato( 

OCT . 5 2000 

Washington Metropolitan Area Transportation Authority 
600 Fifth Street, N. W. 
Washington, DC 20001 

Dear Mr. White: 

T-171 P.DZ/03 F-910 . 

400 Seventh St., S.W. 
Wasfllngtoo. D.C. 20590 

This lener responds to the Washington Metropolitan Area Transportation Authority's 
(WMAT A) October 5, 2000 request for a special events charter exception under.. 49 CFR 
Section 609.4(b){4). 

WMATA seeks to operate chaner service for attendees ofthe International 
Transportation Symposium scheduled for October 9-12, 2000in Washington. D.C. (the· 
.. Symposium"). The Symposium l.s being sponsored by the United States Depattment of 
Transportation. the Government of the District of Columbia, and the Greater Washington 
Board ofTrade. · 

WMATA bases its application on safety and security concerns for the Symposium • s 
attendees. whom will include Secretary ofTransportation Rodney E. Slater, foreign 
transportation ministers, Members of Congress. governors, mayors. Members of 
Parliame~ts, international transportatio~. manufacruring and shipping industry 
executives, trade association expens, and labor leaders. Your application paints out that, 
"WMAT A nas its own Metro Transit Police Department, which has extensive experience 
. with special events. with heightened. security issues."' Also as part ofWMATA•s 
application, you included a letter from the Government of the District of Columbia, 
addressed. to you~ requesting ~hat WMAT A obtain· a chatter e~ception in connection with· 
the Symposium. That let!:er points .out that, "public transit buses $ould be used to 
respond to [the safety] concerns" surrou.nding the SymposiuiiL TheFT A notes that 
public transit buses do not contain undercarriage storage compartments. 

The preainble to the FTA~s charter regulation explains that the FTA will grant an 
exception under Section 604. 9{b )( 4) for events of an extraordinary~ special and singular 
nature such as the Pan· American Games and visits of foreign dignitaries. 52 Fed.Reg. 
11925 (April13. 19S7). Based an a review ofthe safety and security c~nsiderations 1n 
corinection with the Symposium, the FT A grants WMAT A an exception to operate 
charter service in connection with this special event. 
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05:17pm From-FTA TCC ZOZ36S3809 T-171 P.OS/03 .F-910 

-2-

TheFT A reminds WMATA that, "Any charter service that a recipient provides must be 
incidental charter service." 49 CFR Section 604.9(e). The regulations define .. incidental 
chaner service" as setvice that does not interfere with or detraCt from mass transit use, 
and which does not shonen the mass transportation life afFTA funded facilities or 
equipment. 
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~~~ 
Nuria I. Fernandez 
Acting Administrator 



U.S. Department 

of Transportation 
Federal Transit 
Administration 

Mr; Todd A. Holland, President 
Ramblin' Express, Inc. 
4360 Buckingham Drive, Suite 100 
Colorado Springs, Colorado 80907 

REGION VIII 
Colorado. Montana, 
North Dakota, 
South Dakota, 
llt::ah Wvnminn 

November 9, 2000 

RE: Alleged Charter Service, City of Colorado Springs 

Dear Mr. Holland: 

Columbine Place . 
216 Sixteenth Street Suite 650 
Denver, CO 80202-5120 
303-844-3242 
303-844-4217 (fax) 

We ~e in receipt of your letter of October 24~, 2000 in which you have essentially alleged that the 
City of Colorado Springs is providing charter Service by running federally funded buses from 
Colorado Springs· to/from Mile High Stadium in Denver for Denver Broncos football games. 

Charter Service means tninsportation using buses or vans, or facilities funded under the Acts of a 
group of persons who, pursuant to a common purpose, under a single· contract, at a fixed charge (in 
accordance with the carrier's tariff) for the vehicle or service, have acquired the exclusive use of 
the vehicle or service to travel. together under an itinerary either specified in advance or modified 
after haviD.g left the place of origin. This definition includes the incidental lise ofFfA funded 
equipment for the exclusive transportati()n of school students, personnel, and equipment. ( 49 CFR 
§604.5(e)~ · · 

What the City of Colorado Springs appears to be running is a route that goes to Mile High 
St.adi~. This is similar to the Bronco Bus and Rockies Bus that RTD runs. The key is that this is 
not exclusive use Under one "contract~ The service is available to anyone who wants to buy a ticket 
and ride ~bus. Therefore, based on the information which you have provided it does not appear 
that the service which you haye described falls within the definition of charter service: 

Should you have further questions or comments, please feel free to contact us. 

ee . 
Regional Administrator 
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U.S. Department 
of Transportation 
Federal Transit 
Administration 

Barry S. Bland 
President/CEO 
Indianapolis Public Transportation Corporation 
1501 West Washington Street 
Indianapolis,. IN 46222 

REGIONV 
Illinois, Indiana, 
Michigan, Minnesota, 
Ohio, Wisl(onsin · 

RE: Request for Waiver of Charter Regulations 

Dear Mr. Bland: 

200 West Adams Street 
Suite 2410 
Chicago, IL 60606-52S3 
312:353-2789 
312-886-0351 (fax) 

December 7, .2000 

This letter serves as the Federal Transit Administration's (FTA) response to your request dated 
November 16, 2000, for an exception to .the charter regulations·. Specifically, the Indianapolis· 
Public Transportation. Corporation (fndy9o).wruits a.waiver of the Gharter regulations so that it 
may provide charter ser\rice for the World Police & Fire Games in Indianapolis this summer. · 
IndyGo requested the waiver.under 49 C.F.R. § 604.9(b)(4), the special events exception. 
·unfortunately, FTA can only grant this exception to the extent that private charter operators are not 
capable of providing the service. you indicated in your letter that 10,000 individuals would be 
coming in for the event. Nancy-Ellen Zusman of my staffconfrrmed with Elizabeth Joh.riSon of 
your staff by telephone on December 5, 2000, that this is not a private capacity issue. · . 
Additionally, two private charter operators submitted negative comments in response to IndyGo's 

·public notice proposing to provide the charter service for tlie event. Bas~d on the information.FTA 
has received to_ date, :the-Agency cannot grantyour.request for an exception, due to the faGtthere is 
no evidence private charter operators are not capable of providing the service. Therefore, FTA is 
denying your-request for an exception, because it does not meet the requirements of 49 C.F.R. 
§ 604.9(b)(4).· Should you have any questions regarding this matter, please feel free to contact 
Ms. Zusman. She can be reached at (312) 353~2789. ··-· · -

Sincerely, 

Joel P. Ettiri.ger 
Regional Administrator 
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U.S, Department 

of Transportation · 
Federal Transit . 
Administration 

Hank Sokolnicki 
Planning/Grants Administrator 
Miami Valley Regional_Transit Authority 
600 Longworth Street 
P.O. Box 1301 
Dayton; OH 45401 

REGIONV 
Illinois, Indiana, 
Michigan, Minnesota, 
Oh_io, Wisconsin 

200 West Adams Street 
Suite 2410 

· Chicago, ll 60606-5253 
312-353-2789 
312-886-0351 (fax) 

Dec.ember 20·, 2000 

·Re: Response- to R~_quest to Provide Incidental Charter Service Limited to Special Categories 6f 
Revenue Vehicles 

Dear Mr. Sokolnicki:: 

This letter serves as the Federal Tr~sit Administration's (PTA) response to Miami Valley 
Regional Transit Authority's (MVRTA) inquiry dated November.22; 2000, regarding a request to 
provide incidental chaqer service limited to special categories of revenue vehicles. It is also a 
follow-up. to_ our-subsequent telephone conversation on the same topic on November JO, 2000 . 

. Thank you for providing me with a copy of an PTA letter on this topic from November of 1992. 
. ' 

Since we spoke, I have resea:r:ched the question and. have .been able to confll:rri.~ as I indicated to you 
on the telephone, that the charter regulations only distinguish between two types of vehicles, buses 
and vans, see 49 C.P.R. Section 604.3(e). If a grantee wishes to provide charter service, they must 
first determine whether there are any private willing and able charter providers, otherwise ·one of 
the exceptions listed under 49 C.P.R.Section 604.9(b) must apply. PTA is aware that the advice it 
provided to MVRTA in 1992 indicated differently. However, the interpretation contained in our 
letter· to you today is the correct statement of the regul1~.tion. Grantees in their public notice · 
soliciting private willing and. able charter providers can only specify bus or van with regard to the 
type of vehicle. 

PTA's Triennial-Review Guide dated Oct9ber 2000, states this interpretation also. Under the 
explanation ofthe charter annual.service notice, the Guide states, "The grantee's notice must be 
limited to a.description of the ... categories of revenue vehiCles for service~ Only two categories of 
vehicles can be specified: buses and vans. Abus is a bus whether it is ·an intercity bus, a transit 
bus, or a trolley. A private operator does not have to demonstrate that it has any particular type of 
bus to be considered 'able."' (Guide at 16-2.)' · 

This specific question was also addressed approxiri::uitely seven months after the fmal "charter 
regUlation was published. UMT A (the precursor agency to PTA) published a number of questions 
and answers regarding the charter regulations. One ofthe question and answers were as follows: 
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25: Question: If the customer insists on a particular type ·of equipment that the willing 
and able to I sic] priyate operator does riot have, for example, a trolley lookalike, · 
articulated or double-decker bus, may the grantee provide the service?. 

Answer: The regulation recognizes only tWo categories of vehicles, i.e., buses or vans. · 
Trolleys, artics, doubledeckers and other types of specifically modified equipment are 
placed in one of these categories and are subject to the same rules as all other equipment. 
)'herefore, the grantee would be ableto provide the service only if one of the regulatory 
exceptions applies. (Federal Register, Vol. 52, No. 212, pg. 42252, November 3, 1987) 

. . 

MVRTA if it wishes to provide charter service will need to reissue it~ public notice to deternii:he if 
there ar~ any private willing and able charter providers for the .type of service (bus or van) it wishes 
to provide. FTA apologizes for any confusion its prior advice· may have caused.- ~hould you have 
a,ny further questions regard.ing this matter, please feel free to contact me: I. can be reached at 
(312) 353-2789. 

Sincerely, 

~-~A\_ 
Na.:c~-El1en ~sman 
Regiomu Counsel 
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U.S. D.epartment 
of Transportation 
Federal Transit· 
Administration 

Ty E. Livingston 
Director of Planning & Marketing · 
Greater Peoria Mass Transit District 
2105 N.E. Jefferson Ave. 
Peoria, IL 61603 

REGIONV 
Illinois, Indiana, 
·Michigan, Minnesota, 
Ohio, Wisconsin 

Re: Review of Agreement for Direct Charter Service 

Dear Mr. Livingston: 

zoo West Adams· street 
Suite 2410 
Chicago, IL 60606-5253 
312-353-2789 
312-886-0351 (fax) 

Feb~uary 8, 2001 

This letter serves as the Federal Transit Administration's (FTA) response to Greater Peoria Mass 
Transit District's (City Link) request dated September 15, 2000,.regarding review of its Agreement 
for Direct Charter Service. It is also a follow-up to our subsequent telephone conversations on the 

. . 

same topic on February 7, and 8, 200.1 

The issue City Link raised is whether it could specify in its agreement with commercial charter 
operators that it would be usmg replica trolleys, as opposed to buses or vans, as indicated in its 
annual notice .. I have researched ·the question and have been able to confmn, as I indicated to you 
on the telephone, that the charter regulations only distinguish between two types of vehicles, buses 
and vans, see 49 C.F.R. Section 604.3(e). If a grantee wishes to provide charter service, they must 
first determine whether there are any private willing and able charter providers, othe~se one of 
the exceptions listed under 49 C.F.R. Section 604.9(b) muit apply. Grantees in their public notice 
soliciting private willing· and able charter providers can only specify bus or van with regard to the. 
type of vehicle. The agreement utilized 1mder Section 604.9(b )(7) must be consistent with a 
Grantee~ s annual notice. In other words, the agreements should only list buses or vans when 
discussing the type of charter service the 9rantee.is intending to provide. . . 

FTA's Triennial Review Guide dated October 2000, states this interpretation also. Under the 
explanation ofthe charter· annual service notice, the Guide states, "The grantee's notice must be 
limited to a description of the ... categories of revenue vehicles for service. Only two categories· 
of vehicles can be specified: buses and vans. A bu5 is a bus whether it is an intercity bus, a 
transit bus, or a trolley. A private operator does not have to demonstrate that it has any particular . 
type ofbus to be considered 'able."' (GUide at 16-2) 

This specific question was also addressed approximately seven months after the final charter 
regulation was. published. UMTA (the precursor agency to FTA) published a number of questions 
and answers regarding the charter regulations. One of the question and answers were as follows: 
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2. 

25. Question: If the customer insists on a particular type of equipment that the willing 
and able to [sic] private operator does not have, for example, a trolley lookalike, 
articulated or double-decker ·bus, may the grantee provide the service? 

Answer: The regulation re<;:ognizes only two categories of vehicles, i.e., buses or vans. 
Trolleys, artics, doubledeckers and other types of specifically modified equipment are 
placed in one ofthese categories and are subjecttothe same rules ·as all other equipment. 
Therefore, the· grantee would be able to provide the service only if one of the regulatory 
exceptions applies. (Federal Register, Vol. 52,No. 212, pg. 4225~, November 3, 1987) 

CityLink if it wishes to provide charter service will need to renegotiate its agreement With the 
private charter operators to determine if there are any private willing and able charter providers for 
the type of service (bus or van) it wishes to provide. FTA apologizes for any confusion its prior 
advice may have caused. Finally, you may want to. clarify in your agreement that CityLink is . 

. offering to provide charter service pursuant to 49:C.F.R. Section 604.9(b)(7j. This provision i~ a 
regulation, not a circular as referenced in your agreement. Shotild you have any further questions· 
regarding this matter, please feel free .to contact me. I can be reached at (312) 353-2789. · 

Sincerely, 

~.~·· 
Nancy.:Ellen Zusman 
Regional Counsel 

cc: Derek Davis 
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U.S. Department 
of Transportation 
Federal Transit 
Administration 

Ms. Gloria J. Young 
Manager of Safety & Instruction 
1200 East 18th Street 
Kansas City, MO 64108 

Dear Ms. Young: 

REGION VII 
Iowa, Kansas, 
Missouri, Nebraska 

July 19, 2001 

901 Locust Street 
Suite404 
Kansas City, MO 64106 
816-329-3920 
816-329-3921 (fax) 

Re: Charter Service for American Dental Assoc. 

The Federal Transit Administration (FTA) has received your letter dated June 7, 2001 regarding 
charter service. It is our understanding that Kansas City Area Transportation Authority (KCA TA) 
wishes to provide transportation for attendees to the American Dental Association Convention 
being held October 12-15, 2001 in the Kansas City area Specifically, KCATA wishes to provide a 
shuttle service to transport convention attendees to restaurants and entertainment areas throughout 
the city. 

The preamble to the charter regulation explains that the FT A will grant an exception under Section 
604.9(b)(4), the exception which you have requested, only for events of an extraordinary, special 
and singular nature such as the Pan American Games and the visits of foreign dignitaries. (See 52 
Fed. Reg. 11925, April13, 1987.) Regularly scheduled yearly or periodic events would not qualify 
for the exception. (See "Charter Service Questions and Answers," 52 Fed. Reg. 42251, November 
3, 1987.) While the FTA did grant a "special event" exception to several transit authorities in Iowa 
for the 1988 World Ag Expo, an international agricultural exposition which had been held in the 
United States only twice in twenty years and which was expected to draw between 200,000 and 
300,000 visitors, the American Dental Association Convention does not appear to be an event of a 
singular nature. This convention is held periodically and only the location within the United States 
changes. Your letter provides no support for the proposition that the convention is the type of 
activity intended by· the regulation's "special event" exception. 

For these reasons, FT A has determined that KCATA must follow the public participation process 
set forth at 49 CFR 604.11 and thereby determine ifthere is a willing and able private provider of 
charter service. If no willing and able operator exists, KCATA can provide charter service for the 
convention so long as this service is incidental charter service. Your telephone conversation with 
Regional Counsel, Paula L. Schwach, indicated that the service would be provided outside of peak 
service hours and from 6:30PM to 11 :OOPM. Incidental charter service may not interfere with or 
detract from providing mass transportation service or shorten the mass transportation life of the 
equipment being used. (See also, 52 Fed. Reg. 42251-42252.) 
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Letter to Ms. Young· 
June 13,2001 

Page2. 

For a copy of the FTA Charter Service Regulations, go to 
http://www.access.gpo.gov/naralcfr/waisidx 99/49cfr604 99.html. If you have questions, please 
contact Shannon Graves at (816) 329-3926 or Paula L. Schwach, Regional Counsel at (816) 329-
3935. 

~~~ 
Mokhtee Ahmad 
Regional Administrator 

Cc: Elizabeth Martineau, TCC 
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U.S. Department 
of Transportation 
Federal Transit 
Administration 

Ms. GloriaJ. Young 
Manager of Safety & Instruction 
1200 East 18th Street 
Kansas City, MO 64108 

Dear Ms. Young: 

REGION VII 
Iowa, Kansas, 
Missouri, Nebraska 

October 3, 2001 

901 locust Street 
Suite404 
Kansas City, MO 64106 
816-329-3920 
816-329-3921 (fax) 

Re: Charter Service for American Dental Assoc. 

On October 1, 2001, this office received your request for a waiver of the charter regulations 
pursuant to 49 CFR 604.9(b)(l). Attached to your letter was documentation of your efforts to 
comply with the public participation process set forth at 49 CFR 604.11 and your resulting 
determination that there is no willing and able private provider of charter service for transportation 
for attendees to the American Dental Association Convention being held October 12-15,2001 in 
the Kansas City area. Specifically, KCA T A notified private charter operators and the American 
Bus Association of the opportunity to provide a shuttle service to transport convention attendees to 
restaurants and entertainment areas throughout the city. No provider indicated either the 
willingness or the ability to participate in this service; many private providers are providing other 
service related to the convention. 

Ff A finds based on your letters dated August ·1, and the attachments thereto, and September 18, 
2001 that no willing and able operator exists, and therefore, KCATA is granted a waiver pursuant 
to 49 CFR 604.9(b )(I) and may provide charter service for the convention so long as this service is 
incidental charter service. 

If you have any questions related to this waiver, please contact Paula L. Schwach, Regional 
Counsel at (816) 329-3935. 

Sincerely, 

~7W.l.Jo/-· 
Regional Administrator 

Cc: Elizabeth Martineau, TCC 
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U.S. Department 
of Transportation 
Federal Transit 
Administration 

Joseph A. Calabrese, CEO 
General Manager/Secretary-Treasurer 
Greater Cleveland Regional Transit Authority 
1240 W. Sixth Street 
Cleveland, OH 44113 

RE: Charter Service 

Dear Mr. Calabrese: 

REGIONV 
Illinois, Indiana, 
Michigan, Minnesota, 
Ohio, Wisconsin 

200 West Adams Street 
Suite 2410 
Chicago, IL. 60606-5253 
312-353-2789 
312-886-0351 (fax) 

OCT 1 1 2001 

The Federal Transit Administration {FTA) is aware that on August 5, 2001, the Greater Cleveland 
Regional Transit Authority (GCRTA) transported a group of American Public Transportation 
Association (APTA) participants from Cleveland, OH to Pittsburgh, PA. The purpose of the trip 
was to view Pittsburgh's various transportation facilities. The trip was in conjunction with 
APTA's 200llntermodal Operations Planning Workshop which was in Cleveland, OH from 
August 6-August 8, 2001. GCRTA has indicated that it did not charge the participants for the trip, 
and no regular GCRTA service was impacted by the use of the buses. 

The question of what type of service was provided tunis on whether the service provided qualifies 
as charter service or mass transportation. The definition of charter service under 49 C.F.R. § 
604.5(e) is "transportation using buses ... funded under the [FTA Act and those parts of23 U.S.C. 
103 and 142 that provide for assistance to public bodies for purchasing buses] Acts of a group of 
persons who pursuant to a common purpose, under a single contract, at a fixed charge ... for the 
vehicle or service, have acquired the exclusive use of the vehicle or service to travel together under 
an itinerary ... " The service provided by GCRTA was not open to the public. GCRTA used 
federally funded equipment to provide transportation for a specific group of individuals to travel 
from Cleveland to Pittsburgh. 

Although GCRTA did not charge for this service, FTA has interpreted cost as being irrelevant. In 
1987, UMTA (FTA's precursor agency the Urban Mass Transportation Administration) issued a 
series of charter questions and answers. Question 27(a) was whether service provided for free, but 
otherwise meets the criteria in the definition of charter would fall within the definition of charter. 
The answer was as follows: 

"Cost is irrelevant in determining whether service is mass transportation or charter 
service. Thus, service which meets the criteria set by UMTA, i.e., service controlled by 
the user, not designed to benefit the public at large, and which is provided under a single 
contract, will be charter regardless of the fact that it is provided for free. 

As a general rule, free charter service would be "non-incidental" since it does not recover 
its fully allocated cost, and could not be performed by an UMTA recipient, even under 
one of the exceptions to the charter regulations." (52 Fed. Reg. 42252 (Nov. 3, 1987)) 
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Based on the infonnation GCRTA has provided regarding this trip, FTA views this trip as 
unauthorized charter service. GCRTA controlled the service, and it was not for the benefit of the 
public at large. It was provided on a one time basis for transportation between two destinations. 

Since GCRTA provided unauthorized charter service, it should extend the useful life of the 
vehicles in question by the amount of mileage that was used for the trip from Cleveland to 
Pittsburgh. In future, GCRTA should cease and desist from the practice of providing unauthorized 
charter service. 

Should you have any questions regarding this matter, please feel free to contact me. I can be 
reached at (312) 353-2789. 

Sincerely, 

Louise Carter, Director 
Office of Operations and Program Management 
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U.S. Department 
of Transportation 
Federal Transit 
Administration 

T. J. Ross 
Executive Director 
PACE 
550 West Algonquin Road 
Arlington Heights, IL 60005 

RE: Charter Regulation Requirements 

Dear Mr. Ross: 

REGIONV 
Illinois Indiana, 
Michigan, Minnesota, 
Ohio, Wisconsin 

200 West Adams Street 
Suite 2410 
Chicago, IL 60606-53232 
312-353-2789 . 
312-886-0351 (fax) 

OCT 2 3 2001 

The Federal Transit Administration (FTA) is aware that on September 27, 2001, PACE provided 
thirty-five (35) buses based on a request from the White House. The buses were used to transport 
approximately 4,000 airline employees from sites beyond O'Hare Airport to a White House event 
with the Secretary of Transportation. The buses were used over a two-hour time period. PACE 
was reimbursed for the use ofthe buses. FTA does not know whether regular PACE service was 
impacted by the use of the buses. 

FT A is aware that the White House indicated that for specific security reasons it wished to utilize 
PACE buses. A one-time event of this type would probably have qualified a8 an exception to the 
charter regulations under the special events exception. FT A is aware that this was a special 
request from the White House with a very narrow timeframe.· FTA would have responded 
extremely quickly to either a written or verbal request (followed up later with a written request) 
for an exception. However, PACE did not seek the Administrator's approval for an exception. 
This letter is being sent as a reminder that PACE is required to follow the charter regulations, 
including the procedural requirements. 

The charter regulations prohibit recipients from providing charter service with FT A funded 
equipment unless one of the specific charter exceptions applies. 49 Code of Federal Regulations 
(CFR) § 604.9( a). Under the regulations, there is a charter exception. that applies for special 
events to the extent that private charter operato.rs are not capable of providing the service. 49 
CFR § 604.9(b)(4). However, in order to utilize the exception the recipient needs to petition the 
Administrator for an exception. !d. The petition should describe the event, explain how it is 
special, and explain the amount of charter service the private operators are not capable of 
providing. 49 CFR § 604.9( d). Additionally, the service provided can only be incidental. 49 
CFR § 604.9(e). Incidental service means that the service does not interfere with or detract from 
the provision of mass transportation service. 49 CFR § 604.5. 
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As you well know, the service provided by PACE was not open to the public. PACE used 
federally funded equipment to provide transportation for a specific group of individuals for a 
specific purpose. The service provided clearly falls within the definition of charter. PACE did 
not petition for an exception to the charter regulations. FT A is bringing this matter to your 
attention so that should a similar situation occur, you will contact FTA immediately. Should you 
have any questions regarding this matter, please feel free to contact me. 

Sincerely, 

Joel Ettinger 
Regional Administrator 
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U.S. Department 
·of.Trarisportation 
Federal. Transit 
Administration 

Mr .. Robert B. Kennedy 
Lowell Regional Transit Authority 
Gallagher Intennodal Transportation Center 
145 Thorndike Streer 
Lowell, MA 01852 

Dear Mr. Kennedy: 

REGION I 
Connecticut, Maine, 
Massachusetts, · 
New Hampshire, 
RhnriA l~~:l::~nn VAnnnnt 

Volpe Center 
55 Broadway: Suite 920 
Cambridge, MA 02142-1093 
617-494-2055 
617-494-2865 (fax) 

DEC 1 3 .2001 

This ·lett.er will confirm that the Federal Transit Administration (FT A) authorized the Lowell 
Regional Transit Authority (LRTA) to provide chartet service under a special events chancr 
exception pursuant to 49 CFR Section 609.4(b)(4). Specifically, the office ofU. S. Senator Raben 
Smith requested LRT A to provide a 25-passenger, or. larger, CNG-powered bus.to transpon staff 
and press to various events in Western New Hampshire during a two-day tour which \Vas officially 
called "The Bob Smit!1 Environmental Bus Tour." 

LRTA bru;ed its applicatio~ on the· nature of the service which was to inform the public about the 
need for an expanded natural gas· infrastructure and for CNG filling _stations in the State of New 
Hampshire and across thecountry. Your application pointed out that LRTA noti.fied three private 
charter bus operators to determine whether these companies would be able to perforrn the service.·· 
None of the private operators had. the capacity tb provide the necessary service. 

The FTA has not defined ··special events," but intends that they cover only events of an 
extraordinary and singular nature. 52 Fed. Reg. 42251 ~ovember 3. 1987). Based on .. a review of 
the considerations in cori,nection with the Environmental Bus Tour, the FTA granted LRTA an 
exception to operate charter service in connection with this special eve.nt. 

. -
The.FT A reminds LRT A that a request for a special events exception must follow the process set 
forth at Section 604.9(d): This process provides, in part, that a recipient must submit its petition 
for an exception to FTA at least 90 days prior to the date of the chaner service and that any 

·exc.eption granted is only good for the particular special event specified. Moreover. any charter 
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service that a recipient provides mustibe·incidental. . 49 CFR Section· 604.9( e). The regulations 
-define-"incidental charter-service!Las-'-'$ervic~:Which-does-notfuterfere-with -or-detract -from:.the 
proVision of mass· ·transit use, or wliicl:r does~ not shorten: the mass tran:sportatibrt life ofFTA'runde'"d' 
facilities or equip~ent . 

I hope this information is helpfuL Ifyou have any questions, pleaSe feel. free to call me at.(617) 
4949-2409. 

_Sincerely, 

~
, 

\..A.I7'.. . , ~ ... 

litcu) r_cdt.'f f'- 'ML;i 
Margaret E. Foley i/ 
Regional- Counsel · 

685 



u.s. Department 
of Transportation 

Federal Transit 
Administration 

. . . 

Dear Transportation Colleague: 

Administrator 

DEC 27 zoot 

400 Seventh St .. S.W. 
Washington. D.C. 20590 

C-16-Gl 

The events of September 11 haveintroduced.significantcballenges .. for America's 
transportation. network. Long recognized aS the world's finest system for transporting 
passengers and goods, this hetwork is the foundation of the world's strongest economy 
and most open society. We are now challenged to.mainta1n that vigor and effectiveness 
in the face of a new andiiie.hacing threat. 

· Many of the private sector components of our transportation infrastructure were dealt a 
considerable economic blow by the September .11 attack. The airline industry was 
severely impacted,.but so, too, was the private over-the-road bus industry. The bus 
industry reports that members experienced cancellation rates in charter and tourism 
business of up to eighty percent. Revenues from these services are considered cruciaJ to 
maintaining intercity bus transportation networks, which serve over 4,000 communities. 

The interconnected nature of America's transportation network requires that we work 
together to maintain the vitality and effectiveness of evtiry component of our system. 
Local transit agencies, especially in rural areas, are providing connecting feeder <;md 
distributor services to intercity operators. Local transit operators have bec()me ticket 
agents for both local and intercity servjce: Intercity over-the-road bus operators have 
become contractors to public governmental agencies, particularly providing long distance 
commuter services, and have made their resources available for special events in times of 
unusually high demand. The fact is, the health of every component- tpublic and ,private
affects the health and effectiveness of our entire passenger transportation system. . . 

As public transit agencies move to expand service, it is important to respectthe. needs of 
private sector agencies to operate effectively in a competitive marketplace for services 
that do not receive subsidies .. In 1987, the Federal Transit Administration (FTA) issued 
charter service rules, as ,required by Federal law, to ensure that publicly funded services . 
do notput private services at a competitive disadvantage. FTA also affords flexibility 
within its rules for public agencies to meet special community needs when it is not 
pr<tctical for the private sectorto respond in a cost-effective manner. · 

I have enclosed a brochure that highlights and reviews the key provisions of the FTA 
charter serVice regulation and the specific responsibilities of FT A grant recipients. Please 
take a few moments to review this information; 
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Public and private mass transportation providers have much to offer each other and the 
riding public--America is depending upon all of us to keep our coinmunities'~afe ~md 
movmg. 

Enclosure 
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Feb~"~-oz !0:09am From-FTA ~: 

u.s. oepartment 
of TransportatiOn 
Federal Transit 
Administration 

Mr. Richard Cr~mwell 
General Manager and CEO 

· SunLine Transit Agency 
32-SOS Harry Oliver Tnii.l 
Thousand P~ CA 92276 

Mr. Jim Seal 
Jim Seal Consulting Services 
24313~ Street .. 
Santa ·Monica, c~ 90405 

Dear Messn. Cromwell. and Seal: · 

+415744Z7.ZS 
•_.l. ·•• 

REGION IX 
AriZona, Callfomta, 
HIWII, Ntvadt, Guam 
Ametlcan Samoa, 
Nor1hem Mariana ~ 

T-600 P .02/04 F-749 

201 Mlalon Street 
Suite 2210 
San Francllco, CA ·9410S·1839 
41 5-7-44-3133 
41S-744-2726(hlx) . 

It has come to our attention that Federal Transit Administration {f'TA) tailed to is9u~ its~ 
determination letter in response to oorrespondence sub~ed by the SunLine Transit Agency 
(SunLine) and the California Bus Association (CBA) conceinins tbe.recontigUtation and 
reinstatement of Suniine' s group trip service. We regret this omis~ion, and herewith transmit 
FT A 7 s decision. . . . 

Backaround 

On February 10, 1997, the Ff A issued a decision finding that Sunl..ine's.fixed-route group trip 
service was chaner service in violation of 49 CFR Pan 604. SunLine was ordered to discontinue 
~operating the. servjc:e and advised that if it wished to reinStitute group trip-operations, It IDI.l~t 
reconfigure .the service to coil:form toFT A's riJ:ass ~pottation guid~lin~s ... Sh~rtly t~tler~ -~. 
FT A granted a temponuy stay .ofits decision based on SuilLine's revelation· $at the.informati0n u·. , 
had provided 10 FTA prior to the February 10 decisi9n was outdated; the p&rties-had.resolvtld ~eir· · 
differences during an October 1996-med.ing;_and the_chaner infractions had been-correc:ti=d In 
response, CBA denied that the issues were resolved and claimed that SunL~e w~ still performing 

. impennissible charter service. 

Both parties filed supplemental documentation, with SunLine maintaining that the group trip 
operation is ~fixed route deviation service" within the meaning ·or mass transponarion, ·'and CBA 
continuing to claim that the group trip violates the cbaner regulation. Thereafter. in :reSponse to 
FfA's request for clarification of its supplemental information, SunLine stated in its J~y 21, 
1998, letter: . 

.. There were a total of 164 group trips during the period 9/l/97 through 1/4/98. 
1000/o of these group nips were for schools. None of the schools reguested a 

. . 
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deViation ... ·&.lofthe 164 trips intluded·a deviailon oi·v{inile or less. We made: the 
decision to 'deviate' from the exact fixed route in order to provide ' safer 
boardi.ns point for these students, almost· all of who are grade sdloola. ThQ 
deviation in these cases means that the bus leaves the exact roure, travels a few 
blocks to a convenient on the street (aever on school property) location, boards 
the children, and immediately rcrums to the exact fixed ro\llc. nus routing 
assures that no bus stop is missed in makin~ these deviations." 

P!sussicm 
~. .. t 

Based~ on the supplememal infonnation gathered since issuing its February 10 decision, Fr A finds 
that SWiL~e bas DOt made the changes necessary to bring thC group trip service within th~ 
definitio~ of mass transpOnation. There may be BCVcral ways, however, mat SunLine could 
provide the service;:whieh would be c:omistem with·Federal law and rqulation. 

Fitst, ac:cordiDJ to SUDLille, SunBuscs have used compUterized roUins had signs to display 
resuJar route designations for all routes since June 1996; Moreover, the DUJJlber of group trips 
~o~ including 69 devi~ over a fo~·montb period. may justify placing a bus stop ~n 
.~ of all. se~s scrwd.ls well ~ the grot:q,_.trip dcstin4tion points. Fmally, ado~Jting this · 
rCtc)DfigUralion woUld a!sUre·~ gro\lp trip piCk~up and drOP-off paints woUld be putilisbcd in_ the 
ri8uJar fixed-route schedule. 

Second, SUDLine might consider implemezJtins site-specific route deViation service is an 
altc:mative that would offer SuaLine a ~ of route tlexibility while limitins overall schedule 
~ UDder this approadl, certain major trip se,aa aton « destit\ariODS, sueh !JS public housing.· 
or group homes, .lellior ccaten, sen-ice asencies. lad so forth are identified oa ~ advertised · 
scbedule. Deviation requests are cmJy acceptCd fur these specific lite$. Customers and ~cies 
can request thai aew aitCs be eonsid~ and these may be ineluded on the schedule the next time 
the routes are adjuSted qr schedules updated. Site-~c route deviation oombines fixed route 

. ·aDd demand response service, both of which FT A bas determined to be mass transpottation. The 
'fad that it combines aspeCts of both rather tb8n. being simply one or the adler would aot make it 

,·any less mass tnJrisit, aS long as it is available to any individual or group within the service area. 

According to SunL~ .. I()()IIAI" of its group trips are ~ormed for schools. Which clearly 
establi~bes that the service is perfonned exclusively for students·and school personnel rather than 
for ~,8~ ~ublic. '11lerefore. if SunLine does decide to reoonfisure its service as site--speeific 
·roUte. 4eviation. it, .rriu,st take steps to vigorously advenise and promote tbe service to ensure that the 
·public is aware. of whatever routes or deviation possjbilities are offered. Generally, this marketing 
effort is best evidenced by publication of the service in the recipient's preprinted schedules and 
doing other types ofadvcnising as well. SunLine's success in these marketing effortS to the 
g~eral public will be determined by the diversity of~ clientele requesting deviations and the. 
percentage. of deviation requests that can be attributed to each; i.e. group homes/200/a. 

Conc::lusion I n 
I. 

In conclusion, S~ine • s group trip seryice is charter service rather than mass transpOrtation and 
therefore, results an impermissible use¢ ofFTA furn:'ed facilities and equipment. Under FI"A's 
charter regulation, SunLine may not provide. charter service using Fl' A funded. equipment ur 

2 
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faciliti~· if there' is a ph'Yite operator in its geagrapiUc ~ ~ung and able to provide that 
charier servi~~ess one or'!1o~ of~ ~on~ listed~ 49 CFR §_604.9(b) apply: 
Fwthermqre, nay chaner semce· proVIded by_ SunLme under an exception must be tnc:tdental. 
MoreOver, ifSunLinc wishes to provide direct charter service it must engage in the public: notice 
pr~ set fonb in 49 CFR § ~. 1'1. It: as a result of the public notice process. SunLine 
determines that there is .no willing and able private operator, it may provide charter service. 

In accordance with 49 CFR § 604.19, either party may appeal this decision within ten days to 
Jennifer L. Dom, AcbninistratOf, Federal Transit Administration, 400 Seventh Sticct. S.W ., Room 
9328~ Wasbingtoil, PC 20590. . . . 

Sincerely, 

3 
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U.S. Department 
of Transportation 
Federal Transit 
Administration 

Aprill5, 2002 

Joseph A. Calabrese, CEO 
General Manager 
Greater Cleveland Regional Transit Authority 
1240 West 6th Street 
Cleveland, Ohio 44113 

REGIONV 
Illinois, Indiana, 
Michigan, Minnesota, 
Ohio, Wisconsin 

RE: Request for Waiver of Charter Regulations 

Dear Mr. Calabrese: 

200 West Adams Street 
Suite 2410 
Chicago, IL 60606-5253 
312-353-2789 
312-886-0351 (tax) 

This letter serves as the Federal Transit Administration's (FTA) response to your request dated 
April 10, 2002, for an exception to the charter regulations. Specifically, the Greater Cleveland 
Regional Transit Authority (GCRTA) wants an exception to the charter regulations so that it may 
provide charter service for the U.S. Department of Veterans Administration (VA). The VA is 
hosting the National Wheelchair Games in Cleveland from July 8-14, 2002. GCRTA requested the 
waiver under 49 C.F.R. § 604.9(b)(5)(i), the non-profit exception. 

The VA would need approximately 20 buses, which would need to be temporarily outfitted to 
provide additional capacity for wheelchair passengers. As the VA stated in its letter dated April 3, 
2002, it is a government entity, there will be a significant number of physically challenged persons, 
and the charter trip is consistent with the function and purpose of the VA. The VA also completed 
all the required certifications. GCRTA states in its letter that the charter service is incidental 
service, as required by 49 C.F.R. § 604.9(e). Therefore, FTA grants GCRTA's request for an 
exception, as the proposed charter service meets all the requirements of 49 C.F.R. § 604.9(b)(5)(i). 

Should you have any questions regarding this matter, please feel free to contact 
Nancy-Ellen Zusman. She can be reached at (312) 353-2789. 

Sincerely, 

Joel P. Ettinger 
Regional Administrator 
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U.S. Department 
of Transportation 
Federal Transit 
Administration 

Claryce Gibbons-Allen 
Director 
Detroit Department of Transportation 
1301 East Warren 
Detroit, MI 48207 

REGIONV 
Illinois, Indiana, 
Michigan, Minnesota, 
Ohio, Wisconsin 

RE: Request for Waiver of Charter Regulations 

Dear Ms. Gibbons-Allen: 

200 West Adams Street 
Suite 2410 · 
Chicago, ll 60606-5253 
312-353-2789 
312-886-0351 (fax) 

APR 2 4 2002 

This letter responds to the Detroit Department of Transportation's (DDOT) request for a special 
events charter exception under 49 CFR Section 604(b)(4) dated April19, 2002, addressed to the 
Federal Transit Administration {FTA). DDOT is requesting a special events exception to allow it 
to operate charter service for the G-8 Energy Summit(the "Summit") in Detroit from May 1, 2002, 
to May 5, 2002. The City of Detroit was selected by the U.S. Department of Energy to host the 
Summit. 

The preamble to the charter regulation explains that the FT A will grant an exception under 
§ 604.9(b )( 4) only for events of an extraordinary, special and singular nature such as the Pan 
American Games and visits of foreign dignitaries, 52 Fed. Reg. 11925 (April13, 1987). This event 
is an international conference. Attendees will include energy ministers from Canada, France, 
Germany, Italy, Japan, Russia, the United Kingdom, and the European Union. FTA understands 
that the City of Detroit has special concerns for the attendees' safety and seeks a higher level of 
security for these people. As a result, the City of Detroit has requested that DDOT provide mass 
transit buses, which have the necessary capacity and which do not contain undercarriage storage. 
Due to issues of security related to the attendees, as well as the unusual and unique nature of this 
event, the FTA recognizes the G-8 Energy Summit as the type of event envisaged by 
§ 604.9(b)(4). DDOT has also indicated that the use of the buses at the conference will constitute 
incidental service. 

For these reasons, I hereby authorize DDOT to make FTA funded buses available to accommodate 
the need for a secure charter service during the G-8 Energy Summit. DDOT may, in accordance 
with the information provided to the FTA, utilize approximately 30 buses for the conference in the 
provision ofthis charter service. 

DDOT is reminded that, in accordance with 49 C.F.R. § 604.9(e), "Any charter service that a 
recipient provides must be incidental charter service." The regulations define "incidental charter 
service" as service that does not interfere with or detract from mass transit use or shorten the mass 
transportation life of FT A funded facilities or equipment. 
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Should you have any questions regarding this matter, please feel free to contact Ms. Nancy-Ellen 
Zusman. She can be reached at (312) 353-2577. 

Sincerely, 

Joel P. Ettinger 
Regional Administrator 
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U.S. Department 
of Transportation 
Federal Transit 
Administration 

May 10,2002 

Thomas J. Ross 
Executive Director 
PACE 
550 West Algonquin Road 
Arlington Heights, IL 60005 

REGIONV 
Illinois, Indiana, 
Michigan, Minnesota, 
Ohio, Wisconsin 

RE: Request for Exception of Charter Regulations 

Dear Mr. Ross: 

oo West Adams Street 
"'uite 2410 
Chicago, IL 60606-5253 
312-353-2789 
312-886-0351 (fax) 

This letter serves as the Federal Transit Administration's (FTA) response to your request dated 
May 8, 2002, for an exception to the charter regulations. Specifically, PACE wants an exception to 
the charter regulations so that it may provide charter service for a visit by the President of the 
United States on May 13, 2002, to Chicago, IL. PACE requested the waiver under 49 C.F .R. § 
604.9(b )( 4), the special events exception. 

PACE would need approximately 20 buses to transport employees of United Parcel Service :from 
their suburban location to their hub downtown for the President's visit. PACE has contacted 
approximately XX number of private charter operators who have indicated they are unable to 
provide the service on such short notice with the required security measures. PACE received the 
request from the White House after normal business hours on May 7, 2002. PACE states in its 
letter that the charter service is incidental service, as required by 49 C.P.R. § 604.9(e). Therefore, 
PTA grants PACE's request for an exception, as the proposed charter service meets the 
requirements of 49 C.P.R.§ 604.9(b)(4). 

Should you have any questions regarding this matter, please feel free to contact 
Nancy-Ellen Zusman. She can be reached at (312) 353-2789. 

Sincerely, 

Joel P. Ettinger 
Regional Administrator 
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THE SECRETARY bF TRANSPORTATION 
WASHINGTON, D.C. 20590 

A;ugust 6. 2002 

The Honorable Michael R. McNulty 
y.S .. House of Representatives 
Washington, DC 20515~3221 

M'~: 
Dear Congress .. · . 

Thank you for your letter of June 3 suppprting the waiver application submi~ted 
by the Capital District Transportation Authority (CDTA) for the City of Albany to use 

. trolley vehicles to promote tourism. · 

I must address lhe Federal Transit Administration's (FTA) current stmice in 
regard to charter regulations; . The FT A has not revised its interpretation of the ch~er 
service regulation as a result of the impacts. on the privatetransp<)rtation:industiy of the 
terrorist acts ofSeptemberl 1,2001, as suggested by Mayor Jennings of Albany. That 
interpretation has not changed substantially since it was issued in 198.7. ·· 

On June 5 FTA responded directly to CDTA's waiver request.. Unfortunately, 
there is no legal basis qn which a waiver can be' granted, as the enclosure explains in 
more detail. COT A, however, may still be able to maintain and store the vehicles in its 
FT A' funded facility ifit can rnake·a determination in accordance with FT A's charter · 
service regulation that there are no willing and able private operators. 

You may contact Ms. Maisie Grace, FT A Regional Counsel in New York at 
(212) 668-2178 for additional details if needed. If I can provide further information or 
assistance, please feel free to call me. · · 

Si~~ 

Nprrnan Y. Mineta · 

Enclosure 

cc: Dennis Fitzgerald, Executive Director 
Capital District Transportation Authority 
110 Watervleit Avenue 
Albany. New York 12206 
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BEFORE THE FEDERAL TRANSIT ADMINISTRATION 

Cardinal Buses, Inc., 
Complainant 

v. 

Interurban Transit Partnership, 
Respondent. 

Summary 

Charter Complaint #2002-08 
49 U.S.C. Section 5323(d) 

DECISION 

On Julie 20, 2002, Cardinal Buses, Inc. ("Complainant") filed a complaint with the Federal 
Transit Administration ("FTA'') alleging that Interurban Transit Partnership ("Respondent") was 
going to provide a service in violation ofFTA's charter regulation, 49 Code of Federal 
Regulations (C.F.R.) Part 604. The service specifically complained of pertains to Respondent's 
providing bus service for a radio station's birthday on June 22,2002. Respondent filed an answer 
dated July 12, 2002. Complainant filed a response dated July 23, 2002. Upon reviewing the 
allegations in the complaint and the subsequent filings of both the Complainant and the 
Respondent, FTA has concluded that the service in question does violate FTA's regulations 
regarding charter service. Respondent is hereby ordered to cease and desist in providing such 
illegal service. 

Complaint History 

Complainant filed its complaint with the FTA on June 20,2002. The complaint alleges that the 
Respondent was going to provide charter service1 for a radio station promotional event on June 
22, 2002. Specifically, Complainant alleges that the Respondent was intending to provide charter 
service for the event and as a private charter provider he had never been contacted by the 
Respondent. The Complainant also alleges that in the past he has received a "willing and able" 
questionnaire from the Respondent or its predecessor organization, Grand Rapids Transit 
Authority, but he has not received one in the past couple of years. 

Respondent filed its answer on July 12, 2002. In it, Respondent denied that the service it 
provided for the radio "Birthday Bash" was charter service. Respondent indicated the service was 
open to the public, no fee was charged and there was no contract. The service, Respondent also 
indicated, did not interfere with its regularly scheduled service. Respondent states that it no 
longer provides charter service, which is why it no longer sends out a "willing and able" 
questionnaire. 

1 Respondent receives Section 5307 and 5309 funds from FT A; therefore, they must comply with the charter 
regulations. 
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Complainant responded on July 23, 2002. In its reply Complainant stated that although there may 
not have been financial reimbursement, the Respondent benefited from the positive publicity it 
received in the radio announcements. This reply reiterated the assertion that Respondent's 
service was an illegal charter operation and that Complainant was not provided an opportunity to 
offer its own charter service. Complainant requested a cease and desist order. 

Discussion 

As Complainant has accurately stated, recipients of federal financial assistance can provide 
charter service in very limited circumstances. In the absence of one of the limited exceptions, the 
recipients are prohibited from providing the service. 49 C.F.R. Section 604.9(a). Complainant is 
·not asserting that any of the charter exceptions apply, but rather that the service they are 
providing is not charter service. 

The regulations define charter service as the following: 

[T]ransportation using buses or vans, funded under the Acts of a group of persons who 
pursuant to a common purpose, under a single contract, for a fixed charge for the vehicle 
or service, who have acquired the exclusive use of the vehicle or service in order to travel 
together under an itinerary either specified in advance or modified after leaving the place 
of origin. Includes incidental use ofFTA funded equipment for the exclusive 
transportation of school students, personnel, and equipment. 49 C.F.R. § 605.5(e). 

Thus, a determination needs to be made as to whether Respondent's service meets the definition 
of charter by examining the elements required for charter service. In order to qualify as charter 
service, the following questions need to be answered: 

a) Is this transportation service using buses funded with FTA money? 
b) Is the service for a common purpose? 
c) Is it under a single contract? 
d) Is it for a fixed charge for the vehicle or service? 
e) Is the exclusive use of the vehicles to travel together under an itinerary either specified in 

advance or modified after leaving the place of origin? 

Each of these elements is discussed below. If Respondent's service includes each ofthese 
elements, then it is charter service. If it is charter service, a determination needs to be made as to 
whether it is permissible charter service. 

A. Is this transportation service using buses funded with FT A money? 

The Respondent receives federal money for its buses and its capital maintenance expenses. It is a 
publicly funded transportation service. Its primary source of funding is dollars it receives from 
the FTA. Respondent's purpose is to provide public transportation through a bus system. The 
buses it uses are purchased with federal money. 

B. Is the service for a common purpose? 
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Although there was not a fonnal agreement, Respondent acknowledges that the radio 
announcements stated service was provided from park and ride lots to the event. The event, 
according to Complainant, was held at the Allegan County Fair Grounds. 

C. Is it under a single contract? 

The arrangement although not under a written contract does evidence a single oral contract. It 
appears that in exchange for the radio providing publicity for the Respondent, the Respondent 
provided free shuttle service for the "Birthday Bash" event. 

D. Is it for a fixed charge for the vehicle or service? 

Although the service was provided for free, PTA has indicated that charter service does not 
necessarily require there to be monetary payment. In its 1987 Charter Service Questions and 
Answers, 52 Federal Register 42248, PTA stated the following: 

27. Question: Do the following types of service fall within the definition of "charter 
service" for the purposes of the regulation: 

a. Service that is provided for free but otherwise meets the criteria in the definition of 
charter? 

Answer: Cost is irrelevant in detennining whether service is mass transportation or charter 
service. Thus, service which meets the criteria set by UMTA [FT A's precursor agency the 
Urban Mass Transportation Administration], i.e., service controlled by the user, not 
designed to benefit the public at large, and which is provided under a single contract, will 
be charter regardless of the fact that it is provided for free. 

As a general rule, free charter service would be "non-incidental" since it does not recover 
its fully allocated cost, and could not be perfonned by an UMTA recipient, even under 
one of the exceptions to the charter regulations. However, UMTA will consider certain 
types of free charter service to be "incidental." An example of this would be free service 
to an economically disadvantaged group when there is no private operator willing and able 
to perfonn the service. Since UMTA is concerned about the diversion of mass transit 
revenues and the reduction in mass transportation life resulting from service provided 
below cost, it will, when presented with a complaint, consider such service "incidental" 
charter only in a very limited number of cases. 

Therefore, based on the facts in this case, the fact that the service was· free is irrelevant. 

E. Is the exclusive use of the vehicles to travel together under an itinerary either specified in 
advance or modified after leaving the place of origin? 

The Respondent acknowledges that the vehicles were used to shuttle individuals from the park 
and ride lots to the event. The event, according to Complainant, was held at the Allegan County 
Fair Grounds. 
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The Respondent entered into an oral contract with the radio station to provide free shuttle service 
for its "Birthday Bash." The buses, which were purchased with federal dollars, were for the 
exclusive use of the shuttle service and those individuals interested in attending the event, not the 
general public at large. The schedule for the service was not available to the public with the other 
regular route information. Presumably, the radio station may have even dictated when the service 
should be provided based on the schedule of its event. The Respondent was clearly providing a 
private charter service. If the Respondent wanted to provide this type of charter service, it should 
have determined whether there were any willing and able private charter providers interested in 
providing the service. 

Acceptable Charter Service 

If a recipient of federal funds, like the Respondent wishes to provide charter service, then it must 
comply with the procedural requirements. The regulation states the following: 

If a recipient desires to provide any charter service using PTA equipment or facilities the 
recipient must first determine if there are any private charter operators willing and able to 
provide the charter service ... To the extent that there is at least one such operator, the 
recipient is prohibited from providing charter service with FT A funded equipment or 
facilities unless one or more of the exceptions applies, 49 C.P.R. Section 604.9(a). 

There are a number of exceptions listed for providing charter service. However, the Respondent 
has not contended that one of the exceptions to the charter regulations applies in this case. By 
filing his complaint, Complainant has indicated there was at least one willing and able private 
provider interested in providing the service. 

The regulations clearly state that before a recipient provides charter service it must determine if 
there is any willing and able charter operator. 49 C.P.R.§ 604.9(a). In order to determine if there 
is at least one private charter operator willing and able to provide the service, the recipient must 
complete a public participation process. 49 C.P.R.§ 604.11(a). The regulations under 49 C.P.R. 
§ 604.ll(a) require that the recipient complete the following: · 

(1) At least 60 days before it desires to begin to provide charter service ... 

(b) The public participation process must at a minimum include: 
(1) Placing a notice in a·newspaper, or newspapers, of general circulation within the 
proposed geographic charter service area; 
(2) Send a copy of the notice to all private charter service operators in the proposed 
geographic service and to any private charter service operator that requests notice; 
(3) Send a copy of the notice to the United Bus Owners of America, 1300 LStreet, 
NW., Suite 1050, Washington, DC 2005 and the American Bus Association, 1100 New 
York Avenue, SW, Suite 1050, Washington, DC 20005-3934. 

(c) The notice must: 
(1) State the recipients name; 
(2) Describe the charter service that the recipient proposes to provide limited to days, 
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times of day, geographic area, and categories of revenue vehicle, but not the 
capacity or the duration of the charter service; 

(3) Include a statement providing any private charter operator ... at least 30 days ... to 
submit written evidence ... 

( 4) State the address to which the evidence must be sent; 
( 5) Include a statement that the evidence necessary for the recipient to determine if a 

private charter operator is willing and able includes the following: 
(i) A statement that the private operator has the desire and the physical capacity to 
actually provide the categories of revenue vehicle specified, and 
(ii) A copy of the documents to show that the private charter operator has the 
requisite legal authority to provide the proposed charter service and that it meets 
all necessary safety certification, licensing and other legal requirements to provide 
the proposed charter service. 

(6) Include a statement that the recipient shall review only that evidence submitted by 
the deadline, shall complete its review within 30 days of the deadline, and within 60 
days of the deadline shall inform each private operator that submitted evidence what the 
results of the review are. · ... 
(7) Include a statement that the recipient shall not provide any charter service using 
equipment or facilities funded under the Acts to the extent that there is at least one 
willing and able private charter operator unless the recipient qualifies for one or more of 
the exceptions in 49 C.F.R. § 604.9(b). 

Procedural Determination Discussion 

The regulation under 49 C.F .R. § 604.11 clearly sets forth the procedures for determining if any 
willing or able private charter operators exist. The onus is upon the recipient to provide a "public 
participation process." At a minimum, the recipient is required to provide any private charter 
operator with at least 30 days to submit written evidence to prove that it is willing and able, and 
then it must inform each private operator what the results are at least 60 days before the deadline. 

The Complainant has indicated that it is a ''willing and able" charter service within the geographic 
area in question. The Respondent does not challenge this assertion. Respondent acknowledges 
that it no longer sends out "willing and able" questionnaires, because it no longer provides charter 
service. However, Respondent needs to understand what constitutes charter service in order to be 
able to state that it no longer provides charter service. 

Respondent failed to properly determine whether there were any willing any private charter 
operators willing and able to provide the service to the event. Therefore, since Respondent has 
not raised any of the exceptions that would apply to providing charter ·service, it is prohibited 
from providing charter service with FTA funded equipment or services under 49 C.F .R. § 
604.9(a). 

Remedy 

Complainant has requested that Respondent cease from providing charter operations in the future, 
and that it refers charter requests to private providers. FTA grants Complainant's request for the 
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cease and desist order and orders Respondent to cease providing charter service in the future, and 
if they desire to provide charter service, then the Respondent must follow the notice and review 
procedures for determining if there are any willing and able private charter operators. 

Conclusion and Order 

FT A fmds that Respondent provided impermissible charter service and orders it to cease and 
desist any such further service. Refusal to cease and desist in the provision of this service could 
lead to additional penalties on the part of FT A. 

In accordance with 49 C.F.R § 604.19, the losing party may appeal this decision within ten days 
of receipt of the decision. The appeal should be sent to Jennifer Dam, Administrator, FTA, 400 
Seventh Street, S.W., Room 9328, Washington, D.C. 205,90. 

JoelT{)~i ~ 
Regional Administrator 
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BEFORE THE FEDERAL TRANSIT ADMINISTRATION 

Kemps Bus Service, Inc. 
Complainant 

v. 
Charter Complaint 
49 U.S. C. Section 5323(d) 

Rochester-Genesee Transportation Autliority. 
Respondent 

DECISION 

Summary 

By letter dated March 18, 2002, Kemps Bus Service, Inc. ("Complainant') filed a complaint with 
the Federal Transit Administration ("Fl'A'') alleging that Rochester-Genesee Transportation · 
Authority (''Respondent") iS providing service in violation ofFTA's charter regulation, 49 Code 

. gfFederal Regt.llations (C.F.R.) Part 604. The sezvice specifically complained ofpertajns to 
Respondent's blis service to a funeral in Syracuse, a school field trip, local supermarket service, a 
golf tournament and college campus service. Respondent filed a Response dated April 3, 2002. 
Respondent filed a second Response dated April23, 200~. Complainant filed a Rebuttal dated 

· May 6, 2002. Complainant filed a Second Rebuttal on May 21, 2002_ Respondent filed a 3rd 
Response by letter dated July 15,2002. Complaj.nant filed a.31

d Rebuttal by letter dated July 17m, 
. 2002. Upon reviewing the allegations in the coihplaiiit and the subsequent filings of both the 
·Complainant and the Respondent, FT A has concluded that the service in question does violate 

· FTA's regulations regarding chaner service. Respqndent has adniitted that Respondent's charter 
. procedures were in violation ofFTA's regulatibns and is hereby ordered to cease and desist in 
providing such illegal charter service. · 

Complaint History 

Complainant filed its complaint with the FTA by letter dated March 18, 2002. The complaint 
alleges that the Respondent is proviilin.g illegal chaner service1 by providing private charter 
service for (1) the Rochester Firefighters atteniling a funeral, (2) a field trip for the Livonia 
School District, (3) local supermarket chains. (4) a local LPGA golftoumament and (5) inter
campus shuttling and commencement around a: private college. Specifically, Complainant alleges 
that this service is charter because Respondent·did not follow the required public participation 
process and did not receive a waiver from FT.A to provide these services · 

Respondent filed its Response by letter dated April 3, 2002. In it, Respondent denied that it was 
providing illegal charter service, and attached as an exhibit a copy of a letter from an unidentified 
signatory stating that the service was requested for "March 2002" because it exceeded Golden 
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Memories By letter dated April IS, 2002, PTA requested Respondent to flesh orit more fully its 
Response tO the Coinplaint. 

·Respondent filed a Second Response dated April 23, 2002. This response reiterated that the· 
funeral service and school trip were done because such service exceeded the capacity of a private 
charter operator. It also stated that the LPGA event and the supermarket service are of a public 
namre and any member qf the public may board according to their timetable. Respondent attached · 
as exhibits a copy of a "Grocery Shuttle Ourline" dated 4/23/02 and various college campus 
shuttles timetables, which ·purport to be public -schedules · 

Complainant sent their Rebuttal on May 6, 2002. This Rebuttal reiterated the assertion· that 
Respondent's service is an illegal charter operation and also noted that Gomplainant was not 
provided proper notice for im opportunity to offer its own charter service. Respondent reasserted 
its allegations regarding the Livonia School District field 1rip and provided a copy of an invoice 
from Respondent to such school. Complainant states that contracts should not be between a 
recipient of Federal funds such as the Respondent and a charter custoroer In addition, 
Complainant raises several other alleged charter trips that were referenced in Respondent's 
Response such as the service on behalf of the Town of Chili and tbe Siena Catholic Academy. 
With respect to the commencement service and the LPGA event, Complainant states that it · 
contacted these organizations to try and provide the service and was informed that these semces 
were under oontract with Respondent. Complainant alleges th..~t this service would not fit within 
one of the "special event .. exceptions to the FTA regulations 

Complainant submitted a Second Rebuttal dated May 21, 2002, in response to Respondent's 
Second Response. Complainant submits that the LPGA event is not public service because it is 
performed pursuant to a contract and that an opportunity was J:lOt first given to the private· 
operators. Complainant points out that it is a special 5 day event for which passengers do not pay 
a fare. With respect to the Supermarket service, Complainant alleges that this is also performed 
pursuant to a conrract berween Respondent and the supermarkets and that the passengers pay no 
f~e. Complainant alleges that the service was taken over by Respondent after a private operator 
.went out of business reri years ago and that there was rio public participation process. Lastly, 
Complainant explains thar the college service, which they are complaining of, is service for inter
campus shuttling and graduation commencement, nor the other shuttles with links to -off-campus 
life. Complainant states that the commencement service was not addressed by Respondent's 
responses and that this service is solely within ibe campus and 'is not regular route service. Also, 
Complainant again alleges that the college s~ce is pursuant to a direct contract with the college. 

By letter dated June 26, 2002, FfA requested further information of Respondent in order to 
clarify Complainant's allegations .. Generally, the FrA inquired into the eXistence of the alleged 
contracts, the basis of the fares, whether the campus is open to the general public, whether there is 
commencement service provided and how the charters were obtained. 

Respondent filed a 3rd Response by letter' dated July 12, 2002. Respondent again claimed that the 
supermarket service, LPGA service and college· service are public routes with publicly advertised 
schedules and fares, open tO the public. Respondent states that the supennarket service is 
''underwritten •• by the grocery stores, although no contract is attached and no fare is charged. 
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Respondent states again, with respect to the LPGA service, that it is a public route, open to the 
public and advertised, pursuant to a contract with the golf tournament A copy of the schedule and 
contract is attached. Similarly, the Respondent states that the college service for the Rochester 
Institute of Technology is a public route, no fare is collected; it is open to the general public and it 
is performed pursuant to a contract with the college. FTA • s question regarding access to· the· 
campus by the public was not addressed. A copy of the contract with RIT was attached as an· 
exhloit. Respondent assens that the commencement service is an expansion of the existing route 

. ~n-ucture. Lastly, Respondent states that with respect to the Funeral service, Livonia School 
District and Siena Catholic Academy seiVice tnat, Respondent acknowledges ''procedural 

· irregularities" for these charter requests and states that they have taken corrective measures to 
avoid c#ny further "misapplications" ofFTA •s charter policies. 

Discussion 

As Complainant has accurately stated, recipients of federal financial assistance can provide 
charter service in very limited circumstances. ln the absence of one of the limited exceptions, the 
recipients are prohl'bited from providing the service. 49 C.f.R. Section 604.9(a). CoiQplainant is 
no longer asserting that any of the charter exceptions apply, but rather that the service they are 
providing is not charter service. · 

The regulations define charter service as the following: · 

transportation using buses or vans, funded under the Acts of a group of persons who 
pursuant to a common purpose, under a ·single contract, at a fixed charge for the vehicle or 
serviceJ have acquired the exclusive use of the vehicle or service to travel together under . 
an itinerary either specified in advance or modified after leavi.p.g the place of origin. 
49 C.F.R. § 605.5(e). . . . 

Thus, a determination needs to be made as to whether Respondent's service meets the definition 
of chm::t;er by examining the elements of charter service. Jn order to detemrlne whether service is 
charter, FTA looks at the following questions: · 

a) ls.this transportation service using buses funded witb FTA money? 
b) Is the service for a common purpose?. 
c) Is it under a single contract? 
d) Is it for a fixed charge for the vehicle or service? 
e) Is the exclusive use of the vehicles to travel' together under an itinerary either specified in 

advance or modified after leaving the place of origin? 

See United Limo. Inc. v.South Bend Public Transportation Corporation 

With respect to Complainant's allegations, it must be determined whether the service is "charter" 
service as described above or whether it more closely fits the definition of ''mass transponarion" 
Mass transportation is defined as service provided to the public and operating on a regular and 
continuing basis. 49 U.S.C. Section 5302 (a)(7).Mass transportation can be recognized by the 
following features: it is under the control of the recipien; the recipient sets the route, rate and 
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schedule and decides on the equipment; the ser:vice benefits the public at large and not some 
special orga:nizatio"? and it is open to the public; .. 52 Fed Reg. 11920, April 13, 1987. 

A). The RlT campus service· 
Beginning with Respondent's service provided in and arotmd the R1T campus, in the questions 
and answers section of the implementing charter regulations in the federal register, a relevant 
question was posed. The question 'asked: whether service within a university complex according 
to routes and schedules requested by the university would constitute charter service. The answer 
indicated that "if the service is. for the exclusive use of students and the university sets fares and. 
schedules, the service would be charter. However, such service operated by a recipient which · 
setS fares and schedules and is open door, though it serves mainly university students, would be 
mass transportation [Question 27(d)]." 52 FR 42248 (November 3, 1987) (DOT Charter Service 
Questions an~ Answers. · 

A review of the various exhibits to Respondent's July 15,2002 Respons~ indicates that factually 
the Responden~'s service is more similar to the former, than the latter type of service. The 
university decides when it wants to add anothe:r buS to the schedule and the time of day the bus 
will operate. It is the university that decides whether the service will continue to operate or not.
The contract between Respondent apd the university sets forth (as best as can be determined) the 
numbers of hours a day a route will opeiate. Overall, there is a per hour rate charged the 
university for the bus service. The Respondent keeps track of the actual hours operate4 and 
adjusts the university's invoice accordingly. Periodically, the university requests special service 
from the campus to Amtrak and the Allport for special·days of the year. As the letter contract 
says, "RIT may elect to add additional operatirig days", if the service proves worthwhile. Despite 
Respondent's contention that the service is opeh to the public and regular route service, it appears 
that the.service is eStablished pursuant to a single contract or series of contracts, that there is a_ 
fixed charge, the itinerary is specified in -advance and that it is specifically designed to meet the 
needs of the university students. Mo~eover, the service is designed and under the control of the 
university, although operated by the Respondent. As the letter contracts demonstrate, although 
anyone bqarding the bus travels for free, the service is not set up to benefit the general public 
except as the public might coinciden~ly need to travel around the campus area. "'While there are 
published schedules. one factor alone is not det.ernrinative of whether ·a s~ce is mass 
transportation or charter. See Blue Grass Touci v. Lexington Transit AuthoritV .. The 
Respondent's inter-campus service more closely fits the de:finitic;m of charter described above. 

B)_ Funeral Service and Livonia School Trip 
As FTA's response and rebuttal investigation process proceeded, Respondent acknowledged that 
these services were impermissible charter service as Respondent contracted cfuectly with the 
customer and it did not fall within an exception· to the general charter prohibition. Respondent has 
stated that it has implemented new procedures and viill have to provide a copy of these 
procedures in writing to FTA and Complainantwitl:rin thirty (30) dayS of the date of this decision 
to ensure that these charter violations do not reoccur. 

C). Supermarlret service 
Respondent maintains that this supermarket service is open to the public and pursuant to regular 
schedules, which were submitted as exhibits. Further, Respondent states that there is nothing in 
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the regulations. which prohibits service being underwritten by others. This is true if it were the 
only factor, however~ the .. schedules" as submitted do not appear to be like Respondent's other 
regular schedules. In fact, the documents submitted are e17titled "View of Regular Lease Service 
Provided Weekly". Within the exhibit, it states that certain service is "guaranteed revenue". These 
are indications that the service is, in fact, charter done pursuant to a contract at a fixed rate 
(although such contract information was not provided). On the "Lease Trip Log", it states that 
there can be no standees and that they should "make an extra trip if necessazy". Further, it states 
that they should be sure to make a record of such extra trip .. On another Lease Trip Log, it states 
that the driver should stop at the First Federal Bank, if one of the passengers so requests. This 
service "'underWritten, by the Grocery store appears to be operated for the benefit of a certain 
group of individuals, living in apartment complexes, which the grocez-Y store wants to bring to its 
store to sbop. One can infer that the pick-up locations were developed at the·bebest of the grocery 
store and its clients. It is not intended for the public at large and specific stops and extra trips will 
be operated to fits the needs of this grorip. Therefore. this service appears more like charter than 
mass transportation. 

D).LPGA Golf Service 
The service at issue here is advertised and open to the public. It is performed under a single 
contract and no fare is charged. Altho11gh it stops at diff~nt public locations and is open to the 
public at large, these stops are specified fu the contract as are the number of buses to be operated 
each day. The contraqt also specifies the days of service, the times and the parking· lots to be used. 
Unlike mass transponation, this service is not provided on a regular and·continuing basis. It 
operates only a week a year when the golf tournament is· jn session. All decisions regarding the 
service are determined by the tournament assocl.ation and not by the Respondent; hence, while it 
h~ some elements of mass transportation, it is tnore akin to charter than mass transportation. 

E. Town of Chile Service Contract · 
Respondent did not respond to the issue of the service under the ,Respondent's contract with the 
Town of Chile, raised by Complainant in its May 6, 2002 letter. This appears to be similar to the 
service Respondent performed for the Livonia School District in that the request did not come 
from a private charter operator. If the Respondent wants to perform direct charter service, the 
Respondent should first comply with the requirements of 49 C.F.R.Section 604.11; otherwise, 
service should fit within one ofthe exceptions to Section 604.9{b). 
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Conclusion and Order 

PTA finds that Respondent has been providing' impermissible chaner service and orders it to 
cease and -desist any such further service, as soon as practicable in accordance with the 
Respondent's existing contracts. Refusal to cease and desist in the proVision of this service could 
lead to penalties on the part of FTA. Respondent shall also provide a copy of its new charter 
procedures to Complainant and FTA for FfA's review and shall advise FTA withln thirty (30) 
days of the dates of contract teri:nination 

In accordance with 49 C.F .R. § 604.19~ the losing party may appeal this decision within ten days 
of receipt of the decision. The appeal should be sent to Jennifer Dom, Administrator, FTA, 400 
S~verith Street, S.W., Room 9328, Washington, D.C. 20590. 
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BEFORE THE FEDERAL TRANSIT ADMINISTRATION 

Indian Trails, Inc., Classic· Caddy Li)llousine, and 
The Tecumseh Trolley & Limousine, 

Complainants, · · 

Capital Area Transportation Authority, 
1~ .. espondent. 

Charter Complaints 
49 U~S.C. Section 5323(d) 
Docket Nos. 2002-01, 2002-04, 
and 2002.:.10 

DECISION 

Summary 

On March 7, 20Q2, Classic Caddy Limousine ("Classic Caddy") filed a complaint with the 
Federal Transit Administration (''FTA").alleging that Capital Area Transportation Authority· .·· 
("Respondent") is providing service in violation ofFTA's charter regu}ation, 49 Code of Federal.· 
Regulations (C.P.R.) Part601, as well as improperly leas~g its vehicles: Classic Caddy followed 
up With some additional information on March 27, 2002. The service specifically complained of 

·pertains to Respondent's use and leasing of its trolleys. for charter service. Respondent filed an 
answer dated May I, 2002. Coinplajnant filed a reply on June 13, 2002. 

On April 1, 2002, The Tecumseh Trolley & Limousine ("Tecumseh Trolley") filed a complaint 
with the PTA alleging !flat Respondent is providing service in violation of PTA's charter 
regulation, 49 C.P.R. Part 604, as w~ll as improperly leasing its vehicles. On July 9., 2002, 
Tecumseh Trolley filed additional ~ormation with the PTA. 

Qn June 20, 2002, Indian Trails Incorporated ("Indian Trails") submitted a letter to the American 
Bus Association complaining about the Respondent providing unauthorized charter service. FT A 
was also provided with a copy of the information. On July 16, 2002, FTA consolidated the tlmee 
complaints and asked that the Respondent answer a number of questions related to its trolleys. 
On August !'4, 2002, the Respondent requested a thirty (30) day conciliation period and an 
extension for filing its response to the consolidated complaints. Ori August 15,2002, FTA 
granted the request for the conciliation period, but denied the request for an extension. On 
August 16, 2002, Respondent filed its response to the three consolidated complaints. The thirty 
(30) day conciliation period, which ended on September 14, 2002, did not result in a settlement. 

Upon r~viewing the allegations in the three complaints and the subsequ'ent filings of all three of 
the Complainants (Classic Caddy, Tecumseh Trolley, and Indian Trails, hereinafter are referred to 
collectively as the "Complainants") and the Respondent, FT A has concluded that the service in 
question does violate PTA's regulations regardirig charter service. Respondent. is hereby ordered 
to cease and desist in providing such illegal St?rvice. Respondent is also ordered to disallow 
improper charter mileage for the vehicles to be used for the purposes of calculating useful life. 
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Complaint History 

Complainant Classic Caddy filed its complaint with the FTA on March 7, 2002, and provided 
follow up information on March 27, 2002. The complaint alleges that the Respondent is · 
providing illegal.charler service1 by providing private charter service using its trolleys, as well as 
improperly leasing the trolleys. Specifically, Complainant alleges the following: (1) the annual 
notice was improper; (2) the notice was only sent to two.bus services in tlie area when there are 
many more willing and able charter providers in the area; (3) the Respondent improp~rly found 
Classic Caddy not to· qualify as a willing and able charter provide.r; ( 4) the Respondent has 
vehicles in its fleet $at are only· used ~or charter service, specifically trolleys; (5) Respondent is 
improperly leasing vehicles in its fleet when there is not a legitimate capacity constraint; (6) 
Classic Caddr alleges that :pean Transportation and IIidian Trails are improperly"leasing 
Respondent's vehicles without a legitimate·capacity constraint; and (7) Respondent is allowing 
alcohol to be consumed on charter trips. Classic Caddy provided additional documentation on ..... . 
March 27~ 2002. · 

Respondent filed its answer on May 1, 2002. In it, Respondent stated that it provided charter 
service briefly in fiscal year 2001 after following the amiual notice procedures .. Respondent 
alleges that no willing and able charter providers responded to the annual notice .. ·Respondent 
states that it received seven responses to its annual notice dated August 28, 200L It attempted to 
negotiate with the private operators, and subsequently issued an Indic~tion of Interest form for 
private providers to co.111plete if they were interested in leasing Respondent'svehicles based on 
capacity constraints. Three private providers returned the forms, Indian Trails, Dean 
Transportation, and Tecumseh Trolley. The Respondent states it ceased to provide charter service 
because it could not reach agreement with the private willing and ~ble charter operators. 
Respondent alleges that requests for charter are referred to private operators .. The. Respondent 
states that the charter regulations· relate to intercity charter service and that it does not provide any 
intercity c!J.arter service. · 

On June 13, 2002, Classic Caddy filed its reply ·to Respondent's answer. In its reply, Classic. 
Caddy reiterated· its allegations and added that the Respondent provided charter service for the 
Intem~tional Art Festivai in Ea5t Lansing, MI. · 

On April1, 2002, Tecumseh Trolley filed a complaint alleging the.same violations as Classic 
Caddy. Additionally, .on July 9, 2002, it provided documentation supporting its_ allegations. 

On June 20, 2002, Indian Trails submitted a letter to the American Blis Association complaining 
about the Respondent providing unauthorized charter service .. FTA was also provided with a 
copy. of the information. Indian Trails included with its, .111aterials copies of the Respondent's 
charter terms. 

On July 16, 2002, FTA consolidated the three complaints and asked that the Respondent.answer a 
number of questions related to its trolleys. On August 16, 2002, Respondent replied to the three 

1 Respondent receives Section 5307 and 5309 funds from fTA; therefore, they must comply with the charter 
regulations. · 
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consolidated complaints, as well as responded to PTA's additional questions. Respondent stated 
that it has two trolleys, which were state funded. Respondent states that the trolleys are in its 
active fleet; however, the trolleys are not cuiTently being used·Jor a scheduled route2, but rather 
for special occasions. The trolleys are also being leased for charter service. Respondent states 
that it is not providing any direct charter service and 'that it is leasing the trolleys to private 
providers based on capacity constraints. Respondent states that the service provided for the 
International Art Festival was not charter service, but scheduled service. 

Respondent states that as of August 8, 2002, it ceased accepting any bookings Qf its trolleys for 
private operators. It alleges this was-done in an attempt to-resolve the outstanding complaints: 
Respondent requested a thirty (30) day conc!liation period, which was granted on August 15; 
2002. The conciliation period .ran on September 14, 2002, but the parties did not reach a 
settlement. . 

Discussion 

As Complainants have accurately stated, recipl.ents of Federal financial assistance cannot provide. 
charter service using Federally funded equipment or facilities, unless one. of the limited 
exceptions applies. In the absence of one ofthe limited exceptions, the recipients are prohibited 
from providing the service. ·49 C.P.R. Section 604.9(a). Respondent is asserting that it is not 
providing· direct charter service and that it is leasing its trolleys pursuant to the exception under 
49 C.F.R. Section 604.9(b)(2): · · 

A. Regulations 

Under 49 C.F.R. Section 604.9(a), if a recipient desires to provide charter service, it must first 
determine whether there are any willing and able priv~te charter providers. If there is at leasrom 
willing and able provider, the recipient is prohibited from providing charter service unless one of 
the exceptions applies. !d. The recipient must f01low all the procedures for determining willing 
and able private operators imder 49 C.F.R. § 604.11. The public participation process· requires at 
a minimum that a notice be placed in a newspaper of general circulation and a notice is required 
to be sent to all private charter service operators in the proposed geographic charter service area. 
49 C.F.R. § 604.ll(b)(l) and (2). The notice needs to include among other items, the categories 
of revenue vehicle. !d. at (c)(2). There are only two categories of revenue vehicle, buses and 
vans. 49 C.F.R. §. 604.5(d). 

B. Prior Triennial Finding 

On October 3, 2000, the Respondent had a deficient' finding with regard to charter bus. At that 
time, FTA stated -that the Respondent was providing trolleys to private charter operators under 
Exception 2, when it should be utilizing Exception 7. The FTA required the Respondent to 
publish its annual notic~ to determine whether there were any willing and able private charter 
operators. 

2 Respondent sent a clarifying letter dated September 23, 2002. 



C. Annual Notice 

On September 5, 2000, and August 31, 2001 1 the Recipient published annual notices in the 
Lansing State Jf?urnal . . The notices proposed that the Respondent intended to provide charter 
service using Chance Trolley vehicles. The notice was misleading, since it did not prope.rly state 
what type of revenue service the Respondent intended to provide, namely bus or van service. The 
notice implied that if a private provider could not provide trolley service it could not qualify as a 
willing and able charter provider. Additionally,.the Respondent was required to provide notices 
to all. private charter operators in the area. Respondent in its answer dated May 1, 2002; states 
only that it published the notice. It does n<?t indicate that notices were sent directly to all private 
charter operators in the geographic area as requited under 49 C.P.R. § 604.ll(b)(2).. · 

D. Leas1ngTrolleys 

The Respondent has been leasing the trolleysto private oper~tors pursuantto its Indjcation of 
Interest forms. Although the form states that the Respondenf s equipment will only be used 
"when the charter operator lacks capacity to .provide charters or is unable to provide equipment 
accessible to elderly and handicapped persons for charters," private operators have been using the 
trolleys whtm there is not a capacity constraint. Capacity shouldrdate to the private operator's 
overall vehicle capacity. The private operator does not have a capacity constraint, simply because 
it does not have a trolley. It would only have a capacity constraint if it did not have enough buses 
orvans to handle its private charter business. This niisinterpretation was cited in PTA's triennial 
fmdings dated October 3, 2000, when the Respondent was informed that it sh~uld not be leasing 
trolleys under Exception 2 of the regulations, but rather Exception 7. Tecumseh Trolley has .. 
admitted that it ~lied out the Indication of Interest form when it did not lack capacity, regarding· 
buses arid vans. 

Although Respondent indicated in a letter dated August 9, 2002, that as of August 8, 2002,.it 
"ceased accepting bookings for use of its equipment by charter openitors, including the trolleys 
which had been used for weddings," it still is working out commitments for bookings :made prior 
to August 8, 2002. It appears that even now, CATA is still improperly leasing its vehicles for 
charters. Tlie trolleys are not being used for regular service and are only being used for charter · 
service either directly by the Respondent or improperly leased to private operators for charter 
service. Finally, the regulations state that "[a]ny charter service that a recipient provides under 
any ofthe·exceptions in this part must be incidental charter service." 49 C.F.R. § 604.9(e). 
Incidental service is defined as ·"charter service which does not: (1) interfere or detract from the 
provision of the mass transportation service for which the equipment or facilities were funded 
under the Act; or.(2) does not shorten the mass transportation life of the equipment or facility." 49 
C.P.R. § 604.5(i). The trolleys were solely being used for charter service.and were not being used 
for mass transportation at all. 

E. International Art Fair · 

The regulations define charter service as the following: 

transportation using buses or vans, funded under the Acts of a group of persons who 
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pursuant to a common purpose, under a single contract, for a fixed charge for the vehicle 
or service, who have acquired the exclusive use of the vehicle or servic~ in order to travel 
toget!1~r under an it~ne:ary either specified in advance or modified after leavi~g the place 
of ongm. Includes mctdental use .of FTA funded equipment for the exclusive 
transportation of school students, personnel, and equipment 49 C.P.R.§ 605.5(e). 

Thus, a determination needs to be made aS to whether Respondent's service meets the definition 
of charter by examining the elements required for charter service. In order to qualify a.S charter 
service, the following questions need to be answered: 

a) Is this transportation service using bu,ses funded with FTA money? 
b) ~s the service for a commoi). purpose? 
c) Is it under a single contract? 
d) Is it for a fixed charge for the vehicle or service? 

·e)- Is the exclusive use of the vehicles to travel together under an itinerary either specified in 
advance or modified after leaving the place of origin? 

The Intemationat Art Fair (the "Fair") service utilized buses that were funded with Federal funds. 
There was a common purpose, specifically for the· Fair. It was a one-day event, not regularly 
scheduled service. Although the service provided was free. FT A guidance states that the cost of 
the service was irrelevant.3 ·The exclusive use of the vehicles was to transport individuals to the 
Fair, altl.}ougP, ·fue service was open to the public, it was not mass transportation." It was only for 
those individuals interested in attending the Fair. ·.This service did not inv.olve additional buses on 
a regularly scheduled route, which would have not been charter service, but rather involved 
service that was added without following the required procedures for providing a new route. This 
service does not fall under any of the recognized ex~eptions; therefore, it is illegal charter service. 

F. Willing and Able Status of Classic Caddy 

The Respondent determined that Classic Caddy was not a willing and able·.charter provider. In 
the Charter Questions and Answers from 52 FR 42248 (November 3, 1981), the Answer to No. 12 
stated that "[i]f a private operator submits documentary evidence that it has the desire to provide · 

3 In an answer to the cost issue in the Charter Questions and An:;wers froin 52 FR 42248 (November 3, 1987), 
Question No. 27(a), UMTA (the Urban Mass Transportation Administration a precursor to FTA) stated the 
following: : 

'~Cost is irrelevant in determining whether service is mass transportation or charter service. Thus, service which 
meets the criteria set by UMT A, i.e., service controlled by the user, not designed to benefit the public at large, and 
which is provided under a single ~ontract, will be charter regardle~s of the fact that it is provided for free. 

As a general rule, free charter service would be "non-incidental" since it does not recover its fully allocated cost, and 
could not be performed by an UMT A recipient,. even under one of the exceptions to the charter regulations. However, 
UMTA will consider certain types of:free charter service to be "incidental." An example ofthis would be free service 
to an economically disadvantaged group when there is no private operator willing and able to perform the serv-ice. 
Since UMT A is concerned about the diversion of mass transit revenues and the redu~tion in mass transportation life 
resulting· from service provided below cost, it will, when presented with a complaint, consider such service 
"incidental" charter only in a very limited number of cases." · 
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service and the ability to supply vehicles, as well as the necessary legal authority, it must 
automatically be determined 'willing ~d able.'" The Respondent can only conduct a further 
investigation of a private o._perator' s status if there is reasonable cause to believe that the 
inf?~ation has been falsified. The Res:pondent should h~ve determined that Classic Caddy was 
"wlllmg and able." · · 

G. Alcohol Use on Charter Tri;ps 

Complainants have alleged that alcohol is present during Respondent's charter trips. FTA does 
not regulate the use of alcohol on charter trips. 

H. State Funding 

CATA states that the trolleys are state funded. If the vehicles were procured without Fede(ral 
funds, they could be used for charter service if they were kept completely separate from any 
Federally funded facility or activity. The trolleys could not be stored in a Federally funded 
facility.4 The trolleys would need to be kept completely separate from all Federally funded 
activities, including maintenance. ·CATA has not demonstrated that the trolleys are kept separate 
from the rest of its Federally funded fleet. 

I. Intracity Service 

CAT A has stated that it is providing intracity service as a re;:t.Son why the service they are 
providing is allowable. Although 49 U.S;C. Section 5323(d) only discusses that recipients of 
federal assistance cannot provide intercity charter service, it references the agreement that 
recipients must enter into with the Department of Transportation as a condition of receiving the 
assistance; Pursuant to PTA's Master Agreement MA(9), October 1~ 2002, Section 28, a recipient 
cannot provide charter service unless the service is under one of the exceptions in FT A's 
regulations, 49 C.F.R. Part 604. PTA's charter regulations, 49 C.P.R. Part 604, prohibit ·any type 
of charter service. Intracity service is n:ot one of the listed charter exceptions under FT A's 
regulations, 49 C.F.R. § 604.9(b). Therefore, CATA cannot provide the service as it currently 
does. 

Conclusion 

Based on all the information provided, FTA finds that the Respondent has been providing illegal 
charter with its trolleys, both drrect and indirect service through improperly leasing the vehicles. 
The Respondent has also conducted illegal charter using its buses for fun.ctions such as the 
International Art Fair. The Respondent improperly determined that Classic Caddy-was not a 
"willing and able" charter provider~ If the Respondent wishes to use its trolleys for charter 
service; they must be segregated from all Federally funded assets. 

4 In an answer .to Question No. 26, relating to the use of locally funded buses for charte~ in the Charter Questions and 
Answers from 52 FR 42248 (November 3, 1987), UMTA stated in order to use the vehicles they need to be kept 
completely separate from Federally funded assets, including maintenance activities. · 
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Remedy 

Complainants have requested .that Respondent iminediately ~ease the charter operations at issue. 
·FT A grants Complainants' request for the cease and desist order and orders Respondent to cease 
providing charter service using its trolleys and any other vehicles and cease and desist improperly 
l~asing its vehicles. If Respondent desires to provide charter service, they must follow the notice 
and review procedures for determining if there are any willing and able private charter operators . 
pursuant to 49 C.F.R. Part 604. Another alternative, ifthe trolleys are state funded would be to 
separate the trolley service :froni all CAT A's other operations, and then FTA's charter 
requirements would not apply. · 

· FTA finds that Respondent has been providing impermissible charter service and orders it to 
cease and .desist any such further service. Refusal tq cease and desist in the provision of this 
s~rvice could lead to additional penalties on the part ofFTA. Additionally; the mileage for 
improper charter use shoul~ not accrue towards the useful life of the Federally funded vehicles. 

In accordance with 49 C.F.R. § 604.19, the losing party may appeal this decision within ten days 
of receipt of the decision. The appeal should.be sent to Jennifer Dom, Administrator, FTA, 400 
Seventh Street, S.W., Room 9328, Washington, D.C. 20590. · 

Joel 
Reg 
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u.s. Department 
of,lronsportotion 

Federal Transit 
Administration 

Administr?tor 

ocr 15 2002 

400 Seventh St.. S.W. 
Washington. D.C. 20590 

The Honorable Rosa L. DeLariro 
U.S. House of Representatives 
59 Elm Street, Seeond Floor 
New Haven, Connecticut 06510 

DearCongre<sw,4eLattro: . ~ .~ 
This is in response to the question raised by 'your constituent, Ms. Donna Carter, Executive 
Director of the Greater Ne~ Haven Transit Alithofitr (NHTA). The NIITA would like tp be able 
to provide prospective business owners with promotional tours on one of its new nl;}turalgas 
trolleys purchased with Federal Transit Administratioli{FrA) funds. 

As you note, however, such service might be prohibited by FT A's charter serVice regulation, 49 
C.F.R. Part 604. NHTA must fir'st determine whether any private charter operatotS are willing 
and able to pmvide the service. If.so, NH!Amay not do so with FTA-funded equipinent or 
facilities-unless one or more of the exceptions apply; which. appearS unlikely based on the facts 
you present I should note that NHTA wduld not Violate Ft A's charter semce regulation, 
however, if It were to take prospective business owners <m. Ui~ natUral gas trolleys' regular route 
service. This approach could have tqe additional benefit· of proViding a more realistic vi~w of the 
NHTA·system at.work. 

As public transit agencies moye to expand servi~e, it is important t~ respect the needs of pfivate 
settor companies to operate effectively in a competitive marketplace for services that do not 
receive subsidies. The interconnected nature of America's transportation netWork requires that· 
FTA work together with the private transportation industry to niaintain the vitality arid · 
effeGtiveness ofevery component of our system.· The health of every component, public and . 
private, affects the health .and effectiveness of our entire passenger trahsportation syst~m. 

I hope you find this information responsive to your request. rieasecontaCt me if you need 
additional information or assistance in this matt.er,, 

cc:.Washington Office 
Donna Caiter, Executive Director 
New Haven Transit Authority 

· Sincerely,· 
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Richard Doyle, Regional Administrator, TR0-1 
Margaret Foley, Regional Counsel, TR0-1 
Elizabeth Martineau, Attorney-Advisor, Office of Chief Counsel 
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U.S. Department 
orTransportation 
Federal Transit 
Administration 

Dan W. Chandler 
Chandler Bujold & Chandler, PLC 
2855 Coolidge Hwy.; Suite 109 
Troy, Ml48084 ·· 1 

· • 

. Sandy Draggoo, Ex~cuti~e Director 
Capital Area TranSportation A;uthority 
· 4615 Tranter Avenue 
Lansing; MI 48910 . 

RE: Aniended Charter Decision 
Indian Trails Inc.,Complaint#2002-10 

REGIONV 
. ·Illinois,· h'ldiana, 
· Mic;higan, Minnesota, 
Ohio! Wisconsin· 

Classic Caddy Limousine, Complaint #2002-0 1 
The Tecumseh Trolley & Limousine, Complaint# 2002-04 .. , 

Dear Mr. Chan9l~r:and.Ms.Draggoo: . 
. ·· .. . . . ...... 

200 West Adams Street 
Suite 320 
Chicago, IL 60606-5253 
312-353-2789 
312-886-0351 (fax) 

NOV 6 2002 

This letter serves as the Federal Tr8.Ilsit Admimstratioii's (FTAJtesporiseto 'your letter dated' 
October 18, 2002, as well as 11n amend'ed decision 'for the earlier charter decision dated Oct, i 1, 
2002. The Region is aware that since your letter, the Capital Area Transportation Authority 
(CATA) has appealed the Region V deCision to the FTA Adtninistrator; however;'tlie Region is 
still addressing the issues raised in your ~etter, as well as amending its earlier charter decision . 
based on new information. · · · 

First; as to the points you raised in your letter; I will address them in the order you have raised 
them as follows: · · 

1. CATA indicated that it never received the original complaint. However, CAT A was 
sent a copy of the complaint dated March 7,2002, via registered mail on April2, 2002. 

·The complaint was received by CATA o~ April9, 2002, and signed for by Gloria Corts. 
2. · CATA indicated that it never received the information from Tecumseh Trolley. 

However, CATAwas sentthe infonnation from Tecumsyp. Trolley onJuly 11,2002, 
viaregistered maiL -The material from Tecumseh Trolley was received by CATA'on 
July 15,2002, and signed for by C. Fitzergerald. 

3. CATA stated.that.there w~s .. no evidence that any of the private operators lacked 
capacity: However; on October10, 2002, Tecumseh Trolleyackn'owledged to J;<TA that 
it did not lack capacity when it signed the Indication of Interest form. Therefore, FT A 
had evidence that at k~ast one private op~rator did not la~k capacity w~en_it ex~c:uted 
the Indication of Interest forni. If the' private operators had capacity con,sttaints, they 
should have been lea-siQ.g CAT A's buses, not CAT A's trolleys, since the buses have a 

t . ··.·' • • • l.· . • 
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larger. capacity than.the trolleys. Although FTA does not require the transit · 
agency to investigate the private operator's capacity.constraint representation, 
if there is evidence of false statements or fraud, then the transit agency .should 
conduct an inquiry to. determine whether the operator. truly lacks capacity 
when it leaSes one of the transit agency's v~hicles. 1 It is ultima\ely the transit 
agency's responsibility to comply with the charter regulations. The use of the 
trolleys by a private operator should be incidental service. In this pase, the · 
trolleys are only being used for charter service. This use does not fit the 
defnlition ofincidental use. 

4. CATA stated 1tshoUid not be held responsibl~ifa'private operator 
misrepresented that it lacked-capacity. See prior answer.· Tecumseh Trolley's 
documentation states that CATA may have been booking charters for Indian 
Trails to use its trolleys. The'documentation states that based on contacting 
several brides who. had rented the trolleys for their weddings, the .bri<ies were 
unaware that Indian Trails was eyen involved\\jth the vehicle renthl. {fthatis 
the case, which in and ofitselfis a violation of the regulations, CATA should' 
have been aware whether Indian Trails truly lacked capacity. 

5. CATA contends that the International Art Fair service was not charter sel'Vice. 
The service provided by CATA for the International Art Fair was~not on a 
regularly published route.,, A private operator indicated that it would have 
been willing and able· to provide the service. 

6. CATA states that. the guidance regarding fully recovering allocated costs 
should not apply in this case~ since the trolleys are state funded. FTA is 
amending its deCision because it was based on the misrepresentation by 
CATA that the trolleys were 1 O()o/o state funded. Michigan DOT and CAT A's 

1 The question and answer for No. 32 from Charter. Questions and Answflrs from 52 FR 
42248 (November 3, 1987) states the following: 

32. Question: )Vhen.a private operator requests buses from a grantee to run a 
give1,1 charter service, what is ·a grantee's responsibility to assure the 
circumstances fit the limited exceptions set forth in § 604.9(b )(2)? 

Answer: The above-cited regulation allows grantees to contract with private 
operators only when and to the extent that the private operator lacks equipment 
that is accessible to the elderly and handicapped or'la,cks capacity. UMTA will 
allow its grantees to use their reasonable, good faith judgment as to whether the 
requirements of the regulations have been met, and, in the absence of apparent 
fraud or falsified statement, will not require theni to look behind a request for the 
use of their buses by a. private operator. 

However, if a private operator continuously leases the transit agency's trolley vehicles 
week after week, as Indian Trails did in the documentation that Tecumseh Trolley 
supplied, it should raise the question as to whether the private operator truly has a 
capacity constraint. 
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OWll COUnsel have now acknowledged that the trolleys Were partially funded 
with Federal Highway Administration (FHWA) funds. The applicability 
section of the charter regulations, 49 CFR Sec. 604.3(b), states that the charter 
r.egulations apply to all recipients of Federal financial assistance under · 
"Sections 103(e)(4), 142(a),dr 142(c)ofTitle 23 United States Code which 
permit the 'use of Federal-Aid Highway funds to purchase buses." The 
defmiti?n of the ''Acts" under ~ec. 604.5(b) also· includes the same sections of 
the U.8. Code. The charter regulations apply to the trolleys even if,they are 
maintained and housed separately from the rest.ofCATA's vehicles.· CATA 
should not be leasing the trolleys for ·charter use unless one of the charter 
exceptions applie.s. · · . · 

7. CATA contends sirtce the service was open to the public, it was not exClusive. 
The service was provided exclusively for atten4ees of the International Art 
Fair. · · 

. . . . ' 

Se.cond, based on the new information that the trolleys were funded with FHWA funds, · 
FTA amends its' earlier decision dated October 11 ~· 2002: The trolleys cannot be. used for 
any indirect or dire9t sharter service unless one ·Of the charter exceptions applies. CAT A 
must immediately cease and desist using, the trolleys for charter service. CATA has been 
aware of the charter issue since its triennial finding in October 2000,. and it has been 
aware ofthe charter complaints since April•2002. 1 It has had· a great deal oftime to make 
alternate arrangements. It should have stopped taking charter trolley bookings a long · 
time ago; · · . . 

Federal funds were provided for the lease purchase of the trolleys to use them for niass 
transportation. CAT A has acknowledged that the trolleys are only being used for special 
service, primarily private wedding charters. This use does not fit the definition ofmass 
transportation. 

By this letter, FTA amends its earlier decision, which.allowed CATA to ,separate the 
trolleys from a federally funded facility and use them for charter service. The trolleys 
were federally funded; therefore, they cannot be used for charter service unless one of the 
e:X:cepti,ons applies. 

FTAfmds that CATA has been providing impermissible charter service and orders it to 
cease arid desist any such further service. Refusal to cease and desist in the provision of 
this service could lead to additional penalties on the part of FTA. Additionally, the 
mileage for improper charter use should not accrue towards the useful life of the 
Federally funded vehicles; 

In accordance with 49 C.F .R. § 604.19, the losing party may appeal this decision within 
ten days of receipt of the decision. The appeal should be sent to Jennifer Dorn, 
Administrator, FTA, 400 Seventh Street, S.W., Room 9328, Washington, D.C. 20590. 
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CAT A has ten days to amend its.appeal based on this amended decision. 

Sincerely, 

.Jtl~ 
Joel.Ettinger ·. 0 
Regional Adi:ninistrator. 

cc: Robert McAnallen, Classic Caddy Limousine (w/enc.) 
Steve Pixley; The Tecumseh Trolley & Limousine (w/enc.) 
Gordon Mackay, Indian Trails, ln,c. (w/enc.) 
Robert Gardellaw/enc. 
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U.S. Department 
of Transportation 
Federal Transit 
Adminlstratiof1 , 

Mr~ Richard c~ Prima, Jr ... 
Public Works Director. 
City ofLodi. . 
City Hall, 221 W ~ Pijle Street 
P. 0. Box 3006 
Lodi, California 95241-1910 

Dear Mr. Prima.:. 
I . 

REGION IX 
Arizona. California, 
Hawaii. 'Nevada; Guam 
American Samoa. 
Northern Mariana Islands 

NOV 2 6 ~002 

RSWIN~ nu:· 

201 Mission S,reet 
Suite 2210 ·· .. . 

·san Franc!sco. CA 9-4105-1839 · 
415-7~3'133 . . . . 

· 415-7~-2726 (fax) 

Re: tod'i Station ParlQng Survey and Charter Regulations 

In respo~ to yow: letter d3ted June 21' 2002~ you offered to provide parkiilg surveys to document 
the utilization of the Lodi Station Parking Structure. Because the p8rking ·structure arid the· adjacent·. 
MultimOdal Station p~king lot appear under utilized, a parking s\uvey ofboth.faciliti.es would be· 
appropriate .. · this survey shoUld document the tiansi~ .and non transit liSe ofthe facilities at ··_ · 
d_ifier~r times. · · · · 

: In.addition,the City·ofLodi has provided incidental-charter servi~, whic~rmay be in violation of" . 
·the federal charter regUlation. Guidance is encloSed to-~isfthe City in complying with the challter 
rules. Charter ,service is particularly foroid.den if.willing and able providers exiSt.· However, the 
regulation offers additional exceptions, when notice, documeritatio~agreements~- approval and 

. certifications ~ p~ovided. 

:If you have anY questions regarding the nature of these topics, please contact Mr.John M. HUI1t~ . 
·Project Manager,at415•744-2597. . · · · · 

Enclosure 

Sincerely, 

r:JJ.7n~VA ~1/W~ 
~ , Lesl!. ~- Rogers //w l ·. .· Regional Administrator . 
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BEFORE THE FEDERAL TRANSIT ADMINISTRATION 

Desert Resorts Transportation 
Complainant 

V. 

SunLine Transit Agency, 
Respondent: 

DECISION 

Introduction 

Charter Complaint #2002-07 . 

4~ U.S.C. Section 5323( d) 

Desert Resorts TranSportation (Desert R~orts) filed this complaint with the Federal 
Transit Administration (FTA) on April26, 2002, alleging that the SunLineTransit 
Agency (SunLine) provide<,! charter service in violation of the FTA charter regulation, 49 
CFR Part 604. ·The service complained of pertains to SunLine's bus service to an a!mual 
film festival. Based upon a review of the alJegations in the complaint and the subsequent 
filings ofthe parties, FTA concludes that the service in question is charter service as 
defined by 49 CFR 604.5( e) because it was performed under a single contract at' a fixed 
charge for the vehicles. Fl'A orders SunLine to cease and desist from providing the 
service as it is currently configured. ' 

Complaint 

Desert Resorts filed this complaint with the FfA by letter dated Apri126, 2002. The 
complaint alleges that SunLine provided charter seivice in violation ofFTA's charter 
rules on two separate occasions; specifically, under contract with the Nortel Networks 

I 

Palm Springs International Film Festival (PSIFF) from January 11-20, 2002, and at the 
Desert Resorts Regional Airport on April 8, 2002. . 

In a letter dated June 28, 2002, FT A directed the parties to attempt local conciliation for 
thirty days under 49 CFR 604.15. In correspondence dated July25 and August.12, ~002, 
SunLine aknowledges that the service performed at the airport was impermissible chart.er 
service and states that it paid Desert Resorts $560.00 in full settlement and release of all 
claims. SunLine maintains, however, that the service provided for the PSIFF is mass 
transportation and reports that the parties are unable to resolve this dispute. By letter of 
August 27,2002, FTAadvised Desert Resorts and SunLine that it would proceed with a 
formal investigation concerning the PSIFF service. 

In its complaint; Desert. Resorts claims that SunLine provided bus service under contract 
to the PSIFF at a fixed charge of $50.00 per hour per vehicle without notifying local 
charter operators or national bus associations as required by 49 CFR 604.11. Desert 
Resorts included with its complaint three "SunLine News" press releases which state the 
free SunBus PSIFF shuttle is conveniently timed to connect with the SunLink schedule to 
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a..llow for a full day to enjoy viewing world class films, shopping or dining. The press 
releases emphasize the positive effectthe SunLink/SunBus1 partnership will have on . 
reducing traffic congestion and hannful emissions. · ' 

Response 

SunLine's response is dated September 10,2002. SunLme states. that from January 11~ 
~o. ~002, it provided additional fixed-route service with tWo bU$es that operated open . 
door.· SunLine claims that the service is an enhancement to its regular fixed-route. serVice 
and operates without ~y negative impact on its regular service. · . · 

SunLine inc hided with .its response a December 17, 2ool Agreement (Exhibit C). si~ed 
by SunLine's.Transit Marketing Coordinator and the Chairman ofthe PSIFF. ·The 
Agreement stipulates that SunLine will operate two PSIFF -wrapped blises free to the 
public between four theater venues every .10 minuteS from January 10-21, 20022 between 

• I . . . . . . 

the approximate hours of 8:00 am. and II :00 p.m. It identifies· the four theater venues 
and provides that the stop at the Palm Springs High SchoolAuditorium is. pedding School 
Distpct and SunLine appf()vai. The Agr~ement further provides that the co~t to the 
PSIFF to operate this 8pecial ·service is $50.00 per hour per bus. In addition, the · 
Agreement provides thatSunLinewill.opetatetwo wrapped bUses on various SunBus 
routes :fromDecember200ltbrough May 2002, for a monthly advertising feeof$1,000 
per bus. 

Accqrding to SunLine, the $50.00 charge indicates the subsidy that PSIFF agreed t~ pay .. 
so that the fare would be free for all riders and to assist with the marketing effOrtS which· 
.were .extensive. SunLine maintains that its arrangement with the PSIFF is a marketing.· 
agreement, not a transit service agreement. As part of the marketing agreemen~ SunLine 
notes that it' provided SunBus passes to members of an association called the ·Elderhostel; . 
the SunBus passes allowed riders access to all fixed-route service dtmng Janwuy 2002. 

SunLine alsa submitted a flyer (Exhibit A) and a placard (Exhibit B). nte flye~ and 
placard offer free shuttle service, list the bus schedule, and direet festivalgoe~ to look for 
PSIFF signs at select SunBus stops. The flyer contains a map outlining the PSIFF route . 
to·. four theater venues: # l Festival of Arts Cinemas, #2. PS High School Auditorium, #3 

. Courty~d 10, arid #4 A,nnenberg Theater (Palm Spririgs Museum). SwiLine maintains .· 
that it placed the.flyer and placard on its regular fixed route buses to advertise the service 
·and that the flyer was placed at all PSIFF locations as well. ·Moreover~ Sut1Line states 
that every newspaper ad and every TV spot for the festival.included news of the st:tviCe. 

Rebuttal 

Desert Resorts' rebuttal is dated September 27, 2002. ·Desert Resorts~claims thatthe. · 
·December 17, 2001, Agreement contains tenns and conditions typically used in ail,y . 

1 SunLine's preprinted schedule states that SunBus is a "Valley-wide fixed rout~ bus servicen and SunLiilk 
is an "express service to the Inland Empire.n . . 
1 According to subsequent correspondence, the dates were changed to January ll-20, 2002. 
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contract for chartersetyice, such as .the hourly rate per bus, hours of service, and location 
of stops. In addition, Desert Resorts argues that the service is controlled by the user and 

· is not designed to benefit the public atlarge because the buses stop only at the four PSIFF 
theater venues stipulated in the Agreement. Moreover, Desert Resorts asserts that 
SunLine has not .provided any evidence that the PSIFF service was regularly scheduled or 
route dev~ation service. · · 

Desert Resorts contends.that SunLine has engaged in a continuing pattern of violation, 
including the service performed at Desert Resorts Regional Airport as well as alleged 
violations which are the subject of a separate charter complaint filed by Desert Resorts 
and currently p

1
ending before FT A .. Desert Resorts a8ks Ff A to order S~ine to· 

reimburse to compl,ainant the sum of $23,400.00 plus p~alties.· 

Second Response 

By letter of October 8,2002, FTA requested additional information from SunLine 
including its preprinted sch~ule and any supplemenial documentation pertaining to the 
Agreement ofDecember i7, 200L · 

By letter dated October 18, 2002, SunLine submitted its supplemental response and 
enclosed its regular published schedule along with a November 26, 2001, letter it had sent 
to the PSIFF formalizing discussion~ that took place between the parties on September 
19, 200L The letter states SunLine will create and operate the blls route; one bus will 
allow for· service every 20 minutes; ·and, two buses will provide service every 10 minutes. 
SunLine'.s ietter further stipulates that additional stops along the designated route are at 
the discretion of the SunBus driver and onlywhen itis safe and legal to do so. In 
addition, theletter proVides that it is the parties' intent to produce a successful special 
event that nurtllres the use of public transit. SunLine maintains that the November 26, 
2001, correspondence confirms S~ine's creation oftheroute and control oft4eservice~ 

SunLine further argues that it designed the PSIFF service to overlay its regular fixed 
route in an effort· to encourage riders to transfer and utilize the additional free· service. 3 

According to SunLine, itadded two stops.to the PSIFF service that did not previously 
exist on its regularfixed route: #2 Ramon [PS High School Auditonum] and#4 
Anhenberg Theatre [Palm Springs Desert Museum] .. SunLine claims that all ofthe film 
festival venues, with the exception of #4 Annenberg Theatre can be acc·essed by the 
regular fixed-route serVice.4 SunLine claims that the service does not inconvenience aily, 

. . 
3 A comparison of the film ,festival flyer with the published schedule at pages 10 and 17 indicates that the 
PSIFF. service follows segments ofSunLine's regular fixed-route service on Lines 14, 24, ~0 and Ill as 
well as on Line 23 along Ramon between Farrell and Sunrise. The flyer shows the PSIFF route detours 
approximately one block from SunLine's regular fixed-route at Palm Canyon where it continues along 
Amado, turns left on Museum Drive and turns left .again at Tahquitz to retUrn to Palm Canyon. 

4 The preprinted schedule containS a section entitled "Places to Go on Sunbus" on page 13 and lists theater 
venues #I,# 3 and #4 as accessible on the regular fixed-route service. As to venue #2, pages 9 and I 0 of 
the schedule indicate that PS High School Auditorium is adjacent to SunLine's fixed route service on Lines 
14 and 23, respectively. 
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riders by deviating from regular fixed route serVice and is designed to integrate. with the 
regular route to maximiZe availability of the service to the general public. · 

SUnLine states that it performed the P~IFF service for the first time in January 200 l and 
intends to provide the same t}'pe of service annually, subject to FTA's finding that the · 
service is mass transit and not charter service. 

Second Rebuttal 
I 

Byletter dated October 28, 2002, Desert Resorts provided its seeond rebuttaL Desert 
. Resorts poi~ts out that the service was proVided unc;ler a singJe contract for $50.00 per 
hour per vehicle and operated during peak homs. Further, DeSert Resorts argues that 
SunLine.does not have the final sa:y for settiiig arid modifying the route, rate, schedule 
and equipment. Rather, Desert ReSorts reiterates thatSunLine's ariangementS with the . 
. PSIFF are identical to private charter operations where the client r.eque5ts transportation 
and di~tates the location and frequency of service while the charter operator sets a ... 
schedule· based on driving time and client desires. Moreover, Desert Resorts' maintains 
th~t the servicedoes not benefit the public at largebecauseitis designed t& serve only 
attendees ofthePSlFF; noneofthe four film venue stops coincide with SunLirie's regutar 
fixed route service; and the PSIFF service overlaps existing routes only in terms of the 
streets travelled over .. Desert Resorts emphasizes that the theater venues are located at 
least 300-500 feet from the closest regular SunBus stops. ·. · · · 

Third Response 

On·October 30,2002, SunLine provided additional infonnationpertahlingto the PSIFF 
service. Thereafter, Desert Resorts indicated it intended to rebut the October 3.0 
submission. In a November 25, 2002; conference call among FTA, Desert Resorts and 
SunLine,. it was agreed that the FT A would not consider the October 30 information as 
part of the administrative record and Desert Resorts Would not file an additional rebuttal. 

·.. . . 

Discussion 

Before rea<::hing the maih issue of this complaint, two subsidiary questions raised by 
complainant will be addressed. First, in settling the dispute involving the service at the 
Desert Resorts Regional Airport, SunLine made a decision at.the local level to pay 
$560.00 in damages to Desert Resorts. Desert Resorts now requests that FTAorder 
SunLine to pay $23,400.00 plus penalties for providing the PSIFFser\rice. ·.The FTA is a 
grant-making agency, not a regulatory or enforcement agency~ As such, the FTA does · 
not award damages or assess fines.~d therefore, will not entertain Desert Resort's 
request Next, Desert Resorts refers to various allegations it raised in another complaint 
involving SunLine which is currently pending before this age11cy. FTA will issue a · 
separate decision in that matter. We turn now to the main concerns of Desert Resorts' 
complaint. 
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The essential issue in this matter is whether the service provided by SunLine is 
impermissible charter service or permissible mass tfansportation. The definition ~f 
charter service found in ITA's regulations at 49 CFR604.5(e) is as follows: 

[T]ransportation using buses or vans, or facilities funded under the Acts 
of a group of persons who ptlrsuant t~ a common purpose, under a single 
contract, at a fixed ,charge for the vehicle or serVice, have acquired the . 
exclusive use of the vehicle 'or service to travel together under an itinerary 
either specifi'ed in advance or modified after having left the place of origin. 

Charter service Is usually thought ofas a one-time provision of service and the user, not 
the recipient, has the corltrol of the' service.· 52 Federal Register 119U>,l1919 (April i3; 
1987). . . 

m·contrast,' the Federal Transit Laws define''mass transpot1ation" as transportation that 
provides regular and continuing general or special tr~sportation to the public. 49 U.S,C. 
§ 5302(a)(7). In the preamble to the regulation, the .FTA has articulated other features . . .. 

. which locally flow from 'this definition: 

First, 'mass transportation is under the control of the recipient Generally, 
the recipien,t is· responsible for setting the route~ rate, and schedule, and · · ., 
deciding what equipment is used~ Seeond, the service is designed· to benefit 
the public at large and not some special organization such as a private club. 
Third, mass transportation is open to the public and is not closed door. Thus, 
anyone who wishes to ride on the service must be permitted to do so. 

52 Fed. Reg.l1920. 

While these distinctions may appear to be clear, there are many difficulties in 
determiriing in a: given case which category the service fits into most appropriately. FT A 
has previously stated that a balanCing test must be applied to determine the nature ofthe · 
service involved in any complaint filed with FTAbecause, as the preamble to the charter 
regulation points out, there is no. fixed definition of charter service, ai?-d the characteristics· 
cited by FTA are not exhaustive, but merely illustrative. 52 Fed. Reg. 11919~11920 .. 
FTA has reached the findings and determinations below on the basis of such ari 
analysis. · · 

Designed to benefit the public at large 

FT A has previously stated that service is desigued to benefit the public at large when it 
serves the needs of the general public, instead of those of "some special organization 
such as a private club." 52 Fed. Reg. 11920 (Aprill3, 1987). The charter regulation 
requires that riders outside a target group of customers be eligible to use the seivice. 
Annett Bus Lines v.City ofTallahassee, FL-TALTRAN/90-02-01 (April28, 1992). 
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The record is persuasive that the film festival route was designed to interconnect with 
SunLine's regular fixed_.route and that all four theater venues can be accessed pri 
SunLine's regular service. Furthe~, the ''SUnLine News" press releases indicate the film 
festival shuttle was co~veniently ti~ed. to connect with SunLine's regular service to· . 
allow for a full day to enjoy viewing world class films, shopping or dining. In.FT A's 
view, the festivalgoers are not a sufficiently defined enough group to be .considered a 
.. private dub." Moreover; while the service may accommodate them pri,marily, it is not 
restricted to their exclusive use but is available to anyone wishing to board it Therefore, 
FTA finds that the service was designed to benefit the public at large. · · 

Open to the public and not closed door 

In detenrrlning whether service is trUly "open 1door ," PTA looks :both ~t. the level of 
ridership by the generalpublic as opposed to a particulargroup arid at the intent of the 
reCipient in offering the service. The jntent to make 'service open door can be discerned 
in the attempts to m~e the service known and available to the public. FT A thus takes 
into account the efforts arecipient has made to market the service. Generally: this 
· mar.keting effort is be$t evidenced by publication of the service in· the recipfent' s 
preprinted schedules. Washington Motor co'ach Association V. Muriicipality of 
Metropolitan Seattle, WA-09/87-01 (March 21,1988). FTAhasalso interpreted "open 
door" to mean a substantial public ridership and/or an attempt by the transit ,authority to 
widely market the service~ ,Blue Grass Tours and Charter v. Lexington Transit Authority; 
URO-III-1987. The pbsting of bus stop signs and .connections to other transportation 
routeS are also considered indicators.of"opportunity for publi~ rider8hip." Se:rmour . 
Charter Bus Lines v. Knoxville Transit AuthoritY, TN-09/88~01 (Noveii1ber 29, 1989). 

FT A finds that SunLine made concerted efforts to demonstrateits intent to make the 
service open door. Although the .film festival service is not listed in the preplinted · 
schedule, SunLine actively marketed the service to the public through press releases, the 
flyer and placard, advertisements on wrapped buseS,"new~aper ads and,TVspots, and 
integration with its fixed-route service~ If a decision is made tq reconfigure the service in 
accordance with FT A requirements, SunLine should p\lblish ~he service in its preprinted· 
schedules. · . · · 

Under the .control of the recipient 

The charter service criteria include bus transportation imder a single contract at a fixed 
rate for the vehicle Or' service.' FTA has previously determPted that control of fares and 
schedules is the critical element in the balancing test FTA uses to distinguish.charter . 
service from mass transportation~ Seymour, at page -10. Compensation on the basis of 
hours of service is evidence of charter operations, whereas individual fares5 paid by eCich 
rider indicates the service is maSs transportation. Seymour, at pages 9..;, 10. 

5 Cost is irrelevant in determining whether service is Q}ass transportation or charter service; Generally, qee 
charter service would be "non-incidental" since it does not recover its fully allocated cost. and FTA · 
recipients caimot p~ovide it, even under one of the charter exceptions. Q&A No; 27(a), 52 Fed. Reg., 
42248, 42252. . 
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The record is convincing that SuriLine created and operated the PSIFF route and schedule 
to integrate arid connect with its regular fixed-ro,ute service. Moreover, the November · 
26, ~001, letter from SUQLine to the PSIFF provides further evidence ofSunLine's 
control over the service by the statement"additionalstops along the designated route are 
at the discretion of the SunBus driver." In these respects, the service is similar to mass 
transportation. We note, however, that the December 17, 200l,agreement between ' 
SunLine and th~ PSIFF specifically states that both the School District and SunLine have 
final approval over the new stop located at-venue #2 Palm Spring$ High School 

. ·Auditorium; and therefore, itis unclear whether SunLine had the final say over:this 
·location. · · 

SunLine maintains the service is mass transportation ;md,.subjecttoFTA approval, . 
intends to offer the film festival service on an ann Wit basis. In publi~lied guidance, FT A 
explains that ·~service to· regularly s,cheduled but rela'tivelyinfrequent events (sporting 
events, annual festivals) that is open door, with the routes and schedules' set bythe. 
grantee and with fares collected from individuals, whether or not the individ~al fares are . 
subsidized by a donor," does not meet the charter criteria.· Q&A No. 27.(<:), "Charter 
Questions and Answers," 52 Fed. Reg. 42248, 42252 {November 3,'1987). The PSIFF 
service is similar in some respects to the service described in Q&A No. 27(c); however, it 
is provided pursuant to a singleconfract•at·a fixed chargeof$50.00 per'hour per bus and 
fares are not collected from individuals. Therefore, SunL~e failed to clear a critical 
hurdle in the balancing test, and the FT A concludes that the PSIFF service is charter ' 
servtce. 

As noted in Q&A No. 27(c ), FT A :;;uggests that service such as an annual festival may be 
an excellent candidate for privatization. SunLine is reminded that FT A recipients are 
required to provide for the participation of private niass transportation companies to the 

· maximum extentfeasible. 49 U.S.C. SeCtion 5323(a). 

728 



8 

Conclusion 

After a thorou'gh inve~!igation~ FTA concludes that SunLine's service for the PSiFF.is .· 
charter service because it meets the charter criteria of being performed wider a single 
contract at a fixed charge for the vehicles. Therefore, SunLine shall immediately· · 
discontinue operating the service as it is presently configured. . 

I . . • • ' . 

In accordance with 49 CFR 604.19, the losing party inay appeal this decision within t~n 
days of receipt of the decision. The appeal should be sent toJennifer Dom, . 
Administrator, FTA, 400 Seventh Street, S.W., Room 9328, Washington, D.C~ 20590. 

'ttlaA ~lE · MargaFe~. Foley .· · · 
Regional Counsel 
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J~n-03·03 03:05pm From-FTA 9 

U.S. Department 
of Transportation 
Federal Transit 
Administration 

Mr. Thomas F. Larwin 
General Manager 
M~opolitan Transit Development Board 
1255 Imperial Avenue, Suite.lOOO 
San Die12o, CA 92101-7490 

~~ 
DearMr.~ 

+4157442726 

REGION IX 
AIW)na, Caliromia, 
Hawaii, Nevada. Guam 
American Samoa, 
Northern Mariana Islands 

January 3, 2003 
I 

T-845 P.02/02 F-462 

201 Mission Street 
Suite 2210 
San Franc:isc:o, CA 9410S.1839 
415·744-3133 
415·744--2726 (fax) 

Re: Charter Service Exception 
for Super Bowl XXXVII 

This is in response to your letter of September 18, 2002, requesting a waiver of the Federall ransit 
AdminiStration's (FTA) Charter Service Rules in order to allow the Metropol1ran Transit 
Development Board (MTDB) and the North County Transit District (NCTD) to operate charter 
service on January 26, 2003, for Super Bowl XXXVII in San Diego, California. You have not 
stated the panicular waiver that you are seeking. 

The preamble to the· Charter Regulation explains that FTA will grant an exception under 49 CFR 
§604. 9(b )( 4) only for events of an extraordinary, special and si,t1gular nature such as the Pan 
American Games and the visits of foreign dignitaries. 52 FederalRegister 11925(Aprill3~ l ~87). 
Regularly scheduled yearly or periodic events would not qualify for the exception. "Charter 
Service Questions and Answers," 52 Federal Register422Sl(November 3, 1987). 

Based on the facts provided in your lener, it appears that the service, which you seek to provide, is 
·an incidental use under 49 CFR §604.5(i). 1 Incidental Charter Service means charter service, 
which does .not: ( 1) interfere with or detract from the provision of the mass transportation se-rvice 
for which the equipment or facilities were funded under the Acts; or (2) does not shonen the mass 
transponation life of the equipment or facilities. · 

You have followed the public participation process set forth in 49 CFR §604; 11 and have 
determined that there are no willing and able providers of the charter service which you seek. to 
provide. If no willing and able operator exists, MTDB and NCTD may provide chaner servLce for 
Super Bowl XXXVII as long as ii is incidental charter use as defined above. 
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slie T. Rogers 
Regional Admi · s 



Feb-24-04 !0:39am From-FTA REGION 6 817978d575 T-174 P.04/04 F~469 

U.S. Department 
of Transportation 
Federal Transit 
Administration 

Philip 0. Pumphrey 
ExecUtive Director 
Ozark Regional Transit Authority 
P.O.Box785 
2423 EaSt RobinsO~ .. 
Springdale~ Arkans~s 12765-0785 

Re: Request for Waiver 

Dear Mr. PUmphrey: 

REGION VI 
Arkansas, Louisiana, 
New Mexico, Oklahoma, 
Texas 

ianuary 27, 2003 

819TaylarSt. SulteeA~ 
Fort WOrth, TX '16102 · 
817-S78-o5So 
817-878-0575 (fax) . 

Tills is iri reply to your letter date4January $, 2003, to the FCde® Transif Administration (FT A SYNBa.. 

wherein you co~ed that transpoitatio~ se~~ providedby ?~Regional transit ~~ori ............... . 
(Ozark) for three pnV11te non-profit orgamzations (1.e.,. EOA Children's House, Ozark Guidance ~N~T~A~.S<SG. ·· 

Center, and the Benton County Sunshine School) would be .subject to. an exceptie,>n in FTA's . · · 
Charter Service Rule becau~ each of the private non-profit organiZations is the recipient of fun .re 
from one or more of.the Federal programs that are listed· in Appenqix A of the FrA's Charter · . RTG.srr.e:i.-:" 
Sezv,ice Rule~ · 

· AccOrdingly, bysubmj:tting a statementto your grant sponsOt whereby Ozark certifies that these .............. . 
organizations meet the requirements of a social service agency m accordance witb the provisio . ~'~\; · . 
ofSection 604.9(b )(S)(ii), Ozark would be· permitted to provide charter service for the three pri SYMBOL 

non-profit organizations. However, in accordance with Section 604.9(e)ofthe Chaner SerVice 
Rule, .let ,me further point Ollt that any charter service proVided ;bY a recipient ,under an exceptio 
such. as in your case. must be "incidental· charter service;.,. ........................... 

FTA has interpreted "incidental charter service', to mean (1) charta service which does not t...RT=Il.==--

interfere with or detract from providing mass transportatio~ service or does not shorten the mass ............. . 
transportation life ofth~ equipment or facilities being used imd.(2) charter service which recovet1('ji'!Wa~ 
its fully allocated cost 

If you have any further questions or comments on this· matter. p~ease feel free to call IWgional 
Counsel Eldridge Onco orme at (817) 978-()550,. 
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Sincerely, 

Robart ·c. Paldck 
Roben C. Patrick 
Regional.Administrator 

~-""':'! 

..... -........ . 
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U.S. Department 
of Transportation 
Federal Transit 
Ad ministration 

Mr. Bill Osborne, Director 
SMTS, Inc. 
704E.HWY72 
P.O.Box 679 · 
Fredericktown, MO 63645 

·Dear Mr. Osborne: 

REGION VII 
Iowa, Kansas, 
Missouri, Nebraska 

February 11, 2003. 

901 Locust Street 
Suite 404 
Kansas City, MO 64106 
816-329-3920 . 
816-329-3921 (fax) 

Re: · Charter Exemption:- ~cared Straight 

You have requested approva1 ofan exception t~ the Federal TransitAdministr~tion's (FTA) charter 
rule found at 49 CFRPart 604. More specifically, you have requested confirmation that the.' 

. exception found at 49 CFR 604.9(b)(5)(ii) is appropriate to the circumstances described inyour 
letter (and its attachments) to the FTA dated February 10, 2003. · · 

The facts ~represented in your letter are: 

1, The. services would be provided to the Missouri Department of Corrections, Board of.· 
Probation and Patrol, and this is a governmental entity. . 

2, This service recipient either directly or indirectly receives federal funds from one or more. 
of the programs listed in Appendix A to Part 604. · 

3. This service recipient has certified to the same as evidenced in a letter dated as received via 
facsimile on February 11, 2003 by both SMTS, fuc. and FTA. · . . 

4. The· 5 charter trips in question are consistent with the purpose· of the service recipient and 
related to prevention of incarceration of at risk youth: ·· · . 

5. The charter trips are offered (organized and provided) in a non-discriminatory manner. 

~ased on these facts, we find that ~e charter exception identified ~t 49 CFR 604.9(b )(S)(ii) is 
applicable and that no public advertising is required. 

If you have any questions ·regarding this matter, please contact Regional Counsel, Paula L. 
Schwachat816~329-3935 or at Paula.Schw~ch@fta.dot.gov. 
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Sincerely; 

M &tt~ztm ~J. 
Mokhtee Ahmad 
Regional Administrator 



Jun-Z0-03 03:58Pm From-FTA ATLANTA;GA, 

U~S,- Cepartment 
of Transportation 
Federal Transit 
Administration 

+.4045623505 

REGION IV 
Alabama, Florida, Georgia, 
Kentucky, Mississippi, 
Nofth Carolina, Puerto 
Rico, South Carolina, 

·Tennessee 

T-309 P.04/04 F-589 

61 Forsyth Stnaet, S.W. 
Suita17T50 
Atlanta, GA ~0303-8917 
40~562-3500 
404-Se2-3601S (falC) 

Mr~ Jeff Hackbart 
Director Public Works 
City of Frankfort 

Feb.ruary 13, 2003 

315 West Second Street 
P.O. Box 697 
Frankfort, Kentucky 40602 

. Re: Govemor1 s Kentucky Derby Breakfast 
. , . . I 

Dear Mr. Hackbart: 

B.ased on the information provided in your letter dated JanlW)' 6. 2003, Frankfort Transit is 
granted pennission to provide bus service forth~ SP,~C\alevent of the Govemor"s Kentucky Derby 
Breakfast Activitic::s, · ·· 

If you have any questions, I can be contacted at 404/562~3 518. 

0 0 
Office of Oversight 

f .. 
~ 

~ect Management 
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jun=zs~os 07:15am From·FTA TRO 5 

U.S. Department 
of Tran$portation 
Federal Transit 
Administration 

VIA CERTIFIED MAIL 

Mr. Gus Lluberes 
Michigan Department ofTransportation 
P.O~ Box 30050 
425 w. ottawa st. 
Lansing, Ml 48909 

RE: FT A Charter Service Complaint 

Dear Mr. Lluberes: 

3128880351 

REGIONV 
Illinois, Indiana, 
Michigan, Minnesota, 
Ohio, Wisconsin 

T-164 P.OS/04 F-4~8 

200 West Adams Street 
Suite 320 
Chicago, lL 60606-5263 
312-353-2789 
312-888-0351 {fax} 

MAR 2 1 2003 

Gladwin Limousine Service (Gladwin) has alleged that a sub~recipient of Michigan D~partment of .. · 
Transportation (MDOTI. Isabella County Trar,spottation Commission (ICTC), violated Federal Transit 
Administration (FTA) charter rules pursuant to 49 C.F.R. Part 604. A copy of an e-mail from Giadwin 
setting forth their allegations is enclosed. · · · · · · 

FTA regulations require that certain procedures be followed when arecipient or sub-recipient desires 
to provide charter service. In ,a·ccordance with the rule, recipients must determine. if Willing and able . 
private ope11tors exist pr!or to p,rovid.ing incidental charter service pur.suant to p,ublic nottce. If ~lllll)g 
and able pnvate providers do exist, recipients are prohibited from providing charter service unless one. 
of the enumerated exceptions to the charter rule apply. · · · 

As the recipient through which ICTC receives· their pass through funding, FTA requests MOOT to 
cond.uct an inquiry Into these allegations. Please request a ~opy of ICTC's published charter notice 
and describe whether any responses from private providers were received. If they have provided 
incidental charter service, they m1.1st describe the nature of that service. If they have rece!ved ~any 
complaints from any private providers, including Rod and Laurie Knierim, they must .also provide a 
description. of those complaints and responses thereto. · · ·· · ·· · 

Once received, FTA will review this information and determine if sUfficient evidence exists Which 
merits the initiatiop qf a .formal ¢Ompiairltprocess in accordance with 49 C.F.R. Part 60.4.15. A 
prompt response will be appreciated. · · 

.If yo~ have any questions or concern~ regarding thi~ matter, please 'contact FTA Is Regional Counsel, 
Paul Jensen, at (404) 562-3525. 

Sincerely, 

J!:-.1. 
Joel~. Ettinger 
Regional Administra 

Enclosure 

cc: Gladwin Limousif)e Service 
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Ap"r7ZB-03 10:Z9am From-FTA 9 

U.S. Department 
of Transportation 
Federal Transit 
Administration 

Bill Miller 
Desert Resons ·Transportation 
POBox2084 
Rancho Mirage, GA 92270 

Richard Cromwell Ill 
General Manager, CEO 
SunLine Transit Agency 
32-505 Harry Oliver Trail' 
Tho~d Palms, CA92276 

Dear Mr. Miller and Mr. Cromwell: 

+4157442726 

REGION IX 
·ArizOna. California, 
·Hawaii, Nevada, Guam 
American Samoa, 
Noithem Mariana lslaod$ 

T-292 P.02/05 F•570 

201 Mission Sti'eet 
Suite 22.10 , . 
San Francisco, CA 9410>1839 
415-744-3133 ' 
41$-744-2726 (faX) ' 

Re:· C!:barter Complaint2.002~11, Desert Resorts 
Transportation .v. S~ine Transit Agency. 

In accordance with the Federal Transit Administration. (Ff A) Charter Serviee regUlations~ Title 49 
Code of federal Regulations (CFR) Part 604, the Federal Tr.ansit Administration (FT A)bas 
revieWed the above captioned Complaint along with related materials submitted by ,both parries. 
For administrative convenience FT A has consolidated 106 individual complaints filed by Dc:sert 
Resons Transportation (Desert) against the SunLine Transit Agency (SuilLine} for pUrposes oftlus 
decision as all complaints arise out of the same set of circumstances. · 

In earlier decisions(Califomia Bus Association (CBA) v. SunLine) rendered on February W, 1997 
and January IS, 2002, FTA detemuned.that group trips perfonlled by Sl:JllLine, including th•>se, 
which are the supject of the instant complaint, constitute chaner service subje.ct to the procejural . 
requirements and limitations contained in the FTA Chaner, Service.regulations. FTA also 
determined that Sun~ine failed to comply with tl\e Charter Sezyi'ce regulations in agreeing t•) 
provide such services. Accordingly. the only issue to be decided at this time is what, if any, 

. remedies authorized unde~ the regulations ( 49 CFR §604. I 7) should be imposed.. · 

Background 

On February 10, 1997, theFT A issued a decision fmding thatSunLine's flXed-route group trip 
service was chaner service in viohJ.tion of 49 CFR Pan 604. SunLine was ordered to discontinue 
operating the service and advised that if it Wis)led to reinstitute group. trip operations, it mUsr 
recon:figtire the service to confonn to FT A's mass transportation guidel.ines. Shortly thereat ter. 
FT A granted a temporary stay of its decision based on SunLine' s assenions that the informittion it 
had provided prior to the F ebro.ary 10 decision was outdated; the parties had resolved their 
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differenc'es during anOctqber 1996 meeting; and the chaner serVice infractions had been.cotrected. 
Ba5ed on supplemental infonnation obtained following the February 10, 1997 decision. on 1.muary 
15~ 2002, PTA found that SunLine had not made the changes necessary to bring the group tnp · 
service within the definition ofmass trarispo11ation. SunLine's reconfigured group trip servi~e was 
found to be chaner service rather than mass transportation and therefore. an impermissible u~e of 
FT A funded facilities and equipment. FT A suggested several ways in which SunLine could 
reconfigure the service in order 10 bring it into compliance with Federal requirements; however, 
SunLine .failed for a variety of reasons to adopt those suggestions. 1 

As of the January 15, 2002 letter of decision, SunLine had obligated itself and scheduled to 
perform approxinlately 146 group trips according to infoTII12tion provided by both parties. 
Following the January 15 decision, SunLine hosted a· meeting of private charter operators to 
explain the situation and to see if any of them could carry ·out the group uip contracts. Thirty· Nine 
or forty of those uips were cancelled by SunLine. The I'eii1¢ning 106 were not cancelled and form 
the basis of Desen's 106 Co~plaints. In a letter dated May 3, 2002. addressed to Pacific Cc,ast 
Bus Service, Inc. Sunline admits carrying out the balance ofthe group trips and 'states that the last 
trip was performed on April ~3, 2002. . 

Discussion 

Deseri is seeking remedies under 49 CFR §604.i7 which says that: "(a) If the Regional 
Administrator determines ~t a violation ofthis pan has occurred, the Regional Administrator may 
·order such remedies as the Regional Adminisnator determines are appropriate. (b) If the Regional 
Administrator Q.etermines that rhere has been a continuing pattern of violation of this part, the 
Regional Administrator may bar the respondent from the receipt of further financial assist3llce fo 
mass transponation facilities and equipment .... 

To remedy SunLine's admitted violations. Desen asks FT A not only to withhold furtb~ Federal 
funding from SUDLine, but to also require SunLine to pay Desert monetary damages in an aJUount 
equal to that which would have been received had Desert provided the service. In support of its 
requests Desert relies on the preamble to the charter regulation found at 52 Federal Register (FR.) 
11916, Aprill3, 1987, page 11929. hl the discussion of Section 604.17 Remedies, the preamble 
says. "this section of the· final rule sets fonh the remedies, or penalties, that UMTA ,may imJIOSe on. 
a recipie11t if we find that there has been a violation of the regulation." 

. I 

In response. SunLine argues that it booked the 106 grpup trips before the January 15·, 2002 
decision lener was issued in reliance on the temporary stay granted earlier by FTA and in guod 
faith believing that it was properly reconfiguringthe service based on advice from FtA. 1be 
record reflects that the nips were booked before the FT A decision and completed in approximately 
three months following the decision. 

In determining whether to impose the·remedies requested, SunLine's intent in providing the group 
trips following the FTA decision of January lS must be balanced with the likely effects of such 
remedies. Nothing in the record suggests that SunLine was acting in defiance of the FTA 
decision. To the contrary, the meeting held with private operators to see if they could perfoJm any 
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of the contracted group trips suggests that Sunl.ine .made a concerted effort to carry qut the intent 
of the decision. Nothing in the record suggests that SunLine was knowingly attempting to hann. 
Oeserts or any other private operator. ·Rather, SunLine appears to have acted in the rpistako1 
belief that its group nips 'Yere a pemiissib~e form of mass transportation. · · · 

On the other hand, stispension ofSunLine's eligibility for fUrtlier Federal finmcial assistanc~ 
would likely resUlt in a noticeable reduction in the quality of mass transportation service to transit 
.riders in' the SunLine service area. That result would be ,conttarylo FT.A goals for increasing transit 
ridership and making public tranSportation the mode of choice for the traveling public. . . 
Accordingly, FT A will n()t impose that penalty iri th~ absence of evidence that less drastic 
remedies will no~ suffice. 

In the preamble to the issuance. of the Chaner S~ce regulations FTA purposely declined t'• .. 
specify any particular perullties that might be imposed llpon finding a violation, beyond the · · 
possibility. ofwithdrawing future financial assiSlallce. "In this finalnile,lJMTA [now FT A) has. 
decided not to specify any penalties. We agree with several of the comment~ that this appcoach• 
provides UMT A with the flexibility needed to fashion :a remedy that fits the sitUation. Wbil" this .. · 
may p~t the possibility of arbitrary p~ties and ren1edies, UMTA's close;~lianee on anJ .·· .. 
following of precedents should.prevent fbis." 

In the fifteen years the regulatio:ns have been in effect, FTA has neither withheld futl1re finanCial . 
assistance, nor awarded monetary penalties in response ~o· a· violation, so there is no such precedent· 
to apply in this case. With respect to DesQrt"s request that FfA I:Cquire SunLine to pay Des&m the · 
amoun.t Desert would have earned had Desert provided the grc;-qp trips, Desert has not shoWl1 that it 
would necessarily have ·been. biTed .over other private charter operators. Even if; it collld be !>hown 
that D~ert would have been awarded the contracts;· it is purely. speculative to suggest that Desert 
would have earned a particular sum on such business. · · · · · 

The preamble does provide some guidance regarding ·one appropriate remedy io be applied ~her~ 
.chaner service is impennissibly performed. At 52 FR 11926 discussion of spare ratios'and tlSeful 
life relyoil Section 9 [now 5307] Formula Grant Applicati9n Instructio~, to wit. "a tranSit hus has 
a mass transit useful life of 12 years. UMT A will not pennit a recipient to count charter service: 
toward meeting this 12,.year mark. As a resu1t,UM;TAwi11, absent ext~nuating circumstan<:es, 
only permit a. bus to be replaced after the bus is used in 12 mass ti3J.1SPonation yearS, notju~it 12 
calendar years." · · 

Further guidance with regard to remedies is found in the Questions and Answers promulgaJed by 
UMTA at 52 FR 42248, November 3, 1987. Question 28 asks, ''How should grantees calculate · 
'mass transit usefullifl~· less 'charter life' of vehicles?" Thq Answeris as follows: "Ariy re~onable 
method of c~culation is sufficient (e.g.· average hours per week, month, or year subtracted trom 
total hour5; average mile$ per week, etc .• subtracted from total miles). The calculation does not 
necessarily have to be done for each panicular bus. and averages can be applied to an entire fleet. · 
·For inStance, a grantee that proVides 3 days of chazter service per year, per bus, wouldsubtr.lct 36 · 
~ys from the 12-year useful life of each iri.dividual bus .... " Other expenses for which grant money 
may not be used when charter is performed include depreciation. fuel, maintenance and larur. 
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Conclusion 

Because the charter services petfonned bySunLinebetween January 15,2002 and April23', 2002, 
had been contracted for and scheduled prior to the date ofFT A's January 15 decision letter, and 

thereis no evidence'in the record to suggest that SuriLine acted in bad faith or in defiance of the 
FT A decisiorl. FT A will neither withhold future firiancia} assistance to SunLine, nor impose 
monetary penalties payable' to Desert pursuant to 49 CFR §604.1 7~ consistent with prior prec:edent. 
Desert's requests that FfA deny further financial assistance to SunLine and that SunLine be · 
directed to pay monetary da:rnageS to Desert are hereby deriied .. 

However, in light of the continuing nature of the viol;1tions and the apparent ipabiliey ofSwlLine 
to conform its behavior to the regulatory requirements With respect to it$ so called "group trips", 
SuDLine is hereby ordered to·cease ~d desist from offering to perfonn any tYpe of group service~ 
except for servic,es designed to meet the special needs of elderly or handicapped patrons otherwise 
permitted l.inder the Cb,arter Service tegulations.1 In determining the in-serVice \lsefullife C•fFrA 
funded vehicles, equipment, and facilities used in support of"group nips, since January!, 1997, 
SunLine must calculate atid deduct all associated use' (mileage. time, or depreciation) .from the 

· inventory records required to be maintained in accordabce with 49 CFR Part 18 and related teirns 
and conditions, of FI' A Assistance Agreements. No reference to group trips is ~o be publish~Jd in 
the SunLine Rider's Guide as was done in July 2001. SunLine must take all necessary steps to 
conform its service in all respects to the requirements ofFfA.'s regulations and, gUidelines foJr mass 
transit. 

· In accordance with 49 CFR §604~ 19 ajlpeals of this decisiotrmust be made within ten days (If 
. receipt ofthis decision. The appeal sho~dbe sent to JenniferDorn.Administrator, FfA. 400 
Seventh Street, S.W .• Room 9328, Washington, D.C. 20590. · 

Sincerely~ 

1 11Us order encompasses aU group service as described m SUDLine 's July 2001 Rider's Guide. A separate complaint 
bas been filed by Desert regarding SunLine services designed to meet the special needs of elderly and handicapped 
patrons as advertised on SunLine 's internet web page .. Those services are not covered by this decision and wi U be 
addrc;scic;d in a response to the recent complaint. 
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U.S.Department 
o~·T ransportation 
Federal Transit 
Administration 

Mr. Dan' W. Chandler 
Chandler Bujold & Chandler~ PLC 
2855 Coolidge Highway, Suite 109 
Troy; Michigan 20.$90 

Administrator ·hSl,S.W. 
ta, D.C. 20590 

MAY 14 axl3 

Re:, Classic Caddy Limousine v. Capital Area Transportation Authumy, '-'naner ;)ervice Docket 
·Number 2002-01; The Tecumseh Trolley & Limousine Servide v. Capital Area Transportation· 
Authority, Charter Service Doclcet Number 20,02-04; Indian Trails, Inc., v. Capital Area 
Transportation Authority, Charter Service Docket Number 2002-10 · 

DearMr;:dler: ~-~ ~ . 

In an initial decision by Regional Administrator Joel Ettinger dated October 11, 2002, and 
amended November 6, 2002, the Ftrderal Transit Administration found that Capital Area 
TransportationAutbority (CAT!\) was providing charter service in violation of the Federal 
TransitAdministration's charter service regulation, 49 CFR Part 604, and ordered CATA to cease 
and desist provid~g such service; .. CATA appealeq both the initial and the amended decisions to 
me on October 24, 2002, and November 15, 2002, respectively; 

I am not taking any action· on the appeals since CA TA presented no new matters of fact or points 
oflaw that were not available or notknown during the investigation of the complaint. This 
decision is administratively fmaL 

cc: Sandy Dragoo, Executive Director 
Capital Area Transportation 
4615 Tranter Avenue 
Lansing, Michigan 48910 

. Mr. Steve Pixley 
The Tecumseh Trolley&. Limousine Service 
8514 Pennington Road 
Tecumseh, Michigan 48286 
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Mr. Robert C. Gardella 
Law Offices 
8163 Grand River Road, Suite 100 
Brighton, Michigan 48114 

Mr. Robert McAnallen 
Classic Caddy Limousine· 
1408.Lake Lansing Road· 
Lansing, Michigan 48912 

Gordon D.· Mackay, President 
fudian .Trails, Inc. 
I 09 East Comstock Street 
Owosso, Michigan 48867 

Joel Ettinger, FTA Regional Ac1ministrator, TR0-5· 

Nancy Ellen Zusman; Regional Counsel, TR0-5 
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BCC: Peter J. Pantuso, President 
American Bus Association 
1100 New York A venue, N.W ., Suite .1 050 
Washington, D.C. 20005-3934 

VictorS. Parra, President .. 
United Motorcoach Association 
113 South West Street, 4th Floor 
Alexandria,VA 22314~2824 

Kristin 0
1
' Grady~ Assistant Chief Counsel 

Ariterican Public Transportation Association. 
1666K Street, N.W. · ... 
Washington, D.C. 20006 
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U.S. Department. 
of Trans~ortation Headquarters 400 Seventh St. S.W. 

Washington,D.C. 20590 . 
Federal' Transit 
Administrati()n 

PaulJ. Yesawich,III, Esq. 
; Harris Beach . 
: 99 Garnsey Road 
"'Pittsford, New York 14534 

June 16, 2003 

. ' . . 

Re: KempsBus Service, Inc. v. R<?chester-Genesee Regional Transportation Authority 
Charter Complaint Docket No. 2002,.02 · · 

· Dear Mr. Yesawich: · 

I . . . 

On Januacy2, 2003, Federal Transit Administrator Doril issued afinal decision on this ·charter 
service c6mplaint. She found that the Rochester-Genesee Regional Transportation. Authority 
(RGRTA)was providing prohibited charter service in three specific cases: .Wegman's Grocery 

. Shuttle, Ladies. Professional Golf Association·Wegman's Rochester International Golf Tournament 
(LPGA), and Rochester Institute of Technology (RIT) campus service. Since then, RGRTA has 
consulted with FTA' s Office of Chief Counsel in order to bring its service into complianc~ with 
that decision and FTA' s charter service regulation, 49 CFR Part 604; The following summarizes 
the measures.·RGRTA has .undertaken. · 

Wegman's Grocery Shuttle 

RGRTAhas provided Information that Wegman's Grocery has arranged with Medical Motor 
Service of Rochester and Monroe County, Inc., for the provision of transportation service to 

··persons with disabilities between certain senior citizen complexes and the Wegman's stores. Since 
this service is restricted~ the general public will no longer be served. Since the number of riders on 

· some of the routes exceeds the capacity of Medical Motors, it has subcontracted with Regional 
Transit Service (RTS)(a subsidiary ofRGRTA) to provide serVice on those routes as authorized by 
section 604.9(b)(2)(i). 

Wegman's International LPGA . . 

RTS has· provided copies of published schedules for the LPGA and similar seasonal events. RTS 
has established public routes for each of the seasonal events. The routes will operate only on the 
days of the events. RTS has established a fare per rider. As with all other public ~outes.' senior 
citizens, persons with disabilities; and children (ages 6-11) pay one-half fare, wh1le children age 5 
and under ride for free. RTS has posted the schedule on its website. LPGA willnot subsidize the 
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fare this year. If no one else elects to subsidize the .fare, each person boarding a bus to ride to the 
LPGA event will be required to pay the regular fare. 

·~chester Institute of Technology 

RGRTA has provided FTA with a draft of a subsidy agreement between RTS and RlT (which RlT 
has indicated it is willing to sign) in which RTS ~etains c9ntrol of the service. RGRTA has 
represented to FTA that stanqard RTS bus stop stgns have been placed throughout the campus. In 
addition, RTS states that it has placed·a number of shelters on the campus of the same design and 
appearance as shelters on other public routes. There are a number of stops on campus where the 
public can transfer from routes that travel off-campus to those that operate only on campus, 
providing connectiv.1ty between campus and non-campus service. At this time, t;he portion of the· 
RTSwebsite where sc],l~dul~s.are given contains a link'io th,e portion of~he RlT website where the. 
sche,dule'forthe intra-campus routes is found. RTS states that it is in the process ofintegmting all · 
its route schedules on its. website.. . 

RTS states that it is no longer contracting directly with any university for the purpose ofproviding 
services for its graduation event~· or· special shuttle service to other transportation services· around 
school holidays. RGRTAprovided evidence, however, that Kemps Bus Service, Inc., and Golden 
Memories Transportation have both sought to subcontract certain graduation services toRTS 
because of a lack.of capacity and, in some cases, an inability to provide equipment accessible to 
persons with disabilities. · · · · 

Conclusion 

, · I f . 

Based on the information RGRTA has provided, I conclude that RGRTA, with respectto the 
'service at issue in this case, is now in compliance. wit~ FfA's charter service regulation. 

cc: John H. Kemp, President 
Kemps Bus Service, Inc. 
2926 Lakesville Road 
Avon, NY 14414 

Susan H. Lent, Esq. 
AkinGump Strauss Hauer & Feld 
1333 New Hampshire Ave.,.N. W. 
Washington, DC 20036 

Very truly yours, 
·(Signed) 

Gregory B. McBride 
Deputy Chief Counsel 

PeterJ. Pantuso;President and Chief Executive Officer 
American Bus Association 
1100 New York Ave., NW, Suite 1050 
Washington, DC 20005-3934 

Letitia Thompson, Regional Administrator, TR0-2 
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Maisie Grace, Regional Counsel; TR0-2 

Jeffrey Shane, DOT OST 8~3 .. ' 

Emil H. Frankel, DOT, OST, P-1 
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us Deportment. . 
of TranspOrtation 

.·Federal Transit 
Administration 

Mr. Richard Crmnwell Ill 
General Manager, CEO 
SWlLine Transit Agency 
·32~505 Harry Oliver Trail 
Tho~d Palms, Oilifoniia 92276.. 

Re: Docket liUill~r 2002-07 · 

:bear ~- :Cromwell: 

Administrator · · 

JUL 7 m--

400Sevenlh St., S.W. 
·'Washington, o.c: 20590 . . 

In a decision by Regional Administrator Leslie Roge~. ~ted January 3, 2003, the 
Federal TransitAdmirii_striltion (FT A} found that .SunLine Transit .i\gency:(3unLine) was 
providing charter sen,rice ln;violation o~FTA's charter' seryice regulation.~9 CFRPart: -• 
60lt, and ordered SunLine t9 cease aqd desist providing such serVice. SunLirie appealed 
the decision to meon.Jariuary2(), 2003~ · · 

I am not tiling any action on the appeal siilce SunLin{preserit~d 'n9 new matters of fact 
. otpoints.oflaw that }Vere'llot availab'e or not)mo~ dUringthe investigation offu.e 
complaint, as reqliit:ed by sectio~ 604.19 o(the reguiation; accordmgly, the Regional 
AdJi1inisuator's decision is adininistratively final~ · · 

cc: Mr. Bill Miller · 
Desert Resorts ·. 
P.O. Box2084 

Sincerely,_· 

Rancho M~ge, California 92270 .· 

·Lisa Garvin Copeland, Esq. · ~. 
;74-040H1ghw~ylll, Suite'225 
PalmDese~C~liforoia 92260 · 

Leslie Rogers, Regional Administrator 
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BEFORE THE FEDERAL TRANSIT ADMINISTRATION 

California Bus Association, 
On behalf of Amador Bus Lines, 

Complainant 

v.· 

. Sacramento Regional TranSit District, 

· Respondent. 

INTROOUCTlON 

DECISION 

Chaner Complaint #2003-01 
49 U.S.C. Sections 5303, 5304, 
5306,5307, and 5323 

On March 6, 2003, the California ~us Association (CBA) filed this complaint with the 
Federal Transit Administration (FT A) alleging that the Sacramento Regional Transit 
District (R.T) has violated the conditipns p~ced on the receipt ofFederal assistance by the 
Federal transitlaws(49 U.S.C. Chapter 53) by instituting the Downtown Circulator 
service, which among other things, replaced a service operated by a private operatpr, 
AIDador Bus Lines, under .contract to the State of California Department of General 
Services (DGS). After reviewing the allegations an<,\ the filings ofthe parties, FTA 
concludes as follows: · 

• that RT,s Downtown Circ\llator is not impermissible charter service under FfA'·s 
charter sexvice regulation at 49 CFR Part 604; that RT's Downtown Circulator i., 
"mass tranSportation" within the meaning oftheFederal transit laws; and, 
accordingly, that the requirements of 49 U.S.C. 5323(d)(Q regarding a public 
authority's provision of charter service in competition with a privare·operator of 
charter bus service do not apply toRT's service; and 

• that since Amador's shuule senrice contract with DGS was for charter service, not . 
mass tranSportation seJ.Vice, the .requirements of 49 U.S.C. 5323(a)(l) regardin~. a 
public authority's provision of mass· transportation service in competition with .l 
private operator of mass transponation service do not apply; that with regard to 
participation by the private sector, RT has met the minimum starutory 
requirements for public notice and comnient in section 5307; and that while it 
appears that RT could have done more to explore the use of private sector 
providers in this situation, RT has met me minimum requirements of section 
5306. 
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CBA's complaint 
. . I . 

Under its contract with J)GS, Amador.provided shuttle service for the exclusive benefit . 
of state employees parking in suite lots. Sometime in 2002; the State contaeted RTto · 
determine whether RT could add new routes to its downtown service area that would 
meet the needs of its employees who travel betWeen Staie parkffig lots and State office 

I bui'ldings. As a result of these discussions, RT developed the Downtown Circulator 
service (also referred fu as the Capital Shuttle). whi~h now consists of three fixed routes 

· numbered 141,142, and 143 wiThin the Central City of Sacramento. As a pan of this 
plan, RT also changed the frequency of its previo\lslyexisting Route 140.· · · 
. . J . . • • ' • . 

. . 

2 

This expansion ofRT's s~ice is provided by Fr A .. fun<ted CNG-powered b~es. DGS ... 
ami RT einered into an agr~ment whereby DOS oompensates RT for the additional cost.-; 
of increasing downtown service in consideration ofRT's acceptance of the State ··. ··· 
employee ID card a;; proof of fare payment along ~ese new routes. Passengers who do 
not possess a. State ID card pay the applicable fare~ DGS purchases Central, City Passes 1 

for its employees at a discoUilted rate. I • 

On January 28, 2003, DOS notified Amador that its contract would not be renewed when 
it expired on April 7, 2003. In its March complaint, CBA requested that Fr}\uivesti'gat~. 
alleging that Rt violated private sector participation requirements underA9 U.S.C. 5303 · 
(t)(4), 5304(d),5306(a) and 5307(c)(2) and (6) byfail41gto infonn orinvolvetheprivate 
sec\odn its plan to use Fede~ assistance to purchase expansion buses for the purpose of 
displacing the privare operator. · · 

~BA also cites 49 U.S.C. S323(a)(l)(A) and (B) in arguing thai RT'sfederally assisted 
expansion puses are being used, unlawfully, to prevent an existing :private transponation 
operator from fairly competing to provide this service. . . . . . . 

CBA alSo asserts RT' s Downtown Circulator serVice v;iolat~ FT A~ s ,charter r~~latioru., 
arguing that the Downtown CirculatOr is not mass transponation ser\rice as de~ed by 49 
U.S.C~ S302(a)(7)and 49 CFR Part 604. ·. CBA.cites theagreement.with D.QS for RT to. 
provide .shuttle service for DGS employees and the RT planning docwnents describing 
DGS' approaching RT to operate the service nee<led to replace the shuttle service 
perfonned by Aniador. · · · · · 

RT's response · 
. I . . . . . . 

On March 20, 2003, RT responded to the. complaint. RT related the history of its . 
development of the Downtown Circulator service, including its public bearing in June 
1999 for the program of projects that ineluded expansion of its CNG fleet. At that tim•~. 
RT did not have a specific plan for deploying these new buses, other than to meet 
growing demand for service in the region. In addition. RT anticipated that it might net:d ·. 
more buses to accommodate the service changes that would be required with the opening 
of the South Sacramento and the Amtrak-Folsom Light Rail Corridor Light Rail , 
Extension projects. Last year, RT developed the service plan to determine where to 
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deploy these new buses, which are only now being delivered toRT. RT argued it met the 
private enterprise consultation obltgations regarding procurement of.these buses 'Yith.its · 

· publishednotices. · 

RT argued that it complies With the FfA public participation requirement by publishing a 
notice annually that solicits priva.Je en~rprise panicipationin Rrs development of its 

, program of projects to be funded under FTAgrantst RT also publishes, a notice of its 
program ofprojectsinviting comments before the program is adopted, combining this 

M nou. · ce. with its budg~t p~blicbearing n.o~ce. It provid~ a copy of the noti. ces. for the_l~. · · .. 
71" three years., The noti.ce 1n June of 1999 tncluded .expans1on ofRT's ·bus ·fleet .. In addition, 

RT publish~ a pl!blic hearing notice in August 2002 for the new Downtown Circulator 
service. RT states that its 1n1blic notice pro<ress w~ reviewed as: Part ofF'i'A's 1997 and 
2000 trieilriial reviews and that no.deficiencies in the public participation prodess were · 
noted. · · 

RT states that althouih the new routes are designt!d ro serve Suite employees) the · 
Down. town CirculatQr s.ervice is part ofRT's fixed route system of mass tphsport. ation · 
arid is not charter service ~defined by the three factors cited by FTA: (1} open to the 
public and not closed door; (2) design~ to benefit the pu])lic at large, and (3J'under ille 
contra 1 of the recipient . 

. In response to CB.I\'s argument that section 5323 applieS tO this situatio~ RT argues that 
FilA funds are not used to .operate the competing service and that the shuttle service . 
operated by Amador WliS charier service, DOt "mass tranSp~rtatiOD Service" protected by 
the statute. · · · 

Finally, RTargues that CBA's protest is untimely because Amador knew on,, January 27, 
2003 that RT would be operating this service because it testified at RT's public .hearing 
on tl:lat day but waited until March sm to submit its prote&t. · · 

RT believes the MPO for the Sacramento metropolitan urban area lu\s properly 
provided rhe notice required by sectiops 5303(t)(4), 53Q4(d), and 5307(c)(2) arid 
{6):. ' . 

CBA's response toRT 

On April?, 2003., CBAr~spoiided to·Rrs March20 and 25 respons~, stating·~ follows: 

1. RT is riot in compliance w~th private sector paiticipation requirements because it 
· did not disclose that its· L999 program of projects ~us expansion plan would· • 
include the Downtown Circulator service. Further~ CBA states that RTs Auguit 

. 26, 2002 public hearings did not include the private sector in consultation 
regarding this new service. · .. . 

2. RT is not excused from FfAprivate sector participation requirements because it 
does not receive fT A operating assistance. 
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3. Amador has standing to be protected under section 5323 because of its likeliho~ 
to be financially injured. · ' 

4. RT's Downtown Circulator is not mllSs tranSportation. but charter under contract 
to DOS.· RT's 1992 Sacramento Downtown Shuttle Feasibility Study Draft Final 
Repon does not SUpport the new service in question. CBA maintains there is no 
demonstrable d~and for the Downtown Shttttte other ~an to ser\re Stat~ 
employees. Funher, all ofR:f's public notices in 2002 identify this service as 
"New Downtown State Shuttles." CBA argues that while the service agreement 
with DGS was converted into a purchase of Central City passes, the subsidy fi'om 
DGS ~emains substantially the same. ._ · · · · 

5. CBA's coUlplaint is not untimely.because while RT approved the Downtown 
Shuttle Service on September 30, 2002, it was not until a February 14~ 2003 
meeting with DGS that CBA was told that DGS,was not interested in pursuihg 
discussions with CBA. · 

RT's second response 

I 

On June 3, 2003~ RT provided additional infomiation regarding its co~pliance with 49 
U.S.C. sections 5306 and 5307 regarding private enterprise panicipation. RT responded 
that the requirement in sectipn 5306(a) applies to plans and programs developed by the 
metropolitan planning organization, in this case the Sacramento Area Council' of 
Governments. RT stares it complied with section 5307(c) requirements for participation 
of interest~ parties, including priva~e tnms_portation Providers. 

DISCUSSION 

1. Charter Service. 

The threshold issue is whether the service provided by R.T is impermissible charter 
service or permissible.mass transportation. The definition of chaner service found in 
FfA's regula,tions at 49 CFR 604:S(e) is as follows: 

{T]ransportation using buses or vans. or facilities. funded under the Acts .of 
a group ofpersons.who pursuant to a common purpose, uhder a single. 
contract, at a fixed charge for the vehicle or service, have acquired the 
exclusive use of the vehicle or service to travcl together under an itinerary 
either specified in advance or modified after having left the place of 
origin. 

Charter service is usu3lly a O'Jle-time provision ofservice over which the 
passenger, not the service provider, ~ercises control. 52 Fed. Reg. 11916, i 1919 
(April 13, 1987). In contrast, the Federal transit laws define "mass 
nansportation" as transportation that provides regular and continuing general or 
special trartsponation to the public. 49 U.S.C. § 5302(a)(7). In the preamble to 
its chaner service regulation, FT A has articulated other featUres that flow 
logically from this definition: 
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First; mass tranSportation is under the control of the recipient. Generally, 
the recipient is responsible for setting the route, rate, and schedule, and 
d,eciding'what equipment is used. Second, the service is designed to 
benefit thepublic at large.and not some special organization such as a 
private club. Third, mass tranSportation is open to the J?liblic and is not 

. closed door. Thus, anyone who wishes to ride on the service must be 
permitted' to do so. · · · 

I 

5.2 Fed. Reg. 11920. 

Giyen the many varying scenarios existing inthe tranSportation industry~ FT A has 
detennined that a ·balancing test must be used to detennjne the nature of the 
service involved in any complaint filed ~th FfA. ·As· the preamble to the charter 
regulation points out, there is no fixed definitiOI1 of charter service, and the 
characteristics cited by FTA are illustrative, not.exhauslive. 52 Fed. Reg. 11919-
11920. 

Under the conrrol of the reci'ptenr 

The charter ser\rice crite;ria include bus tnmsponation under a single contr~tat a 
fixed rate for the vehicle or service. FT A has previously determined that control 
of fares and schedules is the critical element in the balancing tesfFTA uses to · . , ~) 
distinguish charter service from mass transponation~ Seymour, at 10. . .· Se;,<y'/'>"'- ( .-·v' 

Compensation on the basis of hours of s~ice is evidence of charter operations, · U • , ) , '.:c 

whereas individual_ fares paid by each rider indicates the service is mass e;~_}: C ,- : ' ~, · 
transportation. Seymour, at 9., 10. \:/' .· 

The RT and DGS arrangemen~. the Central City Pass Agreement, provides that 
RT retains control of routes ~d service. Such pass agreements are not features of 
charter service, instead constitutfug "group demand" service as contemplated by 
Q&A Number 27( e), "Chana Questions ;md Answers~" 52 Fed. Reg. 42248, : 
42252 (Novem.ber3, 1987), which provides that group demand sei-vice is not 
charter service where groups such as employees of a common workplace CQntract 
with a transit authority for service and each individ~ pays his or her own fare, So 
long as the authority controls routes and service and the·seiviceis open door. 

Designed to benefit ch~ public ac large 

Service is designed to benefit the public at large when it serves the needs of the 
general public; instead of those of .. some special organization such as a private 
club." 52 Fed. Reg. 11920 {Aprill3, 1987): Annett Bus Line$ v. City of 
Tallahassee. FL-TALTR.AN/90-02-01 (April28, 1992). In this regard, CBA has 
provided evidence that the Downtown C1rculator service was structured to meet 
the needs of State employees to travel from parking lots to State office buildingS, 
that it is a service designed to substitute for the State• s conl:ract service with 
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Amador, and that the service since institU;ted carries almost exclusively State . 
employees. TPe record suppons .these assertions; however, none of these facts', 

·taken into consideration with the. information provided by R.T~ results in the· 
conclusion that the Downtown Circulator service is anything but mass 
transportation. 

'While the service is designed to accommodate the State employees primarily, it is 
not restricted to their exclusive use, but is av&ilable to anyone wishing to board; 
moreo'ler, this service has been integrated into RT~s larger route structure, 
providing gre~ter transponarlon connectivity in the downtown area for nders of 
the fixetlroute system. FTA finds that the s~ce benefits the public·at large~ 

(CBA argues that Rr>s 1992 study supports a diffel-ent downtown service 
configuration. nofthe Downtown qrculator service. Fl'A is not willing tCl 
substitute its judgni~t for the grantee's in this regard.) 

Open to rhe public ahd no(closed door, 

In determining whether service is truly ~~open door," FTAlooks both at the level 
of ridership by the general public, as opposed to a particular group, and at the 
intent of the recipient in ,offering the service. The intent .to make service open 
do9r can be discerned in the attempts to make the service known and. available to 
the public .. FTA thus takes into account the effortS a recipient has made to market 
the service. Generally, this effort is best evidenced by publication of the se,vice 
in the recipient's preprinted schedules. Washington Motor Coach Association v. 
Municipaliry of Metropolitan Seart/e, WA-09/87-01 '(March 21, 1988). FfA has 
also interpreted .. open door .. to mean a subsumtiaJ public ridership and/or an 
attempt by the transit authority to widely niatked the service; Blue Grass Tours 
and. Charter v. ·Lexington Transit Authority, URO-m-1987. The poSting ofbus 
stop signS and connections to other transportation routes are·also COJil&idered 
.illdica,tors of'•opportunity for public ridership." Seymour Charter Bus Lines v. 
Kno?:Wlle·TransirAuzhoriry, TN-09/88-01 (November 29, 1989). 

RT advises 'that the Downtown Circulator routes and schedules are set out in the 
pocket timetabl~ that will be supplied in each buS assigned to these routes. In 
addition, the new routes are includedin the June 2003 edition of SRT's Bus and 
Lightrail Timetable Book. FTA finds that SRT has demonstrated that the service 
is, in fact, open door. 

Accordingly, FTA concludes that RT's Downtown Circu!;ator is pennissible mass 
transportation, not charter service; within the meaning of the Federal transit laws. 
We now tum. to the question ofRT's compliance with the privar~ sector 
participation requirements ip. the Federal transit laws. 
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. The relevant prov~ons of.49 u.s.c. 5306. focm,o mainly on including the private sector in 
participating in local transit programs~ ensuring that adequate GOinpensation is provide<i' a 
private provider when its transit 'facilities and equipment are acquired by a state or local 
govenulient authority. arid protecting private providers of transit from competition with 
federally asSisteli transit providers. · · · 

. Federal transit law (49 U~S~C~ 5303(t)(4))and thejointFTNFederal Highway . 
. Adm.iilistration planningre&llations directspecial attention to the concerns ofprivate 
transit provjders in planning and project development. specifically requiring that pnvate 
~~it providers, as well_as other interested parties. be afforded an adequate ~ppornmity · 
to be involved in the early stages of the plan development and update process (23 CFR 
~03~ . . . 

. I 

FTA do.·~ no. t imp. o. se prescriptive requirementS for determining whether a gran.·· t applic3l.tt) 
haS made adequate effons to in.tegtl;l.te private· ent~rise in its transit program, as . 
explained in th«r FTA Notice ''Private Enterprise Panicipation."' dated April1,6. 1994 (59 · ,,.~'-
Fed. B.eg. 21890 et seq. (1994)); lf!A Circular9030.1C. Page V~39; Para. 24.'Private ~~,.c/~>1 't 
En~rise Concerns (OCtober 1. 1998). · · · / IJlJ;.l 

. . . . . I . . . . . . . . . 

FT A grantees must coniply )Vith.rigorol!S plai:ming and private enterJ>rise requirements 
(49 U.S.C. 5303-5307) and the joint FTNFHW AplahniilgregUlations. To· determine the 
adequacy of a grant applicant2S effoits to incotpOratepnvate enterprise in its trimS~t 
program. FTAmonirors compliance with statutory fU1d regulatory private enterprise 
requirements as part ofthe triennial reviews. lndeed,FTA's. Fiscal Yeat 200Q.Triennial 
Review Report noted a ddiciehcy in RT's public participation process. On July 3, 2901, 

f.?'R.T took correetive action throug\1 adoption of aSta,ndard Operating Proced'QI'e · . 
· establishing a new coordination aru:l consultation process in developing the annual federal 

program ofprojects. ·Upon review~ ~A accepted rhis.procedure and closed the findinr .. 

Competition with the private sector 
. . . . 

Federal law recognizeS the special concerns of private ~portation providers and 
affords them cenain safeguards frOm competition with p~blic agertcic::s. Specifically, 
FfA is prohibited from providing Federal assistance to· a governmental body that ·· 
provides service in competition with, or SUpplementary to, mass transportation service 
·provided by a private transportation company~ unless. Ff A- finds that the local 
tranSponation program developed in ·the planning l'rocess provides for participation of 
pri\rate mass transpot:Wion companies to the maximum extent feasible ( 49 U .S.C. 
S323(a)(l)(B)). . . 

RT argues that this restriction in section5323(a)(l) applies only ifFTA funds are 
used to operate the competing service and the company is providing '<mass 
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iransportation" service and that neither condition is met here.· RT states the 
Downtown Circulator service does not fall 'under this restriction. CBA has 
provided information to support its assertion that the Downtown Shuttle service 
was instituted to meet, at least in part, theneeds of the State. as employer, to 
replace the service.it had previously contracted for with Amador. 

' . . • I 

The tenn ·"mass transportation" -is d«fined in section 5302(a)(7) as "transportation by a 
conveyance that provides regular and continuing general or special transportation to the 
public, but d~es nor include school bus. charzer or sightSeeing tranSportation. •• . EmP,hasis 
added. The term .. charter" is defined: in the FfA regulations at 49 CFR 604.5(e) as 
follows: · · · · · · · 

.. Charter Service" means transponation using blJSes or vans, or facilities 
funded under tlieiAct of a group ofpersons who pursuant to a eommon ' 
purpose, under. a single contract: at a fixed charge (in accordance with the 
carrier's tariff) for the vehicle or service, have acquired the exclusive use 
of the vehicle or service to travehogether Jlilder an itinerary either 
specified in advance o! rilodified after haying left the place o~ origin .... n 

I 

Under this standard, it is clqar that the service Amador provided under coQ.tract. 
with DOS wa5 charter srzvice; moreover, Amador is not a .. private" mass · 
transponation company'' to which the protections of section 5323 apply. 

CONCLUSION 

While it appears that RT could have done mote to ex.plore the use of private 
sector providers in this situation, RT lias met the minimum requirements under 
the law. The serviceRT is providing, known as the Downtown Circulator, is not 
charter service, but permissible mass transportation service. · 

In accordance with 49 CFR 604.!9, the losing PartY may appeal this decision 
within ten dayS of receipt of the decision .. The appeal should be· sent to Jennifet 
Dom, Administrator, FTA. 400 Seventh Street, S.W., Room 9328, Washingto~ 
D.C. 20'59 . .. . 

i 

Date 
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U.S. Deportment 
of Transportation 

Federal. Transit 
Administration 

Mr. Richard. Cromwell~· III · 
General Manager & CEO 
Sunline Transit Agency · 
32-505 Harry 6Iivei Trail 
Thousand Palms, CA92276 

Re: Docket No. 2002~ 11 

Dea:rMr. Cromwell: 

Administrator 

AUG 5 2003 

400.Seventh St.. s.w. 
Wa~hington. D.C. 20590 

In a decision by Regional Administrator Lt1slie Rogers, dated April 28, 2003, the Federftl 
Transit Administration (PTA) found that SunLine Transit Agency{Sunline) had · 
provided charter service in violation ofFT A's charter service regulation, 49 ·CFR 
Part 604. Sunline appealed ,the decision to me on May 14, 2003. . . .. 

I am not taking any action on the appeal since Sunline presented no newmatters of fact 
or paints of law that were not available or not known d~ing the investig(ltion of the 
complaint. This decision is administratively fmal. . 

Sincerely, 

cc: Mr. Bill Miller· 

Leslie Rogers, Regiona,l Administ~ator 
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~J 
U.S. Oeportrnent 
of Transportation 

· Federal Transit 
Administration 

·. . . -. . . . 

Mr. Ronald R. Bast 
President 
Motorcoach Division 
· Riteway ]3us S~rvice, In:c. 
W201 Nl3900 Fond du' Lac Avenue 
Richfield, w1 s3q16 · · · · 

Administrator 

AUG 19 im3 

.· . __ ·: .. . .. t .. . 1. 

Re: Charter Services by Publicly Funded Transit Organizations 

·Dear Mr. Bast: 

400 Seventh St .. S.W. 
Washington, D.C. 20590 

Senator Herb KQbl forwarded your letter regarding charter services to me for response. I · 
understand that, as the owner ofRi.tewayBus Service, Inc., you wish to reinforce the 
position: taken by the American Bus Association regarding the issue of the illegal provision 
of charter services by publicly funded .transit organizations. You ask that the Federal 
Transit Adminis~tion (FT A) work to stren:~en i

1
ts .charter service regrilation to ensure 

that publicly funded transit operators not take business away from privately operated 
mototcoach companies. . . . . . . . 

Since my appointment as FTA Aehninistrator, I have work(id with both the Amerjcan Bus 
Association and the Ameiican Public Transportation Association to educate both the 
private and public s~ctor aboutFTA;s charter service regulation. Enclosed is a copy of a . 
letter I sent to the industry on December ~7. 2001, expressing the need for the public and 
private sectors to work together in the provision of transportation services .. Also enclosed· 
is a c'opy of the "Charter Service Information" brochure FTA. created, published, and· ·:. 
·widely distributed that highlights the key provisions of the regulation. Both documents are 
. also available on our website. In addition, FTA continues to investigate allegations: make . 
decisioris, and enforce its regulation regarding prohibited chru;ter service. . 

. . 

In response to your specific concerns, the D~partment of Transportation's proposal for the 
Safe; Accountable, Flexible, and Efficient SurfaceTtansportation Equity Act of 2003 
(SAFETEA) provides for the involvement of the private sector in the transportation 
planning process and proposes amendinen~s to the charter service remedy provision of the. 
statute .. · 
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Public and private mass transportation providers have much to offer each other and the 
riding public. Thank you-for your interest in this matter. 

Enclosures 

cc: Senator Herb Kohl 
WashingtonOffice · 
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us. Department 
of Transportation 

Federal Transit 
Administration 

Mr. Michael R. Waters 
President· 
California Bus Association· 
11020 CommerciaLParkway 
Castroville, CA 95012 . 

Re: Charter Service: Docket Number 2003-01 . . 

Dear Mr. Waters:· 

Administrator 

SEP 16 2003 

400 Seventh St.. S,WJ. 
Washington, D.C. 20590 

In a charter service decisionby Regional AdministratorLes1ie Rogers, dated August5, 200.3, 
the Federal Transit Administration (Ff A) found that Sacramento Regional Transit District. · 
was providing mass, transportation, not charter service, and, therefore, was not in violation of 
FTA' s charter service regulation, 49 CFR Part 604. California Bus Association (CBA)· 
appealed the decision to me on August 15, 2003. · 

The chartet service regulation providys thatthe ,Admi~istrator will only take action on an . 
appeal-if the appellant presents evidence that there are new matters of fact or points of law 
that were not availabie or riot known during the investigation of the complaint, 49 CFR 
Section 604.19. · 

In accordance with the charter service regti.lation, I am not taking any action on the app~al · 
since CBA presented no new matters of fact or points oflaw that were not available or not 
·known during the investigation of the cOJ;npla~nt; as required by Section 604.19 of the 
regulation; accordingly, t~e Regional Administrator's decision is administratively finaL 

cc: Beverly A Scott, Genenil Mamiger, CEO,' Saeramento Regional Transit District 
Mark W. Gilbert, Chief Legal Counsel, Sacramento Regional Transit District 
William R. Allen, President, Amador Stage Lines · 
Leslie Rogers; Regional Administrator, TRO-IX 
The Honorable Doug Ose, U. S. House of Representatives 
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U.S. Department 

of Transportation 
Federal Transit 
Administration 

REGIONV 
Illinois; Indiana, 
Michigan, Minnesota, 
Ohio, Wisconsin 

VIA FACSIMILE FOLLOWED BY HARD COPY 

Claryce Gibbons-Al·len 
Director 
Detroit Depart1i.1ent of Transportation 
1301 East Warren 
Detroit, MI 48207 

RE: Request for Charter Waiver, Docket No. 2003-18 

Dear Ms. Gibbons-Allen: 

200 West Ada111s Street 
Suite 320 
Chicago, IL · 60606-52~3 
312-353,2789 
312-886-0351 (fax) 

September 25, 2003. 

This letter serves as the Federal TraiisitAdministration's (FTA) replyto the D.etroit Department of 
Transportation's (DDOT) request for a waiver ofthecharter.regu}ations dated September 10,2003. 

. I 

DDOT is requesting a Waiver of the chatter regulations pursuant to 49 C.F.R. Sectiop 604;9(b)(4) 
· for the United States --Arab Economic Forum as a special event However, ppOT has failed to 

provide justification evidenc;ing a need for the waiver, and it h'as also failed to provide evidence 
that it has determined that there are no·willing and able charter providers able to pr()vide the 
requested service. · · 

Therefore, FTA is denying DDOTs request for a waiver of the qharter regulat\ons pursuant to 
Section 604.9(b)( 4). · 

Should you have any questions ~egarding this matter, please feel free to Gontact Nancy-Ellen 
Zusman of my staff. Ms. Zusman can be reached at (312) 353..:2789.. . 

Sincerely,· 

p-fl. 
Joel P. Ettinger 
Regional Administrator 
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U.S. Department 

of .Transportation 

Federal Transit 
Administration 

VIA CERTIFIED MAIL 

Mr. Dennis Streif, Vice President 
Vandalia Bus Lines; Jpc. 
P.O. Box400 
312 West Morris Street ' 
Caseyville,. IL · 62232 

REGION\/ 
Illinois, Indiana, 
Michigan, Minnesota, 
Ohio, Wisconsin 

200 West Adams Street 
Suite 320 
Chicago, IL 60606-5253 
312-353-2789 
312-886-0351 (fax) 

OCT 2 3 200J 

RE: FTA Charter Service Complaint# 2003-14· 

Dear Mr. Streif: 

' ' 

The Federal Transit Administration (FTA) has received documentationfrom South Central Illinois 
Mass Transit District (SCIMTD) relating to your charter complaint. SCIMTD has rescinded their 
proposal for athletic tran~portation services for Kaskaskia College. Therefore, this case is 
considered closed and no further action will be taken. 

As always, if you have any questions regarding the Federal Transit Administration procedures, 
please contact Nancy-Ellen Zusman, Regional Counsel, at (312)353-2789. 

Sincerely, 

Jfl 
Joel P. Ettinger 
Regional Administra r 

Enclosure 

cc: 
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U.S. Department ... 
of Transportation 
Federal Transit 
Administration 

Robert l'. PoStal, Jr: 
MotorcoachMarketing International, Inc. 
6920 N.E.4th Lane · · 
Ocalci, Florida 34470 · 

Re: Cha..-ter Complam.t' · 

Dear Mr. Dostal: 

REGION VI 
Arkansas, Louisiana, 
New Mexico, Oklahoma; 
Texas · 

October 28, 2003 

819 Taylor St Suite 8A36 
Fort Worth, 1X 76102 
· 817-978-QSSO 
817-976-0575 (faX) 

The Federal Transit Administration{FT A)~ completed its review and investigation of the 
com:plaints filed by Motorcoach Mark~g Jntemation81, Inc.~ Fame To\lrS,lnc.·, and the United 
Motorcoach Associatiop that principally allege vertam bus service provided by the Metropolitan 
Transit Authority of Harris County,- Texas, (Houston METRO) in connection with the annual' 
Htiuston Livestock Show and Rodeo (Rodeo) was in violation of :the FTA's Charter Service 
regulation, 49 CPR Pan 604. As each of$e three complaints sets forth essentially the same 

·allegations, this letter Will sezve as the PTA's response to all three of the complaints. ' 

Specifically, it has first of all been alleged that the City ofllouston, Texas_, for manyyears:has 
awarded a contract to Houston -METRO for the proviSion of bus service in connection With the 
Rodeo and, consequently, Holiston METRO is providingchaiter service for the Rodeo,with 
federally funded equipment in violation of the FfA's Charter Service regulation. Secondly~ 1t is · 
alleged that Houston METRO, as a public transportation provider, :has ·engaged in a monopoly'with 
its speci81 event bus seiVice in Houston, Texas~ Finally; it is alleged that Houston 'METRO : . 
improperly uSes federally funded buses to e~clude many private operators from competing for 
charter service for the Rodeo and other special events .. 

With respect to the first allegation in the complaint concerning impenirlssible Charter service being 
provided by Houston METRO in connection with the Rodeo, the FTAhas conducted a thorough · 
review of the role and manner in which Houston METRO has provided the bus service in this case. 
As a. pa..'1: of the analysis to det~e whether the Rodeo service provided by Houston ME1RO 41 
this case is impermissible charter service or permissible mass transportation. it will be helpful to · 

. review the.definitions of the terms "charter service'?-and "mass transportation" as they are defined 
in the FTA's Charter Service regulation and in the Federal Transit Act, respectively.· 
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The term •'charter service'' is defined in 49 CFR Section 604.5(e) as follows: 

·' . . "' . 
[T]ransportation using buses or vans, or facilities funded under the 
Acts of;a group of persons .w.ho p~uant to a comnion purpose,. · 
under a single contract, at a fixed charge for the vehicle or service> 
have ~quired the exclusive use ofth.e ~ebicle or service to travel . 
together under an itinerary either specified in advance or modified 
after having left the place oforigin. · 

The term ''mass transportation"is defined in.the Fede~ Transit Act at 49 U.S.C. Section 5302 (a) 
(7) as follows: · · · 

Mass transponation w.eans transportation by a conveyance that. 
provides regular and continuing general or' special transportation 
to the public, but does not include school bus, charter, or 
sightseeing transportation. 

' . . 

Although peihaps not readily apparent from the above defiiri.tions, based on the ~g11age in the 
preamble to the FTA's Chartet Service regulation, 52 Fed. Reg.ll916 (April13, 1987), and many 
FTA administrative decisions that have since interpreted these definitions, there are three · 
.important charactenstics that.distfuguish "mass tranSportation'' from "chalter selvice". 

The first characteristic of mass transponation is that the service provider must exercise a 
significant drgree of control bver lhe transportation. By cpntrast, m operator that provides charter 
service typically does not possess any conti:ol in establishing, for example, the schedule ot trip 
destination. ·Therefore~ to determine the degree of control in this case, the FT A mus1.ascenain the 
extent of Houston METRO's role in establishing the schedul~, fares, and the routes of the service. 
A second. characteristic of mass transportation is that the service must be designed to benefit the 
public at large and not some special org3niza.ti,on or group of persons. Charter service, on the other 
hand, will in.volve a single contract for transportation betWeen the serVice provider and an . 
organization o:r a group of persons. Thus, the FT A will examine bow the service was suuctured in 
this case f:Uldwhether the s~ice in this caseW;lS intended to benefit an organizationrathet than 
the general public. Finally, the third characteristic of mass transportation is that the serVice must 
be open to the public and not be closed.;door service. As charter service is service exclusively for 
an organization or a group of persons, the FTA will review whether the public was notified of the 
availability of open-door service in this case or whether. the ,service provided to the Rodeo was 
'Closed-door service to the patrons of the event. Therefore, in vieW ofthe foregoing characteristics, 
the FT A conducted the following analysis of pertinent aspects of the service provided by Houston· 
METRO in this case to determine whether Houston METRO, engaged in impermissible chaner 
service or permissible mass transportation.. 

A 

Did Houston METRO exercise a sufficient degree of control over rhe schedules, fares, routes, and 
the equipment that would be used ro provide the service? 

The record reflects that Houston METRO entered into a one-year contract - as it had done in 
previous years-:- with Houston Livestock Show & Rodeo, Inc. (Corporation), a non-profit 
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corporation that sponsors the Rodeo, to coordinate arid provide transportation services for this 
annual event~ , This one-year contract between Houston METRO and the Corporation, how~er, is 
not a •'single contract" as that tenn iS used in·the defuiition of charter service because the · 
recipient's control of the transportation is not signitkantly diminished by the tenns of the contract. 
Rather than requiring Houston METRO to provige ~onation under a single contract to a 
specific group of persons at a :fixed charge using a cenain number and type of vehicles, the contract 
in this case essentially amounts to a cost-s~ng arrangement whereby the Corporation will 
participate in fifty percent (S?%) o_fthe fully allocated cost foy tr~ortation service provided by 
Houston METRO m connectton With the Rodeo. Indeed, as to the 1ssue of control,· Article 1 of the 
contract specifically provides in relevant part that the Corporation "shall exercise no control over 
METRO's employees, servants, agent$~ subcontractors or representatives, nor the method or means 
employed by METRO ip the perfonnance of such work or services". Article 2 ofthe contract, on 
. the other hand, provides that Houston METRO would provide transportation services on 4'routes 

. . . . . I 

specified by' the Corporation.· While th.ere is a partial conflict between Arti~le , 1 of the contract 
that allows Houston METRO to have. complete control ovetthe "method and means" of 
transportation and Art,icle 2 that allows the Corporation to $JlecifY "routes", it is the FTA;s view 
that the Article 2 provision does not per se appreciably detract from the overall degree of control 
exercised by Houston METRO in this case. In fact, the record .further suppons that Houston 
METRO, not the Corporation, determines wll.at level ofseivice will be required, what number of 
buses will be used, what type of buses will,be used; and what schedules will be operated. 
Moreover, with respect to the fares that are charged for the transportation, the record reflects that 
Houston METRO, not the Corporation, establishes the individual fares for the transPortation . 
provided during the RodC9 based upon an estiffiateafthe fully allocated costs and projected 
ridership. Clearly, therefore, based on the ~press terms .of the contract and the facts in this case, 
Houston METRO, not the Corporation, exercises s)lbstim.1ial control over the "method and means" 

. in providing transportation in connection with the Rodeo. · 

In addition. it is noted that the degree of conttol exercisE}(! by the recipient in this case is clearly 
distinguishable from that eXercised by a grant recipient in a recent case decided by the FT A on 
January 2, 2003, involving the Rochester-Genesee Regional Tta.llsportation Authoricy (RGRTA). 
Among the findings in the RGRTA case vyhereby it was determined that the grant recipient. 
provided impemrissible charter.service in connection with an annual golf tournament, the FT A 
specifically found that the even~ sponsor, rather than the recipient, exercised control over the bus 
schedules, the number of buses, and the type ofbuses that would be used for the service. That is 
clearly not the case in this instance because Houston METRO possesses control over virtUally all 
aspects of the service whereas, by contrast, in the Rochester-Genesee case tlh.e recipien:t in fact had 
very limited control of the service. Accordingly, based on the facts in this case, the record 
establishes that Houston METRO exercises not only a sufficient, but a substantial, degree of 
control over the schedule, fares, and the equipment that are used to provide service in connection 
with the Rodeo. 

.B. 

Did Houston METRO design the servic~ lO benefit the public at large or rhe Corporation? 

:Reviewing the record in this case,itisapparent that Houston METRO_ wi~ly ad~ertis~d to ~e 
public the availability of the tranSportation s~rvice th~t would _be prov1ded :n conJ~Ylctl.on v.:rh the 
Rodeo. Specifically, Houston METRO published notice of this transponat1on servtce m pnnted 
materials, such as in printed bus schedules and in daily newspapers in the Houston, :rexas, area, 
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and further made spot announcements of the availability of this service in the electronic media in 
the Houston, Tex.asJ area. In addition. Houston METRO posted notice of the availability ofthi!i 

. transportation on its internet website. ·There is no evidence in the record to show that Houston 
ME~O. sought to limit service in this case to the C.otPoration or only to patrons who would attend 
the Rodeo. To the contrary, the record would re.\).ect that Houston METRO designed and 
adverth~ed this transportation service to clearly benefit the public at large and not just the 

. Corporation: 

Did Houston METRO provide open-door or closed-door service? 

To detennine whether the service provided by Houston ~TR.O was in fact "open-p.oor'' service, 
the FTA often considers the intent of the recipient in offering the service. TI:!isintent·canbe .' 
evidenced in part bythe effons that the recipient has taken to market the serv1ce to the publlcL · 
Generally, this eft:ort Js best evidenced by publication of the servibe in the recipient's preprinted 
schedules. Washington Motor Codch Association•v. Municipality of Metropoliran Seattle, W A-. 
09/87-01 {March 21, 1988). In addition, efforts by the recipi~t to market the service to the public 
will also be taken into consideration. Blue Grass Tours and Charter v. Lexington Transit . . 
Aurhority, URO-ID-1987 . . AB discussed above, Hoilston METRO widely advertised the service to 
the public and noticF! of the service was .further· placed in printed notices and bu5 schedules. 
Moreover. in response to the FTA's direct inquiry, Houston METRO has represented thatthe · 
service offered fu connection with the Rodeo is open-door, and not closed-door, service to the 
public. As open-door service, anyone may pay the fare established by Houston METRO and be 
entitled to rise the service. Furthermore, the FTA' s review ofa public. advenisement :that includes 
info:rmation regarding the service for the Rodeo suppons Houston METRO's representation that 
se±Yice was not limited exclusively to patrons who attend the Rodeo but rather the record would 
reflect that the service was available to anyone who paid the fare.· . . 

Accordingly, based on the foregoing review and analysis of the facts in this case, it is the FTA's 
·finding that the transponation service proyided by Houston METRO in connection wi~ the Rodeo 
does not constitute.impermissible chaner service.· Rather,hased on the facts in this case. the FTA 
finds that the transportation service provided by Houston METRO in connection with the Rodeo is 
cousistent with the elements of••mass transportation'' as this tennis defined in the Federal Transit 
Act and as it has been interpreted by the FTA. Moreover,· the FT A finds that the service is ."regular 
and continuing" because Houston :METRO has provided service for this event- which has been 
held annually in Houston for over sixty years - on an a:nnual basis for a considerable number of 
years. In addition, it is the FTA's finding that the service is ••general service" because it is "open-
. door" service that was designed by Houston METRO to benefit the public at large. 

The second allegation in the complaints states that Holiston METRO uses FTA-funded buse~ to 
engage in. a monopoly with special event bus service in Houston, Texas. However, the record 
reflects that there are only thirteen (13) special events, includiilg the Rodeo. for which Houston 
METRO participates in or coordinates transportation service. On the other hand, it is -estimated by 
the G-reater Houston Convention & Visitors Bureau that there is an average of250 conventions per 
yea:r in the Houston area and this figure does not include smaller conferences and other .events. As 
Houston METRO coordinates and participates in service for only thirteen (13) special events, 
which represents only a very small percentage of the total number of conventions and other special 
events that are held annually in the Houston area, there is thus no evidence to support the allegation 
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that Houston METRO has established a monopoly over the provision of special event 
transportation service in Houston, Texas. 

The third allegation concerns Houston :METRO's .r~lcr in the thirteen (13) special events for which 
it does participate in 0~ coordinate service and wllether it improperly excludes private operators 
from these events. The facts reflect that Houston METRO - as the public transportation agency for 

. the greater Houston metropolitan area- issued and widely advertised an invitation for bids on 
September 21, 2001 •. to solicit private operators that would be interested in providing.special event 
transponation services for thirteen (13) ~ents, including the Rodeo, in the Houston area during 
calendar years 2002 and 2003. This invitation for bids, however, was not a federally funded 
solicitation and therefore it was not subject to the FTA's procurement requirements in Circular 
4220~1D (now Circular 4220.1E), ~'Third Party Contracting Requirements", although it appears 
that the procedures used by Houston METRO in the selection of prospective contractors were 
nonetheless substantiaily in accordance with the principles and requirements of Circular 4220~1D. 

Although not subject to the FTA's procurement requirements, Houston METRO has provided 
information to theFT A regarding the selection process~ Assuming tb.at the service provided by 
Houston METRO in connection with these other eventS is consistent with the manner in which 
service is provided for the Rodeo, the service will be deemed per,n:tissibte· mass tr31;1Sportation. As 
to the seleCtion process, Houston METRO advises that the invitation for bids invitM prospective 
contractors to provide a schedule of'available vehicles and revenue-:-hour prices for providing· 
transportation service for fu.e Rodeo and twelve other special events in calendar years 2002 a:qd 
2003. Based on the data provided by the interested private operators, Houston METRO selected 
qualified operators to participate~ providing service for the· ROdeo and other special·~ents based 
on need and the contractor's equipment availability and relative cost-effectiveness. In addition, 
with respect to service in connection with tb.e Rodeo, although Houston METRO provides much of 
the service, it is the FTA's understanding that private operatorS, in acc:ordance with or in addition 
to this selection process, in fact provide the largest number ofpuses for this event. Therefore, 
having reviewed the selection process utilized by Ho'uston METRO for the participation of private 
charter operators in providing service for the thirteen. (13) events, it is the FTA's view that the. 
selection process appeared to ·be based primarily on vali~ objective criteria and Houston METRO 
employed this process in a fair manner to obtain the participation by many, but not all, private 
operators who responded ~o the solicitation. 

Pursuant to 49 C.F.R. §604.19, the losing pany or parties may appeal this decision with ten days of 
receipt of this decisio~. The appeal should be sent to Jennifer Dom, ~ministrator, FTA, 400 
Seventh Street, S.W., Room 9328, Washington, D.C. 20590r · 

If you have any questions or comments regarding this decision or the appeal procedure. please feel 
free to call Eldridge Oncp, Regional Counsel, or me at (817)978-0550. · 
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cc:: United Motorcoach Association 
Fame Tours, Inc; 
Shirley DeLibero 

765 



U.S. Department 
of Transportation 
Federal Transit 
Administration 

November 4, 2003 

Mr; Stephen Spade . 
Des Moines Metropolitan Transit Authority 
1100 MT A Lane . 
Des Moines, lA 50309 

REGION 'VII 
·Iowa, Ka'nsas, 
Mis,souri, Nebraska 

Re: Charter Complaint 2003-20, .Des Moines MT A 

Dear Mr. Spade: 

901 Locust Street 
Suite 404 
Kansas City, MO 64106 
816-329-3920 
816-329-3921 (fax) 

On October 24, 2003, you and Sheri;Kyras of your staff participated in an informal conciliation 
process to resolve the abovereference corn,plaint filed by MajesticLimousine Services ("MLS"). 
The process followed that outlined in my letter to you of October 17, 2003, and was agreed to by 
the parties. As~ result of this process, the complainant, MLS, ·and MTA agreed to the FTA finding 
of facts attached hereto as Exhibit 1. Based on these facts, FTAfinds that MTA violated the 
charter rule ( 49 CFR Part 604) by: maintaining a web .site and telephone listing for charter service, 
engaging in an exclusive subcontracting with one private operator or broker, and by providing 
charter service using equipment and facilities provided under the Mass Transit Laws when there 
were private charter operators willing anq able to provide the charter service . 

. MLS agrees that its complaint will be satisfied by the implementation of the following actions, and . 
FTA hereby requires MTA to:. 

. I . . 

1. Cease and desist frorri engaging in the provision of charter services either by: · 
a. discontinuing all charter service; or, . 
b. subcontracting on an equal basis with all private charter operators willing and able 

to provide charters in the service area. · 

2. Because implementation of the charter rule has been problematic for Des Moines MTA ,(as 
evidenced by the last Triennial Review findings and FTA's letter to Des Moines MTA of 
March 20, 2003 ), FT A will closely monitor both the MTA web site and any charter service 
provided under an exception to the general rule for a period ofnot less than six (6) months 
and not more than 1 year. 
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3. Monitoring will include:· 
a. Periodically checking the web site to assure deletion of all references to ch~rter 

' . . 
service. 

b. Requiring proof of actu~l, direct notice to willirig and able transit p~ovieiers of any 
intent to provide serviCe tmc\er any exception requiring notice. · 

c. Possible filen~view to see that any charters provided under an exception do in fact 
meet the requirements of said exception .. 

4. Des Moines MT A shall cease maintaining a listing in the Yellow Pages for Charter/Trolley. 
Since .the current listing may continue to generate inq~iries, MTA will respond to any and . 
all telephone inq~iries until the listing expires and is not renewed by indicating that it nq 
longer provides general charter service. MTA shall also supply to all callers a list of all 
willing and able providers in alphabetical order. This list will be updated after Des Moines 
MT A publishes a new chart~r notice and provides. direct notice to all willing and able 
providers. ·· 

5. Des Moines MT A shall publish a new charter notice that fully complies ;vhh 49 CFR Part_ 
604. . 

6. Des Moines MT A will review the charter rule with its staff, especially staff responding to 
the Charter/Trolley phonelisting, and document the same. 

7. Des Moines MTA will p'rovide FTA Region VII· with a report covering the period 
November 15, 2003 through June 15, 2004, which include~ a list of the private operators to 
whom it has leased charter vehicles or for whom it has provided charter services, the 
number of vehicles by category involved, the dates of service; the amounts charged by Des 
Moines MT A to each private operator. MTA shall submit this report to FT A by July l, 
2004. 

If, upon review of any data or report requested and/or any rev~ew performeq, the FTA concludes 
·that Des Moines MT A has failed to comply with the terms of this order and the agreement 
resulting from the informal conciliation process, MTA's access to FTAfui)ding may be 
suspended. 

If you have any questions regm:ding this letter, please contact Regional. Counsel, Paula L. Schwach, 
.at 816-329-3935 or at Paula.Schwach@fta.dot.gov. 

· Sincerely, 

Mo.khtee Ahmad. 
Regional Administrator 
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. . Charter Con;~ plaint 2003-20 . 
Majestic Limousine.Se~ice vs. Des Moines MTA 

FTA Finding ofF~cts: 

1. Web page as in existence on the date of the .complaint is evidence of violation of 
charter rule. Web page is an ongoing advertisement thatMTAprov.idescharter 
, 'service using federally-assisted equipment. ·· · · 

. 2. 'A listing in the current S.W. Bell Telephone YellowPagesforMTAincludes a: 
Charter/Trolley .telephone number. This listing. is evidence of violation ofthe · 
charter rulb and· is an ongoing advertisement that MT A provides· charter service. 

J. No charter provider in market .. area received direct notice that :MTAintended to 
provide charter service. 

• 0 • • 

4. · There are more thari 1 willing and able, charter providers serving the Qes Moines, 
· IA metropolitan area and' Majestic Limousine services the complainant is a.ne 
such provider. Carnival Coaches is another. 

. . . I 

5. Majestic Limousine Service.and Carnival CoacheS;· with which Majestic 
Limousine Service SOIT,Ietimes works, were denied a charier opportunity to supply 
4 to 4 7 passenger 'coaches to .First Tours on October 20, ~003, and these services 
were instead performed by MTA usingfederally..,assisted equipment. . . 

6. MT A has in the past provided service for Magical History Tours,. ;_;,hich owns at 
least orie 15 passenger van. l\1T A did not first establish whether Magical History 
Tours had the category of vehicles requested by' the party seeking charter ser\rice~, 
af1d it did nofestablish whether Magical History Tours' vehicle was in service and 
therefore unavailable or inadequate to meet the servic;e capacityteqJ.Iested. N.tTA 
was therefore unable to determine ifthe service met all requirements of exception 
number 2 {found at 49 CFR 604.9(b)(2)). · 

7. MTA has a .quasi-exclusive reiationship.with Magical History Tours. This raises 
serious concerns that MTA has circumvented.the chartet regulation by 
systematically channeling all charter qusiness to 0r1e entity with whom MTA ·has 
a brokering arrangement. :rhis -allows MT A to do indirectly what it cannot do 
directly, namely to provide an unlimited amount of charter service in competition · 
with private operators. 
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U.S. Department 
of Transportation 
Federal Transit 
Administration 

Shirley A. DeLibero 
President & ChiefExecutive Officer 
Metropolitan Transit . .Authority 
1201 Louisiana 

· P.O. Box 61429 . 
·HoustOn, Texas 77208·1429 

Re: Charter Waiver Request 

Dear Ms. DeLibero: 

REGION VI 
Ariainsas, Louisiana, 
New Mexico; Oklahoma~ 
TIIX'IHi 

January 14,2004 

T-102 P.02/04 F-271 

819 Taylor St. Suite aA3&. 
Fort Wonh, TX 761~ 
817-S~ 
817-978-0575 (1ax) 

·The Federal Transit Admiiustration·(FTA) has c¢npleted its revieW of the request of the 
Metropolitan Transit Authority (Houston METRO) to .provide· charter Service t'or • special event 
under the exception set forth• in the FT A, s Charter Service regulation at 49 ·CFR §604~9(b){ 4)~ · · 
Specifically: this request for an exception, if granted, wriuldallow Houston :METRO to provide 

. cha.rtef bus $et"Vice in support of the 2004 Super Bowl on Februaiy _1, 2004, and aSsQciated 
'activities that will be held in HoustOn; 1exas. . . . 

The 4llplementing guidance states that the central issue in this exception is .the detcmninatioll of ~e 
extent to which private charter operators are capable' of providing the 'cbaner service for the speQial 
event. See, 52 Federal :Register 11925. April132 1987. 1f private charter operators are not eapable 
.of meeting the demand forihe Special event service, under the regulation the 'fTA may n~etheless 
gi-ant an e,a:eption eVen if there ·are willing and able private charter operatorS. 

As a pi¢ of this determination 'Process, the FTA notified the American Bus Association 8nd the· 
. Uilited Motorooacll ~Associati~ which represent private operators in the Houston area, in order to 
·determine the private sector's capacity to provide ~ervice for this· eVent. As a result of this notice; 
the FrA subsequently received objections fronlthe Amen~ :Sus Association and the Texas Bus 
Association, Inc. that basically objected on grounds that Houston ,METRO did not notify and/or 
adequately evaluate the capacity of private charter operators in .the Houston area to provide charter 
service for.tbis event. In addition,~ FT. A previously received objections to this request from 
Atchison TranSportation SerVices located in Spartanburg. SOuth Carolina, and Eagle Tours, IDe~, a· 
private charter operator iocated in Irvin& 'Texas, which stated that they were willing and able 
proViders; · · · · · · · · · 

The special event exception provided in 49 CFR §604.9(b)(4) of the FI'A's Charter Service 
regulation does not prescribe a specific procedure or matmer by which "capability" of private 
charter companies is determined. Indeed, the regulation chose not to define the term "capable" in 
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qrder to provide for the maximum degree of flexibility~ See, 52 Federal Re&sw .ll925;'Aprll 13. 
1987. Although it has been argued that Houston,METRO did n.Ot individWllly contac;t private 
charter operators to assess their "capability" to provide serVice for the Super Bowl. event and 
associated activities, the FTA.considers it reasonable and appropriate to look at the facts of each 
case, rather than a specific procedure~ to determine whether a "'capability" determination is 
acceptable. · 

In this case the facts reflect that Houston 'METRO has been involved in numerous meetings with 
the National Football League, which is the sponsor of the annual Super Bowl event that is held in 
various U, S. cities, to assess the expected demand for transportation serVices for tl,lis even"L Based 
on these _meetings, Houston METRO has adVised the FT A that based on comp~le historical data 
·provided by the National Football League with respect to other cities that have· previously hosted 
the Super Bowl. the expected transportation demand1for days immediately preceding the day ofthe 
event will require 800 .. 900 buses .. Moreover, based on experience with this same event in previous 
years in other cities, the event sponsor has informed Houston METRO that it anticipates that me. 
tran5ponation, ;de~d will U,lcrease by at least 30% on t4~~4ay of the Super.B~wl. · 

Houston METRO, by virtue of its having acquired considerable experience in codrdinating · 
transportation for various large events in the Houston area, which has involved the participation of 
many private clu.uter compariies, possesses substantial knowledge, expedence, and a close ·. 
familiaritY of the number of private bus operatorS in Houston. ':[his general knowledge and .· 
experienCe has enabled Houston METRO to assess whether private charter companies ill fact ha.ve 
the capabi~ to provide service for this size of special eyent. SpeeifiCally, Houston METRO 
advises that 1t regularly coordinates transportation for large events With thirty•tbree (33) private 
bus companies but that these firms often have available fleet sizes offifteeri (15) 0r fewer buses. 
·Therefor,e, even under a generous estimate of the capability of these private chart~ companies, it is 
apparent that the number of available buses that would be provided by private charter operators 
would only be 500..600 buses, although th~ minimal _expected de~d for tlie days preceding this 
event would be 800-900 buses. 

Moreover; io further support its request for an exception, HoustOn :METRO has provided Written 
assurance to the FTA that private operators will be used to the maximum extent possible and that 
Houston METRO will nc>t engage in charter ti'ansponation for the Super Bowl unless alid u'litil the 
·services .of private charter companies have been exhausted. HOuston :METRO has further assured 
the FTA that. any private operator which approaches it for tt:ansportatiori services for other entities 
usociated with the Super Bowl {e.g., ESPN, CNN; etc.) will be referred to thoSe entities for direct 
contracting oppormnities. . 

Accordingly. based on the facts that have been submitted to the FrA by Houston METRO 
concerning whether private charter op~rs· will ~be capable of meeting the expected demand.for 
charter service for this even~ it is the FTA's determination that the demand for charter service OP 

the date of the Super Bow~ including the days immediately preceding this event, will exceed the 
capability· of private charter operators. Therefore, based on this lack of capability and the Written 
assurance$ ofHouston :METRO, in accordance with the provisions of 49 CFR §604.9(b)(4), the 
FTA hereby grants an exception to Houston METRO to provide-incidental charter service on the 
occasion of the Super Bowl that will be held on February 1, 2004, in Houston, Texas, and fUrther 
to the extent that private charter firms will not be capable ofmeeting the transportation demand for 
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the days immediately preceding the Super Bowl for associated event activities, this exception will 
apply for the time period from January 24, 2004, through February 1, 2004,. · 

It spould be emphasized, however, in accordance with 49 CFR §604.9(e), that any chaner service 
that a recipient provides under any·ofthe exceptions must be incidental charter service. The FTA's 
Charter Service regulation at 49 CPR §604.S(i) defines "incidental charter service'' as "charter 
service which does not: (1) interfere With or detract from the provision of mass transportation . 
service for which the equipmen,t or facilities were funded wider the ~; or (2) does not shorten 
the mass transportation life of the equipment or filcilities~·-" _ 

Cc: 
Jet:iniferDo~ Administrator, FrA . 
Peter J. Pantuso, President & cEO, American Bus AssOciation 
Jeny Prestridge, Exeeutive DireCtor, Texas Bus Association,· Inc. 
Pinckney L. Spencer, Atchison Transpomition Servi-ces 
Gene Shields, President, Eagle Tours, Inc. 
Paula Alexander, Esq., Houston METRO 
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BEFORE THE FEDERAL TRANSIT ADMINISTRATION 

Seprem'!:ler Winds Motor Coach, Inc., and 
Great Lakes Limousine Association, 

Complainants · 

v. 

Toledo Area ~giohal Transit Authority, 
Respondent, 

Summa:i:y 

Charier Service Docket Nos. 2003-08 · 
and2003-24 
49 U.S.C. Seciitm 5323(d) 

DECISION 

• . t • • 

On July 10, 2003, September Winds Motor Coach, Inc. (''September Winds,) filed a complaint 
with the Feder~ Transit Administration ("FTA")·alleging ~hat Toledo AreaRegional·Transit 
Authority ( .. TART A" or ~'Resp.ondent") was providing chaner service in violation ofFTA's· 
charter regulation, 4.? Code of Federal Regulations (C;F.R.) Pan 604. Subsequently, durh1g 
T ARTA'sTrie:nnial Review, also in July 2003, the Respondent Was found to be out of 
compliance with the charter regulations, specifically 49 C.F .R. Section 604.9(b) and was .told to 
immediately cease and desist from providing charter service. The final report of the Triemlial 
Review was conveyed to TART A on August 14, 2003. · · 

. . . 

The Respondent filed a reply to the September Winds complaint date$1 September l7, 2003. On 
October 2,2003~ September Winds provided additional infonnation indicating that TART A was 
still offering chaner service, and on October 7, 2003, FTA issued~ second'lener ordering· 
TART A to immediately cea.Se and de~ist providing charter service. September Winds responded 
to TART A's reply on October 22. 2003. · · 

• . . J . 

On November 13,2003, the Respondent was invplved hi an incident with the· Ohio Department of· 
Public SSfety ('•ODPS''). ODPS discovered underage drinking of alcohol on TARTA.buses that 
were running between the Univer~ity of Toledo and Headliner's Bar. FTA was notified via 
telephone of the incident ·on November 18,2003. Also, on Novemberl8. 2003, Great Lakes 
Limousine Association ( .. Great Lakes") filed a complaint against the Respondent for chaner 
violation~. 

After contacting TART A via telephone on November 18,2003, FTA followed up with a letter on 
N~veinber 24, 2003, reiterating for the third time that TART A must immediately cease and desist 
operating charters until it had properly completed the willing and able. charter. de'te!IDination · 
process. TART A indicated that it would cancel all existing chaners. · 
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One of the cancelled chartc:rs was a charter with ·Paula Chasteen for her wedding. Ms. Chasteen 
contacted FTA via telephone on November 26, 2003, to complain·about the cancellation ofheJ.· 
wedding charter. Ms., Chasteen provide4 a copy to FTA ofT ART A's charter confinnation on 
December 17,2003. 

TART A met with FTA onDecember), 2Q03, to discuss outstandmg charter issues. TART A was 
asked to respond to all additional allegations inwritfug. specifically the Great Lakes complaint 
and the ODPS incident. TART A indicated that it had issued a notice for willing and able private 
providers on November 28; 2003. TARTA.provided its response to the additional allegations on 
December 29, 2003: · · 

FTA consolidated the tWO charter complaints ~nd the ODPS. incident based on the similatity of 
the allegations ,anQ. the incident circ\UI\stances. Upon reviewfugthe allegations in the complailits 
artd the subsequentfilings ofbdth the Complainants and theRespondent, FTA has concluded that. 
the service in question does violate FT A's regulations ~egcq:ding charter service. Responqent is 
hereby ordered to cease and.desist providing such illegal service. 

. . . a . 

Compiaint Histoty 

September Winds file~ its complaint with the FTA on July 10,2003. The compl8.int alleges the 
fu~~~ . . 

· 1. TART A provided unauthorized charter for the following everits:. 
a. Crosby Garden Festival ofAits: 
b. Parade of Homes; 
c. Senior .Open; · 
d. School Runs; · 
e, Employment Services; 
f. Cbristnias Shuttle Sr:rrvice; and · 
g. Wedding Trolieys. . 

2. September Winds replied to TART A • s annual notification to willing and able charter 
providers and never received a response; . . . 

. 3. TARTAunderbi.d September Winds on the A-Plus Employment Services contract; 
4. TART A's phone book listing included bus and trolley charters; and . 
5. TART A advenised group tours, weddings and panies Wlder the heading "Buses~Charters 

& Rentals" in the_ phone boolc. · 

During the Triennial Revie~_in July, T ARTA was found to be out of compliance with the clianer 
requirements:· It was rold verbally to cease and desist froin providing charter service. Oil- August 
14,2003, the final report of the Triennial Review was conveyed to TART A, and it. was told in 
writing to stop operating charters. 

·On October 2, 2003, September Winds supplemented its com.plaim with an ad showing TART A 
service for Mud Hens games and pages from TART A's website listirig a variety of services that 
TART A offered, speci"fically the availability of its trolleys for lunchtime service and rental, 
including for weddings and parties. 
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On October 7, 2003; FT A wrote TART A again reiterating that.it was under a cease and desist 
order to cease chan.er operations. FTA 'also indicated that it had never. received a response to the 
Septe~ber Winds co:mplai7?-t. · 

FTA sub~eq~ently received a. respo~sefrom TART~ dated Sep;ember 17, 2003. h·dts response, 
T ARTA m.d1cated the followmg as to September Wmds allegations: · 

. l: Crosby Garden Festival of the Ans- service provided through a contract with Toledo Aero 
Charters; ·· · · · 

1. Parade of Homes- service provided through a contract with~Toledo Aero Chaners; 
3. Senior Ope~- no additional TART A service was pr.ovided; 
4. SchoolRuns4 it is P.ennissible tripper service; 

. . . . . . I , . . 

5. . Employment Services- TAR TA · d()es not provide such service; 
6. Cbristtrias Shuttle Service- TART A utilizes its trolleys on r~gular published routes; 
· 7. Wedding Trolley-. TART A pro'vides direct c.harter service after reaching agreements with 

all Wil~ing an~ able private prdviders; TAR TA h$s riev~r received a respo\1s~ from 
September Wmds; and · · 

8. TART A acknowledged it had been cited during the recent Triennial ReViewfor improper 
wording on its willj.xl.g and able notice, ~ut that the notice was in the process of being · 
revised. 

On October22,2003,·Septemb~ Winds responded to TARTA's reply. It stated the following: 
L TJ\RTA's reply was untimely; . I ·. 

2. TART A never contactec.l.S.eptember Winds regar~ing a willing and able notice, but in 
June 2000, the American Bus Association contacted them about TART A's' notice, 
September Wi11d~.responded:as a willing and able provider, but it neverhea.rd back from 
TARTA; . . 

3. There is no. address or listing. for Toledo Aero Charters. and the only phone number for 
them is listed as Wisniewski Funeral Home or Toledo Limousine Service; .· 

4. Another·private op~rator has photos of.TARTAbuses at various events (Cedar Point 
Amusement Park,. Crosby Gardens Festival. etc.); and~ . 

. 5. Christmas Shuttle and Wedding Shuules are part of a co.mplaint from .another operator~ 1 

On November 1'8, 2003, FTAwas notified via relephoue by a private charter operator that 
TART A had been hivolved in an incident involving charier service w.J.d.thaithere was a news 
story abouuhe incident. The news ~icle from a Toledo news station stated that 011November · 
] 3, 2003, undercover agents from the ODPS arrested students on a TART A bus for underage 
drinkhlg. TART A had. been nmning a shuttle service from the UniverSityofToledo to 
Headliner's Bar on Thursday nights. The shuttle was advertised as a ~'parry bus.',. . .. . . 

FTA immediately contacted TAR.TA.by telephone on November 18,2003, regarding tbe.ODPS 
incident. fTA followed up with TART A in an email on Noveril.befl9, 2003. FTA requested that 
T ARTA explain the circuinstanees of d1e incident and provide supporting documentation. 
TART A indicated that it had provid,e.d·a shuttle service from the University o~Toledo to 

·Headliner's Bar through Toledo Aere Charter. FTA stated it wanted information on Tole4o Aero 

1 s~ptetnbcr Winds.refers to a complaint filed byT~cumseh TroUey arid Limousine Service ("T¢cumseh Trolley'') 
against TART A. FT A never received a co!:l'lplaint from Tecumseh Trolley. 
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quirter smce FTA had been unable w find a listing for Toledo Aero Chaner, and its only phone 
number was listed to Wisniewski Funeral Home. 

bn Noverober,21, 2003, FTA obtained from ODPS a copy of the contract between TARTAand 
Verso G~oup, which rep:resented Headliner's Bar. ODPS ,also supplied a c0py of the "party bus" 
· adveni sement. 

FTA issued a third lenerto TART A on November 24,2003, asking TART A to explain in,. writing 
the ODPS incident and the Verso contract.. Again, FTAreitetated thatTARTA should not be 
providing direct charter ser~i~e nor le~sing its vehicles.witil the ODPS incidem was fully· 
explained. · 

' 

Subsequently, .FT A received a complaint from Great Lakes dated Novemberl8, 2003. lu its · · 
complaint. Great Lakes alleged' that its members consistently complain about T ARTA providip.g · · 
Hlegal charters. TART A was ~6eri providing a charter,trom the COBO Hall to a Red Wings 
Hockey game on September 25; 2003; with a marquee marked :'charter"; other charters included: 
Comerica Park for Detroit Tigers gan"ies. Cedar Pointe Ohio .for the a.JllLlSen;J.ent park, etc. Great 
Lakes alleges that TART A despite a·cease and desist order from PTA is still advertising and 
providing wedding charters with its trolley. Great Lakes alleges that TART A admits it does 
approximately 300 weddings a fear. Because Great Lakes ~legations were the sa:rtle general 
allegations as the prior complaints, fT A consolidated the complaint whb the September Winds 
complaint. · · 

·On November25, 2003, TART A admitted that it had stopp~<i.b()okin& new charters, but it was 
cominuing to provide charter service because it disagreed with FTA's cease and desist dr~er. 
FTA informed TART A that cease and desist meant stop all charters immediately. TART A 
indicated it WOUld cancel all its OUtstanding booked chartets. 

On November 26, 2003, Paula Chasteen contacted Ff.A to complain that her wedding charter 
with TART A scheduled for November 28, 2003, had been cancelled. Ms. Chasteen subsequently 
provided a copy to FTA of her contract with TART A and her confumation dated Octoper29, 

· 2003. The confirmation states that .alcohol is permitted on the trolleys. 

TART A met with FTA on December 1. 2003. In that meetirig, TART A was asked to provide a 
written response to all the outstanding alleg~ions. against h. FTA agahi reiterated that until 
TART A. went through the willing and able determination process, it should not beproviding 
direct or indirect chaner. · 

T ARTA sent in its respOI}Se dated December 29, 2003, stating the following; . · 
1. Past booking of charters- TART A had been leasing vehicles for charter use to Aero 

Chm'ters/Toledo Limousine (Aero Charters} since 1995 based on its capacity constraintS. 
TART A only learned this year that Aero Charters had no vehicles. TART A will stop 
doing business with Aero Charters. TARTAwas also providing direct charter service 
with its trolleys, because it alleged it had agreements with the private willing and able 
provjders. TART A has ceased doing that and is currently goin~ through the will.ing and 
able deten.nination process. It received seven responses and will attempt lO obtam 
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agreements with all seven private providers. It will not p:rovide direct chatter With its 
trolleys if it cannot reach agreements. · · 

2. Service in Great Lakes colf1plairit;, 'The trips r~ferenced by Great Lakes were .. No 
Crumb'"trips; Trips were organized and driven byTARTA drivers at minimal cost to 
outside organizations. The'~""iver or group is assessed a charge of$50 or $100 to cover 
~el costs and wear and tear cin the vehicle. T~tA has stopped pr{j)vidmg "No Cru.tnb,' 
trips. · 

3. Headliner's Incident- TART A entered into an agreement with tlie Verso Orol.lp (brough 
· Aero Charters to p'rovide a shuttle from University ofToledo to Headliners and ·a coffee 
house. TART A ~tatesit has a policy of no· alcohol on itsvehi,cles and the dnver did not 
know underage drinking was going on, T~TA;will np long~rtake work that potentially 

. may involve underage drinking. . 
4, • School Tripp~r service- T~TAprovide~ permissibie tripper service for.school children .. 
5, Ho1.iday Trolley Sleigh SeJ::Vipe;. J7ARTA provi4es holiday service utili:4ng its trolleys . 

. between two malls. The service is open to the p.ublic and listed on TAR"(A's regular 
scbedules. · · 

Acceptable C!Umer Service 

If a recipient of federal funds~ like 111e Resp·ondent, wishes. to provide charter service, then it must 
comply with the procedurfll requirements. The r~gulation Sta'tes the following:· · 

1t a recipient desires to .provide any charier servic¢ using PTA equipment ~r facilitie~ the .. 
recipient must first determine if there are any private chatter operators willing and able to 
provide the charter se~ce . . . To t:he extent that there is .at least one such operator, the 
recipient is prohibited frontproviding charter service with FTA. funded equapment or · 
facilities unless one or more oftpe exceptions applies, 49 c~F.R. Section 604 .. 9(a). 

• .· . i 

1D.ere are a number of exceptions listed for providing charter service. However, the Respondent 
haS bcit complied with the procedural prerequisites for the excepti<;>ns and in some instances has 
provided service that does not even fall within an exc~ption. 

The ;l'egu.lations' clearly state that betore a recipient provides charter service it must detennine if 
there is any willing and able charter operator. 49 C.F·.R. ~ 604.9(a). In order to determine if there 
is at lea.St one private chaner operator willing and able to provide the service, the recipient must 
complete a public participation p~ocess. 49 C.F .R. § 604.11 (a)~ The regulatiot1S under 49 C.F .R. 
§ 604.1l(a) require that the recipient complete the following: · · 

(l) At least 60 days ·before iJ 4esires to begin to provide charter service ... 

(b) The. public participation. process must ~t a minimum include: . . ·. . 
· · (l) Placing a notice in a newspaper, or newspapers, of general c1rculanon w1thm the 

proposed geographic charter service area; . . 
(2) Send a copy of the notice to all private charter service operators ~n the proppsed 
geographic service and to any private charter service operator th~t requests notice; 
(3) Send a copy of the notice to the United Bus O~ers of Amenca, 1300 L Street, 
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NW., Suire 1050, Wa5hington, DC 2005 and the American Bus Association 1100 New 
. . ' . ' 

York Avenue, SW, Suhe 1 050,· Washington, DC 20005-3 934. 
(c) The notice mu5t: . . 

(1) State the recipients name; 
(2) 'Describe the charter setv.ice that the recipic;m proposes to provide ~imited tc days, 

times of day, geographic area, and. categories ofrevehu.e vehicle, but hOt the 
. . ' I . . • • 

capacity or the duration of the charter service; 
{3) Incl":de a .statein~t providing any private chaner operator ... at least 30 da;rs ... .to 

subm1twrmen ev1dence ... 
(4) Statethe address to which the evidence must be sent; 
(5) Include a statement mat the evidence necess~ forthe recipienttodetem1irie. if a 

private chaner operator is willing and able inc.ludes the following: · 
,(i). A statement that ~e private operator ha~ the desire and the physical capacity to 
actually provide'the .categories of revenue vehicle specified,,arid 
(ii) A copy of the documents to showthauhe private charter.operatorhas the 
requisite legal authoritY to provide the p:roposed charter s.ervice and that it 'meets 
all necessary. safety c~~fication,licensing and other legal requirements to provide 
~e proposed charter service. . · · 

(6) Include a statemeD;t 'tlfat the recipient :;;hall review only that evidence submined by 
the deadline,, shall comph~te its review within30 days of the deadline, and' within 60 
days ofthe deadline shall.inform each'private operator that subnlined evidence what the 
results of the review are. · 
(7) Indude a statement that the recipient shall nor provide any chaner serVice using ... 
equipment or facilities fin1ded under the Acts to the extent that there is at least one 
willing and able_ private charter operator unless the reCipient qualifies for one or more of 
the exceptions in 49 C.F.R. § 604.9(b). ' 

DiscussioJl 

Recipients of federal ±inancial assistance can provide cllaner service under these very limited 
circumstances. In the absence of one of the limited exceptio~, the recipients ~e prohl,bhed from 
providing the service. 49 C.F.R. Section 604.9(a). ComplainfltltS allege that the Respondentis 

. providing charter service utilizing both its buses and its trolleys. Compl'ainants alsp allege that 
Respondent is utilizing a non-existent company to· provide direct charrer service and improperly 
lea$ing its.vehicles for direct charter service. Additionally, ComplainantS are asserting that no11e 
of the chaner exceptions· apply. Responde11t receives Section 5307 so it is required to comply 
with the chaner regulations. · 

Respondent was found to be out of.compliance with the charier regulations during its recel;,lt · 
triennial revi.ew. TART A's willing and a'ble detetmination notice was improperly worded. and 
TART A was informed to cease and desist providing charter service until it had properly gone 
through the willing and able determination process as required by49 C.F .R. Section 604.11. 
TART A ignored FTA's cease and desist order forthree months and was ordered to cease and 
desist three rimes before it frnally obeyed the order. 
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·A. Aero Charters Service 

Respondent acknowledged in its re.~po,nse dated September 17,2003, that the trips for the Crosby. 
Garden Festival o£the Arts and theP.arade ofHomes wereleasingTARTA vehiclesthioughAero 
Chaners. TART A also acknowledged in its letter dated December 291 2003, that the Headlinerts 
shuttle s7rvicealsoinvolved the lea~mg ofT ART A vehicles to Aero Charters. Respondent · 
admhs that Aero Charters has no vehicles and a searcl'i. ~n the internet reveals that its phone 
t1un1ber is listed to a funeral home, as September Winds properly states .. Under the charter 
regulations, vehicles can onlybe leased for capacity or accessibility reasons to·priyare providers 
(Section 604,9(b)q)). ~ero Chatters does not qualify as a private piovide~.so all of these 
incidents constintte impr()per charter. · 

f\dd~~lo~ally, the contract tbrthe Headlii'ler's shuttle service showed TART A's and Aero 
Chaners' s names ·cm.the contract. Ther~fore, it appears tha~ T ARTA itself may have been 
·ru.nning a dir~ct charter service l.mder the name Aero C~ers. Either way, since TART A was 

. providiJ;lg th~ c~arter sei'vi~e ~tl}OUt ~ol.lowing the pro~.er procedure for ~etetqtihl~g whether ·.· 
there were w1llmg and able pnvate prov1ders', the Headlmer's shuttle serv1ce consntuted 
impennissible chaner service tmder49 C.F:R.,P~ 604·. · 

B. "No Crillnb" Service 
' 

The Resppndent acknowledges in its.December 29.2003, letter that the charter service alleged in 
the Grea'tLak.eS:·complaim constituted ••no cnunb" service: .TART~ describes this service• as trips 
organized and driven byTARTAdrivers at mirdmal cost to outside organizations'. the driver or 
group was assessed. a minimal charge. These trips clearly eonstituted charier uD.der Section. 
604.5(e). The Respondent does not even allege that any of the charter exceptions applies. All the 
··no cmmb"'trips consdnned impermissible chaner. · · 

C. Weddings 

TARTAacknowledges that it was pr~vid.ing direct charters for weddings llSing its troll;eys 
because it had agreements wjth local· private providers. fiowever, TAR! A hasnots'l.lpplied any 
agreements with Willing and able providers and during its recent triennial review its notice for 
determining willing and able providers was found to be deficient because 1t did not indicate what 
type of service TART A intended to pro vi de. as required by Section 604.1 L . Any direct charter 
service that TAR TA supplied using its trolleys co~t\rted impermissible charter sexvice since it 
had not compli~d with th:e requirements tor determining whether there were arty willing ancf able 
private providers as required under _Section 604.9. TAR TA should also no~ have been advenisin~ 
in the. phonebool< 110r on the intemet.thal it was offering direct cm.uter .serv1ce~ TART A needs to 
remove those advertisements. 

D. TriPPer Service 

The ~vidence supports a finding that the school service TART A is providing is permissible 
tripper service under 49 CFR Part c?O~.It is regularly scheduled ~ass ttans:Portation which is opt:n 
to the public and it is listed on TAR..TA's regular scheduled pubhshed routes. 
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E. Holiday Shuttles 

The holiday shuttles using T ARTA vehicles are permissible mass transponation. They are open 
to the public cmd'listed on regular published ·schedules. 

F. Procedural Determination 

'The reglllation ·und~r 49. C.F .R. § 604.11 cl~arly sets forth the procedtrres for determining if any 
willing or able prlvine charter op~rators e):Cist. The onu,s is upon the recipfent IQ provl.de a"public 
p~~icipation process.". 'At a ininhmun, the recipient is required to provide ,any private charter 

·operatOr with at least 30 days to submit written evidence to prove that it is willing and able, and 
. ~hen it must infon:n ~ach private operator what the results are 

1at least 60 days before the deadline: 

In addition to the notice, the Respondent is required to se:pd a copy ~f the notice to the United Bus 
Owners· Association (UBOA) and the American Bus Association (ABA), which it had not done. 
49 C.F.R. § 604.ll(b)(2) requires the Respondent to senti a .. copy of the notice to all private 
charter service operators in the prop.Qs.ed geographic chaner'service area and to any pnvate 
charter ser'Vice operator that requests.notice." Respondent fa.iled to send copies.to the UBOA··and 
the ABA and also fail~d to send notice to September Winds. September Winds at leges that the'y
responded to the notice and never receiv~d a reply.. · · 

Until.T ART A determines that there are no wiUi.ng and able private providers it should not be . 
. opet·ating any charters. Since TART A .received responses from seven private pnwiders as a result 
of its recent willing and able notice,.it wilt" not be able to proVide any charter service until it has 
reached wrinen. agreements with· each of the private willing and able providers. T ARTA 'can only 
lease its .vehicles to private providers if one of the limited exceptions applies tmder 49. CFR 
Section 604.9(b)(2). 

·G. Alcohol Use on Chaner Trips 

Complainants hav.e all-eged th~t alcohol is present dunng some of Respondent's charter trips. 
Ft A does not regulate the use Qf alcohol on chatter trips.·· However, TAR TA sho~d be 
cmnplying witli Ohio law regarding the conswnption of alcoh~l on its vehicles. The contract 
provided by Ms. Chasteen indicates that 1' ART A was alloWing the consumption of alcohol on its. 
vehicles. This fact is contrary to rept:esemarions that TART A made to fTA. ·TAR TA should also 
be complying with Obio law with r~gard to the c9nsumption of alcohol by minors. 

Remedy 

Complainants have requested that Respondent.iminediately cease ~d desht its charter operations; 
TART A has stopped providing chanerservice pursuant to FTA's Cl.Ul'ent cease and desist order. 
[tis currently proceeding with the will~ngand able determination process. Unti~ TART A . 
conipktes the process it cannot resume charter operations. Also, it cannot prov1de chaner serv1ce 
unless one of the limited exceptions applies. 
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Conchision and Or.der 

FTA finds that Respondent has been providing impermissible charter service and orders it to 
cease and desist any such further ser\ri.c.e . .Ref-usal to cease and desist in the provision of this 
service coUld lead to additional pe~ties on the partofFTA. Additionally, the mileage for 
improper chaner use should not accr\le towards the useful life of the Federally funded vehicles 

I . I 

In accordance with 49 C.F.R. § 604.19, the losing party may appeal this decision within ten days 
of receipt of the decision. The appeal should be sent to Jenna Dom. Admitiistratox:. FTA, 400 · 
Seventh Street, s:w .. Room 9328, WaShington, D.C. 20590; 
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-Apr'-ZZ-04 09:31am From-FTA ATLANTA,GA, 

U.S. Department 
of Transportation 
Federal Transit 
Administration 

April 22, 2004 

Ms. Sliaron Dent 
Executive Director 
Hillsborough Area Regional TI'8:I1Sit Authority 
4305 East 21st Avenup · 
Tampa, Florida 33605-2300 

RE:Charter Regulation Requirements 

Dear Ms. Dent: . 

+4045623505 

'REGION IV 
Alabama, F.lorida, Georgia, 

· KentuCky, Mississippi; 
North Carolina, Puerto 
Rico, South Carolina, · 
Tennessee · 

T-43Z P-OZ/03 F-835 

61 Fo~ Street, s~w. 
Suite 17T50 
Atlanta, GA 30303-8917 · 
404-662-3500 . 
404-562-3505 {fax) 

The Federal Transit ,Administration (FTA) is aware that on March 26, 2003, Hillsborough Area 
Regional Transit Authority (HAR'Ij provideQ. nine (9) of twenty (20) buSes ba8ed on a requ~S't 
from the White House. The remaining eleven (11) buses were secured from three private charter 
operators. The buses were needed to provide tra.nsponation.to support.President Bush's "Briefing 
to the Troops'' at MacDill Nr Force Base andttansported media anc:hniliiary families from a park 
located outside the base to a hangar inside. The buses were requested for an eight-:hout period. The . 
White Holise reimbursed HART for the use ofthe buses on May 9, ~003. FTA does not know 
whether regular HART service was impacted by the use otthe buses .. 

. . I . 

-F-r:A. 1s:awi!r-e'thaithe!.White House inqicated t!:mt for specific. security. reas9ns.it-wislied to utilize 
·R"AR.t.-btise8 e.nd·requested backE!fouud checks ·o11all drivers.-A ene-tiltleev~t.oftbis zype woUld 
pt ob~ly have qualified as an exception to the charter regulations under the:: ~ial events 
exception. FTA is aware that this was a special request from the White House with a very narrow 
titneframe. · FT A would have responded extremely quickly to either a written or verbal request 
(followed up later with a written request) for an exceptiQn. However, HART did not seek the 
Administrator's approval for an exception. This letter is being sent as a reminder that HART is 
required tO follow' me charter regulations, including the procedural requirements. 

. . I 

The charter regulations prohibit recipients from providing charter service with FTA funded 
equipment unless one of the specific charter exceptions applies. 49 Code ·ofFederal Regulations 
(CFR) § 604.9(a). Under the regulations, there is a charter exception that applies for special events 
to tbe extent that private charter operators are not capable of providing· the service. ·49 CFR § · 
604.9(b )( 4). However, in order to utilize the exception the recipient ·needs to petition the 
Administrator for an exception .. /d. The petition should describe the ev~nt, explain how it is 
special, and eXplain the amount of cfulrter service the private operators are not capable of . 
providing. 49 CFR §. 604~9(d). Additionally, the service provided can only be incidental. 49 CFR 
§ .604.9(e). Incidental seivice means that the service does not interfere with or detract from the 
provision of mass transportation service. 49 CFR § 604.5. · 
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Apr-22-04 09:32am From·FTA ATLANTA;GA, ~4045623606 T-432 P.03/03 F-836 

As you well know, the service provided by HART was not open to the public. HART used 
fe,derally funded equipment to provide transportation for a specific group of individuals for a 
specific purpose. The serVice provided clearly falls within the definition ofcharter. HART did 
not petition for an ·exceJ)tion to the charter regulations. Ff A is bringing this matter to yom 
attention so that should a sUnilar situation occur, you.wi:ll rontact FrA immediately. Should' you 
have any questions regarding .this matter, please feel free to contact me. 

Sincerely • 

. ~~a~ 
Hir~ J.~dker 
Regional.A.drilinistrafur 
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